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FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

SHIRLEY MOON,
Appellant,

I

vs.

ORVILLE FREEMAN, as Secretary > No. 21008

of Agriculture, and COMMODITY!
CREDIT CORPORATION,

Appellees.

Appeal from a judgment of the United States District

Court for the Eastern District of Washington,

Northern Division

Honorable Charles L, Powell, Judge

BRIEF OF APPELLANT

STATEMENT OF PLEADINGS AND

FACTS DISCLOSING JURISDICTION

The cause is before the Court on an Amended Com-

plaint wherein Shirley Moon, a citizen of the United

States and a resident of the Eastern District of the

State of Washington is Appellant and Orville Free-

man, as Secretary of Agriculture, and Commodity

Credit Corporation are Appellees.
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The constitutionality of provisions of the Agricul-

tural Adjustment Act of 1964, which amended the Ag-

ricultural Adjustment Act of 1938 (7 U.S.C. 1281 et

seq.) is in question.

The specific provisions of the Agricultural Adjust-

ment Act of 1964 which are involved are as follows

:

". . . The Secretary shall, in accordance with

such regulation as he may prescribe, provide for

the issuance of domestic marketing certificates

for the portion of the wheat marketing allocation

representing wheat used for food products for

consumption in the United States and for the

issuance of export marketing certificates for the

portion of the wheat marketing allocation used
for exports." 7 U.S.C. 1379c (a) (As amended
Apr. 11, 1964, Pub. L. 88-297, Title II, sec 202

(12) - (14), 78 Stat. 180);

and

". . . The Secretary shall determine and pro-

claim for each marketing year the face value per

bushel of wheat marketing certificate. ..." 7

U.S.C. 1379c (c) (As amended Apr. 11, 1964, Pub.

L. 88-297, Title II, sec 202 (12) - (14), 78 Stat.

181);

and

"... During any marketing year for which a

wheat marketing program is in effect, ... all per-

sons exporting wheat shall, prior to such export,

acquire export marketing certificates equivalent

to the number of bushels so exported." 7 U.S.C.

1379d (b) (As amended Apr. 11, 1964, Pub. L.

88-297, Title II, sec 202 (15) - (17), 78 Stat. 181).

Appellant, a non-complying producer and exporter,

was required to purchase export marketing certificates
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from the Commodity Credit Corporation and seeks to

recover the sum so paid.

Appellant asserts that the above quoted portions of

the 1964 Amendment to the Agricultural Adjustment

Act of 1938 are unconstitutional for the reason that

the export marketing certificate provisions constitute

a "tax or duty" on exports and as such violate Article

I, Section 9, clause 5 of the Federal Constitution,

which provides as follows:

"No tax or duty shall be laid on articles ex-

ported from any state."

Jurisdiction in the District Court of the Eastern

District of Washington is based upon 28 U.S.C. 1346a

(2), 28 U.S.C. 1337 and 15 U.S.C. 714b (c).

Jurisdiction in the Circuit Court of Appeals in the

Ninth Circuit is based upon 28 U.S.C. 1291.

The pleadings sustaining the jurisdiction are the

Complaint (Tr. pps. 1-6), the amended Complaint

(Tr. pps. 61 - 66) and the stipulated facts (Tr. pps.

10-39).

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This cause is before the Court on stipulated facts

(Tr. 10 - 13). All references to facts are within the

body of that stipulation.

The Appellant, a citizen of the United States, was

a wheat farmer, residing in the Eastern District of

the United States District Court in the State of Wash-

ington. The Appellee, ORVILLE FREEMAN, was

the Secretary of Agriculture and the Appellee, COM-
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MODITY CREDIT CORPORATION was a separate

Corporation acting as the agent of ORVILLE FREE-
MAN for administration of the Agricultural Adjust-

ment Act of 1938, as amended (7 U.S.C. 1281 et seq),

hereinafter referred to as the Act, as it related to an

Export Marketing Certificate program.

The Act, subsequent to the institution of the present

suit was amended in part. The portion of the Act in-

volved under the 1964 amendment are 7 U.S.C. 1379b

(Pub. L. 88-297, Title II, sec 202 (10), 78 Stat. 179)

;

7 U.S.C. 1379c (Pub. L. 88-297, Title II, sec 202 (12)-

(14), 78 Stat. 180, 181) ; and 7 U.S.C. 1379d (Pub. L.

88-279, Title II, sec 202 (15) - (17), 78 Stat. 181, 182).

All references to the Act relate to its form and sub-

stance as existing after the 1964 amendment.

Pursuant to Sections 1379b and c of the Act the

Appellees did make and promulgate regulations im-

plementing such Act as it related to the Export Mar-

keting Certificate Program. The regulations are a part

of the Stipulation (Tr. 14-39).

The Act, provides that during any marketing year

for which a certificate program is in effect all persons

exporting wheat shall, prior to such export, acquire

export marketing certificates equivalent to the num-

ber of bushels so exported, (7 U.S.C. 1379d (b) (ii) ).

Only wheat exported for non-commercial purposes

and donation are excepted from this requirement.

Under the 1964 program, the Secretary of Agriculture

determined the face value per bushel of export certi-

ficates to be twenty-five (25c) cents per bushel, the

amount as required by the Act, (7 U.S.C. 1379c (c) ) by
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which the level of price support for wheat accompanied

by export certificates ($1.55) exceeded the level of

price support for non-certfiicate wheat ($1.30). The

Act provides that:

"In order to expand international trade in

wheat and wheat flour and promote equitable and
stable prices therefor the Commodity Credit Cor-
poration shall, upon the exportation from the

United States of any wheat or wheat flour, make
a refund to the exporter or allow him a credit

against the amount payable by him for marketing
certificates in such amount as the Secretary de-

termines will make United States wheat and wheat
flour generally competitive in the world market,
avoid disruption of world market prices, and ful-

fill the international obligations of the United
States." (7 U.S.C. 1379d (b).)

The amount of this refund may vary day to day.

A producer who, in 1964, diverted a specified acre-

age of crop land on his farm from the production of

wheat to an approved conservation use, and complied

with other requirements, was eligible for domestic

and export certificates on his w^ieat acreage. (7 U.S.C.

1379e). Such a producer received domestic certificates

for Fifty percentum (50%) of his farm wheat mar-

keting allocation and export certificates for the re-

maining portion of the farm w^heat marketing alloca-

tion devoted to wheat. The farm wheat marketing al-

location is the number of bushels obtained by multi-

plying the normal yield by the farm acreage allotment

and multiplying the resulting number of bushels by the

national allocation percentage. (7 U.S.C. 1379c, Sec-

tion 728.101-.103 of the Farm ^Vheat Certificate Pro-

gram Regulations 29 F.R. 5510 (April 24, 1964), as
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amended in 29 F.R. 13635 (October 6, 1964).) For 1964,

the national allocation percentage was Ninety (90).

Therefore, an eligible producer was given export mar-

keting certificates on Forty-five (45) percentum of his

normal yield. The Commodity Credit Corporation pur-

chased such certificates from the producers and in

turn sold the certificates to the exporters. (7 U.S.C.

1379(e) ).

A producer who, in 1964, did not divert acreage

from the production of wheat and comply with the

other requirements specified in the Act was not eli-

gible for export marketing certificates on any portion

of his crop of wheat. (7 U.S.C. 1379c (b) ).

The total wheat crop estimated to be exported in the

1964-65 marketing year was 675,000,000 bushels. The

total wheat produced in 1964 was approximately 1.29

billion bushels.

The appellant did not elect to comply with the Act

and was thus ineligible as a producer to receive ex-

port marketing certificates for the wheat production

on his farm.

The Appellant, on January 15, 1965, contracted to

sell in export wheat harvested after July 1, 1964, and

exported the same to Rotterdam, The Netherlands,

on or about January 26, 1965. The wheat exported

did not fall within any of the exemption from the

requirements of the Export Wheat Marketing Cer-

tificate Program.

The Appellant filed Form CCC-518, Report of

Wheat Exported, as required by the regulations. On
such form, the Appellant reported the export of
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1872.4 bushels of wheat, computed his export certifi-

cate liability at Four Hundred Eleven and 93/lOOths

($411.93) Dollars, computed a refund for which he

was eligible at Two Hundred Foi-ty-three and 41/

lOOths ($243.41) Dollars, and paid the balance of One

Hundred Sixty-eight and 52/lOOths ($168.52) Dollars.

In this action he seeks a recovery of the One Hundred

Sixty-eight and 52/lOOths ($168.52) Dollars.

The Appellant was both a producer and an exporter

of wheat within the meaning of the Act.

In this action, Appellant alleges that the require-

ment in 7 U.S.C. 1379d (b), that he purchase market-

ing certificates on wheat exported is a tax or duty on

exports in violation of the provisions of Article I, Sec-

tion 9, Clause 5 of the Constitution of the United

States which states,

"No tax or duty shall be laid on articles ex-

ported from any State."

The Appellant and Respondents respectively moved

for Summary Judgment (Tr. 40-55 and 56). The Dis-

trict Court granted Appellees Motion and denied Ap-

pellants Motion. (Tr. 81).

SPECIFICATION OF ERRORS

The District Court erred in determining that the

"Export Marketing Certificate" provisions of the Ag-

ricultural Adjustment Act of 1938, as amended, 7

U.S.C. Sec. 1281 (Sees. 1379b, 1379c and 1379d) et seq.

(1964) does not constitute a "tax or duty on exports"
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in contravention of Article I, Section 9, Clause 5 of

the Constitution of the United States of America

(Tr. 76-80) and thereby erred in entering its order

granting Appellee's Motion for Summary Judgment.

(Tr. 81)

OUTLINE OF ARGUMENT

Appellant's argument revolves upon the proposition

that Article I, Section 9, Clause 5 of the Federal Con-

stitution, which prohibits the imposition of a tax or

duty on exports, restricts the power granted to Con-

gress to regulate foreign Commerce in Article I, Sec-

tion 8, Clause 3. The restriction operates upon Con-

gress whether the Act challenged constitutes a revenue

raising device or is designed as a regulation if, in fact,

the challenged legislation imposes an economic burden

upon the process of export, whether upon the article

exported or the exporter.

The portion of the Act challenged in this case (7

U.S.C. 1379 a-e (1964), imposes an economic burden

upon the process of export in the form of a twenty-

five cent (25c) per bushel charge to be paid by the ex-

porter for each bushel of wheat exported. The sum

charged is payable to the Commodity Credit Corpor-

ation and is subject to reduction only in such amount

(if any) as the Secretary of Agriculture determines

shall be necessary to make United States Wheat com-

petitive in the world market. As such the Act imposed

an economic burden upon the Appellant in the sum of

$168.52.
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LEGISLATIVE HISTORY

The Act in question originated in the Senate and

passed the Senate after having been referred to the

Committee on Agriculture and Forestry. The Act

thereafter was passed by the House of Representatives

after being handled by the Agriculture Committee. The

matter of constitutionality and potential violation of

Article I, Section 9, Clause 5 as a tax or duty on ex-

ports was raised directly by Representative Thomas

Curtis (Missouri) who urged that the matter should

be referred to the Ways and Means Committee as rev-

enue legislation. (Volume 110, Cong. Rec. 88th Cong.

2nd Session, p. 6132 March 24, 1964). The only re-

sponse to the remarks of INIr. Curtis are those of Rep-

resentative Carl Albert (Oklahoma) (110 Cong. Rec,

88th Cong. 2nd Session, p. 7309, April 8, 1964). The

enactment became effective April 11, 1964.

CONSTITUTIONAL HISTORY

Article I, Section 9, Clause 5 of the Federal Con-

stitution provides as follows

:

"No tax or duty shall be laid on articles ex-

ported from any State."

Constitutional History shows that the purpose of

this clause was to serve as a limitation on the power

of Congress to regulate foreign commerce, as well as

to serve as a limitation on the general power of Con-

gress to raise revenue.

The idea of a restriction on the imposition of a tax

or duty on exports appeared in an early draft of the

Committee on Detail in two areas: The first provided



10

that among the legislative powers should be the power

to raise revenue by taxation, except that no tax should

be imposed on exports (Farrand, The Records of the

Federal Convention, Vol. II, p. 142) ; and, secondly

as an exception to the power to regulate commerce it

was provided that there should be no duty on exports

{Farrand, supra, page 143).

Among Mr. Wilson's (of Pennsylvania) papers the

draft in the Committee on Detail showed language

that:

"No tax or duty shall be laid by the Legislature

on articles exported from any State; . .
." {Far-

rand, supra, pps. 168, 169.)

This language was the language of the draft re-

ported out of the Committee on Detail on August 6,

1787. {Farrand, supra, p. 183.) The Committee on

Style modified the language to its present form by

eliminating the words "by the legislature." {Farrand,

supra, p. 596.)

The proponents of the clause were concerned not

only with the question of revenue but asserted a need

for a definite restriction on the power of Congress to

interfere with or regulate commerce involving ex-

ports. The Southern States, which were the exporting

States, wanted protection for their export trade and

asserted that the power to impose a tax or duty on an

export could give the Federal Government the power

to wholly dominate, and ruin if it sought, the business

of a particular commercial locale. {Farrand, supra,

pps. 305-308, 359, 365.) The urgency of the feeling of

some members of the Southern delegations to provide
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a restriction relating to taxation of exports, is reflect-

ed by their attempt to directly couple this restriction

to the clause granting the general power of taxation

to Congress. These members did not wish to risk grant-

ing the general power to tax without immediately,

in the same Article, restricting its use on exports.

(Farrand, supra, p. 305.)

When the prohibition against taxation or imposi-

tion of duties on exports came on for general debate

in the Convention, the sweeping effect of the Article

as intended by the Framers is illustrated by not only

the debate (Farrand, supra, pps. 359-365) but by sev-

eral attempts made to modify its structure.

The opponents of this Section, including James

Madison, argued that the power to regulate exports,

through a tax, was a necessary national power for a

variety of purposes, including the necessity for:

"Procuring equitable regulations from other na-
tions" (Farrand, supra, p. 361).

Mr. Wilson stated that to pass favorably upon the

prohibition of taxing exports:

"Is to take fi'om the Common Government half
the regulation of trade." (Farrand, supra, p. 362.)

"It was his (Mr. Wilson's) opinion that a power
over exports might be more effectual than that
over imports in obtaining beneficial treaties of
commerce." (Farrand, supra, p. 362.)

In order that the power to regulate the export trade

might be retained with the Central Government two

amendments were proposed to the draft of the Com-

mittee on Detail.
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(1) Mr. Clymer (of Pennsylvania) moved that the

words "for the purpose of revenue" be inserted after

the word "duty" in the draft. His stated purpose in

moving for this amendment was that the taxation of

exports for the regulation of trade should be permis-

sible. (Farrand, supra, p. 363.) The attempted amend-

ment was defeated. {Farrand, supra, p. 363.)

(2) Mr. Madison (as a lesser evil than a total pro-

hibition of a tax or duty on exports) moved to amend

the clause by inserting after it the words "unless by

consent of two-thirds of the legislature." This attempt-

ed amendment also failed. {Farrand, supra, p. 363.)

The proponents of the prohibition of imposition of

taxes or duties on exports set forth a variety of rea-

sons for seeking to prevent this power from being

placed in the hands of the Federal Government.

Among these arguments was one which might be ap-

propriate in this ease, i.e.

:

"It might be made use of to compel the States

to comply with the will of the General Govern-
ment, and to grant it any new powers which might
be demanded . .

." {Farrand, supra, p. 363).

It appears that the States were jealous of their ex-

port markets during the full course of the Conven-

tion and that it was the intent of the Convention that

the Congress be restrained from in any way interfer-

ing with access of the citizens of the several States to

foreign markets. The prohibition against a tax or duty

on exports then, it would reasonably seem, prohibits

not only the raising of revenue through this source,

but also any attempt to regulate foreign or domestic

markets through this same device.
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James Madison (who professed a need for a power

to lay duties and tax exports in order that the Cen-

tral Government could adequately regulate trade) in

his notes on the Constitutional Convention shows dis-

cussion of this precise question by numerous members

of the convention and illustrates the determination of

the convention that the clause in question prohibited

the laying of taxes or duties either for purposes of

revenue or for purposes of regulation. Madison ''Jour-

nal of the Constitutional Convention" Vol. II, pps.

572-576. Madison in his notes, reflected his feelings for

the need of a power to lay taxes or duties saying:

"... A proper regulation of exports may, and
probably wall, be necessary hereafter and for the

same purposes as the regulation of imports, viz,

for revenues, domestic manufactures and pro-

curing equitable regulations from other nations."

Madisoi) 'Journal of the Constitutional Conven-
tion' Vol. II, p. 574.

The Constitutional Convention, as reflected above,

defined the breadth of the clause in question by stat-

ing that a tax or duty on exports should not be used

for either revenue raising or regulatory purposes.

This question was placed squarely before the Conven-

tion as set forth previously in this brief (Farrand,

supra, p. 363). We can give significance to the action

of the Convention in defeating attempted amendments

to the clause in question only by interpreting that

clause as constituting not merely a limitation on the

powers of taxation, but also a limitation on the power

of Congress to regulate foreign commerce under Ar-

ticle I, Section 8, Clause 3. This has been the inter-

pretation in the past.
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TAX OR DUTY

The terms "tax or duty" are illustrative of the broad

prohibition intended by the Framers of the Consti-

tution. A question as to the precise meaning of each

word was raised in the Convention {Farrand, The Rec-

ords of the Federal Convention, Vol. II, p. 305) but

was not answered. The terms "tax or duty" are, how-

ever, separate and distinct, and both are prohibited.

The term duty entails commercial useage and seem-

ingly is identified as a system for commercial regula-

tion.

University of Illinois v. U.S. (1933) 289 U.S. 48,

77 L.Ed. 1025, 53 S. Ct. 509 speaks of duties as being

a "regulatory device" as well as a "taxing device."

Mr. Storey in Commentaries on the Constitution

Vol. II, sec. 1088 (1873) speaks of duties as a common

means of exercising the power to regulate commerce.

Pollock V. Partners Loan d- Trust Co. 39 L. Ed. 1108,

15 S. Ct. 912, 158 U.S. 601 (1895) speaks of "duties"

in antithesis to direct "taxes" and cites the writings

of Mr. Hamilton as contradistinguishing duties from

taxes ; which generally speaking are considered as rev-

enue raising devices for the regular support of gov-

ernment.

"In its most usual signification this word (duty)

is the synonym of imposts or customs; but it is

sometimes used in a broader sense as including

all manners of taxes, charges or governmental im-

positions." Blacks Law Dictionary, Third Edition,

page 631.



15

The term duties certainly must be considered as broad-

ening (rather than restricting) the language of Ar-

ticle I, Section 9, Clause 5.

TEXT INTERPRETATION

Constitutional authorities have consistently inter-

preted Article I, Section 9, Clause 5, as limiting the

power of Congress to impose any form of economic

burden on exports and, in effect, that the Clause in

question constitutes a limitation on the power of taxa-

tion as well as the power to i-egulate foreign commerce.

Mr. Joseph Storey in his "Commentaries on the

Constitution of the United States" makes these pre-

cise observations:

"No. 1013 The next clause in the Constitution
is: 'No tax or duty shall be laid on articles ex-

ported from any State' ..."

"No. 1014 The obvious object of these pro-
visions is to prevent any possibility of applying
the power to lay taxes, or regulate commerce, in-

juriously to the interests of any State, so as to

favor or aid another. . .
." (Emphasis added)

".
. . The burden of such a tax would, of course,

be very unequally distributed. The power is, there-

fore, wholly taken away to intermeddle with the

subject of exports. .
."

"No. 1015 The first part of the clause was re-

ported in the first draft of the Constitution. But
it did not pass \\ithout opposition and several at-

tempts were made to amend it, as by inserting

after the word 'duty' the words 'for the purpose
of revenue,' and by inserting at the end of it 'un-

less by consent of two-thirds of the legislature,'

both of which propositions were negatived. It then
passed by a vote of seven States against four.
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Subsequently the remaining parts of the clause

were proposed by report of a committee, and they
appear to have been adopted wdthout objection.

Upon the whole, the wisdom and sound policy of

this restriction cannot admit of reasonable doubt

;

not so much that the powers of the general gov-

ernment were likely to be abused, as that the con-

stitutional prohibition would allay jealousies and
confirm confidence. The prohibition extends not

only to exports, but to the exporter. Congress
can no more rightfully tax one than the other."

Storey, Joseph; Commentaries on tlie Constitu-

tion of the United States, Boston, Little, Brown
and Company 1873, Vol. I, p. 712.

See also Burdick, "The Law of the American Consti-

tution" (1922) p. 194, Sec. 81 which analyzes Article

I, Section 9, Clause 5 of the Constitution as an explicit

constitutional limitation on the power of Congress;

and, Willoughhy on the Constitution, Vol. II p. 694

(2d ed). Bernard C. Gavit, Professor of Law at In-

diana University in "The Commerce Clause of the

United States Constitution" (1932) discusses limita-

tion on the power of Congress to act under the Com-

merce Clause. He concludes that among the limita-

tions imposed on Congress' power to regulate Com-

merce under the Commerce Clause are those imposed

by Article I, Section 9, Clause 5 of the Constitution

(p. 202, Sec. 98).

COURT INTERPRETATION

The Constitutional provision in question has been

consistently interpreted to mean that Congress shall

not hinder or obstruct the process of exports, and that

domestic producers should have access to foreign mar-

kets without the imposition of an economic burden
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specifically because of their participation in the ex-

port market.

The present case is in direct conflict with that pol-

icy. Under the Act in question Appellant was required

as a condition of participating in the export market,

to obtain certificates equivalent to the number of bush-

els exported. Appellant was required to pay One Hun-

dred Sixty-eight and 52/lOOths ($168.52) Dollars to

sell his produce abroad.

The power to regulate foreign commerce (Article I,

Section 8, Clause 3) is not so broad as to override all

other provisions of the Constitution. Adair vs. United

States, 208 U.S. 161, 28 S. Ct. 277, 52 L. Ed. 436

(1907) ; Gibbons vs. Ogden, 22 U.S. 1, 9 W^eat 1, 6

L. Ed. 23 (1824). One of the limitations imposed on

the power to regulate foreigTi commerce is Article I,

Section 9, Clause 5. Secretary of Agriculture v. Roig

Ref. Co., 338 U.S. 604, 94 L. Ed. 381, 70 S. Ct. 403

(1950) ; Burdick, "The Law of the American Consti-

tution" (1922) p. 194, see. 81; Gavit, "The Commerce

Clause of the American Constitution" (1932) p. 202,

sec. 98; WillougJiby, "On the Constitution" (2 Ed.)

Vol. II, p. QM; Storey "On the Constitution" (5th Ed.)

Vol. I, sec. 1014.

While this precise type of tax or duty has not been

placed directly before the Supreme Court, the general

prohibition by the Constitution of any interference

with the export process, through placement of an eco-

nomic burden (of whatever size) on either the article

exported, the exporter or the process of export has

been well (and consistently) voiced by the Court. This
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national policy is clearly expressed in Fairbanks v.

United States, 181 U.S. 283, 45 L. Ed. 862, 21 S. Ct.

648 (1900) where a statute had imposed a charge of

ten cents (lOe) on any

"bill of lading . . . for any goods, merchandise,
or effects, to be exported from any port or place

in the United States to any foreign place ..."

The Government contended that this did nut consti-

tute a tax or duty on the article exported and that

the scope of the legislation was to impose a duty on a

document not the article. The Court struck (he Act

down as unconstitutional. It stated:

"The requirement of the Constitution is that

exports should be free from any governmental
burden. The language is, 'no tax or duty'. Wliether
such provision is or is not wise is a question of

policy with which the Courts have nothing to do.

We know historically that it was one of the com-
promises which entered into and made possible

the adoption of the Constitution. It is a restric-

tion on the power of Congress ; and as, in accord-

ance with the rules heretofore noticed, the grants

of powers should be so construed as to give full

efficac}^ to those powers and enable Congress to

use such means as it deems necessary to carry
them into effect, so in like manner a restriction

should he enforced in accordance with its letter

and spirit, and no legislation can be tolerated

which, although it may not conflict with the letter,

destroys the spirit and purpose of the restriction

imposed. If, for instance. Congress may place a

stamp duty of Ten cents (10c) on bills of lading

on goods to be exported, it is because it has power
to so do; and if it has power to impose this

amount of stamp duty it has like power to im-

pose any sum in the way of stamp duty which
it sees fit. And it needs but a moments reflec-

tion to show that thereby it can effectually place
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a burden on exports as though it placed a tax di-

rectl}' upon the Article exported. It can for pur-

poses of revenue, receive just as much as though
it placed a duty directly upon the articles, and it

cam just as fully restrict the free exportation

which was one of the purposes of the Constitu-

tion."

".
. . the question of power is not to be deter-

mined by the amount of the liurden attempted to

be cast. The constitutional language is, 'no tax

or duty.'

"

".
. . the purpose of the restriction is that ex-

portation * * * all exportation — shall he free

from national burden. This intent, though obvious

from the language of the clause itself, is rein-

forced by the fact that in the Constitutional con-

vention ^Ir. Clymer moved to insert after the

words 'duty' the words 'for the purpose of rev-

enue,' but the motion was voted down. So it is

clear that the framers of the Constitution in-

tended, not merely that exports should not he

made a source of revenue to the national govern-
ment, hut that the national government should put
nothing in the tvay of burden upon such exports.

If all exports must be free from national tax or
duty, such freedom requires, not simply an omis-
sion of a tax on the articles exported, but also a

freedom from, any tax which directly burdens the

exportation; . .
." (Emphasis added)

The case of Broivn v. Maryland 12 Wheat 419, 7

U.S. 262, 6 L. Ed. 678, (1837), while relating to Ar-

ticle I, Section 10, Clause 2, is quite closely in point.

In that case the State of Maryland required all im-

porters of certain foreign articles to take out a li-

cense before they were authorized to sell the imported

goods. It was there held that the license, although in

the form of a tax on the person for the privilege of
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selling was in fact a tax on imports and that the mode

of imposing it merely varied the form without vary-

ing the substance. Chief Justice Marshall stated

:

"All must perceive that a tax on the sale of an
article imported only for sale is a tax on the ar-

ticle itself. ... so a tax on the occupation of an
importer is, in like manner, a tax on importation.

It must add to the price of the article, and be paid

by the consumer or by the importer himself, in

like manner as a direct duty on the article itself

would be made. This the State has not the right

to do, because it is prohibited by the Constitu-

tion."

In Thames d Mersey Marine Insurance Company,

Ltd. V. United States 59 L. Ed. 821, 237 U.S. 19, 35 S.

Ct. 496 (1914) the plaintiffs were engaged in writing

insurance on merchandise in export in accordance

with general export trade custom. The insurance was

written as, or shortly after, goods are in actual ex-

port. A tax was imposed directly on the insurance

policy. The economic impact of an increased cost im-

posed on the export process merely because it involved

an export (as opposed to purely domestic) product

led the Court to conclude that the tax violated Ar-

ticle I, Section 9, Clause 5. The Court does not become

involved with the issue of revenue or non-revenue or

regulatory devices. It holds that the imposition of an

economic burden on the process of export contravenes

the Constitutional mandate.

"7s the tax upon such policies so directly and
closely related to 'the process of exporting' that

the tax is in substance a tax upon the exportation
and hence within the constitutional prohibition:
"... the rise in rates for insurance as immedi-

ately affects exporting as an increase in freight
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rates, and the taxation of policies insuring cargoes

durmg their transit to foreign ports is as much a

burden on exporting as if it were laid on the char-

ter parties, the hills of lading, or the goods them-
selves. Such taxation does not deal tvith prelimi-

naries, or ivith distinct or separable subjects; the

tax falls upon the exporting process." (Emphasis
added.)

Til Vuited States v. Hvoslef, 237 U.S. 1, 35 S. Ct.

459, 59 L. Ed. 813 (1916) the Court was dealing with

an enactment wherein a stamp tax was imposed di-

lectly upon the occupation of operating as a charter

party in foreign commerce. The Charter Parties op-

erated exclusively between United States and foreign

ports. The tax was struck down as contravening Arti-

cle I, Section 9, Clause 5 of the Constitution. The

Court held that the purpose of this Clause was to pre-

vent obstruction of the export process, not merely to

prevent raising revenue from this source.

"The charters were for the exportation; they
related to it exclusively ; they served no other pur-
pose. A tax on these charter parties was in sub-
stance a tax on the exportation; and a tax on the
exportation is a tax on the exports."

The Court then proceeded using language most ap-

propriate to the present case

:

".
. . This constitutional freedom, hoivever,

plainly involves more than mere exemptions from
taxes or duties which are laid specifically upon the

goods themselves. If it meant no more than that,

the obstruction to exportation tvhich it ivas the

purpose to prevent cotild readily be set up by
legislation nominally conforming to the constitu-

tional restriction, but in effect overriding it. It

was the clear intent of the framers of the Consti-
tution that the process of exporting the products
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of a state, the goods, chattels, and property of the

people of the several states, should not he ob-

structed or hindered hy any burden of taxation.

'Miller, Const, p. 592.' . .
."

In A. G. Spalding & Bros. v. Edwards 262 U.S. 66,

67 L. Ed. 865, 43 S. Ct. 485 (1923) the Court held

that a tax on

"All baseball bats . . . balls of all kinds . . .

sold by the manufacturer . .
."

was a tax on exports where the manufacturer con-

tracted through a commission merchant. The sole

purpose of the transaction was for export and the

question to be decided was whether the "sale" was a

"step" in export. The tax was on the sale and was held

to violate the constitution prohibitions of Article I,

Section 9, Clause 5.

"The very act that passed the title (the sale),

and that would have incurred the tax had the

transaction been domestic, committed the goods
to the carrier that was to take them across the

sea for the purpose of export, and with the di-

rection to the foreign port upon the goods. The
expected and accomplished effect of the act was

to start them for that port. The fact that further

acts were to be done before the goods would get

to the sea does not matter so long as they were

only the regular steps toward the contemplated

result."

Under the Agricultural Act of 1938, as amended,

(7 U.S.C. 1379d (b) ) it is provided that:

"(ii) all persons exporting wheat shall, prior
to such export, acquire export marketing certifi-

cates equivalent to the number of bushels so ex-

ported."
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It is thereafter provided that the Commodity Credit

Corporation shall allow a refund to the exporter, or

a credit against the amount payable for Certificates,

in such amount as the Secretary of Agriculture deter-

mines will make United States wheat and wheat flour

generally competitive in the world market, avoid dis-

ruption of world prices and fulfill the international

obligations of the United States. The price of each

certificate is Twenty-five cents (25e) which sum must

be paid by the exporter to participate in the export

trade. Without question, as a pure matter of econom-

ics, this cost must be passed on, as a part of the pur-

chase price, to the foreign buyer. This can only mean

that the foreign buyer pays a price of Twenty-five

cents (25c) per bushel (less the current subsidy) in

excess of the price receivable by, and quotable to the

producer. The complying producer then receives

Twenty-five cents (25c) per bushel on Forty-five per-

cent (45%) of his normal production (not his actual

production) from the Commodity Credit Corporation

as a "bonus" for "cooperating" with the Federal Gov-

ernment. The non-complying producer is wholly de-

prived of access to the Twenty-five cent (25c), as a

"penalty" for "not cooperating" with the Federal

Government. The amount of this penalty may vary

from day to day depending on the amount of "sub-

sidy" for export established by the Secretary for a

particular day under the provisions of Section 1379d

(b) previously paraphrased. The cost of the export

certificate also may be increased each year.

It is difficult to evaluate whether this is a direct

impost on the goods, or upon the exporter. Certainly
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it is a circumstance which must be fulfilled as a con-

dition of entering the export market, and thus falls

as a direct burden on the "process of exporting," acting

as an obstruction as directly as the tax on charter par-

ties in United States v. Hvoslef, supra ; or as directly

as a stamp tax on a bill of lading in Fairbanks v.

United States, supra; or a tax on the occupation of

importing. Brown v. Maryland, supra.

CONCLUSION

Appellant urges that the Constitutional and Deci-

sional History, and authoritive interpretation of Ar-

ticle I, Section 9, Clause 5 lead to the unquestionable

conclusion that the imposition of any "tax or duty" re-

sulting in an economic burden on the process of ex-

porting (whether the article exported or the exporter)

is prohibited, whether the "tax or duty" is intended

as a revenue or a regulatory measure. As such, Article

I, Section 9, Clause 5 is a restriction on the power

granted to Congress in Article I, Section 8, Clause 3.

The following sections of the Agricultural Adjustment

Act of 1964 should be declared unconstitutional, to-

wit: 7 U.S.C. 1379c (a) (As amended Apr. 11, 1964,

Pub. L. 88-297, Title II Sec. 202 (12-14), 78 Stat. 180,

181) ; 7 U.S.C. 1379c (C) (As amended Apr. 11, 1964,

Pub. L. 88-297, Title II, Sec. 202 (12) - (14), 78 Stat.

180, 181) ; 7 U.S.C. 1379d (b) (As amended Apr. 11,

1964, Pub. L. 88-297, Title II, Sec. 202 (15) - (17)

;

78 Stat. 181, 182), insofar as said sections require the

purchase of export marketing certificates as a condi-

tion of exporting wheat.
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The Order granting Appellee's Motion for Sum-

mary Judgment (Tr. 81) should be reversed and an

Order should be entered granting Appellant's Motion

for Summary Judgment and granting Appellant

Judgment in the sum of $168.52 and costs.

DATED, Colfax, Washington

July 6, 1966

Respectfully submitted,

WESLEY A. NUXOLL
Attorney for Appellant

CERTIFICATE
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of this brief, I have examined Rules 18 and 19 of the

United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Cir-

cuit, and that, in my opinion, the foregoing brief is

in full compliance with those rules.

WESLEY A. NUXOLL
Attorney for Appellant
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IN THE UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS
FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

No, 21008

SHIRLEY MOON,

Appellant

V.

ORVILLE FREEMAN, as Secretary
of Agriculture, and COMMODITY
CREDIT CORPORATION,

Appellees

ON APPEAL FROM THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF WASHINGTON

BRIEF OF THE APPELLEES

JURISDICTION

Jurisdiction in this Court is based upon 28 UaS«C, 1291o

COUNTERSTATENffiNT OF THE CASE

Appellee believes that a more complete statement of the wheat

program, as authorized bv Congress, may be helpful to the Court in

resolving the issue before it = hence this counterst atement

,

The genesis of the Wheat Marketing Allocation Program is in

S§ 324 and 325 of the Food and Agriculture Act of 1962 (76 Stat.

605, 626-631), which amends, in certain respects, the Agricultural

Adjustment Act of 1938, as amended (7 U, S, C, s 1281 et seq^),

and the Agricultural Act of 1949, as amended (7 U. S, Co § 1421

et seq„)o The legislative finding was made, in this enactment in



1962, that:

"Wheat, in addition to being a basic food, is one
of the great export crops of American agriculture and
its production for domestic consumption and for export
is necessary to the maintenance of a sound national
economy and to the general welfare. The movement of
wheat from producer to consumer, in the form of the
commodity or any of the products thereof, is preponder-
antly in interstate and foreign commerce. Unreasonably
low prices of wheat to producers impair their purchasing
power for nonagricultural products and place them in
a position of serious disparity with other industrial
groups. The conditions affecting the production of
wheat are such that without Federal assistance, pro-
ducers cannot effectively prevent disastrously low
prices for wheat. It is necessary, in order to assist
wheat producers in obtaining fair prices, to regulate
the price of wheat used for domestic food and for
exports in the manner provided in this subtitle [i,e«,
§§ 1379a=1379j of Title 7, U, S, C,],"

The Wheat Marketing Allocation Program = as provided for in

1962 - was a part of a regulatory plan for mandatory acreage allot-

ments and marketing quotas, 7 U, So C, 1958 ed, (Supp, IV) g 1281

et seq » The statute required a referendum among wheat farmers to

determine whether at least two^thirds of those voting in the refer-

endum favored the imposition of quotas^ 7 U, S , Co 1958 ed,

(Suppo IV) i 1336o The Secretary determinedj on the basis of the

referendum, that "[s]ince more than one-third of those voting

opposed quotas, wheat marketing quotas will not be in effect for

the 1964-65 marketing yearo" 28 FoRo 6039,

Further statutory amendments were recommended by the President

"to check a drastic decline in producer income from the 1964 crop."

2 -

i



110 Cong, ReCo 1462, It was estimated that in the absence of

idditional legislation wheat producers would receive "between

fSOO million and $700 million less in 1964 than thev did m 1963,"

\ "certificate program on a voluntary basis" was recommended,

'The lawj" said the President, "should be designed to, first,

raise the income of wheat growers substantially above what it would

)e in the absence of new legislation; second, avoid increases in

)udgetary costs; third, maintain the price of wheat at a level which

i?ill not increase the price of bread to the consumer, and fourth,

jnable the United States to discharge its responsibilities and

realize the benefits of the International Wheat Agreement/' Ibid ,

Thereupon the Congress enacted the Agricultural Act of 1964

[78 Stato 173, 178=183) further amending the Agricultural Adjustment

\ct of 1938, as amended, and the Agricultural Act of 1949, as

imendedo A "wheat marketing allocation program as provided in

this subtitle [^.60, §§ 1379a-1379j of Title 7, U„ S, Co] shall be

In effect for the marketing years for the 1964 and 1965 crops,"

78 Stat, at 179, 7 U, S, C, § 1379b,

The Wheat Allocation Program provided for production controls

Dn a voluntary basis; and to encourage producers to participate in

the program those agreeing to follow the quota system were entitled

to receive marketing certificates valued at the rate of 70 cents

per bushel for a portion of the crop which it was estimated would



be used for food consumption in the United States, and 25 cents

per bushel for a certain portion of the crop which it was estimated

would be exported. To finance this program the processors were

required to buy certificates at the rate of 70 cents per bushel

for all wheat processed into food, and 25 cents per bushel for all

wheat to be exported. However whereas payments to producers were

based on normal production for the acreage allotments the pav=

ments b^ processors and exporters were based on the number of

bushels of wheat actually processed for food consumption or actuall

y
purchased for export, (7 IJo S <, C, 1379b j,c ,d(b) ) , If the Depart-

ment's estimates proved substantially correct and if most American

farmers participated in the program the payments to producers would

be financed by receipts from the processors.

There is one significant factor which cannot be overstressed -

the tentative nature of the exporter's payments. He had to buy the

certificates at the 25 cent rate, but to make certain that this pav

ment would not increase the price of American wheat above the world

price, thus depriving American farmers of an international market
;

Congress provided:

1/ Exporters engaged in the sale of wheat abroad pay 25 cents for
each bushel of wheat exported. There is no provision for the
purchase of export certificates in connection with the sale abroad!
of flour. However, the processor must buy 70 cent certificates on]

all wheat processed into flour used for food, regardless of its
ultimate destination. This cost is passed on to the exporter, who,
is entitled to a refund from Commodity Credit Corporation to the
extent necessary to make his flour competitive in the world market,
(7 U, S, C, 1379d(b))



In order to expand international trade in wheat
and wheat flour and promote equitable and stable
prices therefor the Commoditv Credit Corporation
shallj upon the exportation from the United States
of any wheat or wheat flour, make a refund to the
exporter or allow him a credit against the amount
pavable bv him for marketing certificates, in such
amount as the Secretary determines will make United
States wheat and wheat flour generally competitive
in the world market, avoid disruption of world market
prices, and fulfill the international obligations of
the United States, C1379d(b),

As a consequence of this section the actual pavments made bv

an exporter fluctuated from dav to day with the world price. As

loted in the affidavit of Mr, Godfrey, Administrator of Agricultural

stabilization and Conservation Service, the exporters mav have had

to pay nothing - indeed they were frequently the recipients of an

ictual cash subsidy = if such were necessarv to make American wheat

:ompetitive in the world markets,, (R. 49)

In the case at bar the appellant is an exporter who paid $411,93

for certificates in the marketing vear 1964=1965. He received a

statutory refund of $243o41 to bring his wheat in line with the

i^orld price, and sues to recover the difference - $168,52, contend-

ing that the statute authorizing the Secretary to reauire processors

to purchase certificates for wheat to be exported is in violation

Df Art. 1, Sec. 9, clause 5 of the Const itution

a

Decision of the District Cour t

Both parties, after agreeing upon a stipulation of fact, filed

notions for summary iudgmento In view of the attack upon the

zonstitutionality of a statute a three=judge court was convened and

teard argument on the motions for summary ,iudgment. It then ruled
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that since the only relief available to the plaintiff was a money

judgment, the matter did not require the attention of a three-

judge court, and the matter was remanded to the District Court

for decisiono (245 F. Suppo 837, 838=839, E,D, Wash.)* The

District Court (Judge Powell was a member of the three-judge

:)anel) granted the Government's motion for summarv judgment.

Constitutional Provisions, Statutes and Regulations Involved

Constitutional Provisions ;

Arto 1, Sec. 9, Clause 5 = No tax or duty shall be
laid on articles exported from any State.

Arte 1, Seco 8, Clause 3 - Congress shall have the
power "To regulate Commerce with Foreign Nations, and
among the several States, and with the Indian Tribes,"

statutory Provisions Involved ;

The complete text of the statutorv provisions involved will be

found at 7 UoS^C, 1379(a) to (j), 76 Stat, 626-629, as amended,

78 Stat, 180=181,

The particular provisions being challenged are:

Marketing Certificates ;

The Secretary shall, in accordance with such
regulation as he mav prescribe, provide for the
issuance of domestic marketing certificates for the
portion of the wheat marketing allocation represent-
ing wheat used for food products for consumption in
the United States and for the issuance of export
marketing certificates for the portion of the wheat
marketing allocation used for exports, 78 Stat, at
180, 7 U,S,C, I 1379(a),

Marketing Restrictions ;

(i) all persons engaged in the processing of
wheat into food products shall, prior to marketing
anv such food product or removing such food product
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for sale or consumption, acquire domestic marketing
certificates equivalent to the number of bushels of
wheat contained in such product and (ii) all persons
exporting wheat shall, prior to such export, acquire
export marketing certificates equivalent to the num-
ber of bushels so exported. In order to expand
international trade in wheat and wheat flour and
promote equitable and stable prices therefor the
Commodity Credit Corporation shall, upon the ex-
portation from the United States of anv wheat or
wheat flour, make a refund to the exporter or allow
him a credit against the amount pavable by him for
marketing certificates, in such amount as the Secretary
determines will make United States wheat and wheat
flour generally competitive in the world market,
avoid disruption of world market prices ^ and fulfill
the international obligations of the United States,,"
78 Stato at 181, 7 Uo So C. § 1379d(b).

The regulations involved herein are:

7 CFR Par. 778<,5(a) which requires exporters to
"acquire and surrender certificates to CCC,,,
for wheat so exportedo.." at a price of 25 cents
per bushel

«

7 CFR Par, 778,6 which requires Commodity Credit
Corporation (CCC) to make "refund to the exporter
or allow him a credit against the amount pavable
by him for certificates m such amount as CCC
determines will make the United States wheat
generally competitive in the world market, avoid
disruption of world market prices and fulfill the
international obligations of the United States,"

The Issue

Whether the requirements for wheat export marketing certifi

ites as provided in §§ 324 and 325 of the Food and Agriculture



Act o£ 1962 (76 Stato 605, 626"631» 7 U.SaC, 1379d) and in §§ 202

and 203 of the Agricultural Act of 1964 (78 Stat, 173, 178-183) =

amending the Agricultural Adjustment Act of 1938 j as amended (7 UcS

§ 1281 et seq,) and the Agricultural Act of 1949, as amended (7 U«S— —

^

2/
§ 1421 et seq „ ) = constituted a "Tax or Duty * * * laid on Artie]

exported from any State" in contravention of Art, I, § 9, clause 5

of the Constitution,

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

la A tax or duty is a revenue producing measure exacted to cc

the expenses of governments The income from certificates sold to

exporters is not used to defrav the expenses of government but to

finance the purchase of certificates from the producers, and is kep

in a special fund in Treasury, Hence, the certificate charge is nc

a tax or duty within the intendment of the Constitution,

2c, The Certificate charge is a valid exercise by Congress of

power under the Commerce clause. The Wheat Allocation Program, of

which the certificate charge to exporters is but one feature, is

designed to stabilize wheat prices and farm income. It is a regu-

latory measure, and the fact that some revenue mav be produced as

an incident to the regulation does not serve to classify the Act

as a taxing statute.

2/ The statute has since been modified to eliminate the initial
Tixed price of 25 cents per certificate. Now the exporter pavs
to CCC or receives from CCC, determined on a daily basis, the amoun
which will make American wheat competitive in the world market,
79 Stat, 1187, 1202=1206, 7 U,S,C, Supp, I ii 1379b, 1379c, 1379d,
1379e, 1379g, 1379i, and 1445a, These statutory changes effectuate
by the Food and Agriculture Act of 1965 relate primarily to the
program for the 1966 marketing year and thereafter, and hence do
not affect the pending case.



3. The certificate charge does not burden exports, but on

he contrary is a benefit to the exporter since it serves to

tabilize world prices, and is part of a program which guarantees

he exporter a competitive position in the international market,

ARGUMENT

I, THE CHARHE OF 25 CENTS PER BUSHEL OF
WHt^AT HXPOI^T I^r) I ^ MOT A " T AX" OR "DUTY"

.

Taxes and duties are compulsory exactions, revenue producing

easures , collected and used for the general operations of govern-

snto United States v, LaFranca, 282 U„S, 568, 572 (1930), Lipke

• Lederer . 259 U.S, 557, 561-562 (1921). As was stated in United

tates V, Butler, 297 U,S. 1, 61 (1935): "A tax, in the general

nderstanding of the term, and as used in the Constitution, signifies

n exaction for the support of government. The word has never been

fiought to connote the expropriation of monev from one group for the

enefit of another,"

In the instant action pavments made bv an exporter for the

urpose of defraying subsidies to farmers cannot be properlv termed

tax or dutVo On the contrary, here as in Rodgers v. United States ,

3/
32 Uc So 371, 374 (1947) the statutory plan is not a "revenue

aising device," and "unlike a tax, it does not rest on the basic

/ In the Rodgers case the statute provided for cotton quotas, with
enalties assessed against producers who marketed in excess of their
uot as o



necessity of the Government to collect a carefullv estimated sum

of money by a particular date in order to meet its anticipated

expenditures „"

Furthermore, in the instant case the money derived from the

sale of the certificates did not go into a general fund to help

defray the expenses of government, but went into a special fund

in Treasury and was used to finance the purchase of certificates

from the producers and for other CCC out lavs

c

It was held in the Head Money Cases , 112 U,S, 580, 595=596

(1884) that when a monetary exaction = imposed pursuant to the

commerce clause ° is deposited in a special fund in the Treasury

to be used only in connection with the program enacted bv Congress

pursuant to the commerce clause, the payment thus required bv the

statute is not a tax or duty although "within a loose and more

extended sense than was used m the Constitution" it may be called

a t aXo

Congressional Intent

Although Congressional intent concerning constitutionality of

a statute is not conclusive it is entitled to judicial respecto

Here, there was little discussion by Congress concerning the

4/ Despite income from the sale of export certificates receipts CCC
Fas operated at a net loss for many years, its last net realized
gain occurring in 1949o (R. 54=55) » The Commodity Credit Corporat:
is authorized bv its charter to use in the conduct of its business
all of its funds and other assets^ 15 Uc S^ C, § 714fa
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onstitutionality of the pending bill» in fact only two direct

eferenceso Congressman Thomas Curtis of Missouri statedi

"Section 202(16) also authorizes the Secretary
of Agriculture to require anv person who wishes
to export UaSo wheat to pay a tax to the UoSo
Government at an amount which he determines.
He estimates that amount at 25 cents per bushel.
Our wheat exports could run as high as 800 million
bushels. Using the Secretary's estimate, this
empowers him to raise approximately $200 million
worth of revenue. Article I, Section 9 of the
Constitution of the United States states (inter
alia) I "N o tax or duty shall be laid on articles
e xp rte d~f r6m any ^t ate , '

'
~~

In the past we have rarely had difficulty in
understanding this clear prohibition against export
taxes. Since we are now supposed to be having an
all-out drive to expand U,S, exports, some may
feel it is appropriate to test again the consti-
tutionality of a tax levied on exports. Certainly
I do not intend to debate the wisdom or consti-
tutionality of this provision at this time, but
again I suggest that the Ways and Means Committee
should at least have the opportunity to review the
proposal,"
Volume 110, Cong, Rec, Part 5, 88th Cong, 2nd
Session, page 6132,

Congressman Carl Albert of Oklahoma, stated (110 Congres-

ional Record, p, 7309, April 8, 1964):

Finally, the distinction between provisions
to "raise revenue" in the constitutional sense,
and others has been well defined by the courts.
The construction of this limitation -= article I,

section 7 == is practically well settled hv the
uniform action of Congress, According to that
construction it "has been confined to bills to
levy taxes m the strict sense of the word, and
has not been held to extend to bills for other
purposes which incidentally create revenue,"
Story on the Constitution (sec, 880, U,S , v,

Norton, 91 U,S, 566, 569 (October 187rTerm))

11



In all events it is evident that Congress did not consider

the legislation to be a tax measurco That part of the Act relating

to the wheat certificate program originated in the Senate, not the

House J
as would be required for revenue measures. It was handled

in the House by the Agricultural Committee not the Ways and Means

Committee, as would have been the case had the bill been a revenue

measure; and likewise in the Senate the bill was handled bv the

Agricultural and Forestry Committee rather than by the Finance

Committee^

Throughout the discussion the emphasis was on international

commitments rather than on revenue o Price support through loans

in the previous year had been pegged at $lo82. Price support in

the 1964 marketing year through loans was to be $1,30, (R 46).

If world prices remained above $lo30, and export certificates were

not required, the exporters would get a real windfall, and possibly

disrupt the world markets The export certificate was the Congres-

sional answer.

5/ See 110 Congo ReCo 3985, 4104, 4105, 4140, 4343, 4345, 4476,
and Hearings before the Committee on Agriculture, House of Rep,,
87th Cong, 2nd SesSe on HcR, 10010, Serial AA, Part 1, pp, 171-172,
Hearings before the Subcommittee on Wheat of the Committee on
Agriculture, House of Rep«, 88th Cong, 2nd Sess,, Serial HH, Part
2, pp, 207-208, Hearings before Senate Committee on Agriculture
and Forestry, 88th Congo 2nd Sess, on S, 1581, 1617, 2258, 2357,
2492, pp, 32, 38, 41, 171-172,

6/ A return of the certificate payments to exporters would result
Tn a windfall since the cost has naturally been passed on to the
foreign buyers.

12



The Committee on Agriculture and Forestry reported as follows:

* * * the purpose of requiring certificates on
wheat and wheat products exported is not to obtain
revenue, but solely to regulate the price at which
such products are exported and eliminate the pos=
sibility of windfall profits * * *o" Sen^, Report
Noo 874, 88th Congo, 2nd Sess,, p, 33,

A Case in Point

In Morrison Milling Co., et al . v. Freeman a No, 19794 and

lational Biscuit Co., et al . v. United States , No. 19795, in the

Jnited States Court of Appeals, District of Columbia, wheat

trocessors attacked regulations (under the same Wheat Allocation

'rogram) which required them to pay 70 cents per bushel of wheat,

t being plaintiffs' contention that the statute onlv required them

pay for that portion of the wheat which became flour (about 72%),

'hey argued that the Act was a revenue measure and should be strictly

lonstrued against the government. In rejecting that argument, the

:ourt of Appeals said in its opinion filed on July 18, 1966, that

the purpose of the statute appears to be to regulate the price of

'heat for the benefit of the grower, and the federal power relied

ipon is the Commerce Clause." Slip opinion, p. 8, fn. 3, "The

ill was not handled m either chamber [of Congress] as a tax, and

he revenue raised is for the achievement of a regulatory purpose

ind not to contribute to the general funds of the Treasury," Ibid .

From the foregoing discussion it seems reasonably clear that

he sale of export certificates to exporters did not in any con-

titutional sense impose a tax or duty, since the statute in question
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did not purport to be a revenue measure, and since in the final

analysis the exact amount of the payment depended not on Congress

but on international wheat prices,

II. THE CERTIFICATES HERE INVOLVED WERE A PROPER
Fmmr^H OF 'iw cmc^^^^rrmKi power to
REdULATI^ COMMt^RCn :

The Constitution grants to Congress the power to regulate

interstate and foreign commerceo Art, 1, Sec^ 8, Clause 3, In

determining whether a statute is covered by the taxing or commerce

clauses of the Constitution the basic factor is the Congressional
7/

objectiveo" In Rodgers Vo United States , 138 F, 2d 992, C^A, 6

(1943) a statute imposing a penalty of 3 cents a pound on excess

cotton was attacked, and the Court in upholding the statute said,

po 994:

"The test to be applied is to view the objects and
purposes of the statute as a whole and if from such
examination it is concluded that revenue is the primary
purpose and regulation merely incidental the imposition
is a tax and is controlled by the taxing provisions of
the Constitution, Conversely, if regulation is the
primary purpose of the statute the mere fact that in=
cidentally revenue is also obtained does not make the
imposition a tax, but a sanction imposed for the purpose
of making effective the Congressional enactment,"

7/ The wisdom of Federal regulation j the need for the regulation,
and the effectiveness of the regulation are questions for Congress
not the courts. Northern Securities Co , v. United States , 193 U,S
197, 350 (1903); Arizona v7 ^alit'ornlaT 283 U,S, 423, 455 = 457 (193
American Power Co7 v. Securities and Exchange Comm'n ,, 329 U,S, 90

106" 107 ( 1942) ; Secretary ot Agriculture v. Central Roig Co , , 338
U,S„ 604, 606, fn, 1 (1549),

'
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Whether a statute is regulatory in nature or intended to raise

ivenue is not to be determined by isolating and construing one

irticular provisiono Its purpose is to be ascertained by ex-

lination of the entire statute and the occasion and circumstances

: its usee Helvering Vo Stockholms etCc Bank. 293 U, S, 84, 93-

[ (1934),, "The language of an act is, of course, the fundamental

lide to legislative meaning and purpose, but it is the language of

le act as a whole that is to be read and not the words of a section

• provision in isolation * * *," Eli zabeth Arden 5ales_Co££ o v,

IS Blass Co , , 150 F: 2d 988, 992=993, C.A- 8 (1945), certiorari

mied, 326 Uo S, 773o Also seei Richards v. United States , 369

So 1, 11 (1961); Labor Board Vc Lion Oil Co. , 352 U, Sc 282, 288

.956); Mastro Plastics Corpo v, Labor Board , 350 U.S. 270^ 285 (1955)

And Congress in exercising its power to regulate interstate

' foreign commerce may impose economic burdens and regulate prices-

•oves V. Slaughter , 15 Pet, 449, 505 (1841), Wickard v, Fil^burn,

.7 U-Sc 111 (1942)o Also see United States v. Rock Royal Corp »

,

17 U,S. 533, 569-571 (1938); Sunshine Anthracite Coal Co,

Adkinsc 310 UoS, 381 (1940), the Head Monev Cases , supra- United

:ates v, Stangland^ 242 Fed: 2d 843, 848, C,A, 7 (1957), For the

)wer of Congress under the commerce clause "is as broad as the

:onomic needs of the Nationc" American Power CO o Vc Securities and

xhange Como . 329 U,S, 90, 103- 104,

I

Whenever the statutory purpose to regulate commerce "permeates

e entire congressional plan," the imposition of a tariff or duty

15



is a valid incident to the regulation of commerceo Board of Trust

Vo United States , 289.UoSo 48, 58°49 (1932), "Congress mav, and

undoubtedly does, in its tariff legislation consider the condi-

tions of foreign trade in all its aspects and effects. Its requir

ments are not the less regulatory [under the commerce clause]

because they are not prohibitory or retaliatory. They embody the

congressional conception of the extent to which regulation should

gOo But if the Congress may thus exercise the power, and asserts,

as it has asserted here, that it is exercising it [pursuant to the

commerce clause of the Constitution] , the judicial department may

not attempt in its own conception of policy to distribute the

duties thus fixed by allocating some of them to the exercise of

the admitted power to regulate commerce and others to an independe

exercise of the taxing power," I^, at 58,

Conversely, Congress in the exercise of its taxing power may

as an incident thereof bring about a regulatory effect, Sonzmsky

^" United States , 300 UoS, 506 (1936),

To completely understand the purpose and effect of the statut

challenged in these proceedings, a few words concerning its his=

torical background will be useful.

The Wheat Marketing Allocation Program is a part of the

Agricultural Adjustment Act of 1938, as amended (7 U, So C, S§ 128

1379a-1379j) , and the Congressional findings and statutory provisi

with respect to the Wheat Marketing Allocation Program are under-

scored by the Congressional findings in 1938 with respect to wheat

16



s follows: "Wheat * * * is produced throughout the United States

y more than a million farmers, is sold on the country-wide market

nd, as wheat or flour, flows almost entirely through instru-

entalities of interstate and foreign commerce from producers to

onsumers. Abnormally excessive and abnormally deficient supplies

f wheat on the count rv-wide market acutely and directly affect,

urden , and obstruct interstate and foreign commerce, Abnormallv

xcessive supplies * * * depress the price of wheat in interstate

nd foreign commerce, and otherwise disrupt the orderly marketing

f such commodity in such commerce. Abnormally deficient supplies

esult in an inadequate flow of wheat and its products in interstate

nd foreign commerce * * * and with excessive increases in the

rices of wheat and its products in interstate and foreign commercco

The conditions affecting the production and marketing of

heat are such that, without Federal assistance, farmers, individ-

ally or in cooperation, cannot effectively prevent the recurrence

f such surpluses and shortages and the burdens on interstate and

oreign commerce resulting therefrom ^ maintain normal supplies of

heat, or provide for the orderly marketing thereof in interstate

nd foreign commercca" 7 U^ So C, § 1331o

There are additional tokens of Congressional purpose within

he statute and outside of it. As noted p, 2 infra , in 1962

ongress enacted further amendments to the Agricultural Act of

938 which stated, in part, "Wheat, ,,, is one of the great export

rops of American agriculture and its production for domestic

- 17 -



consumption and for export is necessary to the maintenance of a

sound national economy and to the general welfare^ o o o e It is neces*

i n order to assist wheat producers in obtaining fair prices, to

regulate the price of wheat for domestic food and for exports in

the manner provided in this subtitle o" 7 U, S, C, 1379a, (Emphas;

supplied,) Furthermore the Wheat Marketing Allocation Program -

enacted by Congress with regard^ inter alia , to our international

obligations (78 Stato at 181, 7 U. S, C, § 1379d(b)) - is to be

interpreted so as to be consonant with the multilateral Internatioi

Wheat Agreement, 1962, the objectives of which are:

•'(a) To assure supplies of wheat and wheat-flour
to importing countries and markets for wheat and
wheat-flour to exporting countries at equitable and
stab le prices ;

"(b) To promote the expansion of the international
trade in wheat and wheat=flour and to secure the
freest possible flow of this trade in the interests of
both exporting and importing countries, and thus con=
tribute to the development of countries, the economies
of which depend on commercial sales of wheat

j

"(c) To overcome the serious hardship caused to
producers and consumers by burdensome surpluses and
critical shortages of wheat;

"(d) To encourage the use and consumption of wheat
and wheat=flour generally, and in particular in develop^
ing countries, so as to improve health and nutrition in
those countries and thus to assist in their development;
and

"(e) In general to further international cooperation
in connexion with world wheat problems, recognizing the
relationship of the trade in wheat to the economic
stability of markets for other agricultural products,"
^^ Unit ed States Treaties and Other International
Agreements, p^ 1^71\,
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The President, in submitting the International Wheat Agreement

the United States Senate, transmitted to the Senate the report

f the Secretary of State regarding the International Wheat

greement, and it is there stated:

"The principal benefit of the agreement to the
United States is the price range, internationally
accepted as reasonable, notwithstanding the present
imbalance of world supply and effective demand. It
undergirds the national policy of withholding excess
stocks from the export market, rather than dumping
them with disastrous effects upon world and domestic
prices a Operations under the agreement also provide
a useful framework within which to conduct the U^S,
export payment programs on wheat and flour which are
necessitated bv domestic price levels," Sen, Executive
Do, 87th Cong,, 2d Sess,, p, 4,

The question then, is whether the statute requiring the

irchase of export certificates was, indeed, a regulatory measure

jsigned to benefit commerce and to protect the domestic economy,

r was it, in reality, a taxing statute in the guise of a regulati

Dr, as held in Wickard Vo Fi Iburn , supra "the stimulation of com-

jrce is a use of the regulatory function [under the commerce

lause of the Constitution] quite as definitely as prohibitions

r restrictions thereon^" 317 U,S, at 128,

The Wheat Allocation Program in non- technical language has

3en described by Mr, Godfrey, (R, 41=47), Reduced to its

isentials, the program provided:

a. For voluntary limitation of production, and adoption
of specified conservation practices,

bo Price supports for those complying with the program,
through CCC loans.

19
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Co Subsidies through issuance of wheat certificates valued
at 70 cents for wheat consumed for food in the United
States and 25 cents per bushel of a certain portion of
wheat to be exported,,

d. Financing of the above subsidies through sale of certi=
ficates to processors and exporters - based on a rate
of 70 cents per bushel of wheat used for food, and 25
cents per each bushel of wheat exported,

e* A payment to exporters of whatever sum is needed to
make American wheat competitive in the world market.

The Wheat Allocation Program then had several apparent

objectives

:

a« To stabilize the farmer's income,

b. To prevent windfall profits to exporters, but at the
same time to guarantee their ability to meet foreign
competition on the world market,

Co To assist the stabilization of the world wheat prices,

do To avoid burdening the American taxpayer with the costs
of the program.

Such a program, with such objectives, certainly cannot be

termed anything but regulatory. None of the features of a taxinj

statute is present. Taxes are levied to produce income to meet

fixed expenses, A taxing program to be effective must produce

income, and the amount of that income must be subject to fairly

accurate computation. Here, the program may or may not have

resulted in producing revenues. The exporters, although paving

25 cents per bushel, may have received refunds and subsidies

totalling in excess of 25 cents. Rather than produce income the

20



y
rogram may have produced a deficit.

So much for the economics of the program. Now let us turn to

udicial rulings bearing upon regulatory statutes comparable to

!iat involved here.

In Wickard Vo Ft Iburn , supra , the Agricultural Adjustment Act

f 1938, which controlled the production of wheat, and provided

or penalties on production of excess wheat, was attacked on the

round that it violated the commerce clause and the due process

lause of the Fifth Amendments The contention was made that Congress

as invading matters purely local in character,

"The wheat industry," the Supreme Court noted, "has been a

roblem industry for some vears/* (P, 125o) "In the absence of

sgulation, the price of wheat in the United States would be much

ffected by world conditions," (P, 126^) "Many countries, both

Tiporting and exporting, have sought to modify the impact of the

orld market conditions on their own economy. Importing countries

ave taken measures to stimulate production and self-sufficiency,

le four large exporting countries * * * have all undertaken

/ During the fiscal year ending June 30, 1965, the Commodity Credit
orporation received from the wheat certificate operations (both
omestic and export) net proceeds of $ 106 ,652 ,864o But this was
ore than offset by export subsidy payments and the value of
arketing certificates reflected in the price Commodity Credit
orporation paid for wheat products. Hearings before Subcommittee
f the House Committee on Appropriations on the Department of
griculture Appropriations for 1967, 89th Cong,, part 3, p, 295.
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various programs for the relief of growers. Such measures have

been designed, in part at least, to protect the domestic price

received by producerso" (PPo 125=126c)

The Court then upheld the Act as a valid exercise of the

plenary power of Congress to regulate commerce. The Wheat

Marketing Allocation Program in the case sub judice is also

authorized by certain provisions of the Agricultural Adjustment

Act of 1938, as amendeda To be sure, the provisions for the Whea

Marketing Allocation Program had not been enacted bv Congress

at the time of the decision in Wickard v, Fi Iburn , supra . But th

statutory measure in its totality both then and now is plainly a

regulation of commerce.

Likewise, a monetary penalty imposed by Congress on the

marketing of excess cotton under the Agricultural Adjustment Act

of 1938, as amended, has been held not to violate Art. I, § 9,

clause 5, of the Constitution even though the cotton was for

exportation. United States v. West Texas Cottonoil Co, , 155 F. 2

463, 465-466, C.A. 5 (1946). The Court noted that the monetary

penalty "has for its object not the prevention or burdening of

exportation, but the prevention of raising for market, and market

cotton in excess of the allotment," I^. at 465. To be sure^ the

imposition of the monetary penalty is a type of economic burden

under the regulatory program, but there is no impingement on Art,

§ 9, clause 5, of the Constitution, Id, at 465=466.
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In the case of Pace Vo Burgess > 92 ll,S, 372 (1875) and

Turpin Vo Burgess , 117 UoSo 504 (1886) a congressional enactment

established an excise tax of 32 cents per pound on all manufactured
which

tobacco, except smoking tobacco,/was taxed at the rate of 16 cents

3er poundo For tobacco to be exported a stamp costing 25 cents

lad to be affixed to each package The price of the export stamp

^?as later reduced to 10 cents. Some years later, Congress enacted

a statute removing the "export tax" on tobacco.

The plaintiffs challenged the stamp as an export tax in

/iolation of the Export Clause of the Constitution, The Court

:oncluded that the monetary charge was not a tax or dutv but a

regulatory measure to "facilitate the disposal of tobacco intended

for exportation" (92 Uo S^ at 374) and a "means devised to prevent

fraud, and secure the faithful carrying out of the declared intent

vith regard to the tobacco so marked" (92 U, S, at 375). The Court

said that the charge "mav be an arbitrary one i but an arbitrary

rule may be more convenient and less onerous than any other which

:an be adopted, * * * In the case under consideration, having due

regard to that latitude of discretion which the legislature is

entitled to exercise in the selection of the means for attaining

a constitutional object, we cannot say that the charge imposed

Is excessive, or that it amounts to an infringement of the con-

stitutional preovisions referred to/' 92 U, S, at 375 = 376. Also

see: Rodgers v. United States , supra ; Mulford v. Smith , 307 U, S.

38 (1939) J Armour Packing Co o v. United States , 209 U,So 56 (1907),

-ornell v, Coyne ^ 192 UoSc 418 (1903),

- 23 -



The appellant here appears to contend that the power to

regulate foreign commerce has been whittled away by the Export

Clause - that is that Congress cannot, in the exercise of its

power under the commerce clause, take any regulatory action which

as a concomitant, imposes a levy upon exports. In other words,

as we understand appellant's position, insofar as foreign commerc<

is concerned the question is not whether the statute is regulator

or for revenue purposes but whether the statute, regardless of

statutory purpose, imposes a burden on exports. If it does it

violates the Constitution,

The cases cited bv appellants do not support this propositioi

Four of the five cases relied on are specific revenue measuri

In Fairbanks v. United State s , 181 U, S. 283 (1900) a federa

tax on bills of lading covering wheat exports under the War Reveni

Act of 1898 was held invalid bv a five to four decision.

In United States v, Hvoslef , 237 U, S, 1 (1914) stamp taxes i

charter parties for carriage of cargo to foreign ports under the

War Revenue Act of 1898 was declared in violation of the Export

Clause,

In Thames and Mersev Insurance Co , v. United States , 23 7 U, !

19 (1914) stamp taxes under the War Revenue Act of 1898 and coveri

insurance policies on exports was held invalid.

In A. Co Spalding Co , v. United States
, 262 U, S, 66 (1922) J

tax on baseball equipment to be exported, under the War Revenue Ac

of 1917 was ruled invalid,

- 24 - ^



The case of Brown v, Maryland , 12 Wheat, 419 (1827) involved

I state statute requiring importers to take out a $50 license fee,

'he Court ruled that taxation of imports was the exclusive province

>f the Congress,

Thus the authorities relied on do not support the appellant's

;heorv that the Export Clause has limited Congress in its exercise

• f the Commerce power,

Of far greater significance are the cases dealing with Article

., Section 10, Clause 2 of the Constitution which provides that

i

'No state, shall without the consent of the Congress, lav anv Import

>r Duties on Imports or Exports, except what nav be absolutely

lecessarv for executing its inspection Laws,," The similarity in

anguage between the two export clauses has been noted, and in

'urpin Vo Burgess , supra , the Court stated that the "constitutional

prohibition against taxing exports is substantially the same when

lirected to the United States as when directed to a State," (117

I, So at 506=507), It has also been held that the word "export"

as the same meaning under the two clauses. Empress a Siderurgica

'» Merced Coo . 337 U. S. 154, 156, fn o 2 (1948), And it is well

ettled that a State mav require a monetary payment as part of a

'egulatory program even though the charge or fee relates to imports

ir exportSo In Cooley v„ Board of Wardens of Port of Philadelphia ,

.2 How, 299, 310, 313 (1851) the court upheld the propriety of a

Itate law requiring vessels which refused to take a pilot to pay

>ne=half the regular amount payable for pilotage. It held that the
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measure was designed to regulate navigation and was not in the

nature of a tax in violation of the Constitutional prohibition.

Also see: Clyde Mallorv Lines v, Alabama , 296 U,S« 261, 263-268

(1935); Polar Co , v. Andrew s, 375 IJ.S, 361, 371, 374, 381-383

(1963),

It is submitted that the wheat allocation program is in

every sense a regulatory program, with its ultimate goal the

stabilization of prices and income, and that whatever revenue

may result is insignificant and incidentalo The statute, then,

is a valid exercise of the commerce clause, and constitutional.
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Ill, THE EXPORT CERTIFICATES DID NOT
BURDEN EXPORTS o

Appellant's chief reliance appears to be founded on the

listory of the Export Clause at the Constitutional Convention as

"eported by Farrando An attempt to piece together at this late

late the various social, political and economic motives which led

:o the rejection of certain proposed amendments, or to the location

)f the Export Clause outside both the Taxing and the Commerce Clauses
9/

ioes not lead to any conclusive results.

However, from the various commentaries it must be conceded that

:ertain members of the Convention were concerned with the placement

)f burdens upon southern exports. And for the sake of argument, let

IS assume that the Constitution forbad the Congress to burden exports

/ith taxes, duties or otherwise (and this is the most favorable

interpretation appellant could hope for) could appellant establish

lere that the Wheat Allocation Program did, in fact, burden exports?

tfe submit that quite the reverse is true. The object of the program,

IS stated in the statute, is to "make the United States wheat and

V In Pace Vo Burgess , supra , the plaintiff in error made the same

argument advanced by the appellant in this case, to=wit, that since
1 proposal at the Convention to insert after the word "duty" the
vords "for the purpose of revenue" was rejected by a vote of eight

states to three it was evident that the framers of the Constitution
lad rejected the idea that a tax or duty could be employed to regu-

late trade, (p, 372), The Supreme Court did not deem the argument of

sufficient weight to justify any mention. For additional discussion i

3f the Constitutional history, see 1 Story, Constitution of the
Jnited States (5th Edit,, 1891) at pages 661-762, and 2 Story at

5p, 2-44,
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wheat flour generally competitive in the world market, avoid dis-

ruption of world market prices, and fulfill the international

obligations of the United StateSo" 78 Stat, at 181, 7 UcS.Co

i 1379(b), And certainly the charge for an export certificate in

this case did not prevent the exportation of the wheat or impose

a burden upon the exporter. The net charge for the export certifi-

cate (face value less the refund) reflected the amount by which the

world price exceeded the domestic price. There was, therefore, no

charge for export certificates, except where world prices were high

than domestic prices. In July 1964, for example, the average U, S,

market price for #1 Hard Winter wheat foOob, Gulf was $1,72; the

cost of such wheat to an exporter including the cost of certificate

therefore, totaled $1,97, the export price at which U, S, wheat

would be competitive in the international market was determined to

be $1,87, Accordingly, the certificate refund for #1 Hard Winter

wheat exported from the Gulf during July was $,10, i_o_e , , $1,97 less

$1,87, The charge of $,25 per bushel for export certificates, whil

thus more than enough to cover the difference between domestic I

prices and world prices in some cases, is necessary in order that

it will always be enough to cover the difference in any transaction

regardless of a discount, or difference in qualities or grades

involved, or the time of the year when the sale is made. By this

flat charge-and=variable refund device, the exporter is able to

compete on the international market without disruption of world

market prices. He is also able to pass on to the buyer that part

28



£ the cost of the certificates for which he had not obtained a

efund from the Commodity Credit Corporation,

The exporter not only received a full refund of the cost of

ertificates, in many instances, but was paid, in addition, a

ubsidy in order to make his wheat competitive. Thus, in the case

f #1 Dark Northern Spring wheat in April 1965, the U, So market

rice at Duluth including the cost of certificates was $1,98; the

xport price necessary to make U, S, wheat competitive was $1,60,

herefore, for shipments from Duluth in this month the exporter

eceived a full refund of the $,25 certificate and in addition a

ubsidy of $,13 ($lo98 less $l,60)o (R, 48-49),

Rather than act as a deterrent to exports it seems evident

hat the program encouraged exports since it removed much of the

ncertainty with respect to world market prices « The exporter when

ontracting to sell wheat to foreign customers had the advantage of

nowing that regardless of daily fluctuations his costs would be

ow enough to enable him to meet foreign competition. Under such

onditions, what is the burden on exports? Appellees submit that

here was none.

Congressman Puree 11, Chairman of the Wheat Subcommittee of the

iouse Agriculture Committee, confirmed the value of the certificate

rogram to the exporter.

Recall the national average loan rate would have
been $1,26 instead of the $1.30 a bushel provided under
the 1964 voluntary certificate plan. The 1964 wheat
crop would have exceeded the 1,290 million bushels now
in prospect. Additional production coupled with a lower
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market price support level undoubtedly would have
resulted in a lower season average price than will
obtain»

Wheat from the United States would have been
available to importing countries at a market price
reflecting this lower loan rate and excess supply
positions Other wheat exporting countries would
have been forced to lower the price of wheat to
meet this competition. In view of current world
wheat prospects for the 1964=65 marketing year,
the lower world price probably would not have
resulted in an increase in saleso The current
wheat program, authorizing export certificates, has
prevented this potential loss to all exporting coun=
tries from becoming a realityo

Therefore, it seems clear that the 1964 wheat
program contributes to a higher world price and
because of this, returns from exports will be
higher than they would have been in the absence of
legislations

Export certificates 5 authorized by the Agricul-
tural Act of 1964b simultaneously help improve farm
income and insure continued world wheat price stabil-
ity at a higher level than would be the case without
the acta The difference between the cost of wheat
to the exporter = including the export certificates -

and the price necessary to keep Uo So wheat competi°
tive in world markets is refunded to the exporter,
A higher world price simply means a lower subsidy
paymento 110 Congo ReCo 23807o

IVo THE PRESUMPTION OF THE CONSTITUTIONALITY
OP YH'E"A'CT" fiA'5-N0t gEEF"0VER(:;0ME7

"The presumption is in favor of every legislative act, and the

whole burden of proof lies on him who denies the constitutionality

Brown v, Maryland , 12 Wheato (25 UoSo) 419, 436 (1827)o As Chief

Justice Marshall also stated in McCulloch Vo Maryland , 4 Wheat*, (1

UoSo 316, 420 (1819)2

We admit, as all must admit, that the powers of
the government are limited, and that its limits are
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not to be transcendedo But we think the sound
construction of the constitution must allow to
the national legislature that discretion, with
respect to the means by which the powers it
confers are to be carried into execution, which
will enable that body to perform the high duties
assigned to it, in the manner most beneficial to
the people Let the end be legitimate, let it
be within the scope of the constitution, and all
means which are appropriate, which are plainly
adapted to that end, which are not prohibited,
but consist with the letter and spirit of the
constitution, are constitutional

While the literal language used by the framers of the Constitu-

.on cannot be disregarded, of greater significance is the evolving

mstitutional philosophy. As also stated by Chief Justice Marshall

: pages 413=414;

This provision is made in a constitution, intended
to endure for ages to come, and consequently, to
be adapted to the various crises of human affairs

o

To have prescribed the means by which government
should, in all future time, execute its powers,
would have been to change, entirely, the character
of the instrument^ and give it the properties of
a legal code. It would have been an unwise attempt
to provide, by immutable rules j for exigencies
which, if foreseen at all, must have been seen
dimly, and which can be best provided for as they
occuro To have declaredp that the best means
shall not be usedj but those alone, without which
the power given would be nugatory, would have been
to deprive the legislature of the capacity to avail
itself of experience, to exercise its reason, and
to accommodate its legislation to circumstances

^

If we apply this principle of construction to
any of the powers of the government, we shall find
it so pernicious in its operation that we shall be
compelled to discard it.

In this connection, it should be remembered that the men

rafting the Constitution were determined to write a document which

juld be flexible enough to accommodate the changing times and



circumstances. Today the times and circumstances are different.

We are not concerned with real or fancied northern oppression

of southern agriculture. We are concerned with the need for

controlled production. We are concerned with the need for a

stable world price for one of our major exports. We are concerned

with the necessity of maintaining and stabilizing farm income,

The Wheat Allocation Program was intended to resolve, to some

extent at least, these problems, and the statute in question

should not be declared unconstitutional in the absence of compelli

proof of its violation of a constitutional mandate. In the langua

of Justice Harlan in the case of Northern Securities Co . v. United

States , supra (193 U.S. at 350): "...no higher duty rests upon thi

court than to enforce, by its decrees, the will of the legislative

department of the Government, as expressed in a statute, unless su

statute be plainly and unmistakably in violation of the Constituti

Surely, the Wheat Allocation Program, and its requirement of

marketing certificates, was not "plainly and unmistakably in viola

of the Constitution."

CONCLUSION

The export certificates were neither a tax nor a duty in the

constitutional sense, but were part of a regulatory scheme designee

to enable the United States to honor its international commitment,

to help stabilize world wheat prices, to assure American exporters

a competitive position in the world market, and to assist in the

stabilization of farm income. Rather than place a burden on
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porters the plan as a whole was an obvious benefit to exporters

e judgment of the district court should be affirmedo
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FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

SHIRLEY MOON,
Appellant,
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ORVILLE FREEMAN, as Secretary ) No. 21008
of Agriculture, and COMMODITY
CREDIT CORPORATION,

Appellees.

Appeal from a judgment of the United States District

Court for the Eastern District of Washington,

Northern Division

Honorable Charles L. Powell, Judge

APPELLANT'S REPLY

RESTATEMENT OF THE CASE

The facts are as outlined in Appellant's Opening

Brief and Appellees' Counterstatement of the case,

excepting that Appellees' Counterstatement of the case

is misleading in the following particulars

:
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(1) The requirement that exporters purchase mar-

keting certificates was not established for the purpose

of financing payments to producers as stated by Ap-

pellees (page 4). There is no evidence to this effect;

there is no regulation to this effect; and, the statute

does not so provide. There is no relationship between

the export certificates purchased by exporters and the

payments made to producers. The amount of wheat

exported was .523% of actual production, whereas

certificates were payable to only complying producers

on .45% of their average production (R. 11 & 12).

(2) The effect of the export marketing certificate

is not to increase producer prices. The effect is to de-

prive the producer of the benefit of World prices by

placing a Twenty-five (.25c) cent per bushel tariff,

tax or duty on each bushel exported thereby reducing

the availability of World price.

(3) Only after the export certificate had served the

purpose of making United States wheat non-competi-

tive is a refund in any amount provided to the ex-

porter. Contrary to Appellees' contention at page 4

of their Brief, there was nothing tentative about the

exporters' payment of Twenty-five (25c) cents per

bushel. The payment was exact. The refund, if any,

was tentative.

OUTLINE OF ARGUMENT I
I. Appellees' arguments are answered in the format

as set forth by them. In summary the answers are

framed on the following basis:

fl
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(a) Appellees' Argument I and II assume the

lack of any distinction between the terms "tax" and

"duty," and, also assumes that Article I, Section 9,

Clause 5 was not intended as a restriction on the ex-

ercise of the commerce powers. They, thereafter, fail

to distinguish between the constitutional grants and

restrictions of powers relating to three separate items

:

interstate commerce, commerce in the foiTn of im-

ports, and commerce in the form of exports. The

power over interstate commerce and imports cannot

be equated with the power over exports in view of the

constitutional restrictions relating to latter,

(b) Appellees' Argument No. Ill and IV casts

aside all Constitutional History in favor of an "evolv-

ing constitutional philosophy," The evolving consti-

tutional philosophy, while properly interpreting

grants of power in a manner to give full efficacy to

the power in view changing needs, does not permit

an interpretation resulting in a disregard of consti-

tutional restrictions.

II, Appellant's Argument, restated, is:

(1) The term "tax or duty" as used in Article I,

Section 9, Clause 5 contemplates a prohibition against

the imposition of any economic burden on exports, or

the process of exporting, whether the enactment is de-

signed as a revenue raising or as a regulatory measure.

(2) Article I, Section 9, Clause 5, is not only a

restriction on the taxing authority of Congress as

granted in Article I, Section 8, Clause 1, but also
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restricts the means available for regulating Com-

merce with foreign nations granted in Article I, Sec-

tion 8, Clause 3.

REPLY TO APPELLEES' ARGUMENT I

Appellees' argument assumes that the words "tax or

duty" as used in Article I, Section 9, Clause 5 are

synonymous and connote only the raising of revenue

for the general support of government. Appellees, by

virtue of this assumption, arrive at the conclusion that

the export limitation has no effect on the commerce

regulatory powers.

Appellees' basic assumption is incorrect. There is

no question but that the term tax, as used in Article

I, Section 8, Clause 1, is generally defined as meaning

a system for raising revenue for the general support

of government. This is the basis for the holdings in

each of the cases cited* by Appellees. None of those

cases, however, undertake to analyze and define the

term "tax or duty" and specifically each word inde-

pendently, as used in the Clause in question.

United States v. LaFrmice, 282 U.S. 568 (1930),

Lipke V. Lederer, 259 U.S. 557 (1921), and U7nfed

States V. Butler, 332 U.S. 371 (1947) all fall in the

general category of defining the powers of Article I,

Section 8, Clause 1 and they relate specifically to de-

fining the word "tax." None of the cases relate to the

word "duty" ; and, none of the cases are involved with

the restriction on poicer in Ai'ticle I, Section 9, Clause

5. They form no authority for interpreting that Sec-

tion and Clause.

f1
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The Head Money Cases 112 U.S. 580 (1884) is not

consistent with Appellees' position. The case involved

a monetary fee imposed on imports, i.e. the business

of bringing passengers from foreign countries. The

Court was concerned with interpreting ttvo grants of

power (Article I, Section 8, Clause 1 and Article I,

Section 8, Clause 3). It was argued that the "tax" was

unconstitutional as not being for the common defense

and general welfare. The Court sustained the matter

on the basis of the commerce power. In doing so the

Court spoke of the tax—so far as it could he called a

tax—as an "excise duty" permissible in regulating im-

ports under the commerce clause. It must be remem-

bered that the limitations of Article I, Section 9,

Clause 5, relate only to exports and that there is no

similar restriction regarding imports. The case is

significant in recognizing a distinction between the

terms "tax" and "duty."

Appellees' argument (p. 9 & 10), that the export

charges were intended to defray costs of export pay-

ments made to the producers is not sustained by the

Act or the evidence.

Morrison Milling Co. et al v. Freeman, No. 19794

and National Biscuit Co., et al, v. United States, No.

19795, United States Court of Appeals, District of

Columbia, involved domestic processors and does not

purport to discuss the limitations regarding exports.

REPLY TO ARGUMENT II

Congress has the power, in the course of regulating

interstate commerce, to impose economic burdens and
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regulate prices. Interstate commerce, however, is not

subject to the restrictions of Article I, Section 9,

Clause 5 and, hence the nature of the authority as to

each must be distinguished. Similarly, imports are

not subject to the same restriction and a distinction

must be recognized between the power over imports

as opposed to exports. Appellees attempt to apply this

same authority to foreign commerce, in the form of

exports, does not find foundation in the authorities

cited.

Rodgers v. United States, 332 U.S. 371, 374 (1947),

Wickard v. FUhurn, 317 U.S. Ill (1942), United

States V. Strangland 242 Fed (2d) 843 CA 7 (1947)

and United States v. Rock Royal Corp. 307 U.S. 533

(1938) all dealt with powers over interstate commerce.

The Head Money Case, supra, and Board: of Trustees

V. United States, 289 U.S. 48 (1932) involved the issue

of imports rather than exports.

Board of Trustees v. United States, supra, does

make one substantive contril)ution to this case. The

case involved the issue of whether a "duty" on imports

was a "tax" and as such subject to the constitutional

limitation that Congress may not lay a tax so as to

impose a direct burden on an instrumentality of the

State in the performance of a governmental function.

The Court held that since the measure was intended

for regulation rather than revenue, and raised only

incidental revenue, the impost involved was an exer-

cise of Congress' power to regulate commerce and not

of the taxing powers. It discussed the impost on im-

ports and spoke of it as a duty in view of its regula-

I
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tory characteristics and spoke of "duties'* as a com-

mon means of exercising the power to regulate com-

merce. The case supports the proposition that both

revenue raising measures, and regulatory measures

dependent on placing economic burdens on exports

as an incident of regulation, are forbidden since both

a *'tax" and "duty" are forbidden by Article I, Sec-

tion 9, Clause 5. If the word "duty" signifies a means

for regulation of commerce, foreign commerce, then

its use in the clause in question can only be construed

to mean a restriction on the original grant of power

to regulate foreign commerce.

United States v. West Texas Cottonoil Co. 155 F
(2d) 463 C.A. 5 (1946) while holding that monetary

penalty may be utilized to control production does

not involve the imposition of a charge upon the act,

or process of exporting or goods exported. The Court

stated, furthermore:

"Besides the authorities make it quite plain
that the invoked Constitutional provision (Art.

I, See. 9, CI. 5) does not apply to a situation on
the manufacture or handling of products. It ap-
plies only where it is laid specifically or exclu-
sively on exports or matters directly connected
with exports."

In the present case the economic burden is placed

specifically and exclusively on exports.

Neither Pace v. Burgess, 92 U.S. 372 (1875) nor Tur-

pin V. Burgess, 117 U.S. 504 (1886) cited by Appellees is

in point. In each case the nominal charge involved

had no relationship to exports other than to identify
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the goods to be exported and to exclude them from a

direct tax imposed upon domestically consumed prod-

ucts. The Court definitely pointed out:

"The stamp was intended to no other purpose
than to separate and identify the tobacco which
The manufacturer desired to export . . . It bore no
proportion whatever to tJie quantity or value of
the package to which it was affixed. These were
unlimited except hy the discretion of the exporter,

or the conveyiience of handling." Pace v. Burgess,
supra. (Emphasis added)

In this case the charge fixed is a definite charge for

each unit exported, and, is a condition of export.

Mulford V. Smith, 307 U.S. 38 (1939) involved a

penalty on marketing of excess tobacco. It did not

involve Article I, Section 9, Clause 5.

Armour Packing v. United States 209 U.S. 56

(1907) involved the regulation of freight rates on

railroads in interstate commerce. The effect on ex-

ports was held to be too remote (i.e. not on the process

of exports) to constitute a tax or duty.

Cornell v. Coyne, 192 U.S. 418 (1903) involved a

general tax on all cheeses produced. No impost on the

act of export was involved. The Court held that the

prior ordinary burdens of taxes which rest on all sim-

ilar property was not prohibited merely because some

of that property was subsequently placed in export.

Appellees incorrectly set forth the import of Cooley

V. Board of Warden (p. 25) 12 How. 299 (1851). The

case held that pilotage fees, at the time the Constitu-

tion was adopted, were considered separate and dis-
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:inet from taxes, duties and imposts and, therefore,

ivere not within the definition of those terms as used

[n Article I, Section 10, Clauses 2 and 3.

Appellees' description of the Wheat Marketing Al-

ocation Program, (pages 16 to 20 Appellees' Brief)

LS inaccurate and misleading in several important par-

ticulars.

(1) The Secretary of Agriculture had it wholly

tvithin his power to cause compliance with the Inter-

national Wheat Agreement (13 United States Treaties

%nd Other International Agreements, p. 1572) without

the export marketing certificate and also had the power

to stabilize farmers income in view of the fact that

the original support price for wheat was to be estab-

lished by the Secretary (Godfrey's Affidavit R. 42

para, 7) ; and,

(2) No where in the evidence (Godfrey's Affidavit

R. 40-47), or in the Act, is there any authority for

the statement that financing of the subsidies was to

be through sales of certificates to processors and ex-

porters.

Appellees' efforts to compare the restrictions on

the powers of the States as set forth in Article I, Sec-

tion 10, Clause 2 and the limitation of the power of

Congress in Article I, Section 9, Clause 5 as to their

power to lay "duties" is not accurate. The limitation

on the powers of the States includes the express ex-

ception,

".
, . except what may be absolutel.y necessary

for executing its inspection laws,"
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The language, thus, permits regulation by the States

on the basis of duties imposed to facilitate inspections.

By creating this express exception to the term "duty"

the Constitution tends to define the term itself as being

a regulatory device on imports or exports. The express

exception certainly implies that at the time the Con-

stitution was framed the elimination of the power to

impose a "duty" eliminates all power to regulate com-

merce—even to the extent of inspection. By providing

that funds derived from duties in inspection laws

should become a part of the general treasury the Con-

stitution further implies that incidental revenue may

be derived from duties, even though revenue is not

their primary goal.

REPLY TO ARGUMENT NO. Ill

Appellees choose to ignore the Constitutional His-

tory. The entire argument proposed by Appellees

begs the basic question. It is undisputed that Appel-

lant exporter was charged the net sum of One Hun-

dred Sixty-eight and 52/lOOths ($168.52) Dollars to

participate in the export market on a limited scale.

His gross charge was Four Hundred Eleven and'

93/lOOths ($411.93) Dollars. His net proceeds were;

One Hundred Sixty-eight and 52/lOOths ($168.52)

Dollars less than they would have been had the Gov-

ernmental burden not been imposed. To argue that

this is not an economic burden seems totally inadequate.

The mere fact that the program finds it necessary

to subsidize the exporter, in the form of refunding

to him part of the export charges, is an unquestionabk

and irrefutable indication that the initial exactioi

fl
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has been an economic burden on the process of ex-

ports. The admitted reason for any refund is that the

initial exaction has placed the exporter in a position

5vhere he cannot compete on the World market. The

'tariff" has priced him out of World competition.

Economic theory is argued in total reverse, that is,

that World prices are established by domestic prices

in the United States and, in effect that domestic prices

(as controlled by the Secretary) are in no manner af-

fected by World prices. In addition, it is strange to

see Appellees argue in one breath that the payments

made to complying producers are financed through the

Bxport charges, (which can only mean that they were

profitable) and, in the second breath that there is no

economic burden on the exporter or the process of

exports because the CCC subsidized him in part, in

full, or in excess of the price paid for certificates. The

two arguments seem incompatible.

The fact that exporters pass on to the buyer the cost of

bhe certificate involved does not eliminate the existence

of an objectionable "tax or duty" of necessity this would

occur in every type of "tax or duty." This issue was

commented on by the Court in Thames & Mercey In-

surance Company Ltd. v. United States, 237 U.S. 19

(1914) which involved a stamp tax on policies of insur-

ance ; and in a case involving taxation by the State of im-

ports in Brotvn v. Maryland 7 U.S. 262 (1837). The

Court held that an impost violated the mandate of the

Constitution in effect because the impost of necessity

raised the price of the article either to the consumer or

the exporter or importer. As such the impost was an

objectionable duty.
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REPLY TO ARGUMENT IV

Every enactment of the Congress is presumed con-

stitutional. There is also an evolving Constitutional

philosophy. These two propositions are set forth in

clarity by Brown v. Maryland 12 ^Tieat (25 U.S.)

419 (1827) and McCulIoch v. Maryland 4 Wheat (17

U.S.) 316 (1819).

The evolving Constitutional philosophy has never

permitted, or required, a total disregard of the express

restrictions imposed on the central government, or

Congress specificall3\ Grants of power in the Consti-

tution, under the evolving constitutional philosophy,

must be construed to give full efficacy to those powers.

Similarly restrictions on grants of power must be

given a full effect consistent with the spirit of the re-

strictions.

Chief Justice Marshall, who authored the opinions

in Brown v. Maryland, supra, and McCulloch v. Mary-

land, supra, certainly did not intend the broad appli-

cation espoused by Appellees, that the Constitution

be construed in the "light of the times" to the extent

that the spirit of its restrictions should be destroyed.

In Marhury v. Madison, 1 Crench 137 (1803) he dis-

cussed the limitations on Federal Power

"The government of the United States is of the

latter description (limited powers). The powers
of the legislature are defined and limited; and

that those limits may not be mistaken or forgot-

ten, the constitution is written. To what purpose

are powers limited, and to what purpose is that

limitation committed to writing, if these limits

may, at any time, be passed by those intended to

be restrained? The distinction between a govern-
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ment with limited and unlimited powers is abol-

ished, if those limits do not confine the persons

on whom they are imposed, and if acts prohibited

and acts allowed, are of equal obligation. It is

a proposition too plain to be contested, that the

Constitution controls any legislative act repug-

nant to it; or, that the legislature may alter the

Constitution by an ordinary act."

"Betwoen these alternatives there is no middle
ground. The Constitution is either a superior

paramount law, unchangeable by ordinary means,
or it is on a level with ordinary legislative acts,

I

and, like other acts, is alterable when the legis-

lature shall please to alter it."

In FairhanK-s u. United States 181 U.S. 283 (1900)

:he Court, in discussing Article I, Section 9, Clause 5

restated the theory of interpretation of constitutional

restriction

**It is a restriction on the power of Congress; and
as, in accordance with the rules heretofore no-

ticed, the grants or powers should be so construed

as to give full efficacy to those powers and enable

Congress to use such means as it deems necessary

to carry them into effect, so in like manner a re-

striction should he enforced in accordance with

its letter and spirit, and no legislation can he tol-

erated which, although it maij not conflict with

the letter, destroys the spirit and purpose of the

restriction imposed. (Emphasis added)

The theory of an evolving Constitution can only

mean that, while a gi'ant of power must be given an

interpretation permitting its full exercise in view of

the needs of the nation, nevortheless that interpreta-

tion may not be inconsistent with, or eliminate, re-

strictions imposed on the exercise of Congressional

power. To do otherwise is to allow an entirely im-
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bridled legislative branch which alone, day by day, on

the basis of immediate national policy modifies and

alters Constitutional limits.

As Chief Justice Marshall stated, there is no mid-

dle ground. There is no room for an evolving consti-

tutional philosophy which results in the total dis-

regard of restrictions on the exercise of power, and,

the evolving constitutional philosophy has not pre-

viously been requested to cover such a broad spectrum

of Congressional authority.

RESTATEMENT OF APPELLANT'S

ARGUMENT

(1) The terai "tax or duty" as used in Article I,

Section 9, Clause 5 is not limited to the connotation

of revenue raising measures. Rather, the term is de-

signed to prohibit the imposition of any economic bur-

den on exports, or the process of exports ; and thus to

serve as a restriction on both the general taxing

powers of the central government, and the commerce

powers.

The Constitutional History of the clause supports

this interpretation. The debate in the Constitutional:

Convention revolved around the need to permit duties

or taxes on exports as a means of regulating trade.

The attempted amendments designed to permit th(

regulation of trade were all defeated. Farrand, Th(

Records of the Federal Convention, Vol. II pps. 359

365; Madison, "Journal of the Constitutional Convcn

tion" Vol. II, p. 574.
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(2) The words "tax" and "duty" are separate and

istinct words. Each must be given consideration.

"In expounding the constitution every word
must have its due force, and appropriate mean-
ing; for it is evident from the whole instrument
that no word was unnecessarily used, or needlessly

added—Every word appears to have been weighed
with utmost deliberation, and its full force and
effect fully understood."

Chief Justice Tannev in Holmes v. Jennison,
14 Pet. 540. See also Wright v. United States, 302
U.S. 583.

The term "duties" has been generally considered

s a system for commercial regulation—specifically

tie regulation of imports and exports. University of

llinois V. United States, 289 U.S. 48 (1933) ; Pollock

. Farms Loan rf- Trust Co., 158 U.S. 601 (1895);

Iwmas v. United States, 192 U.S. 370 (1903) ; Story,

/ommentaries on the Constitution, Vol. II, sec. 1088.

The use of the word "duties" in conjunction with

he word taxes, results in prohibiting the regulation

f commerce through the imposition of an economic

airden.

(3) The restrictions of Article I, Section 9, Clause

', have consistently been authoritatively recognized

,s restricting both the general taxing powers and the

ommerce powers. Storey, Commentaries on the Con-

titution of the United States, Vol. I, p. 712 (1873)

;

lurdicJx, The Law of the American Constitution, p.

94; Willoiighhy on the Constitution, Vol. II (2d ed),

\ 694; Gavit, Tlio Commerce Clause of the United

states Constitution, p. 202 : Weaver, Constitutional

^aw and its Administration, p. 286.

I
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(4) The Courts have recognized that the commerci

clause is subject of limitation (Adair v. United States

208 U.S. 161, (1907) ; Gihhons v. Ogden, 22 U.S. :

(1824) ) and that Article I, Section 9, Clause 5 is oni

of those limitations.

(5) The Courts have uniformly rejected anv di

rect imposition of economic burdens on exports anc

directly insisted on free access to foreign markets.

".
. . the question of power is not to be deter

mined by the amount of the burden attempted t(

be cast. The constitutional language is, 'no taj

or duty.'
"

". . . the purpose of the restriction is that ex-

portation*** all exportation—shall he free fron

national burden. This intent, though obvious fron

the language of the clause itself, is reinforced b^

the fact that in the Constitutional convention Mr
Clymer moved to insert after the word 'duty' thi

words 'for the purpose of revenue,' but the motioi

was voted down. So it is clear that the framers a

the Constitution intended, vot nicrelji that ex

ports should not he made a source of revenue t

the national qovernment, hut that the uationo

government shoidd put nothing in the way of hut

den upon such exports. If all exports must he fre

from national tax or duti/, such freedom reqnire:

not simply an omission of a tax on the articles ea

ported, hut also a freedom from any tax which d

rectly hurdens the exportation; . .
." (Kinphasi

added) Fairbanks v. United States, 181 U.S. 28:

(1900)

I
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See also Thames & Mersey Marine Insurance Co.

M. V. United States, 237 U.S. 19 (1914) ; United

'tates V. Hvoslef, 237 U.S. 1 (1916) ; and Brown v.

{ari/land, 7 U.S. 262 (1837).

Exports and the process of export are to be free

rom economic burden. A clear economic burden is

mposed under the Act. The burden is a direct im-

lost occurring as a condition of export. As such it is

learly on the process of exports, if not on the article

tself. The Act is unconstitutional in imposing this

lurden.

CONCLUSION

The following sections of the Agricultural Adjust-

nent Act of 1964 should be declared unconstitutional,

o-wit; 7 U.S.C. 1379c (a) (As amended Apr. 11, 1964,

Pub. L. 88-297, Title II Sec. 202 (12-14), 78 Stat. 180,

LSI) ; 7 U.S.C. 1379c (C) (As amended Apr. 11, 1964,

Pub. L. 88-297, Title II, Sec. 202 (12) - (14), 78

5tat. 180, 181) ; 7 U.S.C. 1379d (b) (As amended Apr.

11, 1964, Pub. L. 88-297, Title II, Sec. 202 (15) -

(17) ; 78 Stat. 181, 182), insofar as said sections re-

:iuire the purchase of export marketing certificates

IS a condition of exporting wheat.
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The Order granting Appellees' Motion for Sum-

mary Judgment (Tr. 81) should be reversed and an

Order should be entered granting Appellant's Motion

for Summary Judgment and granting Appellant

Judgment in the sum of $168.52 and costs.

DATED, Colfax, Washington

October 7, 1966

Respectfully submitted,

WESLEY A. NUXOLL

Attorney for Appellant

CERTIFICATE

I certify that, in connection with the preparation

of this brief, I have examined Rules 18 and 19 of thei

United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Ciivi

cuit, and that, in my opinion, the foregoing brief is:
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WESLEY A. NUXOLL
Attorney for Appellant
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STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Maryland Casualty Company, plaintiff-appellant,

(hereinafter referred to as "Maryland"), was the public

liability insurance carrier for the estate of Marie Carap-

lis, deceased, which estate was and still is the owner and

operator of an office building in Portland, Oregon, com-

monly known as the Postal Building. Charlotte Ann
Relos and Georgia Mae Caraplis were coexecutrices

of the estate of Marie A. Caraplis, deceased, and Char-

lotte Ann Relos (hereinafter referred to as "Mrs. Relos")

was the manager of the Postal Building in her fiduciary

capacity.

Defendant-appellee, Clean- Rite Maintenance Com-

pany, was an Oregon corporation engaged in the busi-

ness of maintenance work. Mr. V. J. Hill (hereinafter

known as "Mr. Hill") was the president of Clean-Rite

Maintenance Co., (hereinafter referred to as "Clean-

Rite"). Lee A. Ramsey (hereinafter known as "Ram-

sey"), was an employee of Clean-Rite on June 12, 1963.

Prior to June 12, 1963, Mrs. Relos was managing

the Postal building as coexecutrix of the aforementioned

estate. She entered into an oral agreement with Clean-

Rite, through Mr. Hill, whereby Clean-Rite agreed to

clean the windows of the Postal building. The extent and

nature of the agreement forms part of the issue in the_

within appeal.

Ramsey, while employed by Clean-Rite, on June 12,|

1963, while engaged in washing the Postal Building win-

dows, fell from the 4th to the 2nd floor (the roof of an'



adjoining building), and sustained severe personal in-

juries. Ramsey thereafter brought an action against the

estate in Multnomah county, seeking damages for per-

sonal injuries suffered in his fall. The Postal Building

tendered the defense of the Ramsey action to Clean-

Rite. When Clean-Rite refused the tender, Maryland, as

the public liability insurance carrier of the estate, under-

took the defense and subsequently settled the Ramsey

action for $22,500.

The within action is one for breach of contract,

whereby Maryland, as subrogee of the owners and opera-

tors of their insured, the Postal Building, contend that

Clean-Rite breached its contract to procure insurance

to protect the owners and operators of the Postal Build-

ing from losses such as that sustained in the Ramsey

case. Basically, Maryland's evidence showed that the

agreement entered into between Clean-Rite and Mrs.

Relos on behalf of the Postal Building included an agree-

ment that Clean-Rite would procure insurance which

would protect the Postal Building of and from any and

all claims of any kind and nature arising out of the win-

dow washing operations of Clean-Rite.

At the trial, Clean-Rite contended: (1) that Mary-

land was not entitled to subrogation; (2) that there was

no legally enforceable contract to procure insurance for

the Postal Building.

Charlotte Ann Relos was the manager of the Postal

Building (Tr. 31). The Postal Building had public lia-

bility insurance with Maryland at the time of the acci-

dent to Ramsey (Tr. 31).



Mrs. Relos first met Mr. Hill about two years prior

to the accident when she was looking for someone to do

the window washing on the building. She heard of Mr.

Hill from a mutual friend and looked up his ad in the

telephone book (Tr. 31).

At the time of the negotiations between Mrs. Relos

and Mr. Hill regarding the contract, Associated Build-

ing Maintenance Company was cleaning the Postal

Building windows (Tr. 33). At the initial conference,

Mrs. Relos testified that they spoke of insurance as

follows

:

"A. Well, I called him and he came down to the

office and we were discussing doing the window
washing at the building, and I told him that—

I

asked him what type of coverage he carried, be-

cause we wanted complete coverage on everything.

And he went on to tell me, particularly I do

remember the rest of the conversation that he car-

ried extra insurance with the Zurich Company, and

that is why he had to charge a bit more for—on the

regular rate. Most of the window washers have

about the same rate for the size of the building.

I think they do it on account of the windows. At

any rate, his fee was more, and I asked him why,

and he said because he carried such extra heavy

insurance to cover us in any circumstances which

might arise." (Tr. 32-33)

Several other conversations were held where the same

representation was made and insurance thoroughly dis-

cussed by the parties (Tr. 33). Mrs. Relos hired Mr.

Hill because, although the charge was more, "I figured

we had better protection" (Tr. 34).



When the contract between the Postal Building and

Associated Building Maintenance Company expired, in

the middle of June, 1963, Mrs. Relos and Mr. Hill spoke

again and Mrs. Relos testified:

"Yes, and our contract had expired with the

previous firm, and I told him that this would be
a contract basis, and he said, 'Fine.' " (Tr. 34)

The contract was to be of 12 months' duration (Tr. 34-

35).

Mrs. Relos first contacted Mr. Hill by examining

the yellow section of the telephone book (PI. Ex. 7) page

748 (Tr. 35-36). She testified:

"Q. What is that you are looking at?

A. Well, it is the large ad in the advertising,

Clean-Rite Maintenance, and goes on to say what
they do, and fully insured for your protection.

Q. Did you read that?

A. Yes, I did. And, as I told you, I am particu-

larly interested in ads in this yellow section, because

I used to write them when I worked for the tele-

phone company." (Tr. 36-37)

The contract price with Clean-Rite was $60, where-

as the consideration for the previous contract with As-

sociated Building Maintenance Company was $47.50

(Tr. 37). The windows were to be cleaned every other

month (Tr. 37).

Under cross-examination, Mrs. Relos testified:

"A. He said that we would be completely cov-

ered if anything arose that was wrong that would

hurt us; anything wrong he would have the com-

plete insurance coverage, and that is all I was in-

terested in.
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Q. So far as his operations were concerned, you
were fully protected?

A. Yes.

Q. That is as far as the conversation went?

A. No. We went into it.

Q. What else did you go into?

A. He told me that he carried a type of bond.

Now—a type of bond, and he carried this Zurich,

with the Zurich Company, and he told me that it

just covered extra insurance.

And I asked him, 'Why do you charge more
than
—

' most window washing companies charge

about the same. And he said because of the extra

coverage he carried, and that is why he had to

charge more, but in turn the people that had his

services were covered more." (Tr. 40-41)

Defendant's sealed Exhibit No. 22 was a letter dated

August 29, 1963, addressed to Hill by Mrs. Relos, which

contained the following:

"Dear Sir:

When we discussed your rates for the window
washing in the Postal Building, you explained to

me that they were higher than I expected because

you carried such extensive insurance to cover any

exigency that might arise.

As you know Mr. Lee Ramsey has engaged an

attorney to pursue a claim against the Postal Build-

ing for injuries received in the accident of 6/12/63.

It occurs to me now in view of your earlier

comments about insurance that the Postal Building

might be covered for this claim under your insur-

ance policies.

I would appreciate it if you would advise me

as soon as possible on this point." (Tr. 43)



The most recent telephone directory yellow pages

revealed a complete change in language employed by

Clean-Rite:

"If it is glass—we clean it. All employees bonded

and insured. For information call Clean-Rite Build-

ing Maintenance Company, Inc." (Tr. 61)

Mr. Hill admitted there were prior conversations before

the contract was entered about what he termed "bond"

(Tr. 62-63). He had earlier testified that there were no

conversations about insurance prior to the entering of

the contract (Tr. 58).

Following presentation of the evidence and some

legal argument, the court directed a verdict in favor of

the defendant-appellee Clean-Rite Maintenance Com-

pany (Tr. 90-91). The judgment on record herein indi-

cates the court's summation of its reasons for so ruling.

It is appellant's position that the court's ruling was

clearly erroneous and that there was sufficient evidence

to take the case to the jury.

SPECIFICATIONS OF ERRORS

1. The District Court erred in directing a verdict in

favor of the defendant-appellee and against the plaintiff-

appellant, ruling that plaintiff-appellant failed to make

a jury question.

2. The District Court erred in holding that the con-

tract between the appellant's subrogor and the appellee

was too vague and indefinite to be enforceable.
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3. The District Court erred in finding that the agree-

ment between the plaintiff-appellant's subrogor and the

defendant-appellee was one of insurance, or one to in-

demnify, instead of an agreement to procure insurance,

and in misapplying the law of the former to the latter.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The District Court erred in failing to submit the

within controversy to the jury. The directed verdict in

favor of the defendant was premised upon a misconcep-

tion of plaintiff's theory of the case: a breach of con-

tract to procure insurance in contradistinction to a con-

tract to insure.

ARGUMENT

1. Appellant introduced substantial evidence of a con-

tract to procure insurance on the part of appellee.

This appeal is occasioned by an unfortunate miscon-

ception of the appellant's theory of recovery by the

District Court (apparently aided by the misunderstand-

ing of appellee). The judgment order reflects this error

(p. 2):

"The court, after having heard argument of

counsel and having itself examined into the law re-

lating to the matter, concluded therefrom that de-

fendant's motion for a directed verdict was well

taken and should be granted for the reason that

plaintiff's evidence had failed to make out sufficient

evidence of the terms of an oral contract of insur-

ance to protect the Postal Building or to indemnify

the Postal Building or the plaintiff as contended



for by the plaintiff in its complaint and pretrial

order."

The complaint passes from the case under the pretrial

order. There, plaintiff-appellant contended, III (1):

"That as a part of the agreement entered into

between the Defendant and the estate of Marie A.

Caraplis whereby the Defendant agreed to clean

the windows of the Postal Building, it was further

agreed that the Defendant would procure insurance

which would protect the estate of Marie A. Caraplis

of and from any and all claims of any kind and na-

ture." (emphasis supplied)

The issues of fact set forth in the pretrial order included,

inter alia, V(l), (2):

"(1) Did Defendant agree to procure insurance

for the benefit of the estate of Marie A. Caraplis

which would save harmless the estate of Marie A.

Caraplis of and from any and all claims of any kind

and nature?

(2) If so, what are the terms of such agree-

ment?" (emphasis supplied)

The Issues of Law provided, inter alia, VI (1), (2):

"(1) Did Defendant as part of its agreement

with the estate of Marie A. Caraplis legally obligate

itself to procure insurance for the benefit of Marie

A. Caraplis which would hold said estate harmless

from any and all claims of any kind?

(2) If so, are the terms of this contract definite

enough for the Court to fix the exact legal liability

of the parties?" (emphasis supplied)

At no time did the appellant claim that appellee en-
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tered into an oral contract of insurance, or an oral con-

tract to insure appellant's subrogor. The law relating to

such contracts, and the acceptable standards of proof,

greatly vary from the standards for a contract to pro-

cure insurance.

Appellee has contended throughout the case that a

contract to procure insurance must be proved with the

same certainty as an oral contract to insure (See ap-

pellee's memorandum to the trial court, and argument of

counsel, Tr. 79-84). In support of its position appellee

cited to the District Court Cleveland Oil Co. v. Norwich

Ins. Society, 34 Or. 228, 55 Pac. 435 (1898) and Cerino

V. Oregon Physicians' Service, 202 Or. 474, 276 P.2d 397

(1954). Presumably appellee will continue to rely upon

these inapposite cases. Neither decision involved a con-

tract to procure insurance; both were concerned with

oral contracts of insurance. Both decisions are therefore

inappropriate for consideration within the current con-

text.

The Cleveland Oil Co. and Cerino decisions, if any-

thing, stand for the proposition (a iortiorari) that an

oral contract of insurance is valid. It would follow that

oral contracts to procure insurance are likewise valid.

Validity and requisite proof are two different matters

and that apparently aided in the lower court confusion.

The Oregon law respecting contracts to procure in-

surance has recently been clarified in Hamacher v. Turny

et al, 222 Or. 341, 352 P.2d 493 (1960). The lower court

instructed the jury that a contract to procure insurance

had to be proved with the same certainty as a parol con-
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tract of insurance. 222 Or. at 346. The Supreme Court

reversed and remanded the case, holding that the instruc-

tion was prejudicial error. O'Connell, J., speaking for the

Court, asserted, 222 Or. at 349:

"Must the promisee of a contract to procure in-

surance prove all of the essentials of a contract of

insurance with the same specificity that is required

of a promisee asserting the existence of a contract

of insurance? The instructions to the jury could be

taken to mean that plaintiff was required to prove

each of the enumerated elements of a contract of

insurance by showing that the parties came to an

agreement with respect to each of these separate

elements.

We are of the opinion that the instructions so

interpreted placed upon the plaintiff too heavy a

burden of proof. * * *"

It is true that Hamacher was concerned with a con-

tract by an insurance broker or agent to procure insur-

ance for a client but that would not distinguish the de-

cision from the case at bar.

The defective instruction was premised upon some

unfortunate dictum in Rodgers Insurance Agency v.

Andersen Machinery, 211 Or. 459, 316 P.2d 497 (1957).

The Hamacher court labeled the language in Rodgers

as dictum and clearly indicated its disapproval of the

"rule" of Rodgers. See 222 Or. at 347-348. The Court

stated, 222 Or. at 350:

"The principal vice of the instruction is that it

could be considered by the members of the jury as

prohibiting them from finding a contract to procure

insurance from facts short of an express agreement
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to that effect. There were facts from which a con-

tract to procure insurance could reasonably be

implied."

In several decisions approvingly cited by the Oregon

Supreme Court, the elements were much less certain

than in the instant case, yet the courts held the proof

sufficient to establish a contract to procure insurance.

See cases discussed 222 Or 353, et seq.

There is no doubt that appellant adduced substantial

proof to support its claim, i.e., breach of a contract by

appellee to procure insurance for appellant's subrogor.

In logic as in law, such proof need be less strict than

proof of an oral contract of insurance. A contract to pro-

cure insurance may develop from negotiations where

agreement by the parties on certain essential elements

of the insurance contract is not achieved. See Hamacher

v. Tunny et al, supra, 222 Or. at 353, citing, e.g.. Bur-

roughs v. Bunch, 210 S.W.2d 211 (Tex. 1948). Appel-

lant has sufficiently proved its case if it shows that Hill,

on behalf of appellee, negotiated a contract with Mrs.

Relos, on behalf of the Postal building, whereby Hill,

inter alia, agreed to procure insurance which would pro-

tect the Postal Building from loss arising out of the op-

erations in and about the building by Clean-Rite. This

was clearly proved (Tr. 32-44).

It was difficult to determine the basis of the District

Court's direction of verdict but presumably, from the

argument on motion (Tr. 76-91), the court felt a strict

proof of the essentials was required and unsatisfied.

The elements of an oral contract of insurance set
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down in the Rodgers, supra, and Cleveland Oil Co., su-

pra, cases are five in number:

(1) The subject matter must exist;

(2) There must be a risk insured against;

(3) The amount of indemnity must be determined;

(4) The duration of the risk must be known

;

(5) The premium must be paid or exist as a valid

charge.

Even accepting appellee's premises, arguendo, and

overlooking the commands of Hamacher v. Tumy, supra,

appellant adduced proof of the essential elements:

(1) The subject matter was clearly the operation

of appellee in and about the Postal Building (Tr. 32-44).

(2) The risk insured against was the harm or risk

of loss to the ovjners and operators of the Postal Build-

ing arising out of the appellee's operation (Tr. 33, 39, 40,

41).

(3) The amount of indemnity, while not specified,

inferably was a sufficient amount to protect the subrogor

from harm, limited by the risk.

(4) The duration obviously coincided with the term

of the contract, one year (Tr. 34, 35).

(5) The premium or consideration would account

for the difference in cost to the subrogor of the previous

maintenance contract and that entered into with ap-

pellee (the difference between $47.50 and $60.) (Tr.

37).
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Clearly appellant provided substantial evidence to

convince a jury of the existence and the terms of the

contract. A fact question was presented for jury de-

termination and the court erred in directing a verdict.

2. The appellant proved a sufficiently definite contract

to indemnify against its own negligence.

It would seem that the learned District Court may

have directed its verdict on the ground that appellant

had to prove a contract to indemnify against its own

negligence with the requisite specificity. Basically, ap-

pellant makes two related contentions:

(1) There is no sufficient evidence upon which

the trial court could reach the conclusion that the

accident to Ramsey was caused by the negligence

of appellant's subrogor.

(2) Even if the court was justified in reaching

this conclusion, the contract proved by appellant i

was sufficiently definite in its terms to be an en-

forceable contract to insure against appellant's sub-

rogor's own negligence.

Basically, there was insufficient evidence to estab-

lish the causative force injuring Ramsey. A lawsuit was

filed by Ramsey against the owners and operators of

the Postal Building (Tr. 27-28) and the defense was un-

dertaken by appellant when appellee refused the tender

of defense. Ramsey's attorney did not testify as to causa-

tion but merely said "In my expert opinion, it was a

case of dramatic liability that I thought would appeal to

a jury" (Tr. 30).

1
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Mr. Hill testified that he examined the accident

scene and found that the safety anchor was broken in

lalf, part on the Postal Building and the rest where

Ramsey fell (Tr. 56). He found the anchor bolt had

Deen attached to wood he described as "rotten" (Tr. 56).

Mr. Hill never heard of jacks (Tr. 60-61-62) a common

safety device in the business and presumably his em-

ployees did not use them. The eye-bolt on one side of

:he belt was embedded in the window from where Mr.

Hill examined the scene (Tr. 61). Mr. Ken Wicklund,

a representative of appellant, also viewed the scene on

the day of the accident (Tr. 66). The wood frame of the

ivindow was broken and the eye-bolt was missing; there

ivere no jacks in evidence at the scene (Tr. 72).

It is clear from the summary of the evidence pre-

sented that appellee's contention in the District Court

±iat the cause of Ramsey's harm was the Postal Build-

ing's negligence is unfounded.

Assuming, arguendo, that the negligence of the Postal

Building caused or contributed to the harm suffered by

Ramsey, appellant contends that appellee's contract to

procure insurance was proved to include an assurance

against any negligence of the Postal Building. The desire

3f the fiduciaries of an estate to protect assets, such as

Jie Postal Building, is understandable.

Oregon has long established the rule that one may,

by contract, be indemnified from the consequences of

hiis own negligence. In Unitec Corporation v. Beatty

Safway Scaffold Co. of Oregon, 358 F.2d 470 (9th Cir.

1966) this Court reversed the Oregon District Court, and
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held, inter alia, 358 F.2d 479:

"The district court concluded that the contract

was not sufficiently explicit in its indemnification

requirements to hold Unitec responsible for Good-
year's acts of negligence. With this conclusion, we
are unable to agree.

"In our view, a reasonable reading of the above

provisions leads to the conclusion that the indemni-

fication covers claims arising from injury to any

other person or property occasioned in whole or in

part by any act or omission of Unitec or its agents.

The district court concluded, and we agree, that

Unitec's acts or omissions were partially responsible

for the damages that occurred to Safway's property.

By express contractual design, and in the absence of

a contrary public policy or unfair bargaining posi-

tions, these parties intended a certain result and

therefore must be considered as having themselves

defined their rights."

Therefore, this Court upheld Unitec's specific agree-

ment to hold the purchaser harmless at all times against I

any liability, and for all claims, even where occasioned

'

by the indemnitee's negligence. The instant case pre-

sents precisely the same question.

In Unitec, supra, this court distinguished two early

Oregon cases, Southern Pacific Co. v. Layman, 173 Or.

275, 145 P.2d 295 (1944) and Glens Falls Indemnity Co.

v. Reimers, 176 Or. 47, 155 P.2d 923 (1945) (relied upon

by the District Court in the instant case), as decisionsi

where the indemnitor had been free from fault. 358 F.2di

at 479. The same distinction would seem to be equally

applicable to this case.
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Oregon Supreme Court decisions have recognized that

persons can enter into agreements exonerating them from

the consequences of their own negligence. A bailee has a

right by contract, to exonerate himself from liability for

loss of goods, resulting from his own negligence. Irish ^
Swartz Stores v. The First National Bank of Eugene,

220 Or. 362, 349 P.2d 814 (1960); Pilson v. Tip-Top

Auto Co., 67 Or. 528, 136 Pac. 642 (1913).

In Southern Pacific Co. v. Morrison-Knudsen Co.,

216 Or. 398, 338 P.2d 665 (1959) indemnity was per-

mitted for the indemnitee's own negligent conduct un-

der language which was arguably more broad than that

relied upon by the District Court below. The court does

not re-write agreements clearly expressed between the

parties. A clear expression of intention to indemnify

the Postal Building for its own negligence is inferable from

the evidence in this case and should be upheld under the

{Southern Pacific Co. v. Morrison-Knudsen Co., supra,

jdoctrine. The dependence of one party upon the other

iseems important there. See 216 Or. at 412. Here appel-

jlee's conduct would certainly indicate control over the

"injury potential" of the job. Also, the Oregon cases

look to disparity or equality of bargaining power as a

criterion for enforcement of the agreement. See., e.g., 216

Or. at 418 et seq. Here it is clear that the Postal Building

relied upon the expertise of appellee and that the par-

ties were at least co-equal in their bargaining power.

Indemnity for the consequences of one's own negli-

gence was affirmed in other jurisdictions, See, e.g., Ryan

Mercantile Company V. Great Northern Rwy. Co., 186

Supp. 660 (D. Mont. 1960).

ki
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It is thus clear that the Oregon law permits an in-

demnitee to secure indemnity for its own negligence.

It remains to examine the evidence presented in the

District Court to determine whether appellant presented

substantial evidence of such an agreement.

Appellant is cognizant of the factual conflict in the

instant case. A review of the evidence favorable to ap-

pellant (e.g. Tr. 32-35, 37, 39-40, 41, 43-44, 61-63; Ex.

22) reveals a jury question presented upon the issue

of whether or not appellee contracted to procure insur-

ance which would protect the Postal Building from the

consequence of its own negligence. The trial court erred

in directing a verdict and removing this question from

the jury.

Mr. Hill testified that he had a policy with Zurich

Insurance Company at the time of the negotiation and

at the time of the accident (Tr. 16-18; Ex. 5). He testi-

fied that insurance was never discussed by the parties

prior to the accident (see, e.g. Tr. 24) but later recanted

and admitted considerable discussion about what he

called "bond" (Tr. 62-63).

Mrs. Relos, in her fiduciary capacity and as manager

of an important asset of the estate, was most concerned

about insurance, and her testimony would permit a jury

to find that she entered a contract with appellee whereby

appellee promised to procure insurance which would

indemnify the Postal Building, inter alia, from the con-

sequences of its own negligence (See Tr. 32-44 gener-

ally).

Mrs. Relos testified that Mr. Hill told her he would

I
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:harge more because his clients would be completely

:overed or insured (Tr. 32):

"At any rate, his fee was more, and I asked him
why, and he said because he carried such extra

heavy insurance to cover us in any circumstances

which might arise." (Tr. 33)

Mrs. Relos also testified:

'<* * * And he said, 'For the insurance that I

carry, you would be covered for any type of situa-

tion that might arise.'

And this is what impressed me." (Tr. 33)

"He said that one reason that his charge was

more was because he had to pay extra for such heavy

insurance to protect the people that he work for."

(Tr. 39)

"Q. And he had indicated to you he had Work-
man's Compensation, didn't he?

A. Yes, and extra coverage, too, with Zurich

Company and others.

Q. With regard to what?

A. Any accident that might arise or anything;

j

* * *." (Tr. 40)

"A. He said that we would be completely cov-

ered if anything arose that was wrong that would

hurt us; anything v/rong he would have the com-

plete insurance coverage, and that is all I was inter-

ested in.

Q. So far as his operations were concerned you

were fully protected?

A. Yes." (Tr. 40)
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"A. He told me that he carried a type of bond.

Now—a type of bond, and he carried this Zurich,

with the Zurich Company, and he told me that it

just covered extra insurance.

And I asked him, 'Why do you charge more

than
—

' most window washing companies charge

about the same. And he said because of the extra

coverage he carried, and that is why he had to

charge more, but in turn the people that had his

services were covered more." (Tr. 41)

There is no doubt that appellant's evidence presented

a jury question on the existence and terms of the con-

tract of insurance appellee promised (and failed) to

procure. The District Court erred in taking the case

from the jury.

CONCLUSION

The district court's direction of a verdict against ap-

pellant and in favor of appellee was clearly erroneous

and should be reversed. Appellant's evidence presented

a jury question upon the issue of the terms of a contract

by appellee to procure insurance to protect appellant.

Respectfully submitted,

Mautz, Souther, Spaulding, Kinsey

& Williamson

James H. Bruce
Attorneys for Apellant
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STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The appellee accepts the Statement of the Case set

forth in appellant's brief, but desires to enlarge upon

the same in a few brief particulars.

Mr. Victor J. Hill, President of the defendant

Clean-Rite Maintenance Company (Tr. 12) testified

as witness for plaintiff that in 1963 he had discussed

with Mrs. Relos, manager of the Postal Building (Tr.

31), the question of cleaning windows for the Postal

Building, she asked for a quotation, and he met her

once or twice before he actually did the work (Tr. 11).

He gave her a quotation on a one-time basis, there was

no contract (Tr. 11), and a subsequent proposed agree-

ment for a bimonthly cleaning of the building was

sent to Mrs. Relos after the initial cleaning of the build-

ing (Tr. 13). On the only occasion that Clean-Rite did

clean the windows of the Postal Building, Clean-Rite's

employee, Lee Ramsey, fell from the fourth floor on

June 12, 1963, and was injured (Tr. 10). After the fall

and the injury to Mr. Ramsey, he sent on August 6,

1963, a written outline of a proposed agreement to Mrs.

Relos (Tr. 15) which was entered as Plaintiff's Exhibit

1 (Tr. 47). This agreement read: "We carry Workmen's

Compensation $100,000 and $300,000, contractor's pub-

lic liability and $100,000 third party property damage,

insurance to protect you in case of accidents. All of

our employees are covered under our $10,000 blanket

fidelity bond." (Tr. 16). At the time he first talked to

Mrs. Relos in the spring of 1963, he had a public liabil-



ity policy with Zurich Insurance Company (Tr. 17)

entered as Plaintiff's Exhibit 5 (Tr. 18).

Mrs. Charlotte Relos testified for plaintiff that dur-

ing her first conversation with Mr. Hill in 1963 he told

her he carried extra insurance with the Zurich Insurance

Company, and that is why he had to charge a bit more

(Tr. 32). At this time the Postal Building was covered

by a liability insurance policy issued by appellant (Tr.

31), with $100,000 protection from 9/22/62 to 9/22/65

(Tr. 71).

On cross-examination Mrs. Relos stated that Mr.

Hill told her they would be completely covered if any-

thing arose, and so far as his operations were con-

cerned, she was fully protected (Tr. 40). He told her he

had a type of bond and extra insurance with Zurich,

and this was the extent of their conversation outside of

the fact they were going to have a written contract, but

there never was a written contract (Tr. 41). She wrote

a letter on August 29, 1963, to Mr. Hill at Clean-Rite

Maintenance Company, stating in part that "it occurs

to me now in view of your earlier comments about in-

surance that the Postal Building might be covered for

this claim under your insurance policies" (Tr. 43).

Victor J. Hill testified for defendant that he was on

the scene of the accident about thirty minutes after it

had happened (Tr. 55), and that his inspection re-

vealed that the wood the anchor bolt was attached to

was rotten, and the bolt pulled out of the building (Tr.

56). The words in his advertisement in the telephone

books "fully insured for your protection" meant there



was protection against his employees' act such as steal-

ing, but it did not mean to cover anything that occurs

through the fault of the building owner, he could not

cover a third party for negligence on their part (Tr.

59).

Kenneth A. Wicklund, a claim adjuster for Mary-

land Casualty Company, took a statement from Mrs.

Relos on June 13, 1963, at which time there was no

mention by Mrs. Relos about any insurance coverage

being provided by defendant (Tr. 67). He took a fur-

ther statement from Mrs. Relos on August 1, 1963,

which stated: "Nothing was ever said by either one of

us in which we used the words 'hold harmless agree-

ment'," and that is what Mrs. Relos related to him at

that time (Tr. 70). He examined the room from which

Mr. Ramsey fell, and noticed the wood frame on the

outside of the building was broken, the I -bolt was miss-

ing because it had remained fastened to Mr. Ramsey's

belt (Tr. 71-72).

In counsel's arguments on the motion for directed

verdict, the court asked counsel for plaintiff what he

thought the most favorable view of the evidence shows

with respect to what this contract was (Tr. 86), and

plaintiff's counsel informed the court that he thought

the most favorable view to the plaintiff is that Mr. Hill

on behalf of Clean-Rite promised he had and would

procure insurance to protect and hold harmless the Post-

al Building, its owners and operators, from any harm

or damage which might befall anyone in or around tlie

Postal Building, related to Mr. Hill's company's opera-

tions in washing windows (Tr. 86).



SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The District Court did not err in granting a directed

verdict in favor of the defendant, on the grounds that

the plaintiff did not prove with substantial evidence the

terms of a contract of insurance or to procure insurance

which would indemnify the plaintiff's insured for its

own acts of negligence. There is no distinction made in

Oregon law as to the legal requirements to enforce an

oral contract of insurance or to insure.

The defendant will also contend that plaintiff did

not have standing to bring an action for subrogation, as

the equities did not preponderate in favor of the plain-

tiff as to entitle it to pursue a subrogation claim.

In addition defendant will contend that an oral con-

tract to indemnify another against his own negligence

is not enforceable unless such intention to indemnify is

expressed in clear and unequivocal terms.

ARGUMENT

1. A material issue must be proved with substantial evi-

dence without conjecture and speculation, before a

jury question is presented.

It is elementary that in this case, as in any other

case, before a plaintiff can make a jury question upon

a material issue, there must be presented substantial evi-

dence on this issue which will not require the jury to

resort to conjecture and speculation. This concept, of

course, becomes important in a case of this nature

where the plaintiff is claiming that the trial court

erred in determining there was insufficient evidence as



a matter of law to establish plaintiff's case, which, there-

fore, precluded the submission to the jury of this pur-

ported insurance agreement. On this subject the Oregon

Court has stated:

*'.
. . What is required is evidence from which

reasonable men may conclude that, upon the whole,

it is more likely that there was negligence than

that there was not. Where the conclusion is a mat-

ter of mere speculation or conjecture, or where the

probabilities are at best evenly balanced between

negligence and its absence, it becomes the duty of

the court to direct a jury that the burden of proof

has not been sustained. . . . The quotation is di-

rected to decisions on negligence but it is applicable

to the proof of any fact. ..." Beeler v. Collier, 80

Or. Adv. Sh. 411, 412-413, — Or. — , 400 P.2d 541.

Therefore, regardless of whether the plaintiff is rely-

ing upon the contract to procure insurance, or was re-

quired to establish the terms of a contract of insur-

ance, it was incumbent upon the plaintiff to prove some

substantial evidence as to just what type of insurance

burden he contended the defendant had undertook to

assume. It is the appellee's position that there was no

such substantial evidence, and that the trial court prop-

erly removed this element from the jury's consideration

and ordered a directed verdict, because of this failure

of proof.

2. The appeUate court can examine sufficiency of all

grounds presented in defendant's motion for directed

verdict, in addition to the ones relied upon by trial

court.

While the main thrust of this appeal will be directed

1



to the lack of proof by plaintiff of the alleged agreement

to insure Postal Building for its own negligence in main-

taining an unsafe place for defendant's employee to

work, as will be seen at (Tr. 76, et seq), defendant also

contended in the directed verdict motion that the plain-

tiff was not entitled to subrogation. The appellee also

intends to bring this lack of right to subrogation before

this court, and is entitled to do so by Oregon law even

though the trial court did not pass upon this ground.

Authority for this proposition is set forth as follows:

"The plaintiff's sole assignment of error is the

action of the trial court in directing a verdict for

defendant. The trial court ruled that the evidence

was insufficient to raise a question of fact, to be

determined by the jury, as to negligence or non-

negligence of the defendant. Since the defendant's

motion to direct a verdict included other grounds

than the one ascribed by the trial court for its

action, it is necessary to consider each ground of

the motion." Oregon Mutual Fire Insurance Com-
pany, et al V. Mathis, 215 Or 218, 220-221, 334

P2d 186.

3. Directed verdict in favor of defendant was proper

because plaintiff did not have standing as a subrogee

to maintain this action in the trial court.

It will be seen from Item (5) of "Plaintiff's Conten-

tions", Page 3 of the Pre-Trial Order in this case, that

plaintiff claimed:

"That plaintiff is subrogated to all the rights

of the estate of Marie A. Caraplis against the de-

fendant, if there is a right of subrogation under

the facts of this case."
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It will also be seen that under "Defendant's Con-

tentions", Item (1), that the defendant claimed:

"Plaintiff is not entitled to subrogation under

the circumstances of this case."

The right of subrogation in Oregon is not absolute,

but is modified by equitable principles. The Oregon

Supreme Court has stated:

".
. . True subrogation only lies where one sec-

ondarily liable pays the debt of another and not

where one primarily liable pays his own debt."

Newell V. Taylor, 212 Or. 522, 532, 321 P.2d 294

(citing American Surety Company v. Bank of Cal-

iiornia (9th Cir. D.C., Or.) 133 F.2d 160).

The Ninth Circuit case relied upon by the Oregon

Court in Newell v. Taylor, stated the rule as follows:

"The right of subrogation is a creature of

equity, applicable where one person is required to

pay a debt for which another is primarily respon- m
sible, and which the latter should in equity dis-

charge. In theory one person is substituted to the

claim of another, but only when the equities as

between the parties preponderate in favor of the

plaintiff. That is, a surety's right of recovery from

a third party through subrogation does not follow,

as of course, upon proof that the losing but recom-

pensed party could have recovered from the third

party. Accordingly, subrogation will not operate

against an innocent person wronged by a prin-

ciple's fraud. A surety may pursue the independent

right of action of the original creditor against a

third person, but it must appear that the said third

person participated in the wrongful act involved or

that he was negligent, for the right of recovery I



from a third person is merely conditional in con-

trast to the right to recover from the principle

which is absolute. The equities of the one asking for

subrogation must be superior to those of his ad-

versary. If the equities are equal or if the defend-

ant has the greater equity, subrogation will not be

supplied to shift the loss." (Page 162 of the Opin-

ion).

This case went on to say:

"Since Insurers expressly volunteered and for a

compensation guaranteed against loss in the exact

situation involved, the equity in the situation can-

not lie in favor of the Insurers and against the

Bank for the payment made." (Page 164 of the

Opinion)

.

The case finally determined that the plaintiff had no

right of subrogation.

In the case at bar Maryland Casualty Company

expressly volunteered and "for a compensation guar-

anteed against loss in the exact situation" which was in-

volved in this case. We feel it is somewhat fortuitious

for appellant to claim that there was not sufficient evi-

dence of negligence of the operators of the Postal

Building (App. Br. 14). In fact it was undisputed, and

confirmed by Mr. Wicklund, appellant's own insurance

claim adjuster, that the I -bolt being used by Mr. Lee

Ramsey pulled out of the rotted woodwork of the

building, causing him to fall to the ground. Now the

appellant is trying to avoid its primary duty for which

it had received a premium, and shift it in toto to the

appellee, who had no participation in the negligent act
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involved, but whose only contact with appellant's in-

sured was some vague allegations that there was full

insurance for the protection of the Postal Building. Ap-

pellant apparently did not pay the sum of $22,500 to

Mr. Lee Ramsey, if it did not feel there was primary

liability on the part of its insured, and being the pri-

mary target of this threatened action by the injured em-

ployee, this appears to be a good example of a case

where "subrogation will not be supplied to shift a

loss."

4. Appellant failed to introduce substantial evidence of a
contract of insurance, or the terms of insurance contract

to be procured by appellee.

The fact that appellant is claiming appellee agreed

to insure and indemnify it against appellant's insured's

own negligence will be discussed in the next argument.

Appellant attaches a great deal of importance to the fact

there must be some arcane distinction between a con-

tract of insurance, and a contract to procure insurance.

If there is a distinction, and the words "to procure"

have some recondite significance, the appellee asks the

question, "to procure what insurance"? If the appellant

had ordered some special window glass from India, for

example, and the glass fell from a barge in the Ganges

River, did the appellee insure against this loss? Surely

the terms must have some certainty so that a court and

jury can determine what burden was undertaken by the

appellee, we stretch the bounds of common sense to

contend that some "puffing" about the insurance pro-

gram carried by appellee bound him to insure the appel-
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lant for every possible and foreseeable risk which might

ensue. Regardless of the semantics, the Oregon Court has

long recognized that a contract to insure must be proved

with the same certainty as is necessary to prove a con-

tract of oral insurance. The Oregon Court has stated:

"In order to make a valid contract of insurance,"

says Mr. Wood, in his work on fire insurance (Sec-

ond Edition), Sec. 5, "several things must concur:

"First, the subject matter to which the policy is

to attach, must exist; second, the risk insured

against; third, the amount of indemnity must be

definitely fixed; fourth, the duration of the risk;

and, fifth, the premium or consideration to be paid

therefore must be agreed upon, and paid, or exist as

a valid legal charge against the party insured where

payment in advance is not a part of the condition

upon which the policy is to attach. The absence

of either or any of these requisites is fatal in cases

where a parol contract of insurance is relied upon.

It is not the duty of courts to make contracts for

parties, but to interpret the engagements they have

undertaken and, in view of this legal principle, the

rule is well settled, that, before a contract of in-

surance or to insure can become binding, all

these necessary elements must be understood, as-

sented to and agreed upon, either expressly or by

implication, before there can be an absolute bind-

ing obligation between the parties." Cleveland Oil

Co. v. Insurance Society, 34 Or. 228, 233-234 (em-

phasis supplied)

More recently the Oregon Court has said

:

".
. . If the contract in any case is so indefinite

as to make it impossible for the Court to decide

just what it means, and fix exactly the legal liabil-
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ity of the parties, it cannot result in an enforce-

able [sic] contract . .
." Landgraver v. DeShazer,

239 Or. 446, 447, 398 P.2d 193.

It will be noted that at (Tr. 87) the trial court

questioned counsel for appellant as to how much in-

surance appellee had to provide, and counsel indicated

sufficient insurance to cover any loss or harm. Suppose

for example instead of a rotting window frame giving

away, a whole side of the building had collapsed at the

same time killing and injuring hundreds of people with

damage claims in the millions—did appellee accept this

burden merely by claiming "fully insured for your pro-

tection?" Or if the entire building was destroyed by

fire at this time, did Mr. Hill promise to "procure" in-

surance to cover the loss?

On page 9 of Appellant's Brief are set forth two or

three portions of the pre-trial order, and it is seen that

the issues of fact included "(2) If so, what are the

terms of such agreement?" The same page also sets

forth the issues of law which were stated to be "(2)

If so, are the terms of this contract definite enough for

the court to fix the exact legal liability of the parties?"

That is what this case is all about, if the appellee con- ip

tracted to undertake the vast burden referred to by the

appellant, what does the trier of fact have to work with

to determine the appellee's responsibility for the terms

of this purported agreement. For example, in Oregon

since 1952 in the case of Oregon Auto Insurance Com-

pany v. United States Fidelity and Guarantee Company
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(9th Cir., D.C. Or.), 195 F.2d 958, the Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit recognized that when two automo-

bile HabiHty insurance policies cover the same risk, they

pro-rate their share of the risk in proportion to their cov-

erage limits. While this refers to an automobile policy,

there seems no logical reason why this doctrine should

not extend to any case where two liability policies cover

the same risk. Of course, this doctrine of pro-rating in-

surance policies is well adopted in Oregon in the case

of Lamb-Weston, Inc., et al v. Oregon Auto Insurance

Company (1959), 219 Or. 110, 341 P.2d 110, 346 P.2d

643. Had this point ever been reached in the trial, the

appellee was going to contend that its liability, if any,

should pro-rate with the $100,000 liability policy car-

ried by appellant. [This point was discussed by counsel

for appellee (Tr. 84).] But in what proportion? With-

out some evidence of the terms of the policy agreed

upon there is nothing to substantiate as to how much

the appellee or the appellant should contribute to this

risk.

Assuming there is some merit in plaintiff's conten-

tion that all that is involved here is a contract to pro-

cure insurance, there is not a scintilla of evidence that

appellee ever agreed to procure insurance. All Mrs.

Relos testified to over and over again was that the

appellee told her he was well insured and that is why

his rates maybe were a little higher. If she relied upon

the advertising in the telephone book, all it said was

"fully insured for your protection." In fact, Mrs. Relos

on cross-examination stated Mr. Hill told her they

would be completely covered if anything arose and that
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"so far as his operations were concerned, you were fully

protected" (Tr. 40). It will be seen at (Tr. 41) that

this conversation about the type of insurance he carried

was the sole substance of their conversation on this

point. And, of course, this is exactly true, that as far

as Mr. Hill's operations were concerned, she was fully

protected. For example, if Mr. Lee Ramsey negligently

dropped a bucket on the head of a passerby, his insur-

ance with Zurich-American Insurance Co. was available

to protect the Postal Building. Mr. Hill wrote to her

after the accident to confirm their agreement in writing,

and pointed out at (Tr. 16)

:

'*.
. . we carry Workmen's Compensation, $100,-

000.00 and $300,000.00, contractor's public liabil-

ity and $100,000.00 third party property damage,

insurance to protect you in case of accidents. All

of our employees are covered under our $10,000.00

blanket fidelity bond."

But it wasn't his operations that brought any insurance

policy into play in this case, it was the negligence of the

Postal Building operators that brought Maryland Cas-

ualty Company into the picture to face its primary duty

as the liability insurer for the negligent acts of the oper-

ators of the Postal Building. Appellant has not pointed

to any specification of evidence where Mr. Hill contract-

ed to go out and "procure insurance," their entire con-

versation was directed to his existent insurance program.

The very word "procure" is couched in the future tense,

and defined as "to get or obtain," "to cause or bring

about." Mr. Hill never agreed to go out and buy insur-

ance for Mrs. Relos, merely pointed out that he was in-
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deed "fully insured for your protection," but, of course,

only as to his own faults. As Mr. Hill pointed out, he

could not cover a third party for negligence on their part

(Tr. 59). The appellant admits in his brief at page 13,

that appellant only adduced proof that the risk or harm

insured against was harm or risk "arising out of the ap-

pellee's operation." That is exactly why appellee carried

its liability policy. But the harm in this case arose out of

appellant's own neglect, not "appellee's operations."

Another interesting point not raised by appellant is

the fact that during the entire time she was discussing

this window cleaning job with Mr. Hill, Mrs. Relos had

her own $100,000 liability policy with Maryland Cas-

ualty Co. effective 9-22-62 to 9-22-65 (Tr. 71). Obvi-

ously if she was so vitally interested in Mr. Hill's insur-

ance program, this interest did not extend to her own

liability, v/hich was fully protected. It seems sheer so-

phistry for her subrogee to now come into court in her

shoes claiming she relied upon Mr. Hill to indemnify

her for her own negligence, when she was adequately

protected at all times relevant in these proceedings.

Regarding appellant's contention at page 13 of ap-

pellant's brief, that the premium can be computed by

taking into account the previous maintenance contract,

it should be pointed out that Mr. Hill's price included

cleaning the windows at Mrs. Relos' private residence

(Tr. 23). There is not a word in the record that any

consideration ever changed hands to support this pur-

ported agreement.
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In sumary, therefore, whether the appellant was re-

quired to establish by substantial evidence the terms of

this purported oral contract of insurance, or only to es-

tablish a contract to insure, before it can become binding

upon the appellee there must be some proof of the terms

in order that justice can be done by our courts of law.

The Cleveland Oil Company V. Insurance Society case,

supra, was more recently cited with approval in Cerino

V. Oregon Physicians Service, 202 Or. 474, 484-485, 276

P.2d 397, where the Oregon court said:

"When a parole contract of insurance is relied

upon to sustain a recovery of damages resulting

from a breach of the agreement, or to enforce a spe-

cific performance of the terms which have been

mutually assented to, the existence of the contract

must be conclusively established."

The appellee contends this was one of the burdens

of the appellant in this case, and the trial court prop-

erly determined that this burden had not been met, and

that a directed verdict was proper in favor of the appel-

lee.

5. In the absence of explicit agreemnt an indemnity

agreement will not be construed to save the indemnitee

harmless from his own negligence.

The appellant claims at page 14 of Appellant's Brief

that the appellant proved a sufficiently definite con-

tract to indemnify against its own negligence. The ap-

pellant is saying in substance in this case, that the ap-

pellee agreed to procure insurance to protect the estate

from all claims, which is in essence a form of indemnity

I
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or "hold harmless" agreement. Initially it might be noted

at (Tr. 70) that Mrs. Relos gave a statement to the in-

surance adjuster for the appellant on August 1, 1963,

shortly after the accident, that "now, nothing was ever

said by either one of us in which we used the words 'hold

harmless agreement.'
"

Regarding the type of proof necessary to establish

that a person agrees to indemnify another from that

person's own acts of negligence, the Oregon court has

said:

"It is a firmly established rule that contracts

of indemnity will not be construed to cover losses

to the indemnitee caused by his own negligence un-

less such intention is expressed in clear and une-

quivocal terms. In Perry vs. Payne, 217 Pa. 252,

262, 66 Atl. 553, 11 LRA (NS) 1173, the court

said: 'We think it clear, on reason and authority,

that a contract of indemnity against personal inju-

ries should not be construed to indemnify against

the negligence of indemnitee unless it is so expressed

in unequivocal terms. The liability on such indem-

nity is so hazardous, and the character of indem-

nity so unusual and extraordinary, that there can

be no presumption that the indemnitor intended to

assume the responsibility unless the contract puts

it beyond doubt by express stipulation. No inier-

ence from v/ords of general import can establish it."

(Emphasis supplied) Southern Pacific Co. v. Lay-

man, 173 Or. 275, 279, 145 P.2d 295.

While we agree that Oregon Supreme Court decisions

have recognized that persons can enter into formal

agreements exonerating them from the consequences of
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their own negligence, this is such a hazardous undertak-

ing that all courts, including Oregon, are extremely re-

luctant to find such an agreement of indemnification

unless there is a very high degree of proof that this was

the party's intent. Again using a somewhat attenuated

argument to underscore this problem, suppose Mrs. Relos

had gone to India to obtain the window glass referred

to in appellee's arguments above, and had negligently

dropped a piece of glass on the Calcutta salesman's foot

—did Clean-Rite Maintenance Company insure her for

this act of negligence? It will be seen from (Tr. 90) that

the trial court was well apprised of this rule of law, and

cited the case of Glens Falls Indemnity Company v.

Reimers, 176 Or. 47, 155 P.2d 923, in which case there was

a written indemnity agreement containing the follow-

ing language:

"The contractor assumes all responsibility for

damage to property or persons and will save and

hold harmless the company, its officers, agents and

employees from all liability for personal injury and

from costs, charges or expense reasonably incurred

by the company on account of such damages, in-

jury or claims, therefor which may arise or result

from the performance, non-performance or mal-per-

formance of this contract."

In spite of this written contract with a written in-

demnity agreement, the Supreme Court held it would

not be construed to indemnify the indemnitee against

the consequences of its own negligence. The appellee is

also of the opinion that in the case of Unitec Corpora-

tion V. Beatty Safway Scaffold Company, 358 F.2d 470

I
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(9th Cir. 1966), cited by appellant, this court construed

the agreement involved to include indemnification for

the indemnitee's negligence, because the indemnitor had

in the same agreement agreed to procure a policy of

liability insurance. Both the trial court and this court

also concluded that the indemnitor in the Unitec case

was partially responsible for the damages that incurred,

whereas in the case at bar the only proof in the record

indicates that it was the indemnitee's own acts of negli-

gence that gave rise to this entire proceeding, and in

which no fault was shown on the part of appellee.

Counsel for appellant's own version at the trial of

what his case was all about strikingly underscores the

fact that there never was any claim that appellee agreed

to indemnify the Postal Building for its acts of negli-

gence. As will be seen at (Tr. 86), the following oc-

curred :

"The Court: You tell me what you think the

most favorable view of the evidence shows with

respect to what this contract was.

Mr. Foley: I think the most favorable view to

the plaintiff, your Honor, is that Mr. Hill, on behalf

of Clean-Rite, promised that he had, and would pro-

cure during the term of this one-year window wash-

ing agreement, insurance to protect and hold harm-

less the Postal Building, its owners and operators,

from any harm or damage which might befall any

one in or around the Postal Building, related to Mr.

Hill's company's operations in washing windows."

(emphasis supplied)

And yet there never was any proof that any harm or

damage resulted from Mr. Hill's "operations," the harm
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resulted from the negligence of the Postal Building, in

having window-washing I -bolts attached to rotted wood-

work which gave away. Appellant's own counsel, there-

fore, admits that after hearing the evidence most favor-

ably to the appellant, there was no proof that there

would be any indemnification for the negligence of the

Postal Building. Mr. Hill had adequate insurance to pro-

tect from harm resulting from his own operations (Tr.

16), and the trial court properly refused to submit this

case to the jury. As was said in Southern Pacific Com-

pany v. Layman, supra, when referring to an indemnity

agreement being construed to cover losses to the indem-

nitee caused by his own negligence, "no inference from

words of general import can establish it." All we have

in this case is some "puffing" by Mr. Hill that he had a

full insurance program available. Indeed he had, but

there was no proof of the drastic and hazardous type of

indemnification agreement sought to be established by

appellant herein.

CONCLUSION

Appellant has three hurdles to overcome before this

Court can say that there has been reversible error in

this case. First there must be a showing that the appel-

lant is entitled, as a condition precedent to bringing this

action, to the right of subrogation. There is respectable

Ninth Circuit and Oregon authority that one is entitled

to subrogation "only when the equities as between the

parties preponderate in favor of the plaintiff." The

plaintiff in this case, Maryland Casualty Company, for
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a premium issued the policy insuring against exactly the

type of harm which occurred in this case, i.e., stemming

from the negligence of the owners of the Postal Build-

ing. Appellee contends that this is a perfect example of

a case where, "if the equities are equal or if the defendant

has the greater equity, subrogation will not be supplied

to shift the loss." American Surety Co. v. Bank of Cali-

iornia, supra)

If appellant is entitled to subrogation, then the ap-

pellant had to show by substantial evidence that appel-

lee agreed in some manner to also insure the operators

of the Postal Building for every type of risk which pos-

sibly could be imagined, according to the pre-trial order

and appellant's contentions in its brief. If there is some

merit to appellant's position that a contract "to procure"

insurance has some vital distinction from a contract to

enforce an oral contract of insurance, there still must be

some terms of this alleged contract shown to apprise the

appellee of what he was facing. Yet at the trial, appel-

lant proved nothing except that the appellee had told

Mrs. Relos that he was fully insured. Mrs. Ralos sum-

marized their entire conversation by stating Mr. Hill

contended "so far as his operations were concerned,

you were fully protected" (Tr. 40). At the trial on

the argument for motion of directed verdict, plain-

tiff's counsel took the same position, that the Postal

Building was protected from actions "related to Mr.

Hill's company's operations in washing windows" (Tr.

86). Yet the injury which gave rise to this law action

arose from the "operations" of the Postal Building—at
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all times Mr. Hill was insured for his own operations.

It is somewhat cynical for Mrs. Relos to contend that

Mr. Hill was promising to insure her for her own negli-

gence, rather than his own acts, when at all times the

subject of insurance was being discussed with Mr. Hill,

she carried her own $100,000 liability policy with ap-

pellant.

Finally, appellant must show that the appellee had

undertaken the extreme burden of agreeing to provide

an indemnity policy of insurance, saving the Postal

Building harmless for its own acts of negligence. When

it comes to such extraordinary agreements, the Oregon

court has recognized that the liability on such indemnity

is so hazardous, and the character of indemnity so un-

usual and extraordinary, that "no inference from words

of general import can establish it" (Southern Pacific

Company v. Layman, supra, page 279). These words

could have been written with this case in mind, the only

proof adduced by appellant at the trial was a conver-

sation or two between Mrs. Relos and Mr. Hill to the

effect that she would be fully insured from his opera-

tions, and these are only words of "general import."

The trial court properly refused to submit this case

to the jury.

Respectfully submitted,

Hershiser, Canning, Pullen,

Mitchell & Rawls
By: Gerald R. Pullen

Attorneys for Appellee
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ARGUMENT

1. Appellant produced substantial evidence presenting

a question for jury determination.

Appellee's statement of the case (Br. 2-4) and first

argviment (Br. 5-6) set forth accepted legal propositions.

However, appellee's attempts to mold the facts of this

case into support for the District Court's ruling are

tortured. Its statement of the case stresses Mr. Hill's



testimony to the exclusion of that of Mrs. Relos. Be-

cause the issue on appeal is whether the appellant

produced substantial evidence, productive of a jury

question, the evidence should be viewed in a light most

favorable to the appellant and most strictly against the

movant-appellee. Allister v. Knaupp, et al, 168 Or. 630,

642-643, 126 P.2d 317 (1942). It is uncontested that

the testimony of Mr. Hill and Mrs. Relos was diamet-

rically opposed; the numerous factual issues thus for-

mulated should have been considered by the jury.

Appellee's quotation (Br. 6) from Professor Prosser,

cited by the Oregon Supreme Court in Beeler v. Collier,

240 Or. 141, 400 P.2d 541 (1965), seems strangely an-

achronistic, concerned as it is with circumstantial evi-

dence in a negligence case. A simpler, more appropriate

statement of the applicable rule is that the appellant

must produce substantial evidence of a contract by the

appellee to procure insurance in favor of appellant, and

there is insufficient evidence where the jury must spec-

ulate. A review of the evidence in this case, as excerpted

in appellant's opening brief, indicates the appellant has

satisfied its burden.

2. Appellate exomination of a contention not considered

by the trial court.

Appellee's second argument (Br. 6-7) attempts to

justify the unnecessary cluttering of an appellate brief

with matters not considered by the trial court, and is

a requisite foundation for appellee's third argument con-

cerned with appellant's right to subrogation (Br. 7-10).



The District Court apparently did not rule on, or con-

sider, the "subrogation" argument.

Appellant believes that the availability of a previous-

ly unconsidered matter on appeal is a matter of Federal,

not Oregon, law; therefore the citation of Ore^n Mu-
tual Fire Insurance Company et al v. Mathis, 215 Or.

218, 334 P.2d 186 (1960) (Br. 7), is interesting but

uncontrolling. Whether or not this Court will review

matters not considered by the District Court is a con-

sideration of internal appellate procedure, governed by

the rules of this Court.

Nevertheless, appellant will comment upon the mer-

its of appellee's "subrogation" argument advanced under

this justification, despite doubts as to the propriety of the

procedure, in the succeeding section.

3. Appellant had standing to sue as subrogee.

Appellee asserts that appellant had no standing as a

subrogee to maintain this action. Appellee's argument

on this point is not a model of precision and clarity; ap-

parently appellee believes that appellant does not have

"superior equities" and is not entitled to subrogation.

Firstly, in support of its position, appellee relies upon

Newell v. Taylor, 212 Or. 522, 321 P.2d 294 (1958),

which states a broad principle as a matter of dicta, and

relies upon American Surety Company v. Bank of Cal-

ifornia, 133 F.2d 160 (9th Cir. 1943).

In American Surety Co., supra. Interior Warehouse

Company was a depositor of the defendant bank. Inte-



rior's bookkeeper, Crowe, fraudulently made checks to

improper or nonexistent persons, forged the payees'

names, cashed the checks, and converted the funds. He
falsified Interior's records to cover his defalcations.

American Surety insured Interior against employee in-

fidelity. American Surety paid Interior the amount of

loss caused by Crowe's embezzlement and took an as-

signment of Interior's claims against the Bank. In this

action, American Surety sought to recover from the

Bank the payments made to Interior. Judgment for

the Bank was affirmed by this Court. American Surety

contended that the Bank became contractually liable to

Interior by charging Interior's account with fraudu-

lently endorsed checks. Appellee avoids citation of the

following paragraph, which distinguishes American Sure-

ty Company, supra, from the instant case, 133 F.2d at

163:

"The basic principles set forth above are con-

sistently reiterated in connection with the right of

subrogation, and are clearly supported by the ma-

jority of reported decisions. The cases, dealing with

the surety's alleged right of subrogation to the claim

of the original creditor against the third party with

whom the indemnitor is not in privity, indicate

that the result reached depends upon a careful anal-

ysis of the facts involved. Obviously, we do not

have before us an indemnity agreement running to

any person injured, as so often appears in surety

contracts of public officials, rather than to specifi-

cally named persons. Cases with the turning point

as to subrogation correctly or incorrectly resting

upon that fact should not be allowed to confuse the

situation. The same may be said as to many opin-



ions to be found in the books which erroneously,

as we think, fail to note that the touchstone upon
which subrogation, as to parties not under con-

tractual obligations between themselves, depends
is the superior equity between the surety and the

claimed subrogee."

The American Surety Co., supra, decision is clearly

inapposite. Appellant has a claim as subrogee because

the primarily-liable party was the appellee-obligor un-

der the latter 's agreement with the subrogor to procure

insurance in favor of the subrogor to protect it in the

event of an incident like the Ramsey accident. If appel-

lant's theory is adhered to (and the case was tried on

this theory), then American Surety Co., supra, is spe-

cifically distinguished by its own terms. The present

case is concerned with an "indemnity agreement running

to an injured person" and a "contractual obligation be-

tween the parties."

Secondly, it is difficult to comprehend appellee's con-

tention that the equities preponderate in its favor. How
is appellee as an "innocent person" (Br. 8) wronged by

another's fraud? Under appellant's theory and proof,

appellee secured a valuable contract from appellant's

subrogor by an agreement to procure insurance to pro-

tect the subrogor. It would be strange, indeed, to allow

the appellee to make such a promise, breach the con-

tract, thrust the loss upon the subrogor, and then contest

the standing of the subrogee to seek to enforce the con-

tract. Even more bizarre is the instant case where the

appellee contends that the trial court was justified in



refusing to submit the factual questions raised to a jury

determination.

Assuming, arguendo, that appellee's authorities con-

trol the instant case, appellee cannot prevail unless it

is clear that appellee was not negligent and did not en-

gage in any wrongful act. The evidence in the instant

case regarding negligence is sparse; negligence was a

collateral issue. It is certainly inferable that the cause

of the Ramsey injury was not solely a breach of duty

on the part of appellant's subrogor. Ramsey was em-

ployed by the appellee, which was presumably expert

in the commercial window washing field. There was no

showing that the appellant-subrogor (decedent's estate),

or its managers (the co-executrices), had any knowledge

or expertise regarding the window-washing profession

or the state of the building (an estate asset). Ordinar- L

ily, when one comes to an existing structure to perform

a function as an independent contractor, he is bound

to look out for his own safety and he takes the building

as he finds it. The failure to do so is negligence which

would be causative of the Ramsey harm.

Appellant's subrogor was a landowner. A landowner

is not an insurer of safety, even as to the employees of

persons working upon the buildings or premises. A land-

owner need not guard against the mere possibility of ac-

cident, but merely should protect against such risks

which a reasonably prudent person in the position of

landowner would anticipate. Eberle v. Benedictine Sis-

ters of Mt. Angel, et al, 235 Or. 496, 504, 385 P.2d 765

(1963). (Dissenting opinion.) There is no showing that



Mrs. Relos knew anything of the mechanics of window

washing, nor is there evidence that the average land-

owner or building owner would possess such expertise.

It is more likely that Mr. Hill's expertise was the subject

of Mrs. Relos' reliance. Moreover, a landowner is not

charged with negligence in the failure to discover and

remedy hazards on his property which were not dis-

coverable in the exercise of reasonable care. Stuhr v.

Berkheimer Co., 220 Or. 406, 411, 349 P.2d 665 (1960).

There is no evidence that appellant's subrogor knew,

or had reason to know, that the Postal Building posed

any hazard (if indeed it did) in the window-washing

maintenance. After all. Associated Building Mainte-

nance had been washing the Postal Building windows

for some time previous to the Ramsey accident, appar-

ently without incident.

Thirdly, it seems to be appellee's contention that ap-

i

pellant is not entitled to subrogation because it was a

compensated insurance company and paid the Ramsey

claim as a risk encompassed by its policy. This boot-

strap argument is also unappealing. A compensated

surety, for example, is entitled to the same rights and

privileges as a gratuitious surety. In re Liquidation oi

Bank of Woodburn, 149 Or. 649, 655, 42 P. 2d 740

(1935); Fidelity & Deposit Company of Maryland V.

State Bank of Portland, et al, 117 Or. 1, 7, 242 P.2d

823 (1926).

Apparently appellee asserts that appellant did not

have a superior equity under appellee's concept of sub-

rogation. Appellant contends that appellee contracted to



procure insurance for appellant's subrogor, which insur-

ance would provide primary coverage for occurrences

such as the Ramsey incident. Upon failure of the ap-

pellee to honor its agreement, appellant, under a much

broader policy, was forced to indemnify and defend its

subrogor. If appellant is correct in these premises (dis-

cussed under Arguments 4 and 5, infra) then it would

be "secondarily liable" and appellee "primarily liable"

under appellees' own terminology, and appellant would

be entitled to subrogation thereunder.

4. Appellant introduced substantial evidence of a contract

to procure insurance.

Appellee's fourth argument (Br. 10-16) is labeled

"Appellant failed to introduce substantial evidence of a

contract of insurance, or the terms of insurance contract

to be procured by appellee" (Br. 10). This heading fails

to accurately embrace the theory of the case. Appellee

continues on appeal to misunderstand (intentionally or

unintentionally) appellant's theory of the case. As set

forth in appellant's opening brief, appellant does not

contend that appellee contracted to insure appellant; i|

therefore, both alternatives in the appellee's "heading"

are inapplicable.

Appellant does attach "a great deal of importance

to the fact that there must be some arcane distinction

between a contract of insurance and a contract to pro-

cure insurance" (Br. 10). The Oregon Supreme Court

also attaches a great deal of importance to this "myste-

rious dictinction." To a reader of the recent Oregon

decisions, there is no "secret" concerning the distinction.



Apparently appellee is not going to deign to recognize

or comment upon the leading case of Hamacher v.

Tumy, et al, 222 Or. 341, 352 P.2d 493 (1960), which is

discussed at length in appellants' opening brief. Ham-
acher, supra, controls the determination of this appeal.

In fact, appellee refuses to mention the recent case over-

ruled by Hamacher, supra. [Rodders Insurance Agen-

cy V. Andersen Machinery, 211 Or. 459, 316 P.2d 497

(1957)]. Perhaps the distinction which so confounds ap-

pellee would be less mysterious if twentieth century au-

thorities were considered.

Appellee asks (Br. 12-13) the amount of coverage

to be secured by Mr. Hill. It must be recalled that Mrs.

Relos, the executrix of a decedent's estate (appellant's

subrogor), was merely a laywoman and unschooled in

the law and insurance coverages. Apparently Mr. Hill

possessed some competence in insurance coverages since

he secured the contract herein by representations con-

cerning insurance protection. The rhetorical question

poses a situation realistically treated in Hamacher v.

Tumy, supra. The Oregon Supreme Court in Hamach-

er, supra, determined that when one seeks expert aid in

securing coverage, the lay person is assumed to rely

upon the expert to procure sufficient coverage under the

circumstances. Possibly Mrs. Relos presumed that Mr.

Hill would endorse the Postal Building upon the ex-

isting contracts of insurance which he had (or claimed

he had). Mrs. Relos can hardly be faulted for not pos-

isessing expertise in the field of insurance.
t

i Mrs. Relos, on behalf of appellant's subrogor, had



10

reason to be concerned about the operations of appellee

because she testified that she did not have Workmen's

Compensation coverage (Tr. 34). Appellee, through Mr.

Hill, who had been long associated with the business,

well knew what potential exposure could arise from

window-cleaning operations.

Appellee seems to believe that a "wide open" risk

was born by virtue of Mr. Hill's contract to procure in-

surance. His "glass on the barge in the Ganges" (Br.

10) example betrays a certain naivete. Appellant asserts

(and the evidence shows) that appellee promised to

procure insurance to protect its subrogor from liabil-

ities arising out of the operations on the building by

the appellee. Therefore, appellee's "parade of horribles"

(Br. 10 et seq) is unworthy of comment.

Appellee misconceives the state of the evidence when

he asserts:

"There is not a scintilla of evidence that appel-

lee ever agreed to procure insurance." (Br. 13)

Mrs. Relos testified that Mr. Hill represented that the

Postal Building would be fully protected; if appellee

did not, in fact, have the requisite insurance, then the

evidence clearly supports a finding that appellee agreed

to provide insurance for the protection of appellant's

subrogor. If Mr. Hill's "puffing" meant that he was

telling a falsehood when he claimed and warranted that

he was fully insured for Mrs. Relos' protection, then it

is appellant's contention that he agreed to procure

the insurance he professed to have.

Throughout its brief (e.g. Br. 14) appellee contends

d
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that it was not its "operations" that brought any insur-

ance coverage into play; instead it is asserted that it

was the appellant's subrogor's negligence that caused

the Ramsey loss. This invalid assumption avoids the

central issue in this case. Assuming, arguendo, that the

appellant's subrogor was negligent, appellant contends

that appellee contracted to procure insurance, and if

his existing insurance did not cover his agreement, then

he agreed to secure further insurance. If a person rep-

resents (as appellee admits that Mr. Hill did, Br. 15),

that he was "fully insured for your protection," a lay

person such as Mrs. Relos would normally assume that

the Postal Building would be protected for those oper-

ations performed in and about the building by Mr. Hill

and his employees.

Appellee claims (Br. 15) that Mr. Hill pointed out

(after the fact) that he could not insure a third party

for negligence on its part. This erroneous legal con-

clusion strictly avoids the vital issue. All insurance pol-

icies are indemnification agreements against carelessness

or negligence on the part of the "indemnitee." Appellant

contends that appellee contracted to procure sufficient

insurance to protect appellant's subrogor during appel-

lee's operations. Failure to do so breached the contract,

and is the foundation of this lawsuit.

Appellee makes much of the fact that Mrs. Relos,

on behalf of the Postal Building, had an existing public

liability policy with appellant (Br. 15). Appellant's

policy provided a different type of coverage than that

promised by Mr. Hill; it would not prorate under the
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Lamb-Weston theory (which is restricted to automo-

bile coverages) and appellant's coverage was merely

secondarily liable. Appellee's agreement here again indi-

cates the curious confusion between indemnity agree-

ments and agreements to procure insurance coverage.

Moreover, Mrs. Relos testified that she was particularly

concerned about the promised coverage because the

Postal Building did not have Workmen's Compensation

coverage (Tr. 34).

Appellee argues that the difference in cost between

appellee's agreement and that charged by the prior

window washer was attributable to the annual cleaning

of Mrs. Relos' windows at home. There is no evidence

to support this conclusion. Most likely the same agree-

ment pertained as to the annual home window washing.

The conclusion of the fourth argument of appellee

is incomprehensible, perhaps because appellant and ap-

pellee are considering different theories. This case is

controlled by Hamacher v. Tumy, supra, which appel-

lee refuses to recognize or discuss. Appellee agreed to

procure insurance for the protection of appellant's sub-

rogor; appellee breached this agreement and caused ap-

pellant's subrogor harm, for which recovery is sought.

5. The "indemnity" argument.

Instead of considering the theory upon which the

case was tried, Argument 4, supra, appellee becomes

needlessly perturbed and confused with problems eman-

ating from indemnity agreements which indemnify an

indemnitee for the consequences of his own negligence

(Br. 16-20).
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Appellant is not suing on a contract of indemnity.

Appellant is suing on a breach of contract by appellee

to procure insurance to protect appellant's subrogor

from harm flowing from the appellees' operations in and

about appellant's subrogor's building. Insurance always

protects parties from the consequences of their own neg-

ligence. That is the purpose of insurance. An insurance

policy is but a method of funding the consequences of

one's own negligent acts; it is not a "hold harmless

agreement" but rather is a fund to protect against po-

tential liability and allocate losses. Appellant does not

contend that appellee agreed to "hold appellant's sub-

rogor harmless"; rather, appellee agreed to put at the

disposal of the appellant's subrogor a fund to provide

this limited protection. To argue that Mrs. Relos was

barred because she did not use the words "hold harm-

less" (Br. 17) verges on sophistry.

Even assuming that discussion should be directed to

indemnity agreements which indemnify for the conse-

quences of one's own negligence, the governing recent

Oregon authorities recognize that a party may be in-

demnified for the consequences of his own negligence.

Unitec Corporation v. Beatty Saiway Scaffold Co.,

358 F.2d 470 (9th Cir. 1966); Southern Pacific Com-

pany v. Morrison-Knudsen Company, 216 Or. 398, 338

P.2d 665 (1959) ; Irish &' Swartz Stores v. First National

Bank of Eugene, 220 Or. 362, 349 P.2d 814 (1960)

(bailment)

.

Appellee would distinguish Unitec Corporation, su-

pra, on the ground that the contract there considered in-
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eluded an agreement to procure a policy of liability in-

surance (Br. 19). Appellant does not believe that this

Court would have reached a different result in Unitec

Corporation, supra, had the procurement of insurance

clause been absent. 358 F.2d at 479. Why did the pro-

posal submitted as a self-serving statement after the fact

by Mr. Hill contain no customary hold harmless agree-

ment? Obviously the insurance clause had been intended [

as a substitute for the hold harmless agreement.

Again assuming appellee's inaccurate major premise :

for sake of argument, is it reasonable to conclude in this

case that the appellant's subrogor was solely negligent

'

and solely caused Ramsey's injury? Appellant thinks

not; it is likely that the Postal Building was not negli-

gent at all and that the appellee's employee could have

been protected by the use of jacks, by proper examina-

tion and inspection of the premises, and by general look-

out for his own safety. The appellee held itself out as

an expert in the field of window washing and should be

bound by its "puffing" and asserted expertise.

A most interesting admission appears in appellee's

brief:

"All we have in this case is some 'puffing' by

Mr. Hill that he had a full insurance program

available. Indeed he had, * * *." (Br. 20)

Leaving aside any distinction between puffing and pre-

varication, apparently appellee admits that they had a

full insurance program available that coincided with the

"puffing" statement; if so, why was there allegedly no

coverage for appellant's subrogor?
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CONCLUSION

Appellant produced substantial evidence to require

a jury determination upon the existence and terms of

the contract to procure insurance in its favor by ap-

pellee. A factual controversy was presented which should

have been passed upon by the triers of fact and should

not have been removed from them by the direction of

the verdict.

Appellee's three hurdles disappear when this case is

considered in its proper perspective. Appellee's authority

for its contention that appellant is not entitled to sub-

rogation is inapposite. Appellee misunderstands appel-

lant's theory of recovery and refuses to limit the dis-

cussion to contracts to procure insurance. The second

and third "hurdles" become needlessly and hopelessly

confused with talk in terms of "indemnity" and "hold

harmless" agreements. Appellant contends that appellee

contracted to procure a contract of insurance which

would protect appellant from the consequences of the

operations by appellee in and about the Postal Build-

ing. To this extent, an "indemnity agreement" was in-

volved, since insurance contracts always involve an "in-

demnity agreement" between insurer and insured. Ap-

pellant was damaged by appellee's breach of this con-

tract to procure and provide insurance, and appellee

should respond in damages.

Respectfully submitted,

Mautz, Souther, Spaulding, Kinsey

& Williamson
James H. Bruce

Attorneys for Appellant

Maryland Casualty Company
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JURISDICTION OF THE DISTRICT COURT

Jurisdiction of the District Court is founded on Title

, United States Code, Section 1331 (28 U.S.C. §1331), in that

aintiff (hereafter referred to as "appellant") was at all requiS'

e times a resident of the State of California, and defendant

ereafter "appellee") v/as at all such times a resident of the

stern District of the State of Washington.

JURISDICTION OF THE COURT OF APPEALS

Jurisdiction of this Court is derived from Title 28,

ited States Code, Section 1291 (28 U.S.C. §1291).

.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

A. The Lanphier Action.

I
The action is for payment of a promissory note, of the

:.ue of $13,000.00. The note was delivered to General Petroleum

:-poration, a New York corporation (now Mobil Oil Company, a New

k corporation) on or about May 21, 1956, and bears a date of

i^ 16, 1956.

Sometime prior to May 12, 1962, the note was assigned to

. Lanphier (hereafter "Lanphier") by Mobil Oil Company. Lan-

:^er brought an action on the note on May 12, 1962 in the Superior

3rt of the State of California for the City and County of San

cncisco. That action was entitled 'h. N. LANPHIER vs. KWIK SHYNE

C. , a California corporation, BRUCE W. GILPIN, JAMES A. CAHILL"
I

"»' several Does, Number 521,586, (hereafter referred to as "the

:ginal Lanphier complaint.").
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The original Lanphier complaint alleged that there was

due and owing on the note the sum of $9,212.56. Under the

, attached to the original Lanphier complaint, appellee Bruce

ilpin (hereafter referred to as "Gilpin"), individually, and

Shyne Ltd. (hereafter, "Kwik Shyne") , by Gilpin and James A,

11 (hereafter, "Cahill") promised to pay the sum of $13,000.00

qual monthly instalments with interest, for one-hundred twenty

hs , or until on or about May 16, 1966. The original Lanphier

laint alleged that $9,212.56 was owing at the date of filing

complaint. Kwik Shyne was served with the summons and original

laint in the Lanphier action by service on the California

etary of State.

Subsequently, the default of all defendants was entered,

was later set aside by order of the court on November 28, 1962.

mended complaint was filed January 25, 1963 and service of

in and Cahill by publication was ordered on February 5, 1963.

Meanwhile, on January 30, 1963, Lanphier noticed the depo-

on of Gilpin. On February 19, 1963, Gilpin obtained an order

hing the notice, and ordering that the deposition not be taken.

1

Shyne entered its Answer and Cross -Cc»mplaint to the amended

iiier complaint on or about March 1, 1963. Previously, Kwik

2 had received two extensions of time, totalling 30 days, in

\i to plead to the complaint.

On March 8, 1963, Gilpin and Cahill, purporting to

r specially, received an order extending time to plead to
I

iimended Lanphier complaint to April 2, 1963.

i
- 2 -





On March 19, 1963, Lanphier filed her Answer to the

OSS-Complaint of Kwik Shyne. On April 2, 1963, the clerk of the

perior Court issued a Notice of Trial Setting. Counsel for

ik Shyne, by letter to the clerk, then requested that the ae-

on be taken off the trial calendar.

Special appearances and motions to quash service of

ranons on Gilpin and Cahill were set for April 9, 1963, but

re continued by stipulation of counsel to April 2A , 1963. On

ril 25, 1963, the court ordered the summonses served on Gilpin

d Cahill quashed.

On May 21, 1963, Lanphier noticed a motion for June 6,

53 (subsequently continued to June 20, 1963) for an order com-

lling the attendance of Gilpin at a deposition to be held in

.eland, California. On or aoout June 28, 1963, counsel for

fendants requested, and received, a continuance of the hearing

that motion to July 5, 19^3.

• On July 5, 19o3, Lanphier filed a Second Amended

aplaint adding a second cause of action for fraud. An order

Lowing the filing of that second amended complaint was granted

IJuly 11, 1963.

I
On July 11, 1963, the Superior Court ordered that the

;>osition of Gilpin be taken in Oakland, on condition that Lan-

er pay the round trip air fare for Gilpin from Seattle-Tacoma

:San Francisco, plus $25.00 per day expenses. The date of the

-osition was set by agreement for August 1, 1963, and subse-

^ntly continued, also by agreement, to August 30, 1963.

i
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On or about August 29, 1963, an amended order and stip-

tion permitting filing of the Second Amended Complaint was

ed, to supersede the prior order of July 11, 1963. On August

1963, the deposition of Gilpin was taken in Oakland, and Gil-

was served with the summons on the second amended complaint

that time.

On September 11, 1963, Kwik Shyne demurred and moved

strike the second amended complaint and the second cause of

ion thereof, and Gilpin moved to quash the above-mentioned

vice of summons. On October 23, 1963 the court ordered the

shing of the service on Gilpin which had occurred in Oakland

the previous August 30th.

Bo The FitzSimmons Action.

Unable, after the passage of almost eighteen months

the filing of three complaints, to obtain jurisdiction of

pin, and convinced that Kwik Shyne had no assets to satisfy

[

judgment on the note, Lanphier assigned the note and cause

^ction to appellant herein. The present action was brought,

pctober Ik, 196A , in the United States District Court for the

tern District of Washington, Northern Division. On December

.964, the appearance of Gilpin was entered by new attorneys.

On January 28, 19u5, a dismissal without prejudice of
I

: Lanphier action in the California Superior Court was entered.

r about December 29, 1964, Gilpin (hereafter referred to as

Ipin") moved to transfer the action from the Northern Division

- 4 -
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the Western District of Washington to the Southern Division.

the same time, appellee noticed motions to strike under Rule
1

f the Local Rules of the Western District (footnotes are in

Appendix, infra), and to dismiss on the ground of another

ion pending.

Apparently only the motion to transfer to the Southern

ision was ever heard by the District Court, and an order was

e on January 18, 1965 transferring the action. Appellee there-

er did not renew his motions to strike and to dismiss.

On February 11, 1966, appellant was notified by the

rk of the District Court that the court's motion to dismiss
2

2r its Local Rule 10 was set for March 7, 1966. Associated

isel appeared for appellant on that date. The Court, by minute

i2r, ordered the action dismissed. This appeal followed.

ISSUES TO BE DECIDED

The issues before this Court are:

1. Was it an abuse of discretion for the District

t to dismiss the action with prejudice?

2. Did the District Court abuse its discretion

jlismissing the action, with or without prejudice?

- SPECIFICATIONS OF ERROR

Appellant contends that the District Court made the •

Liowing errors

:

1. The District Court abused its discretion in

- 5 -
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issing the action with prejudice.

2. The District Court abused its discretion in

issing the action, whether with or without prejudice.

ARGUMENT

Summary of Argument

The District Court's scope of permissable discretion

tie area of dismissals for failure to prosecute pursuant to

1 rules is gauged by the same rules as are applicable to

41(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. Recent

s have stressed that the rights of litigants are to be con-

tred foremost by the District Courts, and that the "public

rest" of keeping dockets free from inertia is a consideration

idary in importance to those rights. The cases have empha-

i the factor, inter alia, of prejudice to the other party,

ir than solely the convenience of courts, as a more crucial

t!»rion in determining whether failure to take action during
I

Quired period of time should result in dismissal. Appellant

:j:nds that the history of the litigation between the parties

ie present action does not dictate a result so disastrous to

Jlant as the dismissal of his claim, and that, in any event,

ourt abused its discretion in dismissing the action with

i dice.

- 6 -





Argument

I

WHILE ORDINARILY A DISMISSAL FOR FAILURE TO PROSECUTE
WITH . PREJUDICE UNLESS THE COURT SPECIFIES OTHERWISE THE
MISSAL SHOULD BE WITHOUT PREJUDICE WHERE THE DEFENDANT'S
IONS REQUIRE PLAINTIFF TO TAKE ON EXTRAORDINARY AND ADDITIONAL
DENS IN ORDER THAT THE DISPOSITION OF THE ACTION MIGHT BE
EDITED.

Appellant is forced to assume that the Court's dis-

sal was with prejudice, and that the dismissal would operate as

adjudication on the merits. Federal Rules of Civil Procedure,

e 41(b); American National Bank & Trust Co. of Chicago v.

ted States , (App. D.C. 1944) 142 Fo 2d 571; Hicks v. Bekins

ing & Storage Co. , (C.C.Ao 9th, 1940), 115 F„ 2d 406. Under

3e circumstances, the District Court's action should be

(jtinized more closely than if the dismissal were without prej-
I

:;e.

I
Costello V. United States , 365 U^ S. 265, 81 S. Ct.

- (1961) , makes an important point with respect to the kinds

;ituations where policy dictates penalizing a plaintiff by

Siiissing with prejudice. The issue before the Supreme Court

S;whether a dismissal for failure of the plaintiff (the Govern-

!

i) to file an affidavit of good cause was a dismissal "for

: of jurisdiction" under Rule 41(b) and thus without preju-

- unless otherwise specified by the court. In holding in the

iprmative on that issue, the Court spoke of the several classes

O-tuations under Rule 41(b) where the dismissal, unless

urwise specified, was with prejudice, including motions to

- /
-





smiss for failure to prosecute:

"All of [these kinds of dismissals with pre-
judice] enumerated in Rule 41(b) .. .primarily
involve situations in which the defendant
must meet the merits because there is no
initial bar to the court's reaching them.
It is therefore logical that a dismissal on
one of these grounds should, unless the
court specifies otherwise, bar a subsequent
action. . . . Although a sua sponte dismissal
is not an enuir.erated ground, here too the def-
endant has been put to the trouble of pre-
paring his defense because there was no ini-
tial bar to the court's reaching the merits „"

365 U.S., 265, 286, 81 S. Ct. 534, 545.

In the present case, what appellant's "failure" in

:t amounted to was nothing more than his failure to request

:ry of default and default judgment, prior to appellee's notice

Imotions to transfer, strike and dismiss, on December 29, 1964.

I:er these motions were noticed, but not heard, appellee, having

[hnically satisfied the necessity of entering a responsive

jading, but without actually doing so, sat back and die" nothing,

I

avoided the necessity of having to meet the merits. What oc-

iired here is not the situation described in the Costello case,

lira, i. e., the situation where the plaintiff failed to do the

mgs that only he is in a position to do to bring the action

'trial. It seems clear that a dismissal with prejudice should

lult only in those situations where there is nothing left for the

jendant to do in order that the action might proceed to the next.

*ge, and the plaintiff fails to take the steps that, in the
i

'linary course of litigation, are his responsibility. In the

'Sent case, appellee effectively placed a double burden on appel-
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It. Appellant could not move toward bringing the case to trial

:ore appellee had entered a responsive pleading. Nor could

>ellant, after December 29, 1964, attempt to secure a default

Igment. The only course available to him after that date was

move for a summary judgment. But this would have placed on him tt

•den of a court appearance, at a distance of more than a '.

lusand miles from appellant's residence, merely to force appsl-

I to enter a full defense, which in the ordinary course of liti-

;ion should have been within twenty days after service of the

imons . Appellant's chances of obtaining a summary judgment at

t stage were slim at best, since the court was most likely to

use the summary judgment and merely require appellee to enter

responsive pleading within a prescribed time. That possibility

not trouble appellee, since eventually he would be required

lanswer in any event, unless the action were dismissed by ap-

ilant voluntarily. So appellee did just enough to avoid a

^ault, and in refusing to do more, placed an added, and unjusti-

burden on appellant to move to force appellee to defend the

m. Appellant contends that because of this added burden,
I

92ed on him not merely as a result of his own recalcitrance, but

kely by that of appellee, it was an abuse of discretion for

e court to dismiss the action with prejudice.

II

a dismissal with prejudice constitutes an abuse of
^:retion where the court moves to dismiss virtually simul-
^i:ousLY with the expiration of the permissible period of
t:TIVITY UNDER ITS LOCAL RULES, WHERE THE DELAYS ARE AT LEAST
':LY CAUSED BY THE DEFENDANT. AND WHERE DEFENDANT IS NOT PREJ-





The appellate cases concerned with dismissals for

lure to prosecute seen largely to have been decided on the

ticular circumstances presented in each case. See Link v.

ash Ro Co. . 370 U„S. 626, 82 S. Ct. 1386 (1962); Sandee Mfg.

V. Rohm & Haas Co. , (C„A. 111., 1962) 298 F. 2d Al. The im-

tant factors seem to be:

(a) The length of time elapsing between the end of

allowable period of inactivity under the local rule, and the

rt's motion to dismiss the action;

(b) Whether the plaintiff was clearly dilatory

shown by attempts by plaintiff to impede the progress of the

Lgation;

(c) Whether or not the party benefitting from a

inissal was himself prompt in pursuing the methods of disposi-

1 available to him; and

(d) The amount of ultimate prejudice to such

::y.

In Sykes v. United States (C.Ac 9, 1961) 290 F. 2d 555,

faction had been inactive for twenty-eight days beyond the local

's permissable period of of inactivity--six months, when the

L'n to dismiss was made. This Court held that the trial court

iabused its discretion in dismissing for want of prosecution,

i-e reserving the right of the lower court to reconsider the

:ion to dismiss if the defendant could show prejudice. In the

I

Jj^nt case, the trial court noticed its motion to dismiss on

) uary 11, 1966, one year and twenty-four days after the action

Ijbeen transferred to it. While it is true that the action had
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teen months previously, the action had been delayed approximately

ee weeks, between December 29, 19CA and January 25, 1965, as

esult of appellee's motion to transfer from the Northern Div-

on of the District, to the Southern Division.

That appelee has not been prejudiced by any delay in

secuting the action is clear. On the contrary, he has re-

ved nothing but benefit from appellant's inactivity, which

ctivity has contained a large measure of leniency with respect

requiring appellee to plead a defense. While the action was

ed on October 27, 1964, appelee failed to file any responsive

ading until December 29, 1964. Even then, appelee delayed an

p.tional twenty days after noticing his .motions to transfer,

tke and dismiss, before bringing the first mentioned motiqn to

laaring. Then, apparently satisfied with his success in trans-

icing the action to the Southern Division, he never brought on

I, hearing his motions to dismiss and to strike, and never filed

esponsive pleading of any kind thereafter. After a successful

:)le that appellant would not take his default without some

ipr notice, and later, when he had avoided that possibility

iiout having to answer, unwilling to bring the litigation to

^ stage where it would at least be at issue, he now seeks to
i

-lit from the work that the District Court has done for him.

This tactical maneuvering on the part of the appellee,

ising the inconvenience of an appearance in Washington by the
I

Pjllant to avoid the necessity of having to answer the claim,

- 11-





.d have required appellant to take additional steps, beyond

usual burden placed upon him as a plaintiff to move the

.gation to a conclusion. Appellee's actions are tantamount

lelibertate delay by him. Where there is delay by both parties,

where no prejudice results to the defendant from plaintiff's

y, the court should not dismiss the action. Wholesale Supply

V. South Chester Tube Co. , (E.D. Pa., 1957), 20 f'oR.D. 310 ;

pro Co. V. Fisher & Porter Co. ,(D.C. Pa., 1961), 29 F.R.D„

A dismissal where the plaintiff was not alone at fault is

buse of discretion. Carnegie National Bank v. City of Wolf

X (CCA. 9, 1940), 111 F. 2d 569; see also International Rar -

er Co. V. Rockwell Spring & Axle Co. , (CA<, 111., 1964) 339

d 949 (defendant's failure to answer complaint, inter alia,

dismissal unjustified). y

"Dismissal is a harsh sanction and should be resorted

nly in extreme cases,," Meeker v. Rizley , (CA. 10, 1963) 324

d 269. In Alamance Industries, Inc. v. Filene's , (C„A. 1, 1961)

F. 2d 142, cert. den. 368 U.So 831, 82 S. Ct. 53 (1961), the

t commented:

"Apparently what principally lay behind the
district court's determination to try the
case is to be found in its remark made at
the first hearing, that the 'public in-
terest' in not having a case lie on its
docket for fourteen months must control
'regardless of the interest of the parties.'
We cannot accept that statement either as
the formulation of a generally applicable
principle or as a proper criterion for
the disposition of this particular case.
Courts exist to serve the parties, and not
to serve themselves, or to present a

record with respect to dispatch of busi-
ness. Complaints heard as to the law's
delays arise because the delay has in-





For the court to consider expedition
for its own sake 'regardless of the
litigants is to emphasize secondary con-
seiderations over primary." 291 F. 2d
1A2, U;5.

In summary, appellant contends that his rights have been

regarded in the District Court's zeal to keep a 'clean'

endar. The history of the litigation between the parties

eto, beginning with the Lanphier action, is not one of con-

:it and continuing delays by appellant. The California state

trt action failed to be concluded only because of appellee's

^essful evasion of that court's jurisdiction. Appellant,

1 pursuing the claim in a forum that gave no justification

I

any claim of inconvenience to appellee, but instead, placed

lirden of distance on appellant, was frustrated by a different

::ic to avoid the claim: for instead of meeting appellant's

-.m on the merits, appellee sought to, and did, use to his

^ntage the fact that it would be burdensome for appellant
I

jiave to appear in the Washington District Court. Appellee

aefore attempted to force the necessity for such an appear-

: by noticing what would have been responsive pleadings,

:{pt for the fact that appellee never brought them on for a

I

ijing. While the burden is properly on the plaintiff to

i

)iecute the action to a conclusion, that burden should not be
1

i|d to by the evasiveness of the defendant in meeting his

rjen of answering, the claim, particularly when the result of

i-lng to meet such additional burden is dismissal with prejudice.

i
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In view of the foregoing circumstances, not only was it

abuse of discretion for the trial court to dismiss with pre-

dice, but for the court to dismiss at all, since defendant

aefitted from the delay, the court's local rule had been violated

ly by a matter of less than one month, and the delay had been

used at least partly by the actions of appellee.

Appellant urges that the judgment of dismissal.be

/ersed.

:ed: July 5, 1966.

Respectfully submitted,

FITZSIMMONS AND PETRI

S

By
Anthony W, Hawthorne

Attorneys for Plaintiff and
Appellant Edward R„ FitzSimmons
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APPENDIX

Rule 5 of the General Rules, United States District

Jourt for the Western District of Washington, is now

Jeneral Rule 2(d):

"Any member in good standing of the bar of any
court of the United States, or of the highest
court of any other state, or of any organized
territory of the United States, may be per-
mitted upon application to appear and parti-
cipate in a particular case if there shall be
joined of record in such appearance an assoc-
iate attorney having an office in this District
and admitted to practice in this Court who
shall sign all pleadings prior to filing and
otherwise comply with Rule 4(a) hereof.

I

. Rule 10 of the Civil Rules, United States District

curt for the Western District of Washington, is as

ollows:

"All cases that have been pending in this Court
for more than one year without any proceeding
of record having been taken may be dismissed
by the Court on its own motion for want of
prosecution."

_ 1 ^ _





CERTIFICATION

I, Anthony W. Hawthorne, certify that in connec-

tion with the preparation of this brief, I have examined

^ules 18 and 19 of the United States Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit, and that, in my opinion, the foregoing

Drief is in full compliance with those rules.

Anthony W. Hawthorne
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JURISDICTION OF THE DISTRICT COURT

Jurisdiction of the District Court is founded on Title

:8, United States Code, Section 1331 (28 U.S.C. i 1331), in that

ilaintiff (hereafter referred to as "appellant") was at all requisite

imes a resident of the State of California, and defendant (hereafter

appellee") was at all such times a resident of the Western District

f the State of Washington.

JURISDICTION OF THE COURT OF APPEALS

Jurisdiction of tliis Court is derived from Title 28, United States

;ode. Section 1291 (28 U.S.C. i 1291).

c.





STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This action is based on a promissory note which was executed on

•r about May 16, 1956. The complaint in this action was signed on

august 24, 1964, and filed in the United States District Court for the

;restern District of Washington, Northern Division, on October 27, 1964,

nd served on the defendant, BRUCE GILPIN, on November 16, 1964.

)n December 4, 1964, your author filed a duplicate original Notice of

.ppearance with the Clerk of the District Court in Seattle, Washington.

)n same day, a letter was written to Fitzsimmons and Petris, attorneys

)r the plaintiff, enclosing the original and one copy of the Notice of

1

[ppearance, and requesting them to acknowledge service on the original
i

pd return it to my office for filing. This letter was never answered, nor

as the Notice of Appearance ever returned.

On Decenaber 29, 1964, your author filed a motion asking for

ilternative relief.

1 (1) To transfer the action to the Southern Division based on the

!

ifesidence of the defendant.

(2) To dismiss the action on the grounds that another action was

[landing on the same subject matter.

(3) To strike all pleadings of the plaintiff for his failure to associate

iiJsident counsel within ten days of the filing of the suit as required by Local

! 1
i'ule 5 (footnotes in appendix) of the District Court for the Western District

<^ Washington.



I



On this same day, December 29, 1964, I wrote to Fitzsimmons and

i

IPetris, noticing this motion for January 11, 1965. This motion was heard

I

Dn January 18, 1965 and even though no one appeared on behalf of the

blaintiff, the Court granted only the motion to transfer the action to the

Southern Division, but without prejudice to the defendant's motion to

[strike the pleadings and to dismiss the action, giving the plaintiff

i

1

idditional time in which to comply with Local Rule 5 . On March 1, 1965,

he Clerk of the District Court advised Fitzsimmons and Petris of the

ction of the Court, Again nothing was ever heard from them.

On February 10, 1966, fifteen and one-half months after the complaint

lad been filed, the Clerk of the District Court, Southern Division, advised

1.11 parties that the cause was to be placed on the court calendar for March 7,

! 2
1 966, under Local Rule 10 for dismissal for want of prosecution. On

!

'/larch 4, 1966, Conrad, Kane and Vandeburg filed their notice of association

|s local counsel in the action. On March 7, 1966, the motion to dismiss

as argued by both sides, the Court listened to the arguments, examined

le affidavit of the plaintiff, E. R. Fitzsimmons, found that no good cause

r adequate explanation for the delay existed, and dismissed the action by

linute order. This appeal followed.

ISSUE TO BE DECIDED

The only issue before this Court is: Was it an abuse of discretion

r the District Court to dismiss the action on its own motion?





ARGUMENT

The District Court's authority to dismiss a case where the plaintiff

IS failed to prosecute the action with reasonable diligence is found in

2
ule 41(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, and Rule 10 of the

ivil Rules of United States District Court for the Western District of

ashington, and is also an inherent power of the said Court. In Shotkin v.

estinghouse Electric and Manufacturing Company, (C. A. Colo., 1948)

)9 F. 2d 825, 826, the Court said:

"A District Court of the United States is vested with
power to dism.iss an action for failure of the plaintiff

to prosecute it with reasonable diligence. The power
is inherent and independent of any statute or rule.

And where plaintiff has failed to prosecute the action

with reasonable diligence. Court may dismiss it on
miotion of the defendant or on its own motion "

The appellant in his brief has attempted to bring before this Court

cts outside the record, by what he refers to as the "Lanphier Action. "

lis is not only undesirable, but is not authorized. See Russell v.

inningham. (C. C.A. 9, 1956) 233 F. 2d 806, 809, where the Court said:

"Both parties in their brief seek to bring before this

j

Court fatts outside the record made below, but such
an attempt to enlarge the record must be rejected. . .

"

The only facts material to decide the issue in this case are the facts

jntained in the record. An examination of that record reveals the total

isregard by appellant of the rules of not only the United States District

Jurt, but also of this Honorable Court -- specifically (Tr.l) letter from

Svtrict Court Clerk to Fitzsimmions and Petris requesting cost bond of non-





•esidents dated 9/2/64; (Tr. 2) letter from District Court Clerk to FitzsimmoriE

,nd Petris advising non-resident cost bond not yet received dated 10/5/64;

Tr. 3) letter from District Court Clerk to Fitzsimmons and Petris returning

omplaint for failure to file non-resident cost bond dated 10/16/64; (Tr. 106)

etter from Circuit Court of Appeals Clerk to Fitzsimmons and Petris

dvising record on appeal not transmitted if designation of record not

Lied dated 4/25/66.

To further demtonstrate the lack of interest the appellant had in

rosecuting his lawsuit, I refer to the motion to set aside order of dismissal,

dth affidavits of Yancey Reser and William D. Gowans, and especially

.16 affidavit of James K. Moore (which are Tr. 65, 77 and 83).

I

I quote from the affidavit of James K. Moore on the second page:

1 "On January 20, 1964, I wrote a letter to Mr. Fitzsimmons
copy of which is attached as Exhibit A. I received no

1

answer to this letter,
!

On February 18, 1964, I received a verbal report of

the status of the account through Mr, R, H, Buchanan,
one of the corporation attorneys for Sony-Mobil Oil

Company, Inc. , stating that Mr. Fitzsimmons expects
to get a judgment and full recovery within six months.

On Septenaber 21, 1964, I wrote a letter to Mr. Fitzsimmons,
a copy of which is attached as Exhibit B. I received no
answer to this letter.

On October 27, 1964, I sent a tracer to Mr, Fitzsimmons,
a copy of which is attached as Exhibit C. I received no
answer to this tracer.

On November 11, 1964, I again wrote to Mr. Fitzsimmons,
a copy of which letter is attached as Exhibit D, I received
no answer to this letter.





On November 30, 1964, I telegraphed to Mr. Fitzsimmons
a copy of which telegram is attached as Exhibit E. I re-
ceived a letter from. Mr, Fitzsimmions' secretary dated
November 30, 1964, a copy of which is attached as

Exhibit F, stating in effect that Mr. Fitzsimmons was
out of the country.

On March 17, 1965, I wrote a tracer to Mr. Fitzsimmons ,

a copy of which is attached as Exhibit G. I received no
ariswer to this tracer.

On March 31, 1955, I sent a certified mail letter to Mr.
Fitzsimmons, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit H.

Again I received no answer.

On July 27, 1965, I telephoned Mr. Fitzsimmons at his

office in Oakland, and he informed m.e that the documents
were in the Court in the State of Washington and promised
to send us a full report.

To the date of this affidavit, I have never received any
reports from Mr. Fitzsimmons as to the status of the

case, and have no personal knowledge of the status of

any lawsuits instituted by Mr. Fitzsimmons in regard
to this matter.

Some date prior to December 8, 1965, I consulted with

our house counsel, Mr. Williarai D. Gowans, regarding
the m.atter of determining the status of the collection

suit or suits filed by Mr. Fitzsimmons, after which I

left the m.atter and files in the hands of Mr. Gowans for

his further checking. I know that Mr. Gowans wrote Mr.
. Fitzsimmons on December 9, 1965, but has never
I received from Mr. Fitzsimmons any written reply or

report on the status of any lawsuits filed by Mr. Fitzsimmons,

The above is true and correct to the best of my knowledge
and recollection.

(Signed) James K. Moore,"

This case is clearly not one of ordinary neglect on me part of the

i-pellant to prosecute the action in the District Court, but is one of gross





)use at every stag'e of the proceedings. The note itself, which was the

ibject matter of the action in the lower Court, is itself over ten years

d and the subject of prior litigation. In this regard, see Salmon v. City

Stuart, Florida, (C.A.. Fla. 1952) 194 F. 2d 1004, where the Court said:

"When it comes to the merits though, we think it

plain that the order should be affirmed. Putting
to one side that what is being litigated here is

old straw which has been thrice threshed, or
sought to be threshed, in the Cour, .., it stands
undisputed that, following the filing of this the

third suit, no action was taken by the plaintiffs

for one year and three months. Matters standing
thus, the Court was fully authorized to dismiss
the action. The Order of Dismissal is affirmed. ..."

The appellant further in his brief suggests that the burden to push the

atter to a final determination somehow rests upon the defendant. This is

t only a preposterous proposition, but in addition, the record discloses

d the defendant renoted this motion to strike the plaintiff's pleadings,

2 said m^otion would almost certainly have been granted. For although

Dtion was filed December 29, 1964 under Local Rule 5 of tlie United

3.tes District Court for the Western District of Washington, the plaintiff

d not associate local counsel until March 4, 1966, which is a period of

Iter than fourteen months, and in addition, is almost a month from

i5 date that the Clerk of the District Court wrote to the plaintiff advising

lit the cause was to be placed on the Court calendar on March 7 for

jsmissal under local Rule 10^ (Tr. 32). In this regard, see Hicks v.
I

I

j

<inG Movin? and Storage Co. , et al, (CCA. 9, 1940) 115 F. 2d 406,

'409, when this Court said:





"This power to dismiss for want of prosecution may-

be exercised by the Court on its own motion though
no action to secure such result be taken by the

defendant, (citing cases) Moreover, an order of

dismissal m.ay be granted, notwithstanding the

plaintiff has been stirred into action by the intending

dismissal, for subsequent diligence is no excuse for

past negligence, (citing cases)

The duty rests upon the plaintiff at every stage of

the proceeding to use diligence to expedite his

c-se to a final determination, and unless it is

m.ade to appear that there has been a gross abuse
of discretion on the part of the trial court in dis-

missing the action for lack of prosecution, its

decision will not be disturbed on appeal "

Appellant further complains that the fact that he brought the action

L the United States District Court for the Western District of Washington,

vhich was obviously the proper forum "under the circumstances) placed a

Lirden of distance on the appellant, and that the appellee's motion was

Dme kind of frustrating tactic to put an additional burden on appellant

) appear in the Washington District Court. This argument overlooks

free significant facts

:

i

I
(1) The appellant chose the forum in which to proceed and

(2) Had appellant, conaplied with Local Rule 5 and associated

leal counsel, he would not have only avoided the necessity of traveling to

t|3 Washington District Court, but would have provided a local representa-

I

t;'e that appellee could serve papers on and otherwise communicate with.

- 7 -





(3) That the District Court, and not the appellee, made the

aotion to dismiss for failure to prosecute.

Tlie c^ppellant further charges the appellee with delay. This is not

rue, and the record so discloses. The Summons and Complaint were

erved on November 16, 1964 (Tr. 13). Appellant was retained on

)ecember -i, 1934, and filed his Notice of Appearance on that date (Tr. 14).

)n December 2S, 1964, he filed a Motion to Transfer, Strike and Dismiss.

'his motion was noticed immediately and was called for hearing on the

irst available motion day, which was January 11, 1965. This motion

'as continued by the Clerk until January 18, 1965, at which time it was

eard, as previously set forth. The Honorable Judge Beeks of the

iistrict Court granted the Motion to Transfer, and continued the Motion

D Strike and Dismiiss in an act of indulgence toward the appellant. Had

:e appellant at this juncture complied with the rules -- that is to say,

ppointed a local representative as required under Local Rule 5 who

ould have advised appellee that the action pending in California had

1

pen dismissed, the motion would have then been academic, and appellant

jould have been in a position to denaand an answer and note the matter

pwn for trial. In this regard, no request, demand or otherwise has

]

(|^er been made of appellee to answer or note the motion. As a matter
I

I,

(j
fact, the only letter that has been received by the appellee from the

i

^>?ellant's attorney to date was received on June 24, 1966.





There isn't any question, and the record in this case cler.rly

smonstrates that the appellant was not only guilty of gross negligence,

ad without an c.dequate explanation for the delay, but is also guilty of

total disregard of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, as well as

.e Local Rules of the United States District Court, and that the appellant

la to be prejudiced by the long delay. In this regard, see William R.

as 5 ell V. William Cunningham , Supra', at page 810:

"The facts supported by the record are that the

case had been pending for fifteen months with
little action on the part of the appellant to bring
it to trial, and two continuances had been
granted. '^"^"i^^^i^'i^Appsllant argues that on the

facts supported by the evidence in the record it

was a 'gross abuse of discretion' to deny a

continuance or a dismissal without prejudice. ':":'=*>i'

However, defendants should not be kept with

lawsuits hanging over their heads for lGn2;

periods of tim.e as litigation expenses mount.
(Emphasis supplied. ) The Courts also have an
obligation to other litigants to keep their calendars
clear as was pointed out in Boling v. United States,

(CCA. 9) 231 F. 2d 926, 927. 'One of the causes
of the congestion of the trial dockets is the failure

I
of the courts to exercise the authority vested in

them, thus to dispose of cases which are shaky or
unfounded, but which are held on the calendar for

j

nuisance value. Since trial judges are hesitant

to dismiss such causes of their own motion, for

I fear of injustice z-^ some litigant, the device of

placing cases in which no action has been taken
for a considerable time on a docket for dismissal,

absent a showing of adequate explanation for delay,

has been used. But even this palliative for the

admitted evil has been of little avail, because of

the innate hesitancy mentioned above. Because of

this fact, an order of dismissal for failure to

prosecute will never be set aside unless there

has been an abuse of discretion and, of course,
such a si'vuation is never presumed.

'





continuances and no sign that the appellant was
any nearer to trial in August of 1955 than he was
in April of that year or in June of the previous
year at the tinae of the pre-trial oraer. While the

case involves nowhere near the abuses found in the

typical situation where F.R. C. P. 41(b) is invoked
it cannot be said that the District Court abused
its discretion without resorting to contentions of

fact not found in the record "

In summary, the burden rests upon the plaintiff at every stage of

.:e proceedings to prosecute his action with diligence. Upon his failure

D do so, under the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, the Local Rules

nd the iriherent powers of the District Court, his case maybe dismissed,

nd unless he can shov/ good cause or has an adequate explanation for

.:e delay, the Court is within its authority in dismissing the same. In

nis case, not only do we have a considerable length of time -- fifteen

pd a haK monuis -- but we have total inaction on the part of the appellant

Ith absolu'cely no excuse whatsoever on the part of the appellant, except

prhaps the affidavit of Edward R. Fitzsimrnons. (See Tr. 37 and 41.

)

I light of the foregoing, it m.ust be presum.ed that the appellee was

rejudiced by the actions of the appellant and that the lower Court did

rpt abuse its discretion in dismissing the action. See Link v. Wabash,

n F. 2d 542, Affirmed 370 U. S. 623, 8 L. Ed. 2d 734:

"Courts may exercise their inherent powers and
invoke dism.issal as a sanction in situations involving

disregard 'oy parties of orders, rules or settings. ..."

Appellee urges that the judgment of dismissal be affirmed.

J
-'ted: July 26, IS 53

Respectfully submitted.

mClA/.RDl & C^ApLI/.RDI . ,





APPENDIX

Rule 5 of the Ger.eral Rules, United States District Court for the

jstern District of Washington:

"If a party in any civil cause does not appear in

proper .erson, and if the attorney appearing for

£:.ch party does not maintain an office within this

state, there shall be joined of record in such
appearance, within ten (10) days thereafter,

an associate attorney having an office in this

District and admitted to practice in this Court;
in default of which, all pleadings filed in behalf
of such party m.ay be stricken out by the Court,
eitlier upon naotion or it's own initiative. The
appearance of such associate attorney shall state

his office address in this ^tate and service of all

papers at such office shall have the same effect as

if such office address were that of the attorney

originally appearing. "

le 5 of -:he General Rules is now General Rule 2(d).

Rule IC of -che Civil Rules, United States District Court for the

:Stern District of Washington, is as follows;

"All cases that have been pending in this Court
for more than one year without any pr^oceeding

I of record having been taken may be aismissed

I

by the Court on its own motion for want of

prosecution. "
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ARGUMENT

Appellee complains of appellant's recital of the

Lstody of the litigation on the note that is the subject of

lis action, and then goes on in his Answering Brief to cite

)rrespondence from this Court to Appellant concerning admini-

;rative matters in the perfecting of this appeal, and

'fidavits of a person not a party to this appeal (Appellee's

iswering Brief, pp. 3-5). While these matters may technically

I part of the record on appeal, they are immaterial to the

isues on this appeal, and could only have been inserted by

ipellee's counsel for the purpose of prejudicing Appellant

ifore this Court. The only issues in this appeal are:

.) Whether the District Court abused its discretion in

amissing this action with prejudice; and (2) Whether that

urt abused its discretion in dismissing the action, with

! Without prejudice.

It is true, as Appellee's brief notes (p. 6), that

e note that is the subject of the present action has been the

pject of prior actions. But it is not true that the merits

ire been "threshed" in other courts. As shown in Appellant's

fining Brief, the history of the litigation on this note is
I

^ of plaintiff's long and arduous pursuit of a Judgment,

ustrated by Appellee's all too successful evasive tactics.

As also noted in Appellant's Opening Brief, the recent

- 1 -





.ses concerned with dismissals for want of prosecution have

ated the requirement of finding prejudice to the defendant

id absence of stalling tactics on his part. (See cases cited

Appellant's Opening Brief, page 12 i) The statement in

pellee's Brief (p. 10) that "it must be presumed that appellee

s prejudiced by the actions of the appellant" is wholly

thout substantiation either as a rule of law or as a factual

nclusion. The issue of prejudice was not discussed in Link v.

bash , 291 F. 2d 5^2 (1961), affirmed 370 U.S. 626, 8 L. Ed. 2d

4, cited by Appellee as authority for this "presumption"

ppellee's Brief, p. 10). On the contrary, the facts here

ow nothing in the way of prejudice to Appellee. Appellee

uld have avoided having a lawsuit hanging over his head for'

long period by entering a defense on the merits either in
i

is Lanphier action, or at any time in this action. If the

ition on the note is meritorious, then indeed there would be

ijjudice to Appellee; but it is inconceivable that where

pellee contrives to avoid determination on the merits by

6'using even to file a defensive pleading he is "prejudiced"

y Appellant's failure to force such a response.

This is clearly an instance where the defendant,

swell as the plaintiff, has been responsible for the delay

riprosecution of the action. Thus, under the cases cited at

ae 12 of Appellant's Opening Brief, the present case is one

nwhich dismissal by the District Court constituted an abuse

fits .discretion, and the Judgment of dismissal should be





^versed.

DATED: September 21, 1966

Respectfully submitted,

PITZSIMMONS AND PETRIS

Anthony! W. Hawthorne

Attorneys for Plaintiff and
Appellant EDWARD R. PITZSIMMONS
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United States Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

No. 21037

University Properties, Inc.

Petitioner,

V,

Commissioner of Internal Revenue,

Respondent.

PETITION TO REVIEW A DECISION OF
THE TAX COURT OF THE UNITED STATES

OPENING BRIEF OF PETITIONER

Jurisdictional Statement

This action was commenced by the petitioner, Univer-

sity Properties, Inc., against the respondent, the Commis-

sioner of Internal Revenue, in the Tax Court of the United

States upon a petition for redetermination of asserted de-

ficiencies of $40,114.29 and $38,573.53 in petitioner's

income taxes for its fiscal years ended October 31, 1961

and October 31, 1962, respectively. (R-1-11)

Following a decision and order by the Tax Court af-

firming the said deficiencies, (R-38) a petition for re-

view thereof by the Ninth Circuit was filed. (R-39-42)

The following citation contains reference to the stat-

utory authority believed by petitioner to sustain the ini-

tial jurisdiction of the Tax Court and the jurisdiction to

review by this court:



"This is a petition for review or a Tax Court de-

cision sustaining the Commissioner's determination

of deficiency in income taxes of the petitioner , . .

Both the Tax Court and this court have jurisdiction.

26 U.S.C. (IRC, 1939) § 1141(a); (IRC, 1954)
§7482(a)."

Holtz V. Commissioner of Internal Revenue, 268
F.2d 865, 866, 867 (9th Cir., 1958).

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND QUESTIONS
PRESENTED

General Background

Respondent determined deficiencies in petitioner's in-

come taxes for its fiscal years ended October 31, 1961

and October 31, 1962 in the respective amounts of $40,-

114.29 and $38,573.53. These asserted deficiencies re-

sulted from the disallowance by the respondent of certain

$80,000 payments made by petitioner to its lessor, the

University of Washington, pursuant to a supplemental

lease agreement dated February 5, 1958 wherein such

payments were referred to as "additional rentals." (Jt.

Ex. 4-D)

Petitioner contends that the said payments were cur-

rent rents or, alternatively, ordinary and necessary busi-

ness expenses and deductible in full for the years in which

paid. The respondent contends that said payments were

capital expenditures for the acquisition of certain prop-

erty added to petitioner's leasehold by the said supple-

mental lease agreement, or were advance rentals, to be

deducted ratably over the remaining term of the lease.

Petitioner, a private corporation, was incorporated un-

der the laws of the state of Delaware on July 6, 1953.
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Its principal offices are located in Seattle, Washington.

(R-19) Petitioners income tax returns for the years here

in question were filed with the District Director of In-

ternal Revenue, Tacoma, Washington. (R-19) Copies of

said returns appear as Joint Exhibits 2-A and 2-B.

The Original Lease

On July 18, 1953, petitioner entered into a lease

agreement with the University of Washington, lessor, de-

mising a portion of a tract located in the heart of down-

town Seattle to petitioner for a term of 35 years from

November 1, 1954. (R-21; Jt. Ex. 3-C) Said lease pro-

vided for fixed rents to be paid for the lease years com-

mencing November 1, 1954, November 1, 1955, No-

vember 1, 1956 and November 1, 1957 of $1,600,000,

$1,700,000, $1,700,000, and $1,800,000, respectively.

Thereafter, for each succeeding fiscal year a percentage

rent was to be paid by petitioner on the total gross rental

income from the demised premises. This amount had

reference to the gross rental income collected by pe-

titioner from tenants in the operation of the premises.

(R-21)

Under the said percentage rental provisions, a mini-

mum guaranteed rent of $1,000,000 per year was reserved.

This minimum rental was subject to abatement in the

event that, for any reason other than the default of the

lessee, any portion of the demised premises should not

be capable of being occupied, operated or used by the

lessee. In such event, the minimum rent was to be re-

duced for the period of time such space remained un-

tenantable in the amount which would have been lessor's

percentage rental for the untenantable space, if such space
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had been tenantable. (Ex. 3-C, pp. 7, 8) -

Petitioner was obligated by said lease to operate the

various structures and buildings then or thereafter con-

structed on the demised premises in such a manner as

not to injure the reputation thereof and to maintain the

demised premises and area as a center of store and office

buildings of the first class in the city of Seattle. (Ex.

3-C, p. 8)

The original lease also contained a provision for a new

building fund under which the lessee agreed to study

from time to time the desirability and economic necessity

for the construction of new buildings and capital altera-

tions and to make recommendations to the lessor with

reference thereto. The lessor had the right to determine

what buildings and capital improvements would be made

and the lessee would be responsible for the construction

of such buildings and improvements with the right to be

reimbursed from the new building fund for the cost

thereof. (Ex. 3-C, p. 16)

The Post Office Tract Acquisition

On January 29, 1958 petitioner's lessor acquired from

the United States, a parcel of land some 4,400 sq. ft.

in area which formerly comprised a part of a United

States Post Office site. This 4,400 sq. ft. parcel, hereinafter

referred to as the Post Office tract, abutted the premises

demised under the lease of July 18, 1953 to petitioner.

As consideration for the Post Office tract, petitioner's

lessor agreed to demolish the old Post Office Building

and to construct a new Post Office Building on the part

of the site retained by the Federal government. (R-21,

22)
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The Douglas Building, smallest and least profitable

of the buildings located on the premises demised under

the original lease occupied the site adjacent to the Post

Office tract. It was decided by the University of Wash-

ington and petitioner that the Douglas Building would be

demolished and a new building, to be known as the

Washington Building, would be constructed on the site

of the Douglas Building as expanded by the Post Office

tract. (R-22)

On February 5, 1958, a supplemental lease agreement

between the University of Washington and petitioner

added the Post Office tract to the property covered under

the original lease. (Jt. Ex. 4-D) The supplemental lease

agreement recited the purpose of said agreement as being

to preserve and improve the status of the premises pre-

viously demised to petitioner as a business center of the

first class by the replacement of the Douglas Building

with a new building to be located on the Douglas Build-

ing site enlarged by the addition of the adjoining Post

Office tract. (Jt. Ex. 4-D, p. 1)

The consideration for the inclusion of the Post Office

tract property into petitioner's leasehold was stated in

said supplemental lease agreement to be petitioner's as-

sumption of its lessor's undertakings and agreements with

respect to the construction of the new Post Office build-

ing for the United States of America on the portion of

the Post Office site retained by the United States. (Jt.

Ex. 4-D, p. 2)

It was separately stated in said supplemental lease

agreement that petitioner, lessee, would pay to the lessor

the sum of $80,000 on November 1, 1960; and the sum

of $80,000 on November 1, 1961; and the sum of $80,000
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on November 1, 1962, as additional rentals over and

above all rentals provided for under the terms of the

original lease. (Jt. Ex. 4-D, p. 3)

Construction of the Supplemental Lease Agreement

Petitioner and its lessor each treated the payments here

involved as current rent payments in their respective

books of account. ( R-22

)

The supplemental lease agreement provided that as to

any new structure located on the Post Office tract, such

structure would be subject in all respects to the rights and

obligations of the parties thereto as set forth in the orig-

inal lease with respect to the original structures upon

the property demised under the said original lease. (Jt.

Ex. 4-D, p. 3) Thus, the original lease and the supple-

mental lease agreement were to be construed together

to aiTive at a determination of the rights and obligations

of the parties thereto.

In its Opinion, the Tax Court concluded that the desig-

nation by the parties to the supplemental lease agreement

of the payments in question as rentals was not controlling.

(R-32)

The Tax Court further inferred that during the period in

question, the Douglas Building would be in the process of

destruction and the Washington Building in the process of

construction and the site, therefore, nonincome producing

(R-33) In fact, the Washington Building was formally

opened for occupancy on June 2, 1960. (R-22) The Tax

Court further inferred that the rent abatement provision of

the original lease would be applicable to the period in

question so that "it would seem logical that instead of

paying additional rent for these three years, petitioner's
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ent would have been reduced while the property was

ion-income producing, rather than increased." (R-34)

'etitioner made rent payments for the years here in ques-

ion which exceeded the one million dollar minimum

/early rental guaranteed in the original lease (Jt. Ex. 1-A,

3. 1 and 2-B, p. 1), which payments rendered said rent

ibatement provision inapplicable to said years.

The Tax Court relied principally on such cases as Main

k McKinney Building Co. v. Commissioner, 113 F.2d 81

md Southwestern Hotel Co. v. United States, 115 F.2d

386 to conclude that the payments here in question could

)e construed as advance rentals. (R-32, 33)

Deductibility of Payments as Ordinary and
Necessary Business Expenses

Petitioner argued in the alternative that the payments

n question should be deductible as ordinary and neces-

;ary business expenses. The supplemental lease agreement

lemonstrated the obligation of petitioner to maintain the

demised premises, including that portion upon which the

Douglas Building was located as a center of store and

>ffice buildings of the first class and that in order to

iccomplish that purpose to preserve and improve the

>tatus of the tract as a business center of the first class,

i new building should be located on the site formerly

)ccupied by the Douglas Building, as enlarged by the

addition of the Post Office tract. (Jt. Ex. 4-D, p. 1) The

Fax Court concluded that assuming that the $80,000 pay-

nents were made for the acquisition by petitioner of

:he Post Office tract portion of its leasehold, such pay-

nents were not ordinary and necessary business expenses

)f the petitioner for the reason that such expenses were
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not incurred in the everyday operation of petitioner's

business and that the same were not required to be made.

(R-36)

QUESTIONS PRESENTED

On the basis of the above and foregoing statement of

the case, the following questions are presented:

1. Did the Tax Court err in refusing to accept the char-

acterization of the payments in question of the parties

to the supplemental lease agreement as current rentals?

2. Did the Tax Court err in its tacit finding that the

premises in question would be non-income producing dur-

ing the fiscal years ended Oct. 31, 1961 and Oct. 31, 1962,

here involved due to the destruction of the Douglas Build-

ing and the construction of the Washington Building?

3. Did the Tax Court err in inferring that the rent abate-

ment provision of the original lease would be applicable

to the premises in question during the periods here in

question?

4. Did the Tax Court err in relying on the Main & Mc- \

Kinney Bank Building and the Southwestern Hotel Com-

pany cases, supra, in concluding that the designation of

the payments by the parties as current rentals could be

disregarded?

5. Did the Tax Comt fail to apply the appropriate

legal standard to the facts of this case in order to deter-

mine whether the payments in question were ordinary

and necessary business expenses under 26 U.S.C.A. §162

(a),Int. Rev. Code of 1954?
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SPECIFICATIONS OF ERROR

1. The Tax Court erred in concluding that the payments

were advance rentals or capital expenditures. (R-32)

2. The Tax Court erred in disregarding the parties' char-

acterization of the payments as current rentals. (R-32)

3. The Tax Court erred in considering the rent abatement

clause of the original lease in construing the supple-

mental lease agreement. ( R-33, 34

)

4. The Tax Court eiTed in its finding that the Douglas

Building site as enlarged by the Post Office tract was

non-income producing during the fiscal years in ques-

tion. (R-33, 34)

5. The Tax Court erred in relying on cases cited at R-

32, 23 to support its conclusion that the payments here

in question were advance rentals or capital expenditures.

6. The Tax Court erred in its tacit conclusion of law

that sums paid for untenantable property cannot be con-

sidered current rents.

7. The Tax Court erred in concluding that an "ordinary

and necessary" business expense under 26 U.S.C. §162

is one which is required and made in the everyday opera-

tion of a taxpayer's business. ( R-36)

8. The Tax Court erred in concluding that the payments

herein were not ordinary and necessary business ex-

penses.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

I. The Tax Court erred in concluding that the payments

were not current rentals.
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A. The Tax Court erred in disregarding the purpose

of the payments as current rentals.

B. The Tax Court's imphed finding that the rent abate-

ment clause was applicable to the tiansaction in question

is clearly erroneous.

C. The Tax Court erred in its tacit conclusion of law

that sums paid for untenantable property cannot be con-

sidered current rents.

D. Cases cited by the Tax Court do not support its con-

clusions that the payments were advance rentals or cap-

ital expenditures.

E. This court's review is not limited by the "clearly

erroneous " rule.

II. The Tax Court erred in concluding that the $80,000

payments were not deductible as ordinary and neces-

sary expenses under Int. Rev. Code 1954, 26 U.S.C.

§162(a).

A. The Tax Court applied an erroneous standard of

deductibility.

B. The evidence supports the deductibility of the pay-

ments as ordinary and necessary business expenses.

ARGUMENT

I. The Tax Court Erred in Concluding That the Pay-

ments Were Not Current Rentals

A. The Tax Court erred in disregarding the purpose of

the payments as current rentals.

In 2 Mertens, Law of Federal Taxation, §12.36, it is

stated:
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"where the lessee continues to occupy the premises

under a new or modified lease, the amount paid by
the lessee should be either deductible in full in the

year of payment or amortized over the life of the

lease depending on the underlying purpose of the

payment. Where the payment is not required as a

condition to the rental of the property in the future

and where the parties specifically agree that the pay-

ment is unconditional and is earned at the time it

is made, the payment should not be treated by the

lessee as prepaid rental or as the cost of acquiring

a new or modified lease and should not be spread

over the period of the lease."

The controlling statutory guide herein is 26 U.S.C.A.

§162, (I.R.C. 1954) wliich provides:

"(a) In General—There shall be allowed as a

deduction all the ordinary and necessary expenses

paid or incurred during the taxable year in carrying

on any trade or business, including— ° * ° (3) rent-

als or other payments required to be made as a con-

dition to the continued use or possession, for pur-

poses of the trade or business, of property to which
the taxpayer has not taken or is not taking title or in

which he has no equity."

The basic problem is, therefore, one of characterizing

the payments here in question as current rental expenses

or as capital expenditm-es; and this characterization is de-

pendent upon the underlying purpose for the payments.

Thus, the inquiry here is whether the underlying purpose

jof the payments was to secure the future use and posses-

jsion of the leasehold property added by the supplemental

I

lease agreement or whether the sums paid were considera-

jtion for the cuiTent use or possession of the demised

premises.

The consideration for petitioner's right to the future

juse and possession of the portion added to the petitioner's
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original leasehold is clearly stated in the supplemental

lease agreement.

"Whereas, lessor entered into said contract with

the General Services Administration of the United

States of America upon the understanding and agree-

ment with lessee that the portion of the present Post

Office site and the rights and privileges in connec-

tion therewith to be acquired by the lessor would
be added to and incorporated in the Metropolitan

Tract area covered by said lease of July 18, 1953,

subject to all of the terms and conditions of said

lease, and that in consideration therefore lessee would
undertake to fulfill and perform all of lessor's under-

takings and agreements with respect to the construc-

tion of the new Post Office Building for the United

States of America * " "". (Emphasis supplied) (Jt.

Ex. 4-D, p. 2)

On the other hand, the questioned $80,000 payments

were provided for under a separate heading and identi-

fied by the parties as "rentals."

"2. Lessee will pay to the lessor the sum of $80,-

000 on November 1, 1960; the sum of $80,000 on
November 1, 1961; and the sum of $80,000 on No-

vember 1, 1962, as additional rentals over and above

all rentals provided for under the terms of said lease."

(Jt. Ex. 4-D. p. 3)

The parties also demonstrated the purpose and mutual

characterization of the payments as current rentals by so

treating them in their respective books of account. (R-22)

Assuming that the purpose for the payments was not

clearly stated in the supplemental lease agreement, the

mutual construction of the payments by the parties is

compelling evidence of their characterization of the pay-

ments as current rents. The following rule of construction

is stated in 17 Am. Jur. 2d, Contracts, p. 683-685, §274:
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"In the determination of the meaning of an indefi-

nite or ambiguous contract, the construction placed
upon the contract by the parties themselves is to be
considered by the court. Unquestionably, the practi-

cal construction or uniform conduct or practice of

the parties under a contract is a consideration of

much importance in ascertaining its meaning, and that

consideration is entitled to great, if not controlling,

influence in ascertaining the parties understanding
of the contract terms and language, since the par-

ties are in the best position to know what was in-

tended by the language employed."

In Hyde Park Realty, Inc. v. Commissioner of Internal

' Revenue, 211 Fed. 462 (2nd Cir., 1954), the court, in

determining whether the payments there in question were

to be considered as a reduction in the purchase price of

certain real property or as rentals, relied upon the fact

that "There can be no doubt on the record that both

parties treated the sum as rent" (p. 463) to conclude

that the payments made were in fact current rentals. Here

i also, the subsequent, harmonious treatment of the $80,-

000 payments by both parties is compelling evidence of

the proper characterization thereof as current rentals.

Where, as here, the parties have dealt at arms-length

and the transactions are not illegal or contrary to public

policy, "nor on their face designed as an ingenious scheme

I or devise to avoid payment of taxes," the purpose and

\ characterization of the payments as set forth in the par-

|i ties' written agreement will control. Western Contracting

1 Co. V. Commissioner of Internal Revenue, 271 F.2d 694,

j

699 (8th Cir. 1959).

In respect to the designation of the purpose for the

payments here involved, "the parties had full liberty to

contract as they pleased." Benton v. Commissioner of
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Internal Revenue, 197 F.2d 745, 752 (5th Cir. 1952).

Here also, the Tax Court is not at hberty to "make a

new agreement for the parties," to disregard the parties'

stated consideration for the acquisition of the additional

leasehold property, to disregard their designation of the

$80,000 payments as rentals, and to ignore the subsequent

uniform treatment of the payments by both parties to

the Supplemental Lease Agreement as current rents.

The Tax Court's statement that "The supplemental lease

agreement makes no explanation of why the 'additional

rentals' were to be paid" (R-33), is clearly refuted by

the above facts. Moreover, it is extremely unlikely in com-

mon experience that a "reason" for the designation of a

payment as rental would be stated in a lease agreement

because the terms "rent" or "rental" by definition set

forth the reason for the payment as being consideration

for the use or occupation of property, Black's Law Dic-

tionary, 4th Ed., 1957.

The purpose of the payments as shown by the supple-

mental lease agreement as written and construed by

the parties is vividly disclosed by the record as considera-

tion for the current use and possession of the premises.

The above cited authorities demonstrate that to disregard

such purpose is error as a matter of law.

B. The Tax Courtis implied finding that the rent abate-

ntent clause was applicable to the transaction in

question is clearly erroneous.

The following excerpts from the Tax Court's opinion are

quoted at length to illustrate the extent to which the

Tax Court relied upon the rent abatement clause of the

41
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lease agreement of 1953 (This clause appears at Jt. Ex.

3-C, pp. 7, 8.)

"Petitioner would receive no income from the use

of the property added to the original lease during
the years here involved, at least until the Washing-
ton Building was completed and rented." (R-33)

"Under the terms of the original lease, if any of

the demised buildings were to become untenant-

able during the terms of the lease, the rental paid

by the petitioner to the lessor was to be reduced
while such condition prevailed. It would seem logical

that instead of paying additional rents for these three

years, petitioner's rent expense would have been re-

duced while the property was non-income produc-
ing, rather than increased. Of course, this would have
been the situation while the Douglas Building was
being built, except for the pavments here involved."

(R-34)

"We do not think it reasonable, likely or a fact

that petitioner would pay $80,000 per year additional

rental for the leased property during the years here
involved, when the property would produce less

rental income to petitioner than before. . .
." (Em-

phasis supplied ) ( R-34

)

The facts assumed by the above statements are (1)

that the premises demised by the supplemental lease

agreement together with the site occupied by the Doug-

las Building were non-income producing during the fiscal

years here involved and ( 2 ) that the rent abatement clause

of the original lease agreement was applicable to the

transactions contemplated by the supplemental lease

agreement.

First, the assumption that the premises were non-in-

come producing during the periods in question is

absolutely contrary to the evidence. The construction of

the Washington Building was completed and the
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building formally opened to occupancy on July 2, 1960

( R-22 ) , whereas the first additional rental payment under

the supplemental lease agreement was payable for the

fiscal year November 1, 1960 to October 31, 1961. (Jt.

Ex. 4-D, p. 3)

Secondly, the rent abatement clause of the original

lease agreement provided in part:

"It is further agreed that if for any reason other

than default of lessee, any portion of the demised

premises shall not be capable of being occupied, op-

erated, or used by the lessee, the annual minimum
guaranteed rent shall be reduced for the period of

time said space remains mitenantable in the amount

of what would have been lessor's percentage rent

from the untenantable space if said space had been

tenantable. . .
." (Emphasis supplied) (Jt. Ex. 3-C,

p. 8)

Thus, only the minimum guaranteed rent ($1,000,000 per

year during the fiscal years in question (Jt. Ex. 3-C,

p. 4)) was to be abated. The abatement clause would

not be applicable in the year in which rent otherwise pay-

able by petitioner exceeded $1,000,000. During the fiscal

years in question, the rents paid by petitioner to its lessor

were $1,852,413, and $2,010,929, respectively (Jt. Ex.

1-A, p. 1 and 2-B, p. 1, respectively).

Even if the factual bases for the Tax Court's opinion

were accurate, it is clear that the rent abatement clause

would be inapplicable to the transaction contemplated

by the supplemental lease agreement. That agreement

provided that "any new structure located " on the Post

Office Tract "shall be subject in all respects to the rights

and obligations of the parties as set forth in said lease
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with respect to the original structures on the demised

premises." (Jt. Ex. 4-D, p. 3). The rent abatement pro-

vision was thus not intended to apply to the Post Office

I

Tract while no "new structure" was located thereon. Thus,

I the rent abatement clause, even if otherwise applicable,

' would not apply to the Post Office Tract unless and until

a new structure, completed thereon, subsequently became

I untenantable.

j

il C. The Tax Court erred in its tacit Conclusion of Law

j

that smns paid for untenantable property cannot

be considered current rents.

There is inherent in the foregoing quotations from the

Tax Court's opinion, supra, p. 15, the legal premise that

sums paid for the use of temporarily nonincome produc-

ii ing property are non-deductible as current rentals. Even

I if it were true that the premises added by the supple-

\ mental lease agreement were non-income produc-

i

ing during the periods in question, such fact would

not preclude the treatment as current rents of monies

I paid for the use of such premises by a peti-

j

tioner. In Flambeau Plastics Corp., 22 T.C.M. 112, T.C.

Memo 1963-29, the commissioner took the position

' that the designation of monthly payments by the

I taxpayer to its lessor as "rents" was a mere label and did

I not represent the true character of the payments, which

' the commissioner characterized as capital expenditures

for the acquisition of the leasehold. The lease agreement

there contemplated the construction of a new building

on the leased premises, and provided for a fixed yearly

rental. The commissioner disallowed a rent payment de-

duction taken by the taxpayer for the period during
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which the premises were untenantable because of the

construction of improvements. The Tax Court held that

the taxpayer was entitled to deduct the entire payment

as rent, stating:

"To hold otherwise, would be to say that a tax-

payer who acquires the right to eventually use land

by virtue of a lease arrangement must use it in the

course of the carrying on of the trade or business

before he may be said to have the use thereof under

the statute. The words of §162(a)(2) are broader

in their scope. The phrase 'for purposes of trade or

business' of the taxpayer evidences a clear congres-

sional intent that such use or possession need not

be limited to the carrying on of a trade or business,

but falls within the statutory intendment if the use or

possession is for the purposes thereof. Certainly the

petitioner was using the premises within the statutory

meaning (when) immediately it began to oversee

and supervise the construction of the building which
construction clearly had no other purpose than to

house the petitioner's business." page 115.

Thus, if it is assumed that the $80,000 payments were

made for the use and possession of the Post Office tract

portion of petitioner's leasehold while such property was

non-income producing such fact would not render the pay-

ments nondeductible.

D. Cases cited by the Tax Court do not support its con-

clusion that the payments were advance rentals or

capital expenditures.

In its opinion, the Tax Court relied primarily on South-

western Hotel Co. V. U.S., 115 F.2d 686, 688 (5th Cir.

1940), Main & McKinney Building Co. v. Commissioner,

113 F.2d 81 (5th Cir. 1940) and Baton Coal Co. v.

Commissioner, 51 F.2d 469 (3rd Cir. 1931), affirming

19 B.T.A. 169, to support its conclusion that the pay-
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ments here involved were not deductible by petitioner,

but were advance rentals or capital expenditures. (R-

32, 33)

The claimed deductions in each of the above cases

involved payments made, or contracted to be made, as

part of agreements covering the initial acquisition of a

leasehold. On the other hand, we are here concerned with

an incidental modification, by the supplemental lease

agreement of the lease agreement of 1953 under which

the principal portion of petitioner's leasehold was demised.

Moreo\'er, in Southwestern, the court's conclusion that

the claimed deductions were in fact advance rentals or

capital expenditures was based, in part, upon the finding

that the amounts so paid were grossly disproportionate

to the "rentals" reserved for the later years of the lease

term. The court in Southwestern stated as to the char-

acterization of the payments claimed as deductions:

"The determination of this ultimate question is

reached by deciding whether the payments were
rental for the use and occupancy of the premises dur-

ing the particular year in which it was made, or

whether it was advance pa\'ment of rental which ex-

ceeded the actual value of the use for the year in

which it was paid, and which was made in considera-

tion for a lease for a longer period of time. We think

this question is clearly answered by an examination

of the schedule of pa>Tnents due under the mort-

gage debt. On May 1, 1940, a pa\Tnent of $265,000

was due on the mortgage, and during that same tax

year $18,000 was due to the lessor. Contrasted to

that, in 1941 and each subsequent vear, the total

annual rental due was onlv $24,000 to $30,000. It is

also true, that for each of the years that the payments
on the mortgage debt were due, the total annual

pa\Tnents made in consideration of the lease were
substantially larger than the rentals due after the
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satisfaction of that debt. Under these circumstances,

it is unreasonable to believe that the payment to the

mortgagee, when added to the rent paid to the lessor,

aggregated the amount paid for the rent paid for

the premises during the tax year." Pages 687, 688.

And in the Main & McKinney case, the court observed:

"The error of petitioner's theory is made appar-

ent by another view of the case. The only considera-

tion moving from it to its grantor, the original lessee,

after the cash payment, was the payment of the $10,-

000 per year for 25 years. If these payments are to

be considered rentals rather than extended payments
of the purchase price, the payment thereof at a

specified rate entitled petitioner to use the premises

for a period of 73 years without paying any rent

therefor. Clearly, therefore, these payments, if rentals

were advances returning benefits over the 98 year

period of the lease, for which only aliquot deduc-
tions, commensurate with the ratio of the exhaustion

of the lease, may be taken." page 114.

In Baton Coal Co., the opinions of both the Board of

Tax Appeals and the Circuit Court are so devoid of

fact as to provide little, if any, basis for reUance thereon

as authority for the resolution of issues in the case at bar.

In the instant case, the facts clearly show that the pay-

ments in question were not disproportionate to the rents

reserved under the original lease (fixed rents were re-

served under the lease agreement of 1953 for the lease

years commencing November 1, 1954, November 1,

1955, November 1, 1956 and November 1, 1957, in

the amounts of $1,600,000; $1,700,000; $1,700,000 and

$1,800,000, respectively. Thereafter, a rental based upon

a percentage of the lessee's gross rent receipts from its

tenants was reserved, with a minimum guaranteed rental

of $1,000,000.00 per year). (Jt. Ex. 3-C, pages 3 and 4)



21

And when the $80,000 payments are viewed in the per-

spective of the leasehold as expanded by the supple-

mental lease agreement, case law premised upon evidence

of substantially disproportionate payments becomes totally

inapplicable.

Other cases cited by the Tax Court lend Httle, if any,

support to its conclusions. Oscar L. Thomas, 31 T.C. 1009

(cited by the Tax Court at R-32, 23) tends to support

the petitioner's position. In that case the Tax Court, in

allowing the deduction claimed by the taxpayer, observed

at page 1012:

"There is nothing in the record to indicate that

the parties were not dealing with one another at

arm's length or that the rental was unreasonable, or

that there was some undisclosed agreement that a

portion thereof was to represent the cost of acquir-

ing a leasehold interest."

Similarly, there is nothing in the record of the instant

case to indicate that the parties were not dealing with one

another at arm's length, or that the rental was unreason-

able, or that there was some undisclosed agreement that

the additional rental was to represent the cost of acquir-

ing the increment to the leasehold interest.

I

The following cases cited by the Tax Court have so

i little factual similarity to the case at bar that their cita-

f

tion contributes little force to the Tax Court's conclu-

j!
sions.

!
Alexander W. Smith, Jr., Executor, 20 B.T.A. 27 (1930)

j

(cited at R-32), involved the question of deductibility

i

of payments by a "lessee" under an agreement which al-

ii lowed the "lessee" to obtain title to the "demised" prop-

I

erty by payment of $10.00 to the "lessor" at the end of
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the "term". A fee simple deed to the premises was de-

posited in escrow by the "lessor" to be deHvered to

the lessee upon compliance by the "lessee" with the terms

of the agreement. The court determined that the "lease"

was in fact an installment sale contract, and that the

payments were therefore purchase installments rather

than rents.

In Lola Cunningham, 39 T.C. 186 (1962) (cited at

R-33), the decision sustained the taxpayer's contention

that the payment in question was an advance rental and

was deductible in the year designated for its apphcation

by the parties to the lease agreement.

Joseph J. Neel Company, 22 T.C. 1083 (1954)

( cited at R-33 ) , involved the question of whether the tax-

payer-lessee could amortize and deduct an alleged obli-

gation to improve the demised premises or to pay in lieu

of such improvements a stipulated sum at the end of

the lease term. The taxpayer contended that the alleged

obligation was the acquisition cost of the leasehold,

and as such was subject to amortization and deduction

over the term of the lease. The Commissioner claimed

that the obligation was contingent and, therefore, not sub-

ject to amortization or deduction. The Court held that

the obligation was fixed and not contingent, and that

the taxpayer could amortize and deduct the obligation

over the term of the lease.

E. This Courtis review is not limited by the "clearly

erroneous*^ rule.

Int. Rev. Code 1954, 26 U.S.C. §7482 provides in part:

"The United States Courts of Appeal shall have

exclusive jurisdiction to review the decisions of the
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Tax Court, except as provided in Section 1254 of

Title 28 of the United States Code, in the same man-
ner and to the same extent as decisions of District

Courts in civil actions tried without a jury. . .

."

Rule 52(a), Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, 28

U.S.C., sets forth the rule relating to review of findings

of fact by a trial court in civil actions tried without a

jury. Rule 52(a) states in part:

"Findings of Fact shall not be set aside unless

clearly eiToneous, and due regard shall be given to

the opportunity of the trial court to judge the credi-

bihty of witnesses."

The evidence in the instant case consisted entirely of

stipulated facts and documents. The Tax Court based its

decision principally upon its construction and interpreta-

tion of the lease agreement and supplemental lease agree-

ment (Jt. Exs. 3-C and 4-D, respectively). The Tax

Court was not called upon to weigh testimony or judge

credibility of witnesses. Under these circumstances this

court is concerned not with questions of fact and the

"clearly erroneous" rule, but with questions of law. In

ascertaining whether or not the supplemental lease agree-

ment is ambiguous as written and construed, and in in-

terpreting the lease agreement and the supplemental lease

agreement, this court is not bound by the findings or

inferences of the Tax Court, for in such matters the court

is principally concerned with questions of law. Republic

Pictures Corp. v. Rogers, 213 F.2d 662, 664, 665, (9th

Cir. 1954).

The misplaced reliance of the Tax Court upon the rent

abatement clause together with the fact of the parties'

express characterization of the payments as rentals, both
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in word and deed, militate against a characterization of

the payments as anything but current rentals. There is

absolutely no evidence in the record to support a char-

acterization of the rentals as advance rentals, and no

basic facts or inferences drawn therefrom, except those

which were tainted with error in law or with misinter-

pretation by the Tax Court of documentary evidence,

which would support a conclusion that the payments

should be characterized as capital expenditures.

An additional error of law is implicit in the Tax Court's

reliance upon its assertion that:

"Petitioner would receive no income from the use

of the property added to the original lease during
the years here involved, at least until the Washing-
ton Building was rented and completed." (R-33).

The tacit legal conclusion of the above is that current

deductions may not be taken for payments connected

with non-income producing properties. The error in this

legal conclusion is exemplified by Flambeau Plastics

Corp., supra, pages 17-18. Where the trial court's findings

are induced by, or its conclusions based upon, an erron-

eous view of the law, the same are not binding on the

reviewing court. Sinallfield v. Home Insurance Co.

of New York, 244 F.2d 337 (9th Cir. 1957); Vol. 2B,

Barron & Holtzof, Federal Practice & Procedure, §1137,

pp. 559-561.

II. The Tax Court Erred in Concluding That the

$80,000 Payments Were Not Deductible as Ordi-

nary and Necessary Expenses Under Int. Rev. Code,

1954, 26U.S.C. Sec. 162(a).

A. The Tax Court applied an erroneous standard of
deductibility.
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The Tax Court concluded that the $80,000 payments

constituted the consideration for the acquisition of the

Post Office tract, and that such payments were, there-

fore, capital expenditures. Int. Rev. Code 1954, 26 U.S.C.

§ 162(a) contemplates the deductibility of ordinary

and necessary business expenses, including rentals or other

payments required to be made as a condition to the con-

tinued use or possession of the demised property. The

Tax Court denied the deductibility of the payments by

petitioner on the ground that:

"o o o
y^^ have no evidence that the petitioner

was required to make these $80,000 payments in con-

nection with the everyday operation of its business."

(Emphasis added) (R-36)

Thus, the standard of law applied by the Tax Court

equated the terms "required" and "everyday operation"

to the terms "necessary" and "ordinary", respectively, ap-

pearing in §162(a). Where the conclusion of the trial

court is induced by a misapprehension of the applicable

legal standard, the conclusions must be rejected as clearly

erroneous. Mitchell v. Raines, 238 F.2d 186, 187 (5th

Cir. 1956).

To be "ordinary and necessary" an expense need not

be one required to be made in the everyday operation

of a taxpayer's business. The applicable standard of law,

as distinguished from the erroneous standard applied

by the Tax Court, is illustrated by the following citations:

"An expense may be ordinary even though it hap-

pens but once in the taxpayer's lifetime. For an ex-

penditure to be necessary, it is not essential that

there be an absolute and compelling reason. When
the expenditure is appropriate and helpful to the tax-

payer's business, the courts are loath to override the
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taxpayer's judgment." Cravens v. Commissioner of
Internal Revenue, 272 F.2d 895, 898, 899 (10th
Cir. 1959).

"When is an expense necessary? An e-'pense will

be ordinarily considered 'necessary' if the expendi-
ture is appropriate and helpful to the development
and maintenance of the taxpayer's business. Ob-
viously, under such a view, the necessity is not ab-

solute or inexorable." Mertens, Law of Federal In-

come Taxation, chap. 25, p. 24.

"The concept of 'ordinary' under the Code does
not require that the expenditure be either habitual

or normal in the sense that a taxpayer makes or is

required to make them often; the expenditure may
be ordinary even though unique or non-recurring to

the taxpayer affected." Ihid, page 27.

"The non recurring nature of the disbursement

does not preclude deductibility; nor does its mere
dollar amount. Expenditures made in accordance
with trade usages and the requirements of good prac-

tices may be deducted, even though there is no legal

obligation to make them. Similarly, expenditures

made to retain or protect and promote the normal
continuance of an established business are deduct-

ible, as are expenditures made to retain customer

good will." Connecticut Light & Power Co. v. United

States, 299 F.2d 259, 264 (Ct. CI, 1962).

It is evident from the above that the Tax Court failed

to apply the appropriate legal standard of deductibility

to the facts of this case. It follows that the Tax Court

decision must be reversed.

B. The evidence supports the deductibility of the

payments as ordinary and necessary business ex-

penses.

Assuming, for purposes of argument, that the Tax

Court's conclusion that the payments herein were consid-

eration for the acquisition of the Post Office parcel incre-
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ment to petitioner's leasehold, it does not follow that

the payments made by petitioner were to be capitalized,

and that the same were not currently deductible. The

following case law supports the deductibility of the

payments made by petitioner herein as ordinary and

necessary business expenses.

In Wyoming National Bank of Casper, Wyoming, 23

B.T.A., 408 (1931), the taxpayer deducted as additional

rentals payments of $10,000 each in the years 1922 and

1923, in addition to the yearly rental of $10,000 reserved

under its lease. The additional rentals were consideration

! for speeding up construction of a building to be oc-

cupied by the taxpayer on the leased premises, and to

cover the costs of certain alterations and improvements

in the building requested by the taxpayer. The evidence

showed that at the time in question the taxpayer was

quartered in an old building which was unsuited to its

; business and inadequate. The improvements, alterations

and betterments requested and paid for by the taxpayer

were of a permanent nature. The deductions of the "addi-

tional rentals" were disallowed by the Commissioner and

were characterized by him as capital expenditures to be

amortized over the term of the lease. The Tax Court

concluded that the amounts paid by the taxpayer in con-

. sideration of the lessor's speeding up the construction

and making the improvements were not capital expendi-

tures and held that the Commissioner erred in disallow-

ing the claimed deductions.

The facts of the instant case require the same result.

As recited by the Tax Court, (R-29), the building

located on the side adjacent to the Post OflBce

tract was the "smallest and least profitable" of the
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Metropolitan Tract buildings; an inadequate building, un-

suited to petitioner's use of the demised premises.

The motivation for the inclusion of the Post Office

tract was illustrated by the Supplemental Lease Agree-

ment:

"* * * said lease (1953) requires the lessee to

operate the various stnictures then or thereafter con-

structed upon the demised premises in such a man-
ner as not to injure the reputation thereof and to

maintain the demised premises as a center of store

and office buildings of the first class, and at all

times to so operate the tract as to produce the maxi-

mum return consistent with the character of the

tract; and

"o o « the parties have determined that, in order

to accomplish these purposes and to produce a maxi-

mum return for the lessor and to preserve and im-

prove the status of the tract as a business center of

the first class, the contemplated new building to re-

place the Douglas Building should be located on

its present site enlarged by the addition of an adjoin-

ing tract now a part of the present Post Office site

and which is described as follows * * *" (Emphasis
added) (Ex. 4-D, p. 1).

,

The duty of petitioner to its lessor to undertake and

fulfill the obligations set forth in the lease agreement

of 1953 and the supplemental lease agreement; i.e., to

maintain the character of the originally demised premises

as a center of store and office buildings of the first class,

existed by virtue of contract. Thus, the necessity for peti-

tioner's expenditures herein was more compelling than

that set forth in the Wyoming Bank case.

But even lesser degrees of "necessity" will suffice

under §162(a). In Cubbedge Snow, 31 T.C. 585

( 1958 ) , the taxpayer, a law firm, was allowed to deduct
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as ordinary and necessary business expenses expenditures

made by it to cover losses incurred by a federal savings

and loan association organized by the taxpayer. The tax-

payer had organized the association to provide a new

source of abstract fees for its law business, in order to

fully utilize the taxpayer's abstracting books, files and

records which it had accumulated over previous years.

There, as here, the Commissioner had disallowed the tax-

payer's claimed deduction as being a capital expenditure.

The Court stated:

"The crucial and controlling factor lies in deter-

mining whether the acts done and expenditures made
were motivated by the purpose to protect or promote
the taxpayer's business or made as an investment in

a new enterprise." p. 591.

"While capital expenditures ordinarily result in

the acquisition of assets having periods of useful life

in excess of one year it does not follow that an ex-

penditure must be deemed a capital outlay merely

because the ultimate benefit may accrue in a year

or years subsequent to the year of payment." p. 593.

The Court further explained its position by distinguish-

ing Carl Reimers Co., 19 T.C. 1225, 1239 (1953) as

follows:

"The Outlays there were not made, as they were
i

in the instant case, for the purpose of protecting,

retaining or adding to the business which the tax-

payer already had, but to fulfill a prerequisite to the

attainment of something new." p. 593.

The court concluded that the payments were deductible

by the taxpayer.

Again, assuming the Tax Court's conclusion that the

payments were here made for the acquisition of the Post
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Office property increment to petitioner's leasehold, the

purpose of the acquisition was to protect or add to the

business which the petitioner already had, as is indi-

cated by the language in the supplement lease agreement

quoted supra, p. 28.

That expenditures to meet demands of business change

and competition are deductible is illustrated by Connecti-

cut Light & Power Co. v. U.S., supra, p. 26. There,

the taxpayer claimed a deduction for the total costs in-

curred by it in converting its business from the distribu-

tion of manufactured gas to the distribution of natural

gas. To accommodate this change, the taxpayer altered

its distribution pipelines and fittings and its customer's

burner units in order to handle the dryer, higher BTU
rated natural gas. The court concluded that expenditures

made in the "normal continuance of an established busi-

ness" are deductible. That term encompasses the situa-

tion where a taxpayer incurs an expense to up-date and

in fact to change in nature the assets of his existing busi-

ness. The scope and philosophy of the court's opinion is

illustrated by the following statement:

"In this competitive, fast moving age, there is no

such thing as industrial stand-still." Ibid, page 266.

Where expenditures are made by a taxpayer for the

acquisition of an asset as an incident to the conduct

of its business, such purchase being motivated by business

rather than investment purpose, the asset so acquired

is properly characterized as a non-capital asset. The loss,

if any, realized on the sale of such an asset is character-

ized as an ordinary and necessary business expense and

is fully deductible under Int. Rev. Code 1954, §162(a).

Commissioner of Internal Revenue v. Tlie Bagley &
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: Sewall Co., 221 F.2d 944 (2nd Cir. 1955). (Govern-

ment bonds purchased as security for a performance

of contract); Booth Newspapers, Inc. v. United States,

1303 F.2d 916. (Ct. CI 1962) (Purchase of plant and

I inventory of newspaper manufacturers in order to in-

,
sure supply to taxpayer). Although these cases deal with

: losses, the significance of their holdings lies in the char-

I acterizations of the acquisitions as non-capital assets. This

characterization is dependent upon the motivation of

i

the taxpayer, whether for business or investment pur-

|; poses, for the acquisition. The motivation for the execu-

tion of the supplemental lease agreement is quoted, supra,

li page 28, and constitutes a clear expression of the peti-

j

tioner's motivation, and that of its lessor, to add the Post

I

Office tract as an incident to the business operation of

! the originally demised premises. ( The premises added

j

by the supplemental lease agreement constituted an area

j
of only 4,400 square feet ( R-21 ) , and the stated purpose

j

for its acquisition was to enlarge the Douglas Building

I site to facilitate the construction of the Washington

I

Building ) . There is no evidence of a motivation to acquire

ji the Post Office tract increment to petitioner's original lease-

ii hold as a separate investment property.

CONCLUSION

Because of the nature of the record on this review,

the evidence consisting entirely of stipulated facts and

documents, this Court has the power to reverse the Tax

Court and to enter its decision in favor of petitioner.

Based upon the following conclusions, respectfully lu-ged

by petitioner as being supported by the facts and law
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presented herein, such reversal and decision by this Court

is fully justified.

1. The characterization of the payments as current

rents is supported by their designation as such in the

supplemental lease agreement and the clear distinction

in said agreement between the additional rents reserved

and the consideration for the inclusion of the Post Of-

fice tract. Moreover, the mutual treatment of said pay-

ments as current rents by the parties to said agreement

is compelling evidence of such characterization.

2. Even if not characterized as current rents, the evi-

dence supports the characterization of the payments as

ordinary and necessary business expenses, made to pro-

tect and promote petitioner's existing business.

3. The Tax Court's conclusion that the payments were

not current rents is premised upon the assumed but

clearly erroneous fact that the premises were non-income

producing during the periods in question; and upon the

equally erroneous legal conclusion that the rent abate-

ment clause of the original lease would have been applic-

able during the period in question.

4. The Tax Court's conclusion that the expenditures

were not ordinary and necessary expenses was based upon

an erroneous construction of 26 USC 162(a) (Int. Rev.

Code 1954) and the resulting application of an improper

standard of law to the facts herein.

Respectfully submitted,

DeWitt Williams

Attorney for Petitioner
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CERTIFICATE

I certify that, in connection with the preparation of

this brief, I have examined Rules 18 and 19 of the United

States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, and that,

in my opinion, the foregoing brief is in full compliance

with these rules.

DeWitt Williams

Attorney for Petitioner
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APPENDIX A

Table of Exhibits Pursuant to

Rule 18(2) (f) as Amended:

Joint

Exhibits Offered Admitted

1-A U.S. Corporation income tax

return of petitioner for fiscal

year ended October 31, 1961 R-61,62 R-62

2-B U.S. Corporation income tax

return of petitioner for fiscal

year ended October 31, 1962

3-C Lease agreement between R-61,62 R-62

petitioner and University of

Washington, dated July 18,

1953 R-61,62 R-62

4-D Supplemental lease agree-

ment between petitioner and

University of Washington,

dated February 5, 1958 R-61,62 R-62

NOTE: Exhibits E, F, G and H were oflFered by respon-

dent (R-62). Petitioner objected to their admission

(R-62). The Tax Court did not rule on their admissability

for the reason that it did not consider such Exhibits in

rendering its decision, and stated that said exhibits were

not the best evidence and were of little probative value.

.(R-35)
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OPINION BELOW

The opinion of the Tax Court (R. 24-37) is reported at ^5 T.C.

6

•

JURISDICTION

By a statutory notice (R. T-H) issued under date of April 20,

6h, pursuant to Section 6212 of the Internal Revenue Code of 195^*

e Commissioner of Internal determined deficiencies in federal income

ixes against Iftiiversity Properties, Inc. (herein sometimes referred

I as the taxpayer), for the fiscal years ended October 31^ 19^1 and

162, in the respective amounts of $Uo,ll4.29 and $38>5T3.53. A .timely

itition for redetermination of such deficiencies (R. 2-6) vas filed

the taxpayer with the Tax Court on July 16, 196U, pursuant to

ictlon 6213 of the 195^ Code. The issues Involved were submitted to

le Tax Court on a stipulation of facts (R. 19-22) and documentary

iiibits (not Included in the duplicated record). On January 31^ 1966,
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the Tax Court filed its opinion (R. 2k'3'j) affirming the Commissioner's

determination, and on February 1, I966, entered its decision (R. 38) re-

determining deficiencies for the taxable years in issue in the

respective amounts determined by the Commissioner. The taxpayer's petit

for reviev of the Tax Coixrt's decision by this Court (R. 39-^2) was

timely filed on April 2J, I966. Jurisdiction is conferred on this

Court by Section 7^82 of the Internal Revenue Code of 195^.

QUESTION PRESENTED

Whether the Tax Court erred in affirming the Commissioner's

determination that additional payments of $80,000 made by the taxpayer

to its lessor in each of the taxable years in issue, pvirsuant to a

supplemental lease agreement which added additional rental properties

to those covered by an existing lease agreement between the parties,

are to be amortized over the remaining term of the lease agreement for

federal income tax purposes, rather than deducted from gross income

in the years of payment, as contended by the taxpayer, as current

rental payments or other ordinary and necessary business expenses

of the years in which paid.

STATUTE INVOLVED

Internal Revenue Code of 195^:

SEC. 162. TRADE OR BUSINESS EXPENSES.

(a) In General .—There shall be allowed as a deduction all
the ordinary and necessary expenses paid or incurred during the

taxable year in carrying on any trade or business, including--

^ * *

(3) rentals or other payments required to be made as a

condition to the continued use or possession, for purposes

of the trade or business, of property to which the taxpayer
has not taken or is not taking title or in which he has no

equity

.

* * *

i

I



STATEMENT

This proceeding involves deficiencies in federal income taxes

for the fiscal years ended October 31, I96I and I962. The facts,

supplemented by certain documentary evidence, were stipulated before

the Tax Court (R. 19-22), and are s\ammarized in the Tax Court's

opinion (R. 24-31).

Tlie taxpayer. University Properties, Inc., vas incorporated

under the laws of the State of Delaware on July 6, 1953, with

authorized capital of 50,000 shares of common stock, par value $1

per share, all issued and outstanding during the period here involved.

Since incorporation, its principal office has been at 210 White-Henry-

Stuart Building, Seattle, Washington. It filed its federal corpora-

tion income tax returns (Exs. 1-A, 2-B) for the years in issue with

the District Director of Internal Revenue, Tacoma, Washington.

(R. 19, 25.)

The University of Washington originally occupied a 10- acre site

which is now in the heart of downtown Seattle. In the l890's a 583-

acre section was purchased and it became the new permanent campus of

the diversity of Washington. In 1902 a small parcel of the original

campus was sold to the Federal Government as a post office site. On

November k, 1904, the balance of the tract, commonly known and

hereinafter referred to as the Metropolitan Tract, was leased to

James A. Moore for a term of 50 years from November 1, 1904. Three

years later the lease was assigned to the Metropolitan Building Company,

an organization which undertook to erect buildings and otherwise

improve the property. That company constructed the White-Henry- Stuart,

Skinner, Stimson, Cobb, and Douglas Buildings, and the Olympic Hotel,



including the Metropolitan Theatre, the Olympic Garage and the Cobh

Building Annex. (R» 20, 25-26.)

In 1953, the Olympic Hotel and the Metropolitan Theatre, then

occupying the entire block on which the Olympic Hotel is situated,

vere detached frcxn the lease and separately leased to Olympic, Inc.

(R, 21, 26.)

On July 18, 1953, a lease (Ex. 3-C) vas executed demising the

balance of the Metropolitan Tract, including the White-Henry-Stuart,

Skinner, Stimson, Cobb, Cobb Annex, and Douglas Buildings, to taxpayer

for a term of 35 years from November 1, 195^. (R<. 21, 26.) The terms

and conditions of this lease agreement are summarized in the opinion

of the Tax Court as follows (R. 26-29): 1

The term of the lease commenced November 1, 195^^
and ends at midnight on October 31> 1989 j> subject to
earlier termination as therein provided. The lease

agreed to pay to the lessor as rent for the demised
premises a fixed i^ent in the amo-jnt of $1,600,000 for

the lease year commencing November 1, 195^^ in the amoimts

of $1,700,000 for the lease years commencing November 1,

1955 and 1956, and in the amount of $1,800,000 for the

lease year commencing November 1, 1957 • The lessee further

agreed to pay a percentage rental for each lease year
commencing November 1, 1958, and continuing to the

end of the term of the lease, with a minimum guaranteed
rental of $1 million per lease year, determined as a

percentage of the gross rental income received by the
lessee from subtenants foi' C'caranercial space and a

lesser percentage of the gross rental income received
by the lessee from subtenants for office space. Kie

percentage rental is not payable on miscellaneous
income of the lessee derived from other sources of
business activities, such as resale of public utilities,
linen and supple services, janitor services, etc. The

lease stated that it was vinderstood that all the rentals

provided therein were predicated on the assumption that

the entire demised premises would be capable of being
occupied, operated, or used by the lessee at all times;

and if for any reason other than default of the lessee

any portion of the demised premises should not be
capable of being occupied, operated, or used by the



lessee, the annual minimum guaranteed rental should be
reduced for the period of time said space remained
untenantable in the amount vhich would have been the
lessor's percentage rental from the untenantable space
if said space had been tenantable, and the fixed
annual rental should be reduced in a like amount if the
situation developed in the first k years. The lessee
agreed to manage and operate the various buildings on
the demised premises as a center of store and office
buildings of the first class in the city of Seattle.
The lessee also agreed to modernize the buildings on the
demised premises and to expend in such modernization
at lease $2 million, such modernization program to be
commenced promptly upon entering into possession of the
demised premises and to be completed if reasonably
possible on or before November 1, 1958' The lessor
agreed to create a "New Building Fund" and to pay a
percentage of the gross rental incane it received from
the demised premises, limited to a certain amount per
year, into the fund, which was to be used to reimburse
the lesee for the modernization expenditures heretofore
mentioned and for the construction of new buildings and
major improvements and additions to the property. The
lessee agreed to study from time to time the desirability
and economic necessity for the construction of new
buildings and capital alterations, and to make recommenda-
tions to the lessor with reference thereto. The lessor
had the right to determine what buildings and capital
improvements would be made, and the lessee was to be
responsible for the construction of such buildings and
improvements with the right to be reimbursed from the

New Building Fund for the cost thereof. The lessee

also agreed to expend not less than k percent of its

gross rental income from the demised premises for

maintenance and repair of the buildings and improvements
on the demised premises. The lessor was given the right

to cancel the lease upon 12 months' notice if at any time

during the term of the lease the lessor should become

liable for the payment of Federal Income tax on all or

any part of its income thereunder and the parties should

be unable to arrive at a mutually satisfactory modifica-

tion of the lease terms compensating for such tax liability.

In which event the lessor shall pay to the lessee

specified sums for each quarterly rental payment that

shall have been made under the lease. Upon termination

of the lease the lessee shall surrender the demised premises

j

together with any of the lessee's improvements, fixtures,

and any new buildings and capital alterations which may

be constructed upon the demised premises during the term

of the lease, in as good condition and repaid as when

received. Provision was also made for termination of the

lease by the lessor in the event of default on the part of

the lessee.
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On January 29, 1958, the University of Washington reacquired fr

the United States Government a part of the post office site which

had been carved out of the original Metropolitan Tract in 1902. As con

sideration for this land, the University of Washington agreed with the

United States Government through the General Services Administration

to demolish the old post office building and to construct a new post

office on that part of the site retained by the Federal Government.

Certain easements were also exchanged in the transaction. (R. 21, 29.)

On February 5, 1958, a supplemental lease agreement (Ex. 4-D) from

the IMiversity of Washington to the taxpayer added this newly acquired

property to the properties covered by the 1953 lease. (Stip. par. 9,

following R. 21; R. 29.) After reciting execution of the lease

agreement of July l8, 1953; its requirement that the taxpayer operate

the various structures and buildings then or thereafter constructed

upon the demised premises in such a manner as not to injiore the

reputation thereof and to maintain the demised premises as a center

of store and office buildings of the first class and at the same time

to so operate the tract as to produce the maximum return consistent wl'

the character of the tract; and that the j^artiec had detemined that,

in order to accomplish these purposes and to produce a maximum return i

for the lessor and to preserve and improve the status of the tract es

a business enter of the first class, the contemplated new building to

replace the existing Douglas Bviilding should be located on its present

site ;enlarged by the addition of the part of the post office tract,

described therein, the supplemental lease agreement continued as

follows (Ex. i+-D, pp. 2-3):

,
.

i|
Yj Page k of the stipulation of facts, following R. 21, was omitted i

the Tax Court Clerk's pagination of the record as certified to this Cc-''



MD WHEr^AS, Article VII, Section 3 of said lease
provides that all nev buildincs upon completion shall be
subject in all respect to the rights and obligations
of the parties as set forth therein vith respect to the
original structures upon the demised premises; and

WHEREAS, the Lessor has now acquired the above
described tract (being a portion of the present post office
site) under and pursuant to a contract designated as
GS-RIO-SWPO-A entered into by the Lessor with the
General Services Administration of the United States of
America.. as of October l8, 1957, under vhich said contract
Lessor has undertaken and agreed to demolish the present
post office building and to construct a new post office
building for the United States of America; and

WHEREAS, Lessor entered into said contract with the
General Services Administration of the United States of
America upon the londerstanding and agreement with Lessee
that the portion of the present post office site and the
rights and privileges in connection therewith to be acquired
by the Lessor would be added to and incorporated in the
Metropolitan Tract area covered by said lease of July l8,

1953, subject to all of the terms and conditions of
said lease, and that in consideration therefor Lesee
would undertake to fulfill and perform all of Lessor's
undertakings and agreements with respect to the construction
of the new post office building for the United States of
America.

NOW, THEREFORE, in order to confirm the inclusion of
the above described tract within the demised premises and
to confirm said understanding and agreement, it is agreed
that:

1. The tract of land described above shall be
deemed to be a part of the demised premises covered by said

lease of July 18, 1953, and any new structure located
thereon shall be subject in all respect to the rights and

obligations of the parties as set forth in said lease with
respect to the original structures upon the demised premises.

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing provision
relating to the application of the terms of said lease to
the tract of land described in this Supplemental Lease

and structures thereon, it is specifically agreed that
monies in the New Building Fund provided for by Article

VII of said lease dated July 18, 1953, may also be expended

with respect to the tract of land described in this
Supplemental Lease and structures thereon, for the same

purposes and in accordance with those same provisions of said

lease of July 18, 1953, which govern expenditures out of

the New Building Fund with respect to the demised premises,

initially described in said lease, and structures thereon.
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other consideration, to make three such $80,000 payments "as additional

rentals over and above all rentals provided for under the term of"

the original lease, -which applied to the nevly added property in all

respects as to the original leasehold. The Commissioner of Internal

Revenue disallowed such deductions on the ground that the $80,000 pay-

ments "did not represent a current rental payment "but a capital expend!

or advance rental not deductible in the year paid, " and allowed,

instead, a deduction in the nature of an amortization deduction based

on prorating such payments over the unexpired term of the original

lease at the time the payments vere made.

The Commissioner's determination is prima facie correct and the

burden was upon the taxpayer to prove that the payments were in fact

"rentals or other payments required to be made as a condition to the

continued use or possession, for purposes of the trade or business, of

property to which the taxpayer has not or is not taking title or in

which he has no equity" within the meaning of the statutory provision

on which its claim of eduction is primarily based, or that such

payments were in fact "ordinary and necessary expenses paid or incurret

during the taxable year in carrying on any trade or business" within

the meaning of the statutory provision on which its claim of deduction

iid secondarily based. "^

The taxpayer has failed to prove that the payments are deductible

under either provision of the applicable statute. It has proved

payment of the amounts in issue, and admittedly the taxpayer had not

taken and was not taking title to and had not equity in any of the

property under lease. It has been judicially determined, however, tha

i



to be deductible as rent the amoiint claimed must have been paid as

rent in fact, rather than a payment of a different character under the

guise of rent. Moreover, such payment must be shown to have been

made for the use or possession of the property vith respect to the

year in vhich the payment is claimed as a deduction. Payments of

advance rental, like payments made to obtain a lease, or payments

made by a lessor to procure a lease of his property, are not deduct-

ible in full, but must be deducted pro rate over the life of the lease

in the form of amortization deductions.

The evidence in this case does not support the taxpayer's contention

that the $80,000 "additional rentals" payments made under its supplementary

lease constituted rental for the respective years of payment. Rather,

the evidence is consistent only with the Commissioner's determination,

affirmed by the Tax Court, that the payments were capital expenditures

or advance rentals paid as consideration for the inclusion of the

additional property in the taxpayer's leasehold.

Likewise, the evidence does not support the taxpayer's contention

that the payments in issue represented ordinary and necessary business

expenses of the years in which they were made.



ARGUMENT

TEE TAX COURT DID NOT ERR IN HOLDING, WIDER THE STIPU-
LATED FACTS, THAT THE ADDITIONAL PAYT4ENTS OF $80,000
MADE BY THE TAXPAYER IN EACH OF THE TAXABLE YEARS WERE
NOT DEDUCTIBLE IN FULL FRCM GROSS INCCME IN THE YEAR
OF PAYMENT

IIt is the taxpayer's contention on this appeal that the amount

of $80,000 paid by it to the University of Washington on November 1,

i960, and November 1, I96I, respectively, pursuant to the supplemental

lease agreement of February 5^ 1958, described in the foregoing statemet

should be allowed in full as a deduction from gross income under

Section 162(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 195^, supra , in the

year of payment, either as rent (Br. 10-2^4-), or, alternatively, as

ordinary and necessary business expenses (Br. 2U-31), in computing

its federal inccxne tax liability for the years in issue.

Section 162(a) of the 195U Code, under which the deductions here

in issue are claimed, provides in material part that in computing taxa

income there shall be allowed as a deduction from gross income "all

the ordinary and necessary expenses paid or incurred during the tax-

able year in carrying on any trade or business," including, among

other specified expenditures, "(3) rental or other payments required

to be made as a condition to the continued use or possession, for

purposes of the trade or business, of property to which the taxpayer

has not taken or is not taking title or in which he has no equity."

The amounts here in issue were claimed as deductions by the tax-

payer on its income tax returns for the years in which the payments

were made.(R. 31. ) In disallowing the claimed deductions, the

Commissioner determined that the payments "did not represent a current

rental payment but a capital expenditure or advance rental not



a deduction for each of the years in issue, in the nature of an

amortization allowance, an amount equal to I/28 of the $8o,000

payment made in the fiscal year ended October 31, I96I; and for the

fiscal year ended October 31, 1962, he alloved a deduction in the

nature of an amortization allowance equal to I/27 of the payment made

in that year. (R. 3, 10.)

Tlie Tax Court held that the taxpayer had failed to establish its

right to the claimed deduction, either as rent (R. 32-35) or as

ordinary and necessary business expenses (R. 35-37), and affirmed

the Commissioner's determination. We submit there is no error in the

Tax Court's decision.

Pertinent in the determination of the issues presented by this

appeal are certain established principles of law. It long has been

settled, for instance, that the CcMimissioner's determination of an

income tax deficiency "has the support of a presumption of correctness,

and the petitioner has the burden of proving it to be wrong." Welch v.

Helvering , 290 U.S. Ill, 115- See also, Wickwire v. Reinecke , 275

U.S. 101, 105; Matern v. Commissioner, 6I F. 2d 663, 666 (C.A. 9th);

^ The lease of July lb, 1953, expires by its terms at midnight on

October 3I, I989 (Ex. 3-C, p. 3). At the time the first $80,000
payment under the supplemental lease of February 5^ 1958^ because
due on November 1, I96O, the original lease had an unexpired term

of 29 years; and at the time the second payment was due on November 1,

1962, the principal lease had an unexpired term of 26 years. In his

deficiency notice (R. 9, lO) the Commissioner, without explanation,

allowed amortization on the basis of unexpired terms of 28 years and

27 years, respectively, which resulted in slightly larger amortization

allowances for each year. If this was an error on the Commissioner's

part it results in an advantage to the taxpayer and affords no basis

for reversing the Tax Court's decision on the merits. Compare

Southwestern Hotel Co . v. United States , 115 F. 2d 686 (C.A. 5th),

certiorari denied, 312 U.S. 703-



Todd V. Commissioner , 153 F. 2d 553, 557 (C.A. 9th); Clark v. Com -

missioner , 266 F. 2d 698, 706 (C.A. 9th), and authorities cited.

It also is settled law that deductions from gross income for

federal income tax purposes are allowed as a matter of legislative

grace and the burden is upon a taxpayer claiming a deduction to

prove facts which will "bring his claii.i dearly within the statutory

provision authorizing such deduction. New Colonial Co. v. Helveringy
!

292 U.S. 435, kkO; Deputy v. du Pont , 308 U.S. i+88, U93; Interstate

Transit Lines v. Commissioner , 319 U.S. 590, 593- Under the most

liberal expression of the Supreme Court, "Their extent depends upon

the legislative policy expressed in the fair and natural meaning"

of the provision authorizing the deduction." Lykes v. United States ,,!

3I+3 U.S. 118, 120.

The federal income tax system is based on annual accounting

periods, and while income generally is accounted for in the year it :

received or accrued and deductions are allowed ^ in the year in which <

are paid or incurred, according to the method of accounting regularl;

employed by the taxpayer in keeping his books, these considerations

are qualified by the overall requirement that the method adopted jH

must clearly reflect the income. See Sections 44l, kh6, U51, k6l,

and corresponding provisions of prior income tax statutes.

The present case is concerned with the time for taking deductios

and in United States v. Ludey , 27^ U.S. 295, 30^+, the Supreme Court a

that a taxpayer "cannot choose the year in which he will take a redut

In Burnet v. Thompson Oil & G. Co. , 283 U.S. 301, 306, a case

involving oil depletion deductions claimed for the taxable year

1918, the Supreme Court reiterated that "in the absence of express

TTi-r>ii"« c-i nnc +n +>ip> (-on+.r-Q-rv i +. 1r nnt. t.o he suTiTinsed "thfit the taxpas^.'



is authorized to deduct from that year's income, depreciation, depletion

business losses, or other similar items attributable to other years."

In a case somewhat analogous to the present case so far as the issue

of law is concerned, this Court said in Lichtenberger-Ferguson

Co. V. Welch, 5^ F. 2d 570, 571-572: "Under whatever system the

taxpayer makes its return, the items of income and deductible expenses

must have relation to the business done within the year for which the

income tax is paid." See, also. Wells Fargo B. & U. Trust Co. v.

Commissioner , 163 F. 2d 521, 52U (C.A. 9th); Commissioner v. Boylston

Market Ass'n , I3I F. 2d 966, 968 (C.A. 1st).

The deduction, as a business expense, of amounts paid as rent

was first specifically; authorized in the case of corporations by Section

12(a), first, of the Revenue Act of I916, c, 463, 39 Stat. 756, and

in the case of individuals by Section 2l4(a)(l) of the Revenue Act of

1918, c. 18, 4o Stat. 1057; and continued through subsequent Revenue

Acts, in language Identical with Section 162(a)(3) of the 1954 Code

relied upon here. The deduction is limited by this provision to "rentals

or other payments required to be made as a condition to the continued use

or possession, for purposes of the trade or business, of property to

which the taxpayer has not taken or is not taking title or In which

he has no equity." Compare Oesterrelch v. Commissioner , 226 F. 2d 798

(C.A. 9th). As this Court pointed out in Utter-McKinly Mortuaries v .

Commissioner . 225 F. 2d 87O, 87^:

The burden imposed by the statute to permit
deductions for rentals is onerous. Taxpayer
must have proved to the trial court that the

payments were wrung from it by compulsion of

circxmstances delineated by law. The question
whether surrounding conditions drove the tax-

payer throiigh this narrow gate was surely one

of fact.



Mere payment, however, of amounts alleged to be for the con-

tinued use or possession of property for purposes of the trade or

business is not sufficient to establish deductibility in the year of

payment. For instance, the deduction under Section 162(a)(3) is

limited to amounts which represent rent in fact. In Utter-McKinley

Mortuaries v. Commissioner , supra, a substantial portion of the

amounts claimed as deductions for rent paid was disallowed as excessivei

In many other situations the courts likwise have held that to be

deductible as such, amounts claimed as rental or royalty payments

must be such in fact within the limits of the statute. E.g., Le Moyne

V. Commissioner , ^+7 F. 2d 539 (C.A. Tth); Limericks, Inc. v. Commissioiai

165 F. 2d 483 (C.A. 5th); Hightower v. Commissioner , 187 F. 2d 535 (C.A.

5th); W.H. Amston Co . v. Commissioner , I88 F. 2d 531 (C.A. 5th); White

V. Fitzpatrick , 193 F. 2d 398 (CA. 2d), certiorari denied, 3^3 U.S.

928; Wade Motor Co. v. Commissioner , 2^1 F. 2d 712 (C.A. 6th); Beus v.

Commissioner , 261 F. 2d I76 (C.A. 9th); Midland Ford Tractor Co. v.

Commissioner , 277 F. 2d 111 (C.A. 8th), certiorari denied, 36U U.S. 88I

West Virginia Northern Railroad Co. v. Commissioner , 282 F. 2d 63 ^
(C.A. 4th); Potter Electric Signal and Manufacturing Co. v. Commissi one

286 F. 2d 200 (C.A. 8th); Fairmont Park Raceway, Inc. v. Commissioner , i

F. 2d 780 (C.A. 7th); i Van Zandt v. Commissioner , 3U1 F. 2d 440 (C.A. 5t;)

certiorari denied, 382 U.S. 8l4.
"

Moreover, the courts have held in general, that rental and royalty

payments are not necessarily deductible as such for the year in which

paid or accrued, but, rather, for the year or years in which they are

properly applicable in order clearly to reflect income. The first

such case, Galatoire Bros, v. Lines, 23 F. 2d 676 (C.A. 5th), affirming

11 F. 2d 878 (E.D. La.), involved the taxable year 1917- In that case

I



the taxpayer leased certain business property for a period of ^5 months

commencing January 1, 191?^ and ending September 30, 1920, "for and

,, in consideration of a monthly rental of tvo hundred and fifty ($250.00)

I dollars, payable monthly and fifty (50) per cent of the profits of the

[ restaurant conducted in said building during the years 1917, and the

obligation on the part of said lessees to board the lessor and his

, family during the year 19IT." 23 F. 2d 676. The lessor's 50^ of

the profit for 1917 amounted to $16,971.63, and the cost of meals

furnished to the lessor and his family during that year amounted to

j

$2,736. Applicable to the payments at issue in the present case is

i

I the conclusion of the Court of Appeals in the Galatoire case (23 F. 2d

676-677) that:

The lease does not purport to make the
promise to pay those amounts vhen ascertained
a part of 'the consideration for the rented premises
during the year 1917 only. By the terras of the lease
contract the consideration for those payments was,
not the use of the premises during 1917 only, but
"the present lease," vhich vas for a term of 45
months. In paying those amounts the lessees paid
part of the consideration for the use of the
premises for 33 months succeeding the year 1917

.

The expenditures in question being in part a con-

sideration for the use of the rental premises
after the year 1917, the whole thereof cannot
properly be considered "necessary expenses actually
paid in carrying on any business or tradftf during
that year, and only the part thereof properly
attributable to the process of earning income

during that year was deductible from the gross income

for that year. [Citations.]"

In many other comparable situations the courts have held that

rental payments are deductible only for the year in which they

are applicable, or over the term of the lease, rather than in the

year of payment. In J. Alland & Bro., Inc. v. Commissioner , 1 B.T.A. 63I,



and J. Alland & Bro., Inc. v. United States , 28 F. 2d 792 (Mass.)^

for instance, the Board of Tax Appeals and the District Court of

Massachusetts held that advance rental payment made hy a cash basis

taxpayer under a lease giving it possession of the leased premises o

January 1, 1922, were not deductible from 1921 income.

In King Amusement Co. v. Commissioner , hk F. 2d 709 (C.A. 6th),

certiorari denied, 282 U.S. 900, the taxpayer occupied certain premi

under a lease for a term expiring 15 years from May 1, I9II. In

1920, in order to obtain an extension of the lease for an additional

10 years it was required to procure responsible parties to guarantee

payment of the rent for the extended period. Two of the taxpayer's

stockholders undertook to make such guarantee for a fee of $25,000
,

each. The $50,000 was paid to them and the extension was executed

in 1920, nearly 5 years before expiration of the exising lease. The

taxpayer claimed the $50,000 as a business expense deduction on its

1920 return on the ground the payment was neither a bonus nor an

advance payment of rent. In denying the deduction, the Court of

Appeals said in part (p. 710):

In the case at bar, the petitioner desired to
lease the property at a stipulated annual rental
agreed upon with the owner. The owner would not
make the lease except upon a guaranty of the pay-
ment of the rent, and it became necessary for

petitioner to pay Finsterwald and King $50,000
to become guarantors. This was neither an

"ordinary and necessary expense" nor compensation
"for personal services" in carrying on the business,
but was an expenditure for an asset which the
petitioner could not utilize for nearly five years.

It is true that the payment added nothing to the
"value of the lease" or "the rental value of the
property." It was none the less an expenditure
which it was necessary for petitioner to make to
acquire property — a leasehold to use in its busi-
ness in the future. In our opinion it was a capital
investment, subject to annual allowances for

exhaustion during the period of the lease. * * * {



To the Game effect, see Lichtenberser-Ferguson Co. v. V/elch

5U F. 2d 570 (C,A, 9th); Saks & Go. v. Commissioner . 20 B.T.A. II51.

I
Ttie principle of these cases has been uniformly applied in case

'

2/
of bonus and advance rental payments such as involved here.

Particularly applicable here because of similarity of the factual

1

'situations are Galatoire Bros . v. Lines , 23 F. 2a 676 (C.A. 5th);

i

Baton Coal Co. v. Commissioner , 51 F. 2d ^69 (C.A. 3d), certiorari

denied, 28^ U.S. 67U; Home Trust Co . v. Commissioner , 65 F. 2d 532

(C.A. 8th); Main & McKinney Bldg. Co. v. Commissioner . II3 F. 2d 8I

(C.A. 5th), certiorari denied, 3II U.S. 688; Southvestein Hotel Co.

I

V. United States , 115 F. 2d 686 (C.A. 5th), certiorari denied, 312

U.S. 703; Wolan v. Commissioner , l84 F. 2d 101 (C.A. 10th); Cooper

Foundation v. O'Malley, 221 F. 2d 279 (C.A. 8th); Bloedel's Jevelry ,

I

Inc. v. Commissioner, 2 B.T-.A. 61I; H. Fendrich, Inc. v. Commissioner,

3 B.T.A. 77; Jos. No Neel Co. v. Commissioner , 22 T.C. IO83;

Fitzsimons v. Commissioner , 37 T.C. 179; Williamson v. Commissioner , 37

T.C. 9^1.

In Baton Coal Co. v. Commissioner , supra

,

the taxpayer, on

November 1^, 1926, negotiated a renewal of a lease under vhich it

was operating certain coal properties. The new lease was to run

from November 1, 1926 [date of expiration of the old lease], until

J7 The principle is equally applicable in the converse situation
where the lessor spends money or incurs obligations in procuring a

lease upon his property, and the expenditure is required to be

amortized over the life of the lease. Young v. Commissioner , 59
F. 2d 691 (C.A. 9th); Wells Fargo B. & U. Trust Co . v. Commissioner ,

163 F. 2d 521 (C.A. 9thY. See also, Bonwit Teller & Co. v. Commissioner ,

53 F. 2d 381 (C.A. 2d), certiorari denied, 28^^ U.S. 69O; Central

Bank Blcok Ass'n v. Commissioner , 57 F. 2d 5 (CA. 5th); Griffiths v.

Commissioner , 70 "f. 2d 946 (C.A. 7th); Commissioner v. Boylston
Market Ass'n. I31 F. 2d 966 (C.A. 1st).



all coal had "been mined and removed from property covered by the i|

lease. It provided for the payment of $50,000 upon execution and

delivery of the lease; for the payment of $51,250 on May 1, 1927; fc

payment of a stipulated royalty vith a minimum such payment of $26, Cl

annually; for the payment of taxes by the lessee; and for payment tc

the lessor of one-half of the net profits of the operation. In

rejecting the taxpayer's contention that the payments of $50,000

in 1926 and $51,250 in I927 constituted deductible expenses in the

respective years of payment the Court of Appeals said, in part

(51 F. 2d, p. kjO):

It is clear that the payments of $50,000 in I926

and $51,250 in I927 did not constitute rental
payments for these respective years, but
together represented the payment of a bonus or

rental in advance for the entire term of the lease,

the length of which was determinable by the
quantity of coal in the ground divided by the
average annual output. The lease was to run until
exhaustion of the coal. It is clearly evident,
therefore, that those sum-s, together with the other

payments specified in the lease, constituted the
consideration for a lease during the entire
period, and that, under the law and the regulations,
those sums must be apportioned as an expense over
the whole term of the lease, and are not deductible
as a business expense of the year in which they
were paid. [Citations.]

In Main & McKinney Bldg. Co . v. Commissioner , supra , the taxpfl

in 1926, purchoced by assignment a 99~year lease on certain real

property expiring in 2024, agreeing to assume all of the obligation:

under the lease and agreeing in addition, to pay as additional rent

the sum of $10,000 a year for the first 25 years after the assignmei.

In denying the deduction in full for those years of the $10,000

additional payments made by the taxpayer in 193^ and 1935 the Court

of Appeals said in part (II3 F. 2d, pp. 8I-82):



For the piorposes of this decision, it is
immaterial vhether these annual payments were
part of the purchase price, or were additional rentals;
in either event, these suras, together with the other
payments specified, constituted the consideration for
a lease over the entire ijeriod of ninety-eight years.
This lease was executed in consideration of cash
paid, together withihe payments and obligations
specified in article two of the contract.
Article two named the sums here in dispute. This
court is committed to the doctrine that advence
payment of rent, made in consideration of a lease
for a longer period of time, have the character
of capital investments whose benefits are spread
throughout the life of the lease, and only an
aliquot part of such expenditure is deductible
in any tax year. [Citations.]

Southwestern Hotel Co. v. United States , supra , was a suit for

refund of income taxes paid for the fiscal year ended August 31, 1935.

Southwestern Hotel Co. v. United States , decided March 23, 1940

(27 A.F.T.R. 968). In that case, the taxpayer, on September 1, 1933,

leased certain.hotel property for a term of 99 years under an agreement

which provided for the payment of graduated monthly rentals, and, as

"Additional Money Rentals" the taxpayer agreed to make all payments as

they became due on a balance of $424,000 on a note secured by a

mortgage on the hotel building. This balance was payable over a

period of years which period was shorter than the estimated life of

the building, to wit, 33 l/3 years. There became due and payable on

this mortgage indebtedness during the taxpayer's fiscal year ended

August 31, 1935, the sum of $l8,000, which amount was paid under the

additional money rental provision of the lease. The Commissioner

ruled that the $l8,000 should be allocated over the life of the hotel

building, 33 I/3 years, and allowed a deduction for the year in issue

in the amount of $5,280. The taxpayer sued, claiming the full amount

of $18,000 as a deduction, and the District Court sustained the

Commissioner's determination. 27 A.F.T.R. 968. On appeal, the Court



of Appeals considered the question to be "whether these pajrments made

in satisfaction of the mortgage debt constituted an ordinary and

necessary expense paid or incurred during the taxable year in carrying

on the business," within the meaning of the applicable statutory m

provision, and concluded that detemiination of this ulitmate question

is reached "by deciding whether this payment was rental for the use

and occupancy of the premises during the particular year in which it

was made, or whether it was an advance payment of rental which

exceeded the actual value of the use for the year in which it was

paid, and which was made in consideration of a lease for a longer

period of time." 115 F- 2d, p. 687. It held that the mortgage payment

"were clearly advance payments in contemplation of future benefits

accruing during the remainder of the lease," and that they should have

been spread over the life of the lease instead of over the shorter fl

period representing the estimated useful life of the mortgaged buildin.

115 F. 2d, p. 688.

Particularly applicable here, also, is the statement of the Court

of Appeals in Southwestern Hotel Co . v. United States , supra , p. 688,

that:

The fact that these payments were called
"additional rentals" in the lease contract can

avail appellant nothing- The character of such

payments must be determined in the light of the

facts and circumstances surrounding them, and

the character, not the name, must control. To

hold otherwise would defeat the purpose of the

act. If the name controlled the fact, this tax
could be avoided by the ignorant by chance
misnomer, and by the learned by intentional misnomer. \

See, also. Cooper Foundation v. O'Malley , supra , and Home Trust Co . v.

Commissioner , supra .



Admittedly, the question whether the p&yments constitute rental

expense, on other ordinary and necessary business expense, -within

the meaning of the deduction statute, rather than advance rentals

or capital investments, depends primarily upon the facts of the

particular case. In the instant case, the taxpayer concedes that the

basic problem is one "of characterizing the payments here in question

as current rental expenses or as capital expenditures; and this

characterization is dependent upon the underlying purpose for the

payments." (Br. 11.) The only evidence in this case of the "underlying

purpose" of the payments here in issue is the brief stipulation of the

parties (R. 19-22) and the two lease agreements entered into between

the taxpayer and the IMiversity of Washington (Exs. 3-C and k-D)

.

The taxpayer- 's argument (ir. 10-14) that the payments in issue were

current rental payments is based solely on the provisions of paragraph

2 of the supplemental lease agreement cf February 5, 1958 (Ex. k-D,

p. 3) and the stipulated fact (R. 22) that the payments were recorded

in the rental expense account of the taxpayer's books in the years of

payment and were recorded by the Ifaiversity of Washington, a tax

exempt organization, as rental income for the years in which received.

Paragraph 2 of the supplemental lease of February 5^ 195^^

relied upon by the taxpayer, provides as follows:

2. Lessee will pay to the Lessor the s^jm of

$80,000.00 on November 1, I96O; the sum of $80,000.00
on November 1, I96I; and the sum of $80,000.00 on
November 1, I962, as additional rentals over and
above all rentals provided for under the terms

of said lease . ( Emphasi s supplied
.

)

The "lease" referred to therein is the lease of July 18, 1953

(Ex. 3-C). The provision does not, contrary to the taxpayer's contention,

characterize such payments as current rentals, but as "additional rentals

over and above all rentals provided for" vinder the lease of July 18, 1953^



and the Tax Court qiiite properly pointed out (R. 32) that if the

characterization of the payments in the agreement as "rentals" is

accepted, it does not necessarily follow that the taxpayer can deduct

the full amount in the years paid. There is nothing in the record to

demonstrate that they were intended to be, or were in fact, current

rentals rather than advanced rentals.

As the Tax Court pointed out (R. 33)^ the supplemental lease

agreement makes no explanation of why the "additional rentals" were

to be paid. Moreover, the taxpayer offered no testimony to explain

the pirrpose of the payments. (R. 35, fn. 1.) Also, contrary to the

taxpayer's contention (Br. 12), the taxpayer's treatment of the

payments on its books and in its tax returns is not determinative of

their purpose or character. If this were so, the Conmiissioner would

be precluded from questioning the correctness of a taxpayer's returns.

Compare Oesterreich v. Commissioner , supra

.

The authorities cited by the taxpayer (Br. 13-1^) are not to the

contrary. Hyde Park Realty v. Commissioner , 211 F. 2d 462 (C.A. 2d),

cited by the taxpayer (Br. 13), so far as the taxpayer's reliance is

concerned, involved an alternative contention, unsupported by the facif,

that advance rentals received by the vendor and credited to the

vendee as such upon completion of sale of the property, constituted

a reduction of the purchase price rather than rental income to the

57 So far as the University of Washington is concerned, if it were ata

able organization, it seems clear that such payments would represent w
Income when received. Cf. Commissioner v. Ijjron, 97 F. 2d 70 (C.A. 9t);

United States v. Boston & Providence R.R. Corp. , 37 F. 2d 67O (C.A. It)

Renwick v. United States. 87 F. 2d 123 (C.A. 7th); Astor Holding Co . .

Commissioner , I35 F. 2d 47 (C.A. 5th); Hirsch Improvement Co . v.

Commissioner, 1^3 F. 2d 912 (C.A. 2dS; Gilken Corp. v. Commissioner, 7^

F. 2d 141 (C.A. 6th).

d
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purchaser. One issue involved in Western Contracting Corp . v. Commissioner,

'271 F. 2d 69^ (C.A. 8th), cited "by the taxpayer (Br. 13), vas whether
i

the taxpayer was entitled to deduct amounts paid as rentals for

certain heavy construction equipment which it first acquired under

lease agreements and subsequently piirchased at the end of the lease

period. In holding that the several lease agreements were not conditional

sales agreements, and that the payments in issue constituted rental,

the Court of Appeals took into consideration many factors, none of which

related to the taxpayer's treatment of the payments on its books.

Applicable here, however, is the statement of the Court in Western

Contracting Corp. v. Commissioner , supra , p. 699 > that "in determining

this basic issue, we must look to the intention of the parties and the

actual legal effect of the instrument, and cases therein cited.

Benton v. Commissioner , 197 F. 2d 7^5 (C.A. 5th), cited by the

taxpayer (Br. 13-1^), is one of the authorities cited in Western

Contracting Corp. v. Commissioner , supra , p. 699^ and is essentially

to the same effect. At issue was the question whether an agreement

purporting on its fact to be a lease agreement was, instead, a

conditional sales agreement. The Court of Appeals conceived the Tax

Court's decision that it was a conditional sales agreement as being

based primarily upon objective economic factors rather than upon a

determination of the intention of the parties, and on the basis of

the Tax Court's own findings the Court of Appeals concluded that the

transaction in question was a lease rather than a conditional sale.

Ihe payments here in issue were made pursuant to a supplemental

lease agreement, and in the absence of any explanation of their pur-

pose the determination of their character, whether current rental



for possession and use of the demised premises in the year of payment

or advance rental paid as part of the consideration for adding the

demised premises to the property covered by the original lease,

requires a consideration of the terms of the original lease (Ex. 3-C)

and the circumstances, as stipulated by the parties (R. 19-22), under

which the supplemental lease was executed, as well as the terms of thCf

supplemental lease (Ex. k'T))

.

The lease agreement of July l8, 1953 (Ex. 3-C), demised to the

taxpayer for a period of 35 years from November 1, 195^ > an obviously

valuable group of commercial buildings known as the Metropolitan

Tract in downtown Seattle. It provided for payment by the taxpayer

of annual rental in the respective amounts of $1,600,000, $1,700,000,

$1,700,000, and $1,800,000 for the first four years of the lease

5/
period, and a percentage rental for each lease year thereafter

equal to specified percentages of the gross rental income received by

the taxpayer from subtenants, vith a guaranteed minimum rental of

$1,000,000 per lease year. Ihe lease further stated that it was .Jl

understood that all rentals provided therein were predicated on the

assumption that the entire demised premises would be capable of being

occupied, operated, or used by the taxpayer at all times; and that

if for any reason other than default of the taxpayer any portion of tl

demised premises should not be capable of being occupied, operated, oi

used by the taxpayer, the annual minimum guaranteed rentals: should be

57 As the Tax Court pointed out (R. 35), the fact that the taxpayer

paid a fixed annual rental during the first four years of the origina:

lease has no controlling bearing on the underlying reason for the

$80,000 payments here in issue. Moreover, there is no explanation of

the reason for fixed annual payments during the first four years of

the original lease.

d



- 27 -

reduced by a proportionate amount for the period of time such space

remained untenantable; and the fixed annual rental should be reduced in

a like manner of the situation developed in the first four years. (R. 26-27.)

Under the original lease, the taxpayer agreed to modernize the

buildings on the demised premises aitd to expend in such modernization

at least $2,000,000, such modernization program to be conmenced

promptly upon entering into possession of the demised premises and to

be completed if reasonably possible on or before November 1, 1958. On

the other hand, the lessor agreed to create a "New Building Fund" and

to pay a percentage of the gross rental incane it received from the demised

premises, limited to a certrdn amount per year, into the fund, which

was to be used to reimburse the taxpayer for such modernization

expenditxires and for the construction of new buildings and major

improvements and additions to the property. The taxpayer agreed to

study from time to time the desirability and economic necessity for

the construction of new buildings ai:d capital alterations, and to make

recommendations to the lessor with reference thereto. The lessor

had the right to determine what buildings and capital improvements

would be made, and the lessee was to be responsible for the construction

of such building and improvements with the right to be reimbursed

from the New Building Fund for the cost thereof. (R. 27-28.)

On January 29, 1958, the University of Washington reacquired

from the United States a part of the post office site which had been

carved out of the original Metropolitan Tract in 1902. As consideration

for this land, the University agreed to demolish the old post office

and to construct a new post office building on that part of the tract

retained by the United States. (R. 21.)



I
The supplemental lease here in issue (Ex. i|-D) was executed

February 5, 1958, more than 30 years before the original lease would

expire. The most obvious purpose of that agreement was to include th

newly acquired post office tract with the properties covered by the

original lease. After a number of preliminary recitals, one of which

describes; the reacquired tract and another of which recites reqcquisi

of the tract under a contract which the University agreed to con-

struct a new post office building for the United States^ the substanti

part of the supplemental lease first provides in paragraph 1 that the

described property "shall be deemed to be a part of the demised premii

covered by said lease of July l8, 1953^ and any new structure locatec

thereon shall be subject in all respects to the rights and obligatior

of the parties as set forth in said lease with respect to the origixu

structures upon the demised premises." If further provided that witJ

limiting the generality of the foregoing provision, "it is specificeuj

agreed that monies in the New Building Fund provided for by Article ']

of said lease dated July l8, 1953^ niay also be expended with respect c

the tract of land described in this Supplemental Lease and structure

thereon, for the same purposes and in accordance with those same

provisions of said lease of July l8, 1953> which govern expenditures

out of the New Building Fund with respect to the demised premises,

initially described in. said lease, and structures thereon." -MM

The supplemental lease next provides in paragraph 2, quoted abc2)

for payment by the taxpayer "as additional rentals over and above

all rentals provided for under the terras of said lease" of three

payments of $80,0CX) each on November 1, I96O, November 1, I96I, and

November 1, I962.

1



Paragraph 3 of the supplemental lease then provided that the

taxpayer "shall perform and fulfill each and every of the undertakings

and agreements of Lessor under or arising out of Lessor's said

contract No. GS-RIO-SWPO-A with the General Services Administration

of the Iftiited States of America, and any and all supplemental agreements

relating thereto, at a cost to the Lessor not to exceed the sum of

$870,000.00." It was further provided that "For such cost, not

exceeding the sum of $870,000.00, Lessee shall be reimbursed out of

the New Building Fund established by Lessor under the provision of

Article VII of said lease dated July I8, 1953. Any excess of such

cost over and above the sum of $870,000.00 shall be borne and paid

by Lessee."

The concluding paragraph of the supplemental agreement merely

provided that "Except as modified herein, all of the terms, conditions

and provisions of said lease shall continue in full force and effect."

To support its contention that the $80,000 payments under the

supplemental lease were not made as part of the consideration for

including the post office tract and New Washington Building in the

leased properties, the taxpayer quotes one of the introductory

paragraphs of the supplemental lease agreement as stating the considera-

tion for the taxpayer's right to future use and possession of the

tract added to the original leasehold. (Br. 11-12.) This and the other

preliminary recitals are indicative of the scope and purpose of the

supplemental lease, but the consideration for its execution is stated

in the substantive provisions of the agreement noted above. The

inclusion of the tract in the leasehold estate imposed upon the tax-

payer all of the obligations with respect to that tract, including

the obligation to pay rent based upon gross rentals received, which



it had assumed under the original lease with respect tc the other

properties covered by that agreement, Iri addition^ the taxpayer

assumed a further obligation under the supplemental lease to malce

three payments of $80,000 each on November 1, I96O, November 1, I96I,

and November 1, I962, "as additional rentals over and above all

rentals provided for under the terms of sell lease," and to carry out

the University's controct v;itn the Uni ocd Ctotes "at a cost to the

Lessor not to exceed the suia of ii>870,OCO.OO. " Presumably that

represented the amount of the University's undertaking, and cost of

performing this contract was to be paid out of the New Building

Fund, which was the property of the University (Ex. 3'C, Art. VIl), to

the extent of that amount; and only if the cost of performing that

contract should exceed $870,000 would the taxpayer incur any financial

obligation on that account. When considered in the light of other

provisions of the supplemental lease, and other evidence of record,

it would seem naive to suggest that the taxpayer's agreement to

perform the University's contract with the Government, at the

University's expense, represented the only consideration for adding

the post office tract and new Washington Building to the taxpayer's Ic

Moreover, in the absence of aiiy other explanation, the timing of ^

the $80,000 payments, and the fact that only three such payments werei

required to be made while the tract added to the taxpayer's leasehold;

would be subject to the original lease agreement for many more years,

support the conclusion that the payments represented consideration fa

including the new tract and the new Washington Building in the leasehj

There is nothing in the record to associate the payments in issue witliJ

taxpayer's occupancy or use of the added premises during the years of
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pajonent, or to explain their reasonableness as "additional rentals"

for the years of payment, or to explain hov such "additional rentals"

could be justified as rental expense for those particular three years

only vhile the added tract was at all times, including those three

years, also subject to the rental provisions of the original lease.

On the other hand, the parties stipulated (Stip. par. 10, between

R. 21 and R. 22) that it was decided by the Itoiversity and the

taxpayer that the Douglas Bviilding, smallest and least profitable

of the Metropolitan Tract buildings, would be demolished and a new and

much larger building constructed on the site. The record does not

indicate when this decision was made, or whether It was made incident

to reacqxiiring the post office tract. If the post office tract had

not been reacquired, and this decision had been carried out, no

additional lump sum rental would have been required under the original

lease. It is clear, however, that at the time the post office site

was reacquired and at the time the supplemental lease was executed, the

parties contemplated a building to occupy both the site of the Douglas

Building and the newly reacquired post office tract. The supplemental

lease specifically provided that the cost of the new building should

be paid out of the New Building Fund. There is no indication in the

record as to veiLue of the new Washington Building as an income

producing addition to the taxpayer's leasehold estate. It is reasonable

to assume, however, that such value was substantial. Likewise, there

is nothing in the record to indicate the intention of the parties,

at the time the supplemental lease was executed, with respect to when

the new building would be constructed. It is reasonable to assume,

however, in view of other record evidence, that a timetable for



construction had been agreed upon. Construction of the Washington

Building vas commenced on July 23, 1958, shortly after the supplement

lease was executed on February 5, 1958^ and the building vas formally

opened to occupancy on June 2, 196O, shortly before the first $80,000

payment was due under the supplemental lease on November 1, 196O.

That the three $80,000 payments under the supplemental lease

should be timed for the first three years of occupancy of the Washing

Building, rather than immediately following execution of the suppleme

lease or at some other later period, would not seem to be mere

coincidence. Rather, such timing of the "additional rentals" payment

seem logically to represent consideration for adding a new and valuali

1/
income producing asset to the taxpayer's leasehold estate. The

reacquired post office site and the new Washington Building representi

a substantial investment by the University of Washington, which it ha

contributed to the taxpayer's leasehold estate, and it would seem

justified in demanding some return for the remainder of the lease

period over and above the rentals provided in the original lease

agreement.

77 The taxpayer, quoting excerpts from the Tax Court's opinion,
argues that "The Tax Court's implied finding that the rent abatement
clause was applicable to the transaction in question is clearly
erroneous." (Br. ik-V^ .) The quoted portion of the Tax Court's opir:

(R* 33-3^) cannot be construed as on implied finding. Admittedly,
the Tax Court's reasoning is not clear. The so-called rent abatement
provision of the original lease (Ex. 3-C, pp. 7-8) may have applied
during the period the Douglas Building was untenantable, but there
is nothing in that provision to indicate it would apply after the ne\*

Washington Building, which replaced the Douglas Building, became tenet

able, which was prior to the taxable years here in issue. However,
even if the Tax Court's reasoning seems confused, its decision
nevertheless must be affirmed if it is correct. Helvering v. Gowran ,

302 U.S. 238, 2k3-2k6', Riley Co . v. Commissioner , 311 U.S. 55, 59;

B.F. Goodrich Co. v. United States , 321 U.S. 126, 127; McDonald v.

Commissioner, 323 U.S. 57, 64, fn. 7*

i



In any event, we submit the taxpayer has failed to meet its

"burden of proving that the "additional rentals" here in issue vere

in fact payments for the possession or use of the demised premises

for the respective years of payment. The Tax Court's conclusion to

the contrary is clearly consistent with the facts and the authorities

discussed above.

The taxpayer's attempted distinction (Br. l8-22) of the cases

cited in the Tax Court's opinion is without substance. As stated above,

the question whether an amount is deductible from gross income as

"rentals or other payments required to be made as a condition to the

continued use or possession, for purposes of the trade or business,

of property to which the taxpayer has not taken or is not taking title

or in which he has no equity" within the meaning of Section 162(a)(3) is

a question of fact to be determined from the evidence in the particular

case. The cases cited in the Tax Coiirt's opinion, despite any factual

differences, are pertinent authority for the principles for which they

were cited, and those principles are applicable to the facts of the

present case.

Nor is there any merit to the taxpayer's contention (Br. 22-24)

that this Court's review is not limited by the clearly erroneous rule.

Not only is the issue involved essentially one of fact, but the taxpayer

has produced no convincing evidence to support its claim, and the

record presents no basis for reversal.

Not only is this true with respect to the taxpayer's contention

(Br. 10-24) that the payments in issue consituted rent within the

meaning of Section 162(a)(3), but it also is true with respect to its

further contention (Br. 2U-31) that in any event the payments represented

ordinary and necessary business expenses within the meaning of



Section 162(a) generally.

It is first contended (Br. 24-26) that in denying deduction of

payments as ordinary and necessary business expenses the Tax Court

applied "an erroneous standard of deductibility" (Br. 2U). The

contention is based upon a quoted excerpt (Br. 25) from the Tax

Court's opinion (R. 36). In commenting upon the inapplicability of

certain cases there relied upon by the taxpayer (R. 35), tvo of

which are again relied upon here (Br. 30-31), the Tax Court said

(R. 35-36):

Those case involved the deductibility as business
expenses of losses suffered by taxpayers on the

sale of stock or securities they had been obligated
to purchase in connection vith their cverydoy
business operations. Those cases are not controlling
here because we aie not concerned with losses,

and, furthermore, we have no evidence that petitioner
was required to make these $80,000 payments in

connection with the everyday operation of its business.

The Tax Court's statement is still pertinent with respect to the

applicability of the decisions in Comniissioner v. Bagley & Sewall Co

221 F. 2d 9UU (C,A. 2d), and Booth Newspapers, Inc. v. United States

303 F. 2d 916 (Ct. CI.), again relied upon by the taxpayer (Br. 30-31

The so-called "standard of deductibility" is spelled out in the

statute. To be deductible under Section 162(a), expenditures must

be paid or incurred in carrying on the trade or business of the taxp'

and they must constitute ordinary and necessary expenses of the busi-

as distinguished from other types of expenditures, such as capital

expenditures. See Welch v. Helvering , 290 U.S. Ill; Commissioner v.

Tellier , 383 U.S. 68?, and authorities cited. The deductibility of

expenditures as ordinary and necessary business expenses depends upo

the facts of the particular case, and a discussion of the authoritie
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rould serve no useful purpose here because the taxpayer has presented

10 evidence vhich vould justify characterizing the $80,000 payments

inder its supplemental lease as ordinary and necessary business expense

dthin the meaning of the statute.

Relying upon the decision in \^oming National Bank of Casper,

ftromlng v. Comiilssioner, 23 B.T.A. kOQ (Br. 27-28), and quoting excerpts

Br. 28) from the introductory recitals in the supplemental lease as

Indicative of the motivation for inclxoding the post office tract in

Lts leasehold, the taxpayer asserts that its obligation to make the

payments in issue existed by virtue of contract in order to "fulfill

the obligations set forth in the lease agreement of 1953 and the sup-

plemental lease agreement; i.e., to maintain the character of the

originally demised premises as a center of store and office buildings

3f the first class". This, however, is not sufficient to establish

bhe character of the payments a.e ordinary and necessary business

expenses. The facts in Wyoming National Bank of Casper, looming v.

:!ommissloner , supra, were sufficient to establish the business e;:pen.:e

character of payments Involved in that case, but here, as the Tax

:!ourt said (R. 37); "we have no evidence that would bring petitioner's

situation within the ambit of that case."

The Tax Court did not err in denying deduction of the payments

Ln issue as ordinary and necessary business expenses.



CONCLUSION

The decision of the Tax Court is correct e It is supported by

the facts and the law and should be affirmed.
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IN THE

United States Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

University Properties, Inc.,

Petitioner,

Commissioner of Internal Revenue,

Respondent.

PETITION TO REVIEW A DECISION OF
THE TAX COURT OF THE UNITED STATES

REPLY BRIEF OF PETITIONER

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

As shown by the record herein and as discussed in

Petitioner's Opening Brief, substantial evidence was pre-

sented to the Tax Court supporting petitioner's contention

that the payments in question were deductible in full as

cuiTent rentals.

Petitioner amplifies herein its argument that the mutual

treatment by petitioner and its lessor of the payments

in question as current rentals in their respective books

of account constitute substantial, if not compelling, evi-

dence of their character as current rentals, by citing
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additional authority regarding the evidential weight of

such book entries.

Respondent's brief, while citing numerous cases, fails

to supply a legal basis for the Tax Court's decision. Nor

does respondent point to any competent evidence in the

record to support the findings and decision of the Tax

Court. Mere speculation or conjecture by the respondent,

and by the Tax Court, do no furnish a basis for affirm-

ing respondent's determination of a deficiency in peti-

tioner's income tax.

ARGUMENT

A. The book entries of petitioner and its lessor are en-

titled to great weight in determining the character

of the payments as current rentals.

The issue raised by the respondent's determination of

a deficiency in petitioner's income taxes for the years here

in question and presented to this court on appeal relates

to the characterization of payments made by petitioner

as either rentals, capital expenditures, or advance rentals.

The basis for the respondent's disallowance of the deduc-

tions claimed by petitioner was that "such amount did

not represent a current rental payment but a capital ex-

penditure or advance rental not deductible in the year

paid." (R. 9, 10)

Respondent asserts that "the present case is concerned

with the time for taking deductions." (Br. 14) and states

"The taxpayer paid to the University of Washington in

each of the fiscal years ended October 31, 1961 and Octo-

ber 31, 1962, the sum of $80,000 payable for those years

under the supplemental lease agreement of February 5,
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1958." (Emphasis supplied) (Br. 9) Petitioner heartily

concurs in these statements and urges reversal of the Tax

Court's decision for the reason that there is no substantial

evidence in the record to refute them.

Petitioner supports its contention that the payments

were current rentals by reference to the supplemental

lease agreement
(
Jt. Ex. 4-D ) and the fact that both peti-

tioner and its lessor treated the paxonents on their respec-

tive books of account as current rentals. (R.-22) Peti-

tioner's Opening Brief, pages 10-14, presents the basis

for petitioner's claimed deductions of payments as cur-

rent rentals.

Petitioner's reliance on the mutual construction by peti-

tioner and its lessor of the payments in question as cur-

rent rentals, as reflected by the book entries of the re-

spective parties, is supported by the following authorities.

In Sam E. Wilson, Jr., 20 T. C. 505, 509 ( 1953, rev'd

on appeal on other issues, 219 F.2d 126) the court stated:

"Book entries are presumed to be correct unless

sufficient evidence is adduced to overcome the pre-

sumption."

And it was stated in Stout v. Commissioner, 273 F.2d

345, 351 (4th Cir. 1959):

"Book entries are not necessarily conclusive proof

of the facts they represent. When made substantially

contemporaneously with the events used long before

any tax controversy arises, as these were, they are

entitled to great weight. When the conduct of the

parties is shown to be consistent with the book en-

tries, there is no justifiable basis for findings in con-

flict with their disclosure. At least a contrar\' finding,

on this record, cannot be said to rest upon substantial

evidence."
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In Gordon v. Commissioner, 268 F.2d 105 (3rd Cir.

1959), it was determined that in finding contrary to the

record entries in the taxpayer's and its suppher's books,

"* * " the Tax Court arbitrarily disregarded unchallenged,

competent and relevant evidence in the record which was

inherently credible." (page 107); and that "" ' * the rea-

sons given by the Tax Court for rejecting the uncontro-

verted evidence of the book entries are wholly without

substance." (page 109)

Here also, the book entries of petitioner and its lessor

(R.-22), which were consistent with each other and with

the parties' agreement ( supplemental lease agreement, Jt.

Ex. 4-D), treated the payments as rentals accruing in the

tax years here involved. The Tax Court relied on no sub-

stantial evidence to the contrary and its decision must

therefore be reversed.

B. The ^^presumption of correctness^^ of the Commis-
sioner's determination was dispelled.

Since the petitioner presented evidence of the charac-

terization of the payments in question as current rentals,

any presumption of correctness of the Commissioner's

determination otherwise operable disappeared. As was

stated by this court in Clark v. Commissioner, 266 F.2d

698, 706 (9th Cir. 1959)

"If the taxpayer introduces evidence from which
the determination of the Commissioner contained

in a deficiency notice could be found inaccurate then

the presumption disappears."

In Stout V. Commissioner, supra, the court stated:

"The presumption of correctness is procedural. It

transfers to the taxpayer the burden of going for-



ward with the evidence, but it disappears in a pro-

ceeding to review for assessment when substantial

evidence contrary to the Commissioner's finding is

introduced. Thereafter, the Tax Court, in such a pro-

ceeding, must make its own findings based upon the
evidence before it, and we may affirm only if the
findings of the Tax Court are supported by substan-
tial evidence in the record of tliat proceeding." ( Em-
hasis supphed) page 350.

There is no evidence in the record of the Tax Court

proceeding, however, that would support a finding that

petitioner's payments were advance rents or capital ex-

penditures. As pointed out in petitioner's Opening Brief,

the Tax Court's reasons for denying petitioner's deduc-

tions were premised upon erroneous factual inferences

and on erroneous conceptions of the law relating thereto.

(Br. 14-17) As there is no substantial evidence in the

record supporting the Tax Court's findings, its decision,

therefore, cannot be affirmed.

C. Respondent's cases relating to presumption of cor-

rectness and burden of proof are inapplicable.

Respondent cites, without discussion, numerous cases

at pages 13 and 14 of its brief relative to the presumption

of correctness of the Commissioner's findings and to the

burden of proof in a Tax Court proceeding. The cases

cited, however, bear no factual similarity to the instant

case. It is submitted that the law relative to the above

issues is as set forth in the cases discussed in the preced-

ing section of this brief.

D. Cases cited by respondent relative to the time for

taking deductions are distinguishable.

At pages 14 and 15 respondent cites numerous cases

for the general proposition that a taxpayer cannot deduct



expenses from a given >ear's income which are attribut-

able to income earned in other years. Again, these c-ases

are cited \s"ithout discussion in respondent's brief. The

proposition stated has vaHdit\- with respect to the instant

case only if the facts here show that the pavements in ques-

tion were attributable to other years. The cases cited by

respondent are, without exception, so factually dissimilar

from the present case as to supply no authorit\- for the

Tax Court's disallowance of the deductions herein

claimed. Respondent apparently ac-corded the case of

Lichtenberger-Ferguson Co. v. Welch, 54 F.2<1 570

(Resp. Br. 15, 19) sufficient weight to have cited it t%\"ice

in his brief. That case involved a claimed deduction for

an ad\ertising expense contracted for in the >"ear prior

to the one in which the advertising senices were to be

rendered. Both the actual pa\Tnent of the expense and the

receipt of the sendees occurred in a tax >ear subsequent

to the one in which the taxpa\er claimed its deduction.

In the present case, the additional rentals were paid in

the >ears in which the consideration for the pa>"ment

was received.

E. Cases cited by respondent for the proposition that

the payments here in question icere not current

rentals do not support that proposition.

The cases cited by respondent at pages 15 to 22 of its

brief, few of which were discussed, do not support the

decision of the Tax Court in the instant case. To discuss

and distinguish each case indi\-iduaUy would be an un-

duly burdensome task and would unnecessaril>- lengthen

this brief, in hght of the patent irrele%anc\- of the great

majority- of such cases. Briefl>-. the great majorit\- of the

cases cited are distinguishable upon one or more of the
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following facts, none of which are present in the instant

case.

1. Cases involving close relationship between lessor

and lessee, with consequent finding that payments were

excessive or not required: Utter-McKinley Mortuaries v.

Commissioner, 225 F.2d 870 (Resp. Br. 15, 16, 19);

LeMoijne v. Commissioner, 47 F.2d 539 (Resp. Br. 16);

Limmericks, Inc. v. Commissioner, 165 F.2d 483 (Resp.

Br. 16); W. H. Armston Co. v. Commissioner, 188

F.2d 531 (Resp. Br. 16); White v. Fitzpatrick, 193

F.2d 398 (Resp. Br. 16); Wade Motor Co. v. Commis-

sioner, 241 F.2d 712, 26 T.C. 237 (Resp. Br. 16); Midland

Ford Tractor Co. v. Commissioner, 277 F.2d 11 (Resp.

Br. 16); Potter Electric & Signal Manufacturing Co., v.

Commissioner, 286 F.2d 200 (Resp. Br. 16); Fairmont

Park Raceway, Inc. v. Commissioner, 327 F.2d 780 ( Resp.

Br. 16); Van Zandt v. Commissioner, 341 F.2d 440 (Resp.

Br. 16).

2. Cases in which the "lessee" acquired an equity in

the "leased" property: Osterreich v. Commissioner, 226

F.2d 798 (Resp. Br. 15, 19) Bues v. Commissioner,

261 F.2d 176 (Resp. Br. 16).

3. Cases involving payments specifically designated by

the parties for application to a non-rental account: West

Virginia Northern Railway Co. v Commissioner, 283 F.2d

63 (Resp. Br. 16); King Amusement Co. v. Commis-

sioner, 44 F.2d 709 (Resp. Br. 18); Saks & Co. v. Commis-

sioner, 20 BTA 1151 (Resp. Br. 19); H. Feindrich, Inc.

V. Commissioner, 3 BTA 77 (Resp. Br. 19).

4. Cases involving payments required in first years of
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lease term which were grossly disproportionate to those

required in other years of the term: Galatoire Bros. v.

Lines, 23 F.2d 676, affirming 11 F.2d 878 (Resp. Br. 16,

19); Baton Coal Co. v. Commissioner, 51 F.2d 469

(Resp. Br. 19, 20); Main & McKinney Building Co. v.

Commissioner, 113 F.2d 81 (Resp. Br. 19, 20); South-

western Hotel Co. V. United States, 115 F.2d 686 (Resp.

Br. 19, 21, 22) Fitzsimmons v. Commissioner, 37 T.C. 179

(Resp. Br. 19).

The following cases cited by the respondent are also

distinguishable on the facts, and therefore do not consti-

tute authority for the Tax Court's determination in the in-

stant case. /. Allend & Bros., Inc. v. Commissioner, cited

at pages 17 and 18 of respondent's brief, is clearly dis-

tinguishable from the instant case for the reason that a de-

duction was there sought for payment made in a year

in which the taxpayer-lessee had no possession or right

to possession of the premises.

In Home Trust Company v. Commissioner, 65 F.2d

532 (Resp. Br. 19) there was no contention that the

payment in question, made to purchase the interest in a

20-year sub-lease of property of which the taxpayer had

become principal lessee under a 99 year lease, was rental.

The payment was conceded to be the cost of the acquisi-

tion of the sub-lease. There was no question as to the

characterization of the payment as current rental.

The issue considered in Wolan v. Commissioner, 184

F.2d 101 (Resp. Br. 19) (whether an unamortized portion

of advance rentals on the books of a liquidated corporate

lessee could be deducted in full by the purchaser of the

former lessee's assets in the year of such purchase) bears
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no relation whatever to the issues, legal or factual, in the

case at bar and for that reason may be disregarded.

Cooper Foundation v. O'Malleij, 221 F.2d 279 (Resp.

Br. 19), is likewise distinguishable.

BloedeTs Jeicelnj, Inc., 2 BTA 611, (Resp. Br. 19), is

similar on its facts to /. Alland & Bros., Inc. v. Commis-

sioner, supra, in that the question presented was whether

monies paid in a ta.\ \ear prior to the year in which the

lessee was entitled to possession of the premises could be

deducted in the year of payment. The case of WiUia7nson

V. Commissioner, 37 T. C. 941 (Resp. Br. 19) is distin-

guishable for the same reason.

In Jos. J. Neel Co. v. Commissioner, 22 T.C. 1083

(Resp. Br. 19) the issue presented was not whether the

deduction there sought was a rental payment, but whether

the obligation owed by the lessee, which was admittedly

an acquisition cost and not a rental obligation, was ratably

deductible over the term of the lease. The Commissioner

had contended that the obligation was not so deductible,

alleging that the obligation to pay was contingent. Thus,

neither the facts nor the legal issues there considered

bear any relation whatever to the instant case.

F. There is no substantial evidence in the record to

support the Tax Court's decision.

Respondent's discussion commencing at page 23 of its

brief does not fill the void evidenced by his failure to

cite cases of significant factual or legal relevancy. Peti-

tioner's argument for the deductibility of the payments as

current rentals is supported not only by provision 2 of

the supplemental lease agreement, quoted at page 23 of

respondent's brief, but also by the clause of the supple-
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mental lease agreement (quoted and discussed in peti-

tioner's Opening Brief at page 12) which clearly and un-

equivocally states the consideration for the inclusion of

the premises added to petitioner's leasehold. The supple-

mental lease agreement as written and construed by the

parties not only negatives the respondent's contention

that the payments in question constituted consideration

for the inclusion of the post office parcel, but affirma-

tively establishes that the payments were in fact paid

and received as current rentals. It is thus incumbent upon

respondent to point to substantial evidence in the record

that controverts the evidence supplied by petitioner (see

discussion supra, pp. 4, 5) Respondent must point to

substantial evidence in the record that establishes the

payments in question as advance rentals or capital ex-

penditures.

Respondent can cite no evidence whatever to dispel

tlie characterization of the payments as current rentals.

Respondent apparently asserts at page 29 of its brief, that

the "preliminary recitals" of the supplemental lease agree-

ment, though indicating the scope and purpose of the

agreement (which "preliminary recitals" presumably in-

clude the statement regarding petitioner's assmnption of

its lessor's obligation to the United States government to

demolish the old Post Office Building and construct a

new Post Office Building) were not "substantive" and

not expressive of the consideration supplied for the inclu-

sion of the increment to petitioner's leasehold estate. It

is naive to suggest that the assumption of this substantial

obligation does not constitute contractual consideration.

Prior to the execution of the supplemental lease agree-

ment, the petitioner was under no duty to perform its les-
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sor's obligations under the agreement with the United

States government. The sole responsibility retained by

the University of Washington in respect to its agreement

with the United States government was to supply funds,

to the extent of the $870,000, for the demolition and con-

struction of the new Post Office building. The petitioner

was required to pay the cost in excess of $870,000 relat-

ing to the said demolition and construction. (Jt. Ex. 4-D,

p. 3) It is elementary contract law that the creation of

petitioner's contingent liability to pay an amount in excess

of the $870,000 would be sufficient consideration for the

inclusion of the additional leasehold estate. Moreover,

the substantial duties connected with the supervision of

the project assumed by petitioner, in addition to the as-

sumption of myriad of other responsibilities, supplied

ample consideration.

As a basic premise, it may be stated that a lessor and

lessee may agree to a modification of the rents called for

under a lease and such modification will not, as a neces-

sary result, require characterization of the modified pay-

ments as something other than current rentals. It is only

when the modified payments are demonstrably character-

izable as something other than payments for current use

or occupation of the demised property that capitalization

of the modified payments will be required. Circumstances

which may lead to such a result, in the absence of con-

trary evidence, are: the requirement of a grossly dispro-

portionate payment during the first years of a term as

compared with payments due in subsequent years; a

close relationship between the parties, usually by reason

of family or ownership ties; evidence that the "lessee" is

in fact acquiring an equity in the property "leased"; or.
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a specific agreement by the parties that the payments

are to be apphed to non-rental accounts. (See cases cited

at pages 7-9, supra).

Respondent does not contend that the payments here

were grossly disproportionate. As indicated by respond-

ent's notice of deficiency, the issue presented is the char-

acterization of the payments as current rental (as con-

tended by petitioner), or advance rentals or acquisition

costs (as contended by respondent). (R. 9, 10) There is

no suggestion that the payments were excessive, unrea-

sonable, or that the parties here were in collusion to

avoid the payment of an income tax. Certainly the parties

did not designate the payments as being for something

other than current rentals, and it is conceded by the re-

spondent that the petitioner had not taken and was not

taking title to and had no equity in any of the property

under the lease. (Resp. Br. 10)

Respondent's statement (Br. 24) that the treatment by

petitioner and its lessor of the payments on its books and

in petitioner's tax returns as current rentals is not deter-

minative of their purpose or character is contrary to the

law. See Stout v. Commissioner; Gorden v. Coinmissioner

and Sam E. Wilson, Jr., supra. Respondent reasons that

if such treatment was determinative of the characteriza-

tion of the payments, the Commissioner would be pre-

cluded from questioning the correctness of the taxpayer's

returns. (Br. 24) While the treatment is determinative

if no contrary evidence is adduced by the Commissioner,

the Commissioner is not precluded from adducing such

evidence. The Commissioner's problem in the instant case

is that he has adduced no evidence to support a contrary

determination.
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In an apparent attempt to dilute the force of the har-

monious treatment of the payments by the petitioner

and its lessor, respondent cites authority for the proposi-

tion that, as a matter of tax accounting, payments, even

in the nature of advance rental, may be treated as current

income in the hands of the lessor. (Br. 24) The falacy

in this reasoning is that the petitioner's lessor is a tax

exempt organization and is therefore not required to

account pursuant to a fiction created by reason of tax law.

At pages 30-32 of its brief, the respondent alludes to

the alleged absence of an explanation for the payments

in question and the timing thereof. Hypothetical "rea-

sons" are therein conjured up by the respondent in an at-

tempt to characterize the payments as consideration for

the inclusion of the increment to petitioner's leasehold.

These "reasons", however, are nothing more than hypo-

thetical possibilities, unsupported by any evidence in the

record and, therefore, entitled to no weight whatever.

Respondent at page 31, further faults petitioner for

an alleged failure to explain the reasonableness of the

payments as additional rentals for the years of payment,

Dr to explain how the additional rentals could be justified

as rental expense for the years in question. But the Com-

missioner's notice of deficiency, and therefore the issues

presented in this case, did not include a reference to the

unreasonableness" of the payments in question and this

issue is therefore inappropriate and outside the scope

of this review. Moreover, in view of the fact that during

the years in question petitioner paid nearly two million

dollars annually to its lessor as rental (R. 9, 10), the con-

tention that an additional $80,000 per year should be con-

sidered "unreasonable" borders on the absurd. See discus-
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sion at pages 20 and 21 of petitioner's Opening Brief.

Additionally, the cases cited under point 4, pages 7, 8

supra, indicate, by negative implication, that in order

for a payment otherwise designated as rental to be con-

strued as an advance rental or capital expenditure the

payment must be grossly disproportionate to those re-

quired during the remainder of the lease term.

Respondent speculates that the Univeristy of Washing-

ton would seem justified in demanding "some return for

the remainder of the lease period over and above the

rentals provided in the original lease agreement." (Br. 32)

The answer to this speculation is that the Lease Agree-

ment (Jt. Ex. 3-C, p. 4) provided for payment by peti-

tioner to its lessor of percentage rents, and this provision

was adopted by the Supplemental Lease Agreement. (Jt.

Ex. 4-D, p. 3) Thus, the parties to said agreement contem-

plated substantial returns to the lessor over the remain-

ing years of the lease term.

Finally, it is notable that the respondent has failed to

make a significant response to petitioner's alternative con-

tention set forth at pages 24-31 of its Opening Brief, that

the payments in question were deductible as ordinary and

necessary business expense, regardless of their character-

ization as rentals or non-rentals. The most respondent can

muster in response to petitioner's alternative contention

is a rather lame repetition of the statements made in re-

spect thereto by the Tax Court, without discussion of

the facts or law set forth in petitioner's Opening Brief.

CONCLUSION

Respondent's brief, despite voluminous, excessive and

often irrelevant citations of case "authority," totally fails
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to answer the issues raised in Petitioner's Opening Brief

and to supply a factual or legal basis for the decision of

the Tax Court.

In particular, it is evident from the record that peti-

tioner supplied all of the evidence relied upon by the

Tax Court, and that such evidence established a prima

facie case for the deductibility of the payments in ques-

tion. In the face of such evidence, it was incumbent upon

respondent to provide substantial evidence contrary to

that adduced by petitioner. Respondent's assumptions and

speculations as to the purpose for the payments do not

constitute good guesses, much less the substantial evi-

dence required for affirmance of his determination by the

Tax Court.

Respondent's failure to present a substantial discussion

of petitioner's alternative contention, and his failure to

present any discussion of several cases cited by petitioner

in its Opening Brief relative thereto, provides strong

argument for the deductions claimed by petitioner on that

groimd.

For the foregoing reasons and for the reasons set forth

in Petitioner's Opening Brief, the decision of the Tax

Court should be reversed and the payments in question

held deductible in full by petitioner.

Respectfully submitted,

Dewitt Williams

1440 Washington Building

Seattle, Washington 98101

Attorney for Petitioner
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On appeal from the District Court of Guam for the Unincorpor

erritory of Guam.

BRIEF FOR APPELLANTS

JURISDICTION

Jurisdiction of the District Court of Guam is based on 48

.S.C, Section 1424. Jurisdiction of tnis appeal in this court

s based on 28 U.S.C, Sections 1291 and 1294. The complaint

Rl) and amended Count I of complaint (R 14) are the pleadings

hicii show the existence of jurisdiction of the District Court

f Guam over tiiis action. The notice of appeal (R 27) is the

leading whicti shows the existence of the jurisdiction oi tnis

ourt to review the judgment appealed from.





STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A. The facts.

Appellants, Luis P. Untalan, as administrator of the

itate of Trinidad T. Calvo, deceased, and Luis P. Untalan, as

icillary administrator of the E„tato of Ismael T. Calvo, deceased

I November 8, 1955 filed Complaint for Dissolution of Partner-

lips , for Accounting and Discovery of Assets (R 1) of two partner

dps, viz: (1) Tomas A, Calvo & Sons, composed of Trinidad T,

lIvo (now deceased), Eduardo T. Calvo (now deceased) and Ricardo

Calvo (Count I of R 1); and (2) Stud-Pac Motor Company, com-

ised of the three partners comprising the partnership of Tomas

Calvo & Sons, in addition to Ismael T. Calvo (now deceased)

ount II (2) of R 1); or in the alternative, composed of Ismael

Calvo (now deceased), Eduardo T. Calvo (now deceased) and

cardo T. Calvo (Count II (3) oi R 1). The amount in controversy

dur each count of said complaint exceeded $2,000,00 exclusive

costs and interest (Count I (1)(4) and Count II (1)(8) of R 1).

Appellees filed motion to dismiss said complaint on

nuary 18, 1966 (R 12) because of misjoinder (Paragraph 1 of

12), failure to join indispensable parties (ParaL,raph 2 of R 12)

d lack, of jurisdiction, because claims of said appellants be-

nged in the estates of Eduardo T. Calvo, deceased or Ismael T,

Ivo, deceased. Tne motion was sustained as to Count I of the

mplaint on the ground tnat indispensable parties were not joined

d denied as to Count II of the complaint (Tr. page 11, lines

to 14, inclusive). Thereupon appellants filed Amended Count I

Complaint for Dissolution ot Partnerships, for Accounting and

scover^ of Assets (R 14), joining Daniel I. Calvo, Ralph M.





Ivo, Bertha A, Toves, Barbara M. Edwards, Thomas G. Calvo,

sita C. Calvo and Vicenta T. Calvo as Guardian of the persons

d estates of Victor T. Calvo and Mildred R. Calvo, minors, as

voluntary plaintiffs (Count 1(2) of R 14). Before any of said

voluntary plaintiffs filed answers or appeared in tiiis action

e trial court scheduled a pre-trial conference for the purposes

determining the issues involved (Tr. 14 lines 2 to 7 ; Tr. 16

nes 1 and 2, 7, 8 & 9, 11 & 12). Appellants objected to the

Iding of the pre-trial conference before the involuntary plain-

ffs had appeared or answered (Tr. 14, lines 20 to 23; Tr. 16

ties 3, 4, 5 & 6). On April 11, 1966 the court entered its

atrial Order transferring the action to the Island Court of

am for determinations in probate and for the exercise of its

Dbate jurisdiction as a condition precedent to the jurisdiction

the District Court (R 21, first paragraph), further ordering:

"1. The above action. Civil No. 112-65, is transferred

the Island Court for the consideration of that Court and de-

rmination:

(a) Whether the Court has jurisdiction within the

Lf existing estates to grant any relief properly due.

(b) Whether the Court wishes to approve litigation

on tne part of the administrator and pernit the

administrator to charge the estate with costs of

litigation.

(c) If the Island Court snail determine that the

administrator shall be autnorized to undertake such

litigation and snail approve an action in the District

Court, the case may be re-transferred to the District

Court as to the Trinidad T. Calvo interest, but the

administrator must file a second and different action

as to any other estate." (R 21, bottom page 2 and

top page 3 ) .





Sucl"! transfer was made on the court's own motion at a

'-trial conference wnic.i was being held to merely determine the

iues before the involuntary plaintiffs had appeared or answered.

I court made statements in the pretrial oraer without any evidenc

support them; said statements are denied by appellants, wno

luld be given the opportunity to oiier evidence in support of

lir case. Appellants filed N^-tice of /ippeal (R 27). Appellants

e that the District Court of Guam had jurisdiction oi tr.is

ion and taat it had the duty to exercise said jurisdiction.

cannot legally divest itself of said jurisdiction by trans-

ring the action to an inferior court whose jurisdiction is

lited, said inferior court not having jurisdiction to fully

ermine the controversies contained in said action. It is

tner urged that the Island Court of Guai.. has no jurisdiction

fully determine the rights of the involuntary plaintiffs who

e joined at the insistence of the District Court of Guam,

tainly tne Court is required to adjudicate the rights of

ties which it insisted on bringing into the action.

B. Order transferring action reviewable on appeal.

The order of the District Court of Guam in transferring

s action to tne Island Court of Gua.,. for determination in

bate and for the exercise of its probate jurisdiction as a

dition precedent to the jurisdiction of the District Court is

iewable on appeal.

Muller vs. Reagh, IbO C./w 2d 99; ^09 P. 2d 826 holds

t an order of the Superior Court transferring a cause to tne

icipal court upon the ground taat the superior court lacKs

isdiction is appealoble. The court stated:





"...It happens that our reviewing courts have upon

occasion entertained appeals from orders like the

order here involved, notably in these cases: Weaver

V. Pasadena Tournament of Roses Assn. (1948), 32 Cal.

2d 833 (198 P. 2d 514), affirming a superior court order

transferring a cause to a justice's court; Roberts

V. Western Pac. R.R. Co. (1951) 104 Cal.App.2d 816

(232 P.2d 560), affir.r.ing an order transferring an

action from the superior court in San Francisco to

the municipal court of San Francisco (petition for a

hearing by the Superior Court denied, p. 821). It

is true that in neither of these cases do we find

a discussion of the appealability of the order. That

might mean that sucn a question did not occur to the

court or it may mean that the court considered tne

appealability of the order too clearly manifest to

require comment. We think the latter is the correct

view. .
."

The court pointed out that in the case of Robinson v. Superio

urt, 35 Cal. 2d 379, 218 P2d 10 (cited by defendant as authority*

r the proposition that mandamus was the proper remedy) the trial

urt decided tnat appeal was the proper remedy, although it allow

ndamus: "...True, the Supreme Court there entertained mandate

en though it decided tnere was a remedy by appeal. It did so

view of the fact that until then there had been no certainty

ether or not the order there in question was appealable. It

es not follow that whenever there is uncertainty an a^^grieved

rty must pursue mandate only..."

Said order of tirie District Court is final and appealable,

) As to the estate of Trinidad T. Calvo (R 14) the District

urt nas lost control of the action in tnat it is discretionary

tn the Island Court as to whether or not the action will be re-

ansferred to the District Court (R 21). (2) As to the estate

mael T. Calvo (Count IL, R 1) the court has completely divested





joinder (R 21, bottom page 2 & top page 3).

ERRORS RELIED UPON

The following are the errors upon which appellants rely:

1. The District Court of Guam had jurisdiction of this

ion, was under the duty to try same and was not authorized to

nsfer same to the Island Court of Guam.

2. The District Court of Guam erred in finding that

ellants, Luis P. Untalan, as administrator of the estate of

nidad T. Calvo, deceased, and Luis P. Untalan, as ancillary

inistrator of the estate of Ismael T. Calvo, deceased, were

empowered to file this action in the District Court of Guam

ause said administrators did not obtain the permission of the

and Court of Guam to do so.

3. The District Court of Guam erred in finding that

jurisdiction was dependent upon the precedent exercise of

bate jurisdiction in the Island Court of Guam.

H 4. The addition of Vicenta T. Calvo as plaintiff and the

er parties as involuntary plaintiffs gave the District Court

3uam jurisdiction over Count I (R 14) of this action, and re-

red said District Court of Guam to adjudicate same.

5. The Court erred in transferring this action to the

and Court of Guam before the involuntary plaintiffs were

ved with process and allowed to answer in said action.

6. The District Court erred in transferring this action

the Island Court of Guam because that court does not have

isdiction to settle the accounts of the parties or to afford

relief prayed for in the District Court of Guam.

7. The District Court of Guam erred in finding a mis-





mplaint (R 1, Count II) for misjoinder,

ARGUMENT

1, The District Court of Guam had jurisdiction of this action,

s under the duty to try same and was not authorized to transfer

me to the Island Court of Guam.

Section 62 of the Code of Civil Procedure of Guam reads:

"Original jurisdiction. Under Section 22(a) of

e Organic Act of Guam the District Court of Guam has the original

risdiction of a district court of the United States in all

uses arising under the laws of the United States and has originaJ

risdiction in all other causes in Guam except those over which

iginal jurisdiction has been transferred to and vested in the

land Court of Guam by Section 82 of trxis title. If it appears

at an action or proceeding brought in the District Court is

tually within the jurisdiction of the Inland Court the District

urt shall transfer it to the Island Court for hearing and

termination.

Sections82(4) and 82(5) of the Code of Civil Procedure

Guam reads:

"4. In all cases at law under the laws of Guam

which the demand, exclusive of interest and costs, or the value

the property in controversy does not amount to more than $2,000.

cept cases which involve the legality of any tax, impost, assess-

nt, toll or fine;

"5. In actions for dissolution of partnership,

ere the total assets of the partnership do not exceed $2,000;"

It is clear from the above tnat the District Court of Guam

s jurisdiction of the controversies contained in this action,

nee the amounts in controversy exceed the sum of $2,000.00, ex-

usive of interest and costs, and tiie original jurisdiction there-

has not been transferred to tne Island Court of Guam by said

ction 82. It is also clear that the District Court of Guam
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)uld have been filed in the Island Court of Guam in the first

stance.

Since the District Court of Guam has jurisdiction of this

lion it was under the duty to exercise that jurisdiction and

render a decision therein.

20 Am. Jur.2d 453: "Section 93. Duty to exercise jurisdic-

)n. Generally, a court having jurisdiction of a case nas not

.y the right and the power or authority, but also the duty, to

>rcise that jurisdiction, and to render a decision in a case

>perly submitted to it. It cannot properly decline to exercise

; jurisdiction merely on the ground of the motive or ulterior

pose of the plaintiff in brxnging the suit. And state courts

I not free to decline the jurisdiction conferred upon tnem by

igress in cases based on federal statutes if such cases are

;hin the scope of the ordinary jurisdiction of the state courts

prescribed by local laws. . .Failure of a court to adjudicate

its merits a case over whic. it has jurisdiction may be ground

' reversal, on appeal, or its duty to exercise its jurisdiction

' be enforced by way of a mandamus proceeding..."

Sampsell vs. Superior Court, 32 C2d 763, 197 P. 2d 739 held

it a writ of mandamus should issue to compel the Superior Court

Los Angeles County to hear an application for order awarding

Itioner custody of child pending a divorce action. The court

ited: "o..Mandamus is available to compel the court to give

ull hearing in the case before it, although it is not available

inform the trial court as to how it should rule with respect

the merits of the case. (Hilmer v. Superior Court, 220 Cal.

73 (29 P2d. 175))..."

"...In the early case of Temple v. Superior Court, 70 Cal.

. (11 P. 699), this court held that mandamus should issue to

ipel a trial court to hear and determine a proceeding to have

Person adjudged guilty of contempt, although the trial court

1 dismissed the proceeding 'on the ground of want of jurisdic-

>n' because the case came within Code of Civil Procedure section

>. The ftourt stated in that case that ^ ^e have examined tne





;ord, and are or the opinion that the matter is within the

risdiction of the court. The facts stated bring the case

jarly witnin section 1210 of the Cede of Civil Procedure, and

jer sucn circumstances the court cannot, by holding without

ison that it has no jurisdiction of the proceeding, divest

>elf of jurisdiction, and evade the duty of hearing and de-

rmining it' . . ."

In State of Indiana ex. rel. Juan S. Lopez v. Alvina M.

.ligrew et al., 174 N.E. 808, 74 A.L.R. 631, the court held that

.ator was entitled to a writ of mandate to compel defendants

allow him to file his verified petition for a writ of error

•am nobis. The court stated: "...When a court has jurisdiction

.r a class of cases and one seeking relief invokes the juris-

:tion of the court in the manner prescribed by law, the parti-

.ar cause is, ipso facto, under the jurisdiction of the court

I the court cannot refuse jurisdiction..."

2. The District Court of Guam erred in finding that appel-

its, Luis P. Untalan, as administrator of the estate of Trinidad

Calvo, deceased and Luis P. Untalan, as ancillary administrator

the estate of Ismael T. Calvo, deceased, were not empowered to

e this action in the District Court of Guam, because said

linistrators did not obtain the permission of the Island Court

Guam to do so.

It is noted that the court made a finding that the permission

the Island Court of Guam was not obtained for filing of com-

lint in this action (R 21 middle page) on its own motion contrary

law as stated in 20 Am. Jur.2d 455 as follows: "Section 94.

"isdiction as dependent on application by party for relief. The

leral rule is that a court cannot undertake to adjudicate a

itroversy on its own motion; it can do this only when the con-

)versy is presented to it by a party, and only if it is presented

it in the form of a proper pleading. A court has no power





ner to investigate facts or to initiate proceedings. Before

nay act there must be some appropriate application invoking

judicial power of the court in respect to the matter sought

36 litigated, .
•"

No issue as to permission of the Island Court was raised by

>llees. Therefore the finding oi the court should have no effect

It is well settled tnat if the acts of an administrator are

pursuance of and in accordance with law, he need not secure an

»r of court to protect him in the discharge of his duties,

21 Am, Jur. 493: "Section 215, Necessity of Court Order for

:ection,-If the acts of an administrator are in pursuance of,

in accordance with law, he need not secure an order of court

)rotect him in the discharge of his duties,,,"

To the same effect, see re Fulmer, 203 Cal, 693, 265 P, 920,

UL.R, 430 in which the court stated: ".,,That some of the

^e-enumerated disbursements may have been made without prior

;tion of the probate court is not necessarily fatal to their

)wance. The sums of money paid out of taxes and necessary re-

:s are sucn expenses as the administrator must pay in the care

management of the estate. People v. Olvera, 43 Cal, 492; Re

;, 110 Cal. 494, 502, 42 Pac, 971; Re Smith, 118 Cal. 462, 466,

^ac. 701. In Re Smith, supra, it is stated to be 'the duty of

executor, without special direction of the court, to preserve

property of the estate, and he does not require leave of the

:t so to do, and it is a question how far an order so obtained

L protect an administrator either in doing or in omitting to do

ithing whicn might be deemed important. When tne court is so

suited the heirs are not specially cited, but on the settlement

:he accounts of an executor they are called in and have a right

5uestion the acts of the executor and to have an appeal to this

:t upon any determination whicn may be made. The previous con-

b to the acts of the executor cannot limit their inquiry as to

lawfulness of the acts done or the duty of the executor to do

- which has been omitted. Ordinarily, it would determine the
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ssion. Still, the failure to obtain it does not render the

jenditures made improper. The only result is, that the matter

yet to be passed upon.' Application of tnis rule disposes of

; contention of respondents that the court orders above referred

were void as being made ex parte and without the prior giving

notice. Payments made without a court order are made at the

ril of the persona^ representative (Re Fernandez 119 Cal. 579,

., 51 Pac. b51); but, if the acts of an administrator are in

suance of, and in accordance with, law, he need not necssarily

:ure an order of court to protect him in the performance of his

les (Re Bottoms, 156 Cal. 129, 133, 103 Pac. 849)..."

In Re Bottoms, 156 Cal. 129, 103 Pac. 849, the court held

it an administratrix, whose intestate was a vendee under a

itract for the purchase of land belonging to the estate of the

eased vendor, and who, in his lifetime, had purchased and ob-

ned conveyances from some of the heirs of the vendor of their

erests in the property, is not limited, in order to perfect

title and secure possession of the land for the benefit of

estate of the vendee, to the proceedings to compel a con-

ance of the land provided for by sections 1597 et seq. of the

e of Civil Procedure. If it was to the advantage of the estate

the vendee, she was justified in entering into an arrangement

the direct distribution of the land by the estate of the vendor

the heirs of the vendee, upon payment being made to the estate

the vendor. The fact that sucn payment was made without per-

sion of the court would not render the expenditure improper,

hougn its propriety would be subject to investigation at the

e of the settlement of the accounts of the administratrix of

estate of the vendee.

Unquestionably tne administrator of the two estates was

horized to bring this action and he did no^ have to secure per-





ision of the court to do so. Certainly the District Court of

un does not have the power, on its own motion , to require such

rroission as a condition precedent to filing this action.

Section 571, Probate Code of Guam: "Duties of executor,

rviving partner. The executor or administrator must take into

; possession all the estate of the decedent, real and personal

I collect all debts due to the decedent or to the estate. When,

the time of his death, a partnership existed between the de-

lent and any other person, the surviving partner has the right

continue in possession of the partnership, and to settle its

;iness, but the interest of the decedent in the partnership

,t be included in the inventory, and be appraised as other

iperty. The surviving partner must settle the affairs of the

tnership without delay, and account to the executor or adrain-

xator, and pay over such balances as may from time to time

payable to him, in right of the decedent. Upon application

the executor or administrator, the court or a judge thereof,

never it appears necessary, may order the surviving partner

render an account, and in case of neglect or refusal may, after

ice, compel it b<y attachment; and the executor or administrator

maintain against him any action which the decedent could have

ntained,"

Section 573, Probate Code oi Guam: "Extent of power to sue

be sued. Actions for the recovery of any property, real or

sonal, or the possession thereof, or to quiet title thereto,

to determine any adverse claim thereon, and all actions

nded upon contracts, may be maintained by and against executors

i administrators in all cases in which the same might have been

ntained by or against their respective testators or intestates,"

lib Cal. Jur, 383, 384: "Section 961, Accounting and

tnership Suits,- Accounting is a relief incident to other suits

ch may be brought and maintained. The representative by his

eral authority may bring an action for an accounting of moneys

ropriated from the estate, in which action he is the only

essary plaintiff. He may require accounting from or maintain

ion for it against a former representative. Proceedings are

O DrovidAd to f-_omnf»l an arrv.untino bv nersons who have been





rusted with any part of the estate in trust for the executor

administrator.

"The representative in the stead of the decedent may bring

accounting suit against an agent of decedent.

"Suits against surviving partner.- The surviving partner of

decedent is required to present an account to the executor

administrator and pay over any balances due. The representa-

e ma^ maintain against the surviving partner any action which

decedent could have maintained, as well as an action for an

ounting.

"The jurisdiction vested in the probate court does not divest

equity courts of their general jurisdiction over actions of

s character. .
."

21 Am. Jur. 880: "Section 905. -Equitable Actions. -Usually,

general equitable remedies are available to an executor or

inistrator seeking recovery of assets of the estate or their

ue. Thus, he may file a bill for discovery and accounting,

ti where the administration proceedings are being conducted in

ther court, invoke equitable relief against the threatened

lation of a contract of the decedent involving secret manu-

turing processes discovered by the decedent, and compel the

ivery of a written instrument for cancelations in a proper

e..."

aarberv. Superior Court, 43 Cal. App. 221, 184 Pac. 952 holds

t an administrator may, in his own name, for the use and benefit

all parties interested in the estate, maintain a suit for an

ounting against a former administrator; and in such action,

administrator is the only necessary party plaintiff.

3. The District Court of Guam erred in finding that its

isdiction was dependent upon the precedent exercise of Probate

isdiction in the Island Court of Guam.

The Island Court of Guam sitting as a probate court does not

e authority to settle and adjust accounts between a surviving

tner and a representative of the deceased partner. Such juris-





controversy exceeds $2,000.00. The jurisdiction of the Probate

jrt over the estates of deceased persons does not divest the

strict Court of Guam of its general jurisdiction as Court of

incery. Sec, 571 Probate Code of Guam, page 12, supra,

20 Cal. Jur.2d 390: "...The probate court has no authority

settle and adjust the accounts between a surviving partner

i the representative of the deceased partner; its power is

lited to requiring the surviving partner to account..."

Andrade v. Superior Court, 75 C. 459, 17 P. 531 holds that

I Probate Court has no authority to settle and adjust accounts

;ween the surviving partner and the representative of the de-

ised. The court stated: "...The probate court has no authority

settle and adjust accounts between a surviving partner and the

iresentative of a deceased one. Its power is limited to re-

ring tne survivor to account...

"...The court cannot settle and adjust the account. If

atisfactory, this can only be done by a court of equity.

"In Thaller v. Such, 57 Cal. 447, it was said the 'probate

rt has no more jurisdiction to provide for a partnership

ount and decree a balance, where the partnership has been

solved by the death of a partner, than where it has been

solved by any other cause'...

"...If questions arise in the course of settlement of part-

ship affairs wnich cannot be adjusted without recourse to the

rts, the probate court is not the forum in which such questions

be solved, but, like other questions cognizable in courts of

ity, they must be determined in the last-named courts..."

The court in Griggs v. Clark, 23 Cal. 427, held that an action

the nature of a suit in equity brought by William T. Clark,

eased, wno in his lifetime was in partnership with the defen-

ts, for the settlement of the affairs of a partnership, was

precluded by pending proceedings in the Probate Court. The

rt stated:





"...The dexendants demurred to trie complaint; the Court be-

I overruled the same, and this is assigned for error. It is

itended, that the Probate Court, in which the proceedings for

!
settlement of the estate were pending, had acquired juris-

tion of the subject matter of the present action; and there-

e the demurrer should have been sustained. The jurisdiction

ted in the Probate Court does not divest the District Courts

their general jurisdiction as Courts of Chancery over actions

this character, as has been held by this Court. (Wilson v.

ch, 4 Cal. 352; Clark v. Perry, 5 Id. 58)."

Section 2431. Civil Code of Guam: "Right to wind up. Un-

s otherwise agreed the partners who have not wrongfully dis-

ved the partnership or the legal representative of the last

viving partner, not bankrupt, has the right to wind up the

tnership affairs: Provided, however, that any partner, his

al representative, or his assignee, upon cause shown may ob-

n winding up by the court."

4. The addition of Vicenta T. Calvo as plaintiff and the

er parties as involuntary plaintiffs gave the District Court

Guam jurisdiction over Count I (R 14) of this action, and re-

red said District Court of Guam to adjudicate same.

Appellees' motion to dismiss tne named appellants' complaint

1) because indispensable parties were not joined was granted

. page 11, lines 8 to 11) on the theory tiiat tne partnership

eement (Exhibit A o± R 1) conferred rights upon said indis-

sable parties waicn should be adjudicated by tiie District Court

Guam. (Tr. page 2, lines 16 to 26). The validity of that

tion of the agreement wherein Trinidad T. Calvo seeks to bequeati

assign his share in the partnership (last page Exhibit A of

4) can only be determined by the District Court of Guam -

Island Court in Probate has no jurisdiction to pass on the

iditv of said provision and this action should not have been

nsferred to tne Island Court sitting in probate for that





it (Tr. page 2, lines 23 to 26) the indispensable parties are

i^ real parties in interest and appellants are out of court if

.d provision contained in said agreement is valid, which was

,
the more reason for not transferring the action,

5. The Court erred in transferring this action to the Island

irt of Guam before tne involuntary plaintiffs were served with

cess and allowed to answer in said action.

One of the alleged indispensable parties joined as a volun-

y plaintiff in this action - the others were joined as involun-

y plaintiffs - said involuntary plaintiffs were deprived of

ir respective opportunities to be heard by the precipitate trans

to the Island Court of Guam, sitting in probate.

Having ordered that said alleged indispensable parties be

ned, no action snould have been taken by the District Court

Guam, detrimental to said alleged indispensable parties before

y had entered their appearances in t^iis action,

6. The District Court erred in transferring tnis action to

Island Court of Guam because that court does not have juris-

tion to settle the accounts of the parties or to afford the

ief prayed for in the District Court of Guam.

(See authorities and arguments under specification of error

3, supra, pages 13 to 15),

7. The District Court erred in finding a misjoinder of

ses of action in tnis action without receiving evidence there-

and in effect dismissing Count II of appellants' complaint

1, Count II) for misjoinder.

Appellants alleged (Count II, paragraphs 2 and 3, R 1) that

nidad T, Calvo,. Ismael T. Calvo, Eduardo T. Calvo and Ricardo





-cixvu enterea into a parT:nersn±p agreement unaer tne tirm name

style of Stud-Pac Motor Company and in the alternative that

partnership was composed of Ismael T. Calvo, Eduardo T. Calvo

Ricardo T, Calvo. Such alternative pleading is permissible

ieral Rules of Civil Procedure No. 8(d)(2). On the face of

i complaint, therefore, there was no misjoinder. Even if there

a misjoinder , the action should not have been dismissed, but

jld have been severed and tried separately.

Rule 21, Federal Rules of Civil Procedure: "Misjoindt;r of

bies is not ground for dismissal of an action. Parties may be

pped or added by order of the court on motion of any party or

Lts own initiative at any stage of the action and on such terms

ire just. Any claim against a party may be severed and pro-

Jed with separately."

CONCLUSION

For tne reasons above stated, it is respectfully submitted

; the order appealed from should be reversed.

Dated, Agana, Guam

October 12, 1966

Respectfully submitted,

DAVID M. SHAPIRO / ^
Attorney for Appellants
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STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND
QUESTIONS PRESENTED

This action was connnenced by the filing of a most

complex complaint, drafted in a quite unorthodox

fashion, which complaint on its face stated two causes

of action l)etween two separate sets of plaintiffs and

two separate sets of defendants, both causes of action

I



concerning unrelated transactions. Upon motion the

complaint was amended, but unfortunately the

amended complaint contained all of the same defects

noted above. One facet of the comjolaint indicates
;

laches continuing over a period of years; the other

facet demonstrates that the statute of limitations has

run.

The trial Court could have made appropriate orders

pertaining to this confused complaint but chose in-

stead to require defendants to answer the amended

complaint, indicating that the problems complained of

by defendants could be ironed out at a pre-trial con-

ference. The pre-trial conference was conducted on

April 8, 1966 and the Court entered its pre-trial order,

from which plaintiffs now^ appeal, on April 11, 1966.

Defendants differ with plaintiffs as to the pertinent

questions now before this Court. It is defendants' con-

tention that the only question is whether or not, under

the law and the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, the

pre-trial order of the District Court of Guam of April

11, 1966 constituted an appealable order as defined

in Section 1292, 28 U.S.C.A., or whether it was a final

judgment from which an appeal could be taken.

SUIVIMARY OF ARGUMENT

Plaintiffs have elected to appeal the pre-trial order

of the District Court of Guam of April 11, 1966, to

this Court. Defendants contend that this appeal can-

not lie for the following reasons

:



I. The pre-trial order of April 11, 1966 is not an

appealable order within the contemplation of Section

1292, Title 28 U.S.C.A.

II. Said pre-trial order is not a final judgment

from which an appeal can be taken as contemplated

by the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

III. Plaintiffs had an appropriate remedy under

Rule 54 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure to

move for judgment upon the pre-trial order if they

felt the order was an adjudication of the case on its

merits, and under Rule 54(b) of the Federal Rules

of Civil Procedure, they could have moved the Court

for a judgment of dismissal as to Count II and a cer-

tification imder the rule permitting appeal.

IV. There was a fatal misjoinder of parties plain-

tiff and defendant.

ARGUMENT

I.

THE PRE-TRIAL ORDER OF APRIL 11, 1966 IS NOT AN APPEAL-
ABLE ORDER WITHIN THE CONTEMPLATION OF SECTION
1292, TITLE 28 U.S.C.A.

Section 1292 states

:

Interlocutory decisions

(a) The courts of appeals shall have jurisdic-

tion of appeals from

:

(1) Interlocutoiy orders of the district courts

of the United States, the United States District

Court for the District of the Canal Zone, the Dis-



trict Coiii*t of Guam, and the District Court of the

Virgin Islands, or of the judges thereof, granting,

continuing, modifying, refusing or dissolving in-

jimctions, or refusing to dissolve or modify
injunctions, except where a direct review may he

had in the Supreme Court

;

(2) Interlocutory orders appointing receivers,

or refusing orders to wind up receiverships or to

take steps to accomplish the purposes thereof,

such as directing sales or other disposals of

property

;

(3) Interlocutory decrees of such district

courts or the judges thereof determining the

rights and liabilities of the parties to admiralty

cases in which appeals from final decrees are

allowed

;

(4) Judgments in civil actions for patent in-

fringement which are final except for accounting.

(b) When a district judge, in making in a

civil action an order not otherwise appealable

under this section, shall be of the opinion that

such order involves a controlling question of law

as to which there is substantial ground for differ-

ence of opinion and that an immediate appeal

from the order may materially advance the ulti-

mate termination of the litigation, he shall so state

in writing in such order. The Court of Appeals

may thereupon, in its discretion, permit an appeal

to be taken from such order, if application is

made to it within ten days after the entry of the

order : Provided hotvever, That application for an

appeal hereunder shall not stay proceedings in the

district court unless the district judge or the

Court of Appeals or a judge thereof shall so

order.



The relief sought by plaintiffs in their amended
complaint does not fall into any of the approved cate-

gories mentioned above. On April 11, 1966, the trial

Court made its pre-trial order remanding this action

to the Island Court of Guam, sitting in Probate, and

in its discussion gave most convincing reasons as to

why this should be done. Further, the District Court

kept the door open in the event the probate Court

found that further relief should be sought in the

existing action as it pertains to Count I of the

amended complaint.

We must remember the hierarchy of the civil

Courts of Guam and their interdependence. The jur-

isdiction of the District Court of Guam as it pertains

to this case is set out in Section 1424(a), Title 48

U.S.C.A., as follows:

District Court of Guam; jurisdiction; ndes of

procedure

(a) There is created a court of record to be

designated the "District Court of Guam", and the

judicial authority of Guam shall be vested in the

District Court of Guam and in such court or

courts as may have been or may hereafter be es-

tablished by the laws of Guam. The District Court

of Guam shall have, in all causes arising under

the laws of the United States, the jurisdiction of

a district court of the United States as such court

is defined in section 451 of Title 28, and shall have

original jurisdiction in all other causes in Guam,
jurisdiction over which has not been transferred

by the legislature to other court or courts estab-

lished by it, and shall have such appellate juris-



6

diction as the legislature may determine. The
jurisdiction of and the procedure in the courts

of Guam other than the District Court of Guam
shall be prescribed by the laws of Guam.

It is to be noted that the District Court of Guam
was given all jurisdiction in Guam except that which

the local legislature took away and reserved to in-

ferior Courts created by it. Thus we have these ex-

pressions of the Guam Legislature

:

Section 62, Code of Civil Procedure of Guam, *

Original jurisdictio7i.

Under Section 22(a) of the Organic Act of Guam
the District Court of Guam has the original juris-

diction of a district court of the United States in

all causes arising under the laws of the United

States and has original jurisdiction in all other

causes in Guam except those over which original

jurisdiction has been transferred to and vested in

the Island Coui*t by Section 82 of this title. If it

appears that an action or proceeding brought in

the District Court is actually within the jurisdic-

tion of the Island Coui't the District Court shall

transfer it to the Island Court for hearing and

determination. i

Section 82, Code of Civil Procedure of Guam.
Origitml jurisdiction. |

The Island Court shall have original jurisdiction

exclusive of the District Court

:

1. . . .

2. . . .

3. In all proceedings under the laws of Guam
for the probate of v>411s, the appointment of ex-



editors, administrators, guardians and trustees,

and the administration, settlement and distribu-

tion of estates of decedents, minors and missing

persons

;

In addition, the District Court of Guam sits as the

Appellate Court for the Island Court.

In the present case the District Court found juris-

diction to be in the Island Court sitting- in probate.

Its order called for judicial functions to be performed

by the Island Court as a precedence to further action

by it. An analogy may be drawn from the opinion of

the Court in Leivis M. Alexander et aJ. v. The United

States of America, 26 S. Ct. 356, 201 U.S. 117, 50 L.

Ed. 686, which states

:

Orders of a Federal Circuit Court directing wit-

nesses to answer the questions put to them, and

produce written evidence in their possession, on

their examination ])efore a sj)ecial examiner ap-

pointed in a suit brought by the U. S. to enjoin

an alleged violation of the anti-trust act of July

2, 1890, (...), lack the finaUtij requisite to

sustain an appeal to the Supreme Court (empha-

sis supplied).

II.

Even conceding that the District Court of Guam
abused its discretion in remanding this case to the

probate department of the Island Court, such remand

would not have the force of a judgment from which

an appeal would lie. Under the Federal Rules of Civil

Procedure, pre-trial conference procedui'e is encour-

aged in order to simplify issues and expedite case
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handling. In O'Malley v. Chrysler Corporation, 160

F.2d35, the Court said:

Under these rules we think the court has wide
discretion and power to advance the cause and
simplify the procedure before the cause is pre-

sented to the jury. The District Court has the

power to issue such orders as in the exercise of

sound discretion would advance and simplify the

cause before trial. If it abuses that discretion in

making such orders it is conceded that no appeal

would lie under Section 128 and there would be

nothing final about such orders. In our opinion

the order made in the instant case was such an
order. It was only a step in the orderly procedure

of the case (emphasis supplied). The District

Court was exercising its pre-trial powers. It

would, in our opinion, have had the poiver to

make the order it made irrespective of the

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

Again, analogies can be drawn. In the case of Latta

V. Kilhourn, 150 U.S. 524, the Court entered a decree

on an accounting action determining the rights of the

parties and referring the case to an auditor in order

that an account might be stated upon which a further

decree could be entered. The Court above held that

this was not a final appealable decree in the language

following

:

It is first contended on behalf of the appellees

that this appeal cannot l)e entertained by this

court for reason that the decree of October 27,

1886 was the final decree in the cause from which

an appeal should have been taken. "We are clearly

of the opinion that this position cannot be sus-

tained. It is well settled by the decisions of this
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court that where the purpose of the suit is to

attain an account, such as that prayed for by the

bill in this case and directed by the order of

October 27, 1886, the decree is of such an inter-

locutory character that no appeal will lie there-

from . . .

In the Latta case, above, the Court also referred to

McGourkejj v. Railway Company, 146 U.S. 544,

wherein the authorities are thoroughly reviewed as

to what constitutes a final decree. It was stated

therein that as a general rule, if the Court makes a

decree fixing the rights and liabilities of the parties

and thereupon refers the case to a master for a minis-

terial purpose only, and no further proceedings in

Court are contemplated, the decree is final ; but if the

case is referred to the master for a judicial purpose,

as to set an account between the parties upon which a

further decree is to be entered, then the decree is not

final.

A further clear expression of the point is in Karl

Kiefer Machmery Co. v. U. S. Bottlers Machinery

Co., 108F.2d469:

The words "final decisions" mean the same thing

as "final judgments and decrees." A final decree or

judgment is one that puts an end to the contro-

V versy between the parties litigant. Merriman v.

m Chicago & E.I.B. Co., 64 F. 535.

And, in United States Sugar Corporation v. A.C.L.

Railway Co., 196 F.2d 1015, the Court stated

:

1^^. Only "final decisions" are reviewable. A judgment
K is "final" for purposes of appeal only when it
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determines the litigation on the merits, leaving

nothing to be done but to enforce the judgment.

Letvis V. E.I. DuPont BeNemours c& Co., 183 F.2d

29, 21 A.L.R. 2d 757. The order appealed from
does not terminate the litigation, but allows de-

fendant to plead further. It grants no relief to

the plaintiff nor any against the defendant. There

were other issues of fact in the case that had to

be determined before final judgment can be en-

tered. The order is clearly interlocutory, not a

final decision, and is therefore not appealable.

Finally

:

A judgment which does not dispose of all the

issues, but which is but a step toward a final hear-

ing and decision, is not appealable {Arnold v.

Guimarin, 263 U.S. 427, 68 L.Ed. 371, 44 S.Ct.

144; Rexford v. Brunstvick-Bdlke-CoUender Co.,

228 U.S. 339, 57 L.Ed. 864, 33 S.Ct. 515,) as

where it leaves imdetermined matters within the

pleadings and retains the cause for the purpose of

thereafter passing upon them and for the entry of

a further judgment. {City of PaducaJi, Kentucky
V. East Teymessee Tel. Co., 229 U.S. 476, 57 L.

Ed. 1286, 33 S.Ct. 816.) If the decision or judg-

ment leaves some matter involved in the contro-

versy open for future hearing and determination

before the ultimate rights of the parties are con-

clusively adjudicated, it is interlocutory and not

final. {Smitli v. Beyiedict, 279 F.2d 211; Scliool

Dist. No. 5 V. Lundgren, 259 F.2d 101 ; Plielan v.

Middle States Oil Corp., 210 F.2d 360.) The prin-

ciple has been laid down that, where the court has

power to further review its judgment, the judg-

ment is not final so long as it is being considered

by the court. (Suggs v. Mutual Benefit Health do
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Accident Ass'n, 115 F.2d 80.) It makes no differ-

ence whether the attention of the court is directed

to a further consideration of its judgment by a

pleading filed as a matter of right, or by a plead-

ing which has no standing in the case as a matter

of law, or springs from the court itself. The fact

that the court expresses an intent to further con-

sider the judgment prevents its finality. (Suggs

V. Mutual Benefit Health <i- Accident Ass'n, 115

F.2d 80.) Cyc. Fed. Proc. 3d 13, Rev. Judgm'ts,

§ 57.20, pp. 118-119.

III.

It is elementary that federal policy is against piece-

meal appeals. However, in the event that a party feels

aggrieved as did plaintiffs here, at the trial Court's

ruling in its pre-trial order, said aggrieved party is

under the obligation to take certain interim steps to

determine whether appeal will lie at the interim stage

of proceedings. To this end, x)laintiffs, instead of pur-

suing an appeal from the pre-trial order, should have

moved the trial Court for entry of judgment based

upon the pre-trial order, or any part of it that they

considered to l)e a final detei-mination. This is especi-

ally true in view of plaintiffs herein having deter-

mined themselves that Count II of the amended com-

plaint had been dismissed ]jy the pre-trial order. Rule

54(b) required plaintiff's to seek a certification from

the trial judge and the failure to do so makes this

appeal premature, even if it could lie for other rea-

sons. Where an appeal has been taken prematurely

and no attempt is made to correct the initial fatal

deficiency, the deficiency will not correct itself. This
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is demonstrated by the recent case in this circuit, upon

appeal from Guam, of Maddox v. Black, Raber-Kief

& Associates, 303 F.2d 910. In that case the District

Court of Guam made an order on Jime 9, 1961. Fur-

ther proceedings were had toward a new trial and

vacation of judgment, but actually findings of fact,

conclusions of law and judgment were not filed imtil

June 22, 1961. Subsequently, appellants, on August 25,

1961, filed its notice of appeal "from the judgment

entered in this action on Jmie 8, 1961. . .
." This was

the only notice of appeal given in this case and this

Court found it insufficient. If appellants, in the instant

case, for any reason, had any right of appeal based

on the pre-trial order of April 11, 1966, they failed

to perfect those rights.

IV.

The trial Court found in its pre-trial order that

there had been a misjoinder of parties and causes

of action, which appellant i)ai'ties agreed with in

their brief (Appellants' Brief, j). 16, para. 7). How-

ever, appellants have missed the point that not only

did they have a misjoinder of parties, both plaintiff

and defendant, but that they also had a misjoinder of

causes of action. It is to be noted that Rule 21 of the

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure permits the drop-

ping of parties or the severance of claims. In essence,

the trial Coui-t attempted to clear up the situation at

least partly in its x)re-trial order by dismissing Count

II of the amended complaint and advising appellants

that that count would have to be filed as a separate

complaint at such time as it again came before this
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Court. While the rules generally have been slanted to

make it easier for Courts to cure misjoinder of parties

or causes and to separate them, there are still in-

stances such as this where the misjoinder is so com-

plete that one or another set of litigants will be

required to start over. This is well illustrated by the

case of Erivin v. City of Dallas, 85 F.Suj^p. 103, which

was a case wherein plaintiffs sought to restrain the

city from refusing to grant beer licenses to the plain-

tiffs. The Court found that there was a misjoinder

of parties plaintiff where there was no relationship

whatsoever })etween them, they were separate indi-

viduals, and they were not connected in any way in

business; and where the place of business of one was

not in the neighborhood of that of either of the others

;

and where the facts were quite different.

r

»
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CONCLUSION

For the reasons above stated, it is respectfully sub-

mitted that the pre-trial order of April 11, 1966 should

stand, and that appellants should be required to con-

form thereto.

Dated, Agana, Gruam,

January 5, 1967.

Respectfully submitted,

E. R. Grain,

Attorney for Appellees.

Certificate of Counsel

I certify that, in connection with the preparation

of this brief, I have examined Rules 18 and 19 of the

United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit,

and that, in my opinion, the foregoing brief is in full

compliance with those rules.

E. R. Crain,

Attorney for Appellees.
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NO. 21,075

IN THE

UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

P. UNTALAN, as administrator
he Estate of TRINIDAD T. CALVO,
ased, and LUIS P. UNTALAN, as
llary administrator of the
te of ISMAEL T. CALVO, deceased,
VICENTA T. CALVO,

Appellants

vs,

M. CALVO, PAUL M. CALVO as
nistrator of the Estate of
RDO T. CALVO, deceased,
RD M. CALVO, THOMAS J. M. CALVO,
NICA. M. CALVO and RICARDO T. CALVO,

Appellees

APPELLANTS' REPLY
BRIEF

ARGUMENT

The only question raised by appellees in their brief is whether

Dt the order of the District Court of Guam (contained in Pre-

L Order of April 11, 1966) transferring this action to the

id Court of Guam, is appealable (Brief of Appellees, page 2).

propriety of the District Court's action is not argued, except

iN some reference is made to misjoinder of parties plaintiff and

idant. (Brief of Appellees, pages 3, 12 and' 13). Appellees
I

!

' do not justify the District Court's action (or claim that

District Court acted properly) in transferring this action to

Csland Court of Guam. The inference can be drawn, therefore,

if the said order is appealable the District Court acted





roperly in making said order and same should be reversed.

The authorities cited by appellees are not in point . These

horities simply state ( which appellants concede ) that interlocu-

l
orders are not appealable and that as long as the trial court

control of the action and has not finally disposed of same, no

srim orders are appealable. Appellees have not cited a single

» holding that an order such as the one appeefled from, is not

jalable. They have not Questioned Muller vs. Reagh, 150 C.A .

)9; 309 P 2d 285, which holds that an order of the Superior Court

isferring a cause to the Municipal Court is appealable and have

lid no case holding to the contrary.

The order appealed from is final because the District Court

luam has divested itself of jurisdiction - it no longer has

i:rol of the action - it does not have the right to try the action

, .ts merits - it has taken its final action - nothing more remains

l it to do . The order is therefore final and appealable.
1

j

Appellants' appeal is taken under 28 U.S.C, Section 1291, viz:

"1291. Final Decisions of District Coutts. The

: courts of appeals shall have jurisdiction of appeals

i from all final decisions of ... the District Court of
I

I
Guam . • •

'*

!

eOrder appealed from is final and appealable . (Muller vs. Reagh,

Fja).

128 U.S.C, Section 1292 concerns "interlocutory decisions" and

herefore inapplicable.

Rule 54, Federal Rules of Civil Procedure (Appellees' Brief,

9 3) is not in point, as the District Court of Guam divested





ilf of lurisdict'' on to try the action on its merits.

jj
The trial court was not authorized to find a misjoinder of

^:ies and causes of action without submitting mese issues for

A, As shown by the pleadings the question of misjoinder was

t sputed question of fact and could not be decided by the court

iiout the submission of evidence. Furthermore, mis joinder is

'. ground for dismissal . Rule 21, Federal Rules of Civil Procedure

lellants' Brief, page 17).

Appellants repeat that the authorities cited by appellees are

rerned with interlocutory decisions only , which admittedly are

appealable. The order appealed from in this action is final

cappealable. The court erred in making said Order.

CONCLUSION

For the reasons above stated, it is respectfully submitted that

eorder appealed from should be reversed.

Dated, Agana, Guam

January 24, 1967

Respectfully submitted,

DAVID M. SHAPIRO /

Attorney for Appellants

CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL

I certify that, in connection with the preparation of this

L'f, I have examined Rules 18 and 19 of the United States Court

Dpeals for the Ninth Circuit, and that, in my opinion, the

r:^oing brief is in full compliance with those rules.

DAVID M. SHAPIRO f

A +-4-or-n*»\/ -frir Anni^l 1 ants
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PACIFIC INLAND NAVIGATION COMPANY,
a corporation,

Appellant-Cross-Appellee.

V.

DELBERT A. COURSE,
Appellee-Cross Appellant
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Honorable John F. Kilkenny

BRIEF OF APPELLANT

JURISDICTION

The vessel was on navigable waters of the United

States. Being a maritime injury, the District Court on

the Admiralty side had jurisdiction to hear the cause

under Sec. 2 of Article III of the United States Consti-

tution, and Title 28, U. S. C, Sec. 1333 (1). The juris-

diction of this Court to review the District Court's deci-

sion is based upon Section 1291 of Title 28 U.S.C, this

appeal having been taken from a final decree entered on

December 20, 1965.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This action involves a Libel in Personam for dam-



ages for unseaworthiness of the tug "BANNOCK" in-

stituted by a ship repairman-marine electrician, Delbert

A. Course, appellee, against his employer-shipowner, Pa-

cific Inland Navigation Company, appellant. It arose

from a shipboard accident on December 19, 1963, at

Vancouver, Washington, when appellee fell through a

hatchway while en route from the vessel to the repair

yard for a shoreside purpose. (Findings of Fact and

Conclusions of Law). The tug "BANNOCK" was wholly

owned and operated by appellant. Appellant maintained

a ship repair yard at Vancouver, Washington, for the

sole purpose of repairing its own vessels. Appellee was

employed as a marine electrician and had been in ap-

pellant's repair yard for more than one year prior to his

injury. At all times appellee was under the supervision

and control of appellant's repair yard supervisory per-

sonnel. At the time of appellee's injury the vessel was

undergoing certain repairs and was solely under the con-

trol of appellant's ship repair personnel.

Appellee received from appellant the statutory ben-

efits of the Longshoremen's and Harbor Workers' Com-

pensation Act, 33 U.S.C. 901-950, inc.

The trial resulted in a verdict in favor of appellee

in the amount of $12,566.08.

In the Pretrial Order and by a separate pretrial mo-

tion, appellant sought a dismissal of the action on the

ground that appellee, having received his statutory en-

titlements from his employer, was precluded from main-

taining this action. The District Court denied appel-

lant's motion upon the authority of the case of Reed v.



SS YAKA, 373 U.S. 410 (Findings of Fact and Conclu-

sions of Law) . Appellant in the Pretrial Order and by post

trial motions raised the defenses that at the time of ap-

pellee's injury he was not engaged in work traditionally

performed by a seaman and was therefore not entitled

to the warranty of seaworthiness; and that at the time

when appellee was injured the vessel was a dead ship

and was out of navigation and therefore did not war-

rant her seaworthiness. Both of these defenses were de-

nied by the District Court (Findings of Fact and Con-

clusions of Law).

SPECIFICATIONS OF ERROR

1. The District Court erred in denying appellant's

Motion for Summary Judgment, because appellee is not

entitled to bring a cause of action against his shipowner-

employer under the authority of Reed v. SS YAKA, su-

pra.

2. The District Court erred in holding that the tug

"BANNOCK" was not a "dead" ship and that she was

in "navigation."

3. The District Court erred in holding that appellee

was entitled to the warranty of seaworthiness, although

he was at the time of his injury engaged in a shoreside

activity.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

L The provisions of the Longshoremen's and Harbor

Workers' Compensation Act immunize a shipowner-em-



ployer from an action for unseaworthiness by his em-

ployee and the maintenance of such an action would

conflict with the economic standards of the Act and pro-

duce a harsh and incongruous result.

2. The holding of Reed v. SS YAKA, supra, even if

valid in its factual framework of that case, is inapplicable

to the case at bar because appellant shipowner owned and

operated the tug "BANNOCK" and no third party was

involved.

3. The rationale employed by the Supreme Court in

deciding that Reed should be accorded the same protec-

tion whether he sustained injury while employed by a

stevedore or directly by a shipowner is not applicable

to appellee because appellee was in the appellant's

steady employ and is not a longshoreman.

4. A vessel under the control of a ship repairer, with

her main engines dismantled, is a dead ship and out

of maritime service, and does not warrant her seaworthi-

ness.

5. A ship repairman who at the time of his injury is

not engaged in work traditionally performed by a sea-

man is not entitled to the warranty of seaworthiness.

ARGUMENT

The Longshoremen's and Has-bor Workers' Compensa-
tion Act Precludes Maintenance of Action.

"Like other workmen's compensation laws the

Longshoremen's and other Harbor Workers' Com-

pensation Act involves a relinquishment of certain

legal rights by employees in return for similar sur-



render of rights by employers. Employees are assured

hospital and medical care and subsistence during

convalescence. Employers are assured that regardless

of fault their liability to an injured workman is lim-

ited under the Act. In some instances injury to an

employee is caused by a third party. In such circum-

stances, Sec. 33 of the Act reserves to the employee

the right to seek damages against the third party."

U. S. Code Congressional and Administrative News,

Vol. 2, page 2134, Senate Report No. 48.

The employer immunity provision of the Act is found

in 33 U.S.C. § 905:

"Exclusiveness of Liability. Sec. 5. The liability

of an employer prescribed in Sec. 4 shall be exclu-

sive and in place of all other liability of such em-

ployer to the employee, his legal representative, hus-

band or wife, parents, dependents, next of kin, and

anyone otherwise entitled to recover damages from

such employer at law or in admiralty on account of

such injury or death, except that if an employer

fails to secure payment of compensation as required

by this Chapter, an injured employee, or his legal

representative in case death results from the injury,

may elect to claim compensation under this Chapter

or to maintain an action at law, or in admiralty for

damages on account of such injury or death."

In some cases injury to an employee is caused by a

third party. In such cases the Act preserves to the em-

ployee the right to seek damages against a third party.

This provision of the Act is found in 33 U.S.C. § 933

(a):

"Compensation for Injuries Where Third Per-

sons are Liable Sub Sec. (a) If on account of a

disability or death for which compensation is pay-



able under this Chapter the person entitled to such

compensation determines that some person other

than the employer or a person or persons in his em-
ploy is liable in damages, he need not elect whether

to receive such compensation or to recover damages
against such third person."

The complete immunization of the employer (with

one exception hereinafter noted) from personal injury

actions brought by an employee has long been recog-

nized by the Supreme Court in the following cases:

Nogueira v. N.Y.N.H. and H.R. Co., 281 US 128

(1929).

South Chicago Co. v. Bassett, 309 U.S. 251 (1940).

Swanson v. Marrah Bros., 328 U.S. 1 (1945).

Ryan V. Pan-Atlantic S.S. Corp., 350 U.S. 124

(1956).

In the recent case of Ryan v. Pan-Atlantic SS Corp.,

350 U.S. 124 (1956), the Court stated at page 129:

"The obvious purpose of this provision is to make
the statutory liability of an employer to contribute

to its employee's compensation the exclusive liabil-

ity of such employer to its employee, or to anyone

claiming under or through such employee on ac-

count of his injury or death arising out oi that em-

ployment. In return the employee and those claim-

ing under or through him are given a substantial

quid pro quo in the form of an assured compensa-

tion, regardless of fault, as a substitute for their

excluded claims. . . . Therefore, in the instant case,

it excludes the liability of the stevedoring contractor

to its longshoreman and to his kin, for damages on

account of the longshoreman's injuries. At the same

time, however. Sec. 5 expressly preserves to each

employee a right to recover damages against third ;

persons."

[



In the dissenting opinion of the Ryan case, supra,

Justice Black, the author of the majority opinion in

Reed v. SS YAKA, supra, stated at page 140:

"And while Congress imposed absolute liability on

employers they were also accorded counter-balanc-

ing advantages. They were no longer to be subjected

to the hazards of large tort verdicts. Under no cir-

cumstances were they to be held liable to their own
employees for more than the compensation clearly

fixed in the Act."

As previously mentioned there is an exception to the

exclusive immunity doctrine which arises from the vol-

untary assumption of obligations by the employer run-

ning to the vesselowner, which have given rise to num-

erous indemnity suits by the vesselowner against the

employer. This exception is well illustrated in the lan-

guage of Ryan v. Pan-Atlantic SS Corp., supra, at page

131:

"While the Compensation Act protects a steve-

doring contractor from actions brought against it

by its employee on account of the contractor's tort-

ious conduct causing injury to the employee, the

contractor has no logical ground for relief from the

full consequences of its independent contractual ob-

ligation, voluntarily assumed to the shipowner, to

load the cargo properly. . . .

"The Shipowner's action here is not founded

upon a tort or upon any duty which the stevedor-

ing contractor owes to its employee. The third-party

complaint is grounded upon the contractor's breach

of its purely consensual obligation owing to the

shipowner to stow the cargo in a reasonably safe

manner. Accordingly, the shipowner's action for in-
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demnity on that basis is not barred by the Com-
pensation Act."

The case of Smith v. The MORMACDALE, 198 F.2d

849, 3 Cir., (1952) cert. den. presents the same factual

situation as the case at bar, with the exception that

Smith filed an in rem action whereas Course filed in

personam. It was there held that where a ship is owned

by the employer, the exclusive provisions of the Long-

shoreman's Act controls, saying at page 850:

"To impose this additional liability on the em-

ployer where he is also the shipowner would rad-

ically distort the intent of Congress in enacting the

Longshoremen's Act. . . .

"The identical point argued here was raised in

Samuels v. Munson SS Line, supra, in a well-rea-

soned opinion that court pointed out the absurd re-

sults which would arise if a longshoreman were per-

mitted to accomplish what is here attempted. We
agree with the reasoning and the result of that opin-
io-, "
ion.

These decisions have never been overruled by the

Supreme Court either before or after the case of Reed

v. SS YAKA, supra. Consequently, the Court is com-

pelled to make the same holding, namely, that a ship-

owner-employer may not be sued for damages by an em-

ployee because of the exclusive provisions of the Act.

Reed v. SS YAKA, a Third Party Case

We are now brought to an analysis of the case of

Reed v. SS YAKA, and to distinguish its unique facts

from those at bar. In reading Reed v. SS YAKA, supra,



as an authority to permit the maintenance of appellee's

libel in personam against appellant herein is clearly in

error. Reed v. SS YAKA, supra, arose from a bare boat

charter executed by Waterman Steamship Co., owner of

the SS YAKA, to Pan-Atlantic Steamship Co., Reed's

employer. The charterparty contained a full indemnity

and hold harmless agreement running to Waterman.

While Pan-Atlantic was in full control and possession

of the vessel as owner "pro hoc vice" under its bare boat

charter, Reed, Pan-Atlantic's longshoreman employee

was injured. Reed filed a Libel in Rem for unseaworthi-

ness against the SS YAKA. Waterman appeared as

owner and claimant and impleaded Pan-Atlantic for in-

demnity. With the case in this posture Pan-Atlantic, as

a defense to the indemnity action, sought to interpose

section 905 of the Act. The District Court (E.D. Pa.

1960), 183 F. Supp. 69, held that this defense was not

available to Pan -Atlantic. The District Court held that

Reed could recover in rem against the SS YAKA for un-

seaworthiness and that Waterman, under the indemnity

clause of the bare boat charter, was entitled to full indem-

nity from Pan-Atlantic. United States District Judge

Clary in the course of the decision admitted the result

would be different if one person (as here) is both owner

and employer, saying:

"There are reasons why a court might find other-

wise when only one person is involved as owner-

stevedore combined." (page 77)

On appeal to the 3rd Circuit, Reed v. SS YAKA, 307

F.2d 203 (3d Cir. 1961), the court held, under Sixuth v.
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The MORMACDALE, 198 F.2d 849 (1952) cert, den.,

345 U.S. 908 (1953), that Waterman was not liable for

the unseaworthiness of the SS YAKA because the unsea-

worthy condition arose after the bare boat charter was af-

fected. On petition for rehearing, Chief Justice Biggs dis-

sented and was joined by Circuit Judge Staley, who said

at page 207:

"I join Chief Judge Biggs in his conclusion in

his dissent. I read his dissent as not disturbing

Smith V. MORMACDALE, 198 F.2d 849 (C.A. 3,

1952) where the employer was also the shipowner."

The Supreme Court reversed the Third Circuit, thus

returning the case to its former posture as a result of

the holding at the trial level. The YAKA was liable in

rem to Reed for unseaworthiness, and Waterman was to

be indemnified by Pan-Atlantic. It is to be remembered

that Pan-Atlantic was not the defendant in the case but

was a third party defendant and was so treated by the

Supreme Court. As such, the Longshoreman's and Har-

bor Workers' Compensation Act did not absolve Pan-

Atlantic from its duty of providing a seaworthy vessel

merely because of the happenstance that it employed

longshoremen. This developed from the court's discus-

sion of the Ryan decision and the expansion of the law

that the stevedore company may be liable for indemnity

to the shipowner in spite of the exclusionary provision

of the Longshoremen's and Harbor Workers' Act.

In Itedia Soc. v. Oregon Stevedoring Co., 376 U.S.

315 (1963) the Supreme Court made clear that its deci-

sion in Reed v. SS YAKA, supra, did not change the rule

that the Longshoremen's Act imposes exclusive liability
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on the shipowner-employer as distinguished from a con-

tractual undertaking which the employer may make to

third parties. Mr. Justice White speaking for the major-

ity of the Court stated at page 320

:

"At last Term in Reed v. Yaka, 373 U. S. 410, we as-

sumed, without deciding, that a shipowner could re-

cover over from a stevedore for breach of warranty

even though the injury-causing defect was latent and

the stevedore without fault. We think that the steve-

dore's implied warranty of workmanlike perform-

ance applied in these cases is sufficiently broad to in-

clude the respondent's failure to furnish safe equip-

ment pursuant to its contract with the shipowner,

notwithstanding that the stevedore would not be

liable in tort for its conduct."

The following explanation appears in the margin:

"If the stevedore is liable in warranty for sup-

plying defective, injury producing equipment, of

course the provisions of the Longshoremen's and

Harbor Workers' Compensation Act, 44 Stat. 1424,

as amended, 33 U.S. Code, sees. 901-950, are no bar

to recovery. This question was fully resolved in

Ryan vs. Pan-Atlantic Corp., 350 U.S. 124, 1956

A.M.C. 9. 'The Act nowhere expressly excludes or

limits a shipowner's right, as a third person, to in-

sure itself against such a liability either by a bond

of indemnity, or the contractor's own agreement to

save the shipowner harmless.' See also Reed vs. SS
YAKA."

The case at bar is completely distinguishable from

the case of Reed v SS YAKA, supra. This case is not

in rem, but is a direct suit by an injured ship repairman

against his employer.
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The appellant herein is not in the status of a third

party contesting a claim for indemnity over against it

by a vessel owner for the latter's having been found

liable to an injured longshoreman, as in the Reed case.

The appellant here is not using the exclusionary provi-

sions of the Longshoremen's Act to contest such a claim

being made against it in a circuitous fashion. The appel-

lant here is contesting a claim being made directly

against it by an injured repairman and therefore seeks

the protection of the exclusive liability provisions of the

Act to which it is entitled.

The Rationale Which Would Permit a Longshoreman to

Sue His Employer Is Not Applicable to Appellee

If the case of Reed v. SS YAKA, supra, can be con-

strued to permit a longshoreman to rely upon his em-

ployer-ship-owner's dual personality to sustain a cause

of action against his employer, appellant submits that

the rationale employed by the Supreme Court in per-

mitting a longshoreman to do so is not applicable to a

repairman in his employer's steady employ.

Longshoremen receive their job opportunities through

the offices of a central hiring hall rather than from face

to face meetings with their prospective employers. Em-

ployers, daily, make known their labor needs to a dis-

patcher at the hiring hall. The longshoremen are dis-

patched to their jobs without regard to whom their em-

ployer will be or on what vessel they shall work. Long-

shoremen are not at liberty to pick and choose their

employers. Under such hiring practices it is conceivable

and is often the practice for any individual longshore-



13

man to work for three or four different employers dur-

ing any given week and upon a like number of differ-

ent vessels of different design, nationality and origin. At

times the longshoreman's employer will be an indepen-

dent stevedore contractor, while at other times his em-

ployer will be a shipowner. In the former situation, an

injured longshoreman, if he determines his injury was

caused by the fault of a third person, could institute a

cause of action against the vessel in rem or against the

shipowner in personam, whereas in the latter situation

he could not.

The majority of the Supreme Court in Reed v. SS

YAKA, supra, felt that a longshoreman working for a

shipowner was in need of the same protection as one

employed by an independent contractor and stated at

page 415:

"We have previously said that the Longshoremen's

Act must be liberally construed in conformance

with its purpose, and in a way which avoids harsh

and incongruous results. We think it would pro-

duce a harsh and incongruous result, one out of

keeping with the dominant intent of Congress to

help longshoremen, to distinguish between liability

to longshoremen injured under precisely the same

circumstances because some draw their pay directly

from a shipowner and others from a stevedoring

company doing ship's service."

There are other cogent reasons why a longshoreman

might be conceded more latitude in a suit against his

shipowner-employer and these reasons are nowhere more

succinctly expressed than in the language of the Hon-
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orable William C. Mathes in Hugev v. Dampsk Interna-

tional, D.C. S.D. Cal., (1959), 170 F. Supp. 601 at

pages 609 and 610:

"In almost every instance, when a stevedoring

contractor commences the work of loading or un-

loading a seagoing vessel, the ship has arrived in

port only a few hours before. She may have been at

sea for weeks or months. Almost always, she has

ridden some heavy seas. Often she may have rolled

and pitched through mountainous seas for days,

taken thousands of tons of water over her decks,

sailed through freezing and tropical weather, and

been beaten by 100 mile an hour gales. Almost sure-

ly she will have been serviced by stevedores of vary-

ing degrees of competency in other parts (sic)

throughout the world ... It is reasonable to expect,

then that many things may be wrong with a freight-

er and her equipment and appliances when she ar-

rives in port; and she may well be a place of danger

even as she docks. And all of these lurking dangers

may be due entirely to the hazards of the ship's

service."

The appellee herein is not a longshoreman. He is not

called upon indiscriminately to work for various em-

ployers and upon various ships of varying nationality

and design encountering the dangers which lurk thereon.

The appellee had been in the appellant's employ for over

one year prior to his injury (Tr. 7) . He had worked only

upon vessels solely owned by his employer (Tr. 86).

The tug "BANNOCK" plies only the waters of the Co-

lumbia and Willamette rivers not subject to diverse

weather conditions and tampering by foreign workmen.
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For these reasons, appellee herein, should not be ac-

corded the same latitude in suing his shipowner-em-

ployer as might be presumed to be accorded a longshore-

man in Reed V. SS YAKA, supra.

The Tug "BANNOCK" Did Not Warrant Her Seaworthiness

The tug "BANNOCK" tied up next to a derrick

crane at appellant's ship repair yard on December 17,

1963. She was surrendered to appellant's shore-based

supervisory personnel to affect the intended repairs (Tr.

129). Major overhaul of both her main engines began at

once which required the removal of all constituent parts,

with the exception of her crankshaft and camshaft (Tr.

124) ; and which was raised from the vessel by use of

the derrick crane and transported by fork lift to the

machine shop for testing, refurbishing and replacement

if needed. Mr. Robert Piatt testified that the valves

were ground, sleeves were removed and replaced, and

connecting rods were realigned and the heads were re-

finished. He further testified that it was necessary to

take these parts into the machine shop because the vessel

was not equipped to refinish them. He testified the

heads had to be taken into town to be milled (Tr. 131,

132). The engine heads were so heavy that they had to be

raised from the vessel by a crane (Tr. 131), and were

thereafter transported to the machine shop by fork lift.

Thereafter on December 19, 1963, but after appellee

was injured, the vessel was placed on appellant's dry-

dock where all shafts were checked for alignment, and

the starboard tail shaft was removed and replaced re-
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quiring the removal of both rudders. While on drydock,

both propellers were removed and replaced. The skin

coolers needed to keep the engines cool were tested for

leaks by surging soapsuds through the cooling system.

Mr. Piatt testified that all of these repairs required the

vessel to be drydocked. There were other items of repair

not here mentioned.

Mr. Piatt testified and was corroborated by appellee

that he was in charge of all the repair work.

The Captain, mate, engineers and cook were aboard

the vessel at all times. The Captain had no part in su-

pervising the repair work and he testified that Mr. Piatt

was in charge of the vessel. The Captain and mate acted

as watchmen to make sure no fires were started during

the course of repairs (Tr. 112).

Appellee testified that he had connected the vessel

to shoreside power the day prior to his injury and that

he was preparing to disconnect the power when he was

injured. Therefore, appellant assumes the tug "BAN-

NOCK" was without electrical power.

Appellant recognizes that under the implied warranty

of seaworthiness a shipowner is under a duty to main-

tain the vessel and its appurtenances in a reasonably

safe condition suitable for the purposes intended and

that this duty is not only owed to members of the crew

but to all engaged aboard the ship in work historically

performed by a seaman. Seas Shipping Co. v. Sieracki,

328 U.S. 85 (1946), 1946 A.M.C. 698; Pope & Talbot v.

Hawn, 346 U.S. 406 (1953), 1954 A.M.C. 1. However, it

has been authoriatitively settled that the implied war-
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ranty of seaworthiness may not be invoked as a basis of

liability where the vessel is a dead ship and has been

withdrawn from navigation. West v. U.S., 361 U.S. 118

(1959); Latus v. U.S., 277 F.2d 264 (2 cir. 1960), cert,

den. 364 U.S. 827; McDonald v U.S., 321 F.2d 437 (3

Cir. 1963) ; Bielowski v. American Export Lines,

D.C. E.D. Va. 1963, 220 F. Supp. 265; McQuaid v. U.S.,

(3rd Cir. 164), 337 F.2d 483; M/V HOPERANGE (5

Cir. 1965), 345 F.2d 451.

In West v. U.S., supra, the vessel "MARY AUSTIN"
was taken from the mothball fleet to Atlantic Port Con-

tractors, Inc. for the purpose of reactivating the vessel.

During the course of the work West was injured. The

Supreme Court held that the vessel did not warrant her

seaworthiness. The Court reasoned that the cases de-

pended upon by West (Sieracki v. Seas Shipping Co.,

supra, and Pope &• Talbot v. Haun, supra,) were, in-

stead of undergoing general repairs, in active maritime

service in the course of loading and discharging pursuant

to a voyage. At page 122 the Court stated

:

"The MARY AUSTIN, as anyone could see, was

not in maritime service. . . . This undertaking was

not 'ship's work' but a complete overhaul of such

nature, magnitude and importance as to require the

vessel to be turned over to a ship repair contractor

and docked at its pier for the sole purpose of mak-
ing her seaworthy. It would be an unfair contradic-

tion to say that the owner held the vessel out as

seaworthy in such a case."

It is of no significance that the MARY AUSTIN
was out of the moth-ball fleet whereas the tug BAN-
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NOCK was not. The main point is that both had been

temporarily withdrawn from navigation. As stated by

Judge Solomon in Dawson v. U.S., (D.C. of Oregon

1962) 1962 A.M.C. 2203 at page 2204:

".
. . ; and even though under Navy Regulations,

the ship was considered to be in active service.

"In my view, this case is controlled by West vs.

United States, 361 U.S. 118, 1960 A.M.C. 15 (1959).

The vessel involved in that case had been in the

moth-ball fleet and was being reactivated at the

time the libellant was injured. However, in my view,

that is not a significant distinction."

In United N.Y. &> N.J. Pilots v. Halecki, Admx., 358

U.S. 613 (1959), the vessel there involved was in a ship-

yard for its annual overhaul. One job involved was the

dismanteling and overhauling the ship's generators, re-

quiring them to be sprayed with carbon tetrachloride

which caused Halecki's death. In holding that Halecki's

representatives were not entitled to rely upon the ves-

sel's unseaworthiness the Court at page 617 stated:

"The work that he (Halecki) did was in no way
'the type of work' traditionally done by the ship's

crew. It was work that could not even be performed

upon a ship ready for sea, but only when the ship

was 'dead' with its generators dismantled."

A ship with her engines dismantled and without

power from her generators is no less a "dead" ship than

one with her generators dismantled.

This Court in Berryhill v. Pacific Far East Line, (9

Cir. 1956) 238 F.2d 385, affirmed the lower court which

held that the ship there involved did not warrant her

i
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seaworthiness. Although that vessel was in dry dock

when Berryhill was injured, the philosophy therein ex-

pressed anticipated the holding of the Supreme Court

in West V. U.S., supra, at page 387

:

"The facts in this instant case would extend the

doctrine of absolute liability for unseaworthiness

(Mahnick vs. Southern Steamship Company, 321

U.S. 96, 100, 1944 A.M.C. 1) beyond any previous

holdings. Here the repairs had nothing to do with

the loading or unloading the ship. The propulsion

machinery of the vessel itself was being repaired.

Not all repairs are "ship's work," to be performed

historically or currently, by the crew."

The Honorable Judge Carter in GUI v. TANCRED,
(D.C. N.D. Cal., 1957), 1958 A.M.C. 670, followed the

rationale of Berryhill, supra, in holding that the vessel

SS TANCRED did not warrant her seaworthiness. Judge

Carter pointed out that the vessel's "main propulsion

machinery" was damaged in an explosion and had to be

towed into port. Judge Carter stated at page 672

:

. . . "the vessel was temporarily completely with-

drawn from the mainstream of maritime commerce."

The same philosophy was expressed by the Third

Circuit recently in affirming the lower court which held

that a vessel tied to a pier for the purpose of undergoing

repair prior to deactivation does not warrant her sea-

worthiness.

"The warranty of seaworthiness does not extend

to a shore based employee who, at the time of his

injury, was engaged with others in the general over-
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haul and renovation of a vessel temporarily with-

drawn from maritime service. Such work is cus-

tomarily performed in a shipyard equipped for that

purpose, and is not traditionally performed by a

seaman."

McDonald v. U. S. (3d Cir. 1953), 321 F.2d 437 at

page 440.

In conclusion we point out that the tug BANNOCK
was undergoing major repairs under the supervision and

control of the ship repair personnel, requiring such spe-

cialized equipment as a valve grinding machine, head

milling machine, a derrick crane and fork lifts, none of

which are normally carried aboard a tug.

The case law controlling this case, including the lat-

est word from the Supreme Court, is that a vessel

which has been withdrawn temporarily from maritime

service while undergoing "general" repairs, does not war-

rant its seaworthiness.

It makes no difference if the vessel has been re-

moved from maritime service because her lines have

been filled with preservatives as in West or because her

propulsion machinery is damaged by an explosion as in

Gill v. SS TANCRED or because her propulsion machin-

ery is intentionally dismantled as in Halecki and Berry-

hill.

This Court in deciding Berryhill v. Pacific Far East

Lines, supra, in discussing the view of the Supreme
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Court in Pope &> Talbot v. Hawn, supra, stated at page

387:

"The Supreme Court refers to repairs Hawn
was making to the loading equipment as 'sHght.'

The purpose of his repairing was to permit loading

'to go on at once.' This would indicate a doubt

in the Court's mind if any very general repairs to

a ship could, or should, be included as 'ship's

work.'
"

Appellee Was Not Doing The Work
Historically Performed by a Seaman

It is axiomatic that a shore based worker is not en-

titled to the Warranty of Seawoorthiness unless he is

engaged, at the time he is injured; in work traditionally

performed by a seaman.

Seas Shipping Co. v. Seiracki, 328 U.S. 85 (1946);

Pope & Talbot v. Hawn, 346 U.S. 406 (1954).

The appellee was injured aboard appellant's vessel

on December 19, 1963. He initially boarded the vessel

on December 18, 1963, for the purpose of equipping her

with shore side electrical power (Tr. 13). The following

day, appellee returned aboard the vessel, this time for

the purpose of making arrangements to install a

"whistle" light, a job which he neither started or fin-

ished (Tr. 126). At the moment of his injury, appellee

testified that he was going ashore to disconnect the shore

side power prior to dry docking the vessel (Tr. 89-90).

Appellee is a man with several years experience as a

seaman on ocean going vessels and he himself testified

that in all of his experience as an electrician he had
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never connected a vessel to or disconnected a vessel

from shoreside power.

The District Court erred in holding that appellee was

entitled to the warranty of seaworthiness.

CONCLUSION

The Longshoremen's and Harbor Workers' Com-

pensation Act makes the payment of compensation the

exclusive liability of an employer to his injured em-

ployee. The Courts are not free to rewrite the provisions

of the Act and make what was intended as a complete

immunity from direct suits for damages, no immunity

at all.

The inescapable fact is that Reed v. SS YAKA, su-

pra, was a suit brought by Reed against the property

of a third person, and it is beyond question that it was

so treated by the Supreme Court. There was nothing

said by the Court in that case which would permit the

appellee herein to bring a direct suit against his em-

ployer.

There might be reasons why a longshoreman would

be allowed to bring a direct suit against his employer,

but none of those reasons would permit a like suit by

a ship repairman who is steadily employed by one em-

ployer and who works only upon vessels owned solely

by his employer.

The latest word from the Supreme Court is that a

vessel undergoing general repairs does not warrant its

seaworthiness. It is incumbent upon this Court to hold
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in accord with the law expressed by the Supreme Court

in West v. U. S., supra.

Regardless of a vessel's status, before a shore-based

worker can bring himself within the ambit of the war-

ranty of seaworthiness, he must show that he was, at

the time of his injury, engaged in work historically

performed by a seaman. The appellee has shown only

that he was injured aboard a vessel while engaged in a

shoreside activity.

Respectfully submitted.

Gray, Fredrickson & Heath
Eugene D. Cox
Floyd A. Fredrickson

Of Proctors for Appellant
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BRIEF OF APPELLEE

JURISDICTION

The appellee concurs with the statement of jurisdic-

tion as set forth in the Brief of Appellant.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This action involves a Libel in Personam for dam-

ages based on unseaworthiness of the tug "BANNOCK"
instituted by a ship repairman-marine electrician, Del-



bert A. Course, appellee, against his employer-ship-

owner. Pacific Inland Navigation Company, appellant.

It arose from a shipboard accident on December 19,

1963, at Vancouver, Washington, when appellee fell

through a hatchway which was inadequately covered

with a piece of plyAvood over which appellant's employ-

ees had thrown the canvas cover of a lifeboat. The ap-

pellee had been on the bridge of the tug BANNOCK
with the Captain of the vessel for the purpose of in-

stalling an amber whistle light (a light on top of the

wheelhouse which flashes when the ship's whistle sounds

and is used by other vessels to locate the vessel sounding

the whistle) . The appellee was leaving the bridge and go-

ing ashore, when the accident happened. At the time of

the accident, the tug was afloat and had auxiliary power

and electrical power. Most of the crew was aboard. The

captain had just approved the location picked out by

the appellee for the installation of the whistle light.

The vessel was undergoing a minor annual over-

haul. Prior to the accident, some repairs had been com-

menced on the engines by the ship's engineers, and sub-

sequent to the accident the vessel was moved to dry

dock, whether or not under her own power is not

known.

The trial court held that the vessel was unsea-

worthy, that it was in navigation and not a dead ship;

that the appellee was performing a service tradition-

ally performed by seamen, and that the appellee was

entitled to bring his action against his employer, the

appellant, under the doctrine of Reed v. S. S. Yaka,

373 U.S. 410, 83 S. Ct. 1349, 10 L. Ed. 2d 448.



The unseaworthiness of the tug BANNOCK and

the damages awarded appellee are not issues in this

appeal.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

1. A ship's repairman engaged in work traditionally

performed by seamen is entitled to the warranty of sea-

worthiness.

2. The warranty of seaworthiness extends to a ship's

repairman, both where the vessel is owned or under

the control of a third person and where (as here) it is

owned and operated by the repairman's direct employer.

3. The mere fact that the ship's repairman is re-

ceiving benefits under the Longshoremen and Harbor

Workers' Compensation Act does not bar his action

for unseaworthiness against his direct employer.

4. The tug BANNOCK, at the time of the appellee's

injury, was afloat, moored to a dock, undergoing a mi-

nor annual overhaul, and warranted its seaworthiness.

It was not a dead ship out of navigation.

5. Since the appellee was engaged in work tradition-

ally performed by seamen, he is entitled to the war-

ranty of seaworthiness, and the fact that he was regu-

larly employed by the appellant as a marine electrician,

rather than as a longshoreman, is of no significance to

this appeal.



ARGUMENT

A harbor worker injured on a vessel while employed
In work traditionally performed by seamen is entitled

to the warranty of seaworthiness from his employer-
ship owner, although receiving benefits under

The Longshoremen's and Harbor Workers'
Compensation Act.

The keystone decision of THE OSCEOLA (1903)

189 U.S. 158, 23 S. Ct. 483, 57 L. ed. 760, set forth for

the first time the proposition that the fate of an in-

jured seaman was Hnked with vessel unseaworthiness

and gave him an effective remedy against the ship. Of

the four propositions set forth in the case, the second

one, at page 175, states:

"2. That the vessel and her owner are, both

by English and American law, liable to an in-

demnity for injuries received by seamen in conse-

quence of the unseaworthiness of the ship, or a

failure to supply and keep in order the proper ap-

pliances appurtenant to the ship. Scarff v. Met-

calf, 107 N.Y. 211, 13 N.E. 796."

Following this decision, the question was raised as

to whether or not the work of a longshoreman was in

the nature of a maritime service. The Supreme Court

answered in the affirmative in Atlantic Transport Com-

pany of West Virginia v. Imbrovek (1913), 234 U.S.

52, 34 S. Ct. 733, 58 L. ed. 1208, where the Court held,

at page 61:

"The libellant was injured on a ship, lying in

navigable waters, and while he was engaged in the

performance of a maritime service. We entertain



no doubt that the service in loading and stowing a

ship's cargo is of this character. Upon its proper

performance depend in large measure the safe car-

rying of the cargo and the safety of the ship it-

self; and it is a service absolutely necessary to

enable the ship to discharge its maritime duty.

Formerly the work was done by the ship's crew;

but, owing to the exigencies of increasing commerce
and the demand for rapidity and special skill, it

has become a specialized service devolving upon a

class 'as clearly identified with maritime affairs as

are the mariners.'
"

With the enactment of the Longshoremen's and

Harbor Workers' Compensation Act in March, 1927, 44

Stat. 1424, 33 U.S.C. 901, et seq., the further question

was raised in the case of Seas Shipping Co. v. Sieracki

(1946) 328 U.S. 85, 66 S. Ct. 872, 90 L. ed. 1099,

as to whether the longshoremen would have the sea-

men's remedy under the General Maritime Law for in-

juries proximately caused by the unseaworthiness of

the ship. The crux of the controversy was whether the

ship owners' obligation for unseaworthiness to seamen

extended to longshoremen injured while doing the ship's

work, but while employed by an independent steve-

doring contractor whom the employer had hired to load

or unload the vessel. The Court held, at page 97, as

follows

:

"Accordingly we think the Court of Appeals

correctly held that the liability arises as an inci-

dent, not merely of the seaman's contract, but of

performing the ship's services with the owner's con-

sent. For this view, in addition to the states con-
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sideration of principle, t±ie court rightly found sup-

port in the trend and policy of this Court's deci-

sions, especially in International Stevedoring Co. v,

Haverty, 272 US 50, 71 L ed 157, 47 S Ct 19;

Atlantic Transport Co. v. Imbrovek, 234 US 52,

58 L ed 1208, 34 S Ct 733, 51 LRA (NS) 1157,

and Uravic v. F. Jarka Co. 282 US 234, 35 L ed

312, 51 S Ct 111."

and, further, at page 99:

"Running through all of these cases, therefore,

to sustain the stevedore's recovery is a common
core of policy which has been controlling, although

the specific issue has varied from a question of ad-

miralty jurisdiction to one of coverage under stat-

utory liability within the admiralty field. It is that

for injuries incurred while working on board the

ship in navigable waters the stevedore is entitled

to the seaman's traditional and statutory protec-

tions, regardless of the fact that he is employed im-

mediately by another than the owner. For these

purposes he is, in short, a seaman because he is do-

ing a seaman's work and incurring a seaman's haz-
,

ards. Moreover, to make the policy effective, his I

employer is brought within the liability which is

peculiar to the employment relation to the extent m

that and because he also undertakes the services of

the ship." (Emphasis added)

Following the Sieracki decision (supra), many lower

courts attempted to limit the doctrine solely to long-

shoremen and not to include other ship's repairmen.

See Guerrini v. United States, 167 F.2d 352 (CCA. 2d

1948) and Christiansen v. United States, 94 F. Supp.

934, 192 F.2d 199 (C.A., First Cir. 1951).

I



The issue came before the Supreme Court in Pope

&> Talbot, Inc. v. Hawn (1954), 346 U.S. 406, 74 S. Ct.

202, 98 L. ed. 143. Hawn was a carpenter doing car-

pentery work on grain loading equipment at the time

of his injuries. He brought a civil action in the United

States District Court, charging that his injuries resulted

from the vessel's unseaworthiness and Pope fie Talbot's

negligence. The issue was raised that Hawn was a car-

penter, while Sieracki was a stevedore. The Supreme

Court held, at page 412, as follows:

".
. . We are asked, however, to distinguish

this case from our holding there. It is pointed out

that Sieracki was a 'stevedore.' Hawn was not. And
Hawn was not loading the vessel. On these grounds

we are asked to deny Hawn the protection we held

the law gave Sieracki. These slight differences in

fact cannot fairly justify the distinction urged as

between the two cases. Sieracki's legal protection

was not based on the name 'stevedore' but on the

type of work he did and its relationship to the

ship and to the historic doctrine of seaworthiness.

The ship on which Hawn was hurt was being load-

ed with the grain loading equipment developed a

slight defect. Hawn was put to work on it so that

the loading could go on at once. There he was hurt.

His need for protection from unseaworthiness was

neither more nor less than that of the stevedores

then working with him on the ship or of seamen

who had been or were about to go on a voyage. All

were subjected to the same danger. All were en-

titled to like treatment under the law." (Emphasis

added)

The Court further found, at page 413 of the report:
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".
. . The fact that Sieracki upheld the right of

workers like Hawn to recover for unseaworthiness

does not justify an argument that the Court there-

by blotted out their long-recognized right to recover

in admiralty for negligence."

The Court further stated, at page 411:

".
. . Of course the substantial rights of an injured

person are not to be determined differently whether

his case is labelled 'law side' or 'admiralty side'

on a district court's docket."

The Supreme Court then reaffirmed its position that

those who do the type of work traditionally done by

seamen, no matter how labeled, are entitled to a sea-

worthy ship.

In United New York and New Jersey Sandy Hook

Pilots Association v. Halecki, 358 U.S. 613, 79 S. Ct.

517, 523, 3 L. ed. 2d 541, the Court stated, at page 617:

"... Seas Shipping Co. v. Sieracki and Pope & Tal-

bot, Inc. V. Hawn made clear that the shipowner

could not escape liability for unseaworthiness by

delegating to others work traditionally done by

members of the crew. Whether their calling be la-

beled 'stevedore,' 'carpenter,' or something else,

those who did the 'type of work' traditionally done

by seamen, and were thus related to the ship in

the same way as seamen 'who had been or who
were about to go on a voyage,' were entitled to a

seaworthy ship. See 346 US at 413."

And in The Vessel M/V "TUNGUS" v. Skovgaard,

358 U.S. 588, 79 S. Ct. 503, 523, 3 L. ed. 2d 524, the

Supreme Court applied the same doctrine to a main-



tenance foreman unloading oil from a vessel. It is stated,

at 3 L. ed. 2d, page 530:

"The Court of Appeals also determined that the

decedent was within the class protected by the

warranty of seaworthiness as developed by federal

maritime law, which it found the New Jersey stat-

ute had incorporated. This subsidiary determination

is clearly correct. The decedent's status is prac-

tically indistinguishable from that of the plaintiff

in Pope & Talbot, Inc. v. Hawn, 346 US 406, 98 L
ed 143, 74 S Ct 202, the only difference being that

the cargo here was oil instead of grain, and was

being unloaded instead of loaded."

To like effect, are Feinman v. A. H. Bull S.S. Com-

pany (1952) (D.C. Pa.), 107 F. Supp. 153 (an elec-

trician) ;

Bow V. Pilato (1949) (D.C, So. Dist. California),

82 F. Supp, 399 (an engineer)

;

Imperial Oil, Ltd v. Drilik, 234 F.2d 4 (6th Cir.

1956), a line handler);

Ross v. SS ZEELAND, 240 F.2d 820 (4th Cir.

1957) (a night watchman);

Shenker v. U. S., 322 F.2d 622 (2d Cir. 1963) (a

time keeper)

;

Sacony-Vacuum Oil Co., Inc. V. Lawlor, 275 F.2d

599 (2d Cir. 1960) (a shipyard worker on overhauled

tanker)

;

Pioneer SS Co. v. Hill, 227 F.2d 262 (6th Cir.

1956) (a shipfitter's helper).
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See annotation, "Who, other than seamen, are en-

titled to benefits of seaworthiness doctrine — federal

cases," 3 L. ed. 2d 1764.

Concurrently with this broad concept of extending

the protection of seaworthiness to all shoreside workers,

injured while doing work traditionally performed by

seamen, there developed the concept of indemnity by

the employer to the shipowner if the cause of the acci-

dent was due to the action or inaction of said employer.

Ryan Stevedoring Co. v. Pan-Atlantic Steamship Corp.,

350 U.S. 124, 100 L. ed. 133, involved an injury due to

unsafe storage of cargo, wherein the original plaintiff

obtained judgment against the ship owner, even though

he had received benefits under the Longshoremen's Act.

It was held that the stevedoring company would be re-

sponsible to indemnify the ship owner for such loss,

even though the result would be that the employer

would then be buying compensation insurance and, in

addition thereto, would be paying additional sums to

ship owners by reason of negligence of the employer or

his employees.

Following the Hawn decision and its progeny (su-

pra), the next issue was obvious. Could a ship owner in-

sulate himself from liability to Sieracki and Hawn steve-

dores and repairmen if he performed his own stevedor-

ing and repair work, or, to state otherwise, could a har-

bor worker employee bring an action against a ship own-

er direct employer, where the employer wore two hats

—

one as a stevedoring company and other as a ship-

owner—while such an employee was covered under the
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Longshoremen's and Harbor Workers Compensation

Act?

The answer was not long in forthcoming in Reed v.

SS YAKA, 373 U.S. 410, 83 S. Ct. 1349, 10 L. ed. 2d

448. The Court, putting together the two developing

concepts set forth in Hawn and Ryan, met the issue

squarely by saying, at page 414:

".
. . we pointed out several times in the Sieracki

case, which has been consistently followed since,

that a ship owner's obligation of seaworthiness

cannot be shifted about, limited, or escaped by con-

tracts or by the absence of contracts, and that the

ship owner's obligation is rooted, not in contracts,

but in the hazards of the work ... In making this

argument Pan-Atlantic has not pointed and could

not point to any economic difference between giving

relief in this case, where the owner acted as his own
stevedore, and in one in which the owner hires an

independent company. In either case, under Ryan,

the burden ultimately falls on the company whose

default caused the injury."

As to the exclusiveness of the Longshoremen's and

Harbor Workers' Act, the Court continued, at page

414:

".
. . Pan-Atlantic relies simply on the literal word-

ing of the statute, and it must be admitted that the

statute on its face lends support to Pan-Atlantic's

construction. But we cannot now consider the

wording of the statute alone. We must view it in

light of our prior cases in this area, like Sieracki,

Ryan, and others, the holdings of which have been

left unchanged by Congress. ... In light of this

whole body of law, statutory and decisional, only
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blind adherence to the superficial meaning of a

statute could prompt us to ignore the fact that

Pan-Atlantic was not only an employer of long-

shoremen but was also a bareboat charterer and
operator of a ship and, as such, was charged with

the traditional absolute, and nondelegable obliga-

tion of seaworthiness which it should not be per-

mitted to avoid. We have previously said that the

Longshoremen's Act, 'must be liberally construed

in conformance with its purpose, and in a way
which avoids harsh and incongruous results.'

"

The Court further considered the fact that Pan-

Atlantic was a bareboat charterer from Waterman. It

held, at 373 U.S. 412:

".
. . It has long been recognized in the law of ad-

miralty that for many, if not most, purposes the

bareboat charterer is to be treated as the owner,

generally called owner pro hac vice."

To argue, as appellant does, that a ship-owner-em

ployer may not be sued for damages by an employee

because of the exclusive provisions of the Act is to

completely ignore the literal wording of the case, which,

as the Court stated at page 415 of the report:

"We think it would produce a harsh and incon-

gruous result, one out of keeping with the dominant

intent of Congress to help longshoremen, to dis-

tinguish between liability to longshoremen injured

under precisely the same circumstances because

some draw their pay directly from a shipowner and

others from a stevedoring company doing the ship's

service. Petitioner's need for protection from un-

seaworthiness was neither more nor less than that

1
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of a longshoreman working for a stevedoring com-
pany. . .

."

Appellee submits that the case plainly sets forth the

proposition that a ship owner cannot insulate itself

from liability to an injured harbor worker by acting

as its own stevedoring and repair company.

In the May, 1964, issue of the Stanford Law Review,

the Notewriter discusses Reed v. YAKA as follows, at

pages 563-64:

"There is no question about squaring this de-

cision with the Longshoremen's Act. As the dissent

pointed out, it simply cannot be done. In effect,

section 5 of the Act, which makes the employer's

liability for compensation 'exclusive and in place

of all other liability ... at law or in admiralty on

account of such injury,' must be regarded as amend-

ed by a proviso: 'provided the employer is not an

owner or operator of a ship.'

"The decision does not rest on an inscrutable

mystery of the maritime libel in rem. This is fairly

clear from the opinion itself. And in one recent low-

er court decision, Yake was construed, quite right-

ly it would seem, to allow a longshoreman to sue

his bareboat-charterer-employer for unseaworthi-

ness in a personal action on the law side of the

federal district court.'"

This proposition is sustained by Hertel v. American

Export Lines, Inc., 225 F. Supp. 703 (1964) (U. S. Dist.

Ct., 7th Dist. N. Y.), wherein the plaintiff, a longshore-

man injured aboard a vessel owned by his employer

' Hertel V. American Export Lines, 225 F. Supp. 703 (S.D.

N.Y. 1964).
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brought an action for breach of warranty for seaworthi-

ness and negHgence under the Jones Act. In regard

to the issue of the breach of warranty, the Court held,

at page 704,

"The right to maintain the unseaworthiness

claim finds full support in Reed v. The Yaka. . .
."

"The underlying rationale of the reversal was
grounded upon the broad humanitarian policy of

the doctrine of unseaworthiness and its purpose to

protect all those engaged in the ship's service

against the hazards of unseaworthiness. It rested

upon the absolute and nondelegable duty of a ship-

owner, whether the actual owner or owner pro hac

vice, to live up to the warranty of seaworthiness,

and in the event of a breach, to afford the tradi-

tional remedies to an injured person to whom the

duty is owing, whether he is a crew member or per-

forming a crew member's work. . . . To have de-

nied him relief upon the unseaworthiness claim

would have negated the conceptual doctrine of Seas «

Shipping Co. v. Sieracki, and its progeny, whereby

a longshoreman engaged in the performance of the

traditional work of a crew member is afforded the

same rights upon such a claim as a regular crew

member."

The appellant does not cite the case of Biggs v. A^or-

folk Dredging Co., 360 F.2d 360 (1966) (C.C.A., 4th

Cir.), although appellant relied upon the lower court's

decision in this case to a great extent at the time of

trial in the instant case.

Biggs V. Norfolk Dredging Co., 237 F. Supp. 590 and
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Clower V. Tidewater Raymond Kiewit, 237 F. Supp.

1015, bot±i from t±ie United States District Court, East-

em District of Virginia, Norfolk Division, attempted to

limit the scope of the Reed decision. Judge Hoffman

stated, in the Bi^gs case, at 237 F. Supp.. page 598:

"Plaintiff, in the instant proceeding, would have

us extend the Reed doctrine to include any mari-

time worker allegedly doing the traditional work of

seamen, thereby requiring courts to go behind final

awards under state or federal compensation acts.

and calling upon district courts and juries to re-

examine any and all factual contentions. We do

not believe that Reed was ever intended to bring

about this result. In Reed, the libelant was unde-

niably in the status of a longshoreman. The same

is true in Hertel v. American Export Line. S.D,

N.Y., 225 F. Supp. 703. . . . We hold that the

limiting effect of Reed must be confined to in-

stances in which the claimant is undeniably a long-

shoreman working aboard a vessel owned and oper-

ated by his stevedore-employer."

Biggs was listed on the payroll as a temporary yard

helper. He had a Coast Guard certificate as a seaman

and had on occasion handled lines and assisted in man-

euvering barges used for the purpose of raising and re-

assembling a pipe line submerged in the Elizabeth River

in Virginia. On the date of the accident, he was on a

derrick barge when a section of the pipe struck him

and injured him. Clowers was hired and classified as

a carpenter, but principally worked upon a large unit

of equipment known as, "The Monster." which placed

caps upon the piles of a bridge trestle, which was a sec-
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tion of the Chesapeake Bay bridge tunnel. At times, he

had been engaged aboard barges and at other times he

had acted as a survey rodman on still another ship.

The Fourth Circuit reversed both cases, and (though

both turned upon whether a summary judgment was the

appropriate remedy against the defendants), the Court

met the issue here in point by stating that the Reed v.

S.S. Yaka decision applied to each of the appellants,

pra), 360 F2d 360, at page 363:

"The determinative factors in Reed v. The S.S.

Yaka, supra, 373 U.S. 410, 83 S. Ct. 1349, are pres-

ent in each case here. The Supreme Court's ruling

was this: if an employer is the permanent or pro

hac vice owner of the ship on which his employee

is injured while working as a longshoreman, then

the employee may sue his employer under the gen-

eral maritime law for damages, notwithstanding that

previously the employee has received compensa-

tion."

After quoting the Reed v. The S. S. Yaka decision,

the Court again, at 360 F.2d 364:

"Like reasoning applies to the instant cases.

Each plaintiff now pleads himself a seaman, or al-

ternatively as one doing a seaman's job, and thereby

entitled to sue for unseaworthiness. See Seas Ship-

ping Co. V. Sieracki, 328 U.S. 85, 99 66 S. Ct. 872

(1946). It is now elementary that all who do tra-

ditional seaman's work are owed, and may sue on,

the warranty of seaworthiness. See, e.g.. Pope 8b

Talbot, Inc., v. Hawn, 346 U.S. 406, 74 S. Ct. 202,

98 L. Ed. 143 (1953); Ross v S.S. Zeeland, 240 F.2d

820 (4 Cir. 1957); Lawlor v. Socony-Vacuum Oil
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Co., 275 F.2d 599, 84 A.L.R.2d 613 (2 Cir. 1960),

cert. den. 363 U.S. 844, 80 S. Ct. 1614, 4 L. Ed. 2d

1728 The present plaintiffs may also be armed in

like fashion"

and at page 365:

"... that Yaka peremptorily dictates, to repeat,

that a seaman-employee, actual or Sieracki, injured

aboard his employer's vessel is to be put in the

same position as one injured aboard a ship owned
by a third party, and in the latter situation, the

employee could recover compensation from his em-

ployer and still sue the third party for negligence

or unseaworthiness."

Reed v. S.S. YAKA is not a decision based on procedural

maneuvers. It stands for the substantive rule that

a worker injured aboard a vessel owned by his

employer may bring an action for sea-

worthiness although receiving com-
pensation under The Longshore-

men's and Harbor Workers
Compensation Act.

Appellant further seeks to distinguish away the ra-

tionale of Reed v. The Yaka (supra). Appellee sub-

mits that these are distinctions of form and not of

substance and should be treated as distinctions without

a difference.

The first distinction made by the appellant is that

Reed was a longshoreman and Course, the appellee, was

a maritime electrician. This distinction was raised in

many cases subsequent to the Sieracki decision and is

commented upon supra. The Hawn, Tungus and the

Halecki cases, cited supra, make this a distinction with-
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out difference. To again quote the Supreme Court, in

the Halecki case (supra), 358 U.S. at page 617.

".
. . .Seas Shipping Co. v. Sieracki and Pope &

Talbot, Inc. v. Hawn made clear that the shipowner

could not escape liability for unseaworthiness in

delegating to others work traditionally done by
members of the crew Whether their calling be la-

beled 'stevedore,' 'carpenter,' or something else,

those who did the 'type of work' traditionally done

by seamen, and were thus related to the ship in the

same way as seamen 'who had been or were about

to go on a voyage,' were entitled to a seaworthy

ship. See 346 US at 413."

It is worth while noting that appellant cites no cases i

to this proposition, although appellee has cited several

decisions, Guerrini v. United States, and Christiansen v.

United States (supra), that stand for appellant's propo-

sition but were decided prior to the Hawn, Tungus and

Halecki decisions (supra). L

The second distinction that appellant seeks to make

is that Reed was a libel in rem against the vessel and that ,,

neither Waterman Steamship Corporation, its owner, |

nor Pan-Atlantic Steamship Company, its owner pro i

hac vice and libelant's employer, were in personam de-

fendants. Following the libel. Waterman appeared as

claimant of the ship and impleaded Pan-Atlantic, the

bareboat charterer. The District Court Judge held that

the vessel was unseaworthy because of a defective pal-

let supplied by Pan-Atlantic, and that Reed could re-

cover against the ship, and that Waterman could then

recover against Pan-Atlantic because of an indemnity
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clause in the bareboat charter. The Court of Appeals

for the Third Circuit reversed the judgment, holding

that neither Waterman nor Pan-Atlantic could be held

personally liable for the unseaworthiness, Waterman

because the unseaworthiness condition arose after Pan-

Atlantic became owner pro hac vice of the vessel, and

Pan-Atlantic, because is was insulated by the Long-

shoremen's and Harbor Workers' Compensation Act.

The Supreme Court reversed the Court of Appeals'

decision, "Pan-Atlantic could not have been held per-

sonally liable to the petitioner for unseaworthiness be-

cause Pan-Atlantic was petitioner's employer under the

Longshoremen's 8b Harbor Workers' Compensation Act,"

by stating at 373 U.S., page 412,

"We find it unnecessary to decide whether a

ship may ever be held liable for its unseaworthiness

where no personal liability could be asserted be-

cause, in our view, the Court of Appeals erred in

holding that Pan-Atlantic could not be held per-

sonally liable for the unseaworthines of the ship

which caused petitioner's injury." (emphasis ours)

Let us analyze the appellant's argument further.

kVhat would the appellant claim if Pan-Atlantic, the

employer, as the bareboat charterer of said vessel, had

:laimed the vessel and had pleaded the actual owner,

iA^aterman? Would appellant then claim that the Reed

decision could not apply, since this would be a direct

action against the appellee's employer and a third party

action against Waterman? Appellant seems to be saying

that the procedural steps that are used in getting the
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defendant before a court with jurisdiction are more im-

portant than the substantive law to be applied to the

controversy between the parties once they are before the

Court. Appellee submits that the substance of the Reed

decision is that a Sieracki seaman may bring an action

against his employer when the employer is acting as his

own stevedore and not with qualifications set forth by

appellant that a libel in rem must be filed and that the

vessel must be claimed by the actual owner, who in turn

must implead the owner pro hac vice as a condition

precedent to the liability of a ship owner acting as its
;

own stevedore.

In Hertel v. American Export Lines, Inc. {supra),

the defendant attempted to distinguish The Yaka case,

as the appellant does here and the Court held, at 225

F. Supp. 704:

"The defendant urges that The Yaka is to be

distinguished because it was an in rem action,

whereas the instant one is brought on the civil side

in personam. However, the hard core of the Court's

decision, based as it is upon personal liability of the
^

bareboat charterer, renders the claimed distinction

invalid. Neither does the fact that the stevedore

has been receiving payments under the Act bar the

maintenance of this suit."

The Clower case, consolidated with Biggs v. Norfolk

Dredging Co., 360 F.2d 360 (supra) was an action also

on the civil side, rather than a libel in rem. The Fourth

Circuit had no hesitancy in applying Reed v. The Yaka,

as commented upon supra.

Appellee submits that appellant is relying purely
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upon form and completely ignoring the rule in the case

when appellant argues that Reed v. The Yaka only ap-

plies in circuitous actions that are in rem.

The Tug BANNOCK was in navigation and
therefore warranted her seaworthiness.

The Tug BANNOCK was tied up at the dock (Tr.

14, 85, 139). The crew of seven, or a portion thereof, was

aboard, and the crew had not been discharged (Tr. 101-

102). The captain of the tug testified that the tug was

in for a minor overhaul and that the overhaul was on

the basis of the hours that the vessel had actually been

running (Tr. 102, 123). He further testified that at the

time of the accident electrical power was available from

the ship's generator (Tr. 109). One of the ship's crew

was working on the engines, and another one was due to

work on the engines of the ship from 4:00 P.M. until

midnight (Tr. 109). The crew was capable of doing this

minor engine overhaul (Tr. 109-112). Sufficient power

was available from the ship to run its own welder (Tr.

111). The appellee. Course, asked the captain for his

approval in placing the whistle light on the wheel house,

and the captain went with Course to the wheel house to

see how the whistle light was to be rigged (Tr. 112). One

of the engines may have been dismantled (Tr. 136), but

the appellant's personnel didn't know whether the vessel

used its own power to get to drydock subsequent to the

accident or not (Tr. 137). It was in for repairs a total

of four to five days (Tr. 139).

In West v. United States, 361 U.S. 118, 80 S. Ct. 189,
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4 L. Ed. 2d 161 (1959), the issue was raised of whether

the warranty of seaworthiness apphed to harbor worker

employee working on a vessel, THE MARY AUSTIN,
which had been held in storage in the mothball fleet and

was undergoing a complete overhaul, the Supreme Court

held, at page 121,

".
. . It is evident that the sole purpose of the

ship's being at Atlantic's repair dock at Philadelphia

was to make her seaworthy. The totality of the rep-

aration on the vessel included compliance with the

hundred of specifications in the contract calling for

the repairing, reconditioning, and replacement,

where necessary, of equipment so as to make fit all

the machinery, equipment, gear, and every p>art of

the vessel. ... In short, as the trial court said, the

work to be done on the vessel was equivalent to

'home port structural repairs.'
"

The Court then laid down this rule:

".
. . It would appear that the focus should be

upon the status of the ship, the pattern of the re-

pairs, and the extensive nature of the work con-

tracted to be done, rather than the specific type of

work that each of the numerous shore-based work-

men is doing on shipboard at the moment of in-

jury. . .
."

With this, the Court held that a mothball vessel, be-

ing reconditioned for sea duty, did not warrant its sea-

worthiness. This rationale was applied in Nasta v. Unit-

ed States (1959) (Dist. Ct. N.Y.) 181 F. Supp. 906,

affirmed Court of Appeals, 2d Circuit, 288 F.2d 186,

where a mothball vessel was undergoing repairs, but was
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intended to be returned to the mothball fleet, and in

Huber v. United States (1959) (Dist. Ct. Calif.) 177

F. Supp. 017.

The same rationale was applied in Berryhill v. Pacific

Far East Line (1956) (CCA. 9th Circ.) 238 F.2d 385,

where a ship was in drydock, and the Court held, at

page 387,

".
. . Not all repairs are 'ship's work', to be per-

formed, historically or currently, by the crew."

The Supreme Court qualified its position in the case

of Roper v. United States, 368 U.S. 20, 82 S. Ct. 5, 7 L.

Ed. 2d 1. In this case, the SS. HARRY LANE was a

liberty ship that had been mothballed in 1945, and in

1954 had been converted to a grain storage vessel, filled

with grain and returned to the dead fleet where it re-

mained for two years. In 1956, a sale of the grain was

made and unloading operations were commenced, and

the petitioner, the foreman of a longshoremen crew, was

injured in the process of this unloading. The Court held,

at page 22,

"The test for determining whether a vessel is in

navigation is the 'status of the ship,' West v. United

States. . . . This is a question of fact, Butler v.

Whiteman, 356 US 271, 2 L ed 2d 754, 78 S Ct 734

(1958), and consequently reversible only upon a

showing of clear error. (Emphasis added)

"In light of the above circumstances, we cannot

say as a matter of law that the S.S. Harry Lane

had been converted into a vessel in navigation, and
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that the findings of the trial court were clearly er-

roneous.

"Since we are unwilling to upset the trial court's

factual determination that the S.S. Harry Lane was
not a vessel in navigation, it follows that there was
no warranty of the ship's seaworthiness."

With this, the Supreme Court left the trial judge's

determination of the status of the vessel unchanged.

In Socony Vacuum Oil Co. v. Lawlor, 275 F.2d 599,

84 A.L.R.2d 613, the Court stated at page 602:

"Thus the critical question in this case is wheth-

er or not the fact that the Mobilfuel was moored in

navigable waters at the pier of the shipyard during

her annual overhaul gives her a status such that

there is no warranty of seaworthiness and no duty

to Lawlor to maintain tlie vessel and her equipment

in a seaworthy condition.

"... Moreover, we do not think resort to a mere

phrase such as 'out of navigation' gets us very far.

Surely a vessel that has hit one of the submerged

logs or other floating obstructions that plague our

large harbors and has damaged her propellers so

that she has to be towed to a shipyard for a day or

two for repairs before continuing her voyage can-

not fairly be said to have so changed her status as

to eliminate any duty to the officers and crew on

board to maintain the vessel and her equipment in

a seaworthy condition until the repairs have been

completed. Such a vessel is unable to move under

her own power, she is still in navigable waters, and

would seem to be no more 'out of navigation' at
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the pier of a shipyard than she would be if moored
to one of the municipal piers, awaiting tugs to move
her to a place where the repair to her propellers

could be promptly made. Thus, if being 'out of nav-

igation' is a material factor, everything depends

upon what we mean by 'out of navigation' in the

context of the doctrine of unseaworthiness. If we
were pressed to decide whether the Mobilfuel was

'out of navigation' in navigable waters moored at

the Bethlehem pier, we would say she was not 'out

of navigation'."

Judge Medina then commented, at page 604:

"We have concluded that the character of the

work to be done by the shipyard, the presence or

absence of a crew performing the customary work

of seamen on shipboard, and the consequent meas-

ure of control or lack of control by the shipyard

over the vessel as a whole, are the determining fac-

tors that rule the decision of this case. Doubtless

cases will arise in which the question of fact rela-

tive to the degree of control exercised respectively

by the shipowner and the shipyard may be diffi-

cult of resolution. But here we have no conversion

of a prisoner of war transport into a passenger car-

rier for the families of overseas service men (Lyon

V. United States, 2 Cir, 1959, 265 F2d 219), nor

extensive repairs amounting virtually to the recon-

struction and rebuilding of the vessel (Berge, su-

pra), nor a wholly deactivated vessel from the

"moth ball fleet" (West, supra), nothing in the

category of major repairs or structural and exten-

sive changes in the vessel, but only a large number

of relatively small miscellaneous items such as are

generally included in an annual overhaul."
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In Pollock V. Standard Oil Company of California,

State of California, District Court of Appeal, First Dis-

trict, Division 2, 42 Cal. R. 128, 1965 A.M.C. 255, the

fact situations were similar to those set forth in the

Lawlor case and in the present case. The Court stated

in 1965 A.M.C. at page 258:

"We shall analogize the factual situation in Law-
lor with that in the instant action. Our inquiry, of

course, is whether the evidence in the instant case

is sufficient to require the submission to the jury

of the factual question as to whether the barge was

'out of navigation' and thus not subject to the

doctrine of unseaworthiness.

"Character of work done by shipyard. It is sub-

stantially the same in Lawlor and respondent Stand-

ard Oil makes no contention that it was not. Be-

sides, West vs. United States, supra, holds that the

focus should be placed on the status of the ship,

rather than the specific type of work which an in-

jured shore-based workman was doing on the ship

at the moment of injury. Moreover, it appears that

the patching job being done by plaintiff is one

which is customarily done by seamen.

"General control of the vessel. Lawlor places

significance upon the presence or absence of the

crew. The subject barge carried a crew of two men,

consisting of a tankerman and a bargeman. When

the barge was actually in service, their duties were

to handle the hoses and valves during the operation

of filling the oil tanks on the barge and to work

the pumps in the deckhouse during unloading op-

eration. They were also responsible for general

maintenance."
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"In LawloT, as in the instant case, the vessel

'was in dry dock for a few days' for, as stated there-

in, 'the customary repairs to and painting of the

bottom, propellers and so on.' (1960 A.M.C. at 718,

275 F. (2d) at p. 601). Certainly, the regular crew
could not have done this type of work but that did

not prevent the court in Lawlor from applying the

doctrine of unseaworthiness."

In Hilton v. Aegean Steamship Co., 239 F. Supp. 268

(Dist. Court of Oregon, 1965), the vessel SS DEMOS-
THENES was in the repair yard for 12 days and was in

drydock for two days. The cost of repairs was $65,000,

and the full crew of the vessel remained aboard. The

Court held, at page 269:

"The principal question is whether the SS DE-
MOSTHENES was a vessel in navigation for the

purpose of warranting her seaworthiness. The fac-

tors to be considered are 'the character of the work
to be done by the shipyard, the presence or absence

of a crew performing the customary work of sea-

men on shipboard, and the consequent measure of

control or lack of control.' Lawlor v. Socony-Vac-

uum Oil Co., 2 Cir. 1960, 275 F.2d 599, 604, 84

A.L.R.2d 613, cert, denied, 363 U.S. 844, 80 S. Ct.

1614, 4 L. Ed. 2d 1728 (1960). The SS DEMOS-
THENES was not undergoing a complete overhaul

or repairs so extensive in character as to place the

vessel out of maritime service; in fact, on the basis

of the cost of repairs and the time required to com-

plete them, the repairs were minor. Cf. West v.

United States, 361 U.S. 118, 80 S. Ct. 189, 4 L. Ed.

2d 161 (1959); McDonald v. United States, 3 Cir.

1963, 321 F.2d 437, cert, denied, 375 U.S. 969, 84
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S. Ct. 487, 11 L. Ed. 2d 417 (1964). In addition, the

crew was aboard and in control of the vessel during

all such time.

"I therefore find that in the time of the accident

the SS DEMOSTHENES was a vessel in naviga-

tion for the purpose of warranting her seaworthi-

ness."

On the other end of the spectrum from West (supra)

is Lusich V. Bloomiield Steamship Co., 355 F.2d 770

(1966) (U.S.C.A., 5th Cir.) wherein the repairs cost S

only $311.72, and the Fifth Circuit held that the vessel

was not a dead ship.

Based upon the testimony of the appellant's em-

ployees and of the appellee and the decisions cited above,

it is obvious that the Court's finding that as a matter of

fact the Tug BANNOCK was a vessel in navigation and

warranted her seaworthiness should not be disturbed.

Appellee was engagged in activities historically

performed by a seaman.

When a shore-based worker is engaged in work tra-

ditionally performed by a seaman while on a vessel, he

is entitled to a seaman's warranty of seaworthiness.

Seas Shipping Co. v. Sieracki, 328 U.S. 85, Pope &> Tal-

bot v. Hawn, 346 U.S. 406.

The appellee had sailed as a second electrician for

a year to a year and a half and as a chief electrician after

that, during the years of 1949 to 1961 (Tr. 6). He had

worked as a maintenance and construction electrician for

the appellant from October, 1962, until the date of the
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accident (Tr. 8). His first connection with the BAN-

NOCK was arranging for shore power for the ship, with

auxiliary generators, and then going aboard to ascer-

tain what material was needed for the installation of

the amber whistle light He had gone below and contact-

ed the captain, who went with him to the whistle light

and approved where he was to put the whistle light on

top of the wheelhouse. The accident occurred after he

was leaving the wheelhouse with the captain, after com-

pleting his discussion with him about the installation of

the amber whistle light (Tr. 13, 111 and 112). The am-

ber whistle light is a light that remains on while the

whistle of the ship is being sounded and aids other ves-

sels to locate the ship blowing the whistle (Tr. 13). He

was leaving the wheelhouse to go ashore to make further

arrangements about shore power (Tr. 89). An electrician

aboard ship usually installs lights if they are needed, and

the welding and burning in connection therewith is us-

ually done by the engineering department of the ship

when they are at sea (Tr. 99). Electricians aboard ship

have the duty to see that all electrical circuits, light

circuits and power circuits are in working order and have

the duty to repair any deficiency in the light circuit or

in the lights themselves, and in case one has to be in-

stalled or moved, the electrical work is done by the

I electricians aboard ship (Tr. 125, 126).

It is undisputed that the ambler whistle light being

installed by the appellee just prior to his injury was

used as a navigational aid by the ship when sounding
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her whistle as a signal to other vessels. It is further un-

disputed that the captain was in the wheelhouse with

the appellee for the purpose of approving the location

at which the whistle light was to be installed. In other

words, his efforts to that time had been directed toward

the installation of navigation aiding equipment—a duty

historically performed by electricians at sea. Appellant

would have the Court disregard this and rely solely

upon the fact that he was leaving the vessel to do some-

thing about the shore power.

The cases of Seas Shipping Co. v. Sieracki, 328 U.S.

85, 66 S. Ct. 872, 90 L. ed. 1099, 1946 A.M.C. 698, and

Pope &= Talbot, Inc., v. Hawn, 346 U.S. 406, 74 S. Ct.

202, 98 L. ed. 143, made it clear that the ship owner

could not escape liability for unseaworthiness by dele-

gating to others the work traditionally done by members

of the crew, whether their calling be labeled "stevedore"

of the crew, whether their calling be labeled "stevedore,"

"carpenter" or something else. All those who did the

type of work traditionally done by seamen and were

thus related to the ship in the same way as seamen "who

had been or who were about to go on a voyage" were

entitled to a seaworthy vessel. See 346 U.S. at 413.

Of like effect are Feinman v. A. H. Bull Steamship

Co. (supra) 107 F. Supp. 153 (D.C. Pa. 1952) (an elec-

trician) ; Bow v. Pilato, 82 F. Supp. 399 (1949, U.S.D.C,

So. Dist. California) (an engineer), and Imperial Oil,

Ltd. v. Drilik, 234 F.2d 4 (6th Cir. 1956) (a line handler).

In Pope &> Talbot, Inc. v. Cordray, 258 F.2d 214
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(CCA. 9th Cir.), libelant was aboard the vessel at the

time of his injury for the purpose of coordinating cargo

handling work of the dock longshoremen with that of

the longshoremen working on the vessel, although most

of this time had been spent upon shore. The Court held

at page 217:

"In the instant case the appellee, although per-

forming most of his work on the dock in the moving
of the ship's cargo from ship's tackle to its first

place of rest (which was part of the ship's obliga-

tion), was on board the ship when the accident

happened. Under the testimony, he was coordinat-

ing the unloading of the cargo from the ship's hold

to its place of rest on the dock. We hold that the

duty of providing a seaworthy ship and gear at the

time of this accident extended to the appellee,

whether or not appellee was on board the ship or

on the dock. The test is, what was the nature of

his work? He was performing a service for the ship

in the discharge of its cargo. His employer was un-

der contract with the shipowner to take the cargo

from the shipside and to put it in a place of stor-

age, and appellee was engaged in the performance

of this work. The appellee's work was the work of

a longshoreman and he was entitled to seaworthy

gear while he was performing his services."

The decision of Roper v. United States (supra), 368

U.S. 20, 82 S. Ct. 5, 7 L. Ed. 2d 1, seems to be the ul-

timate answer, wherein it is held that whether or not

the vessel was in navigation was a matter of fact to be

determined by the trial court.

Appellee submits that appellee was engaged in activ-

ities traditionally performed by seamen, and that tlie
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decision of the trial court on the issue of fact is based

upon the substantial evidence offered by both the ap-

pellee and the appellant.

CROSS APPEAL

The District Court erred in dismissing the Appellee's negli-

gence action against the Appellant because Appellee,

as a workman aboard a vessel, is owed the duty of

reasonable care by the vessel's owner.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

1. Persons working on a vessel or transacting busi-

ness thereon may recover for damages caused them as

a result of a ship owner's negligence.

2. Since appellee's employer was both the ship own-

er-operator and the harbor worker employer, appellee

may recover against him in his ship owner-operator

capacity in negligence.

ARGUMENT

A harbor worker may proceed against the owner of a

vessel for damages arising out of tort, whether

or not the vessel owner is his employer.

The Steamer MAX MORRIS v. Patrick Curry,

et al, 137 U.S. 1, 11 S. Ct. 29, 34 L. ed. 586 (1890)

was the original case that set the premise cited above.

In that case, a longshoreman, employed to load coal

aboard a steamship and injured in a fall from the

steamer's bridge to her deck, was held to have an action

for negligence in admiralty against the vessel.
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As recently as Pope &= Talbot v. Hawn (supra), 346

U.S. 406, 74 S. Ct. 202, 98 L. ed. 143 (1953), the Su-

preme Court affirmed the rule that workers, such as

the appellee herein, may recover for negligence in ad-

miralty, stating at page 413:

"A concurring opinion here raises a question

concerning the right of Hawn to recover for negli-

gence—a question neither presented nor urged by
Pope & Talbot. It argues that the Sieracki Case,

by sustaining the right of persons like Hawn to sue

for unseaworthiness, placed them in the category

of 'seamen' who cannot, under The Osceola, 189 US
158, 47 L ed 760, 23 S Ct 483, maintain a negli-

gence action against the shipowner. The Osceola

held that a crew member employed by the ship

could not recover from his employer for negligence

of the master or the crew member's 'fellow ser-

vants.' Recoveries of crew members were limited

to actions for unseaworthiness and maintenance and

cure. But Hawn was not a crew member. He was

not employed by the ship. The ship's crew were not

his fellov.^ servants. Having no contract of employ-

ment with the shipowner, he was not entitled to

maintenance and cure. The fact that Sieracki up-

held the right of workers like Hawn to recover for

unseaworthiness does not justify an argument that

the Court thereby blotted out their long-recognized

right to recover in admiralty for negligence." (Em-

phasis added)

"Illustrative of the unbroken line of federal

cases holding that persons working on ships for in-

dependent contractors or persons rightfully trans-
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acting business on ships can recover for damages
due to shipowners' negligence are: Leathers v.

Blessing, 105 US 626, 26 L ed 1192 (1882); The
Max Morris, 137 US 1, 34 L ed 586 11 S Ct, 29

(1890); Gerrity v. The Kate Cann, 2 F 241 (1880,

DC NY); The Helios, 12 F 732 (1882, DC NY),
decision by Judge Addison Brown; Grays Harbor

Stevedore Co. v. Fountain, 5 F2d 385 (1925, CA
9th Cal); Brady v. Roosevelt S S Co., 317 US 575,

577, 87 L ed 471, 474, 63 S Ct 425 (1943). See also

cases collected in 44 ALR 1025-1034."

The position held by this appellee was commented

on by Justice Frankfurter in his concurring opinion at

page 417.

"On the one hand, it may be urged that Sier-

acki broadened the rights of shore workers; it gave

them a seaman's status without depriving them of

the right of action they had before they attained

that status. . .
."

Although a great deal of the argument before the

District Court on the issue of negligence was directed

toward the application of the Jones Act, for the pur-

poses of this appeal, the appellee is arguing only that

part of the negligence action based upon the cause of

action historically reserved for persons working aboard

vessels. The Max Morris (supra); Pope &> Talbot, Inc.

V. Hawn (supra).

As recently as The Kermarec v. Transatlantique, 358

U.S. 625, 79 S. Ct. 406, 3 L. ed. 2d 550 (1958), the Su-

preme Court reiterated its position on this point and

held, at page 632 :

'
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"... We hold that the owner of a ship in nav-

igable waters owes to all who are on board for

I purposes not inimical to his legitimate interests the
' duty of exercising reasonable care under the cir-

j

cumstances of each case."

[
The appellee, if injured aboard a vessel owned by a

i third party, would have an action against such a third

i

party owner based upon negligence and the failure to

I

exercise due care. This is one of his traditional remedies

of the sea.

i

In Reed v. S. S. Yaka (supra), 373 U.S. 410, 83 S.

|Ct. 1349, 10 L. ed. 2d 448, the Court stated the proposi-

tion, at page 413:

".
. . We further held that the Longshoremen's

and Harbor Workers' Act was not intended to

take away from longshoremen the traditional rem-

edies of the sea, so that recovery for unseaworthi-

ness could be had notwithstanding the availability

of compensation."

The Court further stated, at page 414:

".
. . In making this argument. Pan-Atlantic has

not pointed and could not point to any economic

difference between giving relief in this case, where

the owner acted as his own stevedore, and in one

in which the owner hires an independent company."

j
As pointed out above, if the appellant had hired an

[independent company for its stevedoring, the appellee

[would be entitled to bring an action for negligence.

jWhat is the economic difference between giving relief

I
in this case where the owner acted as his own harbor

! worker-employer?
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Appellee submits that he is entitled to bring this

action based upon negligence, which is one of the tra-

ditional remedies of the sea where a person is acting

as a worker on a vessel.

CONCLUSION

In a review of the Reed v. The Yaka decision (su-

pra), the January, 1964, Insurance Counsel Journal, 90,

at page 95, states:

"Longshoremen now have available as remedies

direct action for damages against their employers

for unseaworthiness or negligence where the em-

ployer operates the vessel on which the injury oc-

curs. Logically, the same result should apply in

cases of other shoreside personnel who sustain in-

jury in the performance of their work traditionally

done by seamen, on board a ship operated by their

employer."

It is submitted that this summary is a correct state-

ment of the law.

The attempt of the appellant to explain away the

Reed v. The Yaka decision (supra) as a third party

action completely overlooks the humanitarian principle

set down by the Court, as page 415, that the

"... need for protection from unseaworthiness was

neither more nor less than that of a longshoreman

working for the stevedoring company. . . . 'All

were subjected to the same danger. All were en-

titled to like treatment under the law.'
"

The District Court found that the vessel was in nav-
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igation and did warrant its seaworthiness, and that the

appellee was engaged in activity traditionally per-

formed by seamen. This decision of fact has ample evi-

dence to sustain it and should not be disturbed by this

Court.

Respectfully submitted,

Green, Richardson, Griswold
& Murphy
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Appellant reaffirms its position that the Longshore-

men's and Harbor Workers' Compensation Act, 33

U.S.C. 901 et seq, is the exclusive remedy of a shorebased

employee against his employer-shipowner for injuries

sustained upon his employer's vessel.



EXCLUSIVE LIABILITY PROVISION OF THE ACT
HAS NOT BEEN ABROGATED

In order to maintain his position in the case at bar,

appellee is forced to the argument that Reed v. SS

YAKA, 373 U.S. 410 (1963) abrogated the exclusiveness

of liability of the Longshoremen's Act and the appellee's

remedies against his employer are no longer limited by

the plain language of the statute. It becomes immedi-

ately patent that appellee's position is untenable when

the decision in Reed v. SS YAKA is properly analyzed.

For its decision in Reed v. SS YAKA, the majority

of the Court relied upon its prior holdings in Seas

Shipping Co. V. Sieracki, 328 U.S. 85 (1946), and Ryan

Stevedoring Co. v. Pan-Atlantic SS Corp., 350 U.S. 124

(1956). In Sieracki, supra, the Court held that the war-

ranty of seaworthiness ov/ed by a vesselowner to a sea-

man extended to a longshoreman in the face of the ar-

gument that section 905 of the Act limited the long-

shoremen to compensation. The Court said, at page 101:

".
. . In other words, it is claimed that the reme-

dies afforded by the longshoremen's legislation are

exclusive of all other remedies for injuries incurred

aboard ship, whether against the employer or oth-

ers . .
."

The Court concluded that such a contention had no

merit. It reasoned that Congress did not purport to limit

the longshoremen's remedies against others who were

not his employer. The Court continued, at page 102:

"We may take it therefore that Congress intend-

J



ed the remedy of compensation to be exclusive

against the employer. See Swanson vs. Marra Bros.,

Inc., . . . decided this day, 328 U.S. 1. But we can-

not assume, in face of the Act's explicit provisions,

that it intended this remedy to nullify or affect

others against third persons. Exactly the opposite

is true. The legislation therefore did not nullify any
right of the longshoreman against the owner of the

ship, except in the instance, presumably rare, where

he may be hired by the owner."

Language of like effect is found in Ryan Stevedoring

Co. v. Pan-Atlantic SS Corp., supra, at page 131:

"The shipowner's action here is not founded upon
a tort or upon any duty which the stevedoring con-

tractor owes to its employee. A third party com-
plaint is grounded upon the contractor's breach of

its purely consensual obligation owing to a shipown-

er to stow the cargo in a reasonably safe manner.

Accordingly, the shipowner's action for indemnity

on that basis is not barred by the Compensation

Act."

In light of the fact that the Court drew upon the

teachings and limitations expressed in Sieracki and

Ryan, it would seem strange indeed to conclude that

the holding is inconsistent with the concept of exclu-

siveness oi liability which was reaffirmed in those two

cases, or that either of the three cases expresses a point

of view foreign to the language of the statute.

In Italia Societa Per Azioni di Navigazione v. Oregon

Stevedoring Company, Inc., 376 U.S. 315 (1963), the

Supreme Court made clear that its decision in Reed v.



SS YAKA, supra, did not change the rule that the

Longshoremen's Act imposes exclusive liability on the

shipowner-employer to its employee as distinguished

from the contractual undertaking in Ryan Stevedoring

Co. V. Pan-Atlantic SS Corp., supra, to the ship owner.

At page 320, footnote 6, it is said:

"If the stevedore is liable in warranty for sup-

plying defective, injury producing equipment, of

course, the provisions of the Longshoremen's and

Harbor Workers' Compensation Act, . . . , are no

bar to recovery. This question was fully resolved in

Ryan vs. Pan-Atlantic Corp., . . . 'The Act no-

where expressly excludes or limits a shipowner's

right, as a third person, to insure itself against such

a liability either by bond of indemnity, or the con-

tractor's own agreement to save the shipowner

harmless.' See also Reed vs. Yaka, 373 U.S. 410 . .
."

Mr. Justice Black (who authored the majority

opinion in Reed v. S.S. YAKA, supra) in his dissenting

opinion in ITALIA, supra, reaffirmed the exclusiveness

of liability provision, saying at page 325:

".
. . In Halcyon Lines v. Haenn Ship Ceiling S"

Refitting Corp., 342 U.S. 282 .. . and Pope §» Tal-

bot, Inc. v. Hawn, 346 U.S. 406 . . ., we held that

the system of compensation which Congress es-

tablished in the Longshoremen's and Harbor Work-

ers' Compensation Act as the sole liability of a

stevedoring company to its employees prevented a

shipowner from shifting all or a part of his liability

to the injured longshoreman onto the stevedoring

company, the longshoreman's employer."

Mr. Justice Black then explained the exception to

this rule under the Ryan doctrine where there is a third



person involved and the employer by contract assumes

a greater burden to that third person. Referring to Reed

V. YAKA, Supra, (at page 325, footnote 2) he said:

"Reed v. YAKA, 373 U.S. 410 . . ., held only that

a longshoreman could bring a suit for unseaworthi-

ness against a stevedoring company which chartered

a ship and was the longshoremen's employer. In

that case no issue as to an implied warranty of

workmanlike service arose because the stevedoring

company had agreed in any case to hold the ship-

owner harmless without regard to negligence . . .
."

Reed v. SS YAKA, supra, has left intact the employ-

er's immunity from suit by his employees. The liability

imposed upon the employer (Pan-Atlantic) was imposed

on the same principle as the liability imposed on the em-

ployer in Ryan, supra. The employer, by the terms of

the hold harmless agreement contained in the charter

party, agreed to accept the responsibilities of a third

party shipowner and for that reason alone was held li-

able.

GENERAL EXPRESSIONS OF HUMANITARIAN POLICY

DO NOT SUPPORT THE CASE AT BAR

In support of his position appellee has extracted cer-

tain phrases from their context in Reed v. SS YAKA,

supra, which cannot meet the facts of his case. He cites

only the broad general language of the court's opinion

without proper regard for the context in which the lan-

guage appeared, without regard for the relationship of

the parties involved or the issue before the court for

decision.

The Supreme Court in Osaka Shosen Line v. United



states, 300 U.S. 98, cautioned against such practice in

the following language, at page 103:

"It is a maxim, not to be disregarded, that gen-

eral expressions, in every opinion, are to be taken

in connection with the case in which those expres-

sions are used. If they go beyond the case, they

may be respected, but ought not control the judg-

ment in a subsequent suit, when the very point is

presented for decision. Cohens v. Virginia, 6 Wheat

264, 399; Humphreys Executor v. United States, 295

U.S. 602, 626-627". (Emphasis supplied)

At first blush, it appears that some phrases used by

the majority of the court do support appellee's claim

against his employer, but the language fails him when

it is viewed in its context.

Mr. Justice Black, for the purpose of establishing the

reason for the decision, in broad general terms cited

humanitarian principles as the basis for the warranty of

seaworthiness found in Sieracki, supra, and then for the

purpose of demonstrating the parallel of the employers

in Ryan, supra, and in SS Yaka, supra, stated at page

414:

"In making this argument, Pan-Atlantic has not

pointed and could not point to any economic dif-

ference between giving relief in this case, where

the owner acted as his own stevedore, and in the

one in which the owner hires an independent com-

pany. In either case, under Ryan, the burden ul-

timately falls on the company whose default caused

the injury."

The case holds only that a longshoreman may assert

a cause of action against his stevedore employer which



was also the charterer of the vessel. The liability imposed

upon the employer (Pan-Atlantic) was not imposed as

a result of any obligation it owed to Reed as an em-

ployer, but was imposed upon Pan-Atlantic as a result

of its assuming the shipowners' responsibilities by the

terms of the hold harmless agreement.

The Court viewed the charter party arrangement as

an attempt to insulate the shipowner from liabilities it

would have had sans the contractual arrangement. But,

by the very terms of the charter party, the stevedore em-

ployer assumed the shipowner's liabilities and was there-

fore, held liable.

There is no evidence that appellant has done any-

thing other than repair its own tugboat, accepting the

responsibilities that flowed upon it as a single entity. Ap-

pellant has not attempted to enter into any contractual

arrangements with third parties to change its liabilities.

Appellant here is not contesting an action asserted

against it by virtue of its having voluntarily assumed

the responsibilities of a third party. The appellant here

is contesting a claim being made directly by an em-

ployee and therefore seeks the protection of the exclu-

sive liability provisions of the Longshoremen's and Har-

bor Workers' Compensation Act to which it is entitled.

FACTS PRESENTED IN CASE AT BAR WERE DECIDED

AGAINST APPELLEE'S POSITION

The question for decision in the case at bar was

before the Supreme Court in the case of Pennsylvania

Railroad Co. v. O'Rourke, 344 U.S. 334 (1953).
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O'Rourke was a railroad brakeman who brought an

action under the Federal Employer's Liability Act, 45

U.S.C. Sec. 51, and Saiety Appliance Acts, 45 U.S.C. Sec.

1, for injuries sustained when he released a defective

handbrake on a freight car which was aboard a car

float on navigable waters. A summary judgment was

granted, dismissing the complaint. The Second Circuit

reversed the judgment. The Supreme Court reversed

the Second Circuit and held that the Longshoremen's

and Harbor Workers' Compensation Act applied to the

exclusion of the Federal Employer's Liability Act, say-

ing at page 338

:

"We need not, however, in this case, determine

whether the car float is a 'boat' that should be re-

garded as in substance a part of the railroad ex-

tension. ... It is clear that whether or not the boat

is an extension of the railroad under the Liability

Act is immaterial. The later Harbor Workers' Act

by sections 903 (a) and 905 covered such injuries

on navigable waters and made its coverage exclu-

sive. Nogueira v. N.Y.N.H. and H.R. Co., supra,

at page 130-131
"

The holding of O'Rourke has been followed in the fol-

lowing cases: Mach v. Pennsylvania Railroad Company,

198 F. Supp. 469 (W.D. Pa. 1958); Caldaro v. Balti-

more and Ohio Railroad Company, 166 F. Supp. 833

(E.D. N.Y. 1956) ; West v. Erie Railroad Company, 163

F. Supp. 879 (S.D. N.Y. 1958) ; Scrinko v. Reading Co.,

117 F. Supp. 603 (D. N.J. 1954). In each of these de-

cisions the plaintiff was a railroad employee seeking

a recovery under F.E.L.A. for injuries received in a mar-

itime employment. In each case the plaintiff was en-



gaged in a task which was at these times considered to be

"traditional seaman's work." In each case the Courts

held that the plaintiff's exclusive remedy was pursuant

to the Longshoreman's and Harbor Workers' Compensa-

tion Act.

If the Longshoremen's and Harbor Workers' Com-

pensation Act will immunize a railroad owner from a

cause of action granted to its employees by an Act of

Congress, then certainly the same Act should insulate

a shipowner-employer whose liability to its employees

arises not through an Act of Congress but through the

admiralty "common law."

Rationale of Reed v. S. S. Yaka Is Inapposite

to a Ship Repairman

Assuming arguendo, that Reed v. S. S. Yaka, supra,

is authority to permit a suit by a longshoreman against

his employer-shipowner, appellant argued in a pretrial

motion (Appendix, pp. 2 -2c) and in its opening brief

that the privilege would not extend to a ship repairman.

! It was there noted that the rationale of the decision in

! Reed V. S. S. Yaka, supra, was to give a longshoreman

equal remedies whether he is employed by an inde-

I
pendent contractor or the shipowner. It was there

I pointed up that the risks which befall the longshoremen

attendant upon the transient nature of their employment

were not shared by ship repairmen.

It was also pointed up that the stevedoring business

is not a business that requires a great deal of material,

equipment or facilities; that a stevedore was primarily
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a labor contractor obtaining its employees from a cen-

tral hiring hall only as it needs them. In contrast, a ship

repairer is required to have a substantial investment in

property, with yard facilities, up-to-date special machin-

ery and equipment and usually a drydock.

There is not, therefore, the incentive to go into the

ship repair business simply to escape third party recov-

eries by employees, as there might be for a ship owner

to go into the stevedore business (Appendix, pp. 2b, 2c).

Vessel Not in Maritime Service

West v. United States, 361 U.S. 118 (1959) is not

authority for the proposition that a vessel must be in

the mothball fleet undergoing repairs in order not to

warrant her seaworthiness, an appellee suggests. The

case stands for the proposition that any vessel which is

not in maritime service, for whatever reason, does not

warrant her seaworthiness. In holding that the MARY
AUSTIN undergoing general repairs did not warrant her

seaworthiness the Court stated at page 121:

"... On the other hand, the vessels involved in

the cases depended upon by petitioners were, at the

time of injury, . . . instead of undergoing general

repairs, were in active maritime service. . .
."

The Court in West, supra, laid down three tests for

determining whether or not a vessel is in maritime serv-

ice, saying that the emphasis should be upon the vessel's

status, the extensive nature of the work to be performed,

and on the pattern of repairs. By the "status of the ves-

I
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sel," the Court refers to the situation where the vessel

has been formally retired from navigation as in Roper v.

United States, 368 U.S. 20 (1961), and also where the

vessel is physically unable to participate in maritime

commerce as in N.Y. & N.J. Pilots v. Halecki, Admx.,

358 U.S. 613 (1959) and in Gill v. Tancred (D.C. N.D.

Cal., 1957), 1958 A.M.C. 670. The "extensive nature of

the work to be performed" has reference to the situa-

tion where the repairs require the services of a specially

equipped repair yard as in West itself, and in Union Car-

bide Corp. v. Goett, Admx. (4 Cir. 1959), 278 F.2d 319.

The phrase "pattern of repairs" is addressed to the ques-

tion of whether or not the work being performed upon

the vessel was customarily done by the ship's crew, as in

Berryhill v. Paciiic Far East Line (9 Cir. 1956), 238

F.2d 385 and Halecki, Admx., supra.

In the instant case the tug BANNOCK was docked

at appellant's repair yard (Tr. 130). Her motive power

was inoperative and she drew her electrical power from

shore-side facilities (Tr. 13, 89, 124). In short, she was

not a vessel capable of engaging in maritime service.

The repairs required the use of specialized equipment

which was not carried aboard the vessel (Tr. 131, 132).

Besides, having both main engines dismantled, her

rudders, drive shafts, and propellors were to be removed

and replaced (Tr. 132, 133, 134) which appellee admitted

was not work traditionally performed by the crew (Tr.

126).

The cases cited by appellee add nothing to his con-
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tentions. It goes without saying that a vessel formally

,

withdrawn from navigation is not in maritime service asi

was the SS HARRY LANE in Roper v. United States,
|

supra.

In Lawlor v. Socony-Vacuum Oil Co. (2 Cir. 1961),

275 F.2d 599, the Court found that the work being per-

formed was performed customarily by the crew and too,.
i

the repairs were minor as said by the Court at page 561:

"... The work called for by the contract . . .

was the usual large number of miscellaneous items

including the finding of cracks and leaks in the

tanks and repairing them. ..."

The repairs in Pollock v. Standard Oil Company oil

California, (Cal. D.C. of App. 1st D., 2nd Div. 1965)

42 Cal. R. 128 were said by the Court to be the same

as in Lawlor v. Socony Vacuum, supra.

The tug BANNOCK meets all three tests enunciated

in West v. United States, supra, and should not be held

to warrant her seaworthiness.

Negligence Count Properly Stricken

On a pretrial motion to dismiss the libel or in the

alternative to dismiss the negligence count, the whole of

appellee's argument was directed to a cause of action

under The Jones Act, 46 U.S.C. 688. Not once did he

intimate that he was asserting a claim under the general

maritime law. Judge East properly dismissed the count

imder the authority of Swanson v. Marra Bros., Inc., 328

U.S. 1 (1946). During the course of his opinion, Judge

East told appellee how to affect such a claim, but appel-
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lee obviously preferred not to do so. Appellee did not as-

sert such a claim and ought not now to be heard to say

that he did.

Be that as it may, appellee does not have a tort

claim under the general maritime law. At common law

"fellow servant negligence" was a defense and until the

Jones Act, supra, did away with the defense as to mem-

bers of the crew, negligence of a fellow employee was a

defense as to all employees including crew members

under the general maritime law. The Osceola, 189 U.S.

158 (1903); The West Kader (9th Cir. 1923), 1923

A.M.C. 655. The Jones Act, supra, does not apply to

ship repairmen. Swanson v. Marra Bros., Inc., supra.

All hands aboard the tug BANNOCK were appellee's

fellow servants. To grant to appellee a cause of action

on a tort theory would be to grant him a remedy against

a shipowner not enjoyed by an employee working for

an independent contractor.

One in the employ of an independent contractor

whose injury was caused by the negligence of a "fellow

servant" cannot maintain an action against the ship-

owner unless the negligence of the "fellow servant" rend-

ers the vessel unseaworthy. And even in that case, the

cause of suit must be predicated upon the unseaworthi-

ness of the vessel and not upon a negligence theory.

Appellee's contention serves to further point up the

absurd results which would follow if he is allowed to

prevail upon this appeal. To attempt to apply the ra-

tionale of Reed v. SS YAKA, supra, in the unique fac-
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tual situation of that case to the case at bar would plainly
i

distort the congressional intent of equality of treatment

for all employees under the Longshoremen's and Harbor

Worker's Compensation Act.

CONCLUSION

Appellant has no liability to appellee because the

courts are not free to rewrite the provisions of the Long-

shoremen's and Harbor Workers' Compensation Act and

make what was intended as an immunity from suits and

damages no immunity at all.

The fact is that Reed v. SS Yaka, supra, involved a

vessel operated by the employer but owned by a third

person. It was on these facts, in accord with the Ryan

doctrine, that the Supreme Court held the employer

liable because the employer had voluntarily agreed to

assume the obligations of the shipowner, the third party.

The reason for the holding in Reed v. SS Yaka, supra,

was to foreclose the stevedoring employers from entering

into contractual arrangements for the sole purpose ofi

destroying the longshoremen's rights against the ship-

owner. Certainly it was not intended to impose liabilitj

contrary to the provisions of the Longshoremen's and^

Harbor Workers' Compensation Act upon a tugboat

owner which has traditionally repaired its own vessels.

The facts of this case are not novel. They were be-

fore the Supreme Court in Pennsylvania Railroad Co.

<
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V. O'Rourke, supra, and the issue was decided against

appellee's contentions.

Respectfully submitted,

Gray, Fredrickson 85 Heath
Floyd A. Fredrickson

Eugene D. Cox
Of Proctors for Appellant
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APPENDIX

Summary of Argument on Motion for Summary Judgment

MR. FREDRICKSON: If the Court please, on

behalf of Respondent Pacific Inland Navigation

Company we would move at this time for a sum-

mary judgment in favor of Pacific Inland Naviga-

tion Company against Mr. Delbert Course.

We rely, your Honor, on the Biggs case, decided

by Judge Hoffman in the Eastern District of Vir-

ginia, which is set forth in the memorandum which

we have previously filed with the Court.

It is simply a question, your Honor, whether or

not this man has his compensation benefits under the

Longshoremen and Harbor Workers' Act or is en-

titled to recover in this court. All of the evidence

relied upon in the Biggs case is before your Honor,

and we have marked as an exhibit a certificate of in-

surance which shows that he had coverage under the

Longshoremen and Harbor Workers' Act. I am sure

there will be no dispute. Mr. Course has received

compensation under the Longshoremen and Harbor

Workers' Act.

Further in the pretrial order it sets out that Mr.

Course is a marine electrician, not a longshoreman,

a shoreside marine electrician, so that all of the per-

tinent and authoritative facts are before your Honor

at this time so far as ruling on the motion for sum-

mary judgment is concerned.

If I might, I would like to mention to your

Honor why I think the Biggs case is correct. As your

Honor knows, a longshoreman, a regular longshore-
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man, works daily for different employers. They are

hired out of a central hiring hall. I am sure your

Honor knows this from the many cases that you
have tried. They work one day for Brady Hamilton,

and the next day for American Mail Line and a

third day for Portland Stevedore Company. Many
times, as your Honor knows, the man doesn't even

know who employs him, and quite properly so, be-

cause his employment is through this central hiring

hall. He works one day for one employer and one

day for another.

Now, in that connection, the information put

out in this very beautiful booklet, "Men and Ma-
chines," by the P.M.A. and I.L.W.U. states that

these men go out for different employers out of a

central hiring hall, so that they do have permanent

or semipermanent steady work. It is something that

has been of benefit, I take it, to the whole industry.

Now, this man who goes out daily and works

a different employer, says, "It is ridiculous if I work

for Portland Steve, and the next day I work for

American Mail Line, and it turns out that American

Mail Line are on some other benefits or I don't have

the same rights against American Mail Line that I

would have against Portland Stevedoring Company."

The authority of Reed v. YACA, in my opinion,

held that the warranty of seaworthiness would ex-

tend to a man who is working, in effect, for his

employer who also owns or bareboat charters the

vessel on which he is employed.

Now, contrasted with that situation is the em
ployment of Mr. Course. As his deposition will indi

cate, he worked for about a year and a half for Pa-

cific Inland Navigation Company. They maintained

e

1
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a permanent or semi-permanent shipyard staff at

their facilities. It is quite unlike the day-to-day

change of employer that you have with a longshore-

man. Mr. Course was, in effect, a regular employee

of his employer, which I think is the distinguishing

characteristic and explains the reasoning and basis

for the Biggs case. Furthermore, Reed v. YACA says

a shipowner should not be allowed to put up an

economic barrier by going into the stevedoring bus-

iness.

As your Honor knows, the stevedoring business

is not a business that requires a great deal of ma-
terial or equipment or facilities. In effect, a steve-

dore is simply a labor agent. He gets his employees

out of a central hiring hall, brings them down to the

ship, and he sells services primarily. I think you can

distinguish that from the repair yard facility, where

you are required to have a substantial investment

in property, with yard facilities and equipment re-

quired to repair vessels.

The point I would like to make is that there

is not the incentive to go into the shipyard business

simply to escape third party recoveries by your em-
ployees, as there very well might be with the long-

shore situation, when you really only need an office

or two, and you get some walking boss again out of

the central hiring hall.

I think that these are the pertinent facts which

explain the Biggs case, and which distinguish a

longshoreman from a man, a marine electrician, who
is employed by a ship repair yard, as Mr. Course

was.

THE COURT: Thank you.
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MR. GREEN: If the Court please, I am not

sure how much of the historical background I should

give to the Court. I am sure the Court is aware —
THE COURT: I think I am familiar with that.

MR. GREEN: All right. I would like to state

to the Court the fact that we do not have to guess

whether or not other courts have included repair-

men, electricians or painters. In a case cited in the

memorandum from the Fourth Circuit Court, So-

cony-Vacuum Oil against Lawlor, 275 Fed. (2d)

599, that is a case where the ship was in for an an-

nual overhaul and involved quite extensive sums of

money, your Honor, and the man injured was in no

way related to the stevedore. He was a man super-

vising other persons on the job doing the repairs.

And that court has held that, since this was not out

of navigation and simply to be considered a dead

ship, this man was protected by the same rules and

rights as to unseaworthiness of the vessel as would a

longshoreman.

The Supreme Court has held specifically a non-

longshoreman would have the protection of unsea-

worthiness in a case where the employers were sep-

arate. Then the only differentiation here is where

the employer of this man is the same person that„^

owns the ship. Hi
In Reed v. YACA (sic) it just says that makes

no difference in a longshore situation.

Admittedly, there has been no Supreme Court

decision that has said whether or not it would make

a difference, the fact that there was ownership of

the ship and ownership of either the stevedore com-

pany or repair yard, if it was a nonlongshoreman.

No Supreme Court decision has said that as yet.
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Just by logic, there has been no other distinction

made by the Court unless the ship is dead. That
seems to be the primary distinction.

I would like to point out to the Court—it is not

in the memorandum, but I will say on the record

as an officer of the Court that from a telephone call

this morning we found that the Biggs case is now
being argued as of today in the Court of Appeals,

and the lawyers there tell us that it roughly will be

three months before the Court of Appeals will de-

termine whether or not the District Court was cor-

rect.

I would like to point out one further thing in the

Biggs case, your Honor. If the Court has had an op-

portunity to read it, you will notice that the Court

was extremely unhappy, I think with the plaintiff's

attorney, because that attorney had processed his

claim through the Virginia compensation system,

not the Federal, where he had to swear on a number
of occasions under oath that he was not a seaman,

had none of those rights, and so forth, and then was

proceeding on this unseaworthiness doctrine.

That is not the case here. We have not sworn

we have done anything other than exactly what he

did. He was an electrician, and he was working on

board ship at this particular time. We believe he has

a right, just as a longshoreman, to obtain compen-

sation benefits under the Longshoremen and Harbor

Workers' Act, and if there is unseaworthiness of the

vessel he has either a right to libel the vessel in rem

and file an action or libel the vessel in personam —
THE COURT: The motion for summary judg-

ment is denied.
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With consent of the parties and pursuant to Rule

18(9) of this Court the Columbia River Towboat Asso-

ciation presents this brief as amicus curiae. It is directed

to the single question of whether or not Section 5 of the

Longshoremen's & Harbor Workers' Compensation Act,

C509, #5, 44 Stat. 1426, 33 U.S.C. #905, precludes



appellee, Delbert Course, a harbor worker, from main-

taining his libel in personam against his employer, the

appellant, Pacific Inland Navigation Co. for damages

arising from personal injuries which he sustained while

working aboard his employer's tug, BANNOCK. The

pertinent portion of Section 5 of the Act reads:

"The liability of an employer prescribed in Sec-

tion 904 of this title shall be exclusive and in place

of all other liability of such employer to the em-

ployee, . . . otherwise entitled to recover damages

from such employer at law or in admiralty on ac-

count of such injury or death ..."

While the above language in Section 5 of the Longshore-

men's Act clearly bars the in personam action of Delbert

Course against his employer the Supreme Court by broad

language rather than its holding in Reed v. Yaka (1963),

373 U.S. 410, so muddied the waters as to persuade the

district court below that it was required to ignore or con-

sider repealed the unequivocal language of Section 5. In

this case a pre-trial motion to dismiss was denied. Upon

trial, Delbert Course recovered judgment resulting in

appeal by his employer and our appearance as amicus

curiae.

Unless reversed the judgment of the District Court

will have a harsh and incongruous effect upon
the tug boat industry.

The Columbia River Towboat Association is com-

prised of fourteen tugboat operators, including Pacific

Inland Navigation Co., who have been for many years

engaged in towing and transporting cargoes on the Co-



lumbia and Willamette Rivers.' Each operator, whether

large or small, employ shop repairmen, welders, and

marine electricians precisely, as did Pacific Inland Navi-

gation Co. employ Delbert Course. These employees are

employed regularly on a year around basis. They work

primarily ashore but as occasion requires they board their

employer's vessels to repair, maintain or overhaul them.

None are members of a crew and none do longshoremen's

work or are employed through a hiring hall for specific

jobs as are longshoremen. These tugboat operators, as

employers, for years have carried insurance pursuant to

the Longshoremen's Act to cover these employees when

working spasmodically, at best, on navigable waters.

Before presenting our analysis of the Yaks case, we

believe the pointing out of the harsh and incongruous

results that will beset the tugboat industry if Delbert

Course is permitted to recover in this case, can best

demonstrate why the Supreme Court could never have

intended to establish a precedent for a direct action as

is here involved.

We agree with Mr. Justice Harlan in his dissent in

Yaka that the following statement by Mr. Justice Black

in his dissent in Ryan Stevedoring Co. v. Pan-Atlantic

' Atlas Tug Service, Longview, Washington; Brusco Towboat

Co., Cathlamet, Washington; Columbia Pacific Towing Corpo-

ration, Stevenson, Washington; Diesel Towing Co., Portland, Ore-

gon; Knappton Towboat Co., Portland, Oregon; The Mirene

Co., Portland, Oregon; Pacific Inland Navigation Co., Vancouver,

Washington; Ramona Towboat Co., Inc., Portland, Oregon;

Shaver Transportation Co., Portland, Oregon; Shepard Towing
Co., St. Helens, Oregon; Smith Tug &• Barge Co., Rainier, Ore-

gon; Tidewater Barge Lines, Inc., Portland, Oregon; Western

Transportation Co., Portland, Oregon; and Willamette Tug &
Barge Co., Portland, Oregon.



SS Corp (1956), 350 U.S. 124 states as concisely and as

accurately as any the statutory design of the Longshore-

men's Act:

"Congress weighed the conflicting interests of

employers and employees and struck what was con-

sidered to be a fair and constitutional balance. In-

jured employees thereby lost their chance to get

large tort verdicts against their employers, but

gained the right to get a sure, though frequently a

more modest, recovery. However, Sec. 33 did leave

employees a chance to recover extra tort damages

from third persons who negligently injured them.

And while Congress imposed absolute liability on

employers, they were also accorded counterbalancing

advantages. They were no longer to be subjected to

the hazards of large tort verdicts. Under no circum-

stances were they to be held liable to their own em-

ployees for more than the compensation clearly

fixed in the Act. Thus employers were given every

reason to believe they could buy their insurance and

make other business arrangements on the basis of the

limited Compensation Act liability."

From the act as epitomized by Mr. Justice Black it

appears that it was designed to give the harbor worker

at best, one bite out of two apples; not two bites out of

the same apple. He could for certain get a small bite

from the apple of his employer, and then if the situation

permitted, try for a larger bite from an apple of a third

person. Here, Delbert Course has already taken two bites

from his employer's apple. It cannot be done if plain

language of Congress means anything.

If Delbert Course, after receiving full benefits under



the act, can collect a further $12,588.08 from his em-

ployer then the primary benefit of the Longshoremen's

Act for the employer has gone out the window. It is no

answer to say that by some theory of set-off the employer

can deduct compensation paid under the act from the

larger judgment because the quid pro quo for the em-

ployer in the first instance to provide compensation

upon a no fault basis has been taken away.

This Court has long held that the Longshoremen's

Act is to be interpreted so as not to be unfair to either

the employee or employer. Pacific S. S. Co. v. Pillsbury

(D. Ct., CaUf., 1931), 52 F.2d 686 affirmed in (9 Cir.

1932) 56 F.2d 79. What could be more unfair than to

require the employer to subsidize his employee by pay-

ing benefits in order to enable him to later sue for more

money than the Act requires to be paid to the employee?

Yet, the crudest thing of all is that the tugboat-employer

cannot abandon the Act and take his chances in a court

of law or admiralty as before the Act. Section 5 provides

that should the employer give up paying insurance prem-

iums to "secure payment of compensation" to his em-

ployee, then his employee can elect to either claim under

the Act or sue him in any court of law or in admiralty

where all of the employer's traditional defenses, such as

contributory negligence, are taken away from him. While

the employee may elect the employer cannot. This

might not be so bad, except the employer still cannot get

out of the Act's clutches, as by Section 38 (33 U.S.C.

#938) failure to secure payment of compensation sub-

jects the employer to a $1,000 fine and one year in jail.



Atop of this, Section 44 (33 U.S.C. #944) requires the

employer in certain cases to contribute to a trust fund

for benefit of certain employees in general.

In short, if Delbert Course can sue his employer in

law or in admiralty to recover damages either arising

from causative negligence or causative lanseaworthiness

of his employer's vessel, then the once equitable Act has

been transformed into a snare and a delusion for the

employer—in this case the tugboat industry. If Section

5 of the Longshoremen's Act is to be emasculated by the

judiciary, it could very well lead to a repeal or whole-

sale disregard of the Act. This would be a blow to the

harbor worker, who at one time so much wanted a com-

pensation act for industrial injuries, just as was furnished

to his shore-based brethren by the various states. j

Reed v. Yaka is clearly a third party case

giving no real support for libel in personam
by a harbor v/orker against his employer-

tugboat ov/ner.

The Supreme Court has consistently reminded both

bench and bar that

:

".
. . general expressions, in every opinion, are to

be taken in connection with the case in which those

expressions are used. If they go beyond the case,

they may be respected, but ought not to control the

judgment in a subsequent suit, when the very point

is presented for decision." Osaka Shosen Line v.

United States (1937), 300 U.S. 98, 102; Humphrey's

Executor v. United States (1935), 295 U.S. 602, 626.

With this as a criteria let us examine Yaka to determine



if its holding really supports Delbert Course in his direct

in personam libel against his employer-tugboat owner.

To begin with, Yaka was pleaded and tried through-

out three courts as: (1) a direct libel in rem by long-

shoreman Reed against the vessel YAKA, which was

owned and claimed by Waterman Steamship Co.; and

(2) a libel in personam by Waterman S.S. Co. against

Pan-Atlantic S.S. Co., the bare-boat charterer of the

YAKA, for breach of the latter's agreement contained in

the bareboat charter to indemnify and save Waterman

harmless from claims such as was being asserted by long-

shoreman Reed. At no time did Reed assert a direct

claim of any kind against his employer, Pan-Atlantic.

The case in every respect was typical of those sanc-

tioned by the Court in Ryan Stevedoring Co. v. Pan-

Atlantic SS Co., (1956) 350 U. S. 124, except for the

fact that in Yaka the stevedore happened also to be the

operator of the YAKA as a bare-boat charterer which

placed him in the status of owner pro hac vice. The

framework of this litigation is ascertained by read-

ing the District Court's opinion (183 F. Supp. 69), the

Court of Appeals opinion (307 F.2d 203) as well as the

Supreme Court's opinion (373 U. S. 410).

What happened in Yaka is that after the Court had

granted certiorari to consider the question of whether or

not an underlying personal liability was essential to sup-

port a libel in rem against a vessel, the Court determined

to avoid that question as it saw under the facts a per-

sonal liability. The Court found two owners of the

YAKA; Waterman as the true owner, who would be re-
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quired to respond to Reed's libel in rem, lest its vessel

be sold, and Pan-Atlantic as a second owner by opera-

tion of law, i.e. a bareboat charterer with the status of

owner pro hac vice. For its theoretical purpose of fur-

nishing a personal liability to support Reed's in rem

claim it did not matter to the Court from whence it came.

Since it was Waterman which really owned the vessel and

would be required to respond to Reed's in rem libel, one

would think if the in rem action was to be supported at

all, it would have to be by Waterman's personal liabil-

ity. However, Waterman had no personal liability as at

time of Reed's injury the vessel was in control of Pan-

Atlantic. To avoid this "sticky wicket" the Court, for

its limited purposes, saw no reason why it could not use

Pan-Atlantic's personal liability to underlay and sup-

port Reed's claim in rem against the vessel belonging to

Waterman. This is exactly what it did.

As to Pan-Atlantic, this case was routine. It was

only V/aterman and not Reed who made claim against

Pan-Atlantic in a libel in personam for breach of a mar-

itime contract to indemnify. The Court had held in

Ryan that Section 5 of the Longshoremen's Act was no

procedural bar to such a right-over, inasmuch as the

party asserting the right-over was not the longshoreman

himself. Absent a direct action against Pan-Atlantic by

Reed, Section 5 of the Longshoremen's Act would not

come into play and absent Section 5 there could be little

doubt but what a bareboat charterer as owner pro hac

vioe v/ould be liable to maintain a seaworthy ship for its

seamen.



Holding in Yaka

Within the factual posture of this case it was relatively

simple for the Court, without much explanation and

without over-ruling prior decisions or voiding an Act of

Congress, to hold in the very last sentence of its opinion

written by Mr. Justice Black:

"We conclude that petitioner was not barred by

the Longshoremen's Act from relying on Pan-Atlan-

tic's liability as a shipowner for the Yaka's unsea-

worthiness in order to support his libel in rem

against the vessel."

As we see it, the above quoted last sentence is the only

holding which the Court made, the only holding favor-

able to Reed which it could have made and a holding

which cannot in any manner support Delbert Course in

his in personam libel against his employer, who also hap-

pened to be the true owner of tug BANNOCK.

Our view of the limited holding in Yaka is precisely

the view of the Court in Robinson v. Lykes Bros. S. S.

Co. (Ct. App. La., 4 Cir., 1965) 170 So. 2d 243 where

in a case the same as we have at bar, the Court rejected

Yaka as sanctioning an in personam suit by a long-

shoreman against his employer-shipowner. After quoting

the last sentence in the Yaka opinion as its holding (as

above) the Court observed:

"The Court was not called upon, and did not

hold that an 'in personam' action could be brought

by an injured longshoreman against his employer

who was also the shipowner."
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We concede there are broad statements in the Court'

opinion speaking generally of situations beyond the facti

of Yaka, which no doubt influenced the able trial judgi

to conclude that the Supreme Court was nullifying Sec

tion 5 of the Longshoremen's Act as a procedural bar to'

an employee such as Delbert Course to maintaining a

direct libel in admiralty and in personam for damages

arising from being injured while working aboard his em-

ployer's tugboat. Typical is the following language of

the Court appearing directly above its limited holding:

".
. . Pan-Atlantic relies simply on the literal

wording of the statute, and it must be admitted

that the statute on its face lends supports to Pan-

Atlantic's construction. But we cannot now con-

sider the wording of the statute alone. We must

view it in the light of our prior cases in this area, i

like Sieracki, Ryan, and others, the holdings of
[

which have been left unchanged by Congress.

".
. . And Ryan's holding that a negligent

stevedoring company must indemnify a shipown-

er has in later cases been followed and to some

degree extended. In the light of this whole body of

law, statutory and decisional, only blind adherence

to the superficial meaning of a statute could prompt

us to ignore the fact that Pan-Atlantic was not

only an employer of longshoremen but was also a

bareboat charterer and operator of a ship and, as

such, was charged with the traditional, absolute,

and nondelegable obligation of seaworthiness which

it should not be permitted to avoid. We have pre-

viously said that the Longshoremen's Act 'must be

liberally construed in conformance with its purpose

and in a way which avoids harsh and incongruous
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results.' We think it would produce harsh and in-

congruous results, one out of keeping with the

dominent intent of Congress to help longshoremen,

to distinguish between liability to longshoremen

injured under precisely the same circumstances be-

cause some draw their pay directly from a ship-

owner and others from a stevedoring company do-

ing the ship's service. Petitioner's need for protec-

tion from unseaworthiness was neither more nor

less than that of a longshoreman working for a

stevedoring company. .
."

The Court's opinion, including the above quoted

language, brought a seething dissent by Mr. Justice

Harlan joined in by Mr. Justice Stewart, which in ef-

j

feet accused the Court of exceeding its jurisdiction by

judicially repealing a plain and valid act of Congress.

The broad language of the Court gives some basis to

the charge of the dissenters; however, the holding of the

j
Court does not. We prefer to argue to this Court that

j

the holding in Yaka is in keeping with Ryan and Section

I 5 of the Longshoremen's Act and is not, as the dissent-

! ers say, — a "holding that a longshoreman may recover

I

from his own employer for injuries suffered in the course

of employment" and that the Court "has effectively

'repealed' a basic aspect of the Longshoremen's and

; Harbor Workers' Compensation Act."

To us, it is inconceivable that the Court would in-

tentionally ignore or trod upon valid Congressional ac-

tion. To our way of thinking such would be tantamount

to treason to a government so firmly fixed as one of

law and not of men. Our view of Yaka as here ex-
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pressed squares completely with Ryan, Sieracki and

other decisions of the Supreme Court, none of which

have judicially repealed Section 5 of the Longshore-

men's Act.

The Ryan Case

In Ryan the Court fashioned a new concept of a

right-over for the shipowner against the stevedore and

in doing so walked a tight rope. On one side of the

tight rope was Halcyon Lines v. Haenn Ship Ceiling

&> Refitting Corp. (1952) 342 U.S. 282 wherein the

Court refused to solve the "maritime triangle" by vio-

lating the common law rule against contribution by

co-tort-feasors. On the other side was Section 5 of the

Longshoremen's Act which prohibited the longshore-

man from suing his employer at law or in admiralty. Af-

firming the validity and its clear understanding of Sec-

tion 5 of the Longshoremen's Act, but going around it

by fashioning a right-over in contract (express or im-

plied-in-fact) the Supreme Court in Ryan held:

"While the Compensation Act protects a steve-

doring contractor from actions brought against it

by its employee on account of the contractor's tor-

tious conduct causing injury to the employee, the

contractor has no logical ground for relief from

the full consequences of its independent contrac-

tual obligation, voluntarily assumed to the ship-

owner, to load the cargo properly, (citing author-

ities)."

It would seem to us that the Court in Yaka also en-

deavored to walk a tight rope just as it did in Ryan. It

did not strike down Section 5 but avoided it as it had
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already been construed in Ryan as strictly a procedural

bar to direct actions such as Delbert Course has pur-

sued in the case at bar. This did not, however, frustrate

the Court in furnishing an underlying personal liability

to support Reed's in rem action against Waterman any

more than taking a personal liability of Pan-Atlantic

to maintain a seaworthy ship to support the Waterman

liability. There is no contradiction in saying that while

Pan-Atlantic owed a duty to furnish a seaworthy ship

to "seaman" Reed he could not sue Pan-Atlantic di-

rectly for breach of such duty. After all, the duty was

owed to all seamen. Reed happened to be a shore-based

"super-seaman" in the sense that unlike the sea-going

seaman he had the benefits of compensation under the

Longshoremen's Act in lieu of a direct cause of action

at law or in admiralty against his employer. Just be-

cause Reed in Yaka was successful in his indirect ap-

proach by suing in rem a vessel owned by a third par-

ty, Waterman did not mean he could have sued his em-

ployer, Pan-Atlantic should it have happened (which

it did not) that Pan-Atlantic owned the vessel. The

finding of an underlying duty that can be availed of

by some and not others is not an uncommon principle

of law. One of many examples is found in Kesler v. De-

partment oi Public Safety (1962) 369 U.S. 153, 170

where the Supreme Court held that while a discharge in

bankruptcy prevented a judgment creditor from collect-

ing a judgment from a debtor it did not extinguish or

remove all traces of the debt from the debtor so as to

prohibit the State of Utah under a safety statute from

insisting that the discharged debt be satisfied before
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the debtor's driver's license be re-instated. Considering

Mr. Justice Black's dissent in Ryan and his concise ex-

position of the Longshoremen's Act therein, it is difficult

for us to believe that when he spoke for the Court in
(

Yaka, he intended any more than making the limited

holding as set forth in the last sentence of the Court's
'

opinion.

The Sieracki Case

As for Seas Shipping Co. v. Sieracki (1946) 328 U.S.

85, the Court held that a longshoreman was entitled

to be assured of a seaworthy ship even though, like

true seamen, the longshoreman was not employed by

the shipowner. Even in that early case, the Court rec-

ognized that Section 5 of the Longshoremen's Act (33

U.S.C. #905) would bar a direct action should thei|

shipowner also be the longshoreman's employer. Mr.

Justice Rutledge, speaking for the Court at page 102 1.

stated

:

"We may take it therefore that Congress in-;

tended the remedy of compensation to be exclusive

as against the employer. See Swanson v. Marra

Brothers, Inc., ante p. 1); 33 U.S.C. #905. But

we cannot assume, in face of the Act's explicit pro-

vision, that it intended this remedy to nullify or

affect others against third persons. Exactly the op-

posite is true. The legislation therefore did not nul-

lify any rights of the longshoremen against the

owner of the ship, except possibly in instance, pre-

sumably rare, where he may be hired by the owner.

The statute had no purpose or effect to alter the

stevedore's rights as against any but his employer

alone." (emphasis added)
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The Swanson Case

And, of course, in Swanson v. Marra Bros. (1946)

328 U.S. 1, the longshoreman was denied a direct action

against his employer-shipowner. The case turned on

more than the fact that the longshoreman was not a

member of a crew. Mr. Justice Black announced the

opinion of the Court by Mr. Chief Justice Stone. At

page 6 he stated:

"... The liability of employers to pay the pre-

scribed compensation is, by #905, made 'exclusive

and in place of all other liability of such employer

to the employee' his legal representative and any

other person entitled to recover damages 'at law

or in admiralty' from the employer for the injury

or death. . .
."

The O'Rourke Case

Ten years after Swanson v. Marra Bros., supra, came

another fundamental decision of the Supreme Court in

Pennsylvania Railroad Co. V. O'Rourke (1953) 344 U.S.

334. There a railroad employee was injured while re-

leasing a hand brake on a freight car while he was in

the process of unloading the freight car from a car-

float owned and operated by his employer. He sued his

jemployer as authorized by F.E.L.A. The Pennsylvania

Railroad defended by asserting that the railroad em-

ployee was injured while afloat on navigable waters

and hence was a harbor worker and that because of

ISection 5 of the Longshoremen's Act he was barred

[from suing his float owner-employer. The Court agreed

with the railroad and dismissed the suit. In doing so it

stated:
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".
. . The exclusive coverage of Nos. 903, 905

extends to an employee of an employer, made liable

by No. 904, when he is injured, in the course of his

employment, on navigable water. The Court of Ap-
peals, we think, is in error in holding that the

statute requires, as to the employee, both injury

on navigable water and maritime employment as

a ground for coverage by the Compensation Act."
,

In view of the Ryan, Sieracki, Swanson and 0'-\

Rourke cases, supra, it should be evident that when the

Supreme Court in Yaka stated:

"... But we cannot now consider the wording:

of the statute alone. We must view it in the light

of our prior cases in this area, like Sieracki, Ryan,

and others, the holdings of which have been leftj

unchanged by Congress."

the Supreme Court had reference only to not permit-

ting any "paycheck arrangements" had with a long-

shoreman to frustrate the third party and right-over

system with which it was confronted in Yaka, and

which it had fashioned in Ryan. The Supreme Court

did not say in Yaka that a longshoreman could sue his

employer in personam for causative unseaworthiness or

causative negligence in spite of Section 5 of the Long-

shoremen's Act, if his employer (as in O'Rourke and

Swanson) happened also to own the vessel upon which

he was injured.

Congressional Action and Non-Action

Further support for this view of the language in

Yaka is found in the language itself. As stated by the
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Court, its interpretation was influenced by lack of Con-

gressional reaction to the Court's decisions such as Sier-

acki and Ryan. There has been no Congressional reac-

tion to change or modify the shipowner's right-over as

fashioned in Ryan. However, in 1959 Section 33 of the

Longshoremen's Act (33 U.S.C. #933) was amended

:o give the longshoreman better control of his third

party claim so as to cure the reason for the fear which

Hr. Justice Black had expressed in his dissent in Ryan.

Df significance here is that at that time Congress in

Section 33(a) not only clarified the third party action

tor the longshoreman but expanded the immunity of the

pmployer from direct action to include person or per-

sons in the employers employ. It also added a new

{;ub-section "(i)" reading:

"(i) The right to compensation or benefits un-

der this chapter shall be the exclusive remedy to an

employee when he is injured, or to his eligible sur-

vivors or legal representatives if he is killed, by
the negligence or wrong of any other person or

persons in the same employ. Provided, that this

provision shall not affect the liability of a person

other than an officer or employee of the employer."

(As amended August 18, 1959, Pu. L. 86-171, 73

Stat. 391, 33 USC #933).

fhe unmistakable purpose of the new language in Sec-

lion 33 was to immunize the "employee family" of the
i

Employer from damage suits brought by longshoremen

jit law or in admiralty by placing fellow employees of

|:he injured longshoreman under the umbrella of the

i-ongshoremen's Act along with the employer who had

!;arlier been so immunized by Section 5 of the Act. In-
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stead of impliedly permitting a longshoreman to sue

in rem as a "third party" his employer's vessel it in ef-,

feet broadened the immunization of Section 5 by insu-j

lating not only the employer but also fellow employees

of the injured party from liability in damages to the,

injured party. Bynum. v. MORMACTEAL (E.D. Pa.,'

1960) 188 F. Supp. 763; Garland v. Alaska Steamship^

Co. (D. Ct. Alaska, 1963) 217 F. Supp. 757. Report oh

Secretary of Labor to the Senate on H.R. 451, U. S.l!

Code, Congressional and Administrative News, 1959 atii

page 2134.
'

In the summer of 1959 when H.R. 451 which amend-

ed Section 33 of the Longshoremen's Act became law]

the Supreme Court had decided Sieracki (1946), Ryanl

(1956), Weyerhaeuser S. S. Co. v. Nacirema Operat-i

ing Co. (1958), 355 U.S. 563 and was in the process ofj

deciding Crumady V. The Joachim Hendrick Fisseri

(1959), 358 U.S. 423. These cases all had to do with the

fashioning of the shipowner's right-over against thel

stevedore and not any direct action by longshoremen

against his employer or his vessel. So, when the Supreme

Court in Yaka viewed Section 5 in the light of its prior

cases — "Sieracki, Ryan, and others" it must have been

referring to the above cases. And when it stated that

its holdings have been left unchanged by Congress it

must again have been refering to its holdings in the

above cases as Congress had taken positive action in

1959 to amend Section 33 so as to broaden the insulat-

ing effect of Section 5. As a consequence we think it

is sound for this Court to read and understand the lan-

guage in Yaka in the light of the "right-over" phase oi
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the "maritime triangle" as was factually before the Su-

preme Court in Yaka and ignore, as unsound, any con-

aotation that might suggest that the Supreme Court

intended to sanction direct in personam action by em-

ployee against employer upon the excuse that the em-

ployer happened also to be the owner of the vessel

apon which the injury occurred.

' Furthermore, if the Court in Yaka had at all intend-

ed by its language to sanction direct action by a long-

iihoreman against his shipowner-employer, it would

jiave been required to strike down the holding in Smith

\/. The MORMACDALE (3 Cir., 1952), 198 F.2d 849, as

Ihat case was cited and relied upon in both the District

pourt and the Court of Appeals. It did not. In fact, in

bie Circuit Court of Appeals, when Judge Staley joined

ihe dissent of Chief Judge Biggs to the Court's holding

yhich was reversed by the Supreme Court, he noted:

"I join Chief Judge Biggs in his conclusion in

his dissent. I read his dissent as not disturbing

Smith V. Mormacdale, 198 F2d 849 (C.A. 3, 1952)

where the employer was also the shipowner."

it should be mentioned that Smith v. MORMACDALE,
upra, relied heavily upon the reasoning in Samuels v.

yiunson S.S. Line (5 Cir., 1953), 63 F.2d 861. Both of

hese cases are precisely like the one at bar where Del-

')ert Course has sued his employer-tugboat owner, ex-
i

ept that they were in rem^ while his is in personam.

Both of these cases would deny Delbert Course the rem-

idy he here has sought.
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This Court should follow the limited holding in

Yaka and not its language in order to uphold
a plain act of Congress and not accuse the

Supreme Court of going beyond its

jurisdiction.

We are aware that other district courts, i.e. Hertei]

V. American Export Lines, Inc. (S.D. N.Y., 1964), 225'

F, Supp. 703 and, of recent, the Court of Appeals for

the Fourth Circuit in Biggs v. Norfolk Dredging Co:

(4th Cir., 1966), 360 F.2d 360 have held that Sectiori

5 of the Longshoremen's Act is no bar to an action suet*

as that brought by Delbert Course. It has, we think

come about by those courts refusing to cut with surgi;

cal precision into Yaka and discover what it actually held
i

For example, the Fourth Circuit Court of Appeals ill

Biggs V. Norfolk Dredging Co., supra, never really uiw

derstood what was precisely before the Supreme Courl

in Yaka as it erroneously observed of Yaka: "His eni'

ployer, the ship's bareboat charterer—or her owneii

pro hac vice—intervened to defend the suit." We com-]

mend to this Court the opinion of the Fourth Circui"

Court of Appeals for the State of Louisiana in Robinsoi

V. Lykes Bros. S.S. Co. (1965), 170 So. 2d 243, as be

ing more sound than the opinion of the Fourth Circui

of the U. S. Court of Appeals just mentioned.

Trying to look as objectively as possible at th(

problem which confronts this Court in this case, we se(

it stemming from the broad language in Yaka whicl

goes beyond its actual holding. The broad language give

some support to the District Court while the holdinj

does not. For this Court in this in personam case t(
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Dcrmit Delbert Course to sue his employer-tugboat

)wner it will have to conclude: (1) That the plain lan-

guage of Congress does not forbid it; and (2) That, as

claimed by the dissenters in Yaka, the Supreme Court

gnored or repealed an Act of Congress and in order to

io so not only exceeded its jurisdiction and the facts of

he case but also impliedly reversed many of its prior

ind important decisions.

I Confronted with a duty to follow holdings of the

Supreme Court, as well as valid Congressional action,

we urge that this Court be mindful of the principle

jnentioned in Osaka Shosen Line v. United States

11937), 300 U.S. 98 at 102 as previously mentioned and

ear heed to the observation of the Court of Appeals

3r the Fourth Circuit in Carey v. Foster (4th Cir.,

(965), 345 F.2d 772.

I In this last cited case the Court was confronted with

eciding whether a wife had an action at law for dam-

ges for loss of her husband's consortium. The Court was

onfronted by a most vexing statute of Virginia. It ob-

served in respect to its own jurisdiction at page 777:

"The Virginia statute, however it is read, has

placed an insurmountable obstacle in the way of

judicial accomplishment of a result judges might

think best. Courts may overturn judicially fash-

ioned rules. They may withdraw or modify rights

they once thought deserving of recognition, and

they may recognize new rights when such recogni-

tion seems necessary to achieve a harmonious re-

sult, justice and equality. They may not reverse a

legislative exercise of constitutional power, and
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rarely can they erect a structure to match a legis-

lative creature though they may think the legisla-

ture should have gone further than it did." (enn

phasis added)

Certainly, in the case at bar the plain language o:l

Section 5 of the Longshoremen's Act forbids Delber

Course to sue his employer-tugboat-owner. Both deci-,

sions prior and subsequent to Yaka forbid it. When the

Supreme Court speaks of interpreting the Longshore-|

men's Act so as to prevent harsh and incongruous re

suits it must have considered those results as they apph

to the employer-tugboat owner as well as to the employ

ee. From such point of view equal protection of law anc

elementary fairness also forbids it. Until the Supremcj

Court speaks otherwise within the framework of a cast

where it is required to make a holding, we submit tha

this Court should reverse the District Court on the ba

sis that Section 5 of the Longshoremen's Act prevent

appellee from suing in personam his employer-tugboa

owner.

Respectfully submitted,

William F. White
White, Sutherland & Gilbertson

1200 Jackson Tower
Portland, Oregon



23

CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL

I certify that, in connection with the preparation of

his brief, I have examined Rules 18 and 19 of the

Jnited States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit,

nd that, in my opinion, the foregong brief is in full

ompliance with those Rules.

William F. White





No. 21081 ^

IN THE

United States Court of Appeals
FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

Henry Roy,

Appellant,

vs.

United States of America,

Appellee.

On Appeal From the Judgment of the District Court of the

United States, Southern District of California, Central

Division.

APPELLANT'S OPENING BRIEF.

FILED
HOCHMAN & SaLKIN, NOV 9 1966

6222 Wilshire Boulevard, ^
Los Angeles, Calif. 90048, y^M. B. LUCK. CLERK

Attorneys for Appellant.

FEB 15 1967

Parker & Son, Inc., Law Printers, Los Angeles. Phone MA. 6-9171.





TOPICAL INDEX

Page

Statement of jurisdiction 1

Specifications of errors 2

Statement of the case 2

Argument 4

I.

Bank deposit method—books and records 4

A. Case law 4

(i) Holland case 4

(ii) Riganto case 8

(iii) Dual purpose of bank deposits meth-

od 1

1

(iv) "Most accurate method" test 14

B. Evidence as to defendant's books and rec-

ords 18

C. Agent's investigation of available books and

records 23

D. Dangers of bank deixDsits method 27

II.

Willfulness 29

III.

Conclusion 34

Appendix. Table of Exhibits.



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES CITED

Cases Page

Bishop, Ruth N., T.C. Memo 62-146 12

Blackwell v. United States. 244 F. 2d 423 16

Cohen v. United States, 363 F. 2d 321 7

Dean, Grace O., T.C. Memo 55-217 15

Godeny, Juhus, T.C. Memo 63-324 13

Harris, W. L., T.C. Memo 48-235 15

Hoffman v. Commissioner of Internal Revenue,

298 F. 2d 784 12

Holland V. United States, 348 U.S. 121, 75 S. Ct.

127 4, 7, 9, 10, 11, 12, 34, 35

Merrit v. Commissioner of Internal Revenue, 301

F. 2d 484 17

Moore v. United States, 254 F. 2d 213 17

Schwarzkopf v. Commissioner of Internal Revenue,

246 F. 2d 731 11

Spies V. United States, 317 U.S. 492, 63 S. Ct. 364 .. 29

United States v. Murdock, 290 U.S. 389, 54 S. Ct.

223 29

United States v. Riganto, 121 F. Supp. 158 8, 9

Whaley v. United States, 362 F. 2d 938 8

Wright, Estate of Joe, T.C. Memo 63-088 13

Rules

Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure, Rule 18 1

Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure, Rule 37(a) .... 2

Statutes

Internal Revenue Code of 1954, Sec. 7201

1, 2, 3, 29

United States Code, Title 18, Sec. 3231 1

United States Code, Title 26, Sec. 7201 2, 7. 29

United States Code, Title 28, Sec. 1291 2

United States Code, Title 28, Sec. 1294(1) 2



No. 21081

IN THE

United States Court of Appeals
, FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

Henry Roy,

! Appellant,

vs.

United States of America,

Appellee.

APPELLANT'S OPENING BRIEF.

Statement of Jurisdiction.

This is a criminal action brought by appellee, the

United States of America against the appellant, Henry

Roy, for willfully attempting to evade and defeat a part

of his Federal income tax liability for the calendar years

1958, 1959, and 1960, in violation of Section 7201 of

the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as amended. [Clk.

Tr. pp. 2-5.]

Jurisdiction was present in the United States District

Court of Southern California by reason of Title 18,

United States Code, Section 3231, and Rule 18 of the

jFederal Rules of Criminal Procedure. On or about

May 2, 1966, the United States District Court for the

iSouthern District of California convicted the defendant

|on all three (3) counts as charged.
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The appellant timely appealed to this Court. [Clk.

Tr. pp. 27-28.] This Court has jurisdiction of the

appeal under Title 28, United States Code, Section 1291,

1294(1), and Rule 37(a) of the Federal Rules of Crim-

inal Procedure. „
Specification of Errors. "

The Court below erroneously entered the judgment of

guilty and denied the appellant's motion for new trial

or a judgment of acquittal for the following reasons:

1. The plaintiff erred in its use of the bank deposit

method of computing the appellant's taxable in-

come by reason of the fact that the plaintiff had

not estabhshed the inadequacy and inaccuracy of

the defendant's books and records—a condition i

precedent to employing an alternative method of

computing taxable income—when the use of tax-

payer's books and records was the most accurate

manner for ascertaining defendant's taxable in-

come.

2. The appellee failed to introduce sufficient evi-

dence to sustain a finding of willfulness on the

part of the appellant within the meaning of Title

26, United States Code, Section 7201.

Statement of the Case.

On April 7, 1965, appellant was indicted for viola-

tion of Section 7201 of the Internal Revenue Code of

1954 as amended. [Clk. Tr. pp. 2-5.] The indictment

charged that appellant understated his taxable income

by $81,887.60, $113,861.07, and $158,535.21 for the

calendar years 1958, 1959, and 1960, respectively. This

understatement, the indictment charged, resulted in an
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additional Federal income tax liability for the above

years in the amount of $52,206.39, $77,182.73 and

$115,497.70. The alleged omitted income was deter-

mined by the Government on the bank deposit method

of computing taxable income.

Appellant plead not guilty to all three (3) counts of

said indictment and v^as tried by the United States Dis-

trict Court for the Southern District of California, sit-

ting without a jury, on March 15, 16, and 17, 1966.

The Court found the appellant guilty on all three (3)

counts of the indictment. [Clk. Tr. p. 27.] Thereafter,

the appellant timely moved for a new trial, or in the

1 alternative for a judgment of acquittal. [Clk. Tr. p. 8.]

I These motions were denied by the Court. From this

[adverse decision, the defendant appeals to this Court.

The appellant contends that the evidence produced at

the trial of this case was insufficient to sustain a judg-

ment of conviction on all three (3) counts of the indict-

jment, that there was insufficient evidence of willfulness

within the meaning of Section 7201 of the Internal

iRevenue Code of 1954, and that the bank deposit method

jof computing taxable income was improper in these cir-

icumstances.



ARGUMENT.

I.

BANK DEPOSIT METHOD—BOOKS
AND RECORDS.

A. Case Law.

(i) Holland Case.

The appellee erred in its use of the bank deposit

method of computing appellant's taxable income for the

reason that appellee had not established the inadequacy

or inaccuracy of the defendant's books and records,

which is a condition precedent to employing an alterna-

tive method of computing taxable income. The use of the

defendant's books and records would have been the most

accurate manner of ascertaining defendant's taxable in-
ij

come.

Prior to 1954 the case law was unclear when con-

sidering the use of circumstantial evidence to estab-

lish a tax deficiency, and the accompanying fraudulent

intent. The circumstantial evidence was presented

through recomputations of taxable income by use of the

net worth and bank deposit methods. The conditions

precedent to the use of those methods, and the eviden-

tiary value of same, had been the object of court de-

cisions which varied greatly in allowing the use of such

evidence. The conflict was presumably resolved by the

decision of the Supreme Court in Holland v. United

States (1954), 348 U.S. 121, 75 S. Ct. 127. The Court

first noted at pages 124, 125 :

"In recent years, however, tax-evasion convictions

obtained under the net worth theory have come

here with increasing frequency and left impressions

beyond those of previously unrelated petitions. We
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concluded that the method involved something more

than the ordinary use of circ^imstantial evidence in

the usual criminal case. Its bearing, therefore, on

the safegaiards traditionally provided in the ad-

ministration of criminal justice called for a con-

sideration of the entire theory.

In a typical net worth prosecution, the Government,

having concluded that the taxpayer's records are in-

adequate as a basis for determining income tax

liability, attempts to establish an 'opening net

worth' or total net value of the taxpayer's assets

at the beginning of a given year." (Emphasis

added.)

The Court then considered the policy considerations

on which its holding was based (pp. 125-126) :

"Before proceeding with a discussion of these

cases, we believe it important to outline the general

problems implicit in this type of litigation. In this

consideration we assume, as we must in view of its

wide spread use, that the Government deems the

net worth method useful in the enforcement of the

criminal sanctions of our income tax laws. Never-

theless, careful study indicates that it is so fraught

with danger for the innocent that the courts must

closely scrutinise its use.

"One basic assumption in establishing guilt by this

method is that most assets derive from a taxable

source, and that when this is not true the taxpayer

is in a position to explain the discrepancy. The ap-

plication of such an assumption raises serious legal

problems in the administration of the criminal law.
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Unlike civil actions for the recovery of deficiencies,

where the determinations of the Commissioner have

prima facie validity, the prosecution must always

prove the criminal charge beyond a reasonable

doubt. This has led many of our courts to be dis-

turbed by the use of the net worth method, particu-

larly in its scope and the latitude which it allows

prosecutors. (Citations)." (Emphasis added.)

The Court, on pages 127 and 128, then analyzes the

dangers encountered in using circumstantial evidence:

"This leads us to point out the dangers that must

be consciously kept in mind in order to assure ade-

quate appraisal of the specific facts in individual

cases."

The Court then lists six (6) such dangers. In Item

No. 4, the Court states

:

"When there are no books and records, willfulness

may be inferred by the jury from that fact, coupled

with proof of an understatement of income. But

when the Government uses the net worth method,

and the books and records of the taxpayer appear

correct on their face, an inference of willfulness

from net worth increases alone might be unjustified.

especially where the circumstances surrounding the

deficiency are as consistent with innocent mistake

as with willful violation. On the other hand, the

very failure of the books to disclose a proved de-

ficiency might indicate deliberate falsification."

The Court then considered the facts at hand (pp.

131-132):

"Petitioners' accounting system was appropriate

for their business purposes; and, admittedly, the
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Government did not detect any specific false entries

therein. Nevertheless, if we believe the Govern-

ment's evidence, as the jury did, zvc must con-

clude that the defendants' books were more con-

sistent than truthful, and that many items of in-

come had disappeared before they had even reached

the recording stage. ... To protect the revenue

from those who do not render true accounts the

government must be free to use all legal evidence

available to it in determining whether the story

told by the taxpayer's books acttially reflects his

financial history." (Emphasis added.)

The Holland case was both restrictive and liberal in

setting standards to be followed in determining taxable

[income through the introduction of circumstantial evi-

dence. The Court clearly states that the Internal Reve-

nue Service may use circumstantial evidence in cases

.other than where the taxpayer has no books, or where

his books are inadequate (p. 131). What the Court in

I

reality said is that the net worth method may be used

I

to establish the fact that the taxpayer's books are inac-

Icurate; consistency on its face cannot be equated with

iaccuracy. However, the Court was restrictive in that

'it set limitations on the use of the net worth method.

and throughout the opinion stated that the use of cir-

Icumstantial evidence in a tax case creates many dangers

[for the taxpayer.

Circumstantial evidence is normally received but

viewed with distrust. In a tax evasion case under 26

U.S.C. 7201, the Court in Cohen v. United States (5th

Cir., 1966), 363 F. 2d 321, 327, stated:

"The circumstances proven must lead to the con-

clusion with reasonable certaintv and must be of



such probative force as to create basis for legal in-

ference and not mere suspicion, Wesson v. United

States, 8th Cir., 1949, 172 F. 2d 931. In the

absence of direct proof, the circumstances relied

upon to sustain a conviction must not only be con-

sistent with guilt, but inconsistent with every rea-

sonable hypothesis of innocence. Barnes v. United

States, 5th Cir., 1965, 341 F. 2d 189."

This Court set aside a perjury conviction in Whaley

V. United States (9th Cir., 1966), 362 F. 2d 938, 939,

and stated:

"While circumstantial evidence may support a con-

viction, it must be adequately sufficient to enable

a reasonable determination that it excludes every

hypothesis except that of guilt."

(ii) Riganto Case.

In the case of United States v. Riganto (D.C. Va.,

1954), 121 F. Supp. 158, the Court carefully considered

the applicability of the bank deposit method in estab-

lishing an understatement of income. The Court

noted, at page 159: -^^k

"In the last few years I have observed with interest

a change that has taken place in the nature of

proof offered to support the charge of the prosecu-

tion in many of these cases charging tax fraud.

This change has caused me some concern by what

appears to be a preference to introduce proof to

show understatement of income and fraudulent

attempt by methods other than by direct evidence.

Of course, it is necessary in some cases that the

Government precede by indirect methods. This

evidence consists of proof undertaking to show in-
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come of the taxpayer computed upon what is re-

ferred to as the net worth increase or bank de-

posits and expenditures methods, or a combination

of both. The latter is employed here. Basing my
observation upon a number of cases during- the

past few years, it would scent that the use of one

or both of these methods has been employed

through preference at times zvhcn direct evidence

is available." (Emphasis added).

At page 161, the Court holds

:

"As I stated a while ago, the Commissioner has

discretion to use a method other than the bookkeep-

ing method regularly employed by the taxpayer

only when the method employed by the taxpayer

does not clearly reflect the true income. I have

heretofore ruled, and I adhere to that ruling, that

the burden is upon the Government to show, be-

fore resorting to another method, the inadequacy

of the books and records employed by the tax-

payer. The Government must also show that the

net worth method, the bank deposits method, or

whatever other method is adopted, does reasonably

reflect the income of the taxpayer. In meeting

that burden, the Government must introduce evi-

dence, other than its own computation, to discredit

. the books and records of the taxpayer, such as

proof of unrecorded transactions, or internal evi-

dence within the books themselves showing incom-

pleteness or inaccuracy." (Emphasis added.)

Appellant contends that the Riganto case, supra is

ound in its rationale. It is true that the Supreme

ZovLTi diluted the holding of Riganto somewhat in Hoi-
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land V. United States, supra, at page 131. However,

Holland did not reject the contention that, where there

was no evidence of the insufficiency or inaccuracy of

the books and records, as here, the use of the net worth

method would be improper. The Holland case stated

that the Government may go outside the books them-

selves to discredit the books.

All of the case law cited herein, and that anticipated

in the Government's reply to this brief, are consistent

with the theory propounded by appellant. The net

worth method may be resorted to by the Government in

order to establish the inaccuracy of the taxpayer's books

and records. The fact that the books and records are

consistent with the tax return does not, in and of it-

self, deprive the Government of the use of the net worth

method. The courts recite the above statement of law

in virtually all cases where the hooks and tax return are

consistent hut incorrect. The courts dwell upon the

veracity of the books and records, not the tax return.

Thus, even in the Holland case, the Court holds that

the net worth method may be used to demonstrate that

the hooks and records are inaccurate, and then holds

that the net worth method may be used to compute

the defendant's taxable income.

In this case we have the near-incredible fact situa-

tion in which the books and records have not been chal-

lenged, and in all probability are correct. The issue be-

fore the Court is whether the adequacy and accuracy

of the taxpayer's books and records may be acknowl-

edged by the investigating agent, thereby permitting

him to directly ascertain tax liability through the use of

circumstantial evidence, i.e. the net worth or the bank

deposit method. Appellant urges the Court to reject



—11—

that test, and hold that the Government must prove

the inaccuracy of taxpayer's books and records before

it may prove its substantive case through introduction

of circumstantial evidence.
1

(iii) Dual Purpose of Bank Deposits Method.

In the case of Schzvarzkopf v. Commissioner of In-

fernal Revenue (1957), 246 F. 2d 731, 733-734, the

Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit correctly inter-

preted the Holland case, supra, and established a two-

fold use of circumstantial evidence

:

"This quoted portion of the Holland case is recog-

nized by petitioner as sanctioning the use of the net

worth method to test the accuracy and complete-

ness of the books of account. Thus, the net worth

method serves two purposes: First, it may he used

to test the correctness of the hooks; secondly, it is

cogent evidence of the amount of income which

went unreported. The fact that the books on the

face appear to be adequate does not preclude the

use of the net worth method. Holland v. United

States, supra, 348 U.S. at pages 131-132, 75 S. Ct.

at page 133. In any event, the books involved here

contained items of net income with hospital ex-

penses already deducted. The disposal by the tax-

payer of bills evidencing these expenses made the

computation of their amount impossible, and thus

left vague and unreported some unknown amounts

of income. The taxpayer's practice of cashing

checks representing his patients' fees and receiving

the money in large denominations rather than de-

positing the checks themselves made it impossible

to test the accuracy of the books from that

source. If taxpayer's contention is correct, every-
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one could keep a set of apparently accurate books,

carefully destroy other evidences of the source and

amount of income, and defend by an alien rule that

the net worth method may not be used in those cir-

cumstances—and thus the government could be de-

frauded with impunity. However, it is when other

methods of disclosing income fail, that the net

worth computation becomes especially important

in the collection of revenue." (Emphasis added.)

The above quoted rule regarding- the dual purpose of

the net worth method, i.e., to test the taxpayer's books

and records, and secondly, to serve as evidence of unre-

ported income, was approved in Hoffman v. Commis-

sioner of Internal Revenue (3rd Cir. 1962), 298 F. 2d

784, 786. Appellant believes the above stated rule di-

rectly reflects the viewpoint of the Supreme Court as

expressed in the Holland case, supra. It is consistent

with the warnings found throughout Holland. The

philosophy expressed is that an apparently accurate

and consistent set of books and records shall not frus-

trate the Government's attempt to show that income has

been understated. The Government may use the net

worth method, or any other method constituting circum-

stantial evidence, first to disprove the accuracy of the

taxpayer's books and records. Once the books are

demonstrated to be inaccurate, said method of circum-

stantial evidence may be used to approximate the tax-

payer's taxable income.

The above stated rule has been expounded upon on

numerous occasions by the Tax Court. In Ruth N.

Bishop (1962), T.C. Memo 62-146, the Court stated:

"The right of respondent to resort to the net worth

method is not dependent upon finding first (and
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without regard to the implications of the net worth

computation) that petitioners' books and records

were not sufficient to properly reflect income. It is

quite possible that even though a taxpayer may

have a complete set of books and may employ a

method of accounting which is capable of ac-

curately reflecting the taxpayer's income, there may

be false or incorrect entries made on his books,

such as nonbusiness expenses, omission of cash

receipts, and the like. In Estate of W. D. Bartlett,

22 T.C. 1228 (1954), we held that where the tax-

payer presents a set of books and records which

appear to be superficially adequate, the so-called

net worth method may be resorted to and applied

as a technique for disclosing a substantial gap be-

tween actual income and reported income, and

thereby suggest untriistworthiness of the hooks as a

whole. See also Morris Lipsitz, 21 T.C. 917 (1954),

affd. 220 F. 2d 871 (C.A. 4, 1955), certiorari de-

nied 350 U.S. 845 (1955)." (Emphasis added.)

I In Estate of Joe Upright (1963), T.C. Memo 63-

p88, the Court stated

:

"In any event, it is well established that the net

worth method may be used even though a taxpayer

maintains a set of books; that such method

may be used to test the accuracy of the books and

the returns; and that when properly employed, such

method may show that the books are not trust-

worthy. (Citations)." (Emphasis added.)

A similar statement is found in Julius Godeny (1963),

|r.C. Memo 63-324

:

I
"Petitioner contends that he kept adequate books

I and records for the years here involved and that
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the respondent was not justified in computing un-

reported income for this period by using the net

worth method. Petitioner's contention is without

merit. Where a net worth computation shows in-

creases in net worth greater than that reported on

a taxpayer's return, or is not consistent with his

records, then the net worth computation is evidence

that there is unreported income and that the records,

though seemingly complete on the face, are ade-

quate, inaccurate or false." (Emphasis added.)

(iv) "Most Accurate Method" Test.

Appellant contends that, considering the dangers en-

countered in prosecuting taxpayers based upon circum-

stantial evidence, the investigating agent should be re-

quired to use that method for determining income which

will most accurately reflect, or, if necessary, reconstruct

the taxpayer's income. Appellant will demonstrate be-

low that all income was reflected in his books and rec-

ords, and that the Government agents, for reasons un-

known to appellant, chose to reconstruct his taxable in-

come by the use of the bank deposits method. It will

also be shown below that the use of this method has

not avoided all possibility of double inclusion of bank

deposits, and eliminated transfers between banks. Un-

der the circumstances of this case, it is clear that the

most accurate method for determining appellant's tax-

able income for the years in question is through the use

of the books and records maintained by appellant con-

temporaneous with his business transactions.
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In the case of Grace O. Dean (1955), T.C. Memo

55-217, the Court disapproved of the use of the bank

deposits methods, and noted

:

"It is true that petitioner's records were not main-

tained in an approved manner. They were appar-

ently incomplete and in the circumstances the re-

spondent in his determination was justified in

adopting some method which would as nearly as

possible correctly reveal petitioner's taxable in-

come, if any. The absence of complete recorded

entries^ hozvever, does not justify his ignoring the

obvious or excuse a failure to weigh and con-

sider objectively the information and data which is

supplied or otherimse available to him." (Em-

phasis added.)

In the case of W. L. Harris (1948), T. C. Memo
i

48-235, the Court concluded that the use of a varia-

tion of the bank deposits method was improper

:

"We deem it unnecessary to discuss at length each

year from 1919 to 1937, inclusive. During that

period (in 1925) the petitioner's records were

burned. He had records of the monthly income

from his practice thereafter and from October 17,

1928, he has maintained card records of his pa-

tients. He stated, 'I have a record of every pa-

tient I wait on, what I did and how much I col-

lected.' The agent was informed of the card sys-

tem and the petitioner offered to show him any

records at any time. The agent arbitrarily termed

these records 'inadequate' and declined to employ

them." (Emphasis added).
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In Blackwell v. United States (8th Cir. 1957), 244

F. 2d 423, 427, 428, the Court stated

:

"In our present case, as previously stated, the de-

fendant preserved only monthly totals of his cash

sales. The memoranda upon which the monthly to-

tals were based were not available for checking.

The investigation also disclosed that the total de-

posits exceeded the total receipts. It is true, as de-

fendant contends, that if his books were accurate

and complete they would reflect his entire income.

There is substantial evidence of an increase in de-

fendant's net worth during each of the years in-

volved in an amount considerably in excess of his

reported net income. Defendant's explanation of

this increase is the hoarded cash which he placed

in the business. If the Government has proven that

defendant did not have this hoarded cash, then the

only source for the increased net worth above the

reported income would be the defendant's furni-

ture business. The Court, several times in its in-

structions, advised the jury in effect that, if de-

fendant's records reflected substantially all trans-

actions of importance on the question of income,

such records are the best evidence, and in that

event the Government could not establish income

by the net worth method. The ezndence presented

a fact question for the jury on the adequacy and

truthfulness of defendant's records." (Emphasis

added.)
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Also worthy of note is the Court's statement in Mer-

rit V. Commissioner of Internal Revenue (5th Cir.

1962), 301 F. 2d 484, 486:

"The petitioner asserts that this case is not one

calling for the application of the net worth method

of determining income because adequate records

were kept. // the records of the taxpayer are in-

accurate or incomplete the Commissioner may look

to other information to determine whether the tax

payable has been correctly returned by a taxpayer.

(Citations). Although the petitioner engaged the

services of a bookkeeper in 1945, the entries in

the books were only of such items as were reported

by the petitioner to the bookkeeper. It was clearly

established that much vital information was with-

held by the petitioner from the bookkeeper. The

net worth method was properly invoked." (Em-

phasis added.)

In their extensive research, counsel for appellant have

been able to find but one case in which the taxpayer's

books and records were inconsistent with his income

tax return. In Moore v. United States (5th Cir. 1958).

554 F. 2d 213, the taxpayer claimed that his books and

records were in fact inaccurate, and that the net tax-

able income as shown on his income tax return was

in fact correct. The Government attempted to prove its

base by basing its understatement of income on the

lliscrepancy between the books and the tax return,

plaiming that the books reflected taxpayer's true in-

pme. They prepared a net worth statement as corrobo-

ration and as rebuttal to the defendant's argument that

pis books did not correctly reflect his taxable income,

fraudulent intent was demonstrated through the testi-
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mony of taxpayer's accountant, who related how tax-

payer arbitrarily instructed him to adjust the income

from his books in preparing his tax return, and his

direct admission to the accountant acknowledging that

he was falsifying his return. Contrast that method of

proof to the manner in which the Government presented

the case now before this Court.

B. Evidence as to Defendant's Books and Records.

The evidence outlined below will show the following

facts: The defendant's records were maintained by his

secretaries and by his nephew, Henry Oppenheim. The

secretaries maintained books in which they listed the

total amount of the recovery awarded for each client.

This record was maintained for the purpose of assur-

ing that each award was sent to the defendant, and

in effect constituted an accounts receivable journal.

Each girl also maintained a cash receipts book wherein

she listed the amount of money received, and the amount

still owed on account. Individual account cards were

kept for each client. They stated the amount to be re-

ceived, noted the subsequent costs incurred, and monies

collected. The testimony indicates that none of these

records were ever destroyed, that they were kept in the

ordinary course of business, served as the financial rec-

ords for the business, and that none of these records

were ever requested by the investigating agents.

The testimony describing the defendant's books and

records came from three employees. Magdelena Lewin

was employed by the defendant during the entire period

covered by the indictment [Tr. p. 64], as was Margot

Baerlein [Tr. p. 1801 and Henry Oppenheim [Tr. p.

4641. Mrs. Lewin testified as to the general business
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procedure for handling- the awards from Germany. In

many cases there was a corresponding attorney in Ger-

many. The defendant would write a letter to the German

i attorney, authorizing him to deduct his percent of the

I fee, and also directing him to place a 6% fee in a Ger-

man bank for Mr. Roy. The net amount would then be

1
transferred to the United States [Tr. p. 81.] The tenor

I, of the transcript indicates that it is the fund retained

in German banks for Dr. Roy which created the evi-

I
dence relied upon by the Court in determining fraudu-

I

lent intent. There were also payments of fees made di-

j

rectly to Dr. Roy in cases where there was no corre-

j

spending German attorney, or where the awards were

I

paid directly to the client. The transcript indicates that

j

these amounts were either reported on the appellant's

I tax return, or were disclosed to the revenue agent at

the inception of his initial meeting with the taxpayer.

The following is an analysis of how these transactions

were reflected in the appellant's books and records.

1. Book Detailing Awards. Appellant's secretaries

maintained books which in fact constituted an accounts

receivable journal. This book is described by Mrs. Lewin

on page 92 of the transcript. She states that a letter

would come from the compensation office notifying

Mr. Roy of the award. Mrs. Lewin states

:

"and then I wrote it down in a book for each

individual client, he would receive so-and-so much,

and that some fee for Mr. Roy was already de-

ducted. I put this also in this book."

In Transcript pages 93-95 Mrs. Lewin is questioned

as to letters from the corresponding attorneys wherein

said attorneys stated that they had deducted 12% of the

award, 6% for themselves and 6% for Mr. Roy, and
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were in the process of forwarding the net award. At

Transcript page 95, Mrs. Lewin was asked if she came

in contact with those letters to make further records

from them, and she responded

:

"Yes, I received the statement when somebody

received an amount because I had to put this in

a particular book."

In further describing the book [Tr. pp. 96, 97], Mrs.

Lewin stated that when the statement arrived as to

what a particular client would receive, she would enter

the name of the client, and the amount of the award.

She also states [Tr. p. 97] :

"And the amount, and when the fees were de-

ducted in Germany, I would write down so-and-so

much fees were deducted by the lawyer in Ger-

many, and that he—and that from this amount

Mr. Roy received so-and-so- much."

When the bank deposit slips arrived from the German

bank, the amount of the deposit would be checked

against the amount listed in the record of fees retained

in Germany. [Tr. pp. 98-99.]

Mrs. Lewin further described the award book on

cross-examination. Said book was identified as defend-

ant's Exhibit "B" for identification purposes and pre-

sented to Mrs. Lewin. She stated that the book was

mostly in her handwriting and that

:

"This book means that when a client receives funds

from Germany—T mean when Mr. Roy received

notice that the client will receive funds, then I

enter the name of—the date of the letter and the

name of the client, and the amount which the client

will receive." [Tr. pp. 163, 164.]
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On page 166, in response to the question, "Well, may

I suggest that one of the purposes of Exhibit 'B'

was to keep a control over awards awarded but not yet

paid?", the witness's response was, "That is true."

The award book was a log or an inventory of what was

outstanding but not yet received.

2. Cash Receipts Book. At pages 161-163 of the

Transcript, Mrs. Lewin described the cash receipts

book

:

"Each girl had her book in which they entered

the fees which were received on the particular day."

Defendant's Exhibit "A" for identification was one

such book. The cash receipts were then transcribed to

individual client's accounts.

Mr. Oppenheim further amplified the use of the

cash receipts book

:

"Well, my duties were to see each girl kept their

own record book, you know, the books that they

transact during the day, in the work that they

have done. And it was my duty to transpose those

items in these cards that we have here." [Tr. p.

465.]

He then identified defendant's Exhibit "A" for iden-

tification as the girl's book that he had referred to.

3. Account Client Cards. Mrs. Lewin indicates that

each individual client had a client file, and an open ac-

count card. As checks came into the office there was

an attachment stating which client the check pertained

to. A girl in the office would pull the account card and

i file for that client, and take them to Mrs. Lewin. Mrs.

Lewin then took the account card into Mr. Rov. The
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file indicated what the agreed fee was and the account

card listed the receipt of the award and the expenses

pertaining to the client. Mr. Roy then indicated what

sum should be mailed to the client. [Tr. pp. 102. 103.]

The checks received from Germany would be deposited

in a trustee account at Security Bank or Bank of Amer-

ica. [Tr. p. 104.] Mrs. Lewin later states on cross-

examination, that the cash receipts figures from the

cash receipts book were transcribed to each client's open

account. [Tr. pp. 161, 162.] She identified defendant's

Exhibit "C" for identification as such an account card.

As each check was received, it was entered on the

account card. [Tr. p. 165.] The account cards were

kept in Mr. Roy's offices, and accessible to everyone

in the office. [Tr. p. 167.]

Mrs. Baerlein testified that the account cards were

maintained for each and every client, that she could not

recall any instances in which a card was not made out

for a client, or of any instances where cards were de-

stroyed. [Tr. pp. 202-204.]

Mr. Oppenheim testified that he would transcribe the

information from the cash receipts books to the ac-

count cards

:

"Manually I would put down the date that the

person really was in the office, the customer, and

I'd put down the amount that was written, you

know, the amount, the letter, and so forth, the

amount and the new balance. That is all the trans-

actions I did." [Tr. p. 466.]

Mr. Oppenheim also testified that to his knowledge,

no account cards were ever destroyed or missing. [Tr.

p. 467.]
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C. Agent's Investigation of Available

Books and Records.

It is clear from the Bill of Particulars, plaintiff's

Exhibit 69, and the general tenor of the transcript that

the Government has used the bank deposit method for

reconstructing income. Special Agent James P. Donley

testified to that effect. [Tr. pp. 343, 344.] Appellant

has described above the books and records which con-

tain all of his gross receipts, both those reported on the

tax return, and those which were omitted. What use did

the investigating agents make of those records, and

to what extent did they use them to establish unreported

income ?

In reviewing the testimony of Agent Donley, it is

clearly demonstrated that the only records that were

ever requested by the Government were those from

which the agents would be able to reconstruct the

figures shown on the income tax return. [See for ex-

ample Tr. p. 279.] Counsel has been unable to find

}

one statement in the entire transcript in which the in-

i

vestigating agents state that they asked for all records

I

which would show the total amount of awards, receipt

!
of all fees, both within the United States and abroad.

!
or any other record from which to compute the de-

. fendant's actual income. The intent of the audit as ex-

pressed to the defendant by Agent Donley was a de-

! sire to reconstruct the income as shown on the tax

I

return, rather than attempting to ascertain the total

I

amount of awards received by the defendant's clients.

!
and the fees received from those awards. It is ap-

1 parent that the investigating agents were aware of

the fact that there was technically unreported income

(this fact was made known to Agent Breese at the in-
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ception of his initial interview with the defendant [Tr.

pp. 210, 211]), and were attempting to reconstruct

which specific items of receipts were unreported so as to

ascertain fraudulent intent. [Tr. p. 276.] The agents

never asked for the records which would disclose tax-

payer's true income, and never attempted to determine

the existence of same.

Revenue Agent Charles Breese stated that he was

given a tour of Mr. Roy's office, and that he viewed

numerous files and file cabinets. [Tr. p. 214.] At the

same time, he was given the cash receipts book and

made a few preliminary notes of some of the figures

contained therein. Mr. Breese stated that he saw the

filing cabinets, but did not ask to review their contents

or inquire into same at any time. He also stated that

he was familiar with the client's account cards. [Tr. p.

218.] Consider the following testimony from Tran-

script pages 227-230:

"Q. Mr. Breese, you said you were familiar

with Defendant's Exhibit "C" for identification,

which is that client's card. A. Yes, I have seen

that before.

Q. Did you ask for the client's cards? A.

Never.

Q. Were you ever refused the client's cards?

A. Never. I never asked.

* * * *

Q. First of all, if you were present when Mrs.

Lewin and Mrs. Baerlein were previously inter-

viewed by the Internal Revenue .Service. You in-

dicated yes ? A. I was.

Q. At that time, during the course of the in-

terviews, were you aware of the existence of the
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cards reflected and similar to Defendant's Exhibit

C for identification? A. Yes, they had told us

of such cards

—

Q. And did they discuss with you and Mr.

Donley, or with Mr. Phoebus—either one—the use

of those cards and what entries were made on

them? A. Yes, they told us that.

Q. Are you mindful of the fact, Mr. Breese,

that the clients' cards, much like a patient's card,

dentist's card or doctor's card, contained the fi-

nancial history or the relationship—financial rela-

tionship between Dr. Roy and the individual client?

A. Well, I don't know what his relationship was,

but I do know what the cards contained from

only what the girls had told us.

Q. But you did not ask for those cards? A.

I did not.

Q. So you do not know, or is it correct to

state, Mr. Breese, that you do not know whether

or not Mr. Roy's records are or are not adequate?

A. I do not know."

(The preceding question is amplified so that the

question indicates whether the books and records

were adequate for the determination of income).

"Q. Is that correct, Mr. Breese ? A. Well, the

records that he had furnished to us were not ade-

quate.

Q. Did you ask him for these cards? A. Not

for these cards.

Q. You knew the meaning of these cards after

being a participant at the interview of the wit-

nesses ? A. Yes.

Q, Mrs. Baerlein and Mrs. Lewin? A. Yes."



—26—

Mr. Donley also testified that he had never asked for

the client account cards of the defendant. Mrs. Lewin

and Mrs. Baerlein had informed him of the fact that

they kept open accounts on each client. [Tr. p. 350.]

The testimony produced at trial, and enumerated

above, clearly indicates that the defendant had books

and records from which his true taxable income could

have been ascertained. The investigating agents never

sought to make use of the available records. They at-

tempted to prove through the use of circumstantial evi-

dence that income had been omitted and that such in-

come had been omitted with fraudulent intent. It is

true that the record does not disclose the defendant's

attempt to force the records which would truly reflect

his income upon the investigating agents, and their sub-

sequent refusal to accept such records. Is any taxpayer

so obligated? At the inception of the audit the defend-

ant disclosed income omitted from his tax return. After

undergoing a brief period of interrogation, he was next

confronted by two agents who immediately stated that

they were investigating "fraudulent intent" and then

asked for records detailing his bank deposits. He pro-

duced those records in a sporadic manner. Mr. Roy then

attempted to trace the deposits by indicating the source

and character of each deposit. It appears that the in-

vestigating agents had predetermined their method of

investigation, and immediately set about to develop a

bank deposit case. It is neither logical nor sound as a

matter of policy to require the defendant in a potential

criminal case not only to comply with the requests of

the investigating agents, but also to force upon them

the records which he feels may be more pertinent.
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D. Dangers of Bank Deposits Method.

The most obvious dangers arising through the use of

the bank deposits method as circumstantial evidence to

prove omitted income are the possibiHties that inter-

bank transfers will be ignored, and that bank deposits

which are not items of taxable income will be so in-

cluded. Consider the thoroughness of the investigation

in this case. [Agent Donley, Tr. p. 344] :

"Q. Could you tell us with respect to the, to

your investigative work, and with respect particu-

larly to your own knowledge, whether deposits

made in any bank bearing Dr. Roy's name, other

than in Los Angeles, was not in fact picked up in

deposits in Los Angeles bank accounts ?

The Court: Do you understand the question?

The Witness : Yes, sir, I do, I personally could

not as—as to the composition of funds going in

this account I do know where they came from.

I can trace them. But going beyond this account

I don't know."

Mr. Hochman:
''Q. So you don't know one way or the other?

A. That is correct."

The testimony of Agent Breese also reflects upon

the thoroughness of the investigation [Tr. p. 226] :

"Q. Can you tell us as to whether, in terms

of your knowledge and your audit, do you know

or do you not know whether or not the money that

other witnesses and exhibits have talked about

with respect to the Berliner Disconto account, are

or are not reflected in deposits to accounts here in

the name of Henry Roy, in personal capacity or

in his trustee capacity? A. I can't state that.

Q. In other words, you can't state it either

way ? A. I cannot, that is correct."
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The above testimony is particularly enlightening in

view of the fact that the defendant apparently made

statements to the investigating agents which they, and

the Court, considered to be untrue with respect to the

Berlin bank accounts. However, the Government has

not proved that the Berlin bank accounts represent fees

which were not subsequently deposited in bank accounts

in the city of Los Angeles, and thereafter reflected in

the cash receipts, or disclosed to Agent Breese as omit-

ted income at the inception of the audit. MM
The transcript discloses that the defendant spent

months tracing deposits [Tr. pp. 302-303], attempting

to ascertain their source and character at the agents

request. The correct figures of income were available

within his books and business records and the above

work was not only inaccurate, but unnecessary. The

Court can well note the strain accompanying an Inter-

nal Revenue investigation, particularly when the tax-

payer has acknowledged and previously disclosed gross

receipts which are not reflected on his tax return. If

the investigation had proceeded properly, the agents

would have asked for all books and records which re-

flect items of receipt, whether considered taxable or tax-

free by defendant, rather than request records from

which to reconstruct those figures actually reported on

the tax return. If the agents had requested and re-

ceived those records, there would have been undisputed

records disclosing the fees received. The bank deposits

are in fact irrelevant for the purpose of ascertaining

income in this case, and the taxpayer would have been

relieved from the onerous task of disclosing bank ac-

counts and analyzing the receipts therein during a three

year audit. The taxpayer at all times contended that
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only a portion of the bank account deposits constituted

taxable income, and a proper investigation would have

concerned itself with fees received, rather than with

taxable vs. non-taxable bank deposits. It is suggested

that the information requested by the agents and hesi-

tantly supplied by the defendant was irrelevant, and

that misstatements of fact or opinion would not have

been forthcoming were the taxpayer not required to un-

dergo the stress of supplying unnecessary information.

II.

WILLFULNESS.

The appellant contends that there is insufficient evi-

dence to sustain a finding of willfulness within the

meaning of Section 7201 of the Internal Revenue Code

of 1954, 26 U.S.C. 7201. A finding of willfulness is

one of the required elements of the crime charged in

the indictment. In the context of the statute, that term

means bad purpose, evil motive and an act done with

the specific intent to accomplish that which the law

forbids. Umtcd States v. Murdock (1933), 290 U.S.

389, 394, 395, 54 S. Ct. 223.

Appellants' contention is based on the fact that the

record of this case discloses a complete lack of evi-

dence of willfulness such as was indicated in the case

of Spies V. United States (1943), 317 U.S. 492, 499,

63 S. Ct. 364, 368. In the Spies case, supra, the Su-

preme Court of the United States, in effect, stated

that it considered evidence of willfulness to be

:

".
. . conduct such as keeping a double set of

books, making false entries or alterations, or false

invoices or documents, destruction of books or rec-

ords, concealment of assets or covering up sources
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of income, handling of one's affairs to avoid mak-

ing the records usual in transactions of the kind,

and any conduct, the likely effect of which would

be to mislead or to conceal. . .
."

Although the above examples were ".
. . By way

of illustration and not by way of limitation . . .,"

there is not present in this case any such conduct.

There was only d) set of books present in this case,

a set which the Internal Revenue Agents chose to ig-

nore. There were no false entries on the said records

or alterations thereof. There were not "false invoices

or documents" nor was there any "destruction of books

or records." Indeed the taxpayer presented all his rec-

ords dating back to year one—in this case 1949. [Tr.

p. 467.]

The appellee has attempted to argue in the Court be-

low that the appellant had "concealed his assets or cov-

ered up sources of his income", i.e. the so-called "Berlin

bank accounts", claiming that these accounts were not

disclosed to the Internal Revenue Service. This argu-

ment is irrelevant in the present case by reason of the

fact that the Internal Revenue Service was computing

taxable income by means of the bank deposits method of

computing taxable income. [Tr. pp. 343, 344.] This

being the case, it was incumbent upon the appellee to

prove that the funds in these Berlin bank accounts

were not also included in the American bank accounts,

and thereby not reported as income. This the appellee

could not do and such fact was admitted by Special

Agent James Donley on cross-examination. [Tr. p.

344.]

It is difficult to see how the failure to supply the

detailed records on the Berlin bank accounts can be
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viewed as indicating intent to defraud, when consider-

ing the Government's position that the Berlin bank

accounts were not reported on the tax return, and the

expressed purpose of the audit was to "reconstruct the

tax returns."

Note that in the testimony of Mr. Breese, there is

no statement as to a request for any records. He does

state that near the conclusion of his first interview

Mr. Roy made available to him his cash receipts book,

and Mr. Breese took a few notes from that book re-

flecting items of unreported income. [Tr. pp. 214,

215.] Special Agent Donley requested the records in

the following manner [Tr. p. 279] :

'T had explained to Dr. Roy that what we would

like to do would be to reconstruct his income as

filed on the returns, and in connection with that

he gave me his—it was a summary of cash re-

ceipts which—not cash receipts exactly, it was a

summary of receipts that had been deposited into

his personal business account. He also gave me

—

this is for '56 through '60. He also gave me copies

of the cash disbursements records, or check regis-

ters of '56 through '60.

On cross examination he describes his request as fol-

lows [Tr. p. 352] :

"When I first interviewed Dr. Roy I told him

that I would need records, the same records that

he used to prepare his returns. And at that time

that is when he gave me his cash deposits book,

the total of which agreed with the amounts re-

ported on the '56 return."

Agent Donley also stated that Dr. Roy had said,

"That from the records that we had that we could re-
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construct the returns just exactly like the one he had

given us." [Tr. p. 281.] This statement is true in all

respects. It follows the agent's request for books and

records from which to reconstruct the income tax return.

The three investigating agents failed to state during

the trial that they had ever requested records reflecting

all receipts from fees, or all receipts of any nature, or

all items of taxable and non-taxable income, or any

similar request.

The investigating agents were put on notice as to the

nature of Mr. Roy's income at the beginning of the

audit. At Transcript pages 210, 211, Revenue Agent

Breese states that Mr. Roy told him that he had un-

reported income at the inception of his initial interview.

He also stated that he had previously reported items b

similar in nature to that omitted on the tax returns

under audit. Mr. Roy said that he collected as his fee a

percent of the awards, i.e., indicated that there was a

contingent fee arrangement. Mrs. Lewin describes how

Mr. Roy claimed only a percentage of his expenses on

his Federal income tax return. [Tr. pp. 130-134.] Agent

Phoebus stated that Dr. Roy told him that German at-

torneys retained a portion of the fee. [Tr. p. 259.]

The above statements, along with taxpayer's books and

records, clearly advised the investigating agents at the

beginning of the investigation as to the sources and

nature of all of Mr. Roy's income.

There are indications in the transcript that the de-

fendant made false statements concerning the Berlin

bank accounts. These statements were made approxi-

mately two and one-half years after the investigation

began. It is significant to note the circumstances lead-

ing up to these false statements.
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During Mr. Donley's first visit with Mr. Roy, he

testified that

:

"I explained to Dr. Roy that I was taking Spe-

cial Agent Phoebus' place in the investigation,

that I was primarily concerned zvith zvhether or not

there was a criminal intent with regard to the

unreported income that he told Mr. Breese about."

[Tr. p. 276.]

Prior to that meeting Mr. Roy had described the na-

ture of his business and disclosed that he had substan-

tial unreported income. The investigating agents then

proceeded to put Mr. Roy to work in reconciling the

bank deposits to his trustee and personal accounts, re-

quiring that he indicate the character of each deposit,

and admit the taxability thereof. [Tr. pp. 221-225.]

This reconciliation was subsequently used during the

jtrial for establishing an understatement of income and

|to establish willfulness. However, the reconciliation was

for the purpose of reconciling the defendant's tax re-

jturn, rather than ascertaining his tax liability. It is

[apparent that the longer the investigation proceeded,

jthe more futile and ineffectual were the agent's ef-

iforts, and the more discouraged and scared became Mr.

iRoy.

i It is also significant to note that the defendant clear-

fly and honestly believed that the funds received from

the awards were held initially in a trust capacity [Tr.

Ipp. 81, 104], that refunds were made to clients from

[these accounts [Tr. p. 125], and that the bank ac-

counts in Germany were attached pursuant to German

[court proceedings on September 3, 1963. [Tr. pp. 405-

|411.]
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The Government cannot prove the essential element

of willfulness by the introduction of evidence leading

to speculation of fraudulent intent, but must prove this

element of the crime beyond a reasonable doubt. Appel-

lant submits that the Government has not met its burden

of proof.

III.

CONCLUSION.

This case has great importance! It affords this Hon-

orable Court the opportunity to delineate the guidelines

for tax investigations of a criminal nature when they

deal with "adequate" and "accurate" books and records.

The Holland decision permits the Government to pro-

ceed on alternate methods of computing taxable income,

i.e., net worth and bank deposits, because though books

and records exist, ".
. . many items of income had dis-

appeared before they had even reached the recording

stage . .
." and, because the books were ".

. . more

consistent than truthful."

This is appropriate in its own context. However,

where the books and records are adequate and accurate

we suggest that alternate methods are not employable.

In the case at bar the defendant, rightly or wrongly,

made an allocation between non-taxable and taxable re-

ceipts. Other than in 1960, this was not done on the

face of the return. However, expenses were similarly al-

located, i.e., between deductible and non-deductible

—

following the same ratio of taxable and non-taxable re-

ceipts, and this was revealed within the four corners
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of the income tax returns. More important, the defend-

ant voluntarily revealed his treatment and allocation to

the revenue agent at the very outset of the audit and

investigation.

In this frame of reference, should the Government

be permitted to ignore the books and records and con-

duct a lengthy and unusual (to a taxpayer with ade-

quate and accurate records") audit and investigation.

and further be permitted to use alternate methods

fraught with their own dangers?

From the viewpoint of the taxpayer it borders on the

incredible for the Government to pursue an investiga-

tion that virtually ignores the fountainhead and source

of information, namely, the underlying records. This in-

direct method must breed distrust and creates a charged

atmosphere in which cooperation will collapse. Had this

audit been properly handled the taxpayer-defendant could

not have made damaging admissions which admissions

were generated in a hostile environment.

The taxpayer paid salaries to many employees for

the principal purpose of having records and data for

his own clients, but for the secondary purpose of hav-

ing a set of books to be audited. To this day no such

audit has been conducted by the Government. Unless

and until the agents or other professional witnesses of

the Government can testify that the records are in-

adequate and inaccurate, the bank deposit method should

not be allowable. The Holland case approves of the boot-

strap approach, to wit : allowing the use of a circum-



—36— II

stantial method to prove its need. However, inherent

in that opinion is the underlying assumption that the

taxpayer's books and records were unavailable (Fifth

Amendment umbrage) or were not truthful. In this

regard it was assumed by the Holland Court that the

agents audited what records were available. Nothing

detracts from the obligation of the agents to audit

records maintained in the normal course of business.

There is no bootstrap operation in this case; there is

rather a unilateral determination to use the bank de-

posit method notwithstanding the veracity and integrity

of the books and records. In order to avoid paying

more than lip service to the fears of the use of cir-

cumstantial evidence in a criminal tax case, this Court

should clearly reaffirm the proposition that the Govern-

ment must audit what is available before proceeding to

alternate theories.

The use of circumstantial evidence should be a sec-

ondary approach rather than a primary audit technique.

Picture, if you will, the posture of the present case

were this done

:

1. The evidence would show the books were accu-

rate and adequate.

2. There would be a difference between taxable

gross receipts and gross receipts per return.

3. This difference was explained by the taxpayer

in terms of an erroneously believed legal inter-

pretation.

4. The treatment of deductions followed the tax-

payer's treatment of income.
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In this context the discussions with the taxpayer

are minimal, if any, and the Government would be

I hard pressed to even establish civil fraud. The whole

,
area of intent zvoidd remain limited to belief at the

j
time the return was filed, rather than being extrapo-

I

lated from post-return discussions unnecessarily gener-

\
ated by the indirect approach.

I The bank deposit method is no substitute for pri-

• mary auditing. Taxpayers should be protected from

i lengthy harassment, however inadvertent, necessitated

every time indirect methods are employed.

Respectfully submitted,

HOCHMAN & SaLKIN,

Attorneys for Appellant.
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NO. 2 1081

IN THE UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

HENRY ROY,

Appellant,

vs.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Appellee.

APPELLEE'S BRIEF

I

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

The appellant, Henry Roy, was indicted by the Federal

Grand Jury for the Central Division of the Southern District of

California on April 7, 1965. The indictment was brought under

26 U. S. C. , Section 7201, and charged that the appellant willfully

attempted to evade and defeat a substantial part of his Federal

income tax liability for the calendar years 1958, 1959, and 1960.

The indictment charged that appellant understated his taxable

income by $81,887. 60, $113,861.07, and $158, 535. 21 for the

respective years. The indictment charged that appellant's under-

statement of his taxable income resulted in an additional Federal





income tax liability for the three years in the amount of $52, 206. 39,

$77, 182. 73 and $115,497. 70.

On April 26, 1965 appellant pleaded not guilty to all three

counts. The case proceeded to trial before the Honorable Charles

H. Carr on March 15, 1966, and was concluded on March 17, 1966.

The Court found appellant guilty of all three counts of the indict-

ment [C.T. 27]. 1/

The appellant timely moved for a new trial, or in the

alternative for a judgment of acqjittal [C.T. 8}. Both motions were

denied by the Court. On May 2, 1966, the appellant was sentenced

to serve a period of six months in custody and to pay a fine of

$30,000. 00 [R. T. 652]. ll

Appellant's Notice of Appeal was timely filed [C T. 27-28].

The jurisdiction of the District Court was based upon Title

26, United States Code, Section 7201, Title 18, United States Code,

Section 3231 and Rule 18 of the Federal Rules of Crinainal Pro-

cedure. This Court has jurisdiction to review the judgment of the

District Court pursuant to Title 28, United States Code, Sections

1291 and 1294 and Rule 37(a) of the Federal Rules of Criminal

Procedure.

l_l "C. T. " refers to Clerk's Transcript of Record.

2/ "R. T. " refers to Reporter's Transcript of Record.





II

STATUTE INVOLVED

The indictment was brought under 26 U. S. C , Section 7201

which provides in pertinent part as follows:

"Any person who wilfully attempts in any manner

to evade or defeat any tax imposed by this title or the

payment thereof shall, in addition to other penalties

provided by law, be guilty of a felony and, upon con-

viction thereof, shall be fined not more than $10, 000

or imprisoned not more than five years, or both,

together with the cost of prosecution. "

III

QUESTIONS PRESENTED

A. Are there any conditions precedent to the Govern-

ment's utilization of the bank deposits methods of computing a

taxpayer's taxable income?

B. Was there sufficient evidence of wilfulness to

sustain appellant's conviction under Title 26, United States Code,

Section 7201 ?





IV

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Appellant Henry Roy, an accountant and a former German

attorney, began filing compensation and restitution claims for

ex-German nationals in 1949 [Ex. 75, p. 7; R. T. 67]. Appellant

filed claims under the German Indemnification Law on behalf of

people who had been deprived of their professions, homes and

property by the Nazi government.

Clients came to appellant's office in Los Angeles and

generally signed a Power of Attorney permitting appellant to

receive the award for the claimant [R. T. 78]. As his fee for filing

these claims appellant received ten per cent to fifteen per cent of

the amount awarded to the claimant. Appellant received the awards

either directly from the compensation office in Germany or from a

corresponding German attorney [R. T. 80]. If a corresponding

attorney was needed to process a more difficult claim, this

corresponding attorney received 50% of Roy's usual fee [R. T. 69].

After appellant received notice of an award he would write

a letter to the compensation office stating that the particular

amount should be transferred to an account in Berlin, or another

European city [R. T. 81].

Appellant maintained two bank accounts in Berlin where

fees were deposited, the Berliner Bank and the Berliner Disconto

[R. T. 88]. The compensation awards were also deposited into a

trustee account in Los Angeles. After the awards were deposited





into the Los Angeles trustee account, appellant would write a check

to the claimants for the amount of the award less his fee [R. T. 108]

Approximately 98% of the awards forwarded from Germany were

deposited into appellant's trustee account at the Security-First

National Bank [R. T. 187]. After the client received his award and

the amount in the trustee account reached $1, 000, appellant had

this amount transferred to his personal accountant account at the

Security-First National Bank.

Between the years 1950 and 1956 appellant reported the

fees earned from German compensation claims on his Federal

Income Tax Returns as taxable income [R. T. 211], however,

appellant's income tax returns for the years 1958, 1959 and 1960

failed to include these connpensation fees.

Commencing in 1957 and continuing through 1960, appellant

claimed only 30% of his total business expenses. Appellant stated

to his secretary, Mrs. Lewin, that he would claim some of his

business expenses in his German tax returns [R. T. 130, 134].

During the three years in question, 1958, 1959 and 1960, appellant

never filed an income tax return in Germany or in any other

country except the United States [Ex. 75, p. 23]. 1' Had appellant

claimed all of his justifiable business expenses for the years in

question, he would have shown an operating loss for each of the

years based on the income that he reported.

Appellant was first contacted by Internal Revenue Agent

3/ Refers to Exhibit 75, admitted into evidence.





Breese on April 29, 1960 [R. T. 208]. At that time appellant stated

that he had income that he had not reported. Appellant listed

various reasons why he did not include this unreported income on

his Federal Income Tax Returns. The following are some of the

reasons listed [R. T. 212]:

1. Appellant believed that the German Government

might tax this money.

2. Appellant believed that he was practicing law

illegally in the State of California, and if this word got back to his

clients he could be sued for the return of the fees he had earned.

3. Appellant stated that he planned to file an income

tax return at a later date with the German Government.

4. Appellant stated that he would report all of these

fees in 1962 when his claims business ternninated.

Appellant also stated that he felt that these awards were

his own compensation and restitution for the wrong that had been

done to him by the German Government. At a later date, appellant

was asked why he had paid income tax on the fees which he had

received for the years 1950 - 1956 if he felt it was non-taxable as

restitution or compensation to him or why he at least did not file

for a refund. Appellant replied that he did not do so because it

was such a small matter [Ex. 75, p. 58].

During Revenue Agent Breese 's first interview with appel-

lant, Mr. Roy made available his cash receipts book which recorded

among other things fees received from German compensation

awards [R. T. 213]. During the course of several interviews with





the agents, appellant supplied them with deposit tickets, bank

ledger sheets and a check disbursement ledger [R. T. 227].

On July 26, 1960, subsequent to his first interview with

Revenue Agent Breese, appellant, through his attorney Edythe

Jacobs, furnished the Internal Revenue Service with listings of his

alleged total percentage fee receipts for the years 1957 through

1959 [Ex. 73]. At that time appellant claimed, however, that these

fees were excludable from income for these past years. These

listings, however, included only those percentage fees which had

been paid by clients directly to appellant and those fees which had

gone through one of appellant's trustee accounts in Los Angeles,

and then into his public accountant accounts at the Security-First

National Bank. There was no disclosure made in any of the listings

of the existence of appellant's personal bank accounts at the

Berliner Bank or at the Berliner Disconto Bank. Furthermore,

no disclosure was made of the fact that thousands of dollars of

percentage fees had been deposited into these accounts for appel-

lant's benefit for the years in question by his German correspondent

attorneys.

Special Agent James Donley first interviewed appellant on

January 10, 1961 [R. T. 275]. At that time Agent Donley advised

appellant that a criminal investigation was being undertaken and

that appellant need not turn over any records or make any state-

ments if he did not desire to do so. Appellant was also told that he

could have an attorney present if he so desired [R. T. 277]. At this

time appellant stated that one of his reasons for failing to report





the fees earned from the German compensation awards on his

Federal Income Tax Returns was because some of these fees had

to be refunded. Appellant stated that he had had to refund between

10% and 15% of the fees which he had earned by reason of the fact

that the German Government had countermanded some of his

client's claims [R.T. 278]. Agent Donley asked appellant if he

would give the Agents a list of the countermanded claims or a list

of the people whose claims had to be refunded. However, appellant

never gave the agents a list of the fees that were countermanded

by the German Government. During a subsequent examination of

appellant's bank deposit records, Agent Donley was never able to

find any indication that 10% to 15% of appellant's fees had been

countermanded by the German Government [R. T. 330].

During this first interview with appellant, Agent Donley

received from Mr. Roy a summary of cash receipts that had been

deposited into appellant's personal business account at the Security-

First National Bank. Appellant also gave Agent Donley copies of

the cash disbursement records of 1956 through 1960. Appellant

also turned over to Agent Donley some deposit tickets to appellant's

personal accountant account [R. T. 279, 280]. Later that same

afternoon. Agent Donley telephoned appellant and asked him if he

used any work sheets in the preparation of his income tax returns.

Appellant stated that he used no work sheets to prepare his income

tax returns but that his returns were based upon his cash disburse-

ment records or check records. Appellant further stated that from

the records supplied to the agents they could re-construct the





returns exactly in the fashion that appellant had done so [R. T. 280,

281].

During this first interview between Agent Donley and the

appellant, Agent Donley asked appellant whether he had any other

personal accounts other than the account at the Security-First

National Bank. Appellant responded that he had no other personal

accounts whatsoever [R. T. 283]. On December 7, 1962, appellant

accompanied by his attorney, Edythe Jacobs, appeared in the

office of the Intelligence Division of the Internal Revenue Service.

At that time appellant was asked whether he had any bank accounts

whatsoever other than the two trustee accounts at the Bank of

America and at the Security Bank in Los Angeles and his personal

account at Von Der Heydt Kersten Sohne in Germany. Appellant

responded that he had no other bank accounts whatsoever [Ex. 75,

p. 32].

Appellant was asked by Agent Donley whether in connection

with his claims processing business appellant used any correspond-

ing attorneys or intermediaries in Germany. Appellant stated that

he used none whatsoever [R. T. 298].

During the course of the investigation the agents prepared

schedules of the deposits made to appellant's personal accountant

accounts for the years 1956 through 1959. Appellant personally

identified the sources of each deposit. Appellant supplied the

agents with a sheet called a "Legenda" in which appellant identified

the sources of the items deposited [R. T. 303, Ex. 46].

Appellant stated to Agent Donley that he had prepared his





income tax returns from the deposits that had been made to his

personal accountant account at the Security-First National Bank.

Appellant further stated that the totals that were shown on the

spreads prepared by the Agents and which he had specifically

identified totalled more than he had reported as taxable income on

his tax returns. Appellant stated that the items shown on the

spread prepared by the Agents were correct [R. T. 306].

On July 14, 1961, subsequent to appellant's first interview

with Revenue Agent Breese, appellant filed his joint tax return

with the Internal Revenue Service and as an attachment thereto

appellant listed his alleged total percentage fee receipts for the

year 1960 claiming such fees to be excludable from income.

Appellant, however, included only those percentage fees which had

been paid directly by clients to appellant and those fees which had

gone through one of appellant's trustee accounts in Los Angeles,

California. There was no disclosure whatsoever of the existence

of appellant's personal bank accounts at the Berliner Bank or at

the Berliner Disconto Bank, nor was there disclosure of the fact

that thousands of dollars of percentage fees had been deposited

into those accounts for appellant's benefit by his German corres-

ponding attorneys in the year 1960.

On August 26, 1963, Agent Donley again interviewed

appellant. At this time Agent Donley presented a photostatic copy

of two bank accounts, one from the Berliner Bank and the other

from the Berliner Disconto Bank, both in Berlin, Germany. At

this time, appellant, after some hesitation, admitted that they





were in fact his accounts. Agent Donley asked appellant what

items were deposited into these two German bank accounts. At

first appellant stated that they were fees from a number of different

special transactions. Agent Donley asked appellant to describe

the kinds of transactions involved and finally appellant stated that

they were fees [R. T. 312, 314]. Agent Donley asked appellant why

he had never told the Agents about these foreign bank accounts

when he had been asked about them before. Appellant stated that

at the time he had been asked about them before there was a

seizure placed upon these accounts by the German Government.

Appellant further stated that the seizure took place in March or

April of 1963. Appellant was first asked what bank accounts he

had as early as Agent Donley's first intereview on January 10,

1961 and again on December 7, 1962.

At the time that Agent Donley presented the photostatic

copies of the two Berlin bank accounts to appellant, Internal

Revenue Agent Breese pointed out a notation appearing in the upper

right hand corner of the account and asked appellant if he would

translate it for the Agents. Appellant stated that the notation said

"To be held for the benefit of Dr. Roy" [R. T. 313]. Agent Donley

then asked appellant whether the notation was Dr. Roy's instruction

to the bank to transfer certain funds out of those banks to bank

accounts in Switzerland. Dr. Roy stated that was true [R. T. 314].





V

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

A. THE APPELLEE DID NOT ERR IN ITS USE OF

THE BANK DEPOSIT METHOD OF COMPUTING APPELLANT'S

TAXABLE INCOME.

1. Appellant Is Estopped From Challenging The

Method By Which The Government Determined The Accuracy

Of His Unreported Taxable Income Due To His Stipulation

That He Had Received Unreported Receipts Equal To The

Amounts Alleged In The Indictment.

2. There Are No Conditions Precedent To The

Utilization Of Alternative Methods Of Computing Taxable

Income.

3. The Appellee's Computations Of Appellant's

Taxable Income Were Based On Adequate Books And

Records.

B. THERE WAS SUFFICIENT EVIDENCE OF

WILFULNESS TO SUSTAIN APPELLANT'S CONVICTION.
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VI

ARGUMENT

THE APPELLEE DID NOT ERR IN ITS
USE OF THE BANK DEPOSIT METHOD
OF COMPUTING APPELLANT'S TAX-
ABLE INCOME.

Appellant Is Estopped From
Challenging The Method By
Which The Government Deter-
mined The Accuracy Of His
Unreported Taxable Income
Due To His Stipulation That
He Had Received Unreported
Receipts Equal To The Amounts
Alleged In The Indictment.

Prior to trial appellant stipulated to the correctness of the

amounts alleged in the indictment. Stipulations Numbers 3, 4 and

5, as found on page 2 of the "First Stipulation of Facts and Exhibit

Register", filed with the District Court on March 14, 1966, stated

as follows:

"3. That all of the exhibits listed herein, which

purport to be photocopies of original records of the

defendant, of the several banks where he held personal

accounts or trustee accounts, records of stock brokerage

accounts in the name of the defendant and his wife, or of

Federal income tax returns as filed by the defendant naay

be received in evidence, without further proof of foundation,

genuineness, or authenticity, in lieu of the original docu-

ments of which they purport to be copies; and that such
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exhibits shall be deemed to be proof of the matter asserted

therein.

"4. That each of the schedules listed herein and

designated as having been prepared by Internal Revenue

Agents, containing reconciliations and adjustments,

summaries, listings, schedules or analyses, may be

received into evidence without further proof of foundation,

genuineness or authenticity, as being accurate and true

as to the computations and representations of fact which

they purport to contain.

"5. That with reference to the terms 'income'

and 'taxable income' as may be used in this Stipulation

and in any of the listed exhibits, except as in the defend-

ant's income tax returns (i.e. , Exhibits 1-5, inclusive)

it is stipulated only that such amounts were received by

the defendant and either reported or not reported on the

defendant's income tax returns as shown in any such

exhibit, and not to the legal conclusion that such monies

were in fact 'income' or 'taxable income'. "

The above quoted stipulations and the trial record clearly

show that there never was any issue as to the amounts of money

alleged in the indictment to be unreported. The only issues

litigated were (1) the characterization of the amounts received as

taxable or non-taxable and (2) whether the appellant wilfully intended

to evade the payment of income taxes on the unreported receipts.

1 A





The potential danger arising from the Government's

utilization of the bank deposit method of proof is that such a

method of proof will not reasonably reflect the income of the tax-

payer. United States v. Riganto , 121 F. Supp. 158, 161 {D.C

Virg. 1954). By stipulating to the correctness of the amounts

alleged in the indictment appellant has renaoved this potential

danger. Since the unreported receipts were received and deposited

by the appellant as proven by the stipulations, the appellant could

not possibly be placed in danger through the method used by the

Government to determine such stipulations and conclusions.

Appellant makes the contention that his clients' cards,

which he failed to produce at the trial, adequately and accurately

reflect his income from his compensation business. Appellant did,

however, stipulate as to the correctness of the amount of

unreported receipts alleged in the indictment as proved by the

bank deposits method. If appellant is not estopped from now

challenging the correctness of those figures (for that is what he is

now attempting to do by challenging the method of their computa-

tion) then surely appellant's failure to produce his clients' cards

at the trial gives rise to the presumption that had these clients

cards been exannined they would have disclosed even a greater

amount of unreported income than did appellant's cash receipts

and cash disbursement records.

In a similar factual situation where the taxpayer asserted

that the net worth method of computing taxable inconne was un-

warranted unless his records were first shown to be totally
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inadequate and where the taxpayer had possession of such records

and yet failed to introduce them in evidence the 8th Circuit held

that:

"Here the rule may be invoked that the failure of a

party to introduce evidence within his possession

gives rise to the presumption that, if produced, it

will be unfavorable to him. "

Hoffman v. Commissioner , 298 F. 2d 784, 788

(8th Cir. 1962).

If appellant's client cards had reflected less unreported

income than did his bank deposits, then surely these cards would

have been introduced in rebuttal to the Government's figures. The

fact that the case at bar was a criminal tax fraud prosecution with

the attendant burdens of proof, rather than a deficiency suit in the

Tax Court should not preclude the operation of the presumption:

"While, of course, the burden of proof does not shift

in a criminal case, it is the rule that when the govern-

ment establishes a prima facie case, it is then for the

defendant to overcome the inferences reasonably to be

drawn from the proven facts. Thus, evidence of

unexplained funds or property in the hands of a tax-

payer establishes a prima facie case of understatement

of income, and it is then incumbent on him to overcome

the logical inferences to be drawn from such proof.

U. S. V. Hornstein, 7th Cir. , 176 F. 2d 217, 220."
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It is submitted that the only party that might have been

injured by the Government's utilization of the bank deposit method

of proving taxable income was the Government in that appellant's

client cards might have reflected even a greater amount of un-

reported income with greater attendant tax liability.

2. There Are No Conditions Precedent
To The Utilization Of Alternative
Methods Of Comiputing Taxable Income.

There is no prerequisite to the use of circumstantial

evidence in tax cases. The Government is free to use all legal

evidence available to it. Holland v. United States , 348 U. S. 121,

132 (1954). It may, therefore, resort to a net worth or bank

deposits method of proof without first proving the defendant's books

and records to be inadequate; by the same token it may resort to

such proof without a prior determination by the Revenue Service

under Section 446, Internal Revenue Code of 1954, that the defend-

ant's accounting methods do not clearly reflect income. Holland v.

United States , supra, at page 132.

In the Holland case, supra , the Supreme Court considered

and specifically rejected the rule contended for by appellant in the

case at bar:

"Petitioners ask that we restrict the Johnson case to

situations where the taxpayer has kept no books. They

claim that §41 of the Internal Revenue Code, expressly

limiting the authority of the Government to deviate from
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the taxpayer's method of accounting, confines the net

worth method to situations where the taxpayer has no

books or records or where his books are inadequate.

Despite some support for the view among the lower

courts (see U. S. v. Riganto, 121 F.Supp. 158, 161,

162), . . . citing other cases, we conclude that this

argument must fail.
"

Holland v. United States , supra, at page 131

(Emphasis added).

All of the Circuit Courts of Appeal that have considered

the Holland case have interpreted appellant's point unanimously.

The reports are replete with holdings that there are no conditions

precedent to the Government's utilization of the net worth or bank

deposits method of proof.

In Hoffman v. Commissioner , supra , at page 786 (8th Cir.

1962), it was stated:

"The taxpayer insists that unless there are no records,

or that the records are totally inadequate, or where

there is a strong suspicion that the taxpayer has received

income from undisclosed or illegal sources, the use of

the 'cash expenditure' method of determining income is

capricious, arbitrary and unwarranted. In view of

Holland v. U. S. , 348 U.S. 121, 130-132 . . . citing

other cases, this argument may no longer prevail.
"

In Hargis v. Godwin , 221 F. 2d 486, 491 (8th Cir. 1955),

18.





the 8th Circuit held:

"It is now well settled that the net worth method may

properly be used even though the taxpayer's books are

not inadequate. "

To the same effect see:

Canton v. United States , 226 F. 2d 313, 322

(8th Cir. 1955);

United States v. Doyle , 234 F. 2d 788, 793

(7th Cir. 1956);

Davis V. United States , 226 F. 2d 331, 335 (6th Cir.

1955), cert, denied 350 U. S. 965.

Finally, it has been stated:

"The Holland decision makes it clear that there are no

conditions precedent to the utilization of the net worth

technique. "

Davis V. Commissioner , 239 F. 2d 187 (7th Cir.

1956), cert, denied, 353 U. S. 984.

3. The Appellee's Computations Of
Appellant's Taxable Income Were
Based On Adequate Books and
Records Specifically Identified By
The Appellant.

Although the case at bar was labeled as a "bank deposit"

case at the time of trial, appellee submits that the method of proof

utilized by the Government was far different from that utilized in

the classical bank deposits case. The Government did not rest its
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case on the sometimes dangerous approximations and circumstantial

inferences of a net worth or bank deposit computation. See Holland

V. United States , supra , at pages 135, 136. In effect the Govern-

ment's method of proof could well be termed "quasi specific item".

There can be no doubt that the figures relied upon by the

Government were accurate because the characterization of the

numerous items reflected in appellant's books respecting deposits

to his personal account at the Security First National Bank were

specifically identified by appellant as to amount and source [R. T.

306]. Furthermore, the agents accepted appellant's figures as

correct [R. T. 327].

The testimony of Agent Donley indicates the records which

appellant turned over for examination:

"Q. Did you obtain any records at all from

Dr. Roy while you were there, sir? (Referring to

interview of January 10, 1961. )

"A. Yes, sir, I did. I had explained to Dr.

Roy that what we would like to do would be to reconstruct

his income as filed on his returns, or in connection with

that he gave me his --it was a summary of cash receipts

which -- not cash receipts exactly, it was a summary of

receipts that had been deposited into his personal business

account.

"He also gave me -- this is for '56 through '60.

He also gave me copies of the cash disbursement records,

or check registers of '56 through '60.
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"I believe he also gave us some deposit tickets

to his personal account. " [R. T. 279, 280].

While it is true that Agent Donley did request records from

which to reconstruct appellant's income as filed on his returns, it

is interesting to note that the records turned over showed income

far in excess of the amount reported on appellant's returns. Thus,

it was the appellant himself who specifically identified the annount

and source of the bank deposits and it was the appellant himself

who changed the Governnnent 's method of computation from one

reflecting only circumstantial inferences to the method utilized by

the taxpayer himself.

THERE WAS SUFFICIENT EVIDENCE
OF WILFULNESS TO SUSTAIN
APPELLANT'S CONVICTION.

To establish an attempted evasion of income tax liability

wilfulness must be shown. This wilfulness involves a specific

intent. The required specific intent may be inferred from the

manner in which an individual handles his business affairs or from

any conduct, the likely effect of which would be to mislead or to

conceal.

Spies V. United States, 317 U. S. 492(1943).

Direct proof of a defendant's intent to evade is rarely to be

found. It may, however, be inferred from all the facts and cir-

cumstances attending the preparation of an understatement of net
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income and tax by the taxpayer.

Spies V. United States , supra , at page 499;

United States v. Comerford , 64 F. 2d 28, 30 (2nd Cir.

1933), cert, denied, 289 U. S. 759;

Norwitt V. United States , 195 F. 2d 127, 132 (9th Cir.

1952), cert, denied, 344 U. S. 817.

In the case at bar appellee submits that the record discloses

an abundance of conduct on the part of the appellant, the likely

effect of which was to mislead the Internal Revenue Agents and to

conceal large amounts of unreported income.

The following chronology of appellant's conduct should serve

to illustrate his wilfull attempt to conceal income and the payment

of taxes thereon.

1. From 1950 through 1956 appellant reported the

percentage fees which he earned from his German compensation

business on his federal income tax return. However, once his

income from the compensation business reached into the 75%

bracket appellant conveniently neglected to report these percentage

fees as income.

2. On July 26, 1960, subsequent to appellant's first

interview with the Internal Revenue Service, appellant, through his

attorney Edythe Jacobs, furnished the Internal Revenue Service

with listings of his alleged total percentage fee receipts for the

years 1957-1959 [Ex. 73]. At that time appellant claimed that the

percentage fees were excludable from income. The listings of the

percentage fees, however, only included those percentage fees
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which had been paid directly to appellant by clients and those fees

which had gone through one of appellant's trustee accounts in Los

Angeles, California, and then into his public accountant account at

the Security-First National Bank. There was no disclosure made

of the existence of appellant's German bank accounts or of the fact

that thousands of dollars of percentage fees had been deposited into

those accounts.

3. On July 14, 1961, appellant filed his joint income

tax return and as an attachment appellant listed his alleged total

percentage fee receipts for the year 1960. At that time appellant

claimed that the fees were excludable from income for that year.

The listing, however, again only included those fees which had gone

through appellant's trustee accounts in Los Angeles, California.

There was no disclosure made of appellant's German bank accounts

or of the percentage fees that had been deposited into such accounts.

4. On May 10, 1962, while appellant was being inter-

viewed by Agent Donley he was asked whether he used any corres-

ponding attorneys in connection with his claims processing business.

Appellant stated that he used none whatsoever [R. T. 298].

5. During the course of the investigation commencing

on April 29, 1960, appellant steadfastly denied that he had any

other bank accounts outside of his accounts in Los Angeles and at

the Von Der Heydt Kerster Sohne in Germany. It was not until

appellant was shown photostatic copies of the Berlin bank account

ledgers on August 26, 1963, that he admitted that these were in fact

his accounts. After admitting that these accounts were his appellant
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was asked what items were deposited into those two Berlin accounts.

Appellant replied that they were fees from a number of special

transactions. After appellant was asked to describe the kinds of

transactions he finally stated that the accounts contained percentage

fees from the compensation awards.

Appellant was also asked to translate the notation appearing

on the Berlin Bank ledger sheets. Appellant stated that the notation

read "To be held for the benefit of Dr. Roy". Thereafter, through

the prompting of Agent Breese, appellant admitted that the notation

was an instruction to transfer those funds to a bank account in

Switzerland.

6. During appellant's first interview with Agent Donley

on January 10, 1961, appellant stated that one of the reasons that

he failed to report his percentage fees as income was that 10% to

15% of these fees had been countermanded by the German govern-

ment. During the course of the investigation Agent Donley was

never able to locate any checks made payable to clients that were

identified as being refunds because of countermanding orders

[R.T. 330].

7. Appellant stated to Revenue Agent Breese during

their first interview that one of the reasons that he failed to report

his percentage fees as income was that he feared that he was

practicing law illegally in California and that his clients could sue

him for refunds of his fees. Yet Exhibit 72, admitted into evidence,

is a letter from his attorney Edythe Jacobs wherein she stated that,

as a result of inquiries made with the State Bar of California, she
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did not believe that appellant was practicing law illegally or that it

was necessary to be a member of the State Bar of California to

represent persons before administrative agencies.

8. During the years in question appellant utilized only

30% of his justifiable business expenses. The reason for this was

clearly that had all of his expenses been deducted, based on his

reported income he would have shown an operating loss for the

years in question. Furthermore, appellant told Mrs. Lewis that

he would file an additional tax return with the German government

because taxes were not so high there [R. T. 130-134]. During the

years in question appellant never filed an income tax return in

Germany.

VII

CONCLUSION

On this appeal appellant challenges the Government's

utilization of an alternative method of computing the taxpayer's

unreported taxable income, namely, the bank deposit method.

However, it is apparent that appellant does not challenge the bank

deposit method of proof for any of the time-honored and justifiable

reasons, i. e. , that the Government's proof did not reasonably

reflect the income of the taxpayer and that the Government is

relying on dangerous approximations and circumstantial inferences.

This issue was taken out of the case prior to trial by virtue of

appellant's stipulations as to the correctness of the amounts of
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unreported income alleged in the Indictment.

The heart of appellant's appeal is directed toward the

proposition that the Government's utilization of the bank deposit

method generated a lengthy investigation during which appellant,

of his own free will and volition made numerous false and fraudu-

lent statements in an attempt to conceal income which he had failed

to report on his income tax returns for the years in question.

Thus, it appears to be appellant's contention that the

Government's method of proof was too thorough, that it uncovered

too much. Appellant's argunnent would seem to prove too much.

Should the Government be reprimanded because its investigation

turns up over a quarter of a million dollars in unreported income?

Certainly the Government is not limited to that method of proof

which uncovers the least amount of unreported income and fails to

expose a wilfull concealment of inconae.

The Government must be free to use all legal evidence

available to it in determining whether a taxpayer has unreported

income. Furthermore, the Government should not be precluded

from the use of proper investigative techniques to determine

whether there was a wilfull attempt to conceal income.

It must be noted that many of the false statennents made by

appellant in this case were made in the presence of his attorney.

It was not the Internal Revenue investigation which generated

appellant's damaging admissions. The statements were made sub-

sequent to appellant's concealment of substantial amounts of

unreported income. The statements were merely appellant's last
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attempt to extricate himself from a situation which he had created

for himself without the assistance of the Internal Revenue Service.

For the foregoing reasons, it is respectfully submitted that

the judgment of conviction of appellant Roy should be affirmed.

Respectfully submitted,

JOHN K. VAN de KAMP,
United States Attorney,

ROBERT L. BROSIO,
Assistant U. S. Attorney,
Chief, Criminal Division,

ANTHONY MICHAEL GLASSMAN,
Assistant U. S. Attorney,

Attorneys for Appellee,
United States of America.
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No. 21081

IN THE
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FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

Henry Roy,

Appellant,

vs.

United States of America,

Appellee.

On Appeal From the Judgment of the District Court of

the United States, Southern District of California,

Central Division.

APPELLANT'S REPLY BRIEF.

Introduction.

The argument which follows is entirely in reply to

arguments advanced by appellee in its brief. An ob-

servation is appropriate before replying to Appellee's

Brief to note what appellee did not dispute therein.

The Government has concerned itself solely with the

concept of adequacy of books and records when estab-

lishing justification for use of circumstantial evidence

in a criminal tax case — appellee has not responded to

appellant's contention that the investigating agents, and

the courts, should first look to the accuracy of the tax-

payer's books and records before blindly resorting to

the use of such evidence. Such a response is under-

standable as the appellee cannot dispute the major

points upon which the appellant relies. The taxpayer
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apparently maintained accurate books and records (or

at least the Government could not prove that the records

were inaccurate) and the investigating agents never re-

quested or examined the available records.

The appellee also claims that the appellant was not

harmed by use of the bank deposits method, or in the

alternative, that this harm was of his own making. The

evidence does not support the first contention, and the

second does not apply to a taxpayer who disclosed to

the Revenue Agent that items of receipt were not re-

flected in his tax returns, only to have three investigat-

ing agents thereafter conduct an examination which did

not even consider the available records which presum-

ably reflected all receipts for the years in question.

ARGUMENT.

A. Reply to Argument That Appellant Has Stipu-

lated to Amount of Unreported Income.

The Government contends that the appellant has stip-

ulated to facts which in and of themselves are suffi-

cient to sustain the finding of the lower court. This

argument ignores the scope of the Stipulations in ques-

tion, the rationale for those Stipulations, and indeed,

the workings and fallacies of the bank deposit method

when establishing an understatement of income.

Through Stipulation No. 3, the Government was per-

mitted to introduce photocopies of bank records indi-

cating deposits in several banks, etc., without estab-

lishing foundation for the admission of the photocopies.

In Stipulation No. 4, the schedules prepared by the In-

ternal Revenue Agents, based upon the aforementioned

photocopies, were admissible in evidence so as to spare

Government counsel the burden of conducting extensive

examination of the Agents who prepared said schedules

as to the preparation of schedules and the source of each

item contained therein.

I
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In Stipulation No. 5, the parties clearly state that the

defendant is merely stipulating to the receipt of funds,

and the deposit of funds in specific banks while making

it clear that the defendant is not in any manner cate-

gorizing such receipts or deposits as taxable income. The

burden remained upon the Government to establish the

fact of, and amount of defendant's alleged unreported

income.

The defendant entered into the above Stipulations

for the purpose of saving the Court many additional

days of trial. It was not necessary for the Government

to lay foundation for the admissibility of several bank

accounts, including three German bank accounts, and

the Revenue x^gents' schedules and work sheets were

also admitted into evidence without the necessity of

establishing foundation. None of the Stipulations re-

lieved the Government of its burden of establishing an

understatement of taxable income. [Stip. 5.]

An admission of the receipt of funds in a particular

bank account does not establish that said receipt con-

stitutes taxable income. The term "receipt" is not

equated to "income." This is so even if the Govern-

ment establishes that the taxpayer had no taxable free

sources of income. The most obvious danger encoun-

tered when using the bank deposits method is that a

particular deposit might be a transfer from another

bank— therefore clearly nontaxable — yet included as

two receipts of income when there was in fact but one.

The appellant established in his Opening Brief (p. 28)

that neither investigating agent was able to state that

inter-bank transfers had been eliminated. This was

particularly true with respect to the transfer of funds

from the German banks to the Los Angeles banks. This

factor not only bears upon the amount of unreported

income in this case, but raises questions as to the valid-

ity of an essential element relied upon by the Govern-

ment to establish wilfulness.



The Government is apparently contending (Br. pp.

15-17) that the appellant could have shown that the

Government's determination was incorrect by introduc-

ing his books and records into evidence during trial.

The Government has the burden of establishing each

element of the crime beyond a reasonable doubt, and

its case must be established through methods which are

most likely to bring the true facts before the Court.

The Government may not introduce evidence of ques-

tionable reliability before the Court in hopes of estab-

lishing its case in chief; it is obligated to present that

evidence which will best demonstrate the omission of

taxable income during the years in question, and estab-

lish the element of wilfulness. An analysis of the cases

cited by the Government demonstrates that they are not

authority for its position.

In Hoffman v. Commissioner (8th Cir., 1962),

298 F. 2d 784, 788, cited at page 16 of Appellee's Brief,

the Court was reviewing a decision of the Tax Court,

and found that the defendant was required to make an

affirmative showing because

:

"This is so, because Rule 32 of the Rules of Prac-

tice of the Tax Court, as well as the Supreme]

Court in Welch v. Helvering, 290 U.S. Ill, 54|

S. Ct. 8, 78 L. Ed. 212 and Helvering v. Taylor

\

293 U.S. 507, 508, 55 S.Ct. 287, 79 L.Ed. 623,]

state that the Commissioner's determination of de-

ficiency in tax bears a presumption of correctnessJ

and the burden of proof is upon the petitioner to]

show error therein."

In United States v. Hornstein (7th Cir., 1949), 17^

F. 2d 217, the defendant was contending that the Gov-

ernment had not established that there was a deficienc)

in tax for the years in question. The Government]

had apparently proved through specific omitted items]

that the taxpayer's gross receipts were understated. The]
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question facing the lower court was that of arriving at

a reasonable cost of sales for those items which were

sold but not reported in the defendant's books and rec-

ords. The defendant apparently took the witness stand

and tried to place the responsibility for the inaccu-

racy of his books upon his wife who was dead, and

upon a cousin whose whereabouts was unknown. He
offered evidence to the effect that his cost of goods

sold for those items which were not reflected in gross

receipts was higher than the sales price of said items.

The Court did not believe his story.

We are of course here concerned with a criminal case.

"The presumption of innocence attaches to an ac-

cused defendant at the beginning of a trial and re-

mains with him throughout the trial of the cause.

It never shifts." Bnibaker v. United States (6th

Cir., 1950), 183 F. 2d 894, 898.

The burden is upon the Government to prove each ele-

ment of its case beyond a reasonable doubt, through

methods which are geared to produce the most reliable

evidence available.

The Fifth Amendment to the United States Consti-

tution provides that a person need not be a witness

against himself in a criminal proceeding. Title 18,

Section 3481 of the United States Code provides

:

"In trial of all persons charged with the commis-

sion of offenses against the United States and in

all proceedings in courts martial and courts of in-

quiry in any State, District. Possession or Terri-

tory, the person charged shall, at his own request,

be a competent witness. His failure to make such

request shall not create any presumption against

him." (Emphasis added.)

The Government is urging that the defendant's fail-

ure to testify and produce evidence on his behalf as to
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the correct understatement of income is to cast credi-

bility on the Government's case. This argument ig-

nores the Government's burden of proof. If the Gov-

ernment's case in chief is estabhshed through improper

methods, the defendant need not demonstrate that the

facts allegedly proved by that method are incorrect. The
Government's contention also ignores 18 U.S.C. 3481,

quoted above, and the rule against comment on a de-

fendant's failure to testify as stated in Wilson v.

United States, 149 U.S. 60^ 13 S. Ct. 765, and Griffin

V. State of California (1965), 380 U.S. 609, 613, 85

S. Ct. 1229, 1232. The "prosecutor" is now arguing

on appeal that the defendant's failure to testify and

present evidence in his favor gives weight to that evi-

dence offered by the prosecutor, when in fact such an

argument is not permitted before a jury. Such an ar-

gument is clearly improper and should be ignored by

this Honorable Court.

B. Reply to Argument That There Are No Condi-

tions Precedent to Use of the Deposits Method.

In reply to the Government's contention that, "There

are no conditions precedent to the utiHzation of alter-

native methods of computing taxable income," a brief

introductory statement is necessary before analyzing the

Government's "authority" for its position.

Is the Government in fact contending that an In-

ternal Revenue agent may audit any taxpayer without

making use of the books and records maintained by

that taxpayer? Counsel can envision a situation where

an investigating agent knocks on the taxpayer's door

and states that he is auditing the taxpayer's return for

a specific year. The agent then requests all of the tax-

payer's bank records, including all deposits slips and

canceled checks, and demands all invoices and other rec-

ords describing assets which the taxpayer may have pur-



chased or sold within a specific period of years. He
then would presumably be free to reconstruct the tax-

payer's income through use of the bank deposits and

net worth methods, without referring to the taxpayer's

books and records for explanations of specific items,

and without compulsion to contrast his tentative con-

clusions with the financial picture as set forth in the

taxpayer's records.

The Government is contending that such an audit

would be permissible, and that the results of that audit

could be the basis for a criminal prosecution notwith-

standing the fact that the agent had not referred to

those documents which presumably most accurately re-

flect the taxpayer's income— his books and records.

Counsel for appellant are aware of the fact that In-

ternal Revenue agents must be allowed a great deal of

flexibility and latitude in conducting their audits so that

they may match their initiative and imagination against

that of the potential tax evader. However, there must

be some ground rules setting minimum standards for a

tax investigation. Counsel suggests that one such

standard is that the investigating agent must review all

records of the taxpayer which presumably reflect his

financial transactions— his books and records, in the

broadest sense. The agent is then free to attempt to

demonstrate the inaccuracy of those records by any rea-

sonable means, such as the bank deposits or net worth

methods. The taxpayer's books and records must be

recognized as the taxpayer's reflection of his income

and expenses for the year; these foundation documents

can be questioned and attacked, but they must be re-

viewed, analyzed, and weighed against the results of the

agent's independent investigation.

The taxpayer is required under the 1954 Internal

Revenue Code, Section 6001, to keep such records as



the Treasury reg-ulations may provide. Tres. Reg.

§1.6001-1 provides in part:

"(a) IN GENERAL. Except as provided in par-

agraph (b) of this section, any person subject to

tax under subtitle A of the Code, or any person

required to file a return of information with re-

spect to income, shall keep such permanent books
of account or records, including inventories, as are

sufficient to establish the amount of gross income,

deductions, credits, or other matters required to be

shown by such person in any return of such tax

or information.

"(e) RETENTION OF RECORDS. The books

or records required by this section shall be

kept at all times available for inspection by au-

thorized internal revenue officers or employees,

and shall be retained so long as the contents thereof

may become material in the administration of any

internal revenue law."

The taxpayer is required by law to maintain books

and records; investigating agents of the Internal Reve-

nue Service are required by law to examine those

books and records. The investigating agents are obvi-

ously not bound by the representations found in the

books and records, but they are required to examine

the records and contrast them with the results of any

independent investigation demonstrating a greater tax-

able income than that reflected in the books.

Upon close inspection, the cases cited by the Gov-

ernment are not in direct opposition to the statement

of law propounded by the appellant. It is first impor-

tant to note that the appellant is not contending that

the net worth method may not be used unless a tax-

payer's books are inadequate. He is, however, con-

tending that the Government must establish that the
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taxpayer's books are inaccurate— it cannot conduct an

audit and determine an understatement of income with-

out reviewing- and analyzing those books and records

which are maintained, available, and presumably accu-

rate.

The strongest statement in Appellee's Brief is that

from Davis v. Commissioner (7th Cir., 1956), 239 F.

2d 187, found on page 19 of Appellee's Brief. What
does Davis really say? The Court first notes (pp. 188-

189), that:

"As to the first question, it is taxpayer's conten-

tion that the net worth method may be used not-

withstanding the presence of records only where
evidence of concealment or falsity exists. The Su-

preme Court has expressly held, however, that the

net worth method is not confined to situations

where the taxpayer has no books or where his

books are inadequate. Holland v. United States,

348 U.S. 121, 130-132, 75 S. Ct. 127, 99 L.Ed.

150. Taxpayer's argument is the same argument

rejected by the Court in the Holland case for con-

cealment and falsity necessarily impugn the ade-

quacy of a taxpayer's books."

The Court then notes, at page 189:

''Furthermore, the Tax Court found that taxpay-

er's records were not adequate and this finding is

well supported by the evidence.'' (Emphasis

added.)

The Court's rational for stating that there are no con-

ditions precedent to the utilization of the net worth

technique is found immediately before the quotation in

Appellee's Brief, and explains that statement

:

"In short, the apparent adequacy of the taxpayer's

books is the very thing that the net worth method

attacks by independently demonstrating the re-

ceipt of unrecorded and unreported taxable in-

come." (Emphasis added.) .
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The Court in Davis therefore found that the net

worth method could be used to demonstrate the inac-

curacy of the taxpayer's books and records. The case

before this Court is one where the books and records

maintained by the taxpayer were ignored throughout

the investigation and trial of the case. Such was not

the case in Davis.

The same distinctions are found in Hoffman v. Com-
missioner (3rd Cir., 1962), 298 F. 2d 784, 786, 787.

In that case the Court noted

:

"The above books and records were incomplete, in-

adequate and in no wise covered the entire trans-

actions involved over the years in question. The
Commissioner after inspecting the records of the

petitioner discovered that the cash expenditures for

the years involved were substantially in excess of

the net income reported, although he did not assert

that he found any false items in the petitioner's

books of account.

"Here, the Tax Court found that the Commis-

sioner did everything that was possible for him to

do, in addition to examining the meager hooks and

records of the petitioner, he examined the tax re-

turns of the taxpayer which were put in evidence

for the years 1927 to 1947." (Emphasis added.)

In reviewing recent cases dealing with the use of the

net worth method, the following statement was found

in the initial sentence discussing the use of the net

worth method in the case of United States v. Fernicola

(3rd Cir., 1966), 361 F. 2d 864:

"Since the Government was unable to obtain from

the defendant books or records of his medical prac-

tice reflecting the payments of fees to him, it ar-

rived at its calculations of the defendant's taxable

income for the years involved via the 'net worth'

method and prosecuted its case at the trial in ac-

cordance therewith. (Citations)"
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Counsel suggest that each member of this Honorable

Court who has written an opinion involving the use of

the net worth method of computing taxable income has

made a statement similar to that quoted above. It

would be unnecessary to make such a finding if there

were no conditions precedent to the use of the net worth

method. Appellant has presented in his Opening Brief

(pp. 11-14) the dual use of the bank deposits and net

worth methods. Such methods are first used to test the

taxpayer's books and records, and then may serve as

evidence of unreported income. This rule was in fact

restated in Hoffman v. Commissioner of Internal

Revenue, supra, cited by appellee as authority for a con-

trary doctrine.

Both the Government and the appellant recognize the

case of Holland v. United States (1954), 348 U.S. 121,

75 S. Ct. 127, as being the leading case in defining the

use of the net worth method of reconstructing income.

The appellee is contending that Holland opens the door

for the Government to reconstruct a taxpayer's income

without the existence of any conditions precedent. The

appellant is urging that the Government must recon-

struct a taxpayer's income for the purpose of contrast-

ing the reconstructed income with that shown in the

taxpayer's books and records, and then ask that the

higher figure be accepted as correct.

There are many indications in the Holland case that

the appellant's interpretation is correct. The Court

first points out the well-established fact that

:

"Unlike civil actions for the recovery of deficien-

cies, where the determinations of the Commission-

er have prima facie validity, the prosecution must

always prove the criminal charge beyond a reason-

able doubt." (75 S. Ct., at 130, 348 U.S. at 126.)
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The Court then warns (75 S. Ct., at 132, 348 U.S., at

129):

"While we cannot say that these pitfalls inherent in

the net worth method foreclose its use, they do re-

quire the exercise of great care and restraint. The
complexity of the problem is such that it cannot

be met merely by the application of general rules.

(Citation) Trial courts should approach these

cases in the full realization that the taxpayer may
be ensnarled in a system which, though difficult

for the prosecution to utilize, is equally hard for

the defendant to refute. Charges should be espe-

cially clear, including, in addition to the formal in-

structions, a summary of the nature of the net

worth method, the assumptions on which it rests,

and the inferences available both for and against

the accused. Appellate courts should review the

cases, bearing constantly in mind the difficidties

that arise when circumstantial evidence as to guilt

is the chief weapon of a method that is itself only

an approximation." (Emphasis added.)

The appellant herein is challenging the ability of the

Government to proceed by use of an indirect method of

determining taxable income without first thoroughly re-

viewing the available books and records of the taxpayer.

The following language of the Supreme Court in Hol-

land bears heavily in weighing this issue (75 S. Ct., at

135, 348 U.S., at 135-136)

:

"While sound administration of the criminal law

requires that the net worth approach— a powerful

method of proving otherwise undetectible offenses

— should not be denied the Government, its failure

to investigate leads furnished by the taxpayer

might result in serious injustice. It is, of course,

not for us to prescribe investigative procedures, but
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it is within the province of the courts to pass upon

the sufficiency of the evidence to convict. When
the Government rests its case solely on the ap-

proximations and circumstantial inferences of a

net zvorth computation, the cogency of its proof

depends upon its effective negation of reasonable

explanations by the taxpayer inconsistent with

guilt. Such refutation might fail when the Gov-

ernment docs not track down relevant leads fur-

nished by the taxpayer— leads reasonably suscep-

tible of being checked, which, if true, would estab-

lish the taxpayer's innocence. When the Govern-

ment fails to show an investigation into tlie validity

of such leads, the trial judge may consider them

as true and the Government's case insufficient

to go to the jury. This should aid in forestalling

unjust prosecutions, and have the practical advan-

tage of eliminating the dilemma, especially serious

in this type of case, of the accused's being forced

by the risk of an adverse verdict to come forward

to substantiate leads which he had previously fur-

nished the Government. It is a procedure entirely

consistent with the position long espoused by the

Government, that its duty is not to convict but to

see that justice is done." (Emphasis added.)

Can the Supreme Court, while stating that the Gov-

ernment has the burden of investigating all leads fur-

nished by the taxpayer and negating all nontaxable

sources of income, also be stating that the investigating

agents may recompute and reconstruct the taxpayer's

income without referring to, comparing, or contrasting

the taxpayer's books and records with the fruit of their

independent investigation? Such a holding would be

entirely inconsistent with the Court's warnings of the

dangers involved when estabUshing a tax case by use of

circumstantial evidence.
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In the recent case of Lcnske v. United States (9th

Cir., 1966), 18 A.F.T.R. 2d 5815 F. 2d ..., this

Court restated the admonition of the Supreme Court in

Holland v. United States, supra, concerning the dan-

gers of the use of circumstantial evidence. In discuss-

ing the obHgation of the investigating agents to inves-

tigate all leads, the Court stated:

"Under the Holland teaching, a lead not furnished

by the defendant but discovered by the Special

Agent in his investigation would have at least

equal status with a lead furnished by the defend-

ant. The philosophy of Holland is that the trial of

a tax fraud case by the net worth method places a

defendant at a disadvantage dangerous to his lib-

erty, and that some departure from the gamesman-

ship tactics of ordinary trials, even other criminal

trials, is necessary to compensate for the disad-

vantage and make the contest more nearly equal."

The Court later noted

:

"It may be asked what harm is done, after all,

by disregarding the admonitions of Holland, supra,

putting everything into a chart showing increased

net worth and having the Special Agent testify

that it was prepared under his supervision and is

right. There is still opportunity for cross exami-

nation and for witnesses for the defense. What is

wrong, in addition to its being contrary to the

law laid down by the Supreme Court, is that such

a process is outrageously unfair . . . What has hap-

pened to him is that the Government has not as-

sumed the burden of proving, beyond a reasonable

doubt, that he is guilty. It has assumed only the

burden, with its unlimited resources and time, of

preparing a mass of documentary evidence and

charts incomprehensible to a layman, all prepared
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by the Government itself, and is saying to the tax-

payer, 'Your task is to prove that all of zvhat is

contained in the charts is false, not merely that it

is 96% false, but that it is all false. You do not

have the time nor the resources that the g'overn-

ment had, but that is your misfortune.' " (Em-

phasis added.

)

C. Reply to "Quasi-Specific Items" and

Wilfulness Arguments.

The appellee sets forth an interestino^ argument be-

ginning" on pag'e 19 of Appellee's Brief, to the effect

that this case is in reality a quasi-specific items case,

rather than a bank deposits case. The appellee bases

this argument on the fact that the defendant cate-

gorized deposits to his personal account at the Security

First National Bank as to amount and source. These

admissions, states the appellee, convert this case from a

bank deposit case to a specific item case.

There is no question that the defendant attempted to

identify bank deposits, at the request of the investigat-

ing agents. These deposits indicate an understatement

of taxable income. The defendant advised Revenue

Agent Breese that certain receipts were not reflected

on his tax return, during Agent Breese's first meeting

with the defendant. The defendant then claimed that

these items of receipt were nontaxable; the Government

and the Court disagreed.

The above argument is reasonable at first blush, but

is in error when considering the appellee's arguments

concerning wilfulness. The vast majority of the evi-

dence pointed to by appellee as establishing wilfulness

deals with the German bank accounts, either directly or

indirectly. The German bank accounts were not recon-

ciled by the defendant, and the Government claims that
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these accounts were sources of additional income that

were neither reflected on the tax return nor disclosed

to the investigating agents. Such an analysis indeed

makes use of the bank deposits method. The Agents'

audit was inadequate in that it did not establish that

the funds deposited in the German bank accounts were

not subsequently transferred to the Los Angeles bank

accounts and reported as taxable income or initially dis-

closed to Revenue Agent Breese. This case is in fact a

bank deposits case in theory, even though it fails to

prove those elements which the Government seeks to

establish.

The appellant has argued in his Opening Brief that

the continuation of this audit over a period encompass-

ing several years was to appellant's detriment, and that

many items relied upon by the Government in establish-

ing wilfulness were generated through the inadequacies

of the audit procedures adopted by the Agents. These

inadequacies and the detriment suffered by the appel-

lant are evident when considering the fourth item re-

lied upon by appellee as indicating wilfulness. (Appellee's

Br. p. 23.) The Government states that appellant failed

to disclose that he had corresponding attorneys in con-

nection with his claims processing business during his

interview with Agent Donley on May 10, 1962. Yet,

two years earlier, on May 27, 1960, during his inter-

view with Revenue Agent Breese and Special Agent

Phoebus, Dr. Roy disclosed

:

"He said that in the course of negotiating with

people who had a claim against the German gov-

ernment, he would make a fee arrangement with

them which would be expressed in writing, that the

fee charged the claimants was 10 percent. 5 per-

cent of which was kept by Dr. Roy and 5 percent

which went to an attorne}^ which he, Dr. Rov.

engaged in Germany." [Tr. p. 259.]



—17—

The fact that the Government had not investigated the

defendant's relationship with the corresponding attor-

neys, the fee agreements with said attorneys, and the

forwarding of fmids from Germany to the United

States during the period May, 1960-May, 1962, raises

serious questions as to the method and manner of the

Agents' investigation. The appellant, of course, claims

that he was prejudiced by the failure of the investigat-

ing agents to examine the available books and records.

Such an investigation would have disclosed facts as that

discussed above. The above example clearly demon-

strates one specific instance in which the appellant was

so prejudiced by the Agents' unwarranted use of cir-

cumstantial evidence.

This case presents an excellent example of the dan-

gers encountered when using an indirect method of de-

termining taxable income. In the appellant's Opening

Brief (pp. 27-29) the testimony of the Internal Reve-

nue Agent and Special Agent clearly demonstrate they

were unable to establish that the funds from the Berlin

bank accounts were not subsequently deposited in the

Los Angeles bank accounts. This essential element of

inter-bank transfers, the most important single factor

to consider in a bank deposits case, was not accounted

for by the Agents. Let us pause a moment to consider

the significance of this fact.

The defendant admitted to Revenue Agent Breese

during the initial contact that certain receipts were un-

reported on the tax return, as the defendant believed that

they were tax-free receipts. [Tr. pp. 210-211.] The

Government contends that fraudulent intent is demon-

strated by the taxpayer's failure to inform the Agents

of the German bank accounts at that time. However,

the Agents themselves testified that they were unable

to establish that the amounts deposited in the German
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bank accounts were not subsequently deposited in Los

Angeles bank accounts, and thereby reflected in the

"Legenda" of receipts prepared by the defendant for the

investigating agents. The agent's expressed intent was

to reconstruct the tax return. If the question of the

German bank accounts was not presented to the Court,

it would be difficult for the Court to find the necessary

fraudulent intent. The question of the German bank

accounts, transfers from those accounts, and the alleged

concealment of those accounts colored the entire trial.

If the investigating agents had reviewed and analyzed

the available books and records, the entire audit and

trial (should the taxpayer have been indicted) would

have proceeded in a different fashion. The receipts

which were not reflected in the taxpayer's income tax

returns would have been ascertained through his books

and records, and the sole questions before the Court

would have been the taxability of the omitted receipts

and the reason for the omission. The audit would

have been completed in a matter of weeks, rather than a

matter of years, and the taxpayer would not have been

subjected to the stress and strain accompanying a

lengthy Internal Revenue investigation. The procedu-

ral safeguard requested by the appellant— that the in-

vestigating agents be required to attempt to determine

unreported income by first examining his books and

records— would have changed the entire picture painted

during the investigation, and viewed during the trial.
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Conclusion.

The Government argues, in conclusion, that it should

not be prevented from using a method v\^hich uncovers

the maximum amount of unreported income; which,

through its length and "thoroughness," establishes a

wilful intent to conceal income. It is significant that

the Government speaks in terms of maximum unre-

ported income rather than an accurate determination of

the taxpayer's understatement. This Court is cogni-

zant of the dangers expressed by the Supreme Court in

Holland, supra, and should join that Court in estab-

lishing procedural safeguards so that the Government

will seek accuracy rather than maximum determinations

of deficiency in future audits. The failure of the in-

vestigating agents to examine the defendant's books

and records, the meaningless attempt to reconstruct ap-

pellant's income as actually reported on the return, the

length of the investigation, and the failure to account

for inter-bank transfers between the German banks and

the Los Angeles banks clearly demonstrate that the in-

vestigation neither accurately discloses the actual under-

statement of income, nor is a reliable bell-weather from

which to adjudge the issue of fraudulent intent.

The appellant respectfully requests that the lower

court be reversed upon the grounds urged in Appel-

lant's Opening Brief.

Respectfully submitted,

HOCHMAN AND SaLKIN,

By Bruce I. Hochman,

Attorneys for Appellant.
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I UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
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APPELLANrS BRIEF

Appeal from the United States District Court for the

District of Oregon

HONORABLE JOHN F. KILKENNY, Judge

CAUSE OF ACTION

This is a criminal action based upon an Indictment

founded by the Grand Jury under Section 18 U.S.C.A.

!2314, charging the Appellant with the crime of "Unlaw-

ful Transportation of Counterfeit Securities Interstate"

jin six counts. Appellant entered his plea to each count

jof Not Guilty and the cause came on regularly for trial.

i

At the commencement of the trial the United States

'Attorney moved the Court for an Order to amend the

jindictment in Count I changing the date of the alleged

iforged document from November 24, 1964, to December



4y 1964, and changing the amount of the check from

$98.27 to $98.23 and in Count III changing the amount

of the check from $98.48 to $98.46 and in Count V

changing the amount of the check from $98.40 to

$98.48. The court over objections of the Appellant al-

lowed the Motion and the Indictment was amended

to reflect the alterations above requested. The Appellant:

declined to offer any testimony at the conclusion of

Appellee's case. The cause was submitted to the Jury

resulting in a Verdict of Guilty to all six counts. The

Appellant was sentenced pursuant to said verdict, from

which sentence this appeal is taken.

PROPOSITION OF LAW

I.

The lower Court erred in permitting Appellee's Mo-

tion to Amend said Indictment (Transcript of Testi-

mony Page 1 ) (United States Constitution Amendment

V)

No person shall be held to answer for a capital or

otherwise infamous crime, unless on a presentment or

indictment of a Grand Jury.

18U.S.C.A. Sec. 1951

U.S. V. Fawcett, 115 Fed (2d) 764

Steroni v. U. S., 361 U.S. 212, 80 S. Ct. 270, 4 L Ed.

(2d) 252, 1959

Ex Parte Bain, 121 U.S. 1, 7 S. Ct. 781, 30 L Ed. 849



Stewart v. U.S., 9 Cir. 12 Fed. (2d) 524

Dodge V. U. S., 2 Cir. 258 Fed. 300

Where a crime charged is a felony, the law clearly

equires prosecution by Indictment. After an Indictment

las been returned its charge may not be broadened

hrough amendment except by the Grand Jury itself,

The amendment permitted by the Court broadened and

jiltered the Indictment of the Grand Jury so that it was

no longer their Indictment, but was an Information of

the United States Attorney. Appellant did not waive
I

ndictment by the Grand Jury nor did he agree to

)roceed on an Information presented by the United

,)tates Attorney.

I

PROPOSITION OF LAW

1
II.

Error of the Court in overruling Appellant's objec-

pons to evidence. Primary evidence is the best evidence,

jiecondary evidence is admissable only when primary

[evidence is not available, and under a proper showing.

k.ppellee entered into evidence over the objection of

appellant Secondary evidence, (Appellee's Exhibit 1)

onsisting of a check similar in some respects to one

inder discussion which was not a carbon copy of the

heck in question and no foundation was laid which



permitted the exhibit to be introduced into evidence

(Transcript of Testimony pages 5 and 6). The "Ameri

ican Rule" is well established and recognized in virtu;

ally all Courts and jurisdictions and is as follows: "Sec

ondary Evidence in order to be admissable must be the

best legal evidence obtainable." Diligence must b(

shown and exercised to obtain the best evidence.

Wigmore on Evidence, 3rd Edition 1268

Am. Jur. Evidence, Sec. 403, 404

Courette v. Williams, 20 U.S. 226, 22 L Ed. 254

Popolia V. U. S., 243 Fed (2d) 437

Monroe v. Bresee, 239 Fed 727

PROPOSITION OF LAW

III.

Error of the Court in denying Appellant's Motion foi

Acquittal (Transcript of Testimony pages 106-107)

Appellant duly moved the Court for an acquittal ai

the close of Appellee's case, based upon the record

which was denied by the Court.

PROPOSITION OF LAW

IV.

Error of the Court in denying Appellant's Motior

to Dismiss (Transcript of Testimony page 119)



Upon denial of Appellant's Motion for Acquittal the

\ppellant rested his case and moved the Court to dis-

miss the action, which was also denied.

SUMMARY

Appellant takes the position that all proceedings by

he Court after allowing the amendment to the Indict-

nent became a nullity and the Court should have ac-

i^uitted the Appellant and /or dismissed the action, or at

east should have re-referred the matter to the Grand

ury for further consideration. The Constitutional

jlights of everyone must be preserved and enforced at

ill times and particularly as it relates to criminal mat-

ers. It is a matter not to be taken lightly and is encum-

.)ent upon the Courts to follow to the letter of the law.

If the Courts and prosecuting officials are permitted to

jmend Indictments at will, soon the Constitution would

le of no further force or effect.
I

Respectfully submitted,

' STANLEY J. MITCHELL

I

MITCHELL & O'LEARY

714 Main Street

Oregon City, Oregon
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COUNTER-STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On October 4, 1965, an indictment in six counts

was filed against appellant Banzer in the United

States District Court for the District of Oregon.

(See Clerk's transcript of record, page 1). The in-

dictment alleged that on or about December 8, 1964,

appellant knowingly and willfully caused to be trans-



ported in interstate commerce, to-wit: from Port-

land, Oregon to Seattle, Washington certain falsely

made and counterfeited securities, in violation of

Section 2314, Title 18, United States Code. After a

trial by jury, appellant was found guilty on each

count. On March 9, 1966, appellant was sentenced

by the Honorable John F. Kilkenny to a concurrent

prison term of five years on each count.

The evidence to support the verdict of guilt may

be summarized as follows:

In late 1964, appellant requested Jack Stevenson

and David Hildebrand to assist him in setting up a

counterfeit check printing and cashing operation in

Portland. (R. 4, 9, 59-60) Shortly thereafter, appel-

lant contacted one Ralph Tolle and requested his

assistance in starting an "advertising agency" in

Portland which was to serve as a base for the coun-

terfeiting operation. (R. 84). At appellant's request,

Tolle leased in his own name a printing press and

other photographic equipment which was installed

by him, appellant and Stevenson in a building in

Southeast Portland. (R. 7-8, 85). Appellant utilized

the equipment to print a quantity of counterfeit

blank checks of the Safeco Lifeco Insurance Com-

pany located in Seattle. (R. 11-12, 60-61). After



printing these checks, appellant took them home to

his wife, who typed in fictitious dates, payees and

amounts. (Exs. 2-7; R. 12-13) In early December,

1964, appellant instructed Stevenson and Hildebrand

to go to Seattle and cash the checks, after which

appellant was to get an agreed percentage of the

proceeds. (R. 16, 61)

Stevenson and Hildebrand, together with a girl by

the name of Caroline Young, left for Seattle the

next day and cashed the checks at various shops in

Seattle by utilizing counterfeit Washington drivers'

licenses which had also been printed by appellant.

(R. 12, 14-30, 48-55, 61-66). After returning to Port-

land, Stevenson and Hildebrand turned over a por-

tion of the proceeds of these checks to appellant.

(R. 65-67).

ARGUMENT

There Was No Prejudicial Error

in the Proceedings Below

1. The trial court correctly granted the government's

motion to amend the indictment.

Appellant complains (BR. 2-3) that prejudicial er-

ror was committed when the trial court, at the out-

set of the case (R. 1), granted the government's



pre-trial motion to amend certain wording in three

counts of the indictment. Appellant has not and can-

not make any assertion that the government did not

inform him of these minor errors well prior to trial.

Nor has appellant suggested that he was in any way

prejudiced by these amendments in preparing his

defense. Appellant's sole complaint is that these

amendments so "broadened and altered" (BR. 3)

the indictment that they could only be made by the

grand jury. We respectfully suggest that the argu-

ment is so thin as to be almost frivolous. The

amendments, which pertained to three counts of a

six count indictment, were as follows: the date on

the counterfeit check in Count One was changed

from November 24, 1964, to December 4, 1964, and

the amounts of the counterfeit checks in Counts One,

Three and Five were changed from $98.27, $98.48

and $98.40 to $98.23, $98.46 and $98.48 respective-

ly, a net difference of fourteen cents. It is patently

obvious, as the trial court noted (R. 1 ), that these were

simply clerical errors relating to matters of form

and not substance, and which in no way resulted in

changing the theory of the government's case.

United States v. Krepper, 159 F.2d 958, 970-972

(C.A. 3), certiorari denied 330 U.S. 824. Accordingly,

the amendments were properly allowed.



Moreover, even if we assume arguendo that the

amendments were improperly granted, it is funda-

mental that, since the sentence on the six counts of

the indictment were ordered to run concurrently,

and since the remaining three counts of the indict-

ment are not attacked by appellant and are clearly

valid, the conviction on these latter counts must be

sustained. Hirabayashi v. United States, 320 U.S.

81,85.

2. The trial court properly received into evidence Govern-
ment Exhibit 1

.

There is no merit to appellant's claim (BR. 3-4)

that Government Exhibit One was improperly ad-

mitted into evidence. Briefly summarized, the testi-

mony preceding the introduction of this exhibit into

evidence — as related by government witness Jack

Stevenson— is as follows: (R. 4-6)

In October of 1964, Stevenson had fallen down the

stairway at the Lipman-Wolf Department Store in

Portland. In connection with his insurance ciaim

against this store for the accident, Stevenson was

sent two checks, one payable to him and the hospital

where he received medical attention, and the other

(Govt. Ex. 1) payable to him and the Buck Am-

bulance Co. These were checks or drafts of the



Safeco-Lifeco General Insurance Company of Amer-

ica. Appellant was with Stevenson at the time he

received these checks, and appellant asked Steven-

son for one of these checks so he could make a du-

plicate to later use in his counterfeit operation.

Stevenson turned over to appellant the check made

out to the hospital, and retained the check made out

to the Ambulance Company (Govt. Ex. 1) which he

cashed. This latter check (Govt. Ex. 1) was sub-

stantially identical to the one turned over to and

copied by appellant except for the name of the

payee and the amount. Accordingly, this check was

clearly admissible for the simple purpose of giving

the jury some background concerning appellant's

method of operation.

3. The evidence was sufficient to support the verdict.

Appellant does no more than raise an argument

(BR. 4-5) that the trial court erred in not granting

his motion for acquittal based on alleged insuffici-

ency of proof. As shown in the statement of the case

above, the evidence — viewed in the light most fav-

orable to the government — overwhelmingly demon-

strated appellant's guilt. Appellant initiated the coun-

terfeiting scheme, printed the fictitious checks and

identification documents, instructed his cohorts as



to when and where to cash the checks, and shared

in the ilHcit proceeds. Appellant offered no testi-

mony or any other evidence in defense, and the

trial court was clearly correct in denying the mo-

tion for acquittal.



CONCLUSION

There was no prejudicial error in the proceedings

below. The trial was fair and the evidence of guilt

was overwhelming. It is respectfully submitted that

the judgment of conviction should be affirmed.

SIDNEY I. LEZAK,

United States Attorney

District of Oregon

NORMAN SEPENUK,

Special Asst. United States Attorney
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COUNTER-ARGUMENT

We have considered the statement of the United

itates Attorney in Appellee's Brief, page 2, in which

16 quotes, "Appellant utilized the equipment to print

I quantity of counterfeit blank checks of the Safeco

Jfeco Insurance Company located in Seattle." (R. 11-

.2,60-61).

In referring to these references, we note that many

;hecks were allegedly printed besides the checks that

vere entered into evidence as referred to in Appellee's

irief (Transcript of Testimony, Page 11)

Q. "Did he print anything else, any other matter?



A. He printed some construction company check;

and some Ford Motor Company checks, identificatior

and driver's licenses."

(Transcript of Testimony, page 60)

Q. "Did you see him preparing these checks?

A. Yes.

Q. Would you please look at Government's Exhibit

2 through 7? I will ask if you can identify those.

A. I would say that these, in my opinion, are no

checks that were being worked on. This one here look;

a little different."

It, therefore, is reasonable to assume that the GraiK

Jury, in returning its Indictment under oath, describee

the offense presented to it based upon documents in it

possession at that time.
I

!

QUESTIONS PRESENTED

The true inquiry, therefore, is not whether there is

;

variance in proof, but whether there has been such ;

variance as to "affect the substantive rights" of the ac

cused.

The alterations in the Indictment by the Court an.

the United States Attorney amount to a substantiv

change, and would no longer be the Indictment of th

Grand Jury which presented it.



It is the uniform ruling of the United States Courts,

nd it is the imperative requirement of the provisions

F the Constitution, (Amendment V), which would be

' little avail if an Indictment once found can be

langed by the prosecuting officer with the consent of

le Court to conform to their views of the necessity of

le case.

We have no quarrel with (Krepper vs. United States)

ted by the United States Attorney; in fact, the Krepper

jse reaffirms the law as established in Ex Parte Bain.

Had the Government attempted to introduce into

adence the exhibits that were introduced (Exhibits 2

trough 7) without the Amendment of the Indictment,

iree of the exhibits would be objectionable as not being

le same instruments as described in the Indictment,

his being so, the Amendment amounts to a "variance"

• as to affect the "substantive rights" of the accused.

The general rule that allegations and proof must

)rrespond is based on the objective requirements:

1) The accused shall be definitely informed as to

le charges against him so that he may be enabled to

resent his defense and not be taken by surprise by the

/idence offered at the trial; and

2

)

That he may be protected against another prose-

ition for the same offense.



Berger vs. United States, 259 U.S. 78, 83, 55 S. Cl

629, 79 L. Ed. 13, 14

We have carefully read the Citation in the Hira

bayashi case 320 U.S. 81 at page 85, and find no applica

tion in the ruling of the Hirabayashi case that applie

to the case at bar. Had the three defective indictment

been eliminated, certain of the documents introduced ii

evidence would have been objectionable as being evi

dence of other crimes.

CONCLUSION

The substantive rights of the Appellant accusec

have have been grossly affected by the amendment o]

the Indictment requested by the United States Attome}

and Ordered by the Court, and the cause should be re

versed and remanded and the conviction set aside an(

vacated.

STANLEY J. MITCHELL

MITCHELL & O'LEARY

714 Main Street

Oregon City, Oregon
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IN THE UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

JOE TURNER,

Plaintiff and Appellant,

vs.

CHARLES H. LUNDQUIST,

Defendant and Respondent.

APPELLANT'S OPENING BRIEF

STATEMENT OF THE PLEADINGS AND FACTS

The Complaint

This action originally was brought by Plaintiff Joe Turner

against Glen R. Roland. Subsequently Plaintiff filed an Amended

Complaint joining Charles H. Lundquist as a party Defendant. In

1

I

essence, Plaintiff's first cause of action alleges the following:

(1) Both Defendants solicited Plaintiff to purchase debentures

j
which were to be issued by United States Chemical Milling Corpora-

I
tion (hereafter USCM); (2) In connection with said solicitation

' Defendant Roland made a number of representations to Plaintiff

,

with the knowledge, consent and assistance of Defendant Lundquist,

including representations that USCM was in sound financial
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condition and that certain financial statements of USCM which

were shown to Plaintiff represented truly and fairly the condition

of the business and affairs of USCM; (3) In reliance upon said

representations Plaintiff purchased debentures from USCM for the

sum of $100, 000. 00; (4) Said representations were false and

Lundquist, who was President and a Director of USCM, and Roland,

who was a Director and Secretary-Treasurer of USCM, knew or

should have known the falsity of the representations; (5) USCM is

insolvent and unable to pay the debenture; and (6) The United

States Mails and Instrumentalities of Interstate Commerce were

used by both Defendants and by USCM in the solicitation and con-

summation of the transaction.

The above facts were alleged to constitute a violation of

Section 10(b) of the Securities Act of 1934, 15 U. S. C. A. §78(b),

and Rule X-lOB-5 of the Rules and Regulations of the Securities

and Exchange Commission, 17C. F. R. 240. lOB-5. Jurisdiction

was alleged to be based on Section 27 of the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934, 15U. S. C.A. §78AA.

A second cause of action incorporates by reference the

allegations of the first cause of action; and alleges that the facts

! constituted a violation of 17(a) of the Securities Act of 1933, 15

! U. S. C. A. §77q. Jurisdiction is based upon Section 22(a) of the

Securities Act of 1933, 15U. S. C.A. §77v.

A third cause of action incorporates the allegations of the

( first cause of action and states a common law claim for fraud and

j

deceit, seeking compensatory damages of $100, 000. 00 and
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$75, 000. 00 punitive damages (C. T. 2-8).

Federal Jurisdiction

With respect to the jurisdiction of the United States District

Court over the first cause of action, Section 10b of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 provides in pertinent part:

"It shall be unlawful for any person, directly or

indirectly, by the use of any means or instrumen-

tality of interstate commerce or of the mails, or

of any facility or any national securities exchange. . . .

"(b) To use or employ, in connection with the

purchase or sale of any security registered on a

national securities exchange or any security not so

registered, any manipulative or deceptive device or

contrivance in contravention of such rules and regu-

lations as the Commission may prescribe as neces-

sary or appropriate in the public interest or for the

protection of investors. "

Pursuant to this statutory authority, the Securities and Exchange

Commission, in 1942, promulgated what is popularly known as

"regulation X-lOb-5", which provides as follows:

"It shall be unlawful for any person, directly or

indirectly, by the use of any means or instrumen-

tality of interstate commerce, or of the mails, or

of any facility of any national securities exchange,
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"(a) to employ any device, scheme, or artifice

to defraud,

"(b) to make any untrue statement of a material

fact or to omit to state a material fact necessary in

order to make the statements made, in the light of

the circumstances under which they were made, not

misleading, or

"(c) to engage in any act, practice, or course

of business which operates or would operate as a

fraud or deceit upon any person, in connection with

the purchase or sale of any security. " 2CCH Federal

Securities Rep. Par. 22, 725 (emphasis added).

Specifically, jurisdiction of the United States District Court

over the first cause of action is based on Section 27 of the Securi-

ties Act of 1934, 15 U. S. C. A. Section 78aa which provides in

pertinent part as follows:

"The District Courts of the United States . . . shall

have exclusive jurisdiction of violations of this chap-

ter or the rules and regulations thereunder, and of

all suits in equity and actions of law brought to en-

force any liability or duty created by this chapter or

the rules and regulations thereunder. "

Jurisdiction of the United States District Court over the

second cause of action is based on Section 17(a) of the Securities

A





Act of 1933, 15 U. S. C. A. Section 77q, which states in pertinent

part:

"(a) It shall be unlawful for any person in the offer

or sale of any securities by the use of any means or

instruments of transportation or communication in

interstate commerce or by the use of the mails,

directly or indirectly --

(1) to employ any device, scheme or artifice

to defraud, or

(2) to obtain money or property by means

of any untrue statement of a material fact or any

omission to state a material fact necessary in order

to make the statements made, in the light of the cir-

cumstances under which they were made, not mis-

leading, or

(3) to engage in any transaction, practice or

course of business which operates or would operate

as a fraud or deceit upon the purchaser.

Specifically, jurisdiction over the second cause of action is

i based upon Section 22(a) of the Securities Act of 1933, 15 U. S. C. A.

1 Section 77v, which provides in pertinent part as follows:

"The District Courts of the United States . . . shall

have jurisdiction of offenses and violations under this

sub-chapter and under the rules and regulations pro-

mulgated by the Commission in respect thereto, and





concurrent with State and Territorial Courts, of all

suits in equity and actions at law to enforce any liability

or duty created by this sub-chapter. "

By reason of Rule 73(a) of the Federal Rules of Civil Pro-

cedure it would appear that an appeal from the judgment to the

United States Court of Appeals is appropriate and that the within

notice of appeal was timely filed.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE
AND OF THE QUESTIONS INVOLVED

After Plaintiff's Complaint was amended so as to include

Charles Lundquist as a party Defendant said Defendant moved the

Court for an order disqualifying Plaintiff's then attorneys from

I

further proceeding in the action on the ground that his attorneys

! had at one time represented USCM and had given legal advice to

I

Defendant Lundquist. Extensive affidavits were filed by both sides

!

1 and oral testimony was taken.

I

The Honorable Gus J. Solomon, District Court Judge

j

assigned to the action, granted the motion to disqualify.

Present counsel for Plaintiff was substituted in place of the

disqualified attorneys in March of 1965.

Defendant Lundquist's motion to disqualify Plaintiff's attor-

ney, filed on August 7, 1964 was accompanied by a motion to dismiss,

for more definite statement, and a motion for summary judgment

(C. T. 243 etc. ).
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After present counsel for Plaintiff became substituted into

the case, counsel for Defendant Lundquist brought to the Court's

attention the fact that although the Court had ruled on Lundquist's

motion to disqualify it had not ruled on his motions for summary

judgment, dismissal, and for more definite statement.

Thereafter, and on June 9, 1965, the Honorable Gus J.

Solomon denied the motion to dismiss, motion for summary judg-

ment and motion for more definite statement, and in connection

with said denial rendered a two -page memorandum opinion (C. T.

268-270).

The concluding paragraph of that opinion was as follows:

"It may be that after a pre-trial order is filed, the

facts admitted in such order will make the contro-

versy ripe for decision on a motion for summary

judgment. In that event, the Defendant LUNDQUIST

will be given the opportunity to file such a motion.
"

Thereafter, Judge Solomon, due to the press of court

business in his own district, relinquished the case and it was

assigned to Honorable Harry Westover.

A pre-trial conference was ordered held, and in connection

with that contemplated pre-trial conference Defendant Lundquist

submitted a proposed pre-trial conference order (C. T. 271 etc.).

The Court continued the pre-trial conference until March, 1966.

Plaintiff had filed over thirty exhibits he had proposed to introduce

into evidence (See C. T. 316-318).
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On March 4, 1966 Defendant Lundquist renewed his motion

for a summary judgment and for dismissal.

In opposition to the motion for summary judgment counsel

for Plaintiff filed his own affidavit in opposition (C. T. 316 etc. ).

Summarized, that affidavit asserted that counsel for Plaintiff had

examined many of the books and records of USCM and had attended

a number of sessions of the bankruptcy proceedings of USCM and

that as a result of counsel's investigation he acquired personal

knowledge of a number of facts, which established that the financial

statements presented to Plaintiff grossly misstated the assets of

USCM as well as its income, in particulars set forth in the affidavit,

and that Defendant Lundquist and his family had sold USCM stock

in 1960, receiving nearly $1, 000, 000. 00.

The affidavit concluded with a statement that none of the

facts asserted in the affidavit were disclosed to Plaintiff when he

made his loan to USCM and that most of the facts were discovered

by Plaintiff in 1965 through counsel's investigation. (The affidavit

is attached as Exhibit 1 to this brief. )

The Court granted the motion for summary judgment and

for dismissal (C. T. 327).

The Court should note that this is an action for fraud.

Present counsel for Plaintiff took three depositions, spent over

200 hours going through voluminous records of USCM in the custody

of the trustee in bankruptcy, interviewed numerous persons, read

several transcripts of proceedings conducted in connection with the

USCM bankruptcy, and spent approximately one week in the court
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of Referee James Moriarty, listening to testimony concerning the

affairs of USCM, consulted with counsel for Defendant Lundquist

in the preparation of a 38-page pre-trial statement, and prepared

and filed numerous contentions of fact. These contentions embod-

ied the conclusions counsel for Plaintiff reached on the basis of

the above investigation, and are conclusions based on an analysis

of original, authenticated records (See C. T. 341-346 for conten-

tions of fact).

Counsel's investigation, as reflected in Plaintiff's conten-

tions of fact, disclosed that during the very month that Plaintiff

was induced to agree to loan USCM his money. Defendant Lundquist

sold 7, 760 shares of USCM stock for a total gross price in excess

of $80, 000. 00. In addition, in June of 1960, approximately 5

months prior to Plaintiff's agreeing to loan USCM his money,

Lundquist sold 9, 600 shares of USCM stock for a total gross sales

price of $261, 600. 00. Sales of Lundquist's relatives were not in-

cluded in those figures. Lundquist did not reveal these facts to

Plaintiff.

Plaintiff was only one of a number of persons who loaned

USCM substantial sums in January of 1961. Of the total loaned,

$325, 000. 00, was used to repay loans made to USCM by various

Directors, officers and relatives of Directors and officers of USCM.

These facts were not revealed to Plaintiff.

Defendant Lundquist had represented to Plaintiff that the

vending division of USCM was profitable, neglecting to disclose

to Plaintiff that in fact it was losing large sums of money, that
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management had concluded that the existing vending machines of

USCM were not marketable and that a sale of the division was being

seriously considered.

The vending machine situation was so bad that the machines

as well as the rights of USCM under leases and sales contracts

for the machines, all of which were substantially delinquent, were

transferred to another corporation in return for a note for

$569, 000. 00. The corporation which purchased all those machines

and lease and sale contracts had practically no assets at the time

of the transaction and was controlled by the Directors of USCM.

At the time of the transaction the Directors of USCM put their

shares of the other corporation in the names of dummies so that

an investigation would not reveal that a majority of the shares of

the transferee corporation were owned by the officers and Directors

of USCM. All of this was brought out in the bankruptcy proceedings

before Referee Moriarty and were matters of public record in 1965.

The effect of the transaction was that USCM carried on its

books a note of $569, 000. 00. If President Lundquist had not

engineered the transaction, there would have been substantial

write-offs by the corporation's accountants based on the unmarket-

ability of the vending machines and the delinquencies in payments

by the various vendees and lessess. Ultimately these machines

were repossessed or disappeared.

In addition, the financial statement presented to Plaintiff

indicated a termination claim against Boeing Airplane Company

of $395, 551. 00, carried in the full amount thereof. Lundquist
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neglected to disclose to Plaintiff that the claim was not based on

any written contract, and that Boeing had denied liability. Shortly

after Plaintiff made his loan to USCM the amount of that asset

was substantially written down and ultimately the clainn was settled

for $100, 000. 00.

The consolidated financial statement presented to Plaintiff

showed that for the previous fiscal year USCM had earned a profit

of nearly $1, 000, 000. 00. In fact it suffered a loss that year,

which it concealed by means of such devices as above described.

In the proceedings before the Referee in bankruptcy the

trustee claimed that substantial sums were paid by USCM to its

profit sharing plan based on the profit reflected in the financial

statement shown to Turner, and that in fact profits for the year

were slight if any. The Referee in bankruptcy has ruled that the

financial statement which served as a basis for the contribution to

the employees' profit sharing fund (the same financial statement

shown to Plaintiff) vastly misstated the results of operations for

I

that fiscal year.

[

Why Defendant Lundquist, who was President of USCM,

I engineered this deception cannot be known for sure. Had the true

I

facts concerning the financial health of the corporation been dis-

! closed to the debenture purchasers such as Plaintiff, and to the

public at large, no one would have bought the debentures and pre-

i

sumably the USCM stock would have fallen much faster than in fact

' it did fall in 1960 and Lundquist would not have been able to realize

I the hundreds of thousands of dollars of profit that he made when he
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sold his stock in USCM.

Counsel for Plaintiff has recited above only some of the

deceptions practiced by Lundquist. And although, at least for

purposes of this appeal, the above statements are my own asser-

tions, the fact remains that in the bankruptcy proceedings the

Referee has announced that there was a gross falsification of

USCM's financial position in its financial reports. And although

Defendant Lundquist was not technically a defendant in the bank-

ruptcy proceedings before Referee Moriarty, the fact remains that

he had a sufficient interest to be in attendance almost every day of

the hearings and that Robert DriscoU, counsel for Defendant Lund-

quist in this action, was counsel in the bankruptcy proceedings.

Hence, USCM was found to have distributed grossly misleading

financial statements in a proceeding in which for all practical

purposes Defendant was the real party in interest.

Thus in analyzing this case this Court should at least be

aware of the fact that Defendant Charles Lundquist is guilty of the

grossest kind of fraudulent deception and that this was found to

be the case by a Referee of the United States District Court for the

Southern District of California.

Justice demands that Plaintiff be given an opportunity to

prove the fraud and compel Lundquist to disgorge some of the pro-

fits he has made by his manipulations.
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SPECIFICATION OF ERRORS

1. The motion to dismiss should have been denied be-

cause the first amended Complaint was not defective.

2. The motion to dismiss should have been denied even

if the first amended Complaint was defective, in order to give

Plaintiff an opportunity to remove any technical defect by amend-

ment.

3. The motion to dismiss should have been denied be-

cause said motion previously had been made to Judge Solomon and

had been denied by him, and this became the law of the case as to

any coordinate judge.

4. The motion for summary judgment should have been

denied because a previous motion based on facts of the same legal

significance had been denied by Judge Solomon, and such denial was

the law of the case as to any coordinate judge.

5. Before ruling on the motion for summary judgment

the Court should have granted Plaintiff's counsel's request for

leave to file an additional affidavit in the event that the existing

affidavits on file were insufficient to raise a genuine issue of fact.
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ARGUMENT

I

THE MOTION TO DISMISS SHOULD HAVE
BEEN DENIED BECAUSE THE AMENDED

COMPLAINT WAS NOT DEFECTIVE.

To this day Appellant's counsel is not sure exactly why the

trial Court granted Defendant Lundquist's Motion to Dismiss. The

trial Court, in granting the Motion to Dismiss and the Motion for

Summary Judgment, did not file a Memorandum of Opinion which

might have indicated the basis for its decision. There were, how-

ever, remarks made by the Court and counsel at the time of hear-

ing on Defendant Lundquist's Motion to Dismiss and Motion for

Summary Judgment, which remarks are transcribed in Volume 2

of the Clerk's Transcript. Appellant's counsel can only assume

that the reasons for the Trial Court's action may be inferred from

the Trial Court's statements at the time of oral argument.

The Trial Court remarked (C. T. 4-5) as follows:

"I went over these files the other day and it seems

to me that the motion must be granted. I will tell

you why . . . then you say in paragraph VI: 'Defend-

ants and each of them solicited Plaintiff to purchase

- -' now, that's fine, but in Paragraph VII you say:

'In so soliciting Plaintiff to purchase. Defendant

Roland made the following representations. ' Now,

you don't say that Lundquist did anything at all. All

you allege is that Lundquist was a member of the
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board of directors and that he was president. Now how

can you maintain an action with that sort of an allega-

tion?"

However, page 3 of the first Amended Complaint (C. T. 4)

states in part as follows:

"In so soliciting Plaintiff to purchase said debentures,

Defendant Roland made the following representations,

among others, to Plaintiff with the knowledge, con-

sent and assistance of Defendant Lundquist. ..."

Further, on page 2 of the first Amended Complaint, Plaintiff

alleged that "Defendants, and each of them, solicited Plaintiff to

purchase. . .
".

In view of the above allegations, we submit that the agency-

relationship between Defendants Lundquist and Roland, both of

whom were officers and directors of the corporation, was sufficient-

ly alleged so as to make the representations of Defendant Roland

binding upon Defendant Lundquist.



1
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II

THE MOTION TO DISMISS SHOULD HAVE
BEEN DENIED EVEN IF THE FIRST A-
MENDED COMPLAINT WAS DEFECTIVE, IN
ORDER TO GIVE PLAINTIFF AN OPPORTUN-
ITY TO REMOVE ANY TECHNICAL DEFECT

BY AMENDMENT.

Plaintiff's contentions of fact filed with the trial court before

the hearing on the Motions to Dismiss and for Summary Judgment

contained numerous allegations of conduct by Defendant Lundquist

and numerous allegations concerning the financial condition of

USCM, which Defendants concealed from Plaintiff. Said contentions

of fact also recited numerous representations that were set forth

in Plaintiff's contentions as being representations of Defendants .

The contention that Defendants concealed numerous facts from

Plaintiff and that Defendants made numerous affirmative misrepre-

sentations are set forth in detail at pages 341-346 of the Clerk's

Transcript.

Hence, even if the first Amended Complaint did not suffi-

ciently allege Defendant Lundquist's participation in the representa-

tions, the contentions of Plaintiff on file with the trial court gave

notice to all concerned that Plaintiff was contending that the mis-

representations were by Defendant Lundquist as well as Roland.

Further, aside from the above, the exhibits lodged with

the court before oral argument on Defendant's motions included

numerous documents signed by Defendant Lundquist and admitted

by Defendant Lundquist in the pretrial statement to have been
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executed by him. See, for example, references in the pretrial

statement (C. T. 284-285) to Plaintiff's Exhibit 1, which was a

copy of an agreement between USCM and certain lenders, including

Plaintiff. The pretrial statement admitted that Defendant Lund-

quist executed said agreement on behalf of USCM and that Plaintiff

also executed the agreement. This agreement was the agreement

pursuant to which Appellant purchased the debenture from USCM.

The agreement contained the following representation:

"The financial statements, including the balance

sheet and income statement as at and to September

30, 1960, and all notes thereto, which were hereto-

fore delivered to you, present fairly the consolidated

financial condition of the company and its subsidiaries

at September 30, 1960, and the results of operations

of such corporations for the periods specified

therein. ..."

Exhibit 3 lodged with the court, referred to in the pretrial

statement (C. T. 284) was a copy of a letter to Plaintiff from USCM

signed by Defendant Lundquist as president of USCM and on behalf

of USCM. Exhibit 5 was a copy of the USCM annual report for the

fiscal year ended January 31, 1960. It was admitted in the pre-

trial statement that Plaintiff received said annual report in Decem-

ber 1960 at the same time he received a copy of Exhibit 3. Said

financial statement purported to show a profit for USCM and its

subsidiaries of approximately one million dollars for the preceding
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year.

In a nutshell, the significance of the above Exhibits is as

follows: Defendant Lundquist, on behalf of USCM, made a repre-

sentation to Appellant in Exhibit 1 lodged with the trial court that

the financial statements dated January 31, 1960 and September 30,

1960 fairly represented the financial situation of USCM as and for

the periods covered in those respective statements. A large part

of Appellant's case is that in fact they did not fairly represent the

financial situation of USCM. All of this was made known to the

trial court on oral argument on Defendant's motions.

In this connection, counsel for Appellant argued to the trial

court as follows:

"Furthermore, I could be in error, but I believe that

the Complaint alleges an agency relationship between

Roland and Lundquist, so that the representation of

Roland would be a representation of Lundquist. . . .

But more than that, your Honor, you have representa-

tions in the financial statements of USCM which are

signed by Defendant Lundquist, representations and

the agreement pursuant to which Mr. Turner pur-

chased stocks; representations that the financial

statements submitted to Mr. Turner accurately re-

presented the financial condition of the company. . . .

However, it seems to me that any defect that may

have existed, and I am not conceding that it did exist

in the Complaint, has been cured by the allegations of





the Plaintiff in the pretrial statement. We have gone

this far and I would hate to think that on the eve of

trial the Plaintiff is going to be thrown out of Court

because perhaps technically he may have not alleged

specifically that Defendant Lundquist made any repre-

sentations. I would be prepared to amend the Com-

plaint accordingly and set forth the representations

that were made by the Defendant Lundquist. ... If

the Court is correct that there is a defect and if this

defect has not been cured by the pretrial statement,

then I submit that I should have an opportunity to cure

that defect which, as far as I am concerned is purely

technical, because we have got the facts, we have

alleged them in an affidavit and alleged them in the

pretrial statement and we can allege them in the Com-

plaint if necessary. " (C. T. V. 2, 6-7).

Hence it must be conceded that Appellant contended through-

out the proceedings that Defendant Lundquist as well as Roland

i

made misrepresentations and that the fact that Defendant Lundquist

j

did make representations was proved by Plaintiff's pretrial Exhibits

I

j

and conceded by Defendant Lundquist in the pretrial statement. All
I

[

of this was brought to the attention of the trial court, and if there

i

was any technical defect in Plaintiff's first Amended Complaint, he

could have amended it to cure any technical defects. And as shown

on page 7 of Volume 2 of the Clerk's Transcript, Plaintiff's counsel





requested the opportunity to file an amended Complaint if the Court

felt that the existing Complaint was defective in its statement of a

claim against Defendant Lundquist.

If the Court felt that the first Amended Complaint was defec-

tive, it was error for the Court to grant Defendant Lundquist's

Motion to Dismiss without first giving Plaintiff an opportunity to

cure the defect by amendment. An analysis of the above subject is

contained in Barron and Holtzoff, Federal Practice in Procedure,

Volume lA, Section 356 as follows:

"The motion to dismiss for failure to state a claim

on which relief can be granted is viewed with disfavor

in Federal Courts because of the possible waste of time

in case of reversal of a dismissal of the action, and

because the primary objective of the law is to obtain

a determination of the merits of the claim. . . . The

United States Supreme Court has endorsed the accepted

rule that a complaint should not be dismissed for failure

to state a claim unless it appears beyond doubt that

the Plaintiff can prove no set of facts in support of

his claim which would entitle him to relief. . . the

test is whether in the light most favorable to Plaintiff,

and with every intendment regarded in his favor, the

Complaint is sufficient to constitute any valid claim.
"

In United States v. Thurston County Nebraska, 54 F. Supp.

201 (affirmed at 149 F. 2d 485 - 8th Circuit), the court stated:





"The rule is that it (motion to dismiss), should be

denied, though the connplaint be infirm, if it is

reasonably conceivable that at the trial upon the

merits the Plaintiff might establish a cause of action

(citations). " (Matter in parenthesis supplied).

And in John Walker and Sons v. Tampa Cigar Co. , 197

F. 2d 72, 73 (5th Circuit), the Court stated:

"It is also elementary that a complaint is not subject

to dismissal unless it appears to a certainty that the

Plaintiff cannot possibly be entitled to relief under

any set of facts which could be proved in support of

its allegations. Even then, a Court ordinarily should

not dismiss the Complaint except after affording

every opportunity to the Plaintiff to state a claim

upon which relief might be granted. "

The above case was quoted with approval in reversing a

dismissal in Black v. First National Bank of Mobile, Alabama ,

255 F. 2d 373 (5th Circuit).

I In Nagler v. Admiral Corporation , 248 F. 2d 319 (2nd Cir-

j

cuit), the trial court had dismissed for improper pleading. The

' appellate court stated:

i

[

"The drastic remedy here granted for pleading errors

is unusual, since outright dismissal for reasons not

going to the merits is viewed with disfavor in the





federal courts. . . .

"Courts naturally shrink from the injustice of denying

legal rights to a litigant for the mistakes in technical

form of his attorney .... We are clear, therefore,

that the case must go back for some less final dis-

position at least permitting plaintiffs to amend. "

III

BOTH THE MOTION TO DISMISS AND THE
MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT SHOULD
HAVE BEEN DENIED BECAUSE A PREVIOUS
MOTION BASED ON FACTS OF THE SAME
LEGAL SIGNIFICANCE HAD BEEN DENIED
BY ANOTHER COORDINATE JUDGE.

As mentioned above. Defendant Lundquist's original Motion

to Dismiss and Motion for Summary Judgment were denied by Chief

Judge Solomon of Oregon, while on assignment to the United States

District Court of the Southern District of California. Judge Solo-

mon had previously disqualified Plaintiff's original counsel from

further proceeding in the action, after a lengthy hearing involving

oral testimony, extensive affidavits and legal memoranda. Hence

Judge Solomon was intimately famiiliar with the case when he denied

Lundquist's Motions to Dismiss and for Summary Judgment, Judge

Solomon previously having handled numerous matters related to

the case, extending over a period of many, many months. However,

Judge Westover, newly assigned to the case and not previously

having decided any matter of substance concerning the case, granted





Defendant Lundquist's Motions when renewed by said Defendant.

As far as Appellant can determine, anything favorable to

Lundquist's Motions which was presented to Judge Westover had

previously been presented to Judge Solomon,

In Comimercial Union of South America Inc. v. Anglo-South

American Bank, 10 F. 2d 937, one Judge of the District Court had

denied a Motion to Dismiss the Complaint on the ground of insuffi-

ciency. A second judge granted the Motion when later renewed.

The Court of Appeals reversed, holding that regardless of the

propriety of the first judge's denial of the Motion, the ruling was

the law of the case and should not have been changed by another

judge. In the words of the Court:

"... the decision made by Judge Mack was the law

of the case as established in the District Court, and

should have been so treated by any other judge sitting

in the same case in that Court. Judges of co-ordinate

jurisdiction, sitting in the same Court and in the same

case, should not overrule the decisions of each other.
"

Hence aside fronn the propriety of Chief Judge Solomon's

denial of Lundquist's Motions for Dismissal and for Summary Judg-

ment, it was not for another United States District Court Judge to

in effect overrule the previous ruling of Chief Judge Solomon.

Appellant recognizes that if Lundquist had presented legally

significant additional facts to Judge Westover, which had not previ-

ously been presented to Judge Solomon, that conceivably Judge
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Westover could have ruled differently from Judge Solomon. How-

ever, the fact is that in this case no legally significant facts were

presented to Judge Westover that had not previously been presented

to Judge Solomon. Therefore, the principle that the ruling of one

judge shall not be overruled by a judge of a co-ordinate court should

apply in this case.

IV

REGARDLESS OF ANY PREVIOUS RULING BY
A CO-ORDINATE JUDGE, THERE WAS A TRI-
ABLE ISSUE OF FACT ON THE STATUTE OF
LIMITATIONS, AND SUMMARY JUDGMENT

SHOULD NOT HAVE BEEN GRANTED.

During oral argument to the trial court, appellant's attorney

stated (C. T. V.. 2, 13-14):

"There was a Motion by Defendant Lundquist for Dis-

missal of the Complaint for Summary Judgment, for

More Definite Statement, and all of these Motions were

denied by Judge Solomon in a Memorandum Opinion

which I have attached as an Exhibit to my own Memo-

randum. So I thought that point was put to rest.
"

Appellant's counsel went on to state (C. T. V. 2, 21-22):

"I submit, your Honor, that when the Plaintiff dis-

covered or should have discovered the facts constituting

the fraud is a question of fact and should not be resolved

on a Motion for Summary Judgment, and I am
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representing to the Court that if the Court feels that

the affidavits presented by the Plaintiff thus far are

deficient, that I am prepared to supply additional affi-

davits by myself and by my client, further indicating

the dates upon which he discovered specific misrepre-

sentations. ... If the Court feels that the affidavits

are deficient in this respect, I am prepared to submit

additional affidavits by myself and Mr. Turner nailing

down with even greater detail the specific times when

the various misrepresentations and concealments were

discovered, your Honor. "

This writer believes that first, Defendant Lundquist's

Motions should have been denied because already previously denied

by another judge of the same court; secondly, that the Affidavit of

myself (C. T. 316 etc. ) and the Affidavit of Robert A. Smith, original

counsel for Plaintiff (C. T. 87 etc. ) clearly demonstrated that when

the Statute of Limitations against Plaintiff began to run was a

triable question of fact; thirdly, in view of the prior ruling and in

view of the affidavits submitted by Plaintiff, if the judge newly

assigned to the case felt that additional affidavits would be necessary

to establish a triable issue of fact. Plaintiff's counsel should have

been given an opportunity to file such additional affidavits. And,

as shown by the record. Plaintiff's counsel at the time of oral

argument stated that he would file additional affidavits if the Court

felt that the existing ones were insufficient.





The general principles with respect to the granting of Mo-

tions for Summary Judgment are set forth in Moore's Federal

Practice, Volume 6, pages 2853-54 as follows:

"The party moving for Summary Judgment

has the burden of establishing by a record that is

adequate for decision of the legal question presented

that there is no triable issue of a material fact; and

he has the burden even as to issues upon which the

opposing party would have the trial burden. And the

moving party's papers are carefully scrutinized,

while the opposing party's papers, if any, are treated

with considerable indulgence. If the moving party

fails to shoulder his burden his motion should be

denied, even though the opposing party has presented

no evidentiary materials in opposition, and has not

presented any 56 (F) affidavit.
"

Hence we submit that even in the absence of any affidavits

by Plaintiff or his counsel, the Motion for Summary Judgment

should have been denied because the moving party presented no

evidence as to when Plaintiff discovered or should have discovered

the facts constituting the fraud.

Barron and Holtzoff , Volume 3, states as follows (p. 132):

"A movant is not entitled to Summary Judgment

unless the facts established show a right to judgment

with such clarity as to leave no room for controversy





and show affirmatively that the adverse party cannot

prevail under any circumstances (numerous citations). "

Pages 135-136:

"Summary Judgment must be denied if the

evidence is such that conflicting inferences could be

drawn therefrom or if reasonable men might reach

different conclusions (numerous citations).
"

Pages 138-140:

"One who moves for Summary Judgment has

the burden of demonstrating clearly that there is no

genuine issue of fact. Any doubt as to the existence

of such an issue is resolved against him. The evidence

presented at the hearing is liberally construed in favor

of the party opposing the Motion and he is given the

benefit of all favorable inferences which might reason-

ably be drawn from the evidence (numerous citations).
"

Pages 175-176:

"Summary Judgment is a drastic remedy, and

the Courts properly have been liberal in exercising their

discretion under Rule 56 (F) and giving the party opposing

the motion full opportunity to show any genuine issue

which may exist, even where the party could have

made that showing at the time the motion came on for

hearing. "

In Tracer Lab. , Inc. v. Industrial Mucleonics Corporation,
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313 F. 2d 97 (1st Cir. ), there was a suit for misappropriation of

trade secrets. The applicable state's Statute of Limitations was

two years, excluding the time during which a person liable fraudu-

lently conceals a Cause of Action from the knowledge of the person

entitled to bring the action. The Court of Appeals held that there

was a genuine issue of material fact as to when Plaintiff had the

requisite knowledge (page 102 of the opinion) and "consequently we

believe that the District Judge erred in holding that the suit was

barred by the Statute of Limitations".

In Dictograph Products Co. , Inc. v. Sonotone Corp. , U. S.

D. C, S. D. New York (1951). 95 F. Supp. 126, Plaintiff alleged

fraud. Defendant moved for Summary Judgment on the ground of

laches. Motion was denied because "It cannot be determined with

assurance on the present record that the Plaintiff had or was

chargeable with such knowledge of the fraud . . .
".

In Gonzales v. Tuttman. U. S. D. C. , S. D. New York (1945),

59 F. Supp. 858, Defendant moved for Summary Judgment on the

ground of the Statute of Limitations. The fourth cause of action

was based on an alleged violation of Puerto Rican Law. The Puerto

Rican Statute of Limitations required the action to be brought

within three years after the discovery by the aggrieved party of the

facts upon which the penalty or forfeiture attached or the liability

was created. The Court held:

"The burden of establishing that no material

issue of fact is present on the Motion for Summary

Judgment rests on the moving party. . . . Every





doubt should be resolved against the moving party. . . .

The moving party has failed to sustain its burden

and hence a material issue of fact being present,

the Court must deny the Motion for Summary Judg-

ment as to the first and the third causes of action.
"

As to the Puerto Rican Cause of Action, the Court stated:

"The moving papers present an issue of fact

as to just when the facts creating a liability were dis-

covered and hence even assuming the Puerto Ricans

Statute applies, which the Court does not decide, there

is an issue of fact which necessitates a denial of the

motion as to this cause of action.
"

And as to any alleged technical deficiency in the affidavits,

the Court should note the following cases:

In Corley v. Life and Casualty Insurance Company of

Tennessee , 296 F. 2d 449 (1961), the Court of Appeals reversed a

Trial Court Summary Judgment on the grounds that Rule 56(e),

"... does not require an unequivocal ruling that the

evidence suggested in this particular affidavit would

be admissible at the trial as a condition precedent to

holding the affidavit raises a genuine issue.
"

The Court concluded:

"It is therefore possible and perhaps probable,

that Lockhart's alleged admission out of Court will be





admissible .... This is sufficient to defeat the

Motion for Summary Judgment because the Courts

are inclined to hold the movant to a strict demon-

stration that no genuine issue exists.
"

And in United States v. Western Electric Co. , 337 F. 2d

568 (9th Cir. 1964), the Court of Appeals reversed a Summary-

Judgment. The affidavit in opposition was technically deficient

because made under penalty of perjury and not under oath. The

Court said that if the appellee's had objected to use of the Declara-

tion, "the defect could have been remedied by appellants filing an

affidavit in lieu of the declaration".

This Circuit concluded:

"Moreover, while Rule 56 (e) does not state

any different requirement for opposing affidavits

than for the movant's affidavits, 'the paper support-

ing the movant are more clearly scrutinized whereas

the opponent's are indulgently treated'.
"

CONCLUSION

Even after Plaintiff's counsel argued extensively to the

Trial Court with reference to the Agency allegations of the Com-

plaint, and with reference to the Contentions set forth in the pre-

1 trial statement and the Exhibits lodged with the Court showing that

the representations relied on by Plaintiff were made by Defendant





Lundquist, the Trial Court still stated at page 26 of Volume 2 of

the Clerk's Transcript as follows:

"That you don't allege any place, as far as I

know, that LUNDQUIST ever made a misrepresentation

to your client.
"

This writer of course disagrees with the Trial Court's

above statement since the amended Complaint did allege that the

representations made by Roland were made with the knowledge,

consent and assistance of Defendant Lundquist, and since the Com-

plaint further alleged that Defendant solicited Plaintiff. However,

even if the Trial Court were correct in its above statement, the

record before the Trial Court, including the pretrial statement,

Plaintiff's Contentions of Fact and the Exhibits on file, all showed

that Lundquist, in writing, represented to Plaintiff what the

financial condition of USCM was as set forth in the financial state-

ments shown to Plaintiff. If this was not sufficiently set forth in

the Complaint, the Trial Court should have deemed the pretrial

statement to have superseded the Complaint in that respect and to

have cured that defect. Otherwise, the Trial Court should have

permitted Plaintiff's counsel to amend the Complaint to cure the

defect, if any, as requested by counsel during oral argument.

This writer still cannot believe that after a case has been

pending for several years, after discovery has been completed,

after a detailed pretrial statement and Plaintiff's Contentions have

been filed, and after 39 proposed Exhibits are filed by Plaintiff,





and approximately one month before the date set for trial, that the

Trial Court would dismiss the action on the basis of a defect which

does not exist, and which if it did exist was purely technical.

On page 20 of Volume 2 of the Clerk's Transcript, the follow-

ing statement was made by the Trial Court:

"Well, now if Mr. LUNDQUIST made these

misrepresentations, then you should have discovered

he made the misrepresentations as soon as Mr. ROLAND

made the misrepresentations. You say they did it

jointly. Why couldn't you just discover that if ROLAND

made a misrepresentation, then LUNDQUIST made a

misrepresentation. You said they did it jointly.
"

While it is difficult to speculate as to exactly what the Court

had in the back of its mind on the basis of the above quoted state-

ment, it appears to this writer that what was bothering the Court

was that Defendant Lundquist was not made a party Defendant ori-

ginally, and that he was brought into the action as a party defendant

by means of an amended Complaint. The Trial Court's apparent

distaste for Plaintiff not making Lundquist a party Defendant when

the action was originally filed, it seems to this writer, might have

been relevant when Plaintiff requested permission to file an amended

Complaint naming Lundquist as a Defendant. Judge Solomon per-

mitted an amended Complaint to be filed naming Lundquist as a

Defendant. It would appear to this writer that Judge Westover

might have refused Plaintiff permission to file an amended





Complaint naming Defendant Lundquist as a party to the action and

that it is this apparent attitude of Judge Westover with the respect

to the propriety of filing an amended Complaint adding Lundquist

as a Defendant, which has caused Judge Westover to grant the

motions made by Defendant Lundquist. We submit that how Judge

Westover might have ruled on Plaintiff's Motion to File an Amended

Complaint naming Lundquist as an additional Defendant had the

Motion been heard by Judge Westover, is no proper basis for Judge

Westover to grant Defendant Lundquist 's Motions to Dismiss and

for Summary Judgment.

This writer respectfully urges this Court to give careful

consideration to Volume 2 of the Clerk's Transcript, which sets

forth in 31 pages what transpired at the hearing on Lundquist's

Motions before Judge Westover.

Lundquist was made a Defendant in May of 1964. Almost

two years thereafter, and less than one month before the scheduled

trial date. Plaintiff is thrown out of Court, after literally hundreds

of hours of work and preparation for trial. All the Appellant re-

quests is his opportunity to have his day in Court. All he wants

I

is the opportunity to present the facts showing the fraud and the

!
circumstances which caused him to learn of the fraud. Then, after

[

Plaintiff has had his day in Court, it will be proper for the trier

of fact to determine 1) whether there was fraud; and 2) whether

j

Plaintiff discovered or should have discovered the facts constituting

' the fraud more than 3 years before Defendant Lundquist was made

I

a party Defendant. We are prepared to accept an adverse finding





on both whether there was fraud and on whether the Statute of

Limitations had run before Lundquist was made a party Defendant.

What we object to, however, is the Court making findings on these

issues before Plaintiff has had a fair opportunity to present his

case.

Appellant asks this Court to give him the opportunity to

have this day in Court.

Attached as an appendix to this brief and incorporated

hereat is a legal analysis showing that the applicable Statute of

Limitations is three years from when the fraud was discovered or

should have been discovered. The analysis is virtually the same

as that presented to Judge Solomon prior to that Judge's denial of

Defendant Lundquist' s Motions to Dismiss and for Summary Judg-

ment.

Respectfully submitted,

RICHARD H. LEVIN

Attorney for Plaintiff and
Appellant.
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CERTIFICATE

I certify that in connection with the preparation of this

brief, I have examined Rules 18 and 19 of the United States Court

of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, and that, in my opinion, the

foregoing brief is in full compliance with those rules.

/s/ Richard H. Levin

RICHARD H. LEVIN
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EXHIBIT I

I, RICHARD H. LEVIN, declare as follows: I am attorney

of record for Plaintiff in this action. Since becoming attorney of

record for Plaintiff I have personally examined many of the books

and records of United States Chemical Milling Corporation in the

custody of the trustee in Bankruptcy and the Referee in Bankruptcy.

I have also attended a numiber of Sessions of the bankruptcy pro-

ceedings before Referee Moriarty, where it is claimed that the

USCM annual report for the fiscal year ended January 31, 1960

falsely claimed that USCM made a substantial profit that year

whereas in fact it had sustained a substantial loss.

As a result of the above investigation I have acquired

personal knowledge of the following facts:

1. Defendant LUNDQUIST and other USCM directors

owned and controlled the Unimerc Corporation at a time when

they caused Unimerc to purchase almost worthless conditional

sales contracts held by USCM in exchange for a Unimerc note

for $569, 662. 63. At that time Unimerc had practically no assets.

This permitted USCM to carry the Unimerc note on USCM's books

at face value, thus avoiding a $400, 000. 00 writedown on the value

of the conditional sales contracts for the fiscal year ended

January 31, 1960.

2. In January of 1960 Darco Industries, a wholly owned

subsidiary of USCM, sold certain machinery to Unimerc Corpora-

tion for $208, 000. 00, for which USCM received a note in that

Exhibit 1.





amount from Unimerc. Darco or USCM immediately leased the

property back from Unimerc, and Darco took a $91, 250. 00 gain on

the sale. This was a mere paper transaction between related cor-

porations, which permitted USCM to show a $91, 250. 00 gain for

the fiscal year ended January 31, 1960.

3. In 1960 Defendant LUNDQUIST and his family sold

USCM stock receiving nearly one million dollars for said stock.

4. The money Plaintiff loaned USCM was to be used

to pay Defendant LUNDQUIST, his family and Mr. Driscoll's law

partner CLAYTON HURLEY amounts owing them for loans to USCM.

5. The annual report for the fiscal year ended January

31, 1960 carried as an asset in the full amount thereof a termina-

tion claim of $395, 551. 00 against Boeing Airplane Co. . There was

no written contract between USCM and Boeing, and Boeing had

denied liability on the claim.

6. In February of 1960 USCM transfered 573 Barvend

vending machines to Unimerc Corporation in return for a note for

$372, 450. 00. The machines were unmarketable, and the effect of

the transfer was to permit USCM to carry a brand new note for

$372, 450. 00 as an asset in lieu of these unmarketable machines.

The results of these dummy transactions and grossly overstated

assets was to permit USCM to present to Plaintiff a materially

misleading picture of its financial position to induce him to make

his loan to USCM.

None of these facts were disclosed to Plaintiff when he

made his loan to USCM, and most of these facts were discovered

Exhibit 1.





by Plaintiff in 1965 through my investigation, as a result of attend-

ing sessions of the USCM bankruptcy proceedings still pending

before Referee Moriarty.

Mr. Turner is outside the County of Los Angeles at this

time.

/s/ Richard H. Levin
RICHARD H. LEVIN

Subscribed and sworn to before me
March 9. 1966.

Marian Y. Anderson
My Commission Expires Feb. 24, 1967

(SEAL) I si Marian Y. Anderson
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APPENDIX

THE COMPLAINT IS NOT SUBJECT TO A MOTION TO

DISMISS BASED UPON THE STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS.

1. The First Cause of Action .

a. There is no federal statute of limitations

applicable to actions under 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act

of 1934 (15 U. S. C. §78j) .

Unlike section 12 of the Securities Act of 1933 (15 U. S. C.

§77) which is governed by a one year statute of limitations as set

forth in section 13 of the same act (15 U. S. C. §77m), section

10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U. S. C. ^78j)

does not have its own statute of limitations. Professor Loss dis-

cusses this question as follows:

"What statute of limitations governs when,

as in the case of Rule lOb-5, none is provided in

the act? Section 29(b) was amended in 1938, as

part of the Maloney Act amendments to ^15(c) by

the insertion of a statute of limitations with refer-

ence to actions under §29(b) based on alleged vio-

lation of a rule adopted under 15(c)(1). But there

is no reference to § 10(b) in any other section,

and there is no federal statute of limitations for

civil actions generally. " III LOSS, SECURITIES

REGULATIONS 1771 (2d ed. 1961).

It has been argued that since the Securities Act of 1933
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provides comprehensive remedies for buyers, any buyer bringing

an action under the more general section 10(b) of the Exchange

Act of 1934 should have to meet the same one year statute of

limitations applicable to buyer actions under section 13 of the 1933

Act (15U,S. C. 77m). Section 13 reads as follows:

"No action shall be maintained to enforce

any liability created under section 77k or 771(2)

of this title unless brought within one year after

the discovery of the untrue statennent or the omis-

sion, or after such discovery should have been

made by the exercise of reasonable diligence, or,

if the action is to enforce a liability created under

section 771(1) of this title, unless brought within

one year after the violation upon which it is based.

In no event shall any such action be brought to en-

force a liability created under section 77k or 771(1)

of this title more than three years after the security

was bona fide offered to the public, or under section

771(2) of this title more than three years after the

sale. ..."

The contention that this section should be applied to actions brought

by buyers under section 10(b) was expressly rejected in the case of

Premier Industries, Inc. v. Delaware Valley Financial Corp . , 185

F. Supp. 694 (E.D. Pa., 1960):

"Moreover section 77m (section 13 of the

L
Securities Act) expressly refers to liability under
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"section 77k and section 771(2) [sections 11 and

12(2) of the Securities Act respectively], and for

this court to extend its application to other sec-

tions of either act by judicial interpretation

would be an affront to the legislative process.

Finally, aside from all that has been said, there

are such cases as Osborne v. Mallory , 86 F. Supp.

869 (S. D. N. Y. , 1949);Tobacco and Allied Stocks

V. Transamerica Corp. , 142 F. Supp. 323 (D. Del.,

1956), and other cited cases therein, which have

expressly held that the statute of limitations

applicable to actions under section 77q [Section

17 of the Securities Act] or Section 78j [Section

10b of the Exchange Act] of title 15 U. S. C. A.

is the applicable state statute of limitations. "

Id., 666.

The same result was reached by the Ninth Circuit of Appeals in

Ellis V. Carter, 291 F. 2d 270 (1961). The court in that case

considered four alternative methods of handling buyer actions

brought under section 10(b) of the 1934 act and finally adopted

the method which freed such actions of, among other things, the

one year statute of limitations contained in section 13 of the 1933

act:

"... we consider it [the alternative adopted

by the court] the most acceptable of the four

possible alternatives. It gives controlling
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weight to what seems to have been the dominant

policy of Congress to provide complete and

effective sanctions, public and private, with

respect to the duties and obligations imposed

under the two acts. It requires no variance in

proceedings under the 1934 act as between buyer

and seller, no reason appearing why Congress

would have wanted the procedures to be differ-

ent. While it assumes that Congress in 1934

undid what it carefully did in 1933, it avoids

judicial rewriting of the 1934 act to include

procedural provisions which appear only in the

1933 act. As between the two acts which deal

with the problem, it permits the most recent

enactment to govern. " Id . , 274.

b. Actions brought under Section 10(b) are controlled by

the applicable state statute of limitations governing actions based

on fraud or deceit--in this case the three year limitation provided

in §338 of the California Code of Civil Procedure .

As noted in the Premier Industries case, supra , it has

been held with regularity that when claims for relief of a legal

nature are asserted under section 10(b), the action is governed

by the applicable state statute of limitations. The Ninth Circuit

on two occasions has held that the applicable statute of limitations

is the limitation governing actions based on fraud:

"This court held in Fratt v. Robinson ,
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"203 F. 2d 627 (9th Cir. , 1953) at p. 634, that

under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934,

the statute of limitations of the State of Wash-

ington applied when the unlawful acts occurred

in Washington. This is true in our instant case.

The applicable Washington statute provides for

a three-year statute of limitations for fraud and

further provides that the cause of action is not

deemed to have accrued until discovery by the

aggrieved party of the facts constituting the

fraud. " Errion v. Connell , 236 F. 2d 447.

(9th Cir. , 1956).

Section 338(4) of the California Code of Civil Procedure

provides a three year limitation for

"... an action for relief on the ground of fraud

or mistake. The cause of action in such case

not to be deemed to have accrued until the dis-

covery, by the aggrieved party of the facts con-

stituting the fraud or mistake. "

c. By both federal policy and the express language of the

applicable California statute of limitations, the limitations period

does not commence to run until such time as the aggrieved party

discovers the facts constituting the fraud.

In the case of Tobacco and Allied Stocks, Inc . v. Trans -

america Corp . , 143 F. Supp. 323 (D. C. Del., 1956) the court held:

"The leading case in the federal courts





I

"applying the equitable rule to suits at law

is Bailey v. Glover . 88 U. S. (21 Wall) 342,

decided in 1874. The Supreme Court held

where there has been no fault or want of

diligence or care, the bar of limitations

included within a federally created right

does not commence to run until fraud has

been discovered. . . .

"Restated, the federal doctrine means

that limitation and laches does not begin to run

until evidence of fraud is discovered or could

have been discovered had reasonable diligence

been exercised. . . .
" _Id . , 328, 329.

The rationale for this rule was stated by Mr. Justice Frankfurter

in Holmberg v. Armbrecht , 327 U. S. 392(1946):

"It would be too incongruous to confine

a federal right within the bare terms of a state

statute of limitations unrelieved by the settled

federal equitable doctrine as to fraud, when

even a federal statute in the same terms

would be given the mitigating construction

required by that doctrine. . . . The mitigating

federal doctrine applied in Bailey v. Glover ,

supra , and in the series of cases following

it governs. " _Id_. , 397.

d. The complaint is not subject to a motion to dismiss
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based upon the statute of limitation .

As a general rule the statute of limitations is an affirma-

tive defense and must be raised in the answer. However, where

the complaint shows on its face that the action is barred by the

statute of fraud, it may be raised by a motion to dismiss. Fisch -

back & Moore, Inc. v. International Union of Operating Engineers ,

198F.Supp. 911 (S. D. Cal. , 1961). It should be noted however,

that in order to be subject to a motion to dismiss based on limita-

tions the bar must appear clearly on the face of the complaint and

there must not be any disputed question of fact. lA BARRON AND

HOLTZOFF, FEDERAL PRACTICE AND PROCEDURE, ^281,

p. 190, (Rules edition, 1960) and cases cited therein.

In the instant case the plaintiff has based his action on

fraud and has alleged in paragraph XI of the first cause of action,

that at the tinne of purchase of the securities in question, plaintiff

was unaware of the fraud that had been perpetrated upon him. Im-

plicit in this allegation is the fact that plaintiff did not discover the

fraud until later; and of course the applicable statute of limitations,

section 338(4) of the California Code of Civil Procedure, did not

start until such time as plaintiff did discover the defendant's

fraud. Accordingly, the motion to dismiss does not lie, because

the bar of the statute does not appear on the face of the complaint.

2. The Second Cause of Action.

The second cause of action of plaintiff's complaint is based

on section 17(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 (15 U. S. C. §77q).

It was held in Osborne V. Mallory, 86 F. Supp. 869 (D. C.
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N. Y. , 1949), that the considerations governing the selection of a

statute of limitations applicable to actions based on section 17(a)

of the Securities Act were the same as those applicable to section

10(b) of the Exchange Act. The court there ruled as follows:

"The applicable statute of limitations

to actions under section 17 of the 1933 Act and

§10(b) of the 1934 Act would be that of the forum,

since the two federal acts do not provide any

period within which suits must be brought under

those sections. . . . [T]he applicable statute of

limitations of the State of New York is found

in the New York Civil Practice Act, §48(2)

and (5), a six year statute. "

The considerations governing selection of the appropriate Cali-

fornia statute in the instant case, the tolling of the statute because

of undiscovered fraud, and the applicability of the statute as a bar

to the present action are discussed at length above and will not be

repeated here.

3. The Third Cause of Action.

The plaintiff's third cause of action is based on common

law fraud and deceit; and the applicable statute of limitations,

section 338(4) of the California Code of Civil Procedure, does not

begin to run until the fraud is discovered.
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No. 21091

IN THE

United States Court of Appeals
FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

Joe Turner,

Plaintiff and Appellant,

vs.

Charles H. Lundquist,

Defendant and Appellee.

APPELLEE'S BRIEF.

A. Statement of the Pleadings and Facts.

The case at bar against Appellee Lundquist was com-

menced on May 12, 1964, by the filing in the District

Court for the Central District of California of a first

Amended Complaint by Appellant Turner.

This is an action for damages for fraud under the

Federal Securities Acts. The alleged fraud occurred in

connection with appellant Turner's purchase, on Janu-

ary 3, 1961, of certain debentures issued by United

States Chemical Milling Corporation (USCM). Tur-

ner originally sued Roland, the Treasurer of USCM, on

April 19, 1963. Later, on May 12, 1964, he filed a

First Amended Complaint [Tr. 2]* naming, for the

first time, appellee Lundcjuist, the President of USCM,
as a defendant. Lundquist and Roland had both been

*References to transcript of record on appeal are cited "Tr."

followed by the page number.



officers and directors of USCM on January 3, 1961.

Both the original complaint (against Roland) and the

first amended complaint (against Roland and Lund-

quist) alleged essentially the same facts, except the orig-

inal complaint made no mention of Lundquist, nor did

it allege that anyone acted jointly with Roland. The

first amended complaint was framed in three causes of

action.

The first cause of action sets forth certain represen-

tations alleged to constitute a violation of Section 10(b)

of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Rule X-

lOB-5 of the Rules and Regulations of the Securities

and Exchange Commission which induced Turner to

purchase $100,000.00 of debentures of USCM.

Moreover, Turner alleged that defendants omitted to

inform Turner of certain material facts. Turner al-

leged (para. XV of the first amended complaint) that

if he had known of said facts, or any of them, he

"would not have purchased said debentures."

The second cause of action incorporates the same

facts, and alleges a violation of Section 17(a) of the

Securities Act of 1933, 15 U.S.C.A. Section 77q.

The third cause of action apparently alleges an action

for fraud and deceit at common law.

Jurisdiction of the District Court over the first cause

of action is based on Section 27 of the Securities Act

of 1934, 15 U.S.C.A. Section 78aa.

The District Court's jurisdiction over the second

cause of action is based on Section 22(a) of the Se-

curities Act of 1933. 15 U.S.C.A., Section 77v.

The first amended complaint does not state the basis

for the District Court's jurisdiction over the third cause
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of action, nor does Appellant's Opening Brief disclose

any specific basis for jurisdiction. Presumably, juris-

diction as to the third cause of action rests upon the

doctrine of pendent jurisdiction.

It is contended that this court has jurisdiction to re-

view the judgment in question by reason of Rule 73(a)

of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

Defendant Lundquist's answer [Tr. 11] in addition

to containing detailed denials, sets up several affirma-

tive defenses, including the one-year Statute of Limita-

tions under 15 U.S.C.A. 77n and 78r, laches, failure to

bring the action within the time within a reasonable

time after the facts alleged were discovered or should

have been discovered, and the defense that the action

was barred by the applicable State laws establishing

limitations of action, citing California Code of Civil

Procedure, Section 338, subsection 4 (action for relief

on ground of fraud—3 years).

Before filing his answer, Lundquist filed a Motion

to Dismiss and a Motion for Summary Judgment [Tr.

243] urging that the first amended complaint failed

to state a claim against Lundquist upon which relief

can be granted, and urging that summary judgment

should be granted because the claims against Lundquist

are barred by all applicable Statutes of Limitations.

This same motion sought to disqualify plaintiff's orig-

inal attorneys on the grounds that such representation

was unethical and unconscionable. This latter motion

was granted by the Honorable Gus J. Solomon, but the

motion to dismiss and motion for summary judgment

were not ruled on at that time.

Later, in Jnue 1965. when the motion to dismiss

and motion for summary judgment were renewed, the
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same were denied by Judge Solomon, who concluded

that although the three year statute of limitations ap-

plied, there were several reasons for denying the mo-

tion to dismiss, and in a Memorandum Opinion [Tr.

268] dated June 9, 1965, stated:

"Defendant Lundquist's motion for summary judg-

ment reasserts some of the matters set forth in his

motion to dismiss and, in addition thereto, asserts

matters which may be contradicted. A motion for

summary judgment should never be granted where

a claim for relief has been defectively stated. It

must appear that no claim for relief can exist. I

do not find such a situation here.

"Each of defendant Lundquist's motions is there-

fore denied."

Judge Solomon then added these significant and pro-

phetic words

:

"It may be that after a pretrial order is filed,

the facts admitted in such order will make the con-

troversy ripe for decision on a motion for sum-

mary judgment. In that event, the defendant Liind-

qiiist will he given the opportunity to file such a

motion." (Italics added).

Thereafter, a pre-trial conference order was filed

February 21, 1966 [Tr. 271].

On March 4, 1966, defendant Lundquist again filed

a Motion for Summary Judgment [Tr. 309] which was

also a Motion to Dismiss for failure to state a claim

and to dismiss the action and each cause of action be-

cause barred by the Statute of Limitations.

The Motion for Summary Judgment was based on

the same affidavits of Charles H. Lundquist [Tr. 34



and 174] previously filed in connection with the earlier

motions denied by Judge Solomon without prejudice.

No pleadings, affidavits or other evidence was filed

or introduced by Turner contradicting Lundquist's af-

fidavits to the effect that Turner waited more than

three years and four months after purchasing the de-

bentures before suing Lundquist for the alleged fraud.

No excuse or avoidance of the Statute of Limitations

was pleaded or raised, by affidavit or otherwise, despite

Judge Solomon's invitation to do so, supra. In fact, the

affidavit of James D. Harris, plaintiff's previous

counsel, shows that plaintiff knew the facts on which

the first amended complaint was based before he ever

contacted Harris [Tr. 96] and that "All of the evi-

dence and information upon which the first amended

complaint is based derives from transactions and events

occurring prior to January 3, 1961.'' (Emphasis sup-

plied). As of the date the renewed Motions [Tr. 309]

for Summary Judgment and Dismissal came on for

hearing, the first amended complaint showed clearly on

its face that the action was barred by the three-year

statute of limitations as to the first and third causes

of action, and by the one-year statute of limitations as

to the second cause of action. No second amended com-

plaint was ever filed, nor were any amendments pro-

posed which would show waiver, extension or excuse of

the statute of limitations.

Accordingly, the Honorable Harry Westover granted

both the Motion to Dismiss and the Motion for Sum-

mary Judgment [Tr. 327], from which Turner has ap-

pealed to this Court.
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B. Statement of the Case.

Appellant's purported "Statement of the Pleadings

and Facts" and "Statement of the Case" in the early

portions of his brief are so twisted, confused, and

mixed with rank hearsay, conjecture and argument as

to be totally misleading and irresponsible. Appellee,

who controverts said statements, will therefore set forth

the facts in this case, as they appear from the record,

without reference to hearsay or opinion, and without

reference to other lawsuits between other litigants about

different issues.

Taking as factually correct, for purposes of this ap-

peal, the allegations of plaintiff-appellant Turner set

forth in the first amended complaint [Tr. 2], the ma-

terial portions thereof are as follows

:

A close and confidential relationship existed between

Turner and Glen R. Roland, who was a director and

secretary-treasurer of USCM. (No such relationship

between Turner and Lundquist is alleged). As a result

of this confidential relationship, defendants Lundquist

and Roland were able to induce and solicit Turner be-

tween September 1, 1960, and January 3, 1961, to buy

debentures from USCM. Defendant Roland, in solicit-

ing Turner to buy said debentures, made seven (7)

representations "with the knowledge, consent and assist-

ance of defendant Lundquist". These representations

were that:

(1) USCM "was in sound financial condition",

(2) The offered debentures were "a sound, secure in-

vestment,"

(3) The debentures were being offered to "sophisti-

cated investors who were purchasing for purposes

of long-range investment",
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(4) The purchasers were "acquiring said debentures

for investment, with no present intention of con-

verting and selHng the shares".

(5) The issue would be oversubscribed,

(6) The debentures were exempt from registration

under the Securities Act of 1933, and

(7) Financial statements of USCM "which were

shown to plaintiff represented truly and fairly

the condition of the business and affairs of said

corporation."

Turner believed the representations, and on or about

January 3, 1961, purchased the debentures and paid

therefor $100,000.00, in reliance on said representations.

These representations were false and untrue, and de-

fendants knew at the time, or reasonably should have

known they were false. In addition to the above affir-

mative representations, defendants, and each of them on

or prior to January 3, 1961, omitted to state or to in-

form plaintiff of eight (8) material facts. These were

that:

(1) Roland was a creditor of USCM,

(2) Defendants stood to benefit from the sale of the

debentures,

(3) USCM's financial condition had worsened,

(4) USCM "had suffered drastically changed busi-

ness conditions and the curtailment of a major

military program",

(5) The financial statements issued for the fiscal

year ending January 31, 1961, would show great-

er losses than previously disclosed,
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(6) Certain debenture purchasers intended to imme-

diately convert their debentures into common

stock,

(7) And sell the stock, and

(8) Roland had invested in, or intended to invest in,

a subsidiary of USCM to the detriment of

USCM.

Turner further alleges that defendants knew or

should have known of these eight (8) omitted facts, but

nevertheless failed to disclose them, in order to induce

Turner to buy the debentures. Turner didn't know

these facts. "If plaintiff had known of such, or any of

them," Turner alleges, he "would not have purchased

said debentures." Since the debentures are unpaid, and

USCM is insolvent and unable to pay them. Turner

has been damaged in the amount of the purchase. Ade-

quate allegations of use of mails and interstate com-

merce are pleaded.

In his original affidavit [Tr. 34] supporting the Mo-

tion to Dismiss and for Summary Judgment, Lundquist

stated that Turner was, between September, 1960, and

January 3, 1961, advised of USCM's continuing losses

and the cancellation of the B-70 program and its ad-

verse effect on USCM; that any matters in the first

amended complaint which are true were known to plain-

tiff Turner on or before April 30, 1961, more than

three years before the first amended complaint was

filed.

In a supplemental affidavit filed September 28, 1964

[Tr. 174], made by Lundquist on personal knowledge,

more detailed facts were set forth showing Turner's

knowledge of the grave condition of USCM, and at-
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tached thereto were Exhibits I through XVII, inclusive.

[Tr. 187-242, inclusive].

Lundquist, who was a director of USCM and, until

March 16, 1961, its President, also was one of the 15

persons (including Turner) who purchased the deben-

tures of USCM. The Agreement of December 1, 1960

[Tr. 187-188] shows that Lundquist agreed to buy

$420,000.00 of the debentures, and Turner agreed to

buy $125,000.00, rather than the $100,000.00 alleged in

the First Amended Complaint. Turner (as did the

other purchasers) agreed to purchase on condition that

he received from USCM's counsel a favorable opinion,

satisfactory to Turner and his counsel, as to the exemp-

tion of the issue from the Securities Act of 1933. [Tr.

189]. Each debenture purchaser was given the right at

his option to convert, in whole or in part, his debentures

into USCM common stock at $12.00 per share [Tr.

190]. The debentures were expressly made subordinate

to "Senior Indebtedness" then or thereafter incurred,

which by definition included practically all types of

debt except regular accounts payable [Tr. 196].

USCM represented and warranted [Tr. 198], among

other things, that "the financial statements, including

the balance sheet and income statement as at and to Sep-

tember 30, 1960, and all notes thereto, which were here-

tofore delivered" to Turner, "present fairly the consol-

idated financial condition of the company and its sub-

sidiaries at September 30, 1960, and the results of oper-

ations", and in Paragraph 9(C) stated:

"(C) There have been no material adverse

changes in the consolidated financial condition of

the Company and its subsidiaries, financial or oth-

erwise, since the date as of which the condition of
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such corporations is set forth in the financial state-

ments referred to in subparagraph (b) above, other

than as referred to in the accompanying letter of

even date herewith, receipt of which you hereby

acknowledge.'^ (Emphasis added).

The accompanying letter to Turner, dated December

1, 1960 [Tr. 206], states, among other things:

"A net loss of $552,932 on sales of $3,504,504

for the six months ended July 31, 1960 was re-

ported through the financial press following the let-

ter to shareholders, dated August 17, 1960.

"To date, the Company has not returned to prof-

itable operations and a substantial year-end loss is

indicated." (Emphasis added).

The August 17, 1960, letter [Tr. 208] which was

also sent to Turner, showed first half losses due to de-

fense cutbacks and anticipated profits for the second

half, which expectation was not borne out, as shown by

the December 1, 1960, letter [Tr. 206].

The September 30. 1960, Consolidated Balance Sheet

[Tr. 209], which was also furnished to Turner prior to

his debenture purchase, showed that $664,005 of the

Subordinated Convertible Notes would be converted into

capital stock. The notes to this financial statement [Tr.

211] contained the following passage

:

"3. The following transactions are included in

the pro-forma statement

:

* * *

"B. The proposed sale of $1,664,005.00 of the

Company's 6% 10-year subordinated convertible

notes— $1,000,000.00 for cash and $664,005.00 in

cancellation of existing debt. The pro-forma state-
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ment shows the effect of the conversion of the Sub-

ordinated Convertible Notes issued in cancellation

of indebtedness ($664,005.00) into $55,333 shares

of $1.00 per common stock at $12.00 per share

pursuant to an agreement to convert them into com-

mon stock prior to 1/13/61." (Emphasis added.)

This same Financial Statement [Tr. 210] showed a

net loss for the eight months ended September 30,

1960, of $996,187, which was $443,255 greater than

the net loss shown for the period ended July 31, 1960,

only two months earlier. All of this adverse financial

data was furnished to Turner before he purchased the

debentures.

On January 30, 1961, which was 27 days after Tur-

ner purchased his debentures, Turner was notified by

letter [Tr. 223] that $664,005 of the debentures had

been converted into stock.

On April 25, 1961 [Tr. 225] Turner was furnished

a Consolidated Balance Sheet and Statement of Income

and Retained Earnings as at January 31, 1961 [Tr.

226-232], and a copy of a letter to shareholders dated

April 18, 1961 [Tr. 233]. The Statement of Income

and Retained Earnings showed a loss for the year of

$2,489,583, and the April 18, 1961, letter explained that

approximately $1,600,000 of this loss was comprised of

non-recurring costs. The letter stated

:

"Unfavorable business conditions that prevailed

in the aircraft industry, including the curtailment

of a major military program which necessitated re-

alignment of the Company's manufacturing facili-

ties, were largely responsible for the adverse earn-

ings. . .
." (Emphasis added).
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On or about January 3, 1961, coincidental with the

purchase of the debentures, Turner received a legal

opinion from the Los Angeles law firm of O'Melveny

& Myers dated January 3, 1961 [Tr. 217, 218], which

pointed out, among other things, that the debenture is-

sue was considered exempt from registration under the

Securities Act of 1933 because of the express represen-

tations of the purchasers, including Turner, set forth

in the December 1, 1960 Agreement [Tr. 200]. The

pertinent provisions of this representation were as fol-

lows :

"10. Representations of the Purchasers. Each

of you, severally and not jointly, represents and

warrants, and in making this sale to you it is

specifically understood and agreed, that the Notes

being acquired by you are being acquired and will

be taken and received for your private personal in-

vestment for your own account with no intention of

reselling or otherwise distributing the Notes and

that the shares of Common Stock which you may

acquire upon conversion of the Notes or any part

thereof will also be acquired by you for your pri-

vate personal investment for your own account

with no intention of reselling or otherwise dis-

tributing such shares. You fully comprehend that

the Company is relying to a material degree on

your representations and warranties contained here-

in
"

Notwithstanding the investment intent warranty,

plaintiff Joe Turner secretly bought $25,000 of his total

$125,000 debenture purchase for the account of Glen R.

Roland, and later turned over $25,000 in debentures to

Roland. On January 29, 1964, at a deposition of Tur-
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ner taken by defendant Glen R. Roland's attorney

(James White, Esq.), Turner testified under oath that

he bought $125,000 of convertible debentures of USCM
and that there was an oral agreement between Turner

and Roland that Roland (whose nickname was "G.R.")

would take $25,000 of them, which agreement was made

in the fall of 1960 before the debentures were purchased

[Tr. 182, 185]. At said deposition, Turner also testified

about the financial advice and investigation he had re-

ceived from his banker, Mr. Dolph Montgomery, and of

other incidents relating to his debenture purchase, as

follows

:

"Q. By Mr. White: Before you purchased the

debentures in January of 1961, what assistance if

any, did you obtain from financial counselors or

financial counselor to help you decide whether or

not to go into the venture? A. I had my part-

ner, Dolph Montgomery, come out here in the Fall

of 1960; I believe probably October or November."

[p. 16, lines 15-21]

"O. In what enterprise or enterprises is or was

then Mr. Montgomery your partner? A. He was

the President of the City National Bank in Law-

ton.

Mr. Oeting: (Turner's former attorney) The

question was, Mr. Turner, in what enterprise was

he your partner.

The Witness : Oh, excuse me. He was a partner

in the theater operating company in Lawton.

Q. By Mr. White: Was it your intention that

Mr. Dolph Montgomery would take a part of the

subordinated convertible debentures? In other

words, was he going to be a co-investor with you?
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A. No. I don't think so. He had a right to take

a look at it, but his purpose was to come out here

and check the investment, if it looked good, to

loan me the money and loan Roland the money."

[p. 17, lines 3-18].

"Q. Would it be a correct statement, sir, to say

that Mr. Dolph Montgomery came out her to ad-

vise you as a partner, as a friend and as a banker

who was going to put up the cash for this transac-

tion ? A. Yes.

Q. What information, to your knowledge, was

given to Mr. Montgomery when he came out to

look into the investment and these convertible de-

bentures? A. He was given the annual financial

statement for 1960 that was published in 1960

and then a statement, I believe, as of September,

1960.

Q. All right. Did he go out to the physical

plant? A. Yes. We went out there and walked

through the physical plant and went to lunch with

Mr. Roland." [p. 18, lines 1-15].

"Q. The financial information which was given

to you and to Mr. Dolph Montgomery indicated

that the company had suffered some rather heavy

losses, didn't it? A. Yes.

Q. Can you now recall what kind of losses

were involved in accordance with the information

that was supplied to you ? A. No, I don't.

Q. Did you discuss the matter of the company

losses with Mr. Roland? A. Oh, I am sure I did.

Q. When? A. Prior to buying the deben-

tures." [p. 19, line 17, to p. 20, line 3].
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"Q. At any time before purchasing the deben-

tures did you discuss the matter with U. S. Chem-

ical Mining with your broker? A. It's possible.

Q. In any such discussion, did you learn of

the problems that were besetting the company? A.

I am sure that he would have had the same in-

formation that I had on the September statement

if I talked to him about it. I probably did." [p. 20,

line 19, top. 21, hne 1].

"Q. By Mr. White: On Defendant's A (refer-

ring to Exh. IV annexed to Lundquist's supple-

mental affidavit) there is a document called 'Notes

to Financial Statement for Period Ended Septem-

ber 30, I960.'

Paragraph 3B. That talks about this issue of

the subordinated convertible notes, does it not, sir?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you ask Mr. Willoughby whether or not

his conversions came under the terms of that sub-

paragraph, sir? A. No, in fact, I didn't pay any

attention to the subparagraph or I would never

have complained about it in the first place, would

I? I didn't even know that there was anything

about converting part of the indebtedness in that

thing. I didn't read it.

Q. Mr. Montgomery read it, didn't he? A.

Yes." [p. 46, lines 3-18].

"Q. To your present knowledge, immediately

prior to the issuance of the debentures, had the

position at USCM become materially worse than

it had been, say, throughout the prior years? A.

No, and I would be sure of this because I was al-

ready getting edgy. I found that I was out there
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all by myself in this investment and I didn't even

have a—we started out to buy a large block of

stock and GR was going to go for half of it, and

the way it wound up, here I was by myself in

the whole thing and I was a little touchy about it,

but GR and I spent the Christmas holidays to-

gether up at Tahoe. He had rented a cabin up

there and we went up there with our wives and

the families over the holidays, and that would have

been immediately in front of the time for making

the investment, and if he had said one word to

me about getting out, I think I would have run

even then. It wasn't stacking up good. My wife

was getting a little bit irritated about it.

Q. You mean this is before you bought it? A.

Yes, before the die was cast. I had signed the

agreement the first of December.

Q. But you hadn't paid anything in? A. I

hadn't put my money in. I could still holler uncle.

Q. You were getting a little nervous. What

was it that was making you nervous at the time?

A. Well, the fact that we had started out with

grand and glorious hopes of making this invest-

ment together and going on the notes together and

everything, and my way of doing business has al-

ways been, if I told you today that I was going to

take 25,000 of something you had, tomorrow morn-

ing I would be down here with my financial state-

ment and a note and give it to you. You wouldn't
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ever have to ask me again about it, and here it was

—GR had agreed to take 25,000 of this $125,000

but he didn't ever mention it again, and here we

were up there in Tahoe and this kind of irritated

me. I, let's say, was irritated with GR. In fact, I

was getting so irritated with him that I left early.

I insisted that we pack up and get out of there.

My wife was getting mad about it, too." [p. 64,

line 13, to p. 65, line 26].

"Q. In '61. I see. Did you know that USCM
had had a position in the B-70 program ? A. Yes.

Q. When did you know about that? A. Oh, I

knew that before we ever went into this thing.

That was one of the big points in the debenture

program." [p. 67, line 24. to p. 68, line 4].

"Q. You have mentioned that there was not any

correspondence between yourself and Mr. Roland

respecting the debentures. Was there any between

yourself and USCM? A. No, nothing other than

whatever they sent me in the mail, like those reports

and agreements and so forth." [p. 80, lines 7-12].

On May 12, 1964, which was three years, four

months and nine days after his purchase of the deben-

tures. Turner commenced his action against Lundquist,

by filing the first amended complaint.
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C. The Questions Presented.

The basic question presented is whether the matters

disclosed to Turner at any time before May 12, 1961,

were sufficient to put a reasonably prudent man on no-

tice, so as to start the Statute of Limitations applicable

to fraud running.

Subsidiary questions presented are

:

(1) Can, and should, this Court consider the "affi-

davit" of Attorney Levin, who has no first-hand

knowledge of any fact, and whose affidavit does

not meet any of the requirements of evidence ?

(2) Does the first amended complaint, on its face,

show that the Statute of Limitations expired be-

fore it was filed?

(3) Did the denial, without prejudice, by Judge Solo-

mon of the earlier motions to dismiss and for

summary judgment prevent those motions from

later being raised ?

(4) Can a plaintiff, after filing a lawsuit based upon

fraud, and after later joining a co-defendant for

the same fraud, re-open a case barred by the

Statute of Limitations by discovering more

"facts" on which his original cause of action was

based ?
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ARGUMENT.

I.

The Matters Disclosed to Turner More Than Three
Years Before His Bringing Suit Against Lund-

quist Were Sufficient to Put a Reasonable Pru-

dent Man on Notice, so as to Start the Running
of the Three-Year Statute of Limitations Appli-

cable to Fraud.

The alleged fraud occurred in California. Since

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 provides no stat-

ute of limitations, the three-year California Statute

of Limitations applicable to fraud actions applies in

this case. This is the finding of Judge Solomon fTr.

269] and is the rule laid down in Fratt v. Robinson.

203 F. 2d 627, at 634.

Section 338(4) of the California Code of Civil

Procedure states that the limitation period is three

years in:

"(4) An action for rehef on the ground of

fraud or mistake. The cause of action in such

case is not to be deemed to have accrued until

the discovery, but the aggrieved party, of the

facts constituting the fraud or mistake."

Here, the undisputed record is bristling with facts

showing clearly that all the matters Turner complains

of were either (1) disclosed to him by express writ-

ten documentation before the transaction was con-

summated or (2) brought to his attention more than

three years before he sued Lundquist.

The rule in California is that in actions for relief

on the ground of fraud, the Statute of Limitations
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The following appears in Wood v. Carpenter, 101

U. S. 135, 140 [25 L. Ed. 807] :

"In this class of cases the plaintiff is held to

stringent rules of pleading and evidence, 'and es-

pecially must there be distinct averments as to the

time when the fraud, mistake, concealment, or

misrepresentation was discovered, and what the

discovery is, so that the court may clearly see

whether, by ordinary diligence, the discovery might

not have been before made'. ... A general alle-

gation of ignorance at one time and of knowledge

at another [is] of no effect. If the plaintiff made

any particular discovery, it should be stated when

it was made, what it was, how it was made, and

why it was not made sooner. ... A party seek-

ing to avoid the bar of the statute on account of

fraud must aver and show that he used due dili-

gence to detect it, and if he had the means of

discovery in his power, he will be held to have

known it. . . . There must be reasonable dili-

gence; and the means of knowledge are the same

thing in effect as knowledge itself. The circum-

stances of the discovery must be fully stated and

proved, and the delay which has occurred must be

shown to be consistent with the requisite dili-

gence."

The foregoing is quoted with approval in Phelps v.

Grady, 168 Cal. 72) [141 Pac. 926]. Other cases recog-

nizing the above principles are: Original M. & M. Co.

V. Casad, 210 Cal. 71, 74, 75 [290 Pac. 456] ; Nezvport

V. Hatton, 195 Cal. 132, 146 [231 Pac. 987] ; Victor

Oil Co. V. Drum, 184 Cal. 226, 239-242 [193 Pac.

243]; Nichlos v. Moore, 181 Cal. 131, 132 [183 Pac.
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531]; Galusha v. Frascr, 178 Cal. 653, 657 [174 Pac.

311].

The case last above cited clearly and concisely states

the law. It is there declared:

"Where the plaintiff sues for relief on the

ground of fraud and seeks exemption from the

three years period of limitation for the reason that

he did not discover the fraud until after it was

perpetrated, he must not only show [ 1 ] that he

did not discover the fraud until within the three

years next before the action was begun and [2]

that the fraud was committed under such circum-

stances that he would not be presumed t ha\-e

had knowledge of it at the time, but [3] he must

also set forth the times and circumstances under

which the facts constituting the fraud came to

his knowledge so that the court may determine

from the allegations of the complaint whether the

discovery was zvithin that period.'^

Tested by the rules set down in the cited cases, the

first amended complaint in the case at bar is defi-

cient and the trial court therefore properly granted ap-

pellee's motions. Clearly, the first amended complaint

does not satisfy the first two requirements above enu-

merated in that it nowhere alleges that the fraud was

discovered within three years of the commencement of

suit nor that it was committed under such circum-

stances as to preclude any presumption of knowledge

on plaintiff's part at the time of its commission. More-

over, as already indicated, the cases recognize and de-

clare the existence of a third essential to a valid and

proper pleading in a case of this character, viz., an
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allegation as to the circumstances surrounding the dis-

covery of the fraud complained of. Such an allegation

is necessary in order that the trial court might readily

determine whether or not the facts and circumstances

leading to the discovery of the fraud existed for more

than three years prior to the commencement of suit.

It is well settled, of course, that the means of knowl-

edge are the equivalent of knowledge. (Victor Oil Co.

V. Drum, supra; Lady Washington C. Co. v. Wood,

supra; Bancroft v. Woodward, 183 Cal. 99, 108 [190

Pac. 445].) As stated in the case last above cited,

"where a party has knowledge of facts of a charac-

ter which would reasonably put him upon inquiry, and

such inquiry, if pursued, would have led to a discovery

of the fraud or other ground for rescission, he will be

charged with having discovered the fraud or other

ground as of the time he should have discovered it,

that is, as of the time when he would have discov-

ered it if he had with reasonable diligence pursued

the inquiry when he should have done so."

In the instant case no allegation touching these three

requirements is raised. For all that appears on the face

of the first amended complaint, the facts leading to

the inquiry and investigation which uncovered the fraud

may have been available to the plaintiff for more than

three years prior to the institution of this action. It

was incumbent upon plaintiff to allege the circum-

stances of the discovery in order that the trial court

might determine whether or not the information prompt-

ing and leading to the investigation was available to

plaintiff for more than three years prior to the insti-

tution of this action. The complaint here utterly fails

to allege any facts showing why such investigation was
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not made at an earlier date and, if sooner made, why it

would not have disclosed the fraud prior to the run-

ning of the period of limitations. True, the complaint

alleges the secretive character of the fraud and con-

spiracy but it was for the plaintiff to show why it

could not have been discovered earlier. Any other con-

clusion would permit a defrauded party, having at all

times the means of knowledge at his disposal, to com-

plain of such fraud long after the running of the pe-

riod of limitations by the simple expedient of alleging

that an investigation within three years of the com-

mencement of suit uncovered the fraud. This would

place a premium on dilatory tactics and would relieve a

party to exercising that diligence required by the law.

Consolidated R & P Co. v. Scarborough, 216 Cal.

698, 704-705.

The affidavit of James Harris [Tr. 97 at lines

3-6 thereof] makes it clear that all allegedly fraudu-

lent acts were admittedly committed prior to January

3, 1961. Therefore, the sole issue is whether at that

time there had been discovery by plaintiff of the facts

constituting the fraud. Tcitclbaitm v. Borders, 206 Cal.

App. 2d 634, 638, 23 Cal. Rptr. 868.

This does not require that the aggrieved party know

the exact manner in which his injury was effected, nor

the identities of all parties who may have played a

role therein. (Bainbridge v. Stoncr, 16 Cal.2d 423.

430 [106 P. 2d 423] ; cf. Staples v. Zoph, 9 Cal. App.

2d 369, 370 [49P.2d 1131].)

In Bainbridge v. Stoner, supra, at page 430, the

court stated:

"Under ordinary circumstances, a plaintiff may

not invoke the aid of a court of equity for relief
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against fraud after the expiration of the period of

limitation for such an action unless he affirma-

tively pleads that he did not discover the facts

constituting the fraud until within three years prior

to the date he filed his complaint. (Sec. 338, Code

Civ. Proc.) The word discovery as used in the

statute is not synonymous with knowledge. And
the court must determine, as a matter of law,

when, under the facts pleaded, there was a dis-

covery by the plaintiff, in the legal sense of that

term. Consequently, an averment of lack of knowl-

edge within the statutory period is not sufficient;

a plaintiff must also show that he had no means

of knowledge or notice which followed by inquiry

would have shown the circumstances upon which

the cause of action is founded. Moreover, he must

also show when and how the facts concerning

the fraud became known to him. [Citations.]"

No facts are alleged in the first amended complaint

to the effect that appellee Lundquist bore a confiden-

tial relationship to Turner. Only Roland is alleged to

have stood in such a relationship to Turner. (Roland

has since been dismissed from this action.) Lundquist

alone is the only defendant.

This lack of an alleged confidential relation between

the remaining parties to this law suit is important for

two reasons. First, appellant is unable to avail him-

self of any relaxation of the Statute of Limitations in

cases involving confidential relationships. Secondly, the

fraudulent concealment necessary to delay the running

of the Statute must be that of the defendant (Lund-

quist). This latter point is clearly spelled out in Coombes
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V. Get::, 217 Cal. 320 at 335-336 where the Court

stated

:

"The rule that an action brought for relief on

the ground of fraud shall not be deemed to have

accrued until the discovery of the fraud appHes

only when the fraud, which is the basis of the ac-

tion, is the fraud of the defendant in the case.

It has no application when the fraud charged is

that of a third party. This distinction is clearly

set forth in a decision rendered by the Circuit

Court of Appeals in the case of Hayden v. Thomp-

son, 71 Fed. 60, 70, as follows : 'The reason of

the rule that the time limited by the statute for

the commencement of an action for fraud shall

not commence to run while the defendant conceals

it is that he ought not to be permitted to take

advantage of his own wrong. Neither the reason

nor the rule has any application to a cause of ac-

tion which is fraudulently concealed from the par-

ties in interest by third persons. The fraudulent

concealment of the defendant alone will delay the

running of the statute. (Pratt v. Northam, 5

Mason 95, 112, Fed. Cas. No. 11,376; Simmons v.

Baytiard, 30 Fed. 532; Stevenson v. Robinson, 39

Mich. 160.)'"

The three-year limitation applies to all fraud actions

whether the relief demanded be legal or equitable.

Knapp V. Knapp, 15 Cal. 2d 237, 242 [100

P.2d 759]

;

Douglas v. Douglas, 103 Cal. App. 2d 29, 32,

228 P.2d 603.

A motion for summary judgment is a suitable meth-

od for testing whether the claim is barred by the Stat-
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ute of Limitations. This procedure is useful for avoid-

ing the expense and delay of an unnecessary trial if

there is no dispute as to the facts governing this de-

fense and the claim is barred as a matter of law.

3 Barron & Holtsoff, Fed. Practice & Proc,

Rules Edition, Section 1245, p. 206.

"If the record presented on motion for summary

judgment shows that plaintiff cannot successfully

refute defendant's plea of limitations, the motion

should be granted. If the defendant shows that the

applicable period of limitations has elapsed, sum-

mary judgment should not be denied on the chance

that there might possibly be facts which would toll

the Statute of Limitations. In such a case, the

plaintiff must show by affidavits, or otherwise,

facts which toll the statute." 3 Barron & Holtsoff,

supra., p. 207.

Where the record discloses that the plaintiff cannot

successfuly refute the defendant's plea of the Statute

of Limitations, the plaintiff's cause of action is

barred and the defendant is entitled to a judgment as

a matter of law.

Baker v. Sisk, 1 FRD 232, 237 (D.C. Okla.)

(1938).

California courts have also favored the summary

judgment procedure as a method of disposing of claims

which are barred by limitations.

The California procedural rule is set forth in Cali-

fornia Code of Civil Procedure, Section 437, which

provides that a defendant's motion for summary judg-

ment must be supported by affidavits containing facts

sufficient to entitle the defendant to judgment. Upon
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such a showing the complaint may be dismissed un-

less the plaintiff, by affidavit, shall show such facts

as may be deemed by the jvidge hearing the motion

sufficient to present a triable issue of fact.

Where the affidavits of the moving party are on

their face sufficient, and the opposing party fails to

come forward with counter-affidavits to show that his

case has merit, the motion should be granted.

Heifer v. Hubert, 208 Cal. App. 2d 22, 25,

24Cal. Rptr. 900;

Craig v. Earl, 194 Cal. App. 2d 652, 655. 15

Cal. Rptr. 207.

In the Heifer case, supra, at 208 Cal. App. 2d, pages

25-27, sets forth a recent summation by a CaHfornia

court of the applicable rules governing summary judg-

ments on the ground of limitations, where the court

states

:

"Where the affidavits of the moving party are

on their face sufficient, and the opposing party

fails to come forward with counteraffidavits to

show that his case has merit, the motion should

be granted. {Craig v. Earl, 194 Cal.App.2d 652

[15 Cal.Rptr. 207]; Newport v. City of Los An-

geles, 184 Cal.App.2d 229 [7 Cal.Rptr. 497] ; Mini

V. Culberg, 183 Cal.App.2d 657 [7 Cal.Rptr. 146]

;

Estate of Kelly, 178 Cal.App.2d 24 [2 Cal.Rptr.

634] ; Kelly v. Liddicoat, 35 Cal.App.2d 559 [96

P.2d 186].)

"It is not enough that the complaint alleges suf-

ficient facts. The value of the motion for sum-

mary judgment is that it may be used, under the

limitations set forth above, to distinguish between
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a case raising a genuine issue of fact and one

supported only by adept pleading. (See Coyne v.

Krempels, 36 Cal.2d 257, 262 [223 P.2d 244];

Hicks V. Bridges, 152 Cal.App.2d 146, 148 [313

P.2d 15] ; Atchison v. McGee, 141 Cal.App.2d 515

[296 P.2d 860] ; Schessler v. Keck, 138 Cal.App.

2d 663, 668 [292 P.2d 314] ; Cone v. Union Oil

Co., 129 Cal.App.2d 558, 562 [277 P.2d 464].)

"An action for relief on the ground of fraud

must be brought within three years, but the cause

of action is 'not to be deemed to have accrued

until the discovery, by the aggrieved party, of the

facts constituting the fraud.' (Code Civ. Proc,

§338. subd. 4.)

"The rules governing the application of this

statute are summarized in Hobart v. Hohart Es-

tate Co., 26 Cal.2d 412 at p. 437 [159 P.2d 958],

as follows:

'The provision tolling operation of the statute

until discovery of the fraud has long been treated

as an exception and, accordingly, this court has held

that if an action is brought more than three years

after commission of the fraud, plaintiff has the

burden of pleading and proving that he did not

make the discovery until within three years prior

to the filing of his complaint. [Citations.] Further,

although negligence by the person defrauded is not

a defense to a promptly brought action based upon

intentional misrepresentation [citation], the cases

construing section 338, subdivision 4, supra, have

held that plaintiff must affirmatively excuse his

failure to discover the fraud within three years

after it took place, by establishing facts showing

that he was not negligent in failing to make the
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discovery sooner and that he had no actual or pre-

sumptive knowledge of facts sufficient to put him

on inquiry. . . .

'It is not in every case, however, that a person

is barred after three years by failure to pursue an

available means of discovering possible fraud. The

statute commences to run only after one has knowl-

edge of facts sufficient to make a reasonably pru-

dent person suspicious of fraud, thus putting him

on inquiry. Section 19 of the Civil Code provides:

"Every person who has actual notice of circum-

stances sufficient to put a prudent man upon in-

quiry as to a particular fact, has constructive no-

tice of the fact itself in all cases in which, by

prosecuting such inquiry, he might have learned

such fact." (Italics added.)'

"When the facts known to the plaintiff are sus-

ceptible to opposing inferences, the question of

whether he has notice of 'circumstances sufficient

to put a prudent man upon inquiry' is a question

of fact. (Hobart v. Hobart Estate Co., supra, at

p. 440; Ramey v. General Petroleum Corp., 173

Cal.App.2d 386, 400 [343 P.2d 787]; Sime v.

Malouf, 95 Cal.App.2d 82, 104 [212 P.2d 946,

213 P.2d 788].) On the other hand, when knowl-

edge had by or imputed to plaintiff is such as

to compel the conclusion that a prudent man would

have suspected the fraud, the court may deter-

mine as a matter of law that there had been 'dis-

covery.' (Bainbridge v. Stoner, 16 Cal.2d 423,

430 [106 P.2d 423]; Lady Washington Consol.

Co. V. Wood, 113 Cal. 482, 486 [45 P. 809] ; Haley

V. Santa Fe Land Imp. Co., 5 Cal.App.2d 415

[42 P.2d 1078].)"
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Applying the foregoing legal principles to the facts

in the instant case, it can be seen that matters were

brought to Turner's attention both by letters addressed

to him which he received, and by meetings and discus-

sions with Roland and others, which should have put

a reasonably prudent man on notice that the alleged

misrepresentations of which Turner complains were, at

best, misunderstandings by Turner because of his fail-

ure or refusal or neglect to read the various documents

furnished to him as a part of the transaction. More-

over, the alleged omissions to state or inform Turner

of materials facts simply evaporate upon examination

of the facts, since all of the matters which Turner

claims were not disclosed to him were in fact dis-

closed to him well in advance of the closing of the

debenture issue on January 3, 1961, and certainly

became known to him upon distribution of the financial

statement in April, 1961, more than three years before

he sued Lundquist.

Taking as true Turner's allegations that there were

seven misrepresentations, the true facts relating to each

of these seven misrepresentations became known to him

or should have become known to him no later than

April, 1961, when the financial statements for USCM
for the fiscal year ended January 31, 1961, were dis-

tributed to Turner, which financial statements showed

a substantial year-end loss [Tr. 233].

Clearly, Turner should have pursued his claim against

Lundquist, if in fact he had a claim, long before the

date he initiated his action against Lundquist on May

12, 1964. Since the Statute of Limitations is favored

by the law (West v. Cincinnatti N.O. & T.P. Rail-

way Co., 108 F. Supp. 276 D.C. Tenn. 1953) and
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since periods of limitation are established to cut off

rights, justifiable or not, that might otherwise be as-

serted, such periods of limitation must be strictly ad-

hered to by the judiciary.

Olin Mathieson Chemical Corp. v. U.S., 265 F.

2d 293 (C.A. 111. 1959).

Here, as both sides admit, the issuer of the deben-

tures, USCM, has since gone bankrupt, a fact from

which the court can infer that company personnel

have scattered, records have become lost, and memories

have faded. To proceed to trial in this case, and at-

tempt to resurrect stale evidence through testimony of

accountants and others to disprove the contentions al-

leged by Turner would undoubtedly place the defendant

Lundquist in a position of extreme hardship. It is for

this very reason that statutes of limitations have been

enacted by the Legislatures.

Statutes of Limitations are statutes of repose and are

intended to prevent revival and enforcement of stale

demands against which it may be difficult to defend,

because of lapse of time, fading of memory, and pos-

sible loss of documents.

Munter v. Lankford, 127 F. Supp. 630, aff'd.

232 F. 2d 373, 98 U.S. App. D.C. 116.

Statutes of Limitations are, in their conclusive ef-

fects, designed to promote justice by preventing sur-

prises through the revival of claims that have been

allowed to slumber until evidence has been lost, memo-

ries have faded and witnesses have disappeared.

Rothensies v. Electric Storage Battery Co., 329

U.S. 296 at pp. 301 and 302, 67 S.Ct. 271,

at p. 273, 91 L. Ed. 296.
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With respect to the fairness of Statutes of Limita-

tions, the Supreme Court in the Rothensies case, supra,

continues as follows, 329 U.S. at page 301, 67 S. Ct.

at page 273

:

"The theory is that even if one has a just claim

it is unjust not to put the adversary on notice

to defend within the period of limitation and that

the right to be free of stale claims in time comes

to prevail over the right to prosecute."

Accordingly, the judgment of the lower court grant-

ing the motion to dismiss and granting the motion for

summary judgment should be affirmed.

II.

The "Affidavit" of Attorney Richard H. Levin in

Opposition to the Motion for Summary Judg-

ment Is Deficient.

Rule 56(e) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure

States

:

"(e) FORM OF AFFIDAVITS; FURTHER
TESTIMONY. Supporting and opposing affida-

vits shall be made on personal knozvkdge , shall set

forth such facts as would be admissible in evi-

dence, and shall show affirmatively that the affi-

ant is competent to testify to the matters stated

therein. Sworn or certified copies of all papers or

parts thereof referred to in an affidavit shall be

attached thereto or served therewith. The Court

may permit affidavits to be supplemented or op-

posed by depositions or by further affidavits."

(Italics added.)
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In opposition to appellee's motion for summary judg-

ment, attorney Richard H. Levin filed and served a

"Declaration" which was notarized and therefore pre-

sumably constitutes an affidavit [Tr. 316-19]. Rule

56(e) sets forth three requirements for an opposing

affidavit: (1) personal knowledge; (2) admissibility;

and (3) competency of the affiant.

A fair reading of Attorney Levin's "Affidavit" dis-

closes that not a single one of these three require-

ments was met.

First, his "personal knowledge" can only be hearsay

and opinion. Everything he allegedly learned in this

case, he learned "since becoming attorney of record

for plaintiff". This happened in March of 1965 (App.

Op. Br. p. 6). IN other affidavits and from the first

amended complaint itself, it clearly appears that all of

the facts upon which appellant's case is based occurred

on or before January 3, 1961, and certainly no later

than April 30, 1961, approximately four years before

Mr. Levin became an attorney in the case and before

he examined any records. It is impossible to create

"personal knowledge" in Mr. Levin as to any facts

involved in this law suit. His review of records might,

if he were qualified as an expert witness (which he

is not), permit him to give his opinion as to the mean-

ing or content of those records. No such qualifications

appear in any of the pleadings or affidavits filed in

this case.

Secondly, there are no facts set forth in Mr. Levin's

affidavit which would be admissible in evidence. On

the contrary, he purports to recite what transpired

at a "number of sessions of the bankruptcy proceed-

ings" before Referee Moriarty, without adding that he
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only attended three or four sessions out of several dozen

which took place. Furthermore, his recollection of what

transpired is certainly not evidence, much less admis-

sible evidence. Furthermore, such material as is set forth

in Mr. Levin's affidavit, even if it is deemed to be

evidence, is not relevant since it merely recites that

Mr. Levin discovered facts in the course of an inves-

tigation. The date on which a substituted attorney dis-

covers facts is certainly irrelevant when the issue be-

fore the court is when did the plaintiff discover the

facts upon which his first amended complaint is based.

Evidence must be relevant to be admissible.

Uniform Rule 7

;

People V. Jones, 42 Cal. 2d 219, 222, 266 P.

2d 38.

In addition, there are policy reasons for excluding

Mr. Levin's purported evidence, the most important of

which are (1) undue prejudice, (2) unfair surprise,

(3) confusion of issues, and (4) undue consumption

of time.

See:

McCormick, pp. 314-319;

1 Wigmore, Section 29a;

Witkin, Calif. Evidence, p. 134.

Obviously, it is highly prejudicial to appellee to be

confronted with a statement by a substituted attorney,

who was brought into the case almost two years after

it was originally instituted against another defendant,

and almost one year after it was instituted against

appellee, where the thrust of the new attorney's af-

fidavit is that he didn't discover the facts upon which

the original and first amended complaint (prepared by

a predecessor attorney) were based until after the new
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attorney had been substituted in. Certainly, such whim-

sical "discovery" should not be the basis of denying

a motion for summary judg"ment. Likewise, unfair

surprise would be sanctioned if an attorney or a sub-

stituted attorney could prevent the disposition of a case

in a summary judgment proceeding based on statute of

limitations, by the mere allegation that the attorney

didn't discover the facts until after the complaint on

which the facts were based had been filed and re-

sponsive pleadings thereto had been filed. Surely, no

attorney going into a trial knows each and every fact

which is going to develop during the course of that

trial. If, after a law suit had been tried, the attorney

could reopen the case and overcome the argument of

statute of limitations by merely stating that he had

"discovered" a new fact during the course of the

trial which he did not have at his disposal at the

time the complaint was drafted, the pleadings framed,

and previous discovery taken, the statute of limita-

tions could be effectively removed from the law, and

the courts wDuld be burdened forever with stale claims.

The purpose of a motion for summary judgment is

to accord expeditious justice and to break log-jams in

conjested court dockets.

3 Barron & Holtaoff, Fed. Pract. & Proc,

p. 96.

Mr. Levin's affidavit, if considered relevant, certain-

ly confuses the issues and calls upon the court to con-

sume an undue amount of time. All of these reasons

militate against the admissibility of such documents.

Finally, the Federal rule clearly requires that the af-

fidavit "show affirmatively that the affiant is com-

petent to testify to the matters stated therein." No-
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where is such an affirmative showing set forth in the

affidavit. Indeed, no such showing could be set forth

in good faith by Mr. Levin since his competency to

testify to matters which transpired some four years

before he ever learned anything about the case would

be nil.

The same rules prevent the admission of any of the

other affidavits furnished on behalf of appellant, which

make up a part of this record. It is interesting to note

that appellant himself never has filed a single affidavit.

For the reasons hereinabove set forth, the affidavit

of Richard H. Levin, if it can in any way be con-

strued as constituting an attempt to extend or toll the

statute of limitations, should be rejected and disregard-

ed because of its obvious failure to meet the require-

ments of Rule 56(e).

III.

The First Amended Complaint Shows on Its Face

That the Statute of Limitations Expired Before

It Was Filed.

The accepted rule that a complaint should not be

dismissed for failure to state a claim unless it appears

beyond doubt that plaintiff can prove no set of facts

in support of his claim which would entitle him to re-

lief {Connelly v. Gibson, 355 U.S. 41, 45-46, 78 S. Ct.

99, 102, 2 L. Ed. 2d 80 (1957)) precludes dismissal

for insufficiency of the complaint except in the ex-

traordinary case where the pleader makes allegations

which show on the face of the complaint some insuper-

able bar to relief.

Wright, Fed. Courts, 250 (1963)

;

Corsican Productions v. Pitchess, 388 F. 2d 441,

442-443.
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The motion to dismiss should be determined upon al-

legations of the complaint and undisputed facts as they

appear from pleadings, orders, and records of the case.

The court must enter judgment forthwith if it ap-

pears that the moving party is entitled to a judgment

as a matter of law.

Vol. IA Barron & Holtsoff, Fed. Pract. & Proc.

Sec. 356, p. 369.

It clearly appears from the first amended complaint

that it was filed on May 12, 1964. This is the filing

stamp affixed in the upper right hand corner. It also

clearly appears from the first amended complaint that

the alleged fraud occurred between September 1. 1960,

and January 3, 1961. There is no allegation anywhere

in the complaint as to when plaintiff-appellant dis-

covered the falsity of the misrepresentations or the

facts which were concealed. There is no allegation that

the concealment or misrepresentation continued after

January 3, 1961.

The three-year statute of limitations, which is the

longest possible statute of limitations applicable to any

of the causes of action, is a matter of law. The very

debenture which Turner claims he was fraudulently

j

induced to buy, contains numerous references to the

I other documentation and agreements that preceded it.

j
all of which would put any reasonably prudent man on

I

notice of the very things of which Turner was com-

I

plaining.

I

Therefore, as a matter of law, the first amended com-

i plaint shows on its face that the statute of limitations

expired before the first amended complaint was filed.

I

Therefore a motion to dismiss was proper and the judg-

ment granting said motion should be affirmed.



The cases cited by appellant in support of the proposi-

tion that appellant should have been given an opportun-

ity to remove any technical defect do not apply to the

instant case and are not authority to support a rever-

sal. The first case cited by appellant, United States v.

Thurston County, Nebraska, 54 F. Supp. 201, is au-

thority for the proposition that in ruling on a motion to

dismiss, doubt should ordinarily be resolved against the

motion; whereas, upon a trial on the merits, doubt

usually inclines the scale adversely to him who has the

burden of proof. That case did not involve the statute

of limitations, Rather, it involved an effort by the

United States, as plaintiff, to obtain a judgment on the

merits predicated on the fact that the defendant's mo-

tion to dismiss had been denied.

In the case of John Walker & Sons v. Tampa Cigar

Company, 197 F. 2d 72, cited by appellant, which was

an action for infringement of trademarks, the District

Court dismissed the complaint and the Appellate Court

held that the complaint presented a factual issue as to

whether or not the defendant's use of the name

"Johnny Walker" in connection with its sale of cigars

was likely to cause confusion or mistake or to deceive

purchasers. The case did not involve the statute of

limitations nor did it appear to a certainty from the

complaint in that case that the plaintiff could not state

a cause of action.

Both the cases of Black v. First Natl. Bank of

Mobile, Alabama, 255 F. 2d 373, and Negler v. Ad-

miral Corporation, 248 F. 2d 319, involved dismissals

not going to the merits and the District Court's dismiss-

al in both cases were reversed. Of course, it is the

policy of the Federal Courts, pursuant to the Federal
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Rules, not to dismiss a complaint that meets the plead-

ing requirements of briefness and clarity. However,

where the complaint affirmatively discloses the defect

going to the merits of the case, and therefore shows

that a cause of action cannot be stated, an order dismiss-

ing the complaint is proper and the moving party is

entitled to a judgment as a matter of law.

Sheaf V. Minn. St. Paul & S.S.M.R. Rail Co..

CCAN.D. 1947, 162 F. 2d 110.

Under Rule 12, a complaint may be dismissed on mo-

tion if clearly without any merit, and this want of merit

may consist in an absence of law to support a claim of

the sort made, or facts sufficient to make a good claim,

or in the disclosure of some fact which will necessarily

defeat the claim.

DeLoach v. Crozvky's, Inc.. CCA 5th 1942, 128

F. 2d 378.

Generally, where a complaint alleges facts constitut-

ing a claim for relief, and also alleges facts which con-

stitute a valid defense, unless it alleges further facts

avoiding such defense it may be attacked by demurrer

or motion to dismiss.

Leggett v. Montgomery Ward Co. (C.A. 10th,

1949), 178F. 2d436, atp. 439.

The action should be dismissed when the complaint,

on its face, shows the bar of limitations.

Snckow Borax Mines Consolidated. Inc. v.

Borax Consolidated Limited (1950 C.A. 9th

Cal). 185 F. 2d 196, cert. den. 340 U.S. 943,

95 L. Ed. 680, 71 S. Ct. 506, reh. den. 341

U.S. 912. 95 L. Ed. 1349, 71 S. Ct. 620.
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See also

:

61 A.L.R.2d321,ct seq.;

Wright v. Bankers Service Corp. (D.C. Cal.

1941), 39 F. Supp. 980 app. dism.;

Wright v. Gibson, 128 F. 2d 865, holding motion

to was proper.

IV.

The Denial, Without Prejudice, by Judge Solomon of

the Earlier Motions to Dismiss and for Sum-
mary Judgment Did Not Prevent Those Motions

From Later Being Raised.

Plaintiff cites the case of Commercial Union of

South America, Inc. v. Anglo-South American Bank,

10 F. 2d 937, in support of his contention that the de-

nial by Judge Solomon of the motion to dismiss con-

stituted the law of the case and bound Judge Westover

so as to preclude Judge Westover from ruling on that

motion when it was renewed. The Commercial Union

case, supra, was decided before Erie v. Tompkins and

did not involve a situation at all similar to the instant

case where Judge Solomon in his Memorandum Opinion

of June 9, 1965, carefully indicated that the denial of

the motion was without prejudice and could be renewed

after the pre-trial order was filed [Tr. 321-322]. Had

Judge Mack, in making his original decision in the

Commercial Union case, supra, added the proviso set

forth by Judge Solomon entitling the defendant to re-

new his motion after the pre-trial order clearly the de-

cision of the Court of Appeals in the Commercial Union

case would have been different.

Moreover, appellant Turner completely overlooks the

fact that the obvious purpose of Judge Solomon's reser-
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vation of the court's right to rehear the motions was an

open invitation to Turner to contradict the matters as-

serted by Lundquist in his affidavits [Tr. 321]. Such

contradiction was never forthcoming from appellant,

unless we consider the "affidavit" of Mr. Levin, which

for reasons stated above should be disreg'arded.

Accordingly, and in view of the express reservation

of the court to rehear the matter on motion, the rul-

ing of Judge Solomon did not becomes res judicata on

the question of whether defendant-appellee was entitled

to judgment.

Conclusion.

An examination of the conclusions set forth in Ap-

pellant's Opening Brief shows that they are without

merit.

The supposed agency relationship (App. Op. Br. p.

30) must of necessity have been merely a relationship

existing between USCM as principal and Roland and

Lundquist as its agents. Since plaintiff did not see fit

to join USCM as a party, and did not allege that Ro-

land was Lundquist's agent or that Lundquist was Ro-

land's agent, nor did appellant state in his pleading any

reason for not joining USCM, no agency relationship

was alleged.

Rule 19(c), F.R.C.P.

On pages 31 and 32 of his Opening Brief, appel-

lant admits that discovery had been completed and the

proposed exhibits had been filed. This alone would

furnish the basis for reopening the motion in accord-

ance with the suggestion of Judge Solomon, since the

exhibits proposed to he offered by plaintiff-appellant
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[Tr. 284-290] include the agreement dated as of De-

cember 1, 1960 [Tr. 187], the 6% note [Tr. 203],

the December 1, 1960 letter [Tr. 206], the August 17,

1960 letter [Tr. 208], the financial statement for the

period ending September 30, 1960 [Tr. 209], the letter

of December 21, 1960 [Tr. 212], the annual report

for the fiscal year ended January 31, 1961 [Tr. 285],

all of which clearly show that Turner had knowledge,

sufficient to put a reasonable man on inquiry, as to each

of the alleged misrepresentations and omissions, well

prior to three years in advance of the date he sued

Lundquist. Thus, rather than contradicting Lund-

quist's affidavits. Turner confirmed them.

On page 32 of his Opening Brief, appellant, appar-

ently through the ignorance of his counsel, mis-states

the record by suggesting that defendant Lundquist

should have opposed appellant's original motion to add

Lundquist as a defendant, and that the trial court

thereupon might have denied Turner's application to

add Lundquist as a party. Appellant overlooks the

facts that this motion was ex parte insofar as Lund-

quist was concerned, and Lundquist was not even served

until July 14, 1964.

Appellant has had his day in court. In fact, he has

had several days in court. In an effort to generate a

case where none exists, he has made allegations of

fraud and omission which would require weeks if not

months of testimony, including the testimony of ac-

countants and other experts, to refute. Appellant's en-

tire case is based on his ignorance of facts, all of

which were clearly spelled out in the documentation

furnished as part of the debenture transaction, receipt

of which he acknowledges in the pretrial statement.
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It is hard to see a case that more clearly lends it-

self to speedy disposition by the summary judgment

procedure than the present one.

Appellee respectfully urges this court to confirm the

judgment of the District Court in granting the motion

for summary judgment and the motion to dismiss.

Respectfully submitted,

Hurley & Driscoll,

By Robert W. Driscoll,

Attorneys for Defendant-Appellee.
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IN THE UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

JOE TURNER,

Plaintiff and Appellant,

vs .

CHARLES H. LUNDQUIST,

Defendant and Respondent.

APPELLANT'S CLOSING BRIEF

BOTH THE MOTION TO DISMISS AND THE MOTION FOR SUMMARY

JUDGMENT SHOULD HAVE BEEN DENIED BECAUSE THE AMENDED

COMPLAINT DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY SHOW ON ITS FACE THAT

THERE IS AN INSUPERABLE BAR TO RELIEF

Appellee, at page 38 of his brief, sets forth the

rule that a claim will be dismissed only in "the extra-

ordinary case where the pleader makes allegations which

show on the face of the complaint some insuperable bar

to relief." On page 41 he reiterates this test in

slightly different terms: "... where the complaint affirm-

atively discloses the defect going to the merits of

the case, and therefore shows that a cause of action
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cannot be stated." Applying the test to the case at

hand, Appellee contends that the Appellant's omission

of an allegation showing that the fraud alleged was

discovered within three years of the filing of the suit,

renders the complaint incurably vulnerable to the

statute of limitations - that such omission "affirmatively"

discloses an insuperable defect. This contention is

without support of authority from Appellee's brief.

It is significant that, as a general rule, a

plaintiff has no obligation to plead the inapplicability

of the statute of limitations. Instead, the defendant

must affirmatively plead the statute as a defense.

Moore's Federal Practice
, p. 1862. California courts,

however, require that a plaintiff plead that discovery

of the fraud occurred within three years of the com-

mencement of the action whenever the action is filed

more than three years after the actual fraudulent conduct.

In addition, California courts require the plaintiff to

set forth the specific acts of such discovery.

Appellant respectfully submits that: 1. The California

law in this respect is procedural and should not be

applied by this court; and 2. even if the California

law was applicable in this case, the failure to comply

with the pleading requirement would not produce an

"affirmative disclosure" of an insuperable bar to relief
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as required for the dismissal of a claim.

The California Rule Requiring the Plaintiff to

Affirmatively Plead That The Fraud Was Discovered

Within Three Years Of The Commencement Of The Action

Is Procedural And Need Not Be Applied By This Court

California courts actually require a plaintiff

to plead both the time the discovery was made and the

precise facts of such discovery. However, it was decided

in O^vens Generator Co., Inc. v. H.J. Heinz Co. , 23

F.R.D. 121 (N.D. Calif. S.D. 1958) that the California

requirement that the specific circumstances of discovery

be plead is a procedural one which is not necessary in

federal courts. In that case, the plaintiff alleged

discovery of the fraud within three years of the

commencement of the action but the defendant moved to

dismiss the complaint because it failed to set forth the

facts attending such discovery. In denying the motion

to dismiss because the California rule was procedural

and did not bind a federal court, the court stressed

the applicability of Conley v. Gibson , 355 U.S. 41

(1957) which stated:

... a complaint should not be dismissed for

failure to state a claim unless it appears

beyond doubt that the plaintiff can prove no

set of facts in support of his claim which

would entitle him to relief.
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Although the court in the Owens Generator case,

supra addressed itself specifically to the issue of

whether or not the facts of discovery of the fraud

must be plead in a federal court, the opinion clearly

inferred that the policy stated in the Conley case supra

would also prevent an omission of an allegation of when

the fraud was discovered from totally barring a claim

in a federal court. Appellee has cited absolutely no

authority which requires a federal court to apply the

California pleading rule at all, let alone in instances

where the rule would result in the dismissal of a

claim. In fact, the authority of the Owens Generator

case is contrary.

Appellant submits that under the facts of this

case, where he has repeatedly demonstrated his willing-

ness and ability to prove that discovery of the fraud

was within three years of the action, that his complaint

was erroneously dismissed for failing to plead avoidance

of the statute of limitations.

In Any Event, The Omission Of An Allegation

That The Fraud Was Discovered Within Three Years of

The Commencement of the Action Does Not Constitute

An Affirmative Disclosure of an Insuperable Bar To

Relief Justifying Dismissal of the Action

The omission of an allegation that the fraud was

discovered within three years of the suit is not an
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i

affirmative disclosure of any defect. In fact, the

omission discloses nothing. It does no more than raise

the possibility of a bar by the statute of limitations.

Clearly, the defect (if it is so deemed) is not

insuperable for a simple allegation that the fraud was

discovered within three years of filing would remedy

the complaint beyond question, and such an allegation

is in fact set forth by plaintiff in his pre-trial

statement (Plaintiff's contentions of fact - C. T. 341, etc.)

In his attempt to characterize Appellant's

alleged pleading oversight (according to California

law) as a fatal affirmative allegation, Appellee's

authority is, again, non existent. Though Appellee

cites several cases, none are directly in point and

some are entirely irrelevant. The following is a

brief analysis of the cases cited on pages 41 and 42

of Appellees brief:

Sheaf v. Minn. St. P. & S. S. M. R. Co. , 162

F. 2d 110 (8th Circuit 1947) - did not deal with

statute of limitations at all. The Court dismissed a

claim under the Federal Employer's Liability Act because

the plaintiff failed to allege a causal relationship

between an unprovoked attack on him by a fellow worker

and the asserted negligence of the employee,

De Loach v. Crowley's, Inc. , 128 F. 2d 378 (5th

Circuit 1942) - did not deal with statute of limitations.
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The Court reversed the dismissal of a claim under the

Fair Labor Standards Act giving the plaintiff leave

to amend to clarify his complaint.

Leggitt v. Montgomery Ward Co. , 178 F. 2d (10th

Circuit 1949) - did not deal with statute of limitations.

The Court held that under Wyoming law the binding over

of a criminal defendant by an examining officer to a

court is prima facie evidence of probable cause and

where it affirmatively appeared on the face of a complaint

that the plaintiff, on advise of counsel, waived

preliminary examination, the complaint was properly

dismissed.

Suckow Borax Mines Consolidated, Inc. v. Borax

Consolidated Ltd. , 185 F. 2d 196 (9th Circuit 1950),

cert. den. 340 U.S. 943; reh. den 341 U.S. 912 -

Affirmative allegations of the plaintiff in an action for

treble damages under the antitrust laws showed that the

action was barred by the statute of limitations.

Wright V. Bankers Service Corp. , 39 F. Supp.

980 (D.C. Calif. 1941) - at page 983 the Court stated:

"The allegations of the complaint show that the alleged

fraud was discovered and the plaintiff had knowledge

thereof more than three years prior to the filing of

the complaint." Such is clearly not the case at hand.

Wright V. Gibson , 128 F. 2d 865 - did not deal

with statute of limitations. It held: a judgment
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dismissing one count of a two count complaint is not

a final decision and is therefore not appealable.

Appellant submits that the foregoing analysis

demonstrates the paucity of legitimate authority

supporting Appellee's contentions. He has not cited

one case where a federal court has dismissed a claim

for its failure to allege that the fraud was discovered

within three years of the filing of an action. In

the absence of such authority, and in view of the

federal policy to treat pleading defects most liberally,

the judgment granting the motion to dismiss and the

motion for summary judgment should be reversed.

LEAVE TO AMEND SHOULD HAVE BEEN GRANTED BECAUSE

APPELLANT COULD HAVE CURED ANY DEFECT IN THE COMPLAINT

This court, in Tipton v. Bearl Sprott Co. , 175 F.

2d 432 (9th Circuit 1949), has held that although a

ruling on a motion to dismiss is good as to a particular

complaint, where it is shown that other facts exist

which would cure the defects, if alleged, leave to

amend should be granted. The court in Topping v. Fry
,

147 F. 2d 715 (7th Circuit 1945) stated the principle

even more broadly holding that a dismissal without leave

to amend should not be granted where there is a possibility

of a good complaint being filed. This Court, again, in

Sidebotham v. Robison , 216 F 2d 816, 826 (9th Circuit

1954) further expanded the principle stating that it
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should apply even where no request to amend the pleading

was made to the district court.

The defect asserted here by the Appellee, if it

does exist, is purely a technical one which the Appellant

can remedy by amending his complaint and submitting new

affidavits . The great weight of authority indicates

that the Appellee's plea for a rigid, one-shot approach

to pleading be rejected. The Appellant's valuable

substantive rights should not be foreclosed by an

alleged procedural technicality. Appellant has stated

a claim for relief. And in any event Appellant can

state a claim for relief and he should be permitted to

do so.

SIGNIFICANCE OF JUDGE

SOLOMON'S ORDER

The original motions to dismiss and for summary

judgment filed by Lundquist were made to Judge Solomon

and denied by that judge. Judge Solomon denied these

motions with the further statement that it may be that

after a pre-trial Order is filed the facts admitted

in such order will make the controversy ripe for

decision on a motion for summary judgment.

Appellee contends that by reason of the above,

Appellant was placed on notice that an amended Complaint

was in order (Appellee's brief, p. 5).





Appellant submits that this is a distorted

interpcetation of Judge Solomon's Order. Appellant

urges that on the contrary, Judge Solomon was stating

as the law of the case that the complaint was sufficient

and that in the absence of appropriate admissions in

the pre-trial statement, Lundquist's motions should

not be renewed. In the pre-trial statement Plaintiff

made no admissions relevant to the motions to dismiss

or for summary judgment. Hence Judge Solomon's Order

should remain the law of the case. Having relied on

Judge Solomon's ruling that the Plaintiff was not

vulnerable to a motion to dismiss or to a motion for

summary judgment, Plaintiff should not now be thrown

out of Court because of such reliance.

Respectfully submitted,

RICHARD H. LEVIN

Attorney for Plaintiff and
Appellant.
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I certify that in connection with the preparation

of this brief, I have examined Rules 18 and 19 of the
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Jurisdiction is based upon diversity of citizenship

and that the amount in controversy exceeds $10,000.00

(Tr. Vol. 1, pp. 4-5, 11, 32), exclusive of interest and

costs.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The nature of the case is fully covered by the pre-

trial order (Tr. Vol. 1, pp. 32-36) entered in the case

prior to trial. However, Appellant has appealed only

from the Judgment entered as to Count I of the com-

plaint.

The action was instituted by Appellee (also cross-

appellant) under the terms of a banker's blanket bond

issued by Appellant to Appellee. Count I of the com-

plaint alleges that Appellee suffered loss of property

in the amount of $10,494.70 due to the cashing of

certain sight drafts executed by Gem Creamery Com-

pany, and that the loss was one caused by false pre-

tenses and therefore covered by the provisions of Clause

(B) of the Bankers Blanket Bond, Standard FoiTn No.

24, which covered

:

"any loss of property through * * *

theft, false pretenses * * *."

Under a Rider (Tr. Vol. 1, p. 14, plaintiff's Exhibit

4 and defendant's Exhibit 5) insuring Clause (D) was

deleted, thereby deleting:

"any loss through forgery or alteration

of, on or in any checks, drafts * * *"

Also the application for the bond excluded loss

through forgery (Def. Ex. 5).

In Count I Appellee alleges (Tr. Vol. 1, pp. 5-6) on

or about February 19 and 20, 1963, employees of Gem
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Creamery Company presented certain instruments to

the Broadway Office of the appellee bank, and on

February 18, 19 and 20, 1963, employees of Gem
Creamery Company, presented certain instruments to

the Capital Office of the appellee bank (Tr. Vol. 1, p.

6) and that the instruments were cashed by the two
offices of the bank.

The instruments so alleged by Appellee to have been

cashed by the two branches of the appellee bank were

all sight drafts (plaintiff's Exhibits 2, 2(a) - (m) and
plaintiff's Exhibits 3, 3(a) - (si) (Tr. Vol. 3), and
were presented for payment but have not been

honored.

The Gem Creamery Company issued sight drafts

and had an arrangement with the First Security Bank
at Emmett, Idaho, whereby the drafts would be for-

warded to the bank. At the end of the day the Bank
would notify the Creamery of the drafts received that

day. The Creamery would then pick up the drafts and

issue a check in payment. (Testimony of Fischer, Vol.

2, Tr. pp. 24-26).

Drafts had been presented to, and accepted by, the

two branch banks in question over a period of time by

different employees of the Gem Creamery. On the

dates in question, drafts were presented and were ac-

cepted by tellers of the bank. There were no questions

asked, and no representations made, as to whether the

drafts would be honored on presentment or whether

any funds were on deposit, or held, to cover the same.

The only interrogatoiy as to funds available to pay
any draft at all was some 8 months before the dates in

question. (Tr. Vol. 3, p. 9-10), (Tr. Vol. 2, pp. 95-97,

testimony Barrett), (Tr. Vol. 3, pp. 9-12, testimony

Cegnar), (Tr. Vol. 3, pp. 17-19, testimony Hoskins),
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(Tr. Vol. 3, pp. 24-27, testimony Neuman), (Tr. Vol.

3, pp. 27-28).

Subsequent to the dates herein referred to, and the

cashing of the drafts which are the subject of Count I,

the Gem Creamery Company was forced into involun-

tary bankruptcy which was later consented to. (Tr.

Vol. 3, p. 28).

SPECIFICATIONS OF ERROR

Appellant contends the court erred

:

1. In admitting evidence (Tr. Vol. 2, pp. 49-50)

(Tr. Vol. 2, pp. 57-58) , as to cashing of drafts at

business locations other than Appellee's and in entering

Finding of Fact No. V.

2. In entering Finding of Fact No. VI in that it is

not sustained by the evidence.

3. In entering Finding of Fact No. IX particularly

as to the handling of the drafts as cash items.

4. In entering Finding of Fact No. X particularly

as to the handling of the drafts as cash items.

5. In receiving evidence for (Tr. Vol. 2, pp. 57-58)

and making and entering Finding of Fact No. XIV,

which includes drafts presented at business locations

other than Appellee's.

6. In entering Finding of Fact No. XVI in that it

is contrary to the evidence.

7. In entering Findings of Fact numbers XVII,

XVIII and XIX and thereby finding that false repre-

sentations were made at the time of cashing of the

drafts, which is contrary to the evidence.

8. In making and entering Conclusion of Law No. II.
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9. In making and entering Conclusion of Law No.

IV.

10. In making and entering Conclusion of Law No.

V.

11. In not finding that there was no representation

that funds were available for payment of such drafts,

and the loss, if any, was through the acceptance of

drafts which does not constitute false pretenses.

12. In not entering its Conclusion of Law that the

issuance and acceptance of drafts, as shown by the

evidence herein, does not constitute false pretenses.

13. In not finding that the sight drafts were in fact

forgeries.

14. In not entering its Conclusion of Law that the

sight drafts were forgeries.

15. In not finding in favor of Appellant on Count I

of the Complaint.

16. In entering Judgment against Appellant on

Count I.

SUMMARY AND STATEMENT OF
QUESTIONS PRESENTED

Appellee contends that it suffered a loss of property

by reason of cashing the drafts and that the loss is one

caused by false pretenses. Appellant contends that if

there was a loss : ( 1 ) it was not a loss caused by false

pretenses, and (2) the drafts were in fact forgeries.

(Tr.Vol. I,pp.33and34).

ARGUMENT
I

A DRAFT DOES NOT CONSTITUTE
FALSE PRETENSES.
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As stated in 11 Am. Jur. 2d, Bills and Notes, Sec-

tion 14 at page 43, "A draft in the law of bills and notes

is a 'drawing' and has been defined as an open letter

of request from, and an order by, one person upon an-

other to pay a sum of money therein mentioned to a

third person on demand or at a future time therein

specified." On the other hand, a check, as is stated in

Section 16 of the same authority at page 45, is an order

drawn upon a bank purporting to be drawn upon a

deposit of funds. And at page 48, Section 18 of the

same authority, it is stated that the characteristics of

a check as distinguished from usual bills of exchange

are that a check is payable instantly upon demand and

not at a specified future time, and that a check is sup-

posed to be drawn on a previous deposit of funds,

while a draft is not.

The distinction is aptly explained in Wilson v.

Buchenau, 43 F. Supp. 272 :

"A draft has been defined as an open letter of re-

quest from, and an order by, one person on another

to pay a sum of money therein mentioned to a third

person on demand or at a future time therein speci-

fied. * * * The two chief characteristics of checks are

that they are drawn on a bank and are payable in-

stantly on demand. * * * A check differs from a bill

of exchange in that it is always drawn on a deposit

while a bill is not. * * *"

Also drafts to be paid by a person, either upon de-

mand or upon sight or upon presentment or notice

should be distinguished from drafts between banks

which are ordinarily placed in the same category as

checks and predisposes a deposit of funds or an obli-

gation to meet the demands of the bank.
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The drafts involved herein were headed "General

Draft," were payable at sight to the order of certain

persons through the First Security Bank of Idaho and

signed by an officer or partner of the Gem Creamery

Company. Under the law of negotiable instruments,

and in civil law, a draft is payable upon demand or

upon presentment. However, a reasonable time for pre-

sentment is presumed so as to hold those secondarily

liable. In other words, unlike a check, it is not a promise

that funds are on hand but that if it is presented to

the maker he will honor the draft. Presented to the

Appellee bank in this case, the draft, on its face, only

constituted authoi'ity to present to the Emmett bank

for payment.

The complaint in this case seeks recovery under

Clause (B) of the banker's blanket bond, standard

form No. 24, which insures any loss of property

through robbery, burglary, common law or statutory

larceny, theft or false pretenses. Almost all of the au-

thority as to the definition as to false pretenses occurs

in criminal cases. However, the term "false pretenses"

should not be so broadly construed in this case as it is

in criminal cases. In criminal cases the person is

answering for his own act, here the insurer is not.

Here is a contract between the Appellant and Appellee,

and there is no definition of the term. Under such cir-

cumstances we think it is universally held that the

false pretense must relate to a present existing or to a

past fact.

In People v. Green, 22 Cal. App. 45, 133 Pac. 334,

where the court speaking about the necessary element

of false pretense said

:

"Statutes of this character have been the subject

of judicial construction throughout this countiy in a
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great many cases; and the decisions of the court of

last resort are in accord to the effect that in order

to constitute a false pretense in law the misrepre-

sentations must be of an existing or past fact, and

cannot relate to the future, or be a mere promise to

pay * * *"

Then after discussing parts of the evidence, the

court in regard to the legal effect of a sight draft re-

lied upon in that case, said

:

"Respondent, referring to the sight drafts given

by Green, Foster and Lehmann in payment of the

goods obtained, requests that the character of these

so-called sights be determined. The instrument set

out in the indictment is in the following form :
* * *

It is, we think, apparent that this instrument pur-

ports to be nothing more than an order drawn by

Green, Foster & Lehmann upon themselves for the

payment of money, and cannot by any process of

reasoning whatever constitute anything more than

a promise by the maker to pay the sum therein

named upon presentation. True it carries with it

the implied representation of the ability of the draw-

er to do so; but what does that implied representa-

tion amount to? It amounts to a representation

of future ability, for clearly some time was to

elapse between the issuing of the draft and its pre-

sentation and payment, and thus comes within the

class of representations as to future events which

will not, according to the authorities, sustain a

charge of the making of false pretenses.

"It is urged that the prosecuting witness parted

with his property on the strength of the issuance to

him of this sight draft. If so, he parted with it upon

the strength of a promise to pay, in which respect
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the transaction does not differ from the ordinary

sale of goods, on credit, and the issuing of the drafts,

as shown by all the circumstances of the case, was
an arrangement adopted for the payment for the

goods as purchased.

"The case of People v. Wasservogle, 77 Cal. 173,

19 Pac. 270, is not at variance with the views here

expressed. In that case the passing of the draft was
accompanied by the statement that the drawer had

funds in the hands of the drawee with which it would

be paid. The conviction was upheld upon this state-

ment, which amounted to a representation of an ex-

isting fact. The court, however, expressly recognized

the rule that a pretense must be of a past or existing

fact."

The above cited case. People v. Green, is of interest

here in Idaho in respect to the instant problem, par-

ticularly with respect to the fact that the pretense must

relate to past or existing fact. The rule which has been

followed in this state is expressed in State v. Whitney,

43 Idaho 745, 254 Pac. 525, as

:

"* * * four things must concur, and four distinct

averments must be proved: (1) there must be an

intent to defraud
; (2) there must be an actual fraud

committed; (3) false pretenses must be used for the

purpose of perpetrating the fraud ; and (4) the fraud

must be accomplished by means of the false pre-

tenses made use of for that purpose ; viz, they must

be the cause which induced the owner to part with

his property.

"The essence of the crime of obtaining money by

false pretenses lies in obtaining the money with in-

tent to defraud. A false pretense has been defined
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to be a fraudulent representation of an existing or

past fact by one who knows it not to be true, adapted

to induce the person to whom it is made to part with

something of value."

This same rule has been followed in this state in re-

gard to prosecutions relating to checks, although the

court in criminal actions has been inclined to construe

evidence favorable to the prosecution, State v. Larson,

76 Idaho 528, 286 P. 2d 646, State v. Eikelberger, 72

Idaho 245, 239 P. 2d 1069, if there is any fact tending

to show a false pretense of an existing fact.

But regardless of the criminal statute, we have here

a contract between the two parties. The words false

pretense certainly cannot be given a meaning of some-

thing promised to be done in the future.

It should be noted that all bank tellers testified that

at the time of such cashing the drafts there was no

conversation in regard to payment of the drafts or

funds for such payment. (Tr. Vol. 3, pp. 10, 18-19, 25,

28) . Apparently some 8 months before the drafts were

cashed a Mr. Miller had authorized that drafts be ac-

cepted, there being no evidence as to any representa-

tion, even at that time, having been made to the Ap-

pellee as to the payment of the drafts (Tr. Vol. 3, pp.

11,28).

On the other hand, the court admitted evidence that

drafts had been cashed at other business locations (Tr.

Vol. 2, testimony Hay, p. 49, etc.. Drown, p. 56, etc.,

LeMaster, p. 63, etc.) , although LeMaster testified that

the only time he inquired as to the validity of the drafts

was approximately six to eight months before the los-

ses occurred (Tr. Vol. 2, p. 68), and that inquiry, as

were any others, was made to the First Security Bank
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at Emmett, Idaho. There is no evidence whatsoever

that the makers or the payees of the drafts at any time

made any pretense, false or true, as to the ability to

make payment of the drafts, and particularly the

drafts involved herein, nor is there evidence that in-

quiry was made as to Gem Creamery Company, the

only inquiries apparently being made to First Security

Bank.

11.

FORGERY BY MEANS OF FALSE INSTRUMENT

Forgery is not limited to the signing of another's

name to an instrument. It may consist also of the sign-

ing of one's true name to a false instrument. In the in-

stant case, we may treat the sight drafts as false in-

struments by reason of the fact that there were no

funds to honor the same.

The case of Ex Parte Hibbs, 26 Fed. 421, may be

considered upon both questions of whether a false draft

is a forgery, rather than false pretense, and also

whether forgery and counterfeit are one and the same.

In the Hibbs case, the defendant was Postmaster at

Lewiston, Idaho. He made out postal money orders to

a fictitious person at Pierce City, and converted the

funds to his own use. The court held

:

"The crime defined in this statute is the common-

law crime of forgery, with reference to the money

order. To 'falsely make, forge, countei-feit, engrave

or print' are all cognate terms used to define or

designate the crime of forgery in some of its many
phases. * * *
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"However, it is contended that a person cannot

commit a forgery by making a false writing in his

own name. But it must be borne in mind that forgery

is not necessarily confined to the false writing of an-

other's name. It may be, from the very nature of

things, that it is more often than otherwise commit-

ted in that way ; but both reason and authority say

it may be committed in other ways * * *

* * *

"The notion of forgery doth not so much consist in

the counterfeiting of a man's hand and seal, * * * but

in endeavoring to give an appearance of truth to a

mere deceit and falsity * * *

"And if the deceit consist in making it appear

that a man's own act was done under circumstances

which would make it valid and genuine, when in fact

it was false and unauthorized, the result is the same

And again at page 434 in the same case

:

"It is not necessary to consider whether the

prisoner committed forgery in writing the name of

J. G. Wilson on the back of the three drafts on the

Omaha bank. Forgery may be committed by thus

writing the name of a fictitious person on an instru-

ment. If the existence of such a person is a question

of fact and not law, and the instrument appears to

be valid on its face, the offense is complete, provided

the act was done with intent to defraud. * * *"

It appears that the term "forgery" includes "coun-

terfeiting." Thus in Quick Service Box Co. v. St. Paul

Mercury Indemnity Co., 95 F. 2d. 15, it was said,

"Then, too, though one may under ceitain condi-
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tions have authority to sign certain names, yet if he

sign such to a false document or to an unauthorized

one, it is forgery. Such was the conclusion of the

court in Ex Parte Hibbs, D. C, 26 F. 421. The court

commented that it must be borne in mind that for-

gery is not necessarily confined to the false writing

of another's name. It may be committed in other

ways. The essence of forgery does not so much con-

sist of counterfeiting as in endeavoring to appear-

ance of truth to a mere deceit and falsity * * *"

We think that the case of Peoples Bank & Trust Co.

V. Fidelity & Casualty Co., 231 N. C. 510, 57 SE 2d.

809, 15 ALR 2d. 996, is authority upon all of the legal

points involved here.

In that case, as here, the policy insured against loss

through various causes, including false pretenses. A
rider to the policy deleted Clause D, and thus withdrew

from coverage any loss effected directly or indirectly

by means of forgery.

In that case, one Otho Langley, who did not have an

account at the bank, discovered that his signature

would pass for that of another man who did have an

account at the bank. On various occasions he would

inquire as to "his" bank balance and cash checks.

To arrive at a definition of forgery, the court first

examined the statutes denouncing certain acts as

criminal acts described as forgery, and also the com-

mon law definition of forgery, the court said,

''From these definitions we find that the essentials

to the completion of the offense are: (a) The falsi-

fication of a paper, or the making of a false paper,

of legal efficacy apparently capable of effecting a
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fraud; (b) the fradulent intent 37 C.J.S. Forgery,

Sec. 3 * * *

"False pretense and forgeiy are closely akin, both

belonging historically to the family of offenses

known to the common law as 'cheats,' and now so

classed. False pretense is the heart of forgery—the

essence of its being. The principal difference be-

tween the two, historically developed in the common
law, is that forgery exclusively pertains to a writing,

while false pretense covers fraudulent deceits by

parol. Treatment of forgery as a separate offense

came from recognition that a fraud perpetrated in

altering a writing or making a false writing tends

directly to destroy the security which permanent

monuments in writing give to transactions affecting

the more important rights of persons privy to them.

It became a separate and grave offense ; but the gist

of forgery is still fraud. * * *

On page 816 of the S. E. Report, the court also said,

"* * * Under a policy which expressly rejects lia-

bility for any loss effected directly or indirectly by

forgery it makes no difference which was the crime

and which the adulterant."

Respectfully submitted

CLEMONS, SKILES & GREEN

By-

Attorneys for appellant
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STATEMENT OF THE CASE
Appellent's statement of the facts leaves much to

be desired. It is impossible to understand the basis of

the trial court's decision without knowing all of the

facts.

For many years prior to the commencement of this

suit Gem Creamery Company was a business located

in Emmett, Idaho, approximately thirty miles from
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Boise. This company was engaged in the business of

selling butter, eggs and produce (Tr. Vol. 2, p. 78).

The farm products were pi'ocured from farmers and

then sold through routes (Tr. Vol. 2, pp. 77-80) . Cream
that was picked up was processed into butter for

resale. In January of 1962, the business was purchased

by Dwayne Doramus and Floyd Worley (Tr. Vol. 2,

p. 22). Their banking was done with the Emmett,

Idaho, branch of the First Security Bank of Idaho.

While a checking account was maintained, payment

of obligations was made by the use of drafts payable

at the First Security Bank in Emmett. Drafts came

into that bank in the regular course of bank clearing

and these were accumulated throughout each day. At

approximately three o'clock each afternoon one of the

principals in the business would go to the bank and

write a check to cover the drafts that were to be hon-

ored. By that time of the day the bank would have

run a tape on the drafts received that day. These daily

checks to the bank were the only checks that were

written on the checking account (Tr. Vol 2, pp.22-26).

The number of drafts increased drastically from

January, 1962, to February, 1963. While in January,

1962, 170 Gem Creamery drafts went through the

First Security Bank, in Februaiy of 1963, the number

totaled 2,213. The buildup in the number of drafts

was consistent through the period of fourteen months.

For example, the number in August of 1962, was

1,649 (Tr. Vol. 2, pp. 26-29).

The dollar volume represented by the drafts increas-

ed accordingly. This volume is shown by Plaintiff's

Exhibit 8. This exhibit shows the amount of each daily

check written to the bank to cover drafts (Tr. Vol.

2, p. 29).
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The increase in the number of drafts and in the

amount of them was caused by something other than

an increase in the business of Gem Creamery, From
the middle of 1962 on employees were cashing drafts

and returning the proceeds to the partners (Tr. Vol.

2, p. 72 ) . Every few days employees were given from
one to eight drafts and told to cash them and return

the proceeds. Each draft would be made out in favor

of the employee who was to cash it. The drafts would

be cashed at banks, clothing stores and grocery stores,

among other places. At grocery stores it was custom-

ary for an employee to purchase cigarettes or soft

drinks. Any part of the proceeds that had been so

spent had to be paid back to the partners along with

the remainder of the proceeds (Tr. Vol. 2, pp. 72-74,

83-85).

Most, if not all, of the six to eight steady employees

cashed drafts in this manner (Tr. Vol. 2, pp. 75, 85).

[

The extent to which the employees were used for this

;

purpose is illustrated by the fact that one of the former

j

employees who testified to having cashed drafts in this

I manner every few days was primarily a butter-maker

' (Tr. Vol. 2, p. 77), and the other was a handyman

1
and butter-cutter (Tr. Vol. 2, p. 83).

I

The bubble burst in late February of 1962. Drafts

! were first dishonored on February 25, 1963 (Tr. Vol.

i

2, p. 31). In all approximately 450 drafts were dis-

I

honored and returned unpaid during the period from

j

February 25, 1963, to March 5, 1963 (Tr. Vol. 2,

p. 33-35; PL Ex. 9). The dollar amount of these drafts

j
was approximately $80,000. All but a few of the dis-

I

honored drafts were drawn payable to the order of an

: employee of Gem Creamery (Tr. Vol. 2, pp. 75-77).
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Almost all of the dishonored drafts contained endorse-

ments indicating they were cashed at department

stores, grocery stores, drug stores or banks (Tr. Vol.

2, pp. 35-38; PI. Ex. 9).

Appellee, The Idaho First National Bank, suffered

a loss at its Broadway Office in Boise, Idaho, in the

amount of $4,683.00 due to its having cashed drafts

which were dishonored (Amended Finding of Fact

XII; Tr. Vol. 1, p. 55; PI. Exs. 2 and 2-2M). Fom-teen

drafts were involved, all of which were dated either

February 19, or February 20, 1963. The only endorse-

ment on each draft was that of the payee — in each

case an employee of Gem Creamery (PI. Exs. 2 and

2-2M; Tr. Vol. 2, pp. 75-77).

The same thing happened at another Boise office

of appellee, its Capital Office. The loss there was

$5,801.46 (Amended Finding of Fact XIII; Tr. Vol.

1, p. 55) ; twenty drafts were dishonored; the drafts

contained dates of February 16, 18, 19, and 20, 1963;

and only endorsements were those of the payee — in

each case an employee of Gem Creamery (PI. Exs.

3 and 3-3S; Tr. Vol. 2, pp. 75-77).

The facts leading up to the loss are the same in re-

gard to both branches. Gem Creamery drafts were

first cashed during the Fall of 1962 (Tr. Vol. 3, pp.

4, 13, 27, 28). At the Capital Office sixty to seventy-

five had been cashed by one teller and they were all

honored (Tr. Vol. 3, p. 4). Ninety to one hundred were

cashed by one teller at the Broadway Office and they

were all honored (Tr. Vol. 3, pp. 13, 14). The drafts

were cashed by the payees and were endorsed in the

presence of the tellers (Tr. Vol. 3, pp. 7, 14, 21, 27, 28).
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As to the drafts which were dishonored, the pro-

cedure was the same. When drafts were taken which

were later dishonored, the tellers handled them as cash

items on the assumption that they were checks (Tr.

Vol. 2, p. 97; Tr. Vol. 3, pp. 7, 8, 16, 17, 24, 27, 28).

One reason for this is that the drafts were practically

identical in form to checks (PI. Exs. 2 and 2-2M;

3and3-3S).

While there is no evidence of any verbal represen-

tations having been made at the time of cashing the

dishonored drafts, false representations were made at

earlier times. There was one instance when a represen-

tation was made that a draft was in payment for dairy

products (Tr. Vol. 3, p. 5) . Twice representations were

made at grocery stores that the drafts were paychecks

(Tr. Vol. 2, pp. 51, 58).

Other businesses suffered in a manner similar to

appellee. Managers of two grocery stores testified that

drafts were cashed over a considerable period of time

without a problem, and that a much greater number
of drafts than normal were cashed in the week ending

February 20, 1962, and that all of these were dis-

honored (Tr. Vol. 2, pp. 43-62). Another bank suffered

losses at two of its branches, and the facts were similar

to those involved in appellee's losses (Tr. Vol. 2, pp.

63-69).

By the time the affairs of Gem Creamery were

settled in bankruptcy, the unsecured creditors received

a return of 0.002784% on their claims (Tr. Vol. 2,

p. 47).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Appellant's brief clearly states the contention of
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appellee and the basis for the judgment by the trial

court in appellee's favor — that there was a loss of

property by reason of cashing the drafts and that the

loss was one suffered through false pretenses.

There are two type of false pretenses present here.

The entire operation of Gem Creamery, and particu-

larly its method of using drafts, was a false pretence

— one calculated to lull the public into cashing more

and more drafts until the inevitable happened. In

addition the cashing of the drafts was a representation

that there were funds to honor them.

Appellant contends that forgery is involved. There

is no basis for such contention.

ARGUMENT

I. The Method of Operation Constituted a False

Pretense.

A substantial portion of the brief submitted by ap-

pellant concerns itself with the distinction between

checks and drafts, and with the requirements for a

criminal conviction for the crime of false pretenses.

What appellant has neglected to do is to show in what

respects the evidence does not support the specific find-

ings of false pretenses made by the trial court.

In the Amended Findings of Fact and Conclusions of

Law (Tr. Vol. 1, pp. 51-59) there are specific findings

of all of the elements appellant contends must be pres-

ent to constitute false pretenses. These specific findings

are as follows

:

XVI

"By the actions and deliberate course of conduct
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of itself and its employees Gem Creamery Company
impliedly represented to plaintiff statements of ex-

isting fact, to wit : that the drafts which were later

dishonored were issued in the regular course of busi-

ness, and that it had funds or credit for the payment
of the drafts cashed by plaintiff which were later

dishonored.

XVII

"Gem Creamery Company did not have funds or

credit for the payment of the drafts cashed by plain-

tiff which were dishonored, and said drafts were not

issued in the regular course of business.

XVIII

"Gem Creamery Company knew that the said im-

plied representations were untrue and said mis-

representations were adapted to induce the plaintiff

to part with money.

XIX

"Plaintiff relied on the the false representations of

Gem Creamery Company and the loss was in fact

caused by said false representations and false pre-

tenses." (Tr. Vol. 1, pp. 6, 7)

Because of these findings, any distinctions between

drafts and checks are only academic. The representa-

tions that the drafts were issued in the regular course

of business and that there were funds or credits for

the payment of them did not relate to future acts —
they related to past and present representations.
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The findings are supported by the evidence present-

ed. The representations were implied from all of the

actions of Gem Creamery and its employees. These

actions include the use of drafts which closely resembl-

ed checks, the increase in the number of drafts cashed,

and the large loss suffered by appellee and others. More

importantly, every element of the scheme was intended

to, and did, lull appellant into cashing the drafts until

finally the two branch banks took thirty-four drafts

within the period of a few days. This was explained

to the trial court when appellant objected to the ad-

mission of testimony relating to the manner in which

Gem Creamery dealt with the Emmett Branch of First

Security Bank.

*'MR. FAUCHER: It is our contention that the

entire method of doing business was in fact a false

pretense calculated to misrepresent their ability to

pay and to misrepresent their financial condition."

(Tr. Vol. 2, p. 24)

After the submission of all the evidence and the con-

sideration of it as a whole, the trial court agreed.

II. The Cashing of the Drafts Constituted a False

Pretense.

The same findings of the elements of false pretenses

can be supported in a slightly different manner. The

presentment of the drafts was a representation that

there were funds or credits for payment.

Since there are no cases based on bankers blanket

bonds which involve false pretenses through drafts, it

is necessary to consider the case law relative to dis-
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honored checks and to proceed from there. Starting

with Hartford Accident & Indemnity Co. v. Federal

Deposit Ins. Corp.,204 F2d 933 (8th Cir. 1953) and

Fidelity aiul Casualty Company v. Bank of Altenburg,

216 F2d 294 (8th Cir. 1954) , the courts have uniform-

ly held the insurance companies liable for loss caused

by check-kiting on the basis that it constitutes false

pretenses. The decisions invariably disclose that the

type of bond involved was a Bankers Blanket Bond,

Form 24, the same one issued by appellant to appellee

in this instance. Indemnity Insurance Co. v. Pioneer

Valley Savings Bank, 343 F2d 634 (8th Cir. 1965)

;

United States v. Western Contracting Corporation, 341

F2d 383 (8th Cir. 1965) ; Pioneer Valley Savings Bank
V. Indemnity Insurance Co., 225 F. Supp. 404 (D.C.

Iowa 1964).

Check-kiting in its simplest form is the drawing of

a check on X bank and the cashing of it with Y bank,

with the drawee then depositing the proceeds in X bank

to cover the check when it comes through. Y bank can

be lulled into cashing larger and larger checks by the

fact that they are always honored by X bank. On the

other hand it can involve accounts in two different

banks, as was the case in the Brazeau-Altenburg loss.

Hartford Accident & Indemnity Co. v. Federal Deposit

Ins. Corp., supra, and Fidelity and Casualty Company
V. Bank of Altenburg, supra.

Appellant's contention that the instruments consti-

tuted promises to pay in the future instead of represen-

tations of existing fact is neither new nor novel. It was

also raised in some of the check-kiting cases. In Fidelity

and Casunlty Company v. Bank of Altenburg, supra,

the contention was made by the insurance company

and the Court of Appeals rejected it.
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"Defendant says that Schneier's representation to

plaintiff bank was in effect that the checks he de-

posited with it drawn on the Brazeau Bank would

be paid when presented to that bank. It says that

was a representation of a promissory nature of a

future, not an existing fact. But that is not the

manner in which the plaintiff's officials construed

Schneier's conduct in presenting the checks to it for

deposit. The representation implied was that suffi-

cient funds were on deposit to meet the checks. That

was a representation of a present existing fact."

216 F2d at 301.

Likewise, after the District Court had ordered dis-

missal of a suit brought under the "false pretenses"

clause of a bond on the ground that the taking of a

check involved no representation, the Court of Appeals

in United States v. Western Contracting Corporation,

341 F2d 383 (8th Cir. 1965), reversed, holding that

the requisite misrepresentation was present. According

to the stipulated facts (341 F2d at 386), there is no

indication that any written or verbal representations

were made — the wrongdoer merely deposited checks

in his account with the bank and was allowed to draw

against the deposits prior to collection. This in itself

brought the loss within the policy definition of "false

pretenses."

"There can be no question that the giving of the

checks constituted a representation that the checks

were good. Such representation was relied upon by

the Bank in permitting H. K. to draw on uncollected

funds . . . The loss resulted from the false pretenses

. . . We are satisfied that the transactions fall within

the false pretense coverage of the blanket bond exe-

cuted by Globe." 341 F2d at 390.
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Among the additional cases supporting the proposi-

tion that the giving of a worthless check constitutes

false pretenses are Pioneer Valley Savings Bank v.

Indemnity Insurance Co., supra, affirmed in Indemnity

Insurance Co. v. Pioneer Valley Savings Bank, supra,

and Landwehr v. United States, 304 F2d 217 (8th Cir.

1962), which affirmed a conviction for transporting a

stolen motor vehicle in interstate commerce. In this last

cited case the government had contended that the writ-

ing and tendering of a check was itself a representation

that there were sufficient funds in the account and

that it would be paid. The District Court and the Court

of Appeals agreed with the contention.

As shown particularly by Fidelity and Casualty

Company v. Bank of Altenhurg, supra, and United

States V. Western Contracting Corporation, supra, the

important factor is the manner in which the bank con-

sidered the instruments. In these two cited cases the

checks were deposited for credit and then drawn

against, and still the implied representation was held

to be present because the banks construed the actions

of the depositors to mean that funds were on hand to

honor the checks. In the instant case there is even more

evidence of the implied represenation than in those

cases. Here the drafts were treated as cash items and

cash was given to the payees. Here there was no credit-

ing to an account which could later be charged back

if the instruments proved to be uncollectible.

If, as the cases indicate, the manner in which the

instruments are considered and handled by the bank

is the determinative factor, there is no reason to dis-

tinguish between drafts and checks. Appellant has con-

tended that there is a technical distinction between
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checks and other types of bills. This is true, and there

are probably occasions when the distinction is impor-

tant. Here it is not.

There are various types of drafts, and they are used

for different purposes. A sight draft or a time draft
,

is often used in connection with goods shipped under

a negotiable bill of lading. The purchaser or his bank

can accept the draft after all credit arrangements

have been made and after the goods have been exam-

ined. On the other hand, large casualty insurance com-

panies use drafts in payment of claims and these circu-

late and are accepted as readily as any checks. The

appellant here uses such drafts. Presumably the reason ,

why drafts are used for this purpose is that it gives

the insurance company the opportunity to carefully

examine the back of the instrument where the re-

leases of further liability are contained.

There is no magic in a check. Unless it is certified

by the drawee bank, payment can be stopped by the

drawer at any time prior to presentment, and the

drawer can withdraw the funds while the check is en-

route to the bank. From the viewpoint of the person

cashing an instrument there is no distinction between

the type of drafts involved here and uncertified checks.

A lack of funds in back of them will cause a loss. In one

case inaction (failure to honor) and in the other case

action (stopping payment or withdrawal) will cause

a loss. Appellee treated the drafts here as cash items

—

the same way that checks would have been treated. The

course of conduct that had existed between appellee and

Gem Creamery caused appellee to rely on the implied

representation that funds or credits were available

to honor them.



The Idaho First National Bank 13

In all of the federal civil cases thus far cited the

question of whether or not criminal statutes are con-

trolling has been raised. This is important here because

most, if not all, of the cases cited by appellant are

criminal cases. In most of these cases the courts were

able to bypass the issue. Likewise in the instant case

it will be shown later that the crime was committed

under the provisions of Idaho law. However, the propo-

sition that the requisites necessary for conviction need

not be proven is supported by Pioneer Valley Savings

Bank v. Indemnity Insurayice Co., sicpra, where the

court, in addition to citing other cases, said that strong

support is made for the proposition in Fidelity and
Casibolty Company v. Bank of Altenburg, supra.

Moving to the Idaho criminal statutes, several cases

support the proposition that the making or passing of

worthless checks constitutes the crime of false pre-

tenses.

State V. Roderick, 375 P2d 1005, 85 Idaho 80

(1962);

State V. Davis, 336 P2d 692, 81 Idaho 61 (1959)

;

State V. Larsen, 286 P2d 646, 76 Idaho 528

(1955);

State V. Campbell,219 P2d 956, 70 Idaho 408

(1950).

Two of the cases. State v. Roderick, supra, and State

V. Campbell, supra, stand for the proposition that the

only distinction between IdaJio Code Sec. 18-3101

(which provides that false pretenses is a felony) and

Sec. 18-3106 which concerns drav/ing and passing in-

sti-uments and also provides for prima facie evidence)
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is that Sec. 18-3101 may only be used where "... the

accused obtained money or property by means of false

pretenses." (emphasis added) 375 P2d at 1007. On the

other hand a person can be convicted of a violation

of Sec. 18-3106 even if the making or passing of the

instrument does not result in the accused having ob-

tained anything. State v. Campbell, supra.

Idaho Code Sec. 18-3106 is set out in the Appendix

together with other applicable Idaho statutes. In part

that section provides that "As against the maker or

drawer thereof, the making, drawing, uttering or

delivering of such check, draft or order as aforesaid

shall be prima facie evidence of intent to defraud and

of knowledge of no funds or insufficient funds, as the

case may be, in or credit with such bank, or depositai^,

or person, or firm, or corporation, for the payment

in full of such check, draft or order upon its presenta-

tion." In State v. Davis, supra, and in State v. Larsen,

supra, the Idaho Supreme Court approved instructions

which applied the prima facie evidence of Sec. 18-3106

to prosecution for violations of Sec. 18-3101.

"Where as in this case a worthless check is issued

as the false token to accomplish the fraudulent pur-

pose, such instruction is proper. Sec. 18-3106, I.C.

;

State V. Larsen, 76 Idaho 528, 286 P2d646. " 336

P2d at 695.

Some explanation of the prima facie provision is

contained in State v. Campbell, supra. There the de-

fendant contended that since both intent to defraud and

knowledge of the non-existence of sufficient funds or

credit are presumed there is a presumption based on a

presumption. The court answered by saying, "The
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statute in question does not base a presumption upon
a presumption but provides for two separate presump-

tions based upon the fact of the making or uttering of

the check without funds or credit for its payment." 219

P2d at 959.

The Idaho Supreme Court is not alone in applying

such a statute and its provisions to a false pretense

situation. It has been done by federal courts in suits

brought to recover losses alleged to have been caused by

false pretenses under the provisions of bankers blanket

bonds. In Indemnity Insurance Co. v. Pioneer Valley

Savings Bank, supra, and Pioneer Valley Savings Bank
V. Indemnity Insurance Co., supra. Section 28-1213 of

the Iowa Code (the equivalent of Idaho Code Sec. 18-

3106) was involved. In United States v. Western Con-

tracting Corporation, supra, two sections of Nebraska

law were involved. Section 28-1213 was equivalent to

the first part of Idaho Code Sec. 18-3106, while Section

28-1241 contained the presumptions which are stated

in the Idaho statute. Not only did the Court of Appeals

apply the two statutes to the claim for recovery under

the bond, but it emphatically stated that the presump-

tions controlled.

"The record conclusively shows that $55,000 in H.

K. checks deposited in plaintiff's bank were dishonor-

ed for lack of funds. Proof of presentment for pay-

ment, nonpayment, and protest is uncontested.

Under Sec. 28-1214 the nonpayment of such checks

created a rebuttable presumption of intent to de-

fraud and knowledge of insufficient funds or credit

in such bank. We find in the record no substantial

evidence to rebut the presumption . . ,

"There can be no question that the giving of the
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checks constituted a representation that the checks

were good. Such representation was relied upon by

the Bank in permitting H. K, to draw on uncollected

funds. The unrebutted presumption of Sec. 28-1214

establishes evidence of intent to defraud and know-

ledge of insufficient funds or credit to take care of

the checks. The loss resulted from the false pretense.

The basic error committed by the trial court on this

ground is its failure to give recognition to the re-

buttable presumption created by Sec. 28-1214. We
are satisfied that the transactions fall within the

false pretense coverage of the blanket bond executed

by Globe." 341 F2d at 389, 390.

The Idaho statute, Sec. 18-3106, is not limited to

checks. It specifically applies to drafts. There can be

no question but what a draft whether drawn on an-

other person or on the drawer itself, is treated exactly

the same as a check.

Inferentially, one of the Idaho cases can also be used

to show that the future presentment aspect of a draft

does not mitigate against such an instrument being

the basis for a false pretense action. In State v. Larsen,

supra, the defendant was convicted of the crime of

false pretenses (Sec. 18-3601) based on his passing a

post dated check.

"If, as appellant contends, it was post dated one day,

he did not direct attention to such fact nor ask the

payee to hold the check, or otherwise in any manner

indicate that the check was not a valid order for

the immediate payment of money. It was given and

accepted as a valid order for the present payment

of $2,000. The appellant knew he had no funds or
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credit in the drawee bank at the time the check was
delivered, nor thereafter." 286 P2d at 647.

While on the subject of Idaho law, one more observa-

tion can be made concerning the lack of difference

between checks and drafts. The Uniform Negotiable

Instruments Law (Idaho Code Sec. 27-101 et seq.)

contains no provision which differentiates a check from

any other type of draft or bill.

III. The Drafts Are Not Forgeries.

Appellant has made an attempt to convince the court

that forgery is involved here. The substance of the

argument is that the drafts were false instruments

because they were not honored.

The cases cited in support of the argument have

nothing in common with this factual situation. Ex
Parte Hibbs, 26 Fed. 421 (D.C. Ore. 1886), involved

the age-old problem of the ficticious payee. Hibbs, a

postmaster, advised the government that certain

money orders had been purchased by person who did

not exist. Hibbs then indorsed the money orders in the

names of the ficticious payees. In the instant case there

were no ficticious payees and there is no evidence even

hinting that the names contained on the front and back

of the drafts were other than the signatures of the per-

sons who purported to sign them.

Also cited is Peoples Bank & Trust Co. v. Fidelity

& Casualty Co., 57 SE2d 809, 231 N.C. 510, 15 ALR2d
996 (1950). There a man who did not have an account

at the bank discovered that his signature would pass

for that of another man who did have an account at
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that bank. The situation here is not the least bit analo-

gous. Here there was no attempt to have the instru-

ments pass for those of another party, and no attempt

to have a signature pass for that of someone else.

There are eases which have become before the courts

wherein the contention has been made that invoices

listing non-existent sales are forgeries. Such a con-

tention is certainly more logical than appellant's. Even

there, however, the i*ule of law is that there is no

forgery as that term is used in a bankers blanket bond.

First National Bank of South Carolina v. Glens

Falls Ins. Co., 304 F2d 866 (1962)

;

State Bank of Poplar Bluff v. Maryland Casualty

Co., 289 F2d 544 (8th Cir. 1961)

;

Pasadena Investment Co. v. Peerless Casualty Co.,

282 P2d 124, 132 Cal. App.2d 328 (1955).

For definitions of "forgery" as the term is used in

bankers blanket bonds and for the citation of cases

holding certain acts not to constitute forgery, appellee

refers the court to Brief of Cross-Appellant submitted

by appellee herin in connection with the cross-appeal

from this action (Brief of Cross-Appellant, pp. 12, 13)

.

At the trial of this action no evidence was offered

questioning the validity of any signatures, nor was

any offered questioning the authority of any person to

sign. The burden was on the insurance company (ap-

pellant) to prove than an exclusion in the policy al-

lowed it to avoid liability. O'Neil v. Neiu York Life

Ins. Co., 152 P2d 707, 65 Idaho 722 (1944).
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CONCLUSION

Appellee respectfully requests that the judgment
granted in its favor be affirmed. It is supported by the

evidence presented and by the applicable law.

Respectfully submitted,
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APPENDIX

Idaho Code, Section 18-3101. Eveiy person who
knowingly and designedly by any false or fraudulent

I'epresentation or pretense, defrauds any other person

of money, labor or property, whether real or personal,

or obtains the signature of another to any instrument

in writing whereby any liability is created, or who
causes or procures others to report falsely of his

wealth or mercantile character, and by thus imposing

upon any person obtains credit, and thereby fraudu-

lently get possession of money or property, or obtains

the labor or service of another, is punishable in the

same manner and to the same extent as for larceny of

the money or the value of the property so obtained ; and

the reasonable value of any labor or services and the

amount of the liability created by any written instru-

ment shall be taken as the value of such labor or ser-

vices or of such written instrument.

Idaho Code, Section 18-3106. (a) Any person who
for himself or as the agent or representative of another

or as an officer of a corporation, wilfully, with intent

to defraud shall make or draw or utter or deliver, or

cause to be made, drawn, uttered, or delivered, any

check, draft or order for the payment of money upon

any bank or depositary, or person, or firm, or corpora-

tion, knowing at the time of such making, drawing,

uttering or delivery that the maker or drawer has no

funds in or credit with such bank or depositaiy, or

person, or firm, or corporation, for the payment in

full of such check, draft or order upon its presentation,

although no express representation is made with refer-

ence thereto, shall upon conviction be punished by im-

prisonment in the state prison for a term not to



The Idaho First National Bank 21

exceed three years or by a fine not to exceed $5,000.00

or by both such fine and imprisonment.

(b) Any person who for himself or as the agent or

representative of another or as an officer of a corpora-

tion, wilfully, with intent to defraud shall make, draw,

utter or deliver, or cause to be made, drawn, uttered

or delivered, any check, draft or order for the payment
of money in the sum of $25.00 or more, upon any bank
or depositary, or person, or firm, or corporation, know-

ing at the time of such making, drawing, uttering

or delivery that the maker or drawer has some but not

sufficient funds in or credit with such bank or deposit-

ary, or person, or firm, or corporation, for the full

payment of such check, draft or order upon its pre-

sentation, although no express representation is made
with reference thereto, shall upon conviction be pun-

ished by imprisonment in the state prison for a term

not to exceed three years, or by a fine not to exceed

$5,000.00, or by both such fine and imprisonment.

(c) Any person who for himself or as the agent or

representative of another or as an officer of a corpora-

tion, wilfully, with intent to defraud, shall make, draw,

utter or deliver, or cause to be made, drawn, uttered,

or delivered, any check, draft or order for payment of

money, in a sum less than $25.00 upon any bank or

depositary, or person, or firm, or corporation, knowing

at the time of such making, drawing, uttering or de-

livery that the maker or drawer has some but not

sufficient funds in or credit with such bank or deposit-

ary, or firm, or person, or corporation, for the full

payment of such check, draft or order upon its pre-

sentation, although no express representation is made

with reference thereto, shall upon conviction for a first
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offense be punished by imprisonment in the county jail

for a term not exceeding six months, or by a fine not

exceeding $300.00 or by both such fine and imprison-

ment; and upon a second conviction the person so con-

victed shall be punished by imprisonment in the county

jail for a term not exceeding one year, or by a fine not

exceeding $1,000.00, or by both such fine and imprison-

ment; provided, however, that upon a third or subse-

quent conviction, the person so convicted shall be pun-

ished by imprisonment in the state prison for a teiTn

not exceeding three years, or by a fine not exceeding

$5,000.00, or by both such fine and imprisonment.

(d) As against the maker or drawer thereof, the

making, drawing, uttering or delivering of such check,

draft or order as aforesaid shall be prima facie evi-

dence of intent to defraud and of knowledge of no

funds or insufficient funds, as the case maye be, in or

credit with such bank, or depositary, or person, or

firm, or corporation, for the payment in full of such

check, draft or order upon its presentation. The word

"credit" as used herein shall be construed to mean an

arrangement or understanding with the bank or de-

positary, or person, or firm, or corporation upon whom
such check, draft or order is drawn for the payment of

such check, draft or order.
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JURISDICTION
Jurisdiction is based on diversity of citizenship and

the fact that the amount in controversy is in excess

of $10,000.00. Cross-appellant is a national banking

association with its principal place of business in Boise,

Idaho. Cross-appellee is a corporation organized and

existing under the laws of the State of Washington

with its principal place of business in that state and
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is licensed to do an insurance business in the State

of Idaho. There matters are admitted in the Pre-Trial

Order (Tr. Vol. I, p. 32).

The basis of jurisdiction of the United States Dis-

trict Court to hear this cause is based upon 28 U.S.C.

Sec. 1332. The jurisdiction of this court to review is

based upon 28 U.S.C. Sec. 1291.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Cross-appellant brought this action in the United

States District Court to recover for two losses which

it had suffered during the course of banking operations.

The District Court ruled adversely to cross-appellant

on Counts II and III of the complaint and in cross-

appellant's favor on Count I. Only one transaction is

involved in this cross-appeal, although two counts of

the complaint, Count II and Count III, are involved.

This cross-appeal followed judgment being entered on

Counts II and III in favor of cross-appellee.

To a great extent cross-appellant is in agreement

with the Amended Findings of Fact by the trial court.

Since these have not been contested by cross-appellee,

they can be used to show most of the factual situation.

These Findings include the following (Tr. Vol. I, pp.

51-59)

:

1. Cross-appellee issued to cross-appellant its Bank-

ers Blanket Bond, Form No. 24, and this bond remain-

ed in full force and effect at all times pertinent here;

2. On February 10, 1964, a woman giving her name

as Clara Perkins deposited with cross-appellant at

its Lewiston, Idaho, branch a check which purported

to be a cashier's check drawn on and issued by the

First National Bank of San Angelo, Texas;
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3. The purported cashier's check was not a form of

cashier's check used by that bank, and was instead a

counter check which had been changed in appearance

to make it appear to be a cashier's check;

4. The name which appeared to be that of an author-

ized signatory, James C. Bolton, was not the name of

any person who had ever been an officer or employee

of the First National Bank of San Angelo, Texas

;

5. On account of the transaction cross-appellant

suffered a loss in the amount of $2,987.35.

There are other pertinent facts. The Bankers Blan-

ket Bond (PI, Ex. 4) covered not only loss through

a counterfeit instrument or signature, insuring clause

(E), but also loss through false pretenses, insuring

clause (B).

When the woman first made herself known in the

branch bank in the early part of February of 1964,

she opened a checking account with a small deposit

and represented that her husband had been trans-

ferred from Boise to Lewiston as an agent with the

Interaal Revenue Service (Tr. Vol. Ill, p. 31). At that

time she gave the bank a local address (Tr. Vol. Ill,

p. 32). Between that first encounter and the cashing

of the purported cashier's check a week or more
elapsed. During that period of time she went into the

bank twice — once to return the signature cards and

once to cash a check (Tr. Vol. Ill, p. 32). At the time

she presented the purported cashier's check (PI. Ex.

1), she represented that the check constituted proceeds

from the sale of a house that had belonged to her de-

ceased father in Texas (Tr. Vol. Ill, p. 34). She asked

for and received $3,000 in cash, stating that she needed
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that amount to apply on the purchase of a home (Tr.

Vol. Ill, p. 34).

The bank later discovered that the Internal Revenue

Service had no agent by the name the woman gave as

that of her husband and that, while she had rented

an apartment at the address given, she had not estab-

lished residence there (Tr. Vol. Ill, pp. 34, 35). The

check was not honored, as the Amended Findings of

Fact show.

SPECIFICATIONS OF ERROR

Cross-appellant contends the court erred in the fol-

lowing :

1. In not finding in it favor on Count II of the

Complaint.

2. In not finding in its favor on Count III of the

Complaint.

3. In not entering Judgment in its favor and against

cross-appellee on Count II of the Complaint.

4. In not entering Judgment in its favor and against

cross-appellee on Count III of the Complaint.

5. In making and entering that portion of its Find-

ing of Fact Number V under the heading Counts II

and III which reads as follows: ".
. . and was in

fact a forgery."

6. In making and entering its Conclusion of Law

Number II under the heading Counts II and III.

7. In not making and entering under the heading

Counts II and III its finding of fact that the loss was

caused by false pretenses.
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8. In not making and entering under the heading

Counts II and III its finding of fact that the loss was
caused by counterfeiting or conterfeit instrument.

9. In not making and entering a conclusion of law

that it is entitled to judgment against cross-appellant

under Count II and/or III for the sum of $2,987.35

plus reasonable attorney fees and costs, and for inter-

est on said sums from and after the date of judgment

at the rate of 6%, per annum.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The loss sustained was covered by two separate in-

suring clauses of the Bankers Blanket Bond. It was

a loss through the insured's having given value upon

a written instrument which was counterfeited, and it

was a loss through false pretenses.

While a loss through false pretenses is excluded if

it is effected by means of forgery, the exclusion is

inapplicable because forgery was not present. In re-

gard to the loss being based on a counterfeit instru-

ment, there is no general exclusion for forgery, but

there is an exclusion contained within the applicable

insuring clause. This limited exclusion does not apply

to the factual situation present here.

ARGUMENT

I. The Bond and Applicable Law — In General

To a great extent this cross-appeal calls for the

construction of the insurance policy involved — the

Bankers Blanket Bond, Form No. 24. Only a few pro-

visions are applicable, and these are insuring clauses

(B) and (E), and exclusion 1(a). These provisions

are as follows:
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(B) Any loss of Property through robbery, bur-

glary, commonlaw or statutory larceny, theft, false

pretenses, hold-up, misplacement, mysterious unex-

plainable disappearance, damage thereto or de-

struction thereof, whether effected with or without

violence or with or without negligence on the part

of any of the Employees, and any loss of subscrip-

tion, conversion, redemption or deposit privileges

through the misplacement or loss of Property, while

the Property is (or is supposed to be) lodged or de-

posited within any offices or premises located any-

where, except in an office hereinafter excluded or in

the mail or with a carrier for hire, other than an

armored motor vehicle company, for the purpose of

transportation.

Any loss, through any hazard specified in the

preceeding paragraph, of any of the items of prop-

erty enumerated in the paragraph defining Prop-

erty, while within any of the Insured's offices covered

hereunder and in the possession of any customer of

the Insured or of any representative of such custo-

mer, whether or not the Insured is legally liable

for the loss thereof, excluding, however, loss caused

by such customer or any representative of such cus-

tomer.

(E) Any loss through the Insured's having, in

good faith and in the course of business, whether

for its own account or for the account of others, in

any representative, fiduciary, agency or any other

capacity, either gratuitously or otherwise, purchased

or otherwise acquired, accepted or received, or sold or

delivered, or given any value, extended any credit or

assumed any liability, on the faith of, or otherwise

acted upon any securities, documents or other
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written instruments which prove to have been coun-

terfeited or forged as to the signature of any maker,

drawer, issuer, endorser, assignor, lessee, transfer

agent or registrar, acceptor, surety or guarantor or

as to the signature of any person signing in any other

capacity, or raised or otherwise altered or lost or

stolen, or through the Insured's having, in good faith

and in the course of business, guaranteed in writing

or witnessed any signatures, whether for valuable

consideration or not and whether or not such guar-

anteeing or witnessing is ultra vires the Insured,

upon any transfers, assignments, bills of sale, powers

of attorney, guarantees, endorsements or other docu-

ments upon or in connection with any securities,

obligations or other written instruments and which

pass or purport to pass title to such securities, obli-

gations or other written instruments; EXCLUD-
ING, HOWEVER, any loss through FORGERY OR
ALTERATIONS of, on or in any checks drafts, ac-

ceptances, withdrawl orders or receipts for the with-

drawal of funds or Property, certificates of deposit,

letters of credit, warrants, money orders or orders

upon public treasuries; and excluding, further, any

loss specified in subdivisions (1) and (2) of Insur-

ing Clause (D) as printed in this bond, whether or

not any amount of insurance is applicable under

this bond to Insuring Clause (D)

.

Mechanically reproduced facsimile signatures are

treated the same as handwritten signatures.

Section 1. This Bond Does Not Cover:

(a) Any loss effected directly or indirectly by

means of forgery, except when covered by Insuring

Clause (A), (D), (E), (F) or (G).
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It will be noticed that exclusion 1(a) does ex-

clude loss effected through false pretenses, insuring

clause (B), when it is effected by means of forgery,

unless the loss is covered by one of the other insuring

clauses there enumerated.

It will also be noticed that if the loss is covered by

insuring clause (E), the exclusion 1(a) is, by its own
terms, inapplicable. Insuring clause (E) does have its

own exclusionary provision.

Since this action is based on an insuring instrument,

it might be well to consider several rules of construc-

tion relative to such contracts. They may be set out

as follows:

Ambiguities are to be construed against the insurer

and in favor of the insured.

Indemnity Insurance Co. v. Pioneer Valley Sav-

ings Bank, 343 F2d 634 (8th Cir. 1965)

;

Hawkeye Casualty Co. v. Western Under-

writer's Ass'n., 53 F.Supp. 256 (D.C. Idaho,

1944)

;

Mayflower Insurance Exchange v. Kosteriva,

367 P2d 572, 84 Idaho 25 (1961)

;

Scharbach v. Continental Casualty Company,

366 P2d 826, 83 Idaho 589 (1961).

Where a term in an insurance policy is susceptible

of two constructions, the one most favorable to the

insured will be adopted.

Nichols & Thompson Core Dnll Co. v. Home-

land Ins. Co., 148 F.Supp. 260 (D.C. Idaho

1957)

;

Scharbach v. Continental Casualty Co., supra;

Penrose v. Commercial Travelers Insurance

Company, 275 P2d 969, 75 Idaho 524,

(1954);
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O'Neil V. New York Life Ins. Co., 152 P2d 707,

65 Idaho 722 (1944).

Where a clause in an insurance policy is susceptible

of more than one construction, that construction most

favorable to the insured will be adopted, and the policy

will be construed in view of its general objects and

conditions rather than with a strict and technical in-

terpretation,

Penrose v. Commercial Travelers Insurance

Company, supra; O'Neil v. New York Life

Ins. Co., supra;

Rollefson v. Lutheran Brotherhood, 132 P2d

758, 64 Idaho 331 (1942).

In New York courts have twice held that the rule of

construing ambiguities and clauses susceptible of more

than one meaning against the insurer applies to

bankers blanket bonds.

Kean v. Maryland Casualty Co., 223 NYS 373

(1927), affirmed 162 N.E. 514;

De Lanoy, Kipp & Swan v. New Amsterdam
Casualty Co., 11 NYS2d 625 (1939).

II. The Loss Was Caused by a Counterfeit Instru-

ment and Is Not Excluded.

Assuming that the loss is covered by insuring clause

(E), the general exclusion 1(a) is not applicable. The

wording of 1(a) is to the effect that forgery is not

covered unless the loss is covered by insuring clause

(E) or one of the other clauses there inumerated.

Insuring clause (E) covers loss caused by the insured

having "purchased or otherwise acquired ... or given

any value . . . upon . . . written instruments which

prove to have been counterfeited . .
." The specific
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manner in which this clause is to be interpreted was
considered by the Court in Fidelity Trust Co. v. Amer-
ican Surety Co. of New York, 268 F2d 805 (3rd Cir.

1959). The court held that "forged" and ''counter-

feited" do not mean the same thing.

"Argument for the sui-ety companies urges the

point that the word 'or' between the word 'counter-

feited' and the word 'forged' indicates the use of

different terms to express the same thing. That

means, necessarily, that the word 'counterfeited'

could just as well be left out for it adds nothing to

the term 'forged.'

"We do not think this is the best construction of

the instrument. The form was offered as a contract

by large professional surety companies who certain-

ly know what they are doing. We cannot think that

it has not been very carefully drafted or that the

draftsman put in words to mean nothing. Further-

more, this language is that of the promisor who is

doing professional business for a consideration. The

bond contained in the record is a printed form sub-

mitted by the surety company. If there is doubt

about the meaning of language under those circum-

stances, it is not to be resolved in favor of the one

who chose the words and as a business transaction

issued the bond to another. Its very term 'Blanket

Bond* indicates that its coverage is to be wide and

it is not unfair to interpret the document in this

fashion.

"The plaintiff's argument provides us with an

ingenious diagram to show the type of loss which,

under its construction, the bond protects against.

It argues as follows:



The Idaho First National Bank 11

'Plaintiff is protected against loss from its having

acted upon "written instruments which prove to have

been counterfeited or forged as to the signature of

any maker, drawer, issuer, endorser, assignor, les-

see, transfer agent or registrar, acceptor, surety or

guarantor or as to the signature of any presons

signing in any other capacity,

or raised

or othei'wise altered

or lost

or stolen * * *'"

"We think that this is a more apt reading of the

language than that shown in the argument of the

defendant." 268 F2d at 807.

Three elements must be present before the loss comes

within the clause as it was interpreted by the Court

of Appeals— (1) the bank must have acted
; (2) there

must have been a written instrument; (3) the instru-

ment must have been counterfeited. There can be no

question but what the first two are present. The check

(PI. Ex. 1) is certainly a written instrument, and

the bank certainly acted upon it when it was taken

as a cash item. Whether or not the instrument was a

counterfeit can best be considered in connection with

the question of whether or not it was a forgeiy.

Even though the general exclusion for forgery does

not apply, there is an exclusion within insuring clause

(E). Excluded is any loss ".
. . through FORGERY

... of, on or in any checks ..." Throughout the

proceedings it has been the contention of the insurance

company that the instrument was a forgery rather

than a counterfeit instrument. The trial court held

it to be a forgery.
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That there is a distinction between the two was
clearly stated by the Eight Circuit Court of Appeals

in Fidelity Trust Co. v. American Surety Co. of New
York, supra. If a counterfeit instrument is to be con-

sidered a forgery, then insuring clause (E) does not

insure against any loss whatsoever. Logic dictates that

a complex insuring clause is not inserted into a policy

merely to exercise the minds of judges and lawyers.

It thus becomes a matter of choosing definitions of

the two words and applying these to the facts. Obvious-

ly the definitions that should be considered are those

prescribed by the courts in construing the exact clause

present here and in construing similar clauses.

In State Bank of Poplar Bluff v. Maryland Casualty

Co., 289 F2d 544 (8th Cir. 1961) the court was called

upon to define the terms. While the problem concerned

chattel mortgages listing non-existent automobiles, the

applicable clause was ( E ) of a Bankers Blanket Bond

No. 24.

''General definitions tell us that 'forgery' means

the 'act of forging, fabricating, or producing false-

ly', that the noun 'counterfeit' means 'that which

is made in imitation of something with a view to

deceive', and that the verb 'counterfeit' means 'to

imitate'. Webster's New International Dictionary

(Second Edition, 1960). The legal definitions place

like emphasis, so far as forgery is concerned, upon

copying or imitating. Black's Law Dictionary

(Fourth Edition, 1961) ; 23 Am.Jur., Forgery, Sec.

2; 37 C.J.S. Forgery Sec. 1; 14 Am.Jur., Counter-

feiting, Sec. 2; 20 C.J.S. Counterfeiting Sec. 1. All

this implies to us falsification and lack of genuine-

ness in the instrument itself rather than in its con-

tent." 289 F2d at 547, 548.

i
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In Detroit v. Standard Accident Ins. Co., 222 N.W.

134, 245 Mich. 14 (1928), the insured sought to re-

cover under a provision insuring against loss caused by

forged indorsements. The facts disclosed that a valid

check payable to a corporation had been indorsed in

the name of the corporation "By J. P. Lynch." Lynch

deposited the money to his own account and later with-

drew it. The court held there has been no ''forgery"

if a person signs his own name pretending to repre-

sent one whom he does not in fact represent. Likewise

in another bankers bond case, Tiarks v. First Natiofial

Bank of Mobile, 182 So2d 366, Ala (1966),

the court held it is not forgery for one to sign his own
name.

Applying the facts present here to the last cited

cases, there is no forgery present. There is no evidence

in the record indicating that the name which appeared

on the instrument (James C. Bolton) was not in fact

the name of the person who affixed that signature.

Likewise there is no evidence indicating that the wom-
an who indorsed was not in fact Clara Perkins. The

burden was on the insurer to prove the signatures were

not genuine — to prove that the loss was excluded.

O^Neil V. Neiv York Life Ins. Co., supra

Now using the definition of the two terms approved

by the Eighth Circuit Court of Appeals in State Bank

of Poplar Bluff v. Maryland Casualty Co., supra, the

instrument is counterfeit, but is not a forgery. When
additional typing or printing was put on the counter

i

check so as to make it appear to be a cashier's check,

jthis was making "in imitation of something with a

I view to deceive." It was the act of "copying or imitat-

|ing." Since the signatures must be assumed to be

i genuine, there was "falsification and lack of genuine-
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ness in the instrument itself rather than in its con-

tent."

Further support for cross-appellant's contentions

is found in two cases which define "counterfeit" as

used in insuring clause (E) to mean an imitation

which simulates another document or writing.

Exchange National Bank of Orleans v. Insur-

ance Co. of North America, 341 F2d 673 (2nd

Cir. 1965)

;

Fi7'st National Bank & Trust Co. of Oklahoma

City V. United States Fidelity & Guaranty

Co., 347 F2d 945 (10th Cir. 1965).

III. The Loss Was Caused By False Pretenses and Is

Not Excluded.

Several instances of false pretense are present in

this case. The uncontroveited testimony of a bank em-

ployee, Gary Asker, clearly shows that the loss was
,

caused by a scheme which was intended to lull the bank

so that the check could be passed. All of the actions of

the woman amounted to one gigantic false pretense.

In addition there are specific instances of false pre-

tenses. The woman falsely represented that her hus-

band was an Internal Revenue agent who had recently

been transferred to Lewiston ; she represented that she

had taken up residence at a specific address in Lewis-

ton ; and she represented that the check constituted the

proceeds of the sale of her deceased father's house.

Perhaps an even more glaring false pi'etense was the

presenting of the check. The presenting itself was a

representation that the instrument was valid.

i
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Rather than explore the law relative to false pre-

tenses, cross-appellant refers the court to the discussion

and citation of authority in its brief submitted in the

initial appeal arising from this action. The briefs of

the appellant (cross-appellee herein) also concern

themselves with the question of what constitutes false

pretenses.

Once the presence of false pretenses is established,

the burden of proving that an exclusion in the policy

precludes recovery rests with the insurance company.

O'Neil V. New York Life Ins. Co., supra. Since no evi-

dence was presented by the insurance company (cross-

appellee) at the trial of this action, the judgment in

favor of the insurance company can only be based on

the check itself (PI. Ex. 1) and the wording of the

bond (PI. Ex. 4).

Since exclusion 1(a) excludes loss effected directly

or indirectly by means of forgery, the only question is

whether the loss was caused by forgery.

Once again the question presented is whether or not

forgery was present. If the loss was effected by means

of forgery, recovery is precluded by exclusion 1(a).

Nothing can be added to the previous discussion in

this regard. What has already been said in support of

the proposition that the instrument was not a forgery

is applicable here.

CONCLUSION

Cross-appellant respectfully requests that the court

reverse the judgment of the trial court and enter
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judgment in its favor on any of the grounds argued in

this brief.

Respectfully submitted,

J. DENNIS FAUCHER
W. E. SULLIVAN
LANGROISE, CLARK & SULLIVAN

By
Attorneys for Cross-Appellant

CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL

I certify that, in connection with the preparation of

this brief, I have examined Rules 18 and 19 of the

United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit,

and that, in my opinion, the foregoing brief is in full

compliance with those rules.

J. Dennis Faucher, Attorney

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF SERVICE

The undersigned, attorneys of record for cross-

appellee herein, hereby acknowledges receipt of three

copies of the foregoing brief this day of

, 1966.

CLEMONS, SKILES & GREEN

By
Attorneys for Cross-Appellee



The Idaho First National Bank

APPENDIX OF EXHIBITS

Exhibit

Plaintiff's 1

Identified Offered

Pre - Trial Order

17

Admitted
or Rejected

Plaintiff's 4 Pre - Trial Order

Plaintiff's 5 Pre - Trial Order

Defendant's 10 Vol. Ill, p. 38 Vol. Ill, p. 39 Vol. I

Defendant's 11 Vol. Ill, p. 38 Vol. Ill, p. 39 Vol. I

Defendant's 12 Vol. Ill, p. 42 Vol. Ill, p. 42 Vol. I

Defendant's 13 Vol. Ill, p. 48 Vol. Ill, p. 48 Vol. I

Defendant's 14 Vol. Ill, p. 48 Vol. Ill, p. 48 Vol. I

Defendant's 15 Vol. Ill, p. 48 Vol. Ill, p. 48 Vol. I

Plaintiff's 16 Vol. Ill, p. 47 Vol. Ill, p. 47 Vol. I

Plaintiff's 17 Vol. Ill, p. 48 Vol. Ill, p. 48 Minute Entry,

Nov 23, 1965 (Tr Vol. I, p. 78)

p. 39

p. 39

p. 48

p- 48

p. 48

p. 48

p. 48





No. 21097

TSimtth i^tat^a ©nurt nfApp^la

3or% Nitttl? CUtrruit

UNITED PACIFIC INSURANCE CO.,

Appellant,

vs.

THE IDAHO FIRST NATIONAL BANK,
Appellee

THE IDAHO FIRST NATIONAL BANK,
Cross-Appellant,

vs.

UNITED PACIFIC INSURANCE CO.,

Cross-Appellee.

BRIEF OF CROSS-APPELLEE

On Appeal from the District Court of the

United States for the District of Idaho,
Southern Division

I LED
CLEMONS, SKILES & GREEN

rn ~ IQPn Attorneys for Cross-Appellee

1'-^ ''

'^^
1110 Bank of Idaho Bldg.

i Boise, Idaho

^\. B. LUCK. CUR^
i

FEB 151367





No. 21097

3n t^t

Intt^ft ^UUb (Enurt of Appeals

Jnr ti|0 Ntntli (Etrrmt

UNITED PACIFIC INSURANCE CO.,

Appellant,

vs.

THE IDAHO FIRST NATIONAL BANK,
Appellee

THE IDAHO FIRST NATIONAL BANK,
Cross-Appellant,

vs.

UNITED PACIFIC INSURANCE CO.,

Cross-Appellee.

BRIEF OF CROSS-APPELLEE

On Appeal from the District Court of the

United States for the District of Idaho,

Southern Division

CLEMONS, SKILES & GREEN
Attorneys for Cross-Appcllcc

1110 Bank of Idaho Bldg.

Boise, Idaho





INDEX

Statement of the Case 1

Argument 2

I. Forgery 3
Count II 4

II. Counterfeiting 6

Appendix of Exhibits 11

TABLE OF CITATIONS

Black's Law Dictionary, 4th Ed (1951)

Indemnity Insurance Co. v. Pioneer Valley

Savings Bank, 343 F. 2d 634 9

First National Bank of South Carolina v.

Glens Falls Ins. Co., 304 F. 2d 866 9

People's Bank & Trust Company v. Fidelity

and Gas Co., 231 N.C. 510, 57 S.E. 2d 809,

15 A.L.R. 2d 996 5

State V. Allen, 53 Idaho 737, 27 P. 2d 482 3

State V. Baldwin, 69 Idaho 459, 208 P.2d 161 4

State V. McDermott, 52 Idaho 602, 17 P. 2d 343 4

47 Am. Jur., Securities, Sec. 16 7

STATUTES
Sec. 18-3601, Idaho Code 3

Sec. 18-3606, Idaho Code 3

Sec. 18-3607, Idaho Code 8

Sec. 18-3608 to 18-3611, Idaho Code 9





No. 21097

HnttrS BUUb Qlnurt nf App^alH

Jnr tif^ Ntntli Qltrrmt

UNITED PACIFIC INSURANCE CO.,

Appellant,

vs.

THE IDAHO FIRST NATIONAL BANK,
Appellee

THE IDAHO FIRST NATIONAL BANK,
Cross-Appellant,

vs.

UNITED PACIFIC INSURANCE CO.,

Cross-Appellee.

BRIEF OF CROSS-APPELLEE

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

I This is a cross appeal by the plaintiff and appellee

(cross-appellant) from the decision of the District

j

Court finding against cross-appellant on counts II and

I

III of cross-appellant's complaint.

I
Counts II and II of the complaint involve only one

I

transaction.

I
On February 10, 1964, a woman giving her name as

,
Clara Perkins deposited a check (PI. Ex. 1), which
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appeared to be a cashier's check drawn on The First
\

National Bank of San Angelo, Texas. Count II of the i

complaint alleges the check to have been passed

through false pretenses. Count III alleges the check

to have been a counterfeit instrument.

The check was drawn on The First National Bank
;!

of San Angelo, Texas, which is a bank in existence

(Tr. Vol. 3, p. 37) and was transferred to that bank i

but was returned marked "unpaid, 2-17-64, forgery"
j

(Tr. Vol 8, p. 38, deposition W. G. Pitzer, p. 7) and
|

was so recorded by the cross-appellant bank (Tr. Vol. '

3, p. 40)

The check was pui-ported to be a cashiers check,
|

signed by James C. Bolton, but apparently no person i

by that name had been employed by the Texas bank \

( Deposition W. G. Pitzer, pp. 7-8 )

.

The trial court held that the check constituted a
'

forgery and was excluded under the terms of the

Blanket Bond, No. 24, issued by the cross-appellee to

the cross-appellant bank.
j

The application for the Bankers Blanket Bond ex-

cluded forgery (Def. Ex. 5). The first rider to the

bond which was issued (PI. Ex. 4) September 1, 1961,

by its provisions, deleted section D, relating to loss
:

through forgery, and there was also excluded by this
^

rider the figures and letter, ''D," wherever they ap-

pear in subsections (a) and (d) of Section 1. Thus ;

all coverage relating to forgery was deleted and ex-

cluded from the bond.

ARGUMENT

Cross-appellant contends the money obtained through

the passage of the check was obtained either through



The Idaho First National Bank 3

false pretenses or by the passage of a counterfeit in-

strument. Cross-appellee contends that the check was
a forgery and excluded from the provisions of the

bond.

FORGERY

Naturally, there is no definition of forgery in the

State of Idaho except that as defined by the Idaho

Statutes.

Section 18-3601 and 18-3606, Idaho Code, define

what constitutes forgery and what is a forged instru-

ment, 18-3601 provides in part:

"18-3601—Forgery defined. Every person who,

with intent to defraud another, falsely makes, alters,

forges or counterfeits, any * * * bank bill, or note,

post note, check draft * * * or utters, publishes,

passes or attempts to pass, as true and genuine any

of the above named false, altered, forged or counter-

feited matters * * * with intent to prejudice, dam-

age or defraud any person * * * is guilty of forgery."

Section 18-3606 defines certain fictitious instruments

as forgery.

The Supreme Court of Idaho, State vs. Allen, 53

Idaho 737, 27p 2d 482, has said

:

"* * * So that since the amendment of Section

8414, C.S., now Section 17-3706, I.C.A., any and all

of the acts mentioned in Section 17-3706, as well as

any and all of the acts mentioned in Section 17-3701

I.e. A., constitutes forgery."

17-3706 and 17-3701, 1.C.A., are now 18-3606 and

18-3601, Idaho Code.



4 United Pacific Insurance Co. vs.

Then in State vs. McDermott, 52 Idaho 602, 17p 2d

343, it was said

:

"Under the Statutes (I.C.A. Section 17-3701 ; C.S.

Section 8408) either the making or uttering, a

forged instrument is a crime, there being no degrees

thereof. The crime consists in doing one, or more of

the acts set forth in the Statute * * * as constituting

forgery * * *."

And in State vs. Baldwin, 69 Idaho 459, 208 p 2d

161, at page 164 of the Idaho Report

;

''* * * Sections 18-3601 and 18-3606, F. C. de-

fining forgery sets forth a great many acts and

means by which the crime may be committed. The

commission of any one of the proscribed acts, with

intent to defraud, is sufficient. * * * Further, the

crime is committed by the making, altering, etc.,

with the necessary intent as well as by uttering,

publishing, passing, etc., with intent. If the prosecu-

tion proves the commission of the offense by either

of these means, it is sufficient. The State is not re-

quired to prove both, as was requested by the ap-

pellant."

COUNT II

One of the elements of the commission of forgery is

the intent to defraud.

Plaintiff apparently recognized the element of for-

gery present here, and that the bond does not afford

coverage as to forged instruments. Thus in Count II,

plaintiff attempts to allege that this check was passed

by means of false pretenses. Such allegation apparent-

ly being for the purpose of escaping the forgery ex-

clusion. Such conclusion may be drawn from the alle-
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gations of Count IV which alleged the check to be a

forgery.

But there is a false pretense present in the uttering

or passing or attempting to pass any instrument the

result of which constitutes forgery. Actually there can-

not be a forgery without a false pretense.

In the instant case we have the making of a false

check or the passing of a false check. It is forgery not-

withstanding that some pretense was also present at

the same time which pretense was false. In People's

Bank and Trust Company vs. Fidelity and Gas Com-
pany, 231NC510, 57SE 2d 809, 15 ALR 2d 996, the

court commented upon the evidence and said that the

facts might constitute either forgery or false pretense,

but that under a policy excluding forgery there was no

coverage. If it was forgery, it made no difference that

it might also constitute false pretenses. The court said

:

"We are not concerned here with the niceties

which might be observed by the solicitor in choosing

the subject of prosecution, — whether false pre-

tense or forgery. We are convinced that if the culp-

able Langley had been tried and convicted of either

offense the State would be estopped under the piinci-

ple of former jeopardy of trying him again upon

the other, since either crime must be predicated up-

on the same transactions. State v. Bell, 205 NC 225,

171 SE 50. And we may observe, too, in that con-

nection, that in a long series of transactions occur-

ring during the four months Langley of Nash Street

dealt with the account of Langley of R.F.D., forgeiy

may have been aided by parol false pretense. Under

a policy which expressly rejects liability for any loss

effected directly or indirectly by forgery it makes no
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difference luhich was the crime and which the adult-

erant. The policy only covers the listed losses, not

loss in general, and a clause which in plain terms

rejects, in what must be considered the body of the

instrument loss which is effected directly or indirect-

ly by forgery, is not an exception from a general

coverage, leaving the burden on the defendant to

bring itself within it.

It appears from the evidence that loss by forgery

was deleted from the instrument, because such a

coverage would have to be paid for by a higher prem-

ium, in language which does not constitute a prima

facie covering.

Thus no relief can be granted under Count II.

II

COUNTERFEITING

Cross-appellant then contends that if the passage

of the check does not constitute false pretenses under

the terms of the bond, it is loss occurred through a

counterfeit instrument, and covered under the provi-

sions of insuiing clause (E)

.

Insuring Clause (E), in addition to the rider ex-

cluding Clause (D) (forgery) contains the follow-

ing exclusion

:

"* * * EXCLUDING, HOWEVER, any loss

through forgery or operation of, on or in any checks,

drafts, acceptances, withdrawal orders, or receipts

for the withdrawal of funds or property, certificates

of deposit, letters of credit, warrants, money orders

or orders upon public treasurers; and excluding.
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further, any loss specified in subdivisions (1) and

(2) of insuring clause (D) as printed in this bond,

whether or not any amount of insurance is applic-

able under this bond to insuring clause (D) ."

Thus whether clause (D) is in effect or not, forgeiy

is excluded from insuring clause (E)

.

But insuring clause (E) comes under the heading

"Securities." ''Securities" as commonly known under

our statutes come under what is generally known as

the Blue Sky Laws. It comprises stocks, bonds and the

like which are also generally referred to as invest-

ments.

In 47 Am. Jur., Securities, Section 16, page 574-

575, it is said:

"The term 'securities' as used in securities acts,

is frequently defined in the act itself. As to the scope

and application of so-called 'Blue Sky Laws' with

respect to instruments not covered by express statu-

tory definition, it has been said that to lay down a

hard and fast rule by which to determine whether

that which is offered to a prospective investor is such

a security as may not be sold without registrations

or official sanction * * * There is likewise no hard

and fast rule as to what constitutes a "security"

within the meaning of that term as used in the Fed-

eral Securities Act of 1933, * * * The following have

been held to be within the operation of the statute:

a participation trust certificate in producing oil

royalties * * * so-called time trust certificates;

'shareholders receipts,' and various other contracts

and instiTiments in the nature of profit sharing

agreements. The Federal Securities Act of 1933 ap-

plies to issues of securities by a foreign government.
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as well as to private securities."

And although we think that "Securities" under in-

suring clause (E) is something entirely different than

the instrument involved here in this case, clause (E) it-

self clearly excludes coverage as to this type of instru-

ment as clause (E) itself as above quoted provides:

"* * * excluding, however, any loss through for-

gery or alteration of, on or in any checks * * * and

excluding, further, any loss specified in subdivisions

(1) and (2) of insuring clause (D) * * *"

On the other hand, counterfeiting is generally ap-

plied to imitation of money, or governmental coins or

other governmental obligations. Black's Law Diction-

aiy,4thEd. (1951) defines

"COUNTERFEIT. In Criminal Law, To forge;

to copy or imitate, without authority or light, and

with a view to deceive or defraud, by passing the

copy or thing forged for that which is original or

genuine. Most commonly applied to the fraudulent

and criminal imitation of money,

(citing authority)."

While Sections 18-3601 and 18-3606, Idaho Code,

above quoted to some extent treat forgery, counterfeit

and fictitious as one and the same, and prescribe the

penalty for each to be forgery, the statutes also treat

counterfeiting as relating to money. Thus Section 18-

3607, Idaho Code provides

:

"18-3607. COUNTERFEITING COIN OR BUL-
LION. — Every pei'son who counterfeits any of the

species of gold or silver coin current in this state, or

any kind of species of gold dust, gold or silver bul-

lion, or bars, lumps, pieces, or nuggets, or who sells,
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passes, or gives in payment such counterfeit coin,

dust, bullion, bars, lumps, pieces, or nuggets, or per-

mits, causes or procures the same to be sold, uttered

or passed, with intention to defraud any person,

knowing the same to be counterfeited, is guilty of

counterfeiting."

Sections 18-3608 to 18-3611 then provide for punish-

ment of counterfeiting, possessing counterfeiting ap-

paratus, etc. Thus forgery and counterfeiting are

treated separately.

The language of the policy should be taken according

to its ordinary and accepted meaning. Although cross-

appellant contends that the provisions of an insurance

policy should be construed against the insurer, the

terms of the policy should not be misconstrued to ob-

tain that end.

In Indemnity Insurance Co. v. Pioneer Valley Sav-

ings Bank, 343 F. 2d 634, which is cited by appellee

(appellee's brief, page 9) this statement is made:

"It is true, as defendant contends that if the lang-

uage of a policy is clear and unambiguous, it is the

simple duty of the tnal court to give effect to such

contractual language in harmony with its plain and

unambiguous meaning. The trial court is not clothed

with the authority to make, or to revise the contract

of the parties. * * *"

And also in First National Bank of South Carolina v.

Glens Falls Ins. Co., 304 F. 2d 866, cited by appellee

(appellee's brief page 18 ) it is said

:

"In our judgment the limitation cannot be ig-

nored. It is familiar law in South Carolina and else-



10 United Pacific Insurance Co. vs.

where that the terms of an insurance contract must

be construed in favor of the insured and against the

insurer where the words of the policy are ambigu-

ous, but where there is no ambiguity a contract of

insurance, like other contracts, must be construed

according to the plain and ordinary meaning of its

terms. * * *"

Respectfully submitted,

CLEMONS, SKILES & GREEN

By

Attorneys for Cross-Appellee
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ARGUMENT
The contention of cross-appellant has been that the

loss was covered by two insuring clauses—the one in-

suring against loss through false pretenses and the one

insuring against loss through having given value upon

a written instrument which was countei-feited. It is

also cross-appellant's contention that the exclusions

for forgery are not applicable.
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In its brief the cross-appellee insurance company
has contended that the forgery exclusions are applic-

able and that the clause insuring against loss through

counterfeit instruments, insuring clause (E), does not

cover this loss. It appears that these are the only re-

maining issues.

I. THE FORGERY EXCLUSIONS

Primary reliance is placed by the cross-appellee on

two criminal statutes, and on cases which construe

these statutes. The statutes, Idaho Code Sees. 18-3601

and 18-3606, are "catch-all" statutes. A reading of the

sections discloses that an attempt was made to list

as many various offenses as possible within two statu-

tory crimes.

Not only do reason and logic dictate that such crim-

inal statutes cannot form the basis for determining the

definition of words used in an insurance policy, but

case law provides a rule of law that the definition used

in a criminal statute is not controlling. Mitchell Grain

& Supply Co. V. Maryland Casualty Co., 195 Pac. 978

108 Kan. 379 (1921) ; Montana Auto Finance Corp.

V. Federal Surety Co., 278 Pac. 116, 85 Mont. 149

(1929) ; Terry v. Water Improvement Dist. No. 5, 64

P2d 904, 179 Okla. 106 (1937) ; Nugent v. Union Au-
tomobile Ins. Co. 13 P2d 343, 140 Ore. 61 (1932);

Dexter-Horton Nat. Bank v. United States F. & G. Co.,

270 Pac. 799, 149 Wash. 343 (1928).

All of the Idaho cases cited by cross-appellee are

criminal cases and are subject to the same criticism.

Reliance upon People's Bank & Trust Co. v. Fidelity

i& Casualty Co., 57 SE2d 809, 231 N.C. 510, 15 ALR2d
996 (1950) is also misplaced. That case stands only
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for the proposition that it can be forgery for a person

to sign his own name with the intent that it be taken

for the signature of another existing person with the

same name. 57 SE2d at 815.

There is a factor in the instant situation which can

be illustrated by People's Bank & Tntst Co., v. FideUtij

& Casimlty Co., supra. In that case insuring clauses

(D) and (E) had both been deleted by rider. T'he

couit called attention to the fact that the exclusion

was for loss effected "directly or indirectly" by for-

gery. In the instant case that general exclusion ap-

plies to the false pretense allegation but not to the con-

tention that coverage is afforded by (E) . The exclusion

in (E) is for loss "through FORGERY . .
." While

cross-appellant has no idea why different wording is

used in these two exclusions, the contract is written and

drafted by the insurance company, so there must be

a reason. It appears logical that a loss effected "direct-

ly or indirectly" by forgery might not be one "through

forgery." Thus, even though some resemblance to for-

gery might preclude recovery under insuring clause

(B), recovery might still be allowed under (E). (The

preceding is argumentative only and is not a waiver of

the contention that recovery should be allowed under

insuring clause (B) ).

II. THE EXTENT OF COVERAGE OF (E).

Cross-appellee is now arguing that insuring clause

(E) is meant to only cover losses where stocks and

bonds are involved.

The fact that the title of the clause is "Securities" is

of no importance because a caption should never of

itself be taken to override the intention of the parties
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to an insurance policy as shown by the provisions and

clauses inserted under it. National Imlemnity Com-
pany V. Giampapa, 399 P2d 81, 65 Wn2d 627 (1965)

;

Thompson v. State Auto. Mutual Ins. Co., 11 SE2d
849, 122 W.Va. 551 (1940). The clause itself covers

".
. . securities, documents or other wntten instru-

ments which prove to have been ..." If any further

evidence of intent is required it is supplied by the for-

gery exclusion provision which specifically refers to

checks. If checks were not meant to come within the

tei*m "other written instruments," there would be no

reason to refer specifically to them in connection with

forgery.

The last argument contained in cross-appellee's brief

is also refuted by the policy itself. Cross-appellee con-

tends that counterfeiting only applies where currency

and coins are involved, and therefore recovery cannot

be allowed because the instrument in question was a

cashier's check. The answer is that loss caused by

counterfeit currency and coins is covered by another

insuring clause—insuring clause (G). Therefore the

counterfeiting covered by (E) is counterfeiting other

than of coins and currency.

One last point can be made. In the initial brief on

this cross-appeal the contention was made that insur-

ing clause (E) distinguishes between "forged" and

"counterfeited." Reliance was placed on Fidelity Trust

Co. V. American Surety Co. of New York, 268 F2d 805

(3rd Cir. 1959). Through an error the diagram used

by the court in that case appears incorrectly on page

11 of Brief of Cross-appellant. This diagram should

appear as follows

:

'Plaintiff is protected against loss from its having

acted upon



The Idalio First National Bank 5

"written instruments which prove to have been
counterfeited

or forged as to the signature of any maker, draw-
er, issuer, endorser, assignor, lessee, transfer agent

or registrar, acceptor, surety or guarantor or as to

the signature of any person signing in any other

capacity,

or raised

or otherwise altered

or lost

or stolen * * *" ' 268 F2d at 807.

The diagram speaks for itself in supporting cross-ap-

pellant's contention.

Respectfully submitted,

J. DENNIS FAUCHER
W. E. SULLIVAN
LANGROISE, CLARK & SULLIVAN
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